VECTOR **NTI ADVANCE**[™]10 USER'S MANUAL



www.invitrogen.com

Vector NTI AdvanceTM 10 User's Manual

Published by: Invitrogen Corporation 1600 Faraday Avenue Carlsbad, CA 92008 USA

www.invitrogen.com

Copyright © **2004**, **2005 Invitrogen Corporation**. All rights reserved. This book contains proprietary information of **Invitrogen Corporation**. No part of this document, including design, cover design, and icons, may be reproduced or transmitted in any form, by any means (electronic, photocopying, recording, or otherwise) without prior written agreement from Invitrogen Corporation.

The software described in this document is furnished under a license agreement. **Invitrogen Corporation** and its licensors retain all ownership rights to the software programs offered by **Invitrogen Corporation** and related documentation. Use of the software and related documentation is governed by the license agreement accompanying the software and applicable copyright law.

Vector **NTI Advance** and Gateway are registered trademarks of **Invitrogen Corporation** in the United States and other countries. Logos of **Invitrogen Corporation** are also trademarks registered in the United States and may be registered in other countries. Other product and brand names are trademarks of their respective owners.

Generated in the United States.

Invitrogen Corporation reserves the right to make and have made changes, without notice, both to this publication and to the product it describes. Information concerning products not manufactured or distributed by **Invitrogen Corporation** is provided without warranty or representation of any kind, and neither **Invitrogen Corporation** nor its affiliates will be liable for any damages.

This version of the Vector NTI Advance[™] 10 User's Manual was published in September 2005.

Invitrogen's free technical support for Vector NTI software is available exclusively through the web. For more information, check out the eSupport section of the Vector NTI user community at http://www.invitrogen.com/vectorNTIcommunity.

To obtain personalized technical support by telephone or email, you must have an annual support contract. Academic and government users may purchase an Academic Vector NTI Support Contract through the User Community. Commercial users may purchase an Advanced Support Contract by contacting Invitrogen at <u>bioinfosales@invitrogen.com</u> (for the Americas) or <u>eurobio-infoorders@invitrogen.com</u> (for European/Middle Eastern/African/Asian Pacific customers).

For paid support, use the following contacts:

United States Phone: 240-379-4240 or 877-357-3114 (Toll-free, U.S.) E-mail: <u>bioinfosupport@invitrogen.com</u>

Europe, Middle East, Africa, Asian Pacific Phone: +44 (0) 141 814 6350 Email: <u>eurobioinfosupport@invitrogen.com</u>

The Invitrogen Technical Support team may request that you run the Vector NTI System Information utility and email them the resulting file. Vector NTI System Information is a utility application, which gathers data about the system on which Vector NTI is installed and consolidates that information into one file. The system information file is helpful in the diagnosis and resolution of system-related Vector NTI problems.

Table of Contents at a Glance

Chapter 1 Introduction to Vector NTI Advance1
Chapter 2 Overview of Vector NTI Advance5
Chapter 3 The Vector NTI User Interface13
Chapter 4 Tutorial: Molecule Display Windows25
Chapter 5 Tutorial: Molecule Editing37
Chapter 6 Tutorial: Formatting Molecule Graphics45
Chapter 7 Tutorial: Database Explorer55
Chapter 8 Tutorial: PCR Analysis and Primer Design65
Chapter 9 Tutorial: Molecule Construction77
Chapter 10 Tutorial: Molecule Design85
Chapter 11 Tutorial: Advanced Molecule Design93
Chapter 12 Tutorial: Gel Display Windows; Restriction Digestion
Chapter 13 Tutorial: Internet Connectivity and Tools107

Chapter 14 Tutorial: AlignX 115
Chapter 15 Tutorial: Bioannotator
Chapter 16 Tutorial: ContigExpress
Chapter 17 Database Explorer
Chapter 18 Molecule Display Windows; Formatting Graphics
Chapter 19 Editing Molecule Content
Chapter 20 Primer Design: PCR, Sequencing and Hybridization
Chapter 21 Search and Analysis Tools 283
Chapter 22 Molecule Construction
Chapter 23 Gateway and TOPO Cloning 321
Chapter 24 Molecule Design
Chapter 25 Gel Display Windows
Chapter 26 Report Generation
Chapter 27 Shared Databases
Chapter 28 AlignX
Chapter 29 BioAnnotator
Chapter 30 ContigExpress: Project Explorer 431
Chapter 31 ContigExpress: Fragment and Contig Windows

Chapter 32 ContigExpress: Group Operations on Fragments493
Chapter 33
GenomBench
Chapter 34
Analysis Monitor - Advanced Analysis Tools
Chapter 35 BLAST Search and BLAST Viewer575
Chapter 36
AlignX Blocks
Chapter 37 3D-Mol
Chapter 38
Tools Manager625
Chapter 39
Miscellaneous Vector NTI Tools631
Appendix A
Technical Support and Web Site 659
Appendix B
References
Appendix C
ASCII Format; IUB Codes (IUPAC CODES) 667
Appendix D
Parent-Descendant Relationships in Vector NTI
Appendix E
Tm Calculations in Vector NTI 675
Appendix F
Regular Expression Syntax 683
Appendix G
License Manager
Index 695

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

Table of Contents

Chapter 1	
Introduction to Vector NTI Advance	1
Welcome	1
Getting Started with Vector NTI Advance	1
The Vector NTI User	2
The Vector Advance 9.0 User's Manual Format	2
Conventions Used in this Manual	2
Chapter 2	
Overview of Vector NTI Advance	5
Introduction	5
Vector NTI Database Explorer	5
Organizing your Biological Objects	6
Database Search	6
Import/Export Functions	6 6
Features and Functions of Vector NTI	7
Creating New Molecules	7
Creating New Enzymes, Oligos, and Gel Markers	
Oligos and Primers Editing Database Objects	
Parent-Descendant Connections	7
Generating Restriction Maps	7
Molecule Display	8
Text Pane	8
Graphics Pane	8
Creating Molecule Documents	8
Gel Display Windows	8
Creating Gel Display Windows	8
Creating Gel Samples and Gel Markers	8
Running the Gel	9
Align X	9
BioAnnotator	9
ContigExpress	9

GenomBench	9
Remote Services Tools	10
BLAST Search/BLAST Viewer PubMed/Entrez Search, Citation Viewer and Citation Table of Database Explorer Remote Database Sources Wizard	
Miscellaneous Tools	10
Analysis Monitor GCG Converter Matrix Editor AlignX Blocks 3D-Mol Oligo Files Importer Tools Manager	
License Manager Vector NTI System Information	

The Vector NTI User Interface	13
Introduction	13
Launching Vector NTI	13
Online Help	13
The Application Workspace	14
Viewer Display Window Description	14
Viewer Panes	15
Viewer Window Operations	15
Viewer Display Panes	16
Miscellaneous Interface Features	
Selection Techniques	
Copying Display Window Text, Graphics or Sequences Image To The Clipboard	
Printing from Display Windows	
Exporting Molecule Data	22
Pane Manager	22
Chapter 4	
Tutorial: Molecule Display Windows	25
Introduction	25

Introduction	25
1. Launch Vector NTI	25
2. Inspect the Vector NTI Workspace and Database Explorer Windows	26
3. Create and Inspect a Molecule Display Window for pBR322	26
4. Arrange the Display Window Conveniently	27
5. Select a Fragment or a Feature in the Graphics Pane	
Modifying the Selection	
Selecting Features	
Selection Techniques Summary for the Graphics Pane	
6. Examine pBR322's Nucleotide Sequence	29
7. Work with pBR322's Text Description	31
8. Link pBR322's Text Pane to the Graphics and Sequence Panes	32

9. Print pBR322's Text Description, Graphical Map, and Sequence	
10. Create a Display Window for 41BB_HUMAN	
11. Create a Display Window for 1B14_HUMAN	35
12. Close the Display Windows and Exit Vector NTI	
Chapter 5	
Tutorial: Molecule Editing	
Introduction	
1. Launch Vector NTI	
2. Open a Display Window for pBR322	
3. Edit pBR322's General Data	
4. Edit My pBR322's Sequence	
5. Revert to Database Version of My pBR322	40
6. Insert a New Sequence Fragment	40
7. Edit the TC(R) Signal	41
8. Delete the P2_P Signal and Add a New Signal	42
9. Change the Starting Coordinate of My pBR322	42
10. Close the Display Window and Exit Vector NTI	43
Chapter 6	
Tutorial: Formatting Molecule Graphics	45
Introduction	45
Introduction 1. Launch Vector NTI	45 45
Introduction 1. Launch Vector NTI 2. Open pBR322 in a New Display Window	45 45 45
 Introduction 1. Launch Vector NTI 2. Open pBR322 in a New Display Window	45 45 45 46
 Introduction 1. Launch Vector NTI 2. Open pBR322 in a New Display Window 3. Arrange the Display Window Conveniently 4. Change the Arrangement Setup 	45 45 45 46 46
 Introduction	45 45 46 46 46
 Introduction	45 45 46 46 46 46 46 48
 Introduction	45 45 46 46 46 46 48 48
 Introduction	45 45 46 46 46 46 46 48 48 49
 Introduction	45 45 46 46 46 46 48 48 48 49 50
 Introduction	45 45 46 46 46 46 46 48 48 48 49 50 50
Introduction1. Launch Vector NTI2. Open pBR322 in a New Display Window3. Arrange the Display Window Conveniently4. Change the Arrangement Setup5. Change the Graphics Setup of CDS Signals6. Turn on the Picture Editing Mode7. Turn the TC(R) Arrow to Blue Cross-Hatching8. Enlarge the TC(R) Arrow9. Format TC(R)'s Label10. Add a Text Annotation11. Experiment with Styles	45 45 46 46 46 46 46 48 48 49 50 51
Introduction1. Launch Vector NTI2. Open pBR322 in a New Display Window3. Arrange the Display Window Conveniently4. Change the Arrangement Setup5. Change the Graphics Setup of CDS Signals6. Turn on the Picture Editing Mode7. Turn the TC(R) Arrow to Blue Cross-Hatching8. Enlarge the TC(R) Arrow9. Format TC(R)'s Label10. Add a Text Annotation11. Experiment with Styles12. Save the pBR322 Molecule Display to a Molecule Document file	45 45 46 46 46 46 48 48 48 49 50 50 51 52
Introduction1. Launch Vector NTI2. Open pBR322 in a New Display Window3. Arrange the Display Window Conveniently4. Change the Arrangement Setup5. Change the Graphics Setup of CDS Signals6. Turn on the Picture Editing Mode7. Turn the TC(R) Arrow to Blue Cross-Hatching8. Enlarge the TC(R) Arrow9. Format TC(R)'s Label10. Add a Text Annotation11. Experiment with Styles12. Save the pBR322 Molecule Display to a Molecule Document file13. Use the Saved Style Sheet to Format Molecule Display Windows	45 45 45 46 46 46 46 48 48 48 49 50 50 50 51 52 52
Introduction1. Launch Vector NTI2. Open pBR322 in a New Display Window3. Arrange the Display Window Conveniently4. Change the Arrangement Setup5. Change the Graphics Setup of CDS Signals6. Turn on the Picture Editing Mode7. Turn the TC(R) Arrow to Blue Cross-Hatching8. Enlarge the TC(R) Arrow9. Format TC(R)'s Label10. Add a Text Annotation11. Experiment with Styles12. Save the pBR322 Molecule Display to a Molecule Document file13. Use the Saved Style Sheet to Format Molecule Display Windows14. Close the Display Window and Exit Vector NTI	45 45 46 46 46 46 46 46 48 49 50 51 52 52 52 53
Introduction 1. Launch Vector NTI 2. Open pBR322 in a New Display Window 3. Arrange the Display Window Conveniently 4. Change the Arrangement Setup 5. Change the Graphics Setup of CDS Signals 6. Turn on the Picture Editing Mode 7. Turn the TC(R) Arrow to Blue Cross-Hatching 8. Enlarge the TC(R) Arrow 9. Format TC(R)'s Label 10. Add a Text Annotation 11. Experiment with Styles 12. Save the pBR322 Molecule Display to a Molecule Document file 13. Use the Saved Style Sheet to Format Molecule Display Windows 14. Close the Display Window and Exit Vector NTI	45 45 46 46 46 46 46 48 48 48 49 50 50 51 52 52 52
Introduction 1. Launch Vector NTI 2. Open pBR322 in a New Display Window 3. Arrange the Display Window Conveniently 4. Change the Arrangement Setup 5. Change the Graphics Setup of CDS Signals 6. Turn on the Picture Editing Mode 7. Turn the TC(R) Arrow to Blue Cross-Hatching 8. Enlarge the TC(R) Arrow 9. Format TC(R)'s Label 10. Add a Text Annotation 11. Experiment with Styles 12. Save the pBR322 Molecule Display to a Molecule Document file 13. Use the Saved Style Sheet to Format Molecule Display Windows 14. Close the Display Window and Exit Vector NTI	45 45 46 46 46 46 46 48 48 49 50 50 50 51 52 52 53
Introduction 1. Launch Vector NTI 2. Open pBR322 in a New Display Window 3. Arrange the Display Window Conveniently 4. Change the Arrangement Setup 5. Change the Graphics Setup of CDS Signals 6. Turn on the Picture Editing Mode 7. Turn the TC(R) Arrow to Blue Cross-Hatching 8. Enlarge the TC(R) Arrow 9. Format TC(R)'s Label 10. Add a Text Annotation 11. Experiment with Styles 12. Save the pBR322 Molecule Display to a Molecule Document file 13. Use the Saved Style Sheet to Format Molecule Display Windows 14. Close the Display Window and Exit Vector NTI Chapter 7 Tutorial: Database Explorer	
Introduction 1. Launch Vector NTI 2. Open pBR322 in a New Display Window 3. Arrange the Display Window Conveniently 4. Change the Arrangement Setup 5. Change the Graphics Setup of CDS Signals 6. Turn on the Picture Editing Mode 7. Turn the TC(R) Arrow to Blue Cross-Hatching 8. Enlarge the TC(R) Arrow 9. Format TC(R)'s Label 10. Add a Text Annotation 11. Experiment with Styles 12. Save the pBR322 Molecule Display to a Molecule Document file 13. Use the Saved Style Sheet to Format Molecule Display Windows 14. Close the Display Window and Exit Vector NTI 7. Tutorial: Database Explorer Introduction 1. Launch Vector NTI	

3. Experiment with View Options	57
4. Experiment with Selection and Menus and Edits	57
5. Learn About Subsets	57
6. Search the Database	
7. Examine Vector NTI's User Field Manager	59
8. Define a New User Field	60
9. View the New Field in Database Explorer	61
10. Examine Vector NTI's Contact Manager	63
11. Close the Molecule Display Windows and Exit Vector NTI	63
Chapter 8	
Tutorial: PCR Analysis and Primer Design	65
Introduction	65
1. Launch Vector NTI and Open a Molecule Display Window	65
2. Select the Region of ColE1	65
3. Prepare for PCR Analysis	66
4. Perform PCR Analysis	71
5. Inspect the PCR Analysis Folder	71
6. Perform Oligo Analysis on a PCR Sense Primer	71
7. Order Custom Primers	72
8. Save a PCR Primer to the Database	73
9. Add Restriction Enzyme Sites to the PCR Primers	73
10. Inspect the New PCR Analysis Results	75
11. Save the PCR Product to the Database and Open a Display Window	75
12. Arrange the View of the Product	75
13. Close Display Windows and Exit Vector NTI	76
Chapter 9	
Tutorial: Molecule Construction	77
Introduction	77
1. Launch Vector NTI	78
2. Create Display Windows for pBR322 and pUC19	78
3. Arrange the Display Windows	78
4. Define the First Fragment (from pUC19)	78
5. Define the Second Fragment (from pBR322)	80
6. Inspect the Goal List	
7. Enter General Information About the New Molecule	
8. Attempt to Construct the New Molecule	
9. Fill in the Aval Site of the pBR322 Fragment to Make it Blunt	83
10. Inspect Your New Molecule	
11. Close the Display Windows and Exit Vector NTI	

Tutorial: Molecule Design	85
Introduction	85
1. Launch Vector NTI and Create Display Windows for pBR322 and pUC19.	86
2. Arrange Display Windows	86
3. Define the Recipient Fragment (from pUC19)	86
4. Define the Donor Fragment (from pBR322)	87
5. Inspect the Goal Molecule Definition List	87
6. Enter General Information for Your New Molecule	88
7. Prepare to Design the New Molecule	88
8. Set Your Preferences for Molecule Design	89
9. Design the New Molecule	89
10. Inspect the New Molecule	90
11. Inspect the Design Plan	90
12. Print Out the Design Plan	91
Chapter 11	
Tutorial: Advanced Molecule Design	93
Introduction	93
1. Launch Vector NTI, Open and Arrange Display Windows	93
First Design: Complicated Recipient	94
2. Define the Recipient Fragment	94
3. Define the Donor Fragment	94
4. Inspect the Goal Molecule Definition List	95
5. Enter General Information for Your New Molecule	95
6. Prepare to Design the New Molecule	95
7. Set the Design Preferences	95
8. Design the New Molecule	96
9. Inspect the New Molecule	96
10. Inspect the Graphical Map and Text Description of Your New Molecule	96
Second Design: Complex Donor Fragment	97
1. Define Recipient	97
2. Define Donor	97
3. Inspect the Goal List	98
4. Design the New Molecule	98
5. Inspect and Print the New Molecule	98
Chapter 12	
Tutorial: Gel Display Windows;	
Restriction Digestion	99
Introduction	99

1. Launch Vector NTI	99
2. Create a New Gel and Open a Display Window	99
3. Create a Sample and Add it to the Gel	100
4. Add Gel Markers	101
5. Arrange the Gel Display Window Conveniently	102
6. Inspect the Gel Display Window Text Pane	102
7. Change Display Color for a Fragment	102
8. Run the Gel	103
9. Gel Animation	103
10. Optimize the Gel Display	103
11. Change to a Polyacrylamide Gel from the Electrophoresis Profile	104
12. Estimate Fragment Separation Time	104
13. Save the Gel Display Window to a Gel Document File	105
14. Close the Gel Display Window	105
15. Calculate Restriction Fragments	105
Chapter 13	
Tutorial: Internet Connectivity and Tools	107
Introduction	107
1. Launch Vector NTI and Open pBR322 in a New Display Window	107
2. Select the Whole Sequence of pBR322 and Use the BLAST Search Tool	107
3. Display the Result of the Query in a Molecule Display Window	109
4. Save (Send to) or Open the Result of the Query Using the Save Button	110
5. Use Alignment and Analysis Tools	110
6. Saving Search Results as Comments	112
7. Close the Molecule Display Windows and Exit Vector NTI	113
Chapter 14	
Tutorial: AlignX	115
Introduction	115
1. Launch AlignX from the Database Explorer	115
2. Examine AlignX Display Window	116
3. Add Molecule to Alignment	118
4. Inspect the Guide Tree	118
5. Review the Alignment Parameters and Matrix	118
6. Examine the Alignment Pane	119
7. Edit the Alignment	120
8. Generate Dot Matrix Plot	120
9. Export Alignment Molecules	122
10. Copy and Print an AlignX Pane	122
11. Save the Project and Close AlignX	122

Tutorial: Bioannotator	125
Introduction	125
1. In Vector NTI, Open a Molecule Display Window for pSV2-dhfr; Create a Translating a CDS	New Protein by125
2. Launch BioAnnotator from a Vector NTI Molecule Display Window	126
3. Review the BioAnnotator Display Window	127
4. Examine and Modify Plot Properties	127
5. Modify Plot Layouts	128
6. Format the DHFR Sequence	128
7. Open a DNA Project in BioAnnotator	129
8. Add New Analyses to BioAnnotator	129
9. Copy, Paste, and Print BioAnnotator Panes	130
10. Close the Display Window and Exit Vector NTI	130
Chapter 16	
Tutorial: ContigExpress	131
Introduction	131
Session 1 Project Explorer	131
1. Open a ContigExpress Window	131
2. Open a ContigExpress Project and Add a Fragment to the Project	132
3. Examine the ContigExpress Project Explorer Window	133
4. Create Assemblies of Contigs	133
Start Assembling	133
Assembly Setup	134
5 Pavian and Modify Viaving Options	135
6. View Contents in the Tree and Content Panes	120
7 Managa Fragment Lists and Project Items	120
 Manage Flagment Lists and Floject items	140
8. Save and Close a ConfigExpress Project	140
1 Open and Inspect the Freemant Window	140
Toxt Pana	140
Sequence Pane	141
Chromatogram Pane	143
2. Sequence Selection Techniques	143
3. Display ORFs and Translate the Nucleotide Sequence	144
Display ORFs for the Sequence Translate the Nucleotide Sequence	144 145
4. Edit the Nucleotide Sequence in the Sequence Pane	146
5. Edit a Sequence in the Chromatogram Pane	149
6. Close the Fragment Window	149

7. Exit ContigExpress	149
Session 3 Working in the Contig Viewer	
1. Open and Examine a Contig Window	149
Text Pane	150
Graphics Pane	151
2. Review the Contig in Contig Alignment Pane	154
3. Edit a Fragment in the Alignment Pane	159
4. Exit ContigExpress	161
Chapter 17	
Database Explorer	
Introduction	
Opening Vector NTI Database Explorer	
Elements of Vector NTI Database Explorer	
Database Tables	
Citation Table	
Database Subsets	
Database Objects	
Database Object System Fields	
User-defined Fields	
Database Search	171
DNA/RNA and Protein Molecule Database Searches	
Enzyme Database Search	
Gel Marker Database Search	
Citation Database Search	
BLAST Results and Analysis Results Database Searches	
Database Management Operations	1/8
Backup, Restore and Cleanup	
Operations on Subsets	
Creating a New Subset	
Editing a Subset	
Rename Subset	
Dismiss Subset	
Delete Contents	
Subset Summary	
Subset Properties	
Import Molecules into a Subset	
Import Enzymes into a Subset	
Export Subset	
Copy and save of Print a List of the Objects in a Subset	
DNA DNA Malas la Oscariana	
DNA/KNA Molecule Operations	
Enzyme Operations	

Oligo Operations	
Gel Marker Operations	
BLAST and Analysis Results Operations	
Drag and Drop	
Edit Menu Commands	
Copy/Paste	
Explorer Display Options	
Options Dialog Box	
Modifying Database Object Column Widths	
Database Reports	
Explorer Shortcuts	
Open/Sava As Dialog Boyas	105
Open/Save As Dialog Boxes	
Contact Manager	
Add New or Edit Contact Records	
User Field Manager	
Import/Export Set In/Clear In	
Editing User Fields in Individual Objects	
User Fields Tab in the Edit Dialog Box	
User Fields in Molecule Display Windows	
Chapter 18 Molecule Display Windows; Formatting Graphics	203
Chapter 18 Molecule Display Windows; Formatting Graphics Introduction	 203
Chapter 18 Molecule Display Windows; Formatting Graphics Introduction Vector NTI Display Window Options Dialog Box	203 203 204
Chapter 18 Molecule Display Windows; Formatting Graphics Introduction Vector NTI Display Window Options Dialog Box Opening Molecules in Molecule Display Windows	203 203 204 204
Chapter 18 Molecule Display Windows; Formatting Graphics Introduction Vector NTI Display Window Options Dialog Box Opening Molecules in Molecule Display Windows Molecule Database Files Molecule Document Files	203 203 204 204 204 204 204 204 205
Chapter 18 Molecule Display Windows; Formatting Graphics Introduction Vector NTI Display Window Options Dialog Box Opening Molecules in Molecule Display Windows Molecule Database Files Molecule Document Files Elements of a Molecule Display Window	203 203 204 204 204 204 204 205 206
Chapter 18 Molecule Display Windows; Formatting Graphics Introduction Vector NTI Display Window Options Dialog Box Opening Molecules in Molecule Display Windows Molecule Database Files Molecule Document Files Elements of a Molecule Display Window	203 203 204 204 204 204 204 205 205 206 207
Chapter 18 Molecule Display Windows; Formatting Graphics Introduction Vector NTI Display Window Options Dialog Box Opening Molecules in Molecule Display Windows Molecule Database Files Molecule Document Files Elements of a Molecule Display Window Menu Bar and Toolbars The Text Pane	203 203 204 204 204 204 204 205 206 207 207
Chapter 18 Molecule Display Windows; Formatting Graphics Introduction Vector NTI Display Window Options Dialog Box Opening Molecules in Molecule Display Windows Molecule Database Files Molecule Document Files Elements of a Molecule Display Window Menu Bar and Toolbars The Text Pane The Graphics Pane	203 203 204 204 204 204 205 206 207 207 208
Chapter 18 Molecule Display Windows; Formatting Graphics Introduction Vector NTI Display Window Options Dialog Box Opening Molecules in Molecule Display Windows Molecule Database Files Molecule Document Files Elements of a Molecule Display Window Menu Bar and Toolbars The Text Pane The Graphics Pane The Sequence Pane	203 203 204 204 204 204 205 206 207 207 207 208 211
Chapter 18 Molecule Display Windows; Formatting Graphics Introduction Vector NTI Display Window Options Dialog Box Opening Molecules in Molecule Display Windows Molecule Database Files Molecule Document Files Elements of a Molecule Display Window Menu Bar and Toolbars The Text Pane The Graphics Pane The Sequence Pane Molecule Display Setup	203 203 204 204 204 204 204 205 206 207 207 207 208 211 215
Chapter 18 Molecule Display Windows; Formatting Graphics Introduction Vector NTI Display Window Options Dialog Box Opening Molecules in Molecule Display Windows Molecule Database Files Molecule Document Files Elements of a Molecule Display Window Menu Bar and Toolbars The Text Pane The Graphics Pane The Sequence Pane Molecule Display Setup DNA/RNA Display Setup Protein Molecule Display Setup	203 203 204 204 204 204 205 206 207 207 207 207 207 208 211 215 216 223
Chapter 18 Molecule Display Windows; Formatting Graphics Introduction Vector NTI Display Window Options Dialog Box Opening Molecules in Molecule Display Windows Molecule Database Files Molecule Document Files Elements of a Molecule Display Window Menu Bar and Toolbars The Text Pane The Text Pane The Graphics Pane The Sequence Pane Molecule Display Setup DNA/RNA Display Setup Protein Molecule Display Setup Picture Edit Mode: Formatting and Annotating Pictures	203 203 204 204 204 204 204 205 206 207 207 207 208 211 215 216 223 226
Chapter 18 Molecule Display Windows; Formatting Graphics Introduction Vector NTI Display Window Options Dialog Box Opening Molecules in Molecule Display Windows Molecule Database Files Molecule Document Files Elements of a Molecule Display Window Menu Bar and Toolbars The Text Pane The Graphics Pane The Graphics Pane The Sequence Pane Molecule Display Setup DNA/RNA Display Setup Protein Molecule Display Setup Protein Molecule Display Setup Formatting Objects on the Graphical Map	203 203 204 204 204 204 205 206 207 207 208 211 215 216 223 226 226
Chapter 18 Molecule Display Windows; Formatting Graphics Introduction Vector NTI Display Window Options Dialog Box Opening Molecules in Molecule Display Windows Molecule Database Files Molecule Document Files Elements of a Molecule Display Window Menu Bar and Toolbars The Text Pane The Graphics Pane The Graphics Pane The Sequence Pane Molecule Display Setup DNA/RNA Display Setup Protein Molecule Display Setup Picture Edit Mode: Formatting and Annotating Pictures Formatting Objects on the Graphical Map Styles	203 203 204 204 204 204 204 205 206 207 207 207 207 207 207 208 211 215 216 223 226 229
Chapter 18 Molecule Display Windows; Formatting Graphics Introduction Vector NTI Display Window Options Dialog Box Opening Molecules in Molecule Display Windows Molecule Database Files Molecule Document Files Elements of a Molecule Display Window Menu Bar and Toolbars The Text Pane The Graphics Pane The Graphics Pane The Sequence Pane Molecule Display Setup DNA/RNA Display Setup Protein Molecule Display Setup Protein Molecule Display Setup Formatting Objects on the Graphical Map Styles Assigning Styles to Graphics Objects	203 203 204 204 204 204 205 206 207 207 207 208 211 215 216 223 226 229 223
Chapter 18 Molecule Display Windows; Formatting Graphics Introduction	203 203 204 204 204 204 204 205 206 207 207 207 207 207 208 211 215 216 223 226 229 223 223
Chapter 18 Molecule Display Windows; Formatting Graphics Introduction	203 203 204 204 204 204 205 206 207 207 208 211 215 216 223 226 229 223 223

	224
Saving Molecules	231
Save in <molecule> Database</molecule>	
Save as (Molecule Document) File	
Creating A Molecule Shortcut File For A Database Molecule	230
Molecule Export	232
Exporting a Molecule to a GenBank/GenPept, EMBL/SWISS-PROT or FASTA fi	ile 232
apter 19	
iting Molecule Content	233
Introduction	233
Edit Operations in a Molecule Display Window	233
Molecule Editing	233
Edit Operations in Molecule Editor	<u>2</u> 33 737
The DNA/DNA Molecule Tab	
The Sequence and Maps Tab (DNA/RNA)	
Sequence and Features Tab (Protein)	
User Fields Tab	
Comments Tab	243
Keywords Tab	
Changing the Starting Coordinate of a DNA Molecule	
Introduction	245 245
Introduction	245 245 246
Introduction PCR Primers Saving and Loading PCR Settings	245 245 246 247
Introduction PCR Primers Saving and Loading PCR Settings Find PCR Primers Dialog Box	245 245 246
Introduction PCR Primers Saving and Loading PCR Settings Find PCR Primers Dialog Box Amplify Selection Dialog Box	
Introduction PCR Primers Saving and Loading PCR Settings Find PCR Primers Dialog Box Amplify Selection Dialog Box Amplify Features Dialog Box	
Introduction PCR Primers Saving and Loading PCR Settings Find PCR Primers Dialog Box Amplify Selection Dialog Box Amplify Features Dialog Box Long PCR Dialog Box	
Introduction PCR Primers Saving and Loading PCR Settings Find PCR Primers Dialog Box Amplify Selection Dialog Box Amplify Features Dialog Box Long PCR Dialog Box Primer Tab	245 245 246 247 247 255 255 258 259
Introduction PCR Primers Saving and Loading PCR Settings Find PCR Primers Dialog Box Amplify Selection Dialog Box Amplify Features Dialog Box Long PCR Dialog Box Primer Tab PCR Using Existing Oligos Dialog Box	245
Introduction PCR Primers Saving and Loading PCR Settings Find PCR Primers Dialog Box Amplify Selection Dialog Box Amplify Features Dialog Box Long PCR Dialog Box Primer Tab PCR Using Existing Oligos Dialog Box Alignment PCR Analysis	245 245 246 246 247 255 255 258 259 259 259 259 259
Introduction PCR Primers Saving and Loading PCR Settings Find PCR Primers Dialog Box Amplify Selection Dialog Box Amplify Features Dialog Box Long PCR Dialog Box Primer Tab PCR Using Existing Oligos Dialog Box Alignment PCR Analysis Multiplex PCR Analysis	245 245 246 247 247 255 255 258 259 259 259 259 259 259 259 260 260
Introduction PCR Primers Saving and Loading PCR Settings Find PCR Primers Dialog Box Amplify Selection Dialog Box Amplify Features Dialog Box Long PCR Dialog Box Primer Tab PCR Using Existing Oligos Dialog Box Alignment PCR Analysis Multiplex PCR Analysis Folder	243 245 246 247 255 255 258 259 259 259 259 259 260 263 263 263 271
Introduction PCR Primers Saving and Loading PCR Settings Find PCR Primers Dialog Box Amplify Selection Dialog Box Amplify Features Dialog Box Long PCR Dialog Box Primer Tab PCR Using Existing Oligos Dialog Box Alignment PCR Analysis Multiplex PCR Analysis The PCR Analysis Folder Operations with PCR Products	243 245 246 246 247 255 255 258 259 259 259 259 259 259 260 260 271 271 272
Introduction PCR Primers Saving and Loading PCR Settings Find PCR Primers Dialog Box Amplify Selection Dialog Box Amplify Features Dialog Box Long PCR Dialog Box Primer Tab PCR Using Existing Oligos Dialog Box Alignment PCR Analysis Multiplex PCR Analysis The PCR Analysis Folder Operations with PCR Products Operations with PCR Primers	245 245 246 246 247 255 255 258 259 259 259 259 259 259 259 259 259 259 259 259 259 259 259 259 259 259 272 272 272 272 272
Introduction PCR Primers Saving and Loading PCR Settings Find PCR Primers Dialog Box Amplify Selection Dialog Box Amplify Features Dialog Box Long PCR Dialog Box Primer Tab PCR Using Existing Oligos Dialog Box Alignment PCR Analysis Multiplex PCR Analysis The PCR Analysis Folder Operations with PCR Products Operations with PCR Primers Saving, Viewing and Printing PCR Analysis Results	245 245 246 247 255 255 258 259 259 259 259 259 259 259 260 263 271 272 272 272
Introduction PCR Primers Saving and Loading PCR Settings Find PCR Primers Dialog Box Amplify Selection Dialog Box Amplify Features Dialog Box Long PCR Dialog Box Primer Tab PCR Using Existing Oligos Dialog Box Alignment PCR Analysis Multiplex PCR Analysis The PCR Analysis Folder Operations with PCR Products Operations with PCR Primers Saving, Viewing and Printing PCR Analysis Results	245
Introduction PCR Primers	245
Introduction PCR Primers	245
Introduction PCR Primers	245
Introduction PCR Primers Saving and Loading PCR Settings Find PCR Primers Dialog Box Amplify Selection Dialog Box Amplify Features Dialog Box Long PCR Dialog Box Primer Tab PCR Using Existing Oligos Dialog Box Alignment PCR Analysis Multiplex PCR Analysis The PCR Analysis Folder Operations with PCR Products Operations with PCR Primers Saving, Viewing and Printing PCR Analysis Results Sequencing Primers Dialog Box Primer Similarity Dialog Box Primer/Oligo Parameters Dialog Box The Socuencing Primers Evider	245
Introduction PCR Primers	245
Introduction PCR Primers	245

Hybridization Probes Dialog Box The Hybridization Probes Folder	280 281
Chapter 21	
Search and Analysis Tools	283
Introduction	
Oligonucleotide Analyses	
The Oligo List	
Order Custom Primers	
Oligo Editor Dialog Box	
Dimers & Hairpin Loops Dialog Box	
Oligo Duplexes Dialog Box	
ORFs and Motifs Search	290
ORFs Search Results	
Motifs Search Results	
Mutagenesis	291
Translation	292
Translating in the Sequence Pane	293
Translating into a New Protein Molecule	
Setting the Genetic Code for DNA/KNA Translations	
Opening the Pack Translation Dialog Pay	
Codon Usage Tables	
Translation Tables and Codon Ambiguity	
Back Translation Copy Options	
Restriction Analyses	
Restriction Fragments/Restriction Sites	
Finding Common Non-Cutter Restriction Enzymes	
Restriction Report	
Chapter 22	
Molecule Construction	305
Introduction	305
Molecule Types: Basic And Constructed	305
Methods of creating new DNA/RNA molecules	306
Creating New DNA/RNA or Protein Molecules Using Splicing	307
Tools for Creating New Constructed and Designed DNA/RNA Molecules .	308
Describing Component Fragments in the Fragment Wizard	309
The Goal Molecule Definition List (Goal List)	311
Constructing a New Molecule	312
The Construct & Design Molecule Dialog Boxes	312
Editing the Termini of Fragment of Molecule-type Component Fragments The Control Fields and Commands	317 318
Reconstructing a Molecule	319

Chapter 23 Gateway and TOPO Cloning	
Introduction to Gateway Cloning	321
Creating Entry Clones	323
Generate an Entry Clone by Recombining an Expression Clone by RP	
Generate an Entry Clone by PCR Amplification and BP Recombination	
Generate an Entry Clone by BP Recombination	329
Generate an Entry Clone by PCR Amplification and Ligation into a pENTR Vector Obtaining a Functional Entry Clone from Invitrogen	329
Performing an LR Recombination	
Creating a New Destination Vector	
Introduction to TOPO Cloning	
Creating a New Destination Vector	
High Throughput Operations	
Chapter 24	
Molecule Design	349
Introduction	
Creating a New DNA Molecule Using Design	349
Describing the Goal Molecule	350
Defining the Recipient Using Fragment Wizard	350
Defining the Donors Using Fragment Wizard	353
The Goal Molecule Definition List (Goal List)	355
Starting the Design	355
The Component Fragments Field	356
Defining Design Fragments in Fragment Editor	356
Design Parameters	358
Design Preferences	359
Other Preferences	360
Priorities	
Advanced Design Preferences	
The Design Process	
The Design State	
The Design Description Folder	
Cloning Step Subfolders	
OL an tan 25	
Unapter 25 Gol Display Windows	9CE
	305
Introduction	
L month α o L of L hence M (index)	465

Gel Samples and Gel Markers	
Creating and Adding a Gel Sample to a Gel	
New Gel Marker Dialog Box	
Adding a Gel Marker to a Gel	
The Gel Sample List	
Viewing the Gel Sample List	
Loading Fragments from the Gel Sample List	
Panes in a Gel Display Window	
Gel Display Window Text Pane	
The Gel Display Window Gel Pane	
Copying Gel Display Window Data	
Printing from Gel Display Windows	
Chapter 26	
Report Generation	
Introduction	
Starting the Report Generation Wizard	
The Report Generation Process:	376
Step 1: Opening the Report Generation Wizard Dialog Box	376
Step 2: Selecting General Options	
Step 3: Adjusting Feature Map Information	
Step 4: Report Preview Window	
Print Preview and Print	
Saving Report Templates	
Relation Report	
Step 1	
Step 2	
Report Templates	
Chapter 27	
Shared Databases	
Introduction	
Creating a New Shared Database	
Connecting to a Shared Database	
Finding the Location of an Existing Shared Database	
Editing Database Properties and User Accounts	
Connecting to a Shared Database	
Managing a Shared Database	
Exchanging Data with a Shared Database	387
Disconnecting from a Shared Database	387
Chanter 20	
Alignx	
Introduction	

Launching Align X	
Features of the AlignX Workspace	
Text Pane	
Guide Tree Pane	
Graphics Pane	
Alignment Pane	
AlignX Projects	
Creating a New Project	
Opening An Existing Project	
Adding Molecules to the Project	
Alignment Import in MSF Format	
Initiating an Alignment	
Multiple Alignment	
Profile Alignment	
Adding a Molecule to an Alignment	
Realigning a Selected Area of an Alignment	
Removing a Molecule from the Project	
Setting Alignment Parameters	
Pairwise Alignment	
Multiple Alignment	
Protein Profile Alignment	
Score Matrix	406 407
Editing the Alignment	408
Templates	409
Similarity Table Analysis	
Dot Matrix Analysis	410
Launching the Dot Matrix	411
Dot Matrix Window	
Resizing the Dot Matrix	
Dot Matrix Setup	
Other AlignX Features	
Alignment Algorithms	
Alignment PCR	
anter 29	

BioAnnotator	415
Introduction	
Launching BioAnnotator	
Features of the BioAnnotator Workspace	
Elements of BioAnnotator Display Windows Copying a Raw Sequence	
BioAnnotator Projects	
Creating a New Project Opening an Existing Project Analysis List Setup Analysis Properties	422 422 423 423 424

DNA/RNA Analyses 426 Protein Analyses 426 Protsicale Algorithm 427 Advanced Analyses: BLOCKS, ProSite, PFAM and Proteolytic Cleavage 428 Adding Custom Protein Analyses 428 Other BioAnnotator Features 429 Chapter 30 ContigExpress: Project Explorer 431 Introduction 431 Launching ContigExpress 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 433 List Pane 433 List Pane 433 General Project Explorer Operations 437 Opening or Creating a Project 437 Opening or Creating a Project 438 Finding Fragments 440 Selection Techniques 444 Assembling Selected Items 444 Loading and Saving Assembly Setup Settings 444 Assembly Tab 444 Clipping Tab 444 Overlap Tab 445 Overlap Tab 44	Analysis Descriptions	426
Protein Analyses 426 ProtoScale Algorithm 427 Advanced Analyses: BLOCKS, ProSite, PFAM and Proteolytic Cleavage 428 Adding Custom Protein Analyses 428 Other BioAnnotator Features 429 Chapter 30 20 ContigExpress: Project Explorer 431 Introduction 431 Launching ContigExpress 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 433 List Pane 433 List Pane 433 General Project Explorer Operations 437 Opening or Creating a Project 437 Opening ragments to a Project 438 Sciection Techniques 442 Assembling Selected Items 444 Assembling Selected Items 444 Contig Tab 444 Cortig Tab 4	DNA/RNA Analyses	
ProtScale Algorithm 427 Advanced Analyses: BLOCKS, ProSite, PFAM and Proteolytic Cleavage 428 Adding Custom Protein Analyses 428 Other BioAnnotator Features 429 Chapter 30 431 ContigExpress: Project Explorer 431 Introduction 431 Launching ContigExpress 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 432 Tree Pane 433 List Pane 433 List Pane 433 General Project Explorer Operations 437 Opening or Creating a Project 438 Finding Fragments to a Project 438 Finding Fragments to a Project 437 Ogening and Saving Assembly Setup Settings 444 Chapter Tab 444 Assembly Tab 444 Chapter Tab 444 Overlag Tab 444 Contig Express 450 Overlag Tab 444 Contig Tab 444 Overlag Tab 444<	Protein Analyses	426
Advanced Analyses: BLOCKS, ProSite, PFAM and Proteolytic Cleavage 428 Adding Custom Protein Analyses 428 Other BioAnnotator Features 429 Chapter 30 20 ContigExpress: Project Explorer 431 Introduction 431 Launching ContigExpress 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 433 List Pane 433 General Project Explorer Operations 437 Opening or Creating a Project 438 Finding Fragments 444 Selection Techniques 442 Assembling Selected Items 444 Clipping Tab 444 Clipping Tab 444 Clipping Tab 444 Contig Tab 444 Clipping Tab 444 Coverlap Tab 445 Overlap Tab 446 Clipping Tab 447 Contig Tab 448	ProtScale Algorithm	
Adding Custom Protein Analyses 428 Other BioAnnotator Features 429 Chapter 30 429 ContigExpress: Project Explorer 431 Introduction 431 Launching ContigExpress 433 Features of the ContigExpress Workspace 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 432 Clements of Project Explorer 432 Tree Pane 433 List Pane 433 General Project Explorer Operations 437 Opening or Creating a Project 438 Finding Fragments to a Project Items 444 Assembly Selected Items 444 Colig and Saving Assembly Setup Settings 444 Contig Tab 444 Contig Tab 444 Contig Tab 445 Overlap Tab 446 Cipping Rob 450 Registering Assembly Setup Changes 450 <td>Advanced Analyses: BLOCKS, ProSite, PFAM and Proteolytic Cleavage</td> <td>428</td>	Advanced Analyses: BLOCKS, ProSite, PFAM and Proteolytic Cleavage	428
Other BioAnnotator Features 429 Chapter 30 ContigExpress: Project Explorer 431 Introduction 431 Launching ContigExpress 431 Features of the ContigExpress Workspace 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 433 List Pane 433 List Pane 433 General Project Explorer Operations 437 Opening or Creating a Project 438 Finding Fragments to a Project 438 Finding Fragments to a Project 438 Vasembling Selected Items 444 Assembly Tab 444 Clipping Tab 444 Clipping Tab 444 Overlap Tab 449 Lite Settings Tab 450 Registering Assembly Setup Changes 451 Viewing Project Item Properties 452 Copying Selected Fragments or Contigs 459 Printing 459 Printing 459 Printing Tab 450 Copying Selected Fragments or Contigs 459	Adding Custom Protein Analyses	428
Chapter 30 431 Introduction 431 Introduction 431 Launching ContigExpress 431 Features of the ContigExpress Workspace 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 432 Elements of Project Explorer 433 List Pane 433 General Project Explorer Operations 437 Opening or Creating a Project 437 Moreing Fragments to a Project 438 Finding Fragments 440 Selection Techniques 442 Assembling Selected Items 444 Contig Tab 449 Lite Settings Tab 450 Viewing Project Item Properties 450 Viewing Project Item Properties 450	Other BioAnnotator Features	429
ContigExpress: Project Explorer 431 Introduction 431 Launching ContigExpress 431 Features of the ContigExpress Workspace 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 432 Elements of Project Explorer 433 Tree Pane 433 List Pane 433 General Project Explorer Operations 437 Opening or Creating a Project 438 Finding Fragments to a Project 438 Finding ragments a 440 Selection Techniques 442 Assembling Selected Items 444 Assembly Tab 444 Clipping Tab 444 Clipping Tab 444 Overlap Tab 444 Orig Tab 444 Orig Tab 444 Overlap Tab 445 Overlap Tab 446 Description Tab 447 Contig Express: Fragment and Contig Windows 450 Exporting Items from the Project 460 Switching Between Panes 462 Switching Between Panes 462 <t< th=""><th>Chapter 30</th><th></th></t<>	Chapter 30	
Introduction 431 Launching ContigExpress 431 Features of the ContigExpress Workspace 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 432 Elements of Project Explorer 433 Tree Pane 433 List Pane 433 General Project Explorer Operations 437 Opening or Creating a Project 437 Importing Fragments to a Project 438 Finding Fragments to a Project 438 Finding Fragments 440 Selection Techniques 442 Loading and Saving Assembly Setup Settings 444 Assembly Tab 444 Clipping Tab 444 Contig Tab 444 Description Tab 449 List Settings Tab 440 Leigistering Assembly Setup Changes 451 Viewing Project Item Properties 452 Contig Lap Assembly Setup Changes 451 Viewing Project Item Properties 452 Copying Selected Fragments and Contig Windows 461 Finding a Frequent and Contig Windows 461 Features of the ContigExpress Wo	ContigExpress: Project Explorer	431
Introduction 11 Launching ContigExpress 431 Features of the ContigExpress Workspace 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 432 Elements of Project Explorer 433 List Pane 433 List Pane 433 General Project Explorer Operations 437 Opening or Creating a Project 437 Importing Fragments to a Project 438 Finding Fragments 440 Selection Techniques 442 Loading and Saving Assembly Setup Settings 444 Assembly Tab 444 Clipping Tab 444 Clipping Tab 444 Cortig Tab 444 Description Tab 449 Lite Settings Tab 440 Registering Assembly Setup Changes 451 Viewing Project Item Properties 452 Copying Selected Fragments or Contigs 459 Printing 459 Printing Mathematic Project 450 Registering Assembly Setup Changes 451 Viewing Project Item Properties 452 Copying	Introduction	431
Features of the ContigExpress Workspace 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 432 Elements of Project Explorer 433 List Pane 433 List Pane 433 General Project Explorer Operations 437 Opening or Creating a Project 437 Importing Fragments to a Project 438 Finding Fragments 440 Selection Techniques 442 Assembling Selected Items 444 Contig Tab 444 Clipping Tab 444 Clipping Tab 444 Contig Tab 444 Cortig Tab 444 Cortig Tab 444 Clipping Tab 444 Clipping Tab 444 Clipping Tab 444 Clipping Tab 445 Overlap Tab 446 Description Tab 449 Lite Settings Tab 450 Registering Assembly Setup Changes 451 Viewing Project Item Properties 452 Copying Selected Fragments or Contigs 459 Exporting Items from the Pr	Launching ContigExpress	/31
reatures of the ContigExpress Workspace 432 ContigExpress Project Explorer 432 Tree Pane 433 List Pane 433 General Project Explorer Operations 437 Opening or Creating a Project 437 Importing Fragments to a Project 437 Selection Techniques 440 Selection Techniques 442 Loading and Saving Assembly Setup Settings 444 Contig Tab 444 Cortig Tab 444 Cortig Tab 444 Cortig Tab 444 Cortig Tab 444 Cipping Tab 444 Cipping Tab 444 Cipping Tab 444 Cipping Tab 445 Overlap Tab 447 Contig Express 450 Registering Assembly Setup Changes 451 Viewing Project Item Properties 452 Copying Selected Fragments or Contigs 459 Printing 459 Exporting Items from the Project 460 Saving and Closing a Project 460 Sav	Eastures of the ContinExpress Worksnood	420
ContigExpress Project Explorer432Elements of Project Explorer433Tree Pane433List Pane435General Project Explorer Operations437Opening or Creating a Project437Importing Fragments to a Project438Finding Fragments440Selection Techniques442Assembling Selected Items442Loading and Saving Assembly Setup Settings444Clipping Tab444Overlap Tab444Contig Tab444Description Tab449Lite Settings Tab449Lite Settings Tab450Registering Assembly Setup Changes451Viewing Project Item Properties452Copying Selected Fragments or Contigs459Printing459Printing459Exporting Items from the Project460Saving and Closing a Project460Savitching Between Panes462Status Bar462General User Actions463Finding a Feature in Other Panes463Finding a Feature in Other Panes463Saving a Current Window464Closing a Current Window464Closing a Current Window464Closing a Current Window464Choling a Current Window464Conti	Features of the ContigExpress workspace	
Elements of Project Explorer 432 Tree Pane 433 List Pane 433 General Project Explorer Operations 437 Opening or Creating a Project 437 Importing Fragments to a Project 438 Finding Fragments 440 Selection Techniques 442 Assembling Selected Items 442 Loading and Saving Assembly Setup Settings 444 Clipping Tab 444 Clipping Tab 444 Corting Tab 444 Corting Tab 444 Description Tab 444 Lite Settings Tab 445 Overlap Tab 444 Description Tab 444 Digitsering Assembly Setup Changes 451 Viewing Project Item Properties 452 Copying Selected Fragments or Contigs 459 Printing 450 Exporting Items from the Project 460 Saving and Closing a Project	ContigExpress Project Explorer	432
Tree Pane433List Pane435General Project Explorer Operations437Opening or Creating a Project437Importing Fragments to a Project438Finding Fragments440Selection Techniques442Assembling Selected Items442Loading and Saving Assembly Setup Settings444Assembly Tab444Clipping Tab444Overlap Tab444Description Tab444Description Tab444Description Tab449Lite Settings Tab450Registering Assembly Setup Changes451Viewing Project Item Properties452Copying Selected Fragments or Contigs459Printing459Printing450Exporting Items from the Project460Saving and Closing a Project460Exit Project Explorer461Introduction461Features of the ContigExpress Workspace462Status Bar462General User Actions463Finding a Feature in Other Panes463Editing Fragment or Contig Properties463Finding a Current Window464Closing a Current Window464Closing a Current Window464	Elements of Project Explorer	
List Pane 435 General Project Explorer Operations 437 Opening or Creating a Project 437 Importing Fragments to a Project 438 Finding Fragments 440 Selection Techniques 442 Assembling Selected Items 442 Loading and Saving Assembly Setup Settings 444 Assembly Tab 444 Clipping Tab 444 Clipping Tab 444 Overlap Tab 444 Contig Tab 444 Description Tab 444 Lie Settings Tab 450 Registering Assembly Setup Changes 451 Viewing Project Item Properties 452 Copying Selected Fragments or Contigs 459 Printing 459 Printing 459 Printing 450 Saving and Closing a Project 460 Saving and Closing a Project 460 Saving and Closing a Project 461 Introduction 461 Freatures of the ContigExpress Workspace 461 Satus Bar 462	Tree Pane	
General Project Explorer Operations 437 Opening or Creating a Project 437 Importing Fragments to a Project 438 Finding Fragments 440 Selection Techniques 442 Assembling Selected Items 442 Loading and Saving Assembly Setup Settings 444 Assembly Tab 444 Clipping Tab 444 Overlap Tab 444 Overlap Tab 444 Description Tab 444 Description Tab 444 Description Tab 445 Overlap Selected Fragments or Contigs 450 Registering Assembly Setup Changes 451 Viewing Project Item Properties 452 Copying Selected Fragments or Contigs 459 Printing 459 Exporting Items from the Project 460 Saving and Closing a Project 460 Exit Project Explorer 460 Saving and Closing a Project 461 Freatures of the ContigExpress Workspace 461 Status Bar 462 General User Actions 463	List Pane	
Opening or Creating a Project437Importing Fragments to a Project438Finding Fragments440Selection Techniques442Assembling Selected Items442Loading and Saving Assembly Setup Settings444Assembly Tab444Clipping Tab444Overlap Tab444Contig Tab445Overlap Tab447Contig Tab448Description Tab448Description Tab449Lite Settings Tab450Registering Assembly Setup Changes451Viewing Project Item Properties452Copying Selected Fragments or Contigs459Printing459Exporting Items from the Project460Saving and Closing a Project460Exit Project Explorer461Introduction461Features of the ContigExpress Workspace462Status Bar462General User Actions463Finding a Feature in Other Panes463Editing Fragment or Contig Properties463Finding a Current Window464Closing a Current Window464Closing a Current Window464	General Project Explorer Operations	437
Importing Fragments to a Project	Opening or Creating a Project	
Finding Pragments 440 Selection Techniques 442 Assembling Selected Items 442 Loading and Saving Assembly Setup Settings 444 Assembly Tab 444 Assembly Tab 444 Assembly Tab 444 Correlap Tab 445 Overlap Tab 447 Contig Tab 448 Description Tab 449 Lite Settings Tab 450 Registering Assembly Setup Changes 451 Viewing Project Item Properties 452 Copying Selected Fragments or Contigs 459 Printing 459 Exporting Items from the Project 460 Saving and Closing a Project 460 Exit Project Explorer 461 Introduction 461 Features of the ContigExpress Workspace 461 Switching Between Panes 462 Status Bar 462 General User Actions 463 Finding a Feature in Other Panes 463 Fidting Fragment or Contig Properties 463 Saving a Current Window 464	Importing Fragments to a Project	
Assembling Selected Items	Finding Fragments	440 442
Loading and Saving Assembly Setup Settings	Assembling Selected Items	
Assembly Tab 444 Clipping Tab 445 Overlap Tab 447 Contig Tab 447 Contig Tab 448 Description Tab 449 Lite Settings Tab 449 Neegistering Assembly Setup Changes 451 Viewing Project Item Properties 452 Copying Selected Fragments or Contigs 459 Printing 459 Exporting Items from the Project 460 Saving and Closing a Project. 460 Exit Project Explorer 460 ContigExpress: Fragment and Contig Windows 461 Introduction 461 Switching Between Panes 462 Status Bar 462 General User Actions 463 Finding a Feature in Other Panes 463 Editing Fragment or Contig Properties 463 Saving a Current Window 464 Closing a Current Window 464	Loading and Saving Assembly Setup Settings	
Clipping Tab 445 Overlap Tab 447 Contig Tab 448 Description Tab 449 Lite Settings Tab 450 Registering Assembly Setup Changes 451 Viewing Project Item Properties 452 Copying Selected Fragments or Contigs 459 Printing 459 Exporting Items from the Project 460 Saving and Closing a Project 460 Exit Project Explorer 460 ContigExpress: Fragment and Contig Windows 461 Introduction 461 Switching Between Panes 462 Status Bar 463 Finding a Feature in Other Panes 463 Finding a Feature in Other Panes 463 Saving a Current Window 464 Closing a Current Window 464	Assembly Tab	
Overlap Tab 447 Contig Tab 448 Description Tab 449 Lite Settings Tab 450 Registering Assembly Setup Changes 451 Viewing Project Item Properties 452 Copying Selected Fragments or Contigs 459 Printing 459 Exporting Items from the Project 460 Saving and Closing a Project 460 Exit Project Explorer 460 Chapter 31 ContigExpress: Fragment and Contig Windows 461 Introduction 461 Switching Between Panes 462 Status Bar 463 Finding a Feature in Other Panes 463 Editing Fragment or Contig Properties 463 Saving a Current Window 464	Clipping Tab	445
Contig Tab 448 Description Tab 449 Lite Settings Tab 450 Registering Assembly Setup Changes 451 Viewing Project Item Properties 452 Copying Selected Fragments or Contigs 459 Printing 459 Exporting Items from the Project 460 Saving and Closing a Project. 460 Exit Project Explorer 460 ContigExpress: Fragment and Contig Windows 461 Introduction 461 Switching Between Panes 462 Status Bar 462 General User Actions 463 Finding a Feature in Other Panes 463 Editing Fragment or Contig Properties 463 Saving a Current Window 464 Closing a Current Window 464	Overlap Tab	
Description Tab 449 Lite Settings Tab 450 Registering Assembly Setup Changes 451 Viewing Project Item Properties 452 Copying Selected Fragments or Contigs 459 Printing 459 Exporting Items from the Project 460 Saving and Closing a Project 460 Exit Project Explorer 460 ContigExpress: Fragment and Contig Windows 461 Introduction 461 Switching Between Panes 462 Status Bar 463 Finding a Feature in Other Panes 463 Editing Fragment or Contig Properties 463 Saving a Current Window 464	Contig Tab	
Lite Settings Tab.	Description Tab	
Registering Assembly Setup Changes 451 Viewing Project Item Properties 452 Copying Selected Fragments or Contigs 459 Printing 459 Exporting Items from the Project 460 Saving and Closing a Project 460 Exit Project Explorer 460 Chapter 31 ContigExpress: Fragment and Contig Windows 461 Introduction 461 Features of the ContigExpress Workspace 461 Switching Between Panes 462 Status Bar 462 General User Actions 463 Finding a Feature in Other Panes 463 Editing Fragment or Contig Properties 463 Saving a Current Window 464 Closing a Current Window 464	Lite Settings Tab	
Viewing Project nem Properties 432 Copying Selected Fragments or Contigs 459 Printing 459 Exporting Items from the Project 460 Saving and Closing a Project 460 Exit Project Explorer 460 Chapter 31 ContigExpress: Fragment and Contig Windows 461 Introduction 461 Switching Between Panes 462 Status Bar 462 General User Actions 463 Finding a Feature in Other Panes 463 Editing Fragment or Contig Properties 463 Saving a Current Window 464 Closing a Current Window 464	Registering Assembly Setup Changes	
Copying Sected Pragments of Contigs 459 Printing 459 Exporting Items from the Project 460 Saving and Closing a Project 460 Exit Project Explorer 460 Chapter 31 ContigExpress: Fragment and Contig Windows 461 Introduction 461 Features of the ContigExpress Workspace 461 Switching Between Panes 462 Status Bar 462 General User Actions 463 Finding a Feature in Other Panes 463 Editing Fragment or Contig Properties 463 Saving a Current Window 464 Closing a Current Window 464	Viewing Project Item Properties	432 //50
Exporting Items from the Project 460 Saving and Closing a Project 460 Exit Project Explorer 460 Chapter 31 461 ContigExpress: Fragment and Contig Windows 461 Introduction 461 Features of the ContigExpress Workspace 461 Switching Between Panes 462 Status Bar 462 General User Actions 463 Finding a Feature in Other Panes 463 Editing Fragment or Contig Properties 463 Saving a Current Window 464 Closing a Current Window 464	Printing	
Saving and Closing a Project 460 Exit Project Explorer 460 Chapter 31 ContigExpress: Fragment and Contig Windows 461 Introduction 461 Features of the ContigExpress Workspace 461 Switching Between Panes 462 Status Bar 462 General User Actions 463 Finding a Feature in Other Panes 463 Editing Fragment or Contig Properties 463 Saving a Current Window 464	Exporting Items from the Project	
Exit Project Explorer 460 Chapter 31 ContigExpress: Fragment and Contig Windows 461 Introduction 461 Features of the ContigExpress Workspace 461 Switching Between Panes 462 Status Bar 462 General User Actions 463 Finding a Feature in Other Panes 463 Editing Fragment or Contig Properties 463 Saving a Current Window 464 Closing a Current Window 464	Saving and Closing a Project	
Chapter 31 ContigExpress: Fragment and Contig Windows 461 Introduction .461 Features of the ContigExpress Workspace .461 Switching Between Panes .462 Status Bar .463 General User Actions .463 Finding a Feature in Other Panes .463 Saving a Current Window .464 Closing a Current Window .464	Exit Project Explorer	
ContigExpress: Fragment and Contig Windows 461 Introduction .461 Features of the ContigExpress Workspace .461 Switching Between Panes .462 Status Bar .462 General User Actions .463 Finding a Feature in Other Panes .463 Editing Fragment or Contig Properties .463 Saving a Current Window .464 Closing a Current Window .464	Chapter 31	
Introduction .461 Features of the ContigExpress Workspace .461 Switching Between Panes .462 Status Bar .462 General User Actions .463 Finding a Feature in Other Panes .463 Editing Fragment or Contig Properties .463 Saving a Current Window .464 Closing a Current Window .464	ContigExpress: Fragment and Contig Windows	461
Features of the ContigExpress Workspace .461 Switching Between Panes .462 Status Bar .462 General User Actions .463 Finding a Feature in Other Panes .463 Editing Fragment or Contig Properties .463 Saving a Current Window .464 Closing a Current Window .464	Introduction	461
Switching Between Panes 462 Status Bar 462 General User Actions 463 Finding a Feature in Other Panes 463 Editing Fragment or Contig Properties 463 Saving a Current Window 464 Closing a Current Window 464	Features of the ContigExpress Workspace	461
Switching Detween Failes 462 Status Bar 462 General User Actions 463 Finding a Feature in Other Panes 463 Editing Fragment or Contig Properties 463 Saving a Current Window 464 Closing a Current Window 464	Switching Batwaan Panas	
General User Actions	Status Bar	
Finding a Feature in Other Panes463Editing Fragment or Contig Properties463Saving a Current Window464Closing a Current Window464	General User Actions	463
Editing Fragment or Contig Properties	Finding a Feature in Other Panes	
Saving a Current Window	Editing Fragment or Contig Properties	
Closing a Current Window464	Saving a Current Window	
	Closing a Current Window	

Closing All Windows Selecting All Data Deleting Data	
External Tools Usage	
Fragment Viewer	465
Launching a Fragment Viewer	465
Features of a Fragment Viewer	465
Miscellaneous Operations in the Sequence Pane	
Fragment Viewer Operations	
Contig Viewer	
Launching a Contig Viewer	473
Features of a Contig Viewer	
Common Operations in the Graphics and Contig Alignment Panes	
Highlighting a Fragment	485
Moving a Fragment	485
Reverse Complement a Fragment or Contig	
Declare a Reference Sequence.	
Use of a Reference Sequence	
Copy and Camera Features	
Chapter 32	
ContigExpress: Group Operations on Fragments	
Introduction	493
Fragment Trimming	493
Fragment Ends and Vector Contamination Trimmer Dialog Boxes	493
Chapter 33	
GenomBench	505
Introduction	
Launching GenomBench	
Configuring Database Paths	506
Opening a Sequence from a DAS Server or a Local Database	509
Loading Features into the Feature Map Pane	510
Features of the GenomBench Window	513
General Pane Operations	513
Overview Pane	515
Feature Map Pane	515
Information Pane	
Undo and Redo Operations	529
Configuring GenomBench Parameters	530
Setting Feature Type Filters	530
Editing Graphic Styles	
Eulung Fragment Loading Configurations	
Pattern Search Tool	539 540

Sim4 and Spidey Alignment Tools	
Sending Fragments to Vector NTI	
Saving Sequences	
Saving Fragments	
Creating New Sequences	
Importing and Exporting Sequences	
Importing Files into GenomBench	
Exporting Sequences to GenBank Files	
Printing in GenomBench	
Copying in GenomBench	
Copying by Camera	
Copying by the Copy Command	
Chapter 34	
Analysis Monitor - Advanced Analysis Tools	559
Introduction	
PFAM, ProSite and BLOCKS Databases	
Launching Advanced Analyses	
Elements of the Analysis Monitor Workspace	
Configuring Advanced Analysis Parameters	
Sim4	
Spidey	
BLOCKS	
PFAM Protoclutic Cleavage	
Prosite	
BLAST Search in Analysis Monitor	
Operations on Analyses	
Starting an Analysis	
Stopping an Analysis	
Editing, Copying and Deleting	
Saving	
Viewing Analysis Results	
Viewing Analysis Results in Vector NTI	571
Viewing Analysis Results in GenomBench	
Chapter 35	
BLAST Search and BLAST Viewer	
Introduction	
BLAST Search Dialog Box	
Database Selection Parameters	576
Sequence/Parameters Pane Tabs	
BLAST Options	
BLAST Search Results	
BLAST Viewer	

Opening BLAST Viewer	
Elements of the BLAST Search Results Viewer	
BLAST Search Results	
Saving BLAST Search Results	
Creating a New Database Subset for BLAST Search Results	
Other BLAST Viewer Features	591
Chapter 36	
AlignX Blocks	593
Introduction	
Opening AlignX Blocks:	
Features of the AlignX Blocks Workspace	
Text Pane	
Block List Pane	
Schematic Pane	597
Alignment Pane	597
AlignX Blocks Projects	
Opening an Existing Project	
Creating a New Project	598
Adding Molecules to the Project	598
Block Search	598
Adding Sequences to Block Sequence Space.	599
Defining a Block	
Linking and Unlinking	
Color Setup	
Block Editing	
Deleting a Molecule	
AlignX Blocks Parameters	601
Parameters Tab:	601
Blocks' Color Tab:	
Score Matrix Tab	

3D-Mol	605
Introduction	
3D-Mol Supported File Formats	
Downloading 3D Structure Files	
Opening 3D-Mol	
Elements of 3D-Mol	
Project Pane	
Structure Pane	
Graphics Pane	
Sequence Pane	
Graphics Pane 3D Options Dialog Box	
Stereo Viewing Option	
Sequence Pane Viewing Options	
3D-Mol Tools	

Templates602Other AlignX Blocks Features603

Aligning Chains Calculating Protein Surfaces	
Exporting and Saving 3D-Mol Data	
Opening/Importing Structures from 3D-Mol in Vector NTI	
Saving 3D-Mol Sessions	
Chapter 38	
Tools Manager	625
Introduction	
Configuring Vector NTI Tools	
Sorting Tools in Tools Manager Adding a Web Link to the Tools List Program- and Script-based Tools	
Chapter 39	
Miscellaneous Vector NTI Tools	631
Introduction	631
PubMed/Entrez Search	
Defining Search Conditions	632
Reviewing Search Results	
Saving Search Results	
Citation Viewer	
Opening Citation Viewer	
Elements of Citation Viewer	
Remote Database Sources Wizard	
Configuring the Internet Connection	636
Creating Remote Database Links	
GCG Converter	
Other GCG Converter Operations	
Importing into Vector NTI Database Explorer	645
Matrix Editor	
Oligo Importer	
License Manager	
Launching License Manager	
Vector NTI System Information	
Appendix A	650
invitrogen Customer Support and web Site	
Information	
Appendix B	
References	
3D-Mol	

Connolly Surface Calculation	
Varshney Surface Calculation	
AlignX	
Basic Alignment Algorithms	
Phylogenetic Tree	
Alignments and Similarity	
BioAnnotator	662
DNA/RNA Analyses Citations	662
Protein Analyses (ProtScale Analyses)	
Properties Plots	
ContigExpress	
Contig Assembly	
BLAST	
Miscellaneous	665
Molar Extinction Coefficient	665
Oligo Analysis	
General Bioinformatics	
Biostatistics	
REBASE	666
Appendix C	
ASCII Format; IUB Codes (IUPAC CODES)	667
Format for ASCII Sequence Files	
IIIB Formats recognized by Vector NTI	667
Appendix D	
Parent-Descendant Relationships in Vector NTI	
Overview of Parent-Descendant Relationships	669
Viewing Parent-Descendant Relationships	670
Managing Parent-Descendant Relationships	671
Modifying a Descendant	671
Modifying a Parent	672
Deleting a Parent from the Database	
Deleting a Descendant from the Database	
Appendix E	
Tm Calculations in Vector NTI	675
General Information	675
Usefulness of Thermodynamic Tm Versus %GC Tm	675
Effects of Primer (Probe) and Salt Concentration on Tm Calculations	676
%GC Tm Calculation	676
Thermodynamic Tm Calculation	676
Oligos Containing IUB Ambiguity Characters	679
RNA Oligos	679
Primer/Probe Tm, TaOpt and Similarity Calculations	680

Primer/Probe Tm Values	
TaOpt Values	
Primer/Probe Similarity Values	
References	

Appendix F

Regular Expression Syntax	
Introduction	
Parts of a Regular Expression	
Anchors	
Character Sets	
Modifiers	
Grouping and Pattern Memory	
Metacharacter Reference	
Appendix G	
License Manager	
Index	

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

License Agreement

COMMERCIAL USERS: IN ORDER TO ACCESS THE SOFTWARE YOU MUST ENTER INTO THE SOFTWARE PRODUCT LICENSE AGREEMENT IN SECTION I.

ACADEMIC OR NOT-FOR-PROFIT USERS : IN ORDER TO ACCESS THE SOFTWARE YOU MUST ENTER INTO THE ACADEMIC OR NOT-FOR-PROFIT USER SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT IN SEC-TION II.

I.Software Product License Agreement Terms for Commercial Users

This is a legal agreement ("Agreement") between you, the party purchasing a product license, and Invitrogen Corporation, having offices at 1600 Faraday Avenue, Carlsbad California 92008 USA ("Licensor"). This Agreement is part of a package that includes one or more software products and certain electronic and/or written materials. This Agreement covers your licensing of the Software (as the term is defined below). BY CLICKING YOUR ACCEPTANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT, OR BY INSTALLING OR USING THE SOFTWARE OR ANY OTHER COMPONENT OF THE PACKAGE, YOU ACKNOWLEDGE THAT YOU HAVE READ ALL OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT, UNDERSTAND THEM, AND AGREE TO BE LEGALLY BOUND BY THEM. If you do not agree to the terms of this Agreement, you may not install or use the Software.

As used in this Agreement: "**Authorized Users**" means, collectively, the personnel authorized by you to use the Software, for whom you have purchased a License (as defined below) and paid the corresponding license fees. Unless otherwise expressly allowed by this Agreement, Authorized Users may include only your employees having a need to know; Authorized Users may not be entities or persons in the business of licensing or otherwise providing products or services competitive with the Software; "**Designated Site**" means your facilities or offices located at the postal address provided to Licensor for your billing and invoicing purposes, unless otherwise indicated in a license key provided to you; and "**Software**" means the software product(s) accompanying this Agreement, including the associated user manuals, user documentation and application program interfaces, and license key(s) provided, and any patches, updates, upgrades, improvements, enhancements, fixes and revised versions of any of the foregoing that may be provided to you from time to time, and any combination of the foregoing.

- 1. YOUR PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS. You agree to pay all amounts due or incurred by you, including any late payment fees, as are specified in this Agreement or in an invoice. If any authority imposes a duty, tax or similar amount (other than based on Licensor's income), you agree to pay, or to promptly reimburse Licensor for, all such amounts. You are also responsible for paying all shipping charges and Licensor's other reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in performing this Agreement. Unless otherwise indicated, all invoices are payable thirty (30) days from the date of invoice. Overdue amounts are subject to a late payment charge, at the lower rate of (i) one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month, or (ii) the maximum legal rate. You agree to promptly pay or reimburse Licensor for all costs and expenses, including all reasonable attorneys' fees, related to breach of your obligations under this Agreement or Licensor's enforcement of this Agreement. All shipments by Licensor or its designee are FCA point of shipment.
- GRANT OF SOFTWARE LICENSE. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Licensor grants to you a non-exclusive, non-transferable license (the "License") to use the Software for your internal operations and internal data processing purposes within and up to the Authorized Scope for which you have paid

the applicable fees (if any) and registered the Software for use. The term "*Authorized Scope*" means the following, and any other capacity or use restrictions on the license granted to you:

- If you have purchased a "**Static**" license, then, for each such license purchased you may install and operate the Software on a designated computer located at the Designated Site. You may not network the Software for use at any other location. Use of the Software is limited to the computer designated for each Static license purchased.
- If you have purchased a "**Network**" license, then you may install and operate the Software concurrently on up to the number of workstations for which you have purchased a license. All workstations must be at the Designated Site. You may not network the Software for use at any other location; neither may you enable operation of concurrent "instances" of the Software beyond the scope of the Network license purchased. For example, if you purchased a Network license permitting concurrent use on five computers, you may enable the Software for concurrent use on up to five workstations at the Designated Site, regardless of whether such computers are networked.
- If you have purchased a "**Dynamic**" license, then you may allow up to the number of users for which you have purchased a license to operate the Software concurrently on any of the designated computers for which you have purchased a "**Dynamic license seat**". The computers must all be located at the Designated Site. You may not network the Software for use at any other location, or for use on any computers other than those for which you have purchased a Dynamic license seat.
- If you have purchased a "**Corporate**" license, then you may install and operate the Software concurrently on all workstations at the Designated Site(s) for which you have purchased such license. You may not network the Software for use at any other location; nor may you enable operation of concurrent "instances" of the Software beyond the Authorized Scope of the Corporate license purchased. Corporate License Numbers are Confidential Information, and must be protected at a minimum to the extend set out in Section 8 of this Agreement.
- Any Software provided under an "Evaluation" or "Trial" license is provided for your internal evaluation
 purposes only, pending your purchase of a commercial-use Software license and payment of the applicable license fees. Evaluation licenses may automatically be converted into commercial licenses (e.g.,
 with Authorized Scope converted into Static, Network, or Dynamic license) upon payment of the applicable license fees to Licensor or issuance of the applicable license key (whichever occurs first). Upon
 such conversion, this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect, subject to the restrictions applicable to the new Authorized Scope.
- Any Software provided under a "**Demonstration**" license is provided for your internal demonstration purposes only, and not for commercial or research purposes. You may not use the Software provided under a Demonstration license to operate upon data other than the data provided to you under the Demonstration license. You may not use any other software in conjunction with the Software provided under a Demonstration license to operate upon data other than the data provided to you under the Demonstration license.
- If you have purchased a "Named User" license, then you may allow up to the number of named users for which you have purchased a license to operate the Software. A named user is defined as one individual user identified with a unique user name and password. Each named user may operate no more than one session from a single workstation at a time. The workstations must all be located at the designated site. Only named users may use the Software.
- 3. RESTRICTIONS ON USE. You acknowledge that you are receiving LICENSED RIGHTS only. The Software may only be used internally, by you or your Authorized Users, with the license key provided, for your copy(ies) of the Software. If any Software is provided on separate media (*e.g.*, a CD-ROM), you may make a reasonable number of copies solely for your internal backup purposes. You shall not directly or indirectly: (i) sell, rent, lease, redistribute or transfer any of the Software or any rights in any of the Software, including through "charge back" or any other reselling or redistribution within your organization of any usage capacity you have licensed, without the prior express written approval of Licensor, (ii) modify, translate, reverse engineer (except to the limited extent permitted by law), decompile, disassemble, create, derivative works based on, sublicense, or distribute any of the Software, (iii) use any Software for the benefit of any third parties (*e.g.*, in an ASP, outsourcing or service bureau relationship), or in any way other than in its intended manner, (iv) remove any proprietary notice, labels, or marks on or in Software, or (v) disable or circumvent

any access control or related device, process or procedure established with respect to the Software, including the license key or any other part thereof. You are responsible for all use of the Software and for compliance with this Agreement; any breach by you or any user of the Software provided to you shall be deemed to have been incurred by you. Licensor reserves all rights not expressly granted. You agree and acknowledge that you have been provided sufficient information such that you do not need to reverse engineer the Software in any way to permit other products to interoperate with the Software. Sharing of accounts does not reduce the type or number of licenses you must purchase. For example, if you pool ten (10) users through a single account, you must have a license authorizing use by at least ten (10) users. In addition, "Multiplexing" or "pooling" of any Software or hardware (including through use of third party software products such as those made by Citrix Systems, Inc., or use of any terminal applications/emulators) does not reduce the type or number of licenses you must purchase; the required number of licenses you have must be greater than or equal to the number of distinct "inputs" to the multiplexing software or hardware "front end".

- 4. No SEPARATION OF COMPONENTS. The Software is licensed as a single product. Some Licensor software products combine separately available components into a single product (*e.g.*, a software suite product may be comprised of multiple component products). When licensed as a combination product, the component parts may not be separated for use independently of the combination product. You must first purchase a license to each component of the combination product before you may use it independently of the combination product.
- 5. CLASSROOM LICENSES. Certain Software may be licensed under Classroom License programs. Software licensed under such programs is subject to the additional restrictions in this Section. Software licensed under a "Classroom License" is restricted to use by students and teachers only in support of the classroom instruction of students and related class-work, such as the preparation of classroom materials, and the review and grading of exams, papers and class-related projects. Students may use the Software for class-related laboratory work and homework assignments. Use of Software licensed under such a program for any purposes other than as described in this Section, including for commercial or production purposes, or for non-classroom related research, is strictly prohibited.
- 6. ADDITIONAL PURCHASES. Purchase of additional or changed licenses or Authorized Scope is subject to availability and current pricing. Licensor may, from time to time, update the available Authorized Scope plans, and add or delete from available plans. To the extent you purchase an upgrade to your license by expanding the Authorized Scope under a changed or additional plan, Licensor will provide you with the additional license terms and conditions governing your use of Software under such plans; all other terms and conditions of this Agreement shall remain in effect.
- 7. TERM AND TERMINATION. Unless otherwise agreed, the term ("*Term*") of this Agreement shall continue until it is terminated; however, if you are receiving an Evaluation or Demonstration license, the Term shall expire thirty (30) days following the date you receive the Software. Licensor may terminate this Agreement (or any License) upon fifteen (15) days prior written notice if you breach this Agreement and do not cure the breach within fifteen (15) days following receipt of written notice of breach. Immediately upon any termination or expiration of this Agreement, you agree to: (i) pay all amounts owed to Licensor; (ii) cease use of the Software for which your rights have been terminated; (iii) upon request, return to Licensor (or destroy) all copies of the Software and any other Confidential Information or proprietary materials in your possession for which your rights have been terminated; and (iv) upon request, certify in writing your compliance with (ii) and (iii), above.
- 8. CONFIDENTIALITY. You agree to protect Licensor's Confidential Information with the same degree of care used to protect your own Confidential Information (but in no event less than a reasonable standard of care), and not to use or disclose any portion of such Confidential Information to third parties, except as expressly authorized in this Agreement. You acknowledge that the Software, including its structure, organization and design constitute proprietary and valuable trade secrets (and other intellectual property rights) of Licensor and/or its licensors. The term "Confidential Information" means, collectively, non-public information that Licensor (and its licensors) provide and reasonably consider to be of a confidential, proprietary or trade secret nature, including but not limited to confidential elements of the Software and Licensor's (and its licensors') technology and know-how, whether in tangible or intangible form, and whether or not stored, compiled or memorialized physically, electronically, graphically, photographically, or in writing.

Confidential Information does not include any information which: (i) is, as of the time of its disclosure or thereafter becomes part of the public domain through no fault of the receiving party; (ii) can be demonstrated by credible evidence: (x) as rightfully known to the receiving party prior to the time of its disclosure, or (y) to have been independently developed by the receiving party; (iii) is subsequently learned from a third party not under a confidentiality obligation; or (iv) is required to be disclosed pursuant to a duly authorized subpoena, court order, or government authority, provided that the receiving party has provided prompt written notice and assistance to Licensor prior to such disclosure, so that Licensor may seek a protective order or other appropriate remedy to protect against disclosure.

- 9. WARRANTY AND DISCLAIMER. Licensor warrants that, for a period of thirty (30) days from the date of initial delivery of Software to your designated shipping address (as indicated in the applicable invoice), the Software will, under normal use, substantially perform the functions described in its accompanying documentation. THE FOREGOING EXPRESS WARRANTY REPLACES AND IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS BY LICENSOR, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, OR STATUTORY, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY IMPLIED OR OTHER WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, TITLE, NON-INFRINGEMENT OR NON-MISAPPROPRIA-TION OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS OF A THIRD PARTY, CUSTOM, TRADE, QUIET ENJOYMENT, ACCURACY OF INFORMATIONAL CONTENT, OR SYSTEM INTEGRATION. NO WAR-RANTY IS MADE THAT ANY SOFTWARE WILL OPERATE IN AN ERROR FREE, UNINTERRUPTED OR COMPLETELY SECURE MANNER, OR IN COMBINATION WITH THIRD PARTY HARDWARE OR SOFT-WARE PRODUCTS. YOU ACKNOWLEDGE THAT LICENSOR HAS NO CONTROL OVER THE SPE-CIFIC CONDITIONS UNDER WHICH YOU USE THE SOFTWARE. ACCORDINGLY, EXCEPT FOR THE FOREGOING EXPRESS WARRANTY, LICENSOR CANNOT AND DOES NOT WARRANT THE PER-FORMANCE OF THE SOFTWARE OR ANY PARTICULAR RESULTS THAT MAY BE OBTAINED BY THE USE OF THE SOFTWARE. THE SOFTWARE DOES NOT REPLACE YOUR OBLIGATION TO EXER-CISE YOUR INDEPENDENT JUDGMENT IN USING THE SOFTWARE. The warranty made by Licensor may be voided by abuse or misuse.
- 10. EXCLUSIVE REMEDY. Licensor's sole obligation and liability, and your sole and exclusive remedy under the warranty set forth in Section 9 shall be for Licensor to use reasonable efforts to have the problem remedied, or have the defective product replaced, <u>provided that</u> Licensor is notified in writing of all warranty problems during the applicable warranty period.
- 11. THIRD PARTY SOFTWARE AND DATABASES. You understand that third party products integrated into the Software or provided for use with the Software may be subject to additional terms and conditions and/or license agreements from the applicable third party vendor, which shall govern over conflicting terms of this Agreement for purposes of your relationship with the third party vendor. You agree not to use any such third party product on a stand-alone basis independent of the Software, unless you have purchased the appropriate license from the third party vendor for use of such products. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY-THING TO THE CONTRARY IN THIS AGREEMENT, ALL THIRD PARTY SOFTWARE, DATABASES AND OTHER PROGRAMS AND SOFTWARE COMPONENTS ARE PROVIDED "AS IS" WITHOUT ANY WAR-RANTY WHATSOEVER FROM LICENSOR. ANY DATABASES OR OTHER INFORMATION PROVIDED BY LICENSOR ARE DESIGNED TO SUPPLEMENT OTHER SOURCES OF INFORMATION, AND ARE NOT INTENDED TO REPLACE YOUR PROFESSIONAL DISCRETION AND JUDGMENT. Licensor agrees, upon request and as Licensor's sole liability and obligation, to have passed through to you (to the extent it may reasonably do so) any warranties and indemnifications provided by the applicable third party vendor of any third party products provided to you. To the extent any problem or liability arises from a third party product, you agree to seek recourse solely from the applicable third party vendor and not Licensor.
- 12. LICENSOR INDEMNIFICATION. Licensor agrees to indemnify and defend you against any claims, actions, suits and proceedings by unaffiliated third parties arising from or related to a claim that the Software (other than any third party components or elements) infringes upon such party's copyright, and Licensor agrees to pay all costs, losses, damages, and attorneys' fees that a court finally awards, and all associated settlements; provided that, Licensor receives (i) prompt written notice of the claim; (ii) all necessary assistance, information and authority necessary for Licensor to defend the claim and perform Licensor's obligations under this Section; and (iii) sole control of the defense of such claim and all associated negotiations. If such a claim is made or appears likely to be made, you agree to permit Licensor to enable you to continue to use the affected materials, or to have them modified them to make them non-infringing, or to have them

replaced with a substantially functional equivalent. If Licensor determines that none of these options is reasonably available, then Licensor may terminate this Agreement in whole or with respect to the affected product, and you may be entitled to a credit equal to the price paid for the affected product, less depreciation. THIS SECTION STATES LICENSOR'S AND ITS AFFILIATES' ENTIRE OBLIGATION AND LIABIL-ITY REGARDING INFRINGEMENT OR CLAIMS OF INFRINGEMENT. Licensor will have no responsibility for (x) any use of any product after you have been notified to discontinue use, (y) alteration or combination of any product with third party materials, or any misuse or unauthorized use, or (z) failure to use provided updated or modified products to avoid a claim of infringement or misappropriation.

- 13. **INDEMNIFICATION BY YOU.** You agree to indemnify and defend Licensor, its licensors, and its affiliates, against any third party claims arising from or related to your use or misuse of the Software or any breach of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and you agree to pay all costs, losses, damages, and attorneys' fees that a court finally awards, and all associated settlements.
- 14. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT PROHIBITED BY APPLICABE LAW, IN NO EVENT WILL LICENSOR'S OR ITS AFFILIATES' TOTAL, AGGREGATE LIABILITY ARISING FROM OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE SOFTWARE (INCLUDING FOR NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIA-BILITY, BREACH OF CONTRACT, MISREPRESENTATION, AND OTHER CONTRACT OR TORT CLAIMS), EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF YOUR DIRECT DAMAGES ACTUALLY INCURRED, UP TO THE AMOUNT OF FEES PAID TO LICENSOR UNDER THIS AGREEMENT FOR THE SOFTWARE THAT IS THE SUBJECT OF THE CLAIM UNDERLYING THE DAMAGES.
- 15. EXCLUSION OF OTHER DAMAGES. EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT PROHIBITED BY APPLICABE LAW, UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL LICENSOR, ITS AFFILIATES, OR ANY OF THEIR SUPPLIERS OR LICENSORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY OF THE FOLLOWING: (I) THIRD PARTY CLAIMS, EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 12, (II) LOSS OR DAMAGE TO ANY SYSTEMS, RECORDS OR DATA, OR (III) INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE, RELIANCE, OR COVER DAMAGES (INCLUDING FOR LOST PROFITS, LOST SAVINGS AND DAMAGE TO ANY DATA OR SYSTEMS); EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. YOU ARE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE AND LIABLE FOR VERIFYING THE ACCURACY AND ADEQUACY OF ANY OUTPUT FROM THE SOFTWARE, AND FOR ANY RELIANCE THEREON.
- 16. VERIFICATION. Licensor shall have the right to have on-site audits periodically conducted of your use of the Software. These audits will generally be conducted during regular business hours, and Licensor will use its reasonable efforts not to interfere unduly with your regular business activities. Licensor may also require you to accurately complete a self-audit questionnaire in a form Licensor may have provided. If an audit reveals unauthorized use, you must promptly order sufficient licenses and Authorized Scope to permit all usage disclosed. If material unlicensed use is found (*i.e.*, license shortage of 5% or more), you also shall reimburse Licensor for its costs incurred in connection with the verification.
- 17. LEGAL COMPLIANCE; RESTRICTED RIGHTS. Software is provided solely for lawful purposes and use. You shall be solely responsible for, and agree to comply with, all applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, and other governmental authority, however designated. Without limiting the foregoing, you agree to comply with all U.S. export laws and applicable export laws of your locality (if you are not in the United States), and shall not export any Software or other materials provided by Licensor without first obtaining all required authorizations or licenses. Products acquired for use within or for any United States federal agency are provided with "LIMITED RIGHTS" and "RESTRICTED RIGHTS" as defined in DFARS 252.227-7013 and FAR 52.227-19.
- 18. GOVERNING LAW; SEVERABILITY. This Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the State of California, USA, without regard to choice-of-law rules or principles. Any dispute arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be resolved only in the state or federal courts having jurisdiction in California. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal or unenforceable for any reason, then such provision shall be deemed to be restated so as to be enforceable to the maximum extent permissible under law; the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.
- 19. **GENERAL.** This Agreement, including any associated Licensor invoices (all of which are incorporated herein), are collectively the parties' complete agreement regarding its subject matter, superseding any prior oral or written communications. You understand and agree that, to the extent Licensor permits you to

use a non-Licensor purchase order or other form to order Software, Licensor does so solely for your convenience. Any terms in any such forms that purport to vary or are in addition to any terms in this Agreement or in the applicable Licensor form covering your purchase shall be deemed to be void and of no effect. Amendments or changes to this Agreement must be in mutually executed writings to be effective. Sections 1, 3--8, 10--19, and all warranty disclaimers and use restrictions shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. The parties are independent contractors for all purposes under this Agreement. Neither party shall be liable for any delay or failure due to force majeure and other causes beyond its reasonable control; this provision shall not apply to any of your payment obligations. Any notices under this Agreement to Licensor must be personally delivered or sent by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, or by nationally recognized overnight express courier, to the address specified herein or such other address as Licensor may specify in writing. Such notices will be effective upon receipt, which may be shown by confirmation of delivery. All such notices shall be sent to the attention of General Counsel of Invitrogen Corporation (unless otherwise specified by Licensor). You may not assign or otherwise transfer this Agreement without Licensor's prior written consent. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties' successors and permitted assigns. You agree, at Licensor's request and reasonable expense, to provide reasonable assistance and cooperation to Licensor and its designees, and to give testimony and execute documents and to take such further acts reasonably requested by the other to acquire, transfer, maintain, perfect, and enforce Licensor's intellectual property rights as described in this Agreement. To the extent you fail to do so, you appoint Licensor's or its affiliates' officers as your attorney in fact to execute documents on your (and your personnel's), successors' and assigns' behalf for this limited purpose.

II.Software Product License Agreement Terms for Academic and/or Not-For-Profit Users

This is a legal agreement ("Agreement") between you, the academic or not-for-profit researcher receiving a product license, and Invitrogen Corporation, having offices at 1600 Faraday Avenue, Carlsbad California 92008 USA ("Licensor"). This Agreement is part of a package that includes one or more software products and certain electronic and/or written materials. This Agreement covers your licensing of the Software (as the term is defined below). BY CLICKING YOUR ACCEPTANCE OF THIS AGREE-MENT, OR BY INSTALLING OR USING THE SOFTWARE OR ANY OTHER COMPONENT OF THE PACK-AGE, YOU ACKNOWLEDGE AND REPRESENT THAT:

(1) YOU ARE AN ACADEMIC OR NOT-FOR-PROFIT RESEARCHER INTENDING TO USE THE SOFTWARE ONLY FOR NOT-FOR-PROFIT AND/OR ACADEMIC RESEARCH PURPOSES; and (2) YOU HAVE READ ALL OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT, UNDER-STAND THEM, AND AGREE TO BE LEGALLY BOUND BY THEM.

If you do not agree to the terms of this Agreement, you may not install or use the Software.

"Designated Site" means your facilities or offices located at the postal address provided by you, unless otherwise indicated in a license key provided to you; and "Software" means the software product(s) accompanying this Agreement, including the associated user manuals, user documentation and application program interfaces, and license key(s) provided, and any patches, updates, upgrades, improvements, enhancements, fixes and revised versions of any of the foregoing that may be provided to you from time to time, and any combination of the foregoing.

- 1. **TAXES; SHIPPING.** If any authority imposes a duty, tax or similar amount on the transfer of Software to you (other than based on Licensor's income), you agree to pay, or to promptly reimburse Licensor for, all such amounts. All shipments by Licensor or its designee are FCA point of shipment.
- 2. GRANT OF SOFTWARE LICENSE. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Licensor grants to you a non-exclusive, non-transferable license (the "Academic Vector NTI License") to use the Software for your internal operations and internal data processing purposes within and up to the Authorized Scope for which you have registered the Software for use. The term "Authorized Scope" means the following, and any other capacity or use restrictions on the license granted to you: You have received a "Personal Static" license. For each such license you may install and operate the Software on a designated computer located at the Designated Site. You may not network the Software for use at any other location. Use of the Software is limited to the computer designated for each Static license.
- 3. RESTRICTIONS ON USE. You acknowledge that you are receiving LICENSED RIGHTS only. The Software may only be used internally, by you, with the license key provided, for your copy(ies) of the Software. If any Software is provided on separate media (e.g., a CD-ROM), you may make a reasonable number of copies solely for your internal backup purposes. You shall not directly or indirectly: (i) sell, rent, lease, redistribute or transfer any of the Software or any rights in any of the Software, including through "charge back" or any other reselling or redistribution within your organization of any usage capacity you have licensed, without the prior express written approval of Licensor, (ii) modify, translate, reverse engineer (except to the limited extent permitted by law), decompile, disassemble, create, derivative works based on, sublicense, or distribute any of the Software, (iii) use any Software for the benefit of any third parties (e.g., in an ASP, outsourcing or service bureau relationship), or in any way other than in its intended manner, (iv) remove any proprietary notice, labels, or marks on or in Software, or (v) disable or circumvent any access control or related device, process or procedure established with respect to the Software, including the license key or any other part thereof. You are responsible for all use of the Software and for compliance with this Agreement; any breach by you or any user of the Software provided to you shall be deemed to have been incurred by you. Licensor reserves all rights not expressly granted. You agree and acknowledge that you have been provided sufficient information such that you do not need to reverse engineer the Software in any way to permit other products to interoperate with the Software.
- 4. **No SEPARATION OF COMPONENTS.** The Software is licensed as a single product. Some Licensor software products combine separately available components into a single product (*e.g.*, a software suite product may be comprised of multiple component products). When licensed as a combination product, the component parts may not be separated for use independently of the combination product. You must first pur-

chase a license to each component of the combination product before you may use it independently of the combination product.

- 5. TERM AND TERMINATION. Unless otherwise agreed, the term ("*Term*") of this Agreement shall continue until it is terminated. Licensor may terminate this Agreement (or any License) upon fifteen (15) days prior written notice if you breach this Agreement and do not cure the breach within fifteen (15) days following receipt of written notice of breach. Immediately upon any termination or expiration of this Agreement, you agree to: (i) cease use of the Software for which your rights have been terminated; (ii) upon request, return to Licensor (or destroy) all copies of the Software and any other Confidential Information or proprietary materials in your possession for which your rights have been terminated; and (iii) upon request, certify in writing your compliance with (i) and (ii), above.
- 6. CONFIDENTIALITY. You agree to protect Licensor's Confidential Information with the same degree of care used to protect your own Confidential Information (but in no event less than a reasonable standard of care), and not to use or disclose any portion of such Confidential Information to third parties, except as expressly authorized in this Agreement. You acknowledge that the Software, including its structure, organization and design constitute proprietary and valuable trade secrets (and other intellectual property rights) of Licensor and/or its licensors. The term "Confidential Information" means, collectively, non-public information that Licensor (and its licensors) provide and reasonably consider to be of a confidential, proprietary or trade secret nature, including but not limited to confidential elements of the Software and Licensor's (and its licensors') technology and know-how, whether in tangible or intangible form, and whether or not stored, compiled or memorialized physically, electronically, graphically, photographically, or in writing. Confidential Information does not include any information which: (i) is, as of the time of its disclosure or thereafter becomes part of the public domain through no fault of the receiving party; (ii) can be demonstrated by credible evidence: (x) as rightfully known to the receiving party prior to the time of its disclosure, or (y) to have been independently developed by the receiving party; (iii) is subsequently learned from a third party not under a confidentiality obligation; or (iv) is required to be disclosed pursuant to a duly authorized subpoena, court order, or government authority, provided that the receiving party has provided prompt written notice and assistance to Licensor prior to such disclosure, so that Licensor may seek a protective order or other appropriate remedy to protect against disclosure.
- 7. WARRANTY AND DISCLAIMER. Your use of the Software and its results is entirely at your own risk. Should the Software prove defective, you assume the entire cost of all service, repair or correction. The Software is made available to you "AS IS", AND LICENSOR MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY REGARDING THE SOFTWARE, AND HEREBY DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, OR STATUTORY, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY IMPLIED OR OTHER WARRAN-TIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, TITLE, NON-INFRINGE-MENT OR NON-MISAPPROPRIATION OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS OF A THIRD PARTY, CUSTOM, TRADE, QUIET ENJOYMENT, ACCURACY OF INFORMATIONAL CONTENT, OR SYSTEM INTEGRATION. NO WARRANTY IS MADE THAT ANY SOFTWARE WILL OPERATE IN AN ERROR FREE, UNINTERRUPTED OR COMPLETELY SECURE MANNER, OR IN COMBINATION WITH THIRD PARTY HARDWARE OR SOFTWARE PRODUCTS. YOU ACKNOWLEDGE THAT LICENSOR HAS NO CONTROL OVER THE SPECIFIC CONDITIONS UNDER WHICH YOU USE THE SOFTWARE. ACCORDINGLY, EXCEPT FOR THE FOREGOING EXPRESS WARRANTY, LICENSOR CANNOT AND DOES NOT WARRANT THE PERFORMANCE OF THE SOFTWARE OR ANY PARTICULAR RESULTS THAT MAY BE OBTAINED BY THE USE OF THE SOFTWARE. THE SOFTWARE DOES NOT REPLACE YOUR OBLIGATION TO EXERCISE YOUR INDEPENDENT JUDGMENT IN USING THE SOFTWARE. The warranty made by Licensor may be voided by abuse or misuse. Licensor has no obligation to provide any support, error corrections, updates, or any other services related to the Software ("Services"). ANY SERVICES RELATED TO THE SOFTWARE ARE PROVIDED "AS IS", AND LICENSOR MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY REGARDING SUCH SERVICES, AND HEREBY DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, OR STATUTORY, WITH RESPECT TO SUCH SER-VICES.
- 8. **THIRD PARTY SOFTWARE AND DATABASES.** You understand that third party products integrated into the Software or provided for use with the Software may be subject to additional terms and conditions and/or license agreements from the applicable third party vendor, which shall govern over conflicting terms of this Agreement for purposes of your relationship with the third party vendor. You agree not to use any such
third party product on a stand-alone basis independent of the Software, unless you have purchased the appropriate license from the third party vendor for use of such products. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY-THING TO THE CONTRARY IN THIS AGREEMENT, ALL THIRD PARTY SOFTWARE, DATABASES AND OTHER PROGRAMS AND SOFTWARE COMPONENTS ARE PROVIDED "AS IS" WITHOUT ANY WAR-RANTY WHATSOEVER FROM LICENSOR. ANY DATABASES OR OTHER INFORMATION PROVIDED BY LICENSOR ARE DESIGNED TO SUPPLEMENT OTHER SOURCES OF INFORMATION, AND ARE NOT INTENDED TO REPLACE YOUR PROFESSIONAL DISCRETION AND JUDGMENT. Licensor agrees, upon request and as Licensor's sole liability and obligation, to have passed through to you (to the extent it may reasonably do so) any warranties and indemnifications provided by the applicable third party vendor of any third party products provided to you. To the extent any problem or liability arises from a third party product, you agree to seek recourse solely from the applicable third party vendor and not Licensor.

- 9. **INDEMNIFICATION BY YOU.** You agree to indemnify and defend Licensor, its licensors, and its affiliates, against any third party claims arising from or related to your use of the Software or any breach of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and you agree to pay all costs, losses, damages, and attorneys' fees that a court finally awards, and all associated settlements.
- 10. EXCLUSION OF OTHER DAMAGES. EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW, UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL LICENSOR, ITS AFFILIATES, OR ANY OF THEIR SUPPLIERS OR LICENSORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY OF THE FOLLOWING: (I) THIRD PARTY CLAIMS (II) LOSS OR DAMAGE TO ANY SYSTEMS, RECORDS OR DATA, OR (III) DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPE-CIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE, RELIANCE, OR COVER DAMAGES (INCLUDING FOR LOST PROFITS, LOST SAVINGS AND DAMAGE TO ANY DATA OR SYSTEMS); EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. YOU ARE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE AND LIABLE FOR VERIFYING THE ACCURACY AND ADEQUACY OF ANY OUTPUT FROM THE SOFTWARE, AND FOR ANY RELI-ANCE THEREON.
- 11. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW, IN NO EVENT WILL LICENSOR'S OR ITS AFFILIATES' TOTAL, AGGREGATE LIABILITY ARISING FROM OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE SOFTWARE (INCLUDING FOR NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIA-BILITY, BREACH OF CONTRACT, MISREPRESENTATION, AND OTHER CONTRACT OR TORT CLAIMS) EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF FEES PAID BY YOU TO LICENSOR UNDER THIS AGREEMENT FOR THE SOFTWARE THAT IS THE SUBJECT OF THE CLAIM UNDERLYING THE DAMAGES, OR ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS (\$100.00), WHICHEVER IS LESS.
- 12. VERIFICATION. Licensor shall have the right to have on-site audits periodically conducted of your use of the Software. These audits will generally be conducted during regular business hours, and Licensor will use its reasonable efforts not to interfere unduly with your regular business activities. Licensor may also require you to accurately complete a self-audit questionnaire in a form Licensor may have provided. If an audit reveals unauthorized use, you must promptly order sufficient licenses and Authorized Scope to permit all usage disclosed. If material unlicensed use is found (*i.e.*, license shortage of 5% or more), you also shall reimburse Licensor for its costs incurred in connection with the verification.
- 13. LEGAL COMPLIANCE; RESTRICTED RIGHTS. Software is provided solely for lawful purposes and use. You shall be solely responsible for, and agree to comply with, all applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, and other governmental authority, however designated. Without limiting the foregoing, you agree to comply with all U.S. export laws and applicable export laws of your locality (if you are not in the United States), and shall not export any Software or other materials provided by Licensor without first obtaining all required authorizations or licenses. Products acquired for use within or for any United States federal agency are provided with "LIMITED RIGHTS" and "RESTRICTED RIGHTS" as defined in DFARS 252.227-7013 and FAR 52.227-19.
- 14. **GOVERNING LAW; SEVERABILITY.** This Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the State of California, USA, without regard to choice-of-law rules or principles. Any dispute arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be resolved only in the state or federal courts having jurisdiction in California. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal or unenforceable for any reason, then such provision shall be deemed to be restated so as to be enforceable to the maximum extent permissible under law; the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

15. GENERAL. This Agreement is the parties' complete agreement regarding its subject matter, superseding any prior oral or written communications. You understand and agree that, to the extent Licensor permits you to use a non-Licensor purchase order or other form to order Software, Licensor does so solely for your convenience. Any terms in any such forms that purport to vary or are in addition to any terms in this Agreement or in the applicable Licensor form covering your purchase shall be deemed to be void and of no effect. Amendments or changes to this Agreement must be in mutually executed writings to be effective. Sections 1, 3--8, 11--15, and all warranty disclaimers and use restrictions shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. The parties are independent contractors for all purposes under this Agreement. Neither party shall be liable for any delay or failure due to force majeure and other causes beyond its reasonable control. Any notices under this Agreement to Licensor must be personally delivered or sent by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, or by nationally recognized overnight express courier, to the address specified herein or such other address as Licensor may specify in writing. Such notices will be effective upon receipt, which may be shown by confirmation of delivery. All such notices shall be sent to the attention of General Counsel of Invitrogen Corporation (unless otherwise specified by Licensor). You may not assign or otherwise transfer this Agreement without Licensor's prior written consent. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties' successors and permitted assigns. You agree, at Licensor's request and reasonable expense, to provide reasonable assistance and cooperation to Licensor and its designees, and to give testimony and execute documents and to take such further acts reasonably requested by the other to acquire, transfer, maintain, perfect, and enforce Licensor's intellectual property rights as described in this Agreement. To the extent you fail to do so, you appoint Licensor's or its affiliates' officers as your attorney in fact to execute documents on your (and your personnel's), successors' and assigns' behalf for this limited purpose.

I HAVE READ AND AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THE ABOVE TERMS THAT APPLY TO ME AS EITHER A COMMERCIAL USER (SECTION I) OR AN ACADEMIC USER (SEC-TION II), AS APPLICABLE.

C H A P T E R

INTRODUCTION TO VECTOR NTI ADVANCE

Welcome

Welcome to *Vector* **NTI Advance**[™], part of a family of software packages developed by Invitrogen[™], Carlsbad, Californa. Other life science applications developed by Invitrogen include *Vector* **Xpression**[™], *Vector* **PathBlazer**[™], **LabShare**[™] for Vector NTI[®] and Vector **NTI**[®] for Mac OS X.

Vector NTI Advance is made up of the following modules:

- Vector NTI[™]
- AlignX[®]
- BioAnnotator[™]
- ContigExpress[®]
- GenomBench[™]

You may not have purchased licenses for all of the modules of Vector NTI Advance. If you would like to do so, please contact Invitrogen at their website: <u>www.invitrogen.com/bioinformatics</u> for more information.

Getting Started with Vector NTI Advance

- To learn about the Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual structure, review Chapter 1.
- To read a brief overview of the Vector NTI Advance software, review Chapter 2.
- To activate your license for Vector NTI Advance 10:
 - ^o Refer to the Vector NTI Advance 10 Installation and Licensing Guide that you received when purchasing Vector NTI Advance 10

or

 Download the Vector NTI Advance 10 Installation and Licensing Guide from the Invitrogen website, <u>www.invitrogen.com/bioinformatics.</u> or

- ^o See the section on License Manager in Chapter 39, page 650 in this user's manual.
- To start Vector NTI Advance, refer to Launching Vector NTI on page 13.
- To learn various methods of opening and using of Online Help, refer to Online Help on page 13.
- To learn independently how to use components of the Vector NTI software, walk through the tutorials, Chapters 4 through 16.
- To learn about the global features used in all Vector NTI Advance module viewers, periodically review Chapter 3.
- To learn more about the automation features of Vector NTI, refer to the Invitrogen website: <u>www.invitrogen.com/bioinformatics.</u>

The Vector NTI User

As Vector NTI Advance uses a convenient graphical user interface (GUI), in using the software you are expected to have some familiarity with window environments and web browsers.

The Vector Advance 10 User's Manual Format

To be a useful and simple-to-use resource, the Vector NTI Advance User's Manual contains:

- Section I: Three introductory chapters, 1 through 3, covering Vector NTI basics.
- Section II: Vector NTI Advance Tutorial chapters, chapters 4 through 16, enabling VNTI users at any level to learn independently how to use components of the Vector NTI software.
- Section III: Reference tools, chapters 17 through 27 organized around the functions and features of Vector NTI.
- Section IV: Vector NTI Advance Applications, chapters 28 through 39, covering additional components of Vector NTI Advance.
- Section VI: Appendices
- Section VII: A complete index

Use the manual index to easily look up and find descriptions of specific features and functions. Electronic versions of the *Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual* and the *Vector NTI Advance 10 Installation and Licensing Guide* are also available at the Invitrogen website: <u>www.invitrogen.com/bioinformatics</u>.

Conventions Used in this Manual

The following table uses various typefaces to differentiate between regular text and menu commands, keyboard keys, toolbar buttons, dialog box options and text that you type. The table describes how conventions are represented in this manual.

Convention	Description	Example		
Bold and Capitalized Command Capitalized command > Capitalized command	Menu command Sequential Menu commands	Database > Explore		

note 1.1 Oser manual conventions	Table 1.1	User	Manual	Conventions
----------------------------------	-----------	------	--------	-------------

Convention	Description	Example		
TEXT IN SMALL CAPS	Keyboard key that you press	The Enter Key ENTER		
TEXT IN SMALL CAPS + TEXT IN SMALL CAPS	Keys that you press together	Press SHIFT+ CTRL, then release both.		
TEXT IN SMALL CAPS fol- lowed by TEXT IN SMALL CAPS	Keys that you press in sequence	Press ENTER, followed by ENTER		
Icon	Small picture on a toolbar button that you press	Click the Zoom In button (() to enlarge the image		
Boldface type	Options or tabs that you select in dialog boxes, list boxes, or drop-down menus Buttons that you click	In the Restriction Enzymes dialog box, select the enzyme(s) and press the Add button.		
Italic boldface type	Text that you type	In the New Molecule dialog box, enter the molecule name, <i>my pBR322</i> .		
Note:	Highlights a particular concept or extends the current topic	Note: To calculate Separation Time, at least two fragments must be selected.		
Important: Or Warning!	Highlights information of which you should be particularly aware	Important: Once parent-descendant relationships have been disconnected, they CANNOT be reconnected.		

 Table 1.1 User Manual Conventions (continued)

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

C H A P T E R

OVERVIEW OF VECTOR NTI ADVANCE

Introduction

Vector NTI Advance, a suite of desktop applications, is a comprehensive set of sequence analysis software tools specifically designed for the molecular biologist to study, visualize, manipulate, construct and store biological molecules. With this system, you can:

- Easily navigate and search the user-defined, password-protected molecule and enzyme databases
- Access molecules across a network with user-defined and password-protected databases
- Generate recombinant strategies and protocols, and design and analyze PCR primers and other oligos
- Animate virtual gels for restriction fragment analysis
- Analyze physiochemical properties of molecule sequences
- Assemble contigs from text sequences or chromatograms
- Create and customize publication-quality graphics
- Take advantage of full Internet connectivity with more than 20 Internet sites for searching and importing annotated molecules back into Vector NTI Advance
- Automate common tasks such as batch BLAST, batch annotation, batch primer design, etc. through the Application Programming Interfaces (APIs)

While all of the software components are fully capable of functioning independently of one another, the program integrates data, analyses and presentations easily among the applications.

Vector NTI Database Explorer

The Vector NTI database provides storage and organization functions for molecules and other objects used in cloning strategies, molecule manipulation and analysis, and sequence analysis. Database objects include DNA/RNA and protein molecules, restriction enzymes, oligonucle-

otides (including PCR primers, sequencing primers and hybridization probes), gel markers, BLAST search results, and citations.

In the Database Explorer window, you can:

- Create new objects
- Edit and delete old objects
- Perform database searches
- Organize objects into convenient groups (subsets)
- Import and export objects
- Create Vector NTI "archives" of objects to share with other users
- Format references according to bibliographic styles assigned to various professional publications

General database functions let you make backup copies of the database in the specified subfolder of your hard drive or floppy disk, restore all database files from a backup and compress the database by removing all unnecessary data from the data files and database tables.

Vector NTI also has two additional data managers:

- Contact Manager to create, modify, and organize the address data of persons or organizations with which you frequently communicate.
- User Field Manager to define data fields to describe your database objects.

Organizing your Biological Objects

Using the Vector NTI database, you can conveniently organize and effectively manage a large amount of molecular biology data. Database objects can be organized into an arbitrary number of *subsets*. The Database Explorer has convenient commands for creating and managing subsets of all database objects.

Description fields of database objects allow you to describe any object property in formal and semiformal ways. Vector NTI serves as a global "organizer" for your biological data.

Database Search

Vector NTI lets you search for database objects using many types of data as search conditions. These include, for example, form (circular, linear, Invitrogen), storage type (basic, constructed, translated), size, description/comment/user fields text, and so forth.

Import/Export Functions

You can import molecules (including their feature tables) from GenBank/GenPept, EMBL/ SWISS-PROT and FASTA formats. You can also import nucleotide or amino acid sequences from an ASCII file of flexible format, and Vector NTI will automatically create the new database molecule and assign the sequence to the molecule.

Archives - A Tool For Sharing Database Information

Vector NTI lets you place your molecules, enzymes, oligonucleotides and gel markers into archives that can be transferred to another computer (Mac or PC) and read by Vector NTI. This allows you to share objects with colleagues, or to place them simultaneously on several computers. As molecules are archived, Vector NTI verifies the consistency of all information.

Features and Functions of Vector NTI

Creating New Molecules

There are five different ways of creating new DNA/RNA and protein molecules in Vector NTI:

- 1. Importing from GenBank/GenPept, EMBL/SWISS-PROT and FASTA formats, or from an ASCII file of flexible format. The sequence and Feature map are converted from the file, and the new molecule becomes part of the Vector NTI database.
- Creating new molecules from user-defined nucleotide or amino acid sequences. These can be manually entered or pasted from the clipboard and the sequence entered as a new molecule.
- Translating a coding region of an existing DNA or RNA molecule to create new protein molecules.
- Construction of new DNA/RNA molecules from user-defined compatible component fragments from other molecules.
- 5. Design of new DNA/RNA molecules from components in a user-defined fragment list, using Vector NTI's built-in biological knowledge to design the recombination process.

All new molecules are integrated into the database and can participate in all further operations and analyses.

Creating New Enzymes, Oligos, and Gel Markers

Enzyme, oligonucleotide, and gel marker objects can be created "from scratch" using Vector NTI's editors or by importing them from a REBASE database.

Oligos and Primers

Vector NTI can design PCR primers, sequencing primers and hybridization probes and save them to the database for future use. Using parameters you have defined, Vector NTI can analyze those primers and probes (or those you have defined yourself) to determine the best ones for optimal experimental results, then link you to the InvitrogenTM website to order your custom primers.

Editing Database Objects

Full molecule editing capabilities are available in Vector NTI, either from Database Explorer or the Molecule Display window. In Molecule Display windows, you can edit molecules by inserting, deleting and replacing sequence fragments and features. You can also modify a molecule's display format and general data. When your editing is complete, you can save the molecule into the database to make the changes permanent.

Parent-Descendant Connections

As you modify molecules, Vector NTI monitors and manages parent-descendant connections to ensure data consistency through all the descendants (see Appendix D, page 669).

Generating Restriction Maps

Restriction maps of DNA/RNA molecules can be quickly generated in Vector NTI. For unsequenced molecule regions, you may enter the known positions of restriction sites. All the molecule descendants inherit these sites.

Molecule Display

Molecule display windows are Vector NTI's convenient graphical user interface (GUI) for inspecting and editing text description, graphical maps and analyses, and sequences of DNA/ RNA and protein molecules. They are also powerful and convenient graphical tools for selecting fragments for molecule construction and design and for preparing publication-quality images.

Molecule display windows consist of Text, Graphics and Sequence Panes.

Text Pane

Text Panes contain a general molecule description and folders describing a molecule's features, search results, cloning strategies and protocols, and biological data.

Graphics Pane

A molecule display window's Graphics Pane contains a graphically displayed or linear molecule map. In the Graphics Pane, you can visually select and "prepare" fragments for construction and design of new molecules, search for probes and primers, or for restriction maps.

All graphics objects are movable, resizable and editable.

Sequence Pane

A molecule display window's Sequence Pane contains the formatted nucleotide or amino acid sequence of a molecule.

For DNA/RNA molecules, Vector NTI can show restriction sites, motifs, ORFs and functional signals, and translated reading frames.

For protein molecules, Vector NTI can display protein features together with the amino acid sequence.

You can print any molecule display window or you can save it to an external file or clipboard. From the clipboard, you can insert maps, sequences and molecule descriptions directly into word processing documents.

Creating Molecule Documents

You can save all the information from a molecule display window to permanent storage by creating a Molecule Document file. Since the Molecule Document format is based on GenBank/Gen-Pept formats, not only Vector NTI, but any program able to import GenBank/GenPept files can also import Vector NTI Molecule Documents.

Gel Display Windows

Gel Display windows can be created for different types of electrophoresis. The Gel Display window's Graphics Pane replicates the results of an actual gel.

Creating Gel Display Windows

To create a new Gel Display window, you must define its parameters as to electrophoresis and buffer types, electrophoresis conditions and display parameters.

You can modify the settings of a Gel Display window at any time after creation for better separation of the molecules' fragments.

Creating Gel Samples and Gel Markers

In Vector NTI, a gel lane may contain either a Gel Sample or a Gel Marker, user-generated or from the database. Gel Samples are created by "cutting" database molecules with restriction

enzymes. Gel Markers, sets of fragments of known lengths, can be loaded either from the database or can be user-generated.

Running the Gel

After a Gel Display window is created, and your samples and markers have been "added" to the "lanes," you can run a gel according to selected time increments or animation settings. You can color-code specific fragments or define "separation distances" or time lengths to better visualize fragment separation. Because of the simplicity of their generation, Gel Samples are created on the spot for short-term use, but are not stored in the Vector NTI database.

Align X

AlignX is a multiple sequence alignment tool. In AlignX, you can:

- Perform multiple sequence alignments on either proteins or nucleic acids without reformatting between applications and computer platforms.
- In the alignment, link, localize and compare important domains in individual sequences
- · Generate plots of similarity and sequence complexity

AlignX features include multicolor presentation, alignment editing, sequence comparison dot plots, guide trees, sequence and structure alignments, and similarity distribution plots. AlignX reads all standard text formats such as FASTA, GenBank, EMBL, SWISS-PROT, GenPept, and ASCII text.

BioAnnotator

BioAnnotator is a comprehensive set of protein and nucleic acid sequence analysis tools, offering over 50 different predefined protein scales linked with Feature maps and sequences. BioAnnotator also offers the following advanced search and analysis tools, which are run in the Analysis Monitor (see below): ProSite, PFAM, BLOCKS and Proteolytic cleavage.

BioAnnotator is formatted so that plots can be filed, overlapped, scaled, moved and formatted to fit your presentation needs. Sequence regions can be highlighted by changing font face, size, and color, and the plots linked to a molecule feature table. The use of a standard text file format in all programs eliminates the need to reformat data for use in any Vector NTI Advance modules.

ContigExpress

ContigExpress is a program for assembling many small fragments—either text sequences or chromatograms from automated sequencers—into longer, contiguous sequences. You can manage fragments and assemblies in an Explorer window, and open fragments and contigs in display windows for further study and manipulation. The multi-pane windows link sequences with their properties, chromatograms and graphic representations.

You can edit nucleic acid fragments directly with the chromatograms in full view. Changes are tracked and an edit history is maintained. The contigs generated are then saved and managed as GenBank, EMBL or FASTA files. No exporting or reformatting of proprietary file formats is necessary. Just drag and drop into Vector NTI to map and analyze.

GenomBench

GenomBench is Vector NTI Advance's genome project workhorse. GenomBench can retrieve data from compatible DAS-compliant servers, such as UCSC and Ensembl. It provides an interface for browsing and querying such sites using keywords, flanking markers, and BLAT (UCSC

public database) or SSAHA (Ensembl) similarity searches. GenomBench also provides a means for mapping your data onto a genomic region using Sim4 or Spidey analyses.

As with other Vector NTI Advance applications, GenomBench has a multi-pane user interface where you can view important text information in the project, and navigate, manipulate and annotate a graphical representation of the genome. You can also perform sequence searches, translations and alignments. In addition, GenomBench provides tools for querying public databases, copying and pasting sequence and graphics, performing feature searches, importing and exporting annotated sequences and sending annotated sequence segments to Vector NTI.

Like Vector NTI, GenomBench has a Local database for storing your sequences and analysis results.

Remote Services Tools

Vector NTI provides applications that allow you to use remote bio-services for analyzing your data. You can store the results of such analyses in the Vector NTI Database and share them with your colleagues. Vector NTI also provides a tool to help you configure links to the remote servers used for analysis and data storage.

BLAST Search/BLAST Viewer

Vector NTI Advance provides you with a search engine for launching BLAST searches of the GenBank databases at the National Center for Biotechnology Information website. Results are listed in the BLAST Search dialog box from which they can be opened and reviewed in BLAST Viewer, displaying a linear representation of aligned hit elements from the hit molecules. BLAST results can be saved to the Vector NTI Database from the BLAST Viewer.

Note: BLAST searches can also be launched from Analysis Monitor, described below.

PubMed/Entrez Search, Citation Viewer and Citation Table of Database Explorer

These tools work in tandem to provide a practical and efficient way to search public databases for molecules or citations, and retrieve them, complete with molecule files or abstracts that can be viewed and stored.

Remote Database Sources Wizard

The Remote Database Sources Wizard steps you through the process of creating links to remote servers, which enable Vector NTI remote services tools to connect to external databases, such as Entrez and LabShare. Basic links for BLAST and PubMed/Entrez searches are already created; you do not have to create them.

Miscellaneous Tools

Analysis Monitor

The Vector NTI Analysis Monitor provides a convenient interface for performing the following advanced DNA/RNA and Protein molecule analyses included in BioAnnotator and Genom-Bench: PFAM, ProSite, Blocks and Proteolytic Cleavage, and Spidey and Sim4 analyses, respectively. Analysis Monitor also provides an alternative interface for launching BLAST searches.

Vector NTI functions as a viewer for analysis results retrieved by the Analysis Monitor. The Analysis Results data type enables you to store results from the Analysis Monitor application.

Analyses that are included with GenomBench or BioAnnotator licenses also become available from the Vector NTI window when these products are licensed.

GCG Converter

GCG Converter is a tool in Vector NTI Advance that converts sequences in GCG file formats so that they can be imported into the software.

Matrix Editor

Matrix Editor allows inspection of and editing of matrices. Matrices are used in two Vector NTI Advance applications, AlignX and AlignX Blocks. Matrices can be viewed in either program in the Alignment Setup dialog box, but editing can only take place in Matrix Editor.

AlignX Blocks

AlignX Blocks is a program for locating, analyzing and editing blocks of localized sequence similarity among multiple protein sequences and linking them into a composite multiple alignment.

3D-Mol

The 3D-Mol application of Vector NTI Advance allows you to visualize and manipulate 3-dimensional molecule structures described in a number of standard molecule structure files, including PDB (Protein Data Bank). 3D-Mol also supports creation of user-defined structures and provides tools for aligning protein chains and calculating protein surfaces. Structures can be saved to a 3D-Mol project and/or exported to PDB or M3D files, or to Vector NTI.

Oligo Files Importer

The Oligo File Importer utility allows you to import oligo lists into the Vector NTI database. The oligo list to be imported must be in one of three file formats for use with the Oligo utility: Comma delimited format (.csv format), Tab delimited format or Semicolon delimited format.

Tools Manager

Vector NTI is shipped with more than 20 tools providing connection to various Internet servers. You can create your own tools connecting Vector NTI to local or remote programs using the configuration mechanism described in this chapter. All of the Vector NTI tools are organized and managed using Tools Manager.

License Manager

Vector NTI supports three different types of licenses: static, dynamic and trial licenses. When unlicensed, Vector NTI operates in Demo Mode for the purpose of demonstrating the basic features of the software. The various license types were developed to meet users' needs. For example, users in different industrial, scientific and educational environments require different sharing and allotment privileges. These privileges are all administered through the License Manager.

Vector NTI System Information

Vector NTI System Information is a utility application, which gathers data about the system on which Vector NTI is installed and consolidates that information into one file. Invitrogen Customer Support can use the System Information file to assist them in the diagnosis and resolution of system-related Vector NTI problems.

APIs

In Vector NTI, you can automate common tasks such as batch BLAST, batch annotation, batch primer design, etc. through Application Programming Interfaces. For more information, refer to the Invitrogen website, <u>www.invitrogen.com/bioinformatics</u> and the API User's Manual.

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

C H A P T E R

THE VECTOR NTI USER INTERFACE

Introduction

This chapter introduces you to the Vector NTI user interface and, in specific cases, to the Molecule Display Window, a powerful graphical tool for displaying and editing molecules. Included in this chapter are global operations used routinely in many of the Vector NTI Advance applications.

Vector NTI Advance 10 runs on a number of Windows platforms. All window manipulation techniques standard for given platforms can be used with the programs, such as moving and sizing windows, menus, toolbars, selecting objects and so forth.

This chapter assumes that you are familiar with Molecule Display windows and with basic display window techniques, such as maximizing windows, changing the sizes of text and gel panes, switching between panes, etc.

Launching Vector NTI

To launch Vector NTI, go to the **Start menu** on your computer. Select **Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > Vector NTI**. By default, the Vector NTI workspace is launched independently; however, the software allows you to configure the local Database Explorer to open simultaneously with the display window. From a Molecule Display window, select **Edit > Options** from the menu bar. On the General tab of the Options dialog box, select **Open Local Explorer At Startup**.

Online Help

The Online Help has been written to help you master the software.

In Vector NTI Advance applications, there are ways to open Online Help:

 Click the Help button (); then click on any toolbar button, opening the associated help topic.

- Click the **Help** button, then click on any command from the menu bar, opening the associated help topic.
- Press F1 from an open dialog box, opening its associated help topic.
- Select **Help > Help Topics** or **Using Index** from the menu bar of the application. In the Online Help that opens, you can browse through the Table of Contents or the Index, or launch a word search of the Online Help application.

If pressing F1 fails to open an Online Help topic, select **Help > Help Topics**, opening Online Help. Proceed with a Browse through the Table of Contents or Index or do a word search. Your topic may be in the Help files, but inadvertently not linked to its associated dialog box. Topics may be titled by their function rather than the dialog box name. For example, the New Molecule dialog box associated topic is named "Creating a New Molecule."

The Application Workspace

A typical Vector NTI display window can include:

- Text information, including object descriptions, features, recombinant strategies and analysis results
- Graphical features of a molecule, a gel, or a contig assembly
- Analytical features of a molecule
- A pairwise or multiple alignment
- Appropriate sequences

From database or display windows:

- Local databases can be searched
- Public domain database searches can be launched through the Internet
- Text descriptions, graphical maps and sequences are edited
- Graphical representations may be formatted
- DNA/RNA and protein molecules and search results are stored in a database
- Preparation of publication-quality figures is supported.

Viewer Display Window Description

The display window title bar shows the name of the molecule on display or the name of the folder being displayed.

Every display window has a menu bar. Options in the submenus vary according to the specific application being used.

Shortcut menus associated with folders, molecules or objects from which they are opened provide many options for operations with those items. A shortcut menu is opened with a right click with the cursor paused over the related item.

All display windows contain two or more toolbars and variants relative to the active display pane.

- The Main Toolbar contains tools for major program functions, such as opening, saving, and printing Display windows, undoing and re-doing actions, and launching major subsections of the program such as the Database Explorer, etc.
- The Window Toolbar has several different variants according to the activated pane of the topmost display window.

Many menu and toolbar options are consistent throughout the Vector NTI software. Toolbar commands are often duplicated on the menu bar and shortcut menus, offering several means of accomplishing the same objective.

Note: Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function. Hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button.

When you launch Vector NTI, the empty workspace is displayed. Upon opening a molecule in the Molecule display window, the following features can be viewed (see Figure 3.1)

Viewer Panes

Most display windows in Vector NTI Advance are divided into four sections, or panes:

- A Text Pane holds folders containing text descriptions and analyses results for a molecule shown in the Display window.
- A Graphics Pane displays a graphical depiction of a molecule. Features, restriction sites, motifs, etc. are shown by labeled symbols.
- An Analysis Pane allows certain types of DNA and protein sequence analysis properties to be performed and the results to be viewed as linear graphics.
- A Sequence Pane shows a nucleotide or amino acid sequence, and functional features of a molecule.



Variations of this will be explained in appropriate chapters.

Figure 3.1 Molecule display window

Viewer Window Operations

The following global operations for viewer windows apply in general to Vector NTI Advance applications. For details about operations specific to each application, refer to the appropriate chapters.

Activating a Pane

Click anywhere in a pane to activate it or click on the pane buttons appearing at the left of the lower toolbar.

Note: Clicking in a pane sometimes selects an entire molecule. To avoid this, use the toolbar buttons to activate the pane.

Re-sizing Display Panes

Split bars separate the Text, Graphics, and Sequence Panes. Re-size the panes by dragging the split bar that divides the panes. Position the cursor on the split bar until it changes to a two-headed arrow. LEFT-CLICK and drag to reposition the split bar.

Scrolling the Text Pane

Scroll bars appear when the contents of a pane exceed the viewing area. Move the scroll bars vertically or horizontally to reposition the pane contents for easier viewing. If the active pane is a Text Pane, it can also be scrolled with the arrow keys on the keyboard.

Layout Options

Select **View > Maximize Pane** to expand the size of an activated pane to full screen size. Select **View > Restore Layout** to return to the original pane layout.

Select **View > Change Panes Layout** to open the Pane Manager editor for modifying the arrangement of the panes in the workspace. For more details, see *Pane Manager* on page 22.

Viewer Display Panes

Text Pane

Text Pane folders contain descriptions of molecules and other objects, their characteristics and features, search results, methods and protocols.

Opening and Closing Folders

To open or close a folder, click the small square located to the left of the folder, double-click on the folder or line, select **View > Toggle Folder**, or select the folder and press ENTER.

Opening or closing a folder does not affect its state.

Expanding and Collapsing Folders

Opening of a folder simultaneously with some or all of its subfolders is called expanding that folder. Closing a folder simultaneously with some or all of its subfolders is called collapsing that folder. A folder and its subfolders are called a branch.

The View menu (and the shortcut menu) has commands for expanding and collapsing folders and subfolders in various combinations:

Command	Result
Expand One Level	Opens the focused folder; makes sure all subfolders are closed
Expand Branch	Opens the focused folder and all of its subfolders
Expand All	Opens every folder and subfolder in the text pane
Collapse Branch	Closes the focused folder and all of its subfolders
Collapse All	Closes every folder and subfolder in the text pane
Collapse Around	Closes all folders and subfolders, except any highlighted folders and their parents

Table 3.1 View menu commands for expanding and collapsing folders and subfolders

Corresponding toolbar buttons: Expand Folder (🐸), Expand Branch (🐸) and Collapse

Branch ())

Linking the Display window panes

Linking the panes of a display window gives the Text Pane control over the information displayed in the Graphics and Sequence Panes. When linked, information from any open folder in the Text Pane is displayed in the Graphics and Sequence Panes, while information in closed folders is not displayed. *Certain minimum information is always displayed, however; a molecule name and length in a Graphics Pane and the nucleotide or amino acid sequence in a Sequence Pane.*

To link panes, activate the Text Pane and click the **Link Panes** button (^(SP)) on the Window toolbar.

Linking panes reduces clutter, displaying only those objects that are important to your current task and lets you display symbols hidden by Vector NTI's Standard Arrangement of graphics objects. The Standard Arrangement of DNA/RNA molecules' graphics displays a maximum of 70 restriction sites plus 70 motifs, displayed to show as many different enzymes and motifs as possible.

You can override this display by linking the panes and opening the text folders for the only signals whose every occurrence you want to display.

Use the linked panes to create attractive publication-quality figures without switching to the Picture Editing mode and editing the picture manually. With the panes linked, close all folders, then open the folders of the signals you want to display, and then click the **Standard Arrangement**

button (K). Symbols and labels will be redistributed to take maximum advantage of available space.

Finding Objects on Graphics and Sequence Panes

Some objects, described in the Text Pane, are also displayed in the Graphics and Sequence Panes. To find the position of the object, select its line in the Text Pane and click the **Find** button

(**M**) in the window toolbar, select **Edit > Find** or press CTRL+ F. The object will be selected on the Sequence and Graphics Panes. The Find command is disabled if the selected line does not describe the object, displayed in two other panes.

Note: Vector NTI finds only single objects like a restriction site, not multiple objects like all restriction sites for a certain REN.

Graphics Pane

Zooming the Graphical Map In and Out

To enlarge a graphical map, activate the Graphics Pane and click the **Zoom In** button (()) on the Window Toolbar or choose **View > Zoom In**. The keyboard shortcuts are] and SHIFT +]. To zoom in by a small increments, SHIFT + CLICK the **Zoom In** button.

To zoom out from a graphical map (reduce it by 50%), click the **Zoom Out** button (()) on the Window toolbar or choose **View > Zoom Out**. The keyboard shortcuts are [and SHIFT + [.To zoom out by a small increments, hold down the SHIFT key and click the **Zoom Out** button.

If the current display is linear, change the horizontal zoom factor only using CTRL + CLICK on the **Zoom In** or **Zoom Out** button. Changing only the horizontal zoom factor changes the internal aspect ratio of the graphical display; this ratio is saved when you save Display Setup and can be applied to other Display windows as well.

To fit a graphical map to the current size of the Graphics Pane, click the Fit to Window button

(() on the Window toolbar or choose the equivalent command in the View menu.

To zoom into a selection on the graphics map, making the selection the current size of the

Graphics Pane, click the **Fit Selection to Window** button (^(C)) on the toolbar or choose the equivalent command in the View menu. In some display windows, you can select **View > View**

Selection or click the View Molecule Fragment button (). To return to the original view, select View > View Whole Molecule.

One button is specific to the Gel Display window. Click the **True-Scale View** button (<u>)</u>) to display the gel in an approximation of true scale. When you select this display option, Vector NTI looks up the pixel size (dot pitch) of your monitor and displays the gel based on that value.

Sequence Pane

Formatting Sequence Text

To format sequence text, select it by click + dragging the mouse across the text. Because the Sequence Pane is active, you can use any of the following buttons or keystrokes to format the text.

Button	Keystroke	Description
B	CTRL + B	Set or clear bold character(s) attribute
I	CTRL + I	Set or clear italic character(s) attribute
<u>u</u>	CTRL + U	Set or clear underline character(s) attribute
Font style drop-down menu		Select font name for character(s)
Font size drop-down menu		Select font size for character(s)
<u>A</u> -		Select font color for character(s)
۵.		Select background color for character(s)

Table 3.2 Formatting sequence text

Miscellaneous Interface Features

Selection Techniques

General Selection Techniques

To select text in a Molecule Viewer display window's Text Pane, click on the line you wish to select. To select multiple lines in a Sequence or Text Pane, press the mouse button and drag across the lines you wish to select.

To make a selection in a display window's Graphics Pane, choose View > Edit Picture with an

active Graphics Pane or click the **Edit Picture** button () to enter the Picture Editing mode and click on any object or label to select it. To select more than one object, click on each object in turn while holding down the SHIFT key. To select text in a Sequence Pane, click and drag the mouse across the text.

You can select an entire pane by making that pane the active pane and choosing **Edit > Select All**.

Broadcasting a Selection

The Broadcast Selection feature of Vector NTI Advance allows you to select a region in the sequence pane of an opened molecule in one Vector Advance application and then transfer that selection to the same molecule that is currently open in other Vector NTI Advance applications.

The Broadcast Selection feature can be accessed from the shortcut menu visualized by right clicking on a selection in the sequence pane of any of the Vector NTI Advance applications (Figure 3.2):



Figure 3.2 Broadcast Selection feature

Choose the Broadcast Selection entry from the shortcut menu to mark that sequence area in the same molecule currently open in any other Vector NTI Advance application.

Copying Display Window Text, Graphics or Sequences Image To The Clipboard

Copying in Vector NTI can be done via several different methods:

Edit > Camera or Camera Button

The Camera feature copies the graphical representation, or "takes a picture" of the selection or activated pane contents. The contents are copied to the clipboard from where they are pasted into a new page or slide in other running applications.

Activate a pane or make a selection, then click the **Camera** button () or choose **Edit > Camera**. In the dialog box that opens, choose the range and destination for the copied pane.

- Range Specify the range of data to be copied. The selection option is unavailable if a selection is not defined in the active pane.
- Copy To Specify the destination of the copy operation. If the File option is selected, the Copy To dialog box opens where the name of the output file and file type can be specified.
- **Note:** If nothing is selected, the entire pane is copied. The format of this dialog box may vary slightly in different applications/panes.

Copying Sequence or Alignment Pane Data

In copying the contents of a Sequence or Alignment Pane to the clipboard, the Camera dialog box offers two formats for the copy:

- **Metafile picture** only the snapshot of the Sequence or Alignment Pane will be copied to the Clipboard
- **Text** you can further specify to print either the entire alignment or only the selected part of it (if there is selection at the moment). Sequences may or may not be wrapped. It can then be pasted into any text processor.
- **Note:** A double-stranded sequence copied from Vector NTI becomes single-stranded when it is pasted.)

The Clipboard stores Vector NTI text, sequence, alignment and graphical representations in both RTF (Rich Text Format preferred by word processors) and in plain text format (for e-mail and other applications preferring plain text).

Note: The RTF representation might not have exactly the same look as the sequence in the Sequence Pane due to limitations of RTF.

Vector NTI graphics copied with the Camera to a file can be stored as either a Windows Metafile (.wmf) or a Joint Photographic Experts Group (.jpg) file.

Edit > Copy or Copy Button

This copy feature transfers actual sequence and annotations, the molecule file, rather than just the graphical representation. Molecules copied this way can be shared and used in other Vector NTI Advance applications.

Text Pane data is copied as plain multilane text. Sequence data is copied as a plain text string. All sequence formats recognized by Vector NTI can be pasted from the Clipboard. Graphics Pane data is copied as a Windows Metafile.

Make the selection, then click the **Copy** button (**Line**) or select **Edit > Copy Sequence**. The data is copied to the Clipboard or to a file in text format. Preserves formatting and enables easy data exchange with other applications.

Copying Raw Sequence

To copy real sequence data to the Clipboard, select a sequence region and choose **Edit > Copy Sequence**. The sequence is copied in the plain text format without formatting or line numbering. This "raw" format is suitable for pasting into other molecular biology software including programs in Vector NTI Advance. The shortcut for the copy operation is CTRL + C.

Edit > Copy To Command

This copy command saves a whole molecule or selection of a molecule to the Clipboard or to a file in various formats, including saving a DNA/RNA sequence to a protein translation. If the whole sequence is chosen, you have a choice of saving to GenBank, EMBL, FASTA, plain sequence or amino acid translation (for DNA molecules). For a selection, the file format choices are FASTA, plain sequence or amino acid translation (for DNA selections).

Open a molecule, make a selection, if desired, and choose **Edit > Copy To > File** or **Edit > Copy To > Clipboard** from the pull down menu. Choose the desired format type and storage location on the hard drive, in the case of saving to a file. Choose Whole Molecule or Selection and Direct or Complementary strand (for DNA selections).

The **Edit > Copy To** command is implemented in Vector NTI and the Vector NTI Database Explorer.

Note: In the Vector NTI Database Explorer, you can select multiple molecules and copy them to the Clipboard in multiple GenBank, EMBL or FASTA format using the **Copy To** command.

Printing from Display Windows

Display windows are printed one pane at a time. To print a pane, activate it, then click the Print

button ()) on the main toolbar or choose File > Print.

Note: Print copies are similar to the screen display, so adjust the picture on screen before printing.

Page Setup

Text and Sequence Panes are printed in a standard format. For the text and sequence, you can change the content of what is printed, but not the layout. If a Text Pane is activated, any open folder is printed.

Graphical maps can be printed out at any size and in various positions on the page.

To change the size and position of a graphical map's printout, select **File > Page Setup**. In the dialog box, set the margins (in inches) for your printout. Select **File > Print Setup** to specify the page orientation and size. Click **OK** to print.

Header and Footer Formatting Codes

The default settings for header and footer displays can be changed by selecting **File > Page Setup.** In the **Page Setup** dialog box, enter the appropriate formatting code in the header and footer sections. Click **OK**. (*Default header settings are &D&c and default footer settings are &sPage&p&l*.)

Formatting Code	Result
&f	Prints the file name
&D	Prints the document name (which is most cases is the molecule name)
&p	Prints the page number
&t	Prints the time representation
&d	Prints the day of the month (as a decimal number)
&s	Prints the date in full format
&r	Aligns the text to the right side of the page
&c	Aligns the text in the center of the page
&I	Aligns the text to the left side of the page
&u	Draws a line at the top of the page
&L	Draws a line at the bottom of the page
&b	Places a box around the text

Figure 3.3 Formatting Codes

Print Preview

To see a preview on your screen of what the printout will look like, choose **File > Print Preview** or click the **Print Preview** button (

If you want to print just a selection, use the camera option. Select the region, click the camera on the Main Toolbar, paste the copied selection to a new application (such as word processing

software) and print from there. (See previous section on Copying Display Window Text, Graphics or Sequences Image to the Clipboard.)

Exporting Molecule Data

Vector NTI Advance applications allow simple export of a molecule as GenBank (GenPept for proteins), EMBL (SWISS-PROT for proteins), FASTA, or as text sequence. To export a molecule to an external file, choose **File > Save As**. In the dialog box, select the **Save As File** tab and designate the format type to be exported. Molecules and sequence information can also be exported by selecting **File > Operations > Molecule Export**. Select the **Save As File** tab and choose the file type you want to save and click **OK** in the standard File save dialog box.

Pane Manager

In most components of Vector NTI Advance, you can modify the layout of the display panes. To open the Panes Layout Editor, sometimes called Pane Manager, where you can modify display pane layout, select **View > Change Panes Layout**.

The main elements of the Pane Manager editor dialog box (Figure 3.4) are the hierarchy layout tree, the preview panel, and the drop-down menu (with a list of predefined layouts).

PaneManager editor		? ×
Vertical Horizontal Text pane Graphics pane Sequence pane	Text pane	Graphics pane
	Sequer	ice pane
	Predefined Layouts Standard	
	OK	Cancel

Figure 3.4 Pane Manager editor dialog box

The hierarchy layout tree represents the current layout (always the last settings used), while the node (Vertical, Horizontal, or Tabular) describes the relationship among the panes.

Options for modifying the pane layout appear on the shortcut menu, opened from the Vertical, Horizontal and Tabular nodes or from the Text, Graph or Sequence Pane leaves. Shortcut menu options are as follows:

- **Change Layout** For Vertical, Horizontal, or Tabular nodes, this operation changes the relationship between underlying leaves (designated with green icons).
- **Dismiss** This operation does not affect the root node. It removes the selected node, and shifts all of the underlying leaves to control of the root node. For example, if you dismissed **Horizontal** in the above graphic, the Text, Graph, and Sequence Panes would all be displayed vertically.
- New sublayout This adds a new node in the designated area.
- Up This will move the node or leaf up in the tree.
- Down This will move the node or leaf down in the tree.

You can also change the parent node for any node or leaf. All you have to do is drag the node or leaf and drop it to new parent node.

The Predefined Layouts drop-down menu contains a list of predefined pane layouts.

The preview panel of the editor shows the layout for the current state of the hierarchy tree and is redrawn immediately when you change the layout. This panel is immediately redrawn after the state of the hierarchy tree is changed. The Info Pane is generally known as the Text Pane in most Vector NTI applications.

Click **OK** button after editing the layouts to apply your changes to the real panes or click **Cancel** to discard your changes.

Notes:

- You cannot add or delete a pane leaf. You can only move these leaves and configure their output.
- The Tabular selection places tabs at the bottom of each pane in the window.
- The Predefined option Standard returns the layout to the original.

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

C H A P T E R

4

TUTORIAL: MOLECULE DISPLAY WINDOWS

Introduction

This tutorial chapter introduces you to the Vector NTI interface and Display windows, Vector NTI Advance's primary means for displaying and manipulating DNA/RNA and protein molecules, gels, and other search and analysis features.

At the end of this tutorial session, you will be able to:

- Create and become familiar with Molecule Display windows for DNA and proteins
- Navigate the Vector NTI interface
- Manipulate molecule graphics, sequences, and Text Panes
- Review molecule data
- Select and examine molecule fragments
- Link molecule features for selective display in all panes
- Display amino acid translations of the nucleotide sequence and open corresponding proteins

Follow the steps of the tutorial in the order shown. Figures show what your screen should look like at various points along the way.

1. Launch Vector NTI

To launch Vector NTI, select Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > Vector NTI.

The first time you enter Vector NTI after installation, the database is empty. Vector NTI asks permission to import an initial set of database objects from Vector NTI archives. Click the **OK** button in the confirmation dialog boxes for the creation of all objects.

The DNA molecules, proteins, enzymes, oligos, and gel markers are imported to form the initial Vector NTI database.

2. Inspect the Vector NTI Workspace and Database Explorer Windows

- vector stra (unorea)	
File Edit View Analyses Cloning Gel List Align Assemble Tools Window Help	
2	
Active Pares:	
To open a molecule, select one from the database. Access the database from the toolbar icon * or from the File menu.	
Ready	

Vector NTI first appears on the screen with an empty workspace.

Figure 4.1 Vector NTI Empty Workspace

To open a molecule, access the Database Explorer from the toolbar icon (\square) or the Molecule menu and select a DNA/RNA molecule or Protein from the database table. The Vector NTI database is a collection of molecules and laboratory data, organized for easy retrieval and management in Vector NTI's Database Explorer.

The Explorer window can be closed without exiting Vector NTI. You can activate or reopen the

Database Explorer window at any time using the **Local Database** button (**U**) on the main toolbar of the Vector NTI workspace.

You will work extensively with the Database Explorer tutorial, Chapter 7, but for now close the

Explorer by clicking on the **Close** button (**X**).

Note: By default, the Vector NTI workspace opens independently, however, it can be configured to open the local Database Explorer simultaneously each time a Vector NTI session is initiated. From a Molecule Display window, select Edit > Options from the menu bar. On the General tab of the Options dialog box, select Open Local Explorer At Startup.

3. Create and Inspect a Molecule Display Window for pBR322

A Molecule Display window displays text information including a description of a molecule, features and a graphical map of the molecule and its sequence. Before proceeding any further however, let's open a molecule so that you can review the features as they are discussed.

On the Molecule Displa	ay main (upper) toolbar, click	the Open Docume	ent button (🜌)	. In the
Open dialog box, select	t the Database DNA/RNAs ta	b. The DNA/RNA	Molecules (MAI	N) data-

 \sim

base is selected in the drop-down menu. On the molecule list, scroll to pBR322 and double click on it, opening its Molecule Display window.



Figure 4.2 Molecule Display window for pBR322

A Molecule Display window title bar displays the name of the open object.

The Molecule Display window is divided into three panes: a Text Pane (upper left) containing folders with descriptions of a molecule and analysis results, a Graphics Pane (upper right) displaying a graphical depiction of the molecule map including labeled features and restriction sites, and a Sequence Pane (lower) displaying the molecule's nucleotide or amino acid sequence.

All Vector NTI Advance windows have a Main Menu and toolbars where many different options and operations can be initiated. While many toolbar buttons are consistent in all display windows, many toolbar buttons are context-sensitive. Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function. Hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button.

4. Arrange the Display Window Conveniently

To modify the relative sizes of the display panes, you can move the vertical and horizontal split bars. Move the cursor arrow to the split bar where it changes to a two-ended arrow. CLICK + DRAG with the left mouse button to move the split bar. Additionally, each pane has its own scroll bars when the pane content exceeds its display area.

To activate the different panes of the display window, click the **Text Pane** (), **Graphics Pane**

() or Sequence Pane () buttons on the Window Toolbar. (You can also activate each

pane by clicking it.) Note how the Windows Toolbar changes, giving you different tools for each pane.

Switch to the Graphics Pane. Move the horizontal and vertical split bars to enlarge the Graphics Pane viewing area.

Click on each of the following buttons to resize the graphical map:

- The **Zoom In** button (enlarges the image
- The **Zoom Out** button () reduces the image
- The **Fit to Window** button () fits the image to the size of the window.

Now reduce or increase the map size in increments by holding down the SHIFT key and clicking the **Zoom** buttons. Using the scroll button on your mouse while holding down the SHIFT key has the same effect as clicking the **Zoom** buttons.

5. Select a Fragment or a Feature in the Graphics Pane

Now let's study Vector NTI's selection techniques.

Make sure the Graphics Pane is active. Choose **Edit > Set Selection** on the menu bar, opening the Set Selection dialog box. Enter the range 100 bp - 1000 bp and click **OK**.

A selection wire-frame highlights the fragment on the molecule map (Figure 4.3), with a caret (short darkened line perpendicular to the wire-frame) marking one end of the wire-frame.

The selection position is displayed in the status bar at the bottom of your screen. The caret position is also indicated on the status bar. The selection is simultaneously highlighted in the Sequence Pane.



Figure 4.3 A selection wire-frame highlights the fragment on the molecule map

Modifying the Selection

Click on the status bar with the mouse, opening the Set Selection dialog box again. Change the setting to 200 bp - 2000 bp.

You can reposition the 5'or 3' ends with the mouse by "dragging and dropping". Move the cursor

to the 5' end, identified when the cursor changes shape to a crosshair with the 5' mark ($\stackrel{\leftarrow}{\uparrow_{5'}}$). Click and drag the 5' caret to a new position near the start of the molecule ("12:00 o'clock").

Hold the SHIFT key down and press the right or left keyboard arrows. *This moves the cursor 1 nucleotide (NT) at a time. Follow this in the Status Bar.* Move the 5' end to "1 bp".

Press the END key to move the caret to the 3' end (or click the cursor on the 3' end). Press and hold the SHIFT key while moving the left or right arrows to modify the selection. Move the 3' end to 1250 bp.

Hold down the SHIFT + CTRL keys and press the right or left arrow several times. *Note that the caret now moves 10 NT at a time*. Release the CTRL key, hold down SHIFT and press the left arrow. *The caret is moving 1 NT at a time again. If you hold down the arrow keys while holding the SHIFT key, the caret moves rapidly through the sequence.* Release the SHIFT key and press HOME. *The caret returns to the 5' end.*

To make a new selection, click anywhere in the blank area inside the molecule map, selecting the entire map. Click on the caret and drag the wire-frame clockwise. Release the mouse.

Tip: If you wish to deselect everything and are having problems doing so in the Graphics Pane, click anywhere in the Sequence Pane.

Selecting Features

Locate the tetracycline resistance gene, TC(R), on the graphics map. Pause the cursor over the functional segment or label for a moment. A pop-up message with details about the functional signals appears under the cursor.

To simplify selection of a functional signal on a graphical map, the paused cursor changes to a hand ($\frac{1}{2}$). Click once over the TC(R), selecting the gene. A wire-frame selecting the gene appears and the selected signal changes color. The gene sequence is concurrently selected in

Selection Techniques Summary for the Graphics Pane

the Sequence Pane.

When making or altering fragment selections, there are several general points to remember:

- Click and drag the mouse to select a region.
- Click on a feature to select it.
- Press SHIFT + right or left arrow to adjust an existing selection one nucleotide at a time.
- Press CTRL + SHIFT + right or left arrows to move the caret 10 nucleotides at a time.
- **Note:** A selected fragment is simultaneously highlighted on the Sequence Pane. Vector NTI always displays selection in both panes no matter where you make the selection.

6. Examine pBR322's Nucleotide Sequence

Now let's work with pBR322's nucleotide sequence.

Drag the horizontal split bar up for better viewing of the nucleotide sequence. The nucleotides are displayed in 10 NT blocks. Restriction sites appear by name above their recognition sites. Motifs and ORFs also can be displayed by turning those options on the Molecule Display Setup, to be discussed later in this chapter.

Click anywhere in the Sequence Pane to activate it. Any prior selection disappears and the blinking caret is placed at the position where you placed the cursor.

When the DNA/RNA Display Window opens, the displayed sequence is double stranded. Click

on the **Show Both Strands** (Double/Single Strand) button (^{HIG}) to change to a single-stranded sequence display (Figure 4.4).

	EcoRI		Clal	HindIII							_
1	TTCTCATGTT	TGACAGCTTA	TCATCGATAA	GCTTTAATGC	GGTAGTTTAT	CACAGTTAAA	TTGCTAACGC	AGTCAGGCAC	CGTGTATGAA	ATCTAACAAT	
101	GCGCTCATCG	TCATCCTCGG	CACCGTCACC	CTGGATGCTG	TAGGCATAGG	CTTGGTTATG	CCGGTACTGC	CGGGCCTCTT	GCGGGGATATC	GTCCATTCCG	
201	ACAGCATCGC	CAGTCACTAT	GGCGTGCTGC	TAGCGCTATA	TGCGTTGATG	CAATTTCTAT	GCGCACCCGT	TCTCGGAGCA	CTGTCCGACC	GCTTTGGCCG	
301	CCGCCCAGTC	CTGCTCGCTT	CGCTACTTGG	AGCCACTATC	GACTACGCGA	TCATGGCGAC	CACACCCGTC	BamHI	TCTACGCCGG	ACGCATCGTG	
401	GCCGGCATCA	CCGGCGCCAC	AGGTGCGGTT	GCTGGCGCCT	ATATCGCCGA	CATCACCGAT	GGGGAAGATC	GGGCTCGCCA	CTTCGGGCTC	ATGAGCGCTT	
501	GTTTCGGCGT	GGGTATGGTG	GCAGGCCCCG	TGGCCGGGGG	ACTGTTGGGC	GCCATCTCCT	TGCATGCACC	ATTCCTTGCG	GCGGCGGTGC	TCAACGGCCT	
601	CAACCTACTA	CTGGGCTGCT	TCCTAATGCA	GGAGTCGCAT	AAGGGAGAGC	GTCGACCGAT	GCCCTTGAGA	GCCTTCAACC	CAGTCAGCTC	CTTCCGGTGG	
701	GCGCGGGGCA	TGACTATCGT	CGCCGCACTT	ATGACTGTCT	TCTTTATCAT	GCAACTCGTA	GGACAGGTGC	CGGCAGCGCT	CTGGGTCATT	TTCGGCGAGG	
801	ACCGCTTTCG	CTGGAGCGCG	ACGATGATCG	GCCTGTCGCT	TGCGGTATTC	GGAATCTTGC	ACGCCCTCGC	TCAAGCCTTC	GTCACTGGTC	CCGCCACCAA	
901	ACGTTTCGGC	GAGAAGCAGG	CCATTATCGC	CGGCATGGCG	GCCGACGCGC	TGGGCTACGT	CTTGCTGGCG	TTCGCGACGC	GAGGCTGGAT	GGCCTTCCCC	
1001	ATTATGATTC	TTCTCGCTTC	CGGCGGCATC	GGGATGCCCG	CGTTGCAGGC	CATGCTGTCC	AGGCAGGTAG	ATGACGACCA	TCAGGGACAG	CTTCAAGGAT	
1101	CGCTCGCGGC	tcttaccaggc	CTAACTTCGA	TCACTGGACC	GCTGATCGTC	ACGGCGATTT	ATGCCGCCTC	GGCGAGCACA	TGGAACGGGT	TGGCATGGAT	
1201	TGTAGGCGCC	GCCCTATACC	TTGTCTGCCT	CCCCGCGTTG	CGTCGCGGTG	CATGGAGCCG	GGCCACCTCG	ACCTGAATGG	AAGCCGGCGG	CACCTCGCTA	
1301	ACGGATTCAC	CACTCCAAGA	ATTGGAGCCA	ATCAATTCTT	GCGGAGAACT	GTGAATGCGC	AAACCAACCC	TTGGCAGAAC	ATATCCATCG	CGTCCGCCAT	
1401	CTCCAGCAGC	CGCACGCGGC	Aval GCATCTCGGG	~cagcgttggg	TCCTGGCCAC	GGGTGCGCAT	GATCGTGCTC	CTGTCGTTGA	GGACCCGGCT	AGGCTGGCGG	- -

Figure 4.4 Single-stranded sequence display

Scroll to the top of the sequence, using the scroll bar to the right of the sequence.

Select the first few lines of the sequence by clicking and dragging the mouse left to right along the line and down through the sequence. The nucleotides are highlighted as you drag and their coordinates are displayed in the selection box on the status bar. The selection also shows within a wire-frame in the Graphics Pane. Release the mouse.

To translate the selected sequence into amino acids, click the Translate Direct (m) and

Translate Complementary () buttons. The corresponding amino acids appear above (direct strand) and below (complementary strand) the highlighted sequence (Figure 4.5).

Numerals to the left of the sequence row indicate the phase of the translations. For the Direct strand translation, phases are determined by the position of the first selected nucleotide relative to the beginning of the molecule and are designated +1, +2, or +3. Complementary strand translation phases are determined by the position of the last selected nucleotide relative to the end of the molecule and are designated -1, -2, or -3.

		Hindii	
		EooBl Cla	
	1	TTCTCATGTT TGACAGCTTA TCATCGATAA GCTTTAATGC GGTAGTTTAT CACAGTTAAA TTGCTAACGC AGTCAGGCAC CGTGTATGAA ATCTAACAAT	
		AAGAGTACAA ACTGTCGAAT AGTAGCTATT CGAAATTACG CCATCAAATA GTGTCAATTT AACGATTGCG TCAGTCCGTG GCACATACTT TAGATTGTTA	
	101	GCGCTCATCG TCATCCTCGG CACCGTCACC CTGGATGCTG TAGGCATAGG CTTGGTTATG CCGGTACTGC CGGGCCTCTT GCGGGATATC GTCCATTCCG	_
		ceceretre agtregree concertre de la contracer atcortator graccarte gecertere de coccertre crectatre crestraĝec	
	201	ACAGCATCGC CAGTCACTAT GGCGTGCTGC TAGCGCTATA TGCGTTGATG CAATTTCTAT GCGCACCCGT TCTCGGAGCA CTGTCCGACC GCTTTGGCCG	1
		TGTCGTAGCG GTCAGTGATA CCGCACGACG ATCGCGATAT ACGCAACTAC GTTAAAGATA CGCGTGGGCA AGAGCCTCGT GACAGGCTGG CGAAACCGGC	
		BamHi	1
	+1	Pro Ser Pro Ala Arg Phe Ala Thr Trp Ser His Tyr Arg Leu Arg Asp His Gly Asp His Thr Arg Pro Val Asp Pro Leu Arg Arg Thr His Arg Gly	
	301	CCCCCAGTC CTGCTCGCTT CGCTACTTGG AGCCACTATC GACTACGCGA TCATGGCGAC CACACCCGTC CTGTGGATCC TCTACGCCGG ACGCATCGTG	
		GGC GGGTCAG GACGAGCGAA GCGATGAACC TCGGTGATAG CTGATGCGCT AGTACCGCTG GTGTGGGCAG GACACCTAGG AGATGCGGCC TGCGTAGCAC	
	-1	Leu Gily Ala Arg Lys Ala Val Gin Leu Trp *** Arg Ser Arg Ser *** Pro Ser Trp Val Arg Gily Thr Ser Gily Arg Arg Arg Val Cys Arg Pro-	
	+1	Gliy Arg His His Arg Arg His Arg Cys Gliy Cys Trp Arg Leu Tyr Arg Arg His His Arg Trp	
	401	GCCGGCATCA CCGGCGCCAC AGGTGCGGTT GCTGGCGCCT ATATCGCCGA CATCACCGAT GGGG <mark>AAGATC GGGCTCGCCA CTTCGGGCTC ATGAGCGCTT</mark>	
		CGGCCGTAGT GGCCGCGGTG TCCACGCCAA CGACCGCGGA TATAGCGGCT GTAGTGGCTA CCCCTTCTAG CCCGAGCGGT GAAGCCCGAG TACTCGCGAA	
	- 4 -	Pro Arg Cys 🐃 Arg Arg Trp Leu His Pro Giln Giln Arg Arg Tyr Arg Arg Cys 🐃 Arg His Pro	_
	501	GTTTCGGCGT GGGTATGGTG GCAGGCCCCG TGGCCGGGGG ACTGTTGGGC GCCATCTCCT TGCATGCACC ATTCCTTGCG GCGGCGGTGC TCAACGGCCT	
		CAAAGCCGCA CCCATACCAC CGTCCGGGGC ACCGGCCCCC TGACAACCCG CGGTAGAGGA ACGTACGTGG TAAGGAACGC CGCCGCCACG AGTTGCCGGA	
	601	CAACCTACTA CTGGGCTGCT TCCTAATGCA GGAGTCGCAT AAGGGAGAGC GTCGACCGAT GCCCTTGAGA GCCTTCAACC CAGTCAGCTC CTTCCGGTGG	
		GTTGGATGAT GACCCGACGA AGGATTACGT CCTCAGCGTA TTCCCTCTCG CAGCTGGCTA CGGGAACTCT CGGAAGTTGG GTCAGTCGAG GAAGGCCACC	-
Ready		304 bp - 464 bp (161 bp) 465 bp (3')	2

Figure 4.5 Selected double sequence strands translated into amino acids

To change from the 3-letter amino acid code to a 1-letter code, choose the Display Setup but-

Molecule Display Setup		-	<u>? ×</u>
Setup Profile		•	OK
Save Settings As	Remove Saved Setting	38	Cancel
FMap Setup	Motifs Motifs Setup	Seq	uence equence Setup
Restriction Map	ORFs		Autoload Analyses nalyses Setup
Picture Type	Graphics Display		Save To File Load From File

ton (💷) and select **Display Setup** on the drop-down menu.

Figure 4.6 Molecule Display Setup dialog box

In the Molecule Display Setup dialog box (Figure 4.6), choose the **Sequence Set-up** button and then the 1-letter code radio button in the Sequence Setup dialog box. Click **OK** in both dialog boxes. *Inspect your selection.* This dialog box is also used to modify or specify the display of other features such as restriction sites, motifs and ORFs.

Click on the **Erase Translations** button (\swarrow) on the toolbar to erase the translations.

7. Work with pBR322's Text Description

Click in the Text Pane or click the **Text Pane** button to activate the Text Pane. Drag the vertical split bar to the right to enlarge the Text Pane.

The Text Pane is made up of folders that can be opened or closed by double clicking or clicking

on the ($^+$) to the left of the folder name. Open and review the contents of each of the folders. Note particularly the following:

General Description Folder: This folder contains the molecule description. Close the folder by clicking on it.

Feature Map Folder: Select this folder and click the **Expand Branch** button (), opening all of the Feature map subfolders. Move through the subfolders until you come to the TC(R) in a subfolder of the CDS (Coding DNA Sequence) folder. *Note the coordinates shown*.

Select the TC(R) folder and click the **Find** button (). *This selects the gene in the Sequence and Graphics Panes.* Close the folders with a double click.

The Find button can also be used to locate ORFs, motifs and other objects. Select the appropriate folder in the Text Pane and press the **Find** button again. *The keyboard equivalent is CTRL* + *F*.

Restriction Map Folder: Click on this folder to open it. Click on the Expand Branch button

(🕮) in the Window Toolbar, opening all restriction map subfolders.

Each subfolder contains a restriction site, listed alphabetically. Restriction sites that are present at least once on pBR322 have active (colored) folders showing all of the site's positions on the

molecule and its recognition sequence. To the right of each enzyme's name, its recognition sequence and cleavage points are displayed. Inactive folders (grayed out) are for restriction endonucleases with no sites on the molecule.

The set of restriction enzymes listed in the Text Pane and searched for on all DNA molecules when you open them is defined in the Molecule Display Setup dialog box. To examine the list of

selected enzymes, click the **Display Setup** button (**E**) on the Window Toolbar and choose **Display Setup** on the drop-down menu. Click the **RMap Setup** button, opening the Restriction Map Setup dialog box (Figure 4.7).

Restriction Map Setup	?	×
Use Enzymes:		
	< Add OK	
BamHI	> Remove Cancel	
EcoRI	>> Remove All	
T Hindlll	Sort Sites in the Text Pane by	
I Pstl	Number of Recognition Sites	
	Ignore RENs having:	
Permitted Terminus Types	less than sites	
🔽 5' 🔽 3' 🔽 Blunt	more than sites	
Ignore RENs cutting outside region:	Ignore RENs cutting inside region:	

Figure 4.7 Restriction Map Setup dialog box

In this dialog box, you can add (or remove) any enzymes you wish to be searched for on all open DNA molecules. Do not change the default settings. Click **Cancel** in both dialog boxes to return to the Display window.

Locate the ApaLI folder in the Text Pane. The folder is open, showing a list of all ApaLI sites on

the pBR322 molecule. Click on the first site line to select it and click the **Find** button () on the Window Toolbar. *The ApaLI site is selected on the Graphics Map and in the Sequence Pane.* Move to those panes to verify this, then return to the Text Pane. Close the Restriction Map Folder with a double-click.

8. Link pBR322's Text Pane to the Graphics and Sequence Panes

In Vector NTI's Display Windows, you can link panes so that the Graphics and Sequence Panes display only those objects whose folders are open in the Text Pane.

Click the **Link Panes** button ()) on the Window Toolbar. *Most of the information disappears from the graphical map, leaving only the molecule name and length.* In the Text Pane, open the Feature map folder and only the subfolders for the TC(R) gene (in the CDS subfolder) and the Restriction Map folder with only the following enzyme folders open: *ApaLI, Aval, Bam*HI, *Eco*RI and *PstI.* Because only open folders are now linked with the Graphics Pane, only those features are illustrated in the Graphics Pane. (Make sure the folders are closed for any features you do not want displayed.) *Note that the sites and functional signals appear on the graphic map as you open them in the Text Pane. The sequence fragments are also highlighted at the same time.*

Activate the Graphics Pane and click the Standard Arrangement button on the Window Tool-



Figure 4.8 Standard arrangement of restriction site labels for optimum display

Turn off the text/graphics link by clicking the **Link Panes** button in the Window toolbar. Now the graphics and Sequence Panes are complete and unaffected by opening or closing text folders.

9. Print pBR322's Text Description, Graphical Map, and Sequence

To print the Text Pane contents, first make sure the Text Pane is active. Choose **View > Expand All** from the menu bar. This opens all folder and subfolders.

Click on the **Print Active Pane** button (). The contents of all open folders in pBR322's Text Pane are printed.

Print the graphics and Sequence Panes in the same manner, activating each pane first. *The pBR322's* sequence printout consists of five pages of a standard format.

10. Create a Display Window for 41BB_HUMAN

Click on the Local Database button (I) on the Main Toolbar to open Database Explorer.

In the Database Table drop-down menu in the upper left, click on the arrow and select the Protein Molecules table. Select the Protein Molecules (MAIN) subset in the All subsets window. Double-click on the 41BB_HUMAN molecule in the Database Protein Molecules list in the right pane. A Molecule Display window opens for 41BB_HUMAN (Figure 4.9) containing its text description, analysis results, graphical Feature map, and sequence:



Figure 4.9 Molecule Display window for 41BB_HUMAN

Double-click on the Analysis folder in the Text Pane, opening two tables showing the results of the automatic protein analysis.

Select both tables by opening a shortcut menu with a right click on the Analysis Folder. Choose the **Select Folder** command.

Click the **Camera** button (2) or choose **Edit > Camera** on the menu bar. In the Camera dialog box, choose the range **Selection** and destination of your data **Clipboard**.

Click the **Copy** button, switch to a word processor program and paste the result into a new or existing document. *The results are displayed in a standard tabular form as shown here, (in a truncated version):*

Analysis	Entire Protein
Length	255 aa
Molecular Weight	27897.66 m.w.
1 microgram =	35.845 pMoles
Molar Extinction coefficient	11250
1 A[280] corr. to	2.48 mg/ml
A[280] of 1 mg/ml	0.40 AU
Isoelectric Point	8.13
Charge at pH 7	3.72

Table 4.1 Results of an automatic protein analysis in a word processor program
Amino Acid(s)	Number Count	% by weight	% by frequency
Charged (RKHYCDE)	83	36.68	32.55
Acidic (DE)	25	10.85	9.80
Basic (KR)	29	14.43	11.37
Polar (NCQSTY)	90	34.08	35.29
Hydrophobic (AILFWV)	67	27.06	26.27
A Ala	11	3.02	4.31
C Cys	25	9.33	9.80
D Asp	11	4.51	4.31
E Glu	14	6.34	5.49
F Phe	16	8.14	6.27

Table 4.2 Results of an automatic protein analysis in a word processor program

11. Create a Display Window for 1B14_HUMAN

Return to the Database Explorer window, the Protein Molecules table and select the Protein Molecules (MAIN) subset.

Double-click the 1B14_HUMAN protein in the molecules list, opening it in the Molecule Display window. Arrange the panes conveniently.

Note that with a large Feature map, the Graphics Pane appears crowded. To make it more convenient to work with, use the "link mode" described above in Step 8 to display fewer features. Alternatively, Vector NTI allows you to limit the view by choosing a fragment of the molecule for closer inspection (Figure 4.10).

Select the region 231 aa -276 aa using the techniques described for DNA molecules.

Click on the View Molecule Fragment button () and choose View Selection (231 aa –276 aa) from the popup menu. All three views are rearranged to display only the selected fragment.



Figure 4.10 Viewing a molecule fragment

Double-click on the Analysis folder in the Text Pane. Note that the analysis tables now show values for the selected fragment as well as for the entire protein.

Most of the other techniques for manipulating Protein Molecule Display windows are exactly the same as for DNA/RNA Display windows.

12. Close the Display Windows and Exit Vector NTI

To complete your first session with Vector NTI, select **File > Close** on the menu bar, closing the display windows.

To exit Vector NTI, select **File > Exit**.

C H A P T E R

TUTORIAL: MOLECULE EDITING

Introduction

This chapter introduces you to operations of Molecule Display Windows that allow you to edit a molecule's Feature map and sequence. Although in this chapter you will work only with DNA molecules, all operations are applicable to protein molecules as well.

At the end of this tutorial session, you will be able to:

- Create a Molecule Display window for a molecule
- · Edit the general data, Feature map, and sequence for a DNA molecule
- Rename, describe and save a molecule in the database
- Alter starting coordinates for a DNA molecule

1. Launch Vector NTI

Launch Vector NTI by selecting Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > Vector NTI.

2. Open a Display Window for pBR322

Open a Molecule Display window for pBR322 by selecting File > Open from the Main menu or

click on the **Open Document** (^E) button. Select the **Database DNA/RNAs** tab in the Open dialog box and scroll down to select pBR322 by double-clicking on the molecule name.

Alternatively, access the Database Explorer by clicking the **Local Database** () button and choose the DNA/RNA molecules table from the pull-down menu. Select the DNA/RNA Molecules (MAIN) subset and double-click on the pBR322 molecule.

A display window opens in the workspace, containing pBR322's text description, graphical features, and restriction maps, and sequence.

3. Edit pBR322's General Data

At the top of the Text Pane, double-click the pBR322 name. This opens the Edit pBR322 dialog box (Figure 5.1):

Edit pBR322		×
General DN	A/RNA Molecule User Fields Comments Keywords	
Circu	lar 🕫 DNA	
O Linea	ar C BNA	
Extra-Chro	mosome Replication	
🔽 Bact	eria 🦳 Yeast 🔲 Animal/Other Eukaryotic	
⊢ Replicon [°]	Гуре	
✓ Plass	nid 🔲 Phagemid	
Cosn	id 🔲 Virus	
🗖 Phag	e 🗖 Chromosome	
Description:		
ATCC 3701	7, ATCC 31344: Cloning vector plasmid pBR322, complete	genome.
1		-
	OK Cancel Apply	Help

Figure 5.1 Edit pBR322 dialog box (DNA/RNA Molecule tab shown)

First, let's add a keyword to the list of pBR322's keywords. Choose the Keywords tab and type in *My own plasmid* in the New Keyword text entry box. Click the **< Add** button. Now the keyword list contains two keywords: "ATCC" and "My own plasmid". Switch to the DNA/RNA Molecule tab, and change the Description of the molecule to "My pBR322." Click the **OK** button.

Vector NTI updates the General Description folder in the Text Pane to show the new properties. An asterisk now appears on the title bar, indicating that the molecule in a window is a modified version of the pBR322 molecule stored in the Vector NTI database.

To save the modified pBR322 into the database under a new name, select **File > Save As** from the menu bar and enter *My* **pBR322** to the DNA/RNA text box. Click **OK**.

The modified molecule is stored under the new name and updated in the display window. The title bar and both the text and Graphics Pane show the new name "My pBR322". The title bar is no longer marked as modified (asterisk) because the displayed molecule is exactly the same as the database molecule "My pBR322".

Open a Display window for pBR322 to make sure that the original molecule was not modified.

To do so, click the **Open Document** button (^{EE}) on the Main Toolbar and select pBR322 from the Database DNAs/RNAs tab. To continue, close all extra Display windows except "My pBR322".

4. Edit My pBR322's Sequence

Activate the Sequence Pane and select the fragment 21 bp–40 bp (Figure 5.2) using either the drag and select method or the Set Selection dialog box described in the previous chapter. Note that the selected sequence contains *Cla*l and *Hin*dIII sites.



Figure 5.2 Display window for pBR322 with selected fragment 21 bp-40 bp

Choose **Edit > New > Replace Sequence 21 bp–40 bp** from the menu bar. In the Replace Sequence dialog box (Figure 5.3), use arrow keys to move the caret to the position "before 26 bp" (the caret position is displayed at the bottom of the dialog box). Press the **Backspace** key twice to delete C and T to the left. Type *A* twice so that the resulting sequence is TCAAA-GATAAGCTTTAATGC. The status line on the bottom of the dialog box displays "inserted 2, deleted 2" message.

Re	place Sequ	ence 21 bp - 40 l	op			? ×
	Cut	Сору	Paste	Find	OK	Cancel
Г	21	тса <mark>аа</mark> батаа	GCTTTAATGC			A
L						
L						
L						
L						
L						
L						
L						
						<u> </u>
Lin	serted 2, del	eted 2		before 26 bp		

Figure 5.3 Replace Sequence dialog box

Click the **OK** button to finish editing the fragment. In the updated Display window (Figure 5.4), the Clal site on the modified fragment has disappeared.



Figure 5.4 Display window with updated sequence

5. Revert to Database Version of My pBR322

The "My pBR322" molecule in the display window is now flagged (with an asterisk) as modified because it differs from the version of "My pBR322" currently saved in the database.

To return to the database version, choose **File > Revert To Saved** from menu bar. Click **OK** in the confirmation dialog box.

The molecule in the display window returns to its database state and the window is no longer marked as modified (no asterisk). Notice that *Cla*l site returned to its place in the original sequence.

6. Insert a New Sequence Fragment

In general, editing a molecule sequence requires the adjustment of its Feature map. In this step, we will insert a new sequence fragment into our molecule and look at the resulting Feature map.

Before you start, notice that the current AP(R) position is 3293 bp-4156 bp; the TC(R) position is 86 bp-1276 bp. To see the positions of the features, pause the mouse cursor over the feature or its label on the graphics map. A popul label appears, displaying the name and position of the feature under the cursor.

Place the caret at 200 bp using the mouse, arrow keys, or **Edit > Set Caret Position**. Choose **Edit > New > Insert Sequence at 200 bp** from the menu bar, opening the Insert Sequence dialog box. Type in 10 *T*s (the number of nucleotides you entered is shown at the bottom of the dialog box). Click **OK** to insert the sequence.

Vector NTI figures out that the modification you made requires an adjustment in the Feature map. The dialog box appears with the message "CDS TC(R) is affected by sequence editing." Click the **Keep** button to leave the feature in a Feature map. Note that the inserted nucleotides are highlighted in the sequence (Figure 5.5).

Place the mouse cursor over AP(R) again to determine its position. Note that AP(R) has been moved 10 nucleotides clockwise and is now positioned at 3303 bp–4166 bp.



Figure 5.5 Inserted nucleotides are highlighted in the sequence

Vector NTI automatically moves all features located after the insertion but it does not move any features before the insertion. If the insertion point is inside a feature and you decide to keep the feature, Vector NTI automatically moves only the 3' end of the feature. Observe that the 3'end position of TC(R) was changed to 1286 bp.

7. Edit the TC(R) Signal

Double-click on the TC(R) signal or its name in the Graphics Pane. (The mouse cursor changes to a hand over features and their names). Alternatively, click on the signal once and choose **Edit** > **Feature Properties** from the menu bar or choose **Feature Properties** from TC(R)'s shortcut menu. (*To display a shortcut menu for any object, right click on the object. The shortcut menu contains commands appropriate for the item to which you are pointing.*)

In the Molecule Feature dialog box that opens, you can change the name, type or description of the feature as well as its position on the molecule. Change the name of the signal to "Old TC(R)" and its description to "10 bp fragment inserted". Click the **OK** button. Vector NTI updates the Display window to show the new name of the signal (Figure 5.6).



Figure 5.6 Display window showing new name of the signal

8. Delete the P2_P Signal and Add a New Signal

Vector NTI allows you to easily add and delete features in a Feature map. To delete the P2_P promoter from the Feature map, select it with a click on the label in the Graphics Pane and choose **Edit > Delete Feature From FMap** from the menu bar. Alternatively, select P2_P and choose **Delete Feature From FMap** from the shortcut menu. Click the **OK** button in the confirmation dialog. P2_P is deleted from the Feature map and disappears from the Display window.

Let's add a new feature to the Feature map of My pBR322. First, select region 3000bp-3500 bp

and click the **Add Feature** button () on the Window toolbar. Alternatively, you can choose **Edit > New > Add Feature to FMap**. In the Molecule Feature dialog box, Vector NTI puts the currently selected region into the From and To fields. By default, the "Misc. Feature" type is assigned to new DNA/RNA features in the Feature Type panel, but you may change the type to any other type. Name the new feature **New Feature** and click the **OK** button. The new feature appears in the text and Graphics Panes of the Display window (Figure 5.7).



Figure 5.7 New feature appears in the Graphics Pane

To save the modified My pBR322 into the database, choose **File > Save As** from the menu bar. Click the **OK** button, then **OK** again to overwrite the version of My pBR322 currently stored in the database.

9. Change the Starting Coordinate of My pBR322

The Molecule menu options control the operations that can be performed on a molecule as a whole. Let's change the starting coordinate of My pBR322 so that all features *after* the inserted fragment have the same coordinates they have in the original pBR322 molecule. Choose **File > Molecule Operations > Advanced (DNA/RNA) > Change Starting Coordinate** from the menu bar. In the dialog box that opens, enter a new starting coordinate. Since the length of the inserted fragment was 10 bp, the new starting coordinate should be 1 bp + 10 bp = 11 bp. Enter **11** into the New Start field and click the **OK** button. Click **OK** in the confirmation dialog. Vector NTI recalculates the Feature map and updates the Display window. Verify that the new coordinates of AP(R) feature are the same as in the pBR322 (Figure 5.8): 3293 bp-4156 bp and "Old TC(R)" is now at 76bp-1276bp.

Notice that the Display window is not marked as modified. For all commands from the Molecule menu, Vector NTI always operates on the molecule in the database and updates the Display window if required. If a molecule in a Display window was modified but not saved at the time you

chose a command, Vector NTI asks you to save the modified molecule into the database and then repeat the command.



Figure 5.8 New coordinates of AP(R) feature

10. Close the Display Window and Exit Vector NTI

You have finished your session with Vector NTI. Close the Molecule Display window using the Close command in the File menu. Quit Vector NTI with the File menu's Exit command.

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

CHAPTER 6

TUTORIAL: FORMATTING MOLECULE GRAPHICS

Introduction

In this chapter, you will learn to edit the representation of molecule graphics maps in a Molecule Display window. Although here you work only with DNA molecules, all techniques described in this chapter work equally well for protein molecules.

There are four ways to modify the text and graphics in the Graphics Pane. At the end of this tutorial session, you will be able to:

- Use the Arrangement Setup Palette to modify the standard display of a molecule
- Modify the Graphical Display Setup for a DNA molecule and save the settings for use with other molecule displays
- Format object graphics and labels manually in Picture Editing mode
- Define label and feature styles for a graphical image
- Save the molecule's graphical representation to a Molecule Document file.
- **Note:** The operations in this tutorial have no effect on the molecule itself, but only on its graphical display.

1. Launch Vector NTI

Launch Vector NTI by selecting Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > Vector NTI.

2. Open pBR322 in a New Display Window

In the active workspace, click the **Open Document** button ($\stackrel{\textcircled{}}{\blacktriangleright}$) on the Main Toolbar. In the Open dialog box, select the Database DNAs/RNAs tab and the DNA/RNA Molecules (MAIN) subset. Scroll to pBR322 and double click on it to open a new Molecule Display window.

3. Arrange the Display Window Conveniently

Click the **Graphics Pane** button ()) to activate it. Use the split bars and scroll bars to get a

convenient display of pBR322's graphics map. Now SHIFT + CLICK the **Zoom In** (()) and **Zoom**

Out () buttons on the window toolbar to resize the graphics map until its labels are easily readable.

4. Change the Arrangement Setup

Vector NTI automatically rearranges the symbols and labels on the graphics map when you change the set of restriction enzymes, edit the functional map of the molecule, etc. This is called the Standard Arrangement.

To change the parameters of Standard Arrangement, press CTRL while you press the Standard

Arrangement button ()) on the Window Toolbar. The Arrangement Setup Palette appears, where you can change the standard arrangement settings like size of labels and width of signals.

Experiment with the Standard Arrangement formatting by pressing several of these buttons. The arrow buttons alter the molecule features display, while the "**A**" buttons modify the text display. When you are satisfied with the arrangement results, click the **Standard Arrangement** button again to close the palette.

5. Change the Graphics Setup of CDS Signals

Using the Graphics Display Setup dialog box, you can change the predefined display styles for elements of feature and restriction maps. You can specify that newly defined styles be available for all features or that they be dedicated to only a specific feature type.

To modify the way CDS (Coding DNA Sequence) signals are displayed, right click on one of the CDS signals in the Graphics Pane and choose **CDS Display Setup** from the shortcut menu. In the Graphics Display Setup dialog box, the CDS feature type is automatically selected. Here you will specify that all features of the same type (CDS) are formatted in the same way.

Graphics Display Setup			?
DNA/RNA Features			OK
			Gaussi
			Lancel
In I			
Allele			
Attenuator			
Callular		•	
Show Label			
Stule: Con (9	ianal aboli	More	
54/6. [@]14 (5	ignal Label)		
- Show Sumbol			
○ Short - CLong	*	Auto	
Style: (S	Shape 3) 🔹 🔻	More	
,			

Figure 6.1 CDS Display Setup

Using the check boxes, you can even choose whether or not to display labels for a selected feature type. You can choose label styles including font color and text format, and symbol shapes and styles.

Click the **More** button near the Label Style drop-down menu. In the Properties dialog box that opens, click the **Font** button. In the Font dialog box, choose **Bold** font style, and scroll to the blue color and select it. Press **OK**. Now choose the **Line** tab on the Properties dialog box and select a shade of blue to match the font color. Click **OK**.

If this is the first time you have created a style profile, you are asked whether you want to create a *shared style* to be used for all feature types or a *specific style* that would be used for CDS signals only. Press **No** to create a unique style named "CDS Label". This means that this style is available to format only CDS features. This is indicated now in the Label Style box by the term CDS Label (Figure 6.2).

To change the symbol style, click the **More** button near the Symbol Style box and choose the **Fill** tab. On the **Fill** tab, select a light blue color. Click **OK** to close the dialog box. When asked what kind of style you want to create, choose **Yes** to create a *shared style*. Vector NTI assigns a sequential number to the new style (Shape 5) and allows you to use this style to format not only CDS signals but other features as well.

Style:	@N		(CDS Label)	-	More
Show Sym	bol				
C Short	<u> </u>	C Long		-	 Auto
Style:			(Shape 5)	_	More

Figure 6.2 Creating a unique style named "CDS Label"

Press **OK**. This closes the Graphics Display Setup dialog box and automatically rearranges pBR322's Graphics Pane to show the new display style for CDS signals (Figure 6.3).



Figure 6.3 Graphics Pane shows new display style for CDS signals

The style modification you just made has no effect on the molecules displayed in other Display windows. Vector NTI associates a *style sheet* with every Display window in the system. A style sheet is a collection of different kinds of display settings such as Graphics display settings (like those you just modified), sequence settings like 1-letter or 3-letter translations and Feature map settings.

All settings in the current style sheet are accessible from the Molecule Display Setup dialog box you examined in the previous tutorial.

To save your modified style sheet, making it easily available to use with other molecules, click

on the **Display Setup** button () on the Window toolbar and choose the "Save Settings As" command from the popup menu. Type the name **Blue** in the Save As dialog box and click **OK**. To save unused styles, click **No**.

Close all display windows and reopen the pBR322 window. When first displayed, it uses the Default style sheet. Click on the **Display Setup** button on the Window toolbar. The list of available style sheets in the drop-down menu now has both elements: "Default" and "Blue". Choose the "Blue" style sheet, applying the style you just defined to the Display window. CDS signals are now shown in blue.

6. Turn on the Picture Editing Mode

If you prefer, you can format graphical maps manually and change the display style for individual features and elements of other graphical maps.

The Vector NTI Graphics Pane can operate in two different editing modes:

- **Molecule Editing** mode (the default) where you can modify a molecule itself, such as adding functional features, restriction sites or inserting or deleting residues in a molecule. *This was covered in Chapter 5.*
- **Picture Editing** mode where you can format individual labels, arrows and symbols of a molecule's graphical maps. Operations on the graphics in this mode <u>do not</u> modify the molecule itself.

To switch the Graphics Pane into the Picture Editing mode, activate the Graphics Pane and click

the Edit Picture button (de la constant de la cons

Note: Vector NTI automatically reverts out of Picture Editing mode back to Molecule Editing mode as soon as you select a sequence fragment in a Sequence Pane or perform some operation on a molecule.

7. Turn the TC^(R) Arrow to Blue Cross-Hatching

Locate the arrow representing the TC(R) (tetracycline resistance gene) symbol on the graphics map. Let's change its current pattern to cross-hatching and its color to light blue, and then enlarge the arrow.

Verify that the Picture Editing mode is on. (View > Edit Picture should display an enabled Picture Editing Mode button.) Point the cursor at TC(R) (the cursor changes shape to a pointing hand) and double-click on the arrow. In the Properties dialog box, click on the Fill tab. On the Fill tab, click in the pattern box. Select the crosshatched pattern in the scroll-down list, and click on it (Figure 6.4).

Properties	×
Line Fi	ill Shape
- Fill-	
Cold	
	<i>\</i> 2
ОК	Cancel Apply Help

Figure 6.4 Selecting the cross-hatched pattern in the Pattern field of the Properties dialog box

In the color selection box, choose light blue and click on **OK**. *Immediately after the color change, the arrow's colors are inverted, showing that the signal is currently selected.* Click in the graphical map outside the TC(R) arrow, deselecting it. The new pattern and color are displayed.

8. Enlarge the TC^(R) Arrow

To enlarge the TC(R) arrow, click on it, selecting it. "Drag boxes" or "handles" now appear at its corners. **Note**: If you do not see drag boxes after you click on the arrow, the pane is not in Picture Editing mode.



Figure 6.5 Making the arrow thicker and thinner by dragging the handles

Move the cursor to the drag boxes at the tail of the arrow where the cursor turns to a thin four-

pointed arrow (\clubsuit). Click and hold the left button on one of the drag boxes, and move the mouse a bit. Practice making the arrow thicker and thinner by dragging the handles (Figure 6.5). The drag boxes at the front of the arrow are for changing the shape of the arrowhead. Feel free to experiment with them on your own.

To drag the arrow radially inwards or outwards on the map, move the cursor to the middle of the

TC(R) arrow where it changes to a thick white four-pointed arrow $\begin{pmatrix} \neg 1 \\ \neg 1 \end{pmatrix}$. Click and hold the left button and drag mouse inward or outward. CTRL + SHIFT + left button-drag moves the arrow around the circle.

Remember, although the functional symbol graphics may have changed position on the graphics map, the actual molecule remains unaffected because you are in Picture Editing Mode. The double key combination has been designed with the drag to prevent you from moving functional signals out of position on the graphical map by accident.

To undo any changes you make in the graphical map, click the Undo button on the main toolbar



9. Format TC^(R)'s Label

To change the formatting of the TC(R) label, double-click on it, opening the Properties dialog box for the label (Figure 6.6).

Properties	×
Text Line	_
Text:	
@N	
Substitutions:	
@N signal/enzyme/motif/molecule name	
Font Arial Bold 8	
OK Cancel Apply Help	

Figure 6.6 Properties dialog box for the label

Select the Text tab and press the **Font** button. Set the font to 18-point bold italic in the Font dialog box (Figure 6.7). Click the **OK** buttons in both dialog boxes. Reposition the label using LEFT-CLICK + drag. Practice selecting and dragging other labels around the screen.



Figure 6.7 Changing the formatting of the TC(R) label

Undo the reposition changes by clicking the **Standard Arrangement** button ()) on the toolbar. If the picture was modified, Vector NTI displays a confirmation dialog before proceeding.

10. Add a Text Annotation

To add a text note indicating that TC(R) is to be cloned into pUC19, click the Add Annotation

button ()) on the Window Toolbar. In the Annotation dialog box, enter the words **Clone into pUC19** in the Annotation Text Field and click **OK**. Your text appears, selected, just above the center of the molecule. Drag the annotation directly under the TC(R) label (Figure 6.8). Doubleclick on the annotation and select **Font** in the Properties dialog box. Change the font to Arial 10 point bold. Click the **OK** buttons in both dialog boxes.



Figure 6.8 Adding a text annotation

An annotation can be removed by selecting it and choosing **Edit > Delete Annotation** on the menu bar. Select **Yes** to confirm the deletion.

11. Experiment with Styles

Styles allow us to assign a single format to many objects in a centralized, organized fashion. They work much like styles do in word processing software.

The plasmid pBR322 has 3 CDSs; TC(R), AP(R) and ROP. On the graphical map, locate all three CDSs and their labels. In Step 5, you defined the unique style "CDS Label" that can be used to format all CDS labels. Then you modified the features and labels in the pBR322 Mole-cule Display window to reflect the new formatting. In Step 9, you modified the TC(R) label and now its format attributes are different from those prescribed by the style "CDS Label" style. Vector NTI permits graphics objects to be formatted differently than prescribed by their styles. This simplifies graphics map editing and allows one to change a style using the formatted object as a template.

Click on the TC(R) label and open its associated shortcut menu with a right click. The **Redefine 'CDS Label' Style by Example** menu item is enabled because the format attributes of the TC(R) label are different from those prescribed by its style. Click on the **Redefine...** command.

The CDS Label Style is changed and all three CDS labels automatically change format as well.

Note: Although the style is changed, it still has not been saved to the Display Setup Profile. See Step 12.

A simple alternative way to redefine a new formatting style for labels or features in the same display window is to use the Copy/Paste feature. Right-click on the AP(R) signal and open the Properties dialog box from the shortcut menu. Reformat the fill pattern and color on the Fill tab and click **OK**. Now select the re-formatted object and select **Copy Style** from the shortcut menu. Select the TC(R) arrow and select **Paste Style** (Figure 6.9) from a new shortcut menu. You can redefine the set style by selecting the Redefine... option on the shortcut menu.



Figure 6.9 Using the Copy/Paste feature to redefine a new formatting style for labels

You can use styles for automatic formatting of functional symbols—arrows, blocks, etc.—as well as for text. Styles for graphics objects store not only color and pattern attributes, but also geometrical characteristics such as width and arrowhead dimensions. This is a powerful feature for creating publication-quality figures.

In spite of the fact that the graphical formatting of pBR322 in the Display Window was changed, the molecule is not marked as modified (with an asterisk on the title bar). Graphical modifications of molecules are not stored in the database, but in a molecule document file. The actual

molecule in the window was not changed; it remains in the Vector NTI database as it was originally.

12. Save the pBR322 Molecule Display to a Molecule Document file

You can save the contents of the pBR322 Display window with its graphical formatting changes to a Molecule Document File (NOT the VNTI Database). Select **File > Save As > Save as File** tab.

In the dialog box, name the file *pBR322.gb* and press **OK**. If Vector NTI was configured for Internet publishing, a confirmation dialog box appears asking your permission to create an HTML file describing the molecule. Click **Yes**, and Vector NTI notifies you that an HTML file is created.

Note: The Molecule Document file you created is completely independent of the Vector NTI database. It contains all the molecule information and any results of molecule analyses and the graphical representation of the molecule. Think of a Molecule Document as a self-contained "snapshot" of your work with a molecule. You can exchange Molecule Documents with your colleagues, publish them on the Internet, send them through electronic mail, etc.

To close the pBR322 molecule window, select File > Close on the menu bar.

Vector NTI now detects that the style sheet associated with the pBR322 Display window has changed (remember that you redefined the "CDS Label" style) and requests confirmation to save them to the profile. Click **Yes**. In the Save Current Display Settings As dialog box that opens, select **Blue** from the Settings Name drop-down menu, confirm, and click **OK**. Since you already have a style sheet named **Blue**, choose **Yes** for Save Unused Styles. This overwrites the original **Blue** style sheet with the modified one. Sometimes this option does not appear until you try to close the molecule.

After the modified style sheet is saved, Vector NTI closes the pBR322's Display window.

Now open the Molecule Document you created, with **File > Open > Molecule File** tab, and select the name of the saved document file from the file list. Your Molecule Document opens with all of your changes preserved.

Note: Every style required by a document is saved within the Molecule Document itself. This means that, unlike molecules opened from the *VNTI Database*, the pBR322 molecule document will always look the way you formatted it when you saved it to a *Molecule Document File*.

Note that the window title now reflects the fact that the Molecule Display window displays the molecule data from the document, NOT from the Vector NTI database. No matter how many times you modify the molecule and save it back to the *Molecule Document*, pBR322 in the *VNTI Database* remains unchanged.

Note: Vector NTI does not support the whole range of molecule operations on the molecules in Molecule Documents. Sometimes, Vector NTI prompts you to save the molecule into the database first and repeat the operation on the molecule saved in the database. The Demonstration version of Vector NTI has extra restrictions on the kind of operations you can perform on such "external" molecules.

13. Use the Saved Style Sheet to Format Molecule Display Windows

Now we can use the saved settings to format other molecules as well. Close the pBR322 Dis-

play window. Click the **Open Document** button () on the main toolbar. In the Open dialog box on the **Database DNAs/RNAs** tab, select the M13 molecule from the molecule list and click **OK**. All CDS features and labels display the default settings. In the Molecule Display window, click the **Display Setup** button. Select the **Blue** style sheet from the Setup Profile list on the

drop-down menu and click **OK**. In the Molecule Display Window for the M13 molecule, note that all CDS labels now have the formatting we defined in a "CDS Label" style (Figure 6.10).



Figure 6.10 Using a saved style sheet to format Molecule Display windows

You can define and give names to several independent Display Setup settings like **Blue** and use them to reformat graphics representation of molecules in Molecule Display windows.

To switch to another style sheet, click on the **Display Setup** button in the Window toolbar, and select the name of the style sheet in the popup menu. Vector NTI reformats the active display window according to setting you choose.

14. Close the Display Window and Exit Vector NTI

To finish your session with Vector NTI, close the Molecule Display Window using **File > Close** on the menu bar. Exit Vector NTI using **File > Exit**.

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

C H A P T E R

7

TUTORIAL: DATABASE EXPLORER

Introduction

This tutorial introduces you to Vector NTI's Database Explorer, a simple and flexible interface for managing and manipulating various kinds of objects in the Vector NTI database. The Explorer format makes it relatively simple to store, sort, and manage information such as molecules created in your laboratory, enzymes stored in your freezer, molecules with particular antibiotic resistance capabilities or oligonucleotides designed for PCR.

At the end of this tutorial session, you will be able to:

- Navigate the VNTI Database Explorer
- Use menu and toolbar commands
- Alternate between database subsets
- Select and edit listed subset objects
- · Search the database for objects with specified features
- Create new subsets
- Add new user-fields to database objects
- Use User-Field Manager to display new user-field columns
- Use Contact Manager to manage contact information

1. Launch Vector NTI

To launch the Vector NTI Database Explorer, select Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > Vector NTI Explorer.

Alternatively, you can access the Database Explorer window by using the Local Database but-

ton () on the Main Toolbar of the Vector NTI workspace.

Note: By default, the Vector NTI Database Explorer launches independently of the Vector NTI worspace. However, it can be configured so the Database Explorer opens automatically with the Vector NTI workspace each time a Vector NTI session is initiated. From a Molecule Display window, select **Edit > Options** from the menu bar. On the **General** tab of the Options dialog box, select **Open Local Explorer At Startup**.

2. Inspect the Database Explorer Window

Maximize the Vector NTI Database Explorer window. This window displays the contents of local and shared databases. The databases are organized into several *tables* containing subsets of the respective type. Each Database Explorer window has two *panes*: the Subset Pane on the left and the selected subset Database Objects Pane on the right.

Locate the database Table box in the upper left-hand corner of the screen and click on the dropdown menu arrow to view the various Database Tables. To alternate between database tables, select a table from the drop-down menu or select from the Table menu on the menu bar.

🔍 Exploring - Local Vector NTI Database 👘							_ 8	×
Table Edit View Analyses Align Database	Assemble Tools Help							
🕖 Protein Molecules 💽 🚽 🖓	⇒ (C) (C) (C) (C) (C)	12 1	🔊 aje 🗙	í e · a) }?			
All Subsets	All database Protein Molecules							
Protein Molecules (MAIN)	Name	Length	Storage Type	Author	Original Aut	Modified		-
	10KD_VIGUN	75	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	HISB_CUCMA	480	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	HINAN 1814_HUMAN	361	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	2AAA_CAEEL	664	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	255_BEREX	146	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	## 41_HUMAN	831	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	4188_HUMAN	255	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	41BB_MOUSE	256	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	#F2_HUMAN	529	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	5H1A_FUGRU	423	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	5H1A_HUMAN	422	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	5H1A_MOUSE	421	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	5H1A_RAT	422	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	5H1B_CANFA	161	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	5H1B_HUMAN	390	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	HIB_RAT	386	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	5H1D_CAVPO	376	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	H1D_FUGRU	379	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	5H1D_RABIT	377	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	SHIE_HUMAN	365	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	HIE_PIG	149	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	HIF_MOUSE	366	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	W ALES_DROVI	2594	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
		244	Dasic	Informax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
		372	Dasic	Informax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
		770	Dasic	Informax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	AADU4045	500	Dasic	Informax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	AAC50405	5/0	Bacic	Informax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	20100000000000000000000000000000000000	532	Bacic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	WAACG KIEPN	201	Bacic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	HAADB ECOL	177	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	HIMAN	1130	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	HACTS HIMAN	377	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	HADCYZ	1080	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		
	HADRA1A	499	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3		-
164 protein molecules	. y 1000							

Figure 7.1 A list of protein subsets is displayed in the Subset Pane

In the Database Table drop-down menu, select the Protein Molecules table. The list of protein subsets is displayed in the Subset Pane, initially containing only one subset called Protein Molecules (MAIN) (Figure 7.1).

The subset contents are listed in the Database Objects Pane. This subset contains all of the protein molecules in the database. The contents of each of the (MAIN) default subsets are main-tained by Vector NTI similarly with all of the respective database objects for that table. Scroll through the list of proteins to become familiar with the database format.

The Vector NTI Database Explorer window has a single toolbar containing the most frequently used commands. Most commands can also be initiated from the menu bar.

3. Experiment with View Options

Pull down the View menu to review the available viewing options. (Options are duplicated by toolbar buttons.) You can view your molecules as large or small icons, a compact list and a tabular form with columns showing various object properties (the "details" mode).

By default, the Database Explorer shows proteins in the details mode. Click on each of four mode buttons at the right of the toolbar to view the object list in each mode, and then switch back to the details mode.

To sort database objects in ascending or descending order, select **View > Arrange Icons** or, if you are in the details mode, click on the column headers. Click on the Length column header several times to sort the molecules by length. Adjust the widths of the column by click + dragging the small lines separating the column headers.

4. Experiment with Selection and Menus and Edits

The Database Explorer window combines several standard selection techniques. Select multiple objects by:

- SHIFT + CLICK to select all objects within a range
- CTRL + CLICK to select non-contiguous objects in a list
- "wire-frame" selection (press the mouse button somewhere outside item names / icons and drag the selection rectangle)

Some menus are disabled when nothing is selected. Object and subsets have shortcut menus listing various associated commands.

To rename both subsets and database objects, click on the name of the item to be renamed, wait a second, then click on the same name again. Clicking two times in rapid succession is interpreted as double-click, but waiting momentarily before the second click is interpreted as an in-place editing request. An active edit text box opens on the item name, allowing you to edit the name.

5. Learn About Subsets

In the Protein Molecules (MAIN) table, click on the **Name** column header (Database Objects Pane) to sort the list by name in alphabetic order. Select the 41BB_HUMAN and 41BB_MOUSE molecules and click the **New Subset** button () on the toolbar. Vector NTI creates a new subset called Group 1. Name the new subset **41BB** in the active text box and press ENTER. The

new subset is selected in the left pane and its contents are listed in the right pane (Figure 7.2).

🔍 Exploring - Local Vector NTI Database						_ 8 ×
Table Edit View Analyses Align Databas	e Assemble Tools Help					
🗊 41BB 🔹 🗸		🛍 🛍 🏚 🗡	11日・14) %		
All Subsets	Subset 41BB of Protein Molecules					
Protein Molecules (MAIN)	Name	Length Storage Type	Author	Original Aut	Modified	
<u>gy</u> 4188	₩1488_MOUSE	255 Basic 256 Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:3 07/10/2003 07:3	
2 protein molecules	1					

Figure 7.2 Creating a new subset

You can easily add objects to subsets by drag-drop operations within the Database Explorer window. Other subset operations are available from the Table menu or from the subset shortcut menu.

Note: The difference between Vector NTI's subsets and Vector NTI's file system's folders is basic. Because a subset is a set of objects grouped by a specified criteria, one object can exist in several different subsets at one time. On the other hand, one object cannot exist in several folders at the same time, but you can make a *copy* of an object to place it in another folder. Note that the 41BB_HUMAN and 41BB_MOUSE molecules were not moved *out* of the MAIN subset. You just created another group (subset) based on their common features.

6. Search the Database

The Database Explorer has a sophisticated searching capability enabling you to search by different criteria and logically combine search results.

Let's find all DNA molecules containing an ampicillin resistance gene, create a new subset for them and add appropriate user fields. Open the DNA/RNA (MAIN) molecule database and press

the **Search** button ()) on the Database Explorer's toolbar, opening the Molecule Database Search dialog box (Figure 7.3):

scaron alalog bo	(i iguic 7.0).	
Molecule Database Sea	rch	<u>? ×</u>
Look in: M DNA/RNA	Molecules (MAIN)	Search Close below:
Attribute Filter	Text Filter	- Keyword Filter
Attributes Setup	Text Search Setup	Keywords Setup
Ancestor Filter	🕞 Oligo & Peptide Filter 🚽	Feature Filter
Ancestors Setup	Oligo & Peptides Setup	Features Setup
Match Case	aracters * and ? are allowed)	

Figure 7.3 Molecule Database Search dialog box

Check the Features Filter option and press the **Features Setup** button. In the Search Conditions: Features dialog box, click the **< Add** button, opening the Add Features dialog box (Figure 7.4) where you choose the feature for which to search. Select **CDS** in the Feature Type window. Click the **Add only features of this type...** radio button. Browse through the list in the right pane, locate the AP(R) and check its box.

Add Features		? ×
Feature Type: DNA/RNA Features 3' Clip 3' UTR 5' Clip 5' S' UTR Allele Attenuator DHLH Domain CAT Signal Caluar Conflict DConflict Deltoop	Add all features of this type Add only features of this type with the following names: A [*] AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01 AC01	OK Cancel

Figure 7.4 Add Features dialog box

Click **OK**, closing the box and adding the AP(R) feature to the Search Conditions: Features dialog box (Figure 7.5).

Search Conditions: Features	<u>? ×</u>
Find only the molecules with one or more of the	ОК
following features:	Cancel
CDS, Name(s): AP(R)	< Add
	> Remove
	>> Remove All

Figure 7.5 Adding a new feature to the Search Conditions: Features dialog box

Click **OK** to return to the Database Search dialog box.

Make sure that all filters except the Attributes and Feature Filters are unchecked and that the "DNA/RNA (MAIN)" subset is selected in the "Look in" drop-down menu. Click the **Start Search** button. Vector NTI scans the entire DNA/RNA table, locating all molecules with an ampicillin resistance gene.

When the Insert Search Results dialog box opens to select a subset for the search results, enter a new subset name, *Ampicillin Resistance* (Figure 7.6).

Insert Search Results Into Subset						
I DNA/RNA Molecules (MAIN)						
🗍 🗊 Carlsbad						
-						
1						
Subset Name: Ampicillin Resistance						
OK Can	el I					

Figure 7.6 Insert Search Results dialog box with new subset name, Ampicillin Resistance

Click **OK**. Vector NTI informs you of the number of items in the result set.

The subset is created (you can see it in the All Subsets Pane), but the Search dialog box is not closed. This is so that you could refine your search using the result set as an input set of a next search. Click the **Close** button to close the Search dialog box.

7. Examine Vector NTI's User Field Manager

Each of the columns in a subset Objects Pane is a user field displaying identifying characteristics of subset objects. A user field can contain any laboratory-specific and user-specific information necessary to provide an appropriate description of the object. For instance, you might identify all of the enzymes that are stored in your laboratory so they can easily be sorted in a larger database. User Fields can be imported, exported, displayed, printed and managed just as the regular database fields.

Click the new Ampicillin Resistance subset to open it and view its molecules, all of which presumably contain an ampicillin resistance gene. Now let's add the ampicillin user field to the molecules so that feature will be displayed in a user field column. That will allow you to sort molecules with that feature in the (MAIN) database.

Choose **Database > User Field Manager** from the menu bar, opening the User Fields Manager dialog box (Figure 7.7):

u	User Field Definitions						
		Import Export	Close				
	Name	Description	Indexed?				
	🚯 Commercial Sources	List of commercial sources	No				
	n Freezer Position	Rack, box, position (i.e C:3:21)	No				
	🔀 Organism	Source of genetic material	No				
	🕃 tetracycline resista		No				
	n WWW Source	GenBank (GID:xxx) or other (URL:xxx) hot links	No				
	Global Operations with S	elected Field					
	Set " in:	📋 Local Database Objects	▲				
	Do not overwrite exi	sting values	AIN)				
	Clear " in:	Oligos (MÁIN)	-				
	To set or clear fields in individual objects, use the Edit command in the Explorer window.						

Figure 7.7 User Fields Manager dialog box

This dialog box allows you to define new User Fields and to perform global operations on user fields such as Edit, Rename, Delete as well as Import/Export operations. Importing and exporting allows you to exchange your list of field definitions with your colleagues.

Vector NTI maintains a local list of descriptions of "known" User Fields that are presented to the user when he or she creates new database objects. This list can be viewed and modified using the User Field Manager.

Note: Field definitions and field values are stored and exported with database objects. When these objects are imported, Vector NTI helps you to add the field definitions to the local User Field definitions list.

8. Define a New User Field

Click on the **New** button () in the upper left of the User Field Manager dialog box, opening the User Field Definition dialog box.

Enter *Ampicillin Resistance* in the Name box, and using the Type drop-down menu, select **One of Predefined Strings**. In the Predefined Values text box, type **Ampicillin Resistance** and click the **< Add** button (Figure 7.8).

User Field Definition		? ×
Name: Ampicillin Resistance		ОК
Type: 🛐 One of Predefined Strin	gs 💌	Cancel
Cache in Index Table for	faster access	
Default Values		
<none></none>		Change
Predefined Values		
Ampicillin Resistance	Ampicillin Resist	ance
	< Add	
	> Delete	
Description		
<u> </u>		

Figure 7.8 User Field Definition dialog box

Click OK, closing the window. Your field description is added to the field list.

ser Field Definitions		? ×				
	Import Export	Close				
Name	Description	Indexed?				
🏶 Ampicillin Resistan		No				
🚯 Commercial Sources	List of commercial sources	No				
n Freezer Position	Rack, box, position (i.e C:3:21)	No				
👪 Organism	Source of genetic material	No				
👪 tetracycline resista		No				
www.Source GenBank (GID:xxx) or other (URL:xxx) hot links No						
Global Operations with Selected Field Set."in:						
Do not overwrite exi	sting values					
To set or clear fields in individual objects, use the Edit command in the Explorer window.						

Figure 7.9 Assigning values to molecules listed in the Ampicillin Resistance subset

Now let's assign this value to all molecules listed in the Ampicillin Resistance subset we just created. Back in the User Field Definitions box, in the large window (Field Definition List), select the newly listed **Ampicillin Resistance**. Now in the box in the lower right corner, select [+] DNA/ RNA Main to open the DNA/RNA subsets; select the subset **Ampicillin Resistance**. In the Global Operations area, click the **Set 'Ampicillin Resistance' in** button (Figure 7.9). In the Ampicillin Resistance dialog box that opens, select the field value string **Ampicillin Resistance** and click **OK**. Click **OK** to confirm your action to insert the field value. Vector NTI performs the operation and returns you back to the User Field Manager. Press **Close**.

9. View the New Field in Database Explorer

Now let's customize the Database Explorer view to display the new field. Back in the DNA/RNA (MAIN) Table Explorer window, in the Database Objects Pane, right click on a column heading.

In the shortcut menu that opens, select **Columns**. The Columns dialog box allows you to control the display and order of columns in the details view of the Explorer window.

Columns Details View				×
Available Fields: Commercial Source Created Description DNA/RNA Freezer Position Fully Processed? Local/Foreign Organism Record # tetracycline resistan WWW Source	nce	Displayed Fields: Name Length Ampicillin Resiste Form Storage Type Author Original Author Modified	ance Ord	er Move Up love Down nment Left Right Center
	ОК	Cancel	Apply	Help

Figure 7.10 Columns dialog box

In the **Available Fields** box, select **Ampicillin Resistance** and click the **Forward** button (\rightarrow), moving the field to the **Displayed Fields** box. Click the **Move Up** button several times to move the Ampicillin Resistance column just below the Length column (Figure 7.10). *The descending order in the list is the left to right display order of the columns*

Click the **OK** button, updating the Database Explorer to display the new field as a column in the list pane. Return to the DNA/RNA subset by clicking on DNA/ RNA Molecules (MAIN) in the All Subsets Pane or by selecting **Table > DNA/RNA Molecules** from the Main menu (Figure 7.11).

🔍 Exploring - Local Vector NTI	Database	·						<u>_ ×</u>
DNA/RNA Edit View Analyses	Align Database	Assemble	Tools Help					
DNA/RNA Molecules	• ⇒	D (1)	G. O. D	R t] 🕼 aje	× 🖆 🖽	• 🗿 🌾	
All Subsets	All database DNA/F	RNA Molecu	ıles					
DNA/RNA Molecules (MAIN)	Name	Length	Ampicilin Resist	Form	Storage	Author	Original Aut	Modified 🔺
🗊 Carlsbad	遼pACYC184	4245		Circular	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003
Ampicillin Resistance	@pAM34	6000	Ampicillin Resist	Circular	Basic	Demo User	NCBI Entrez	07/15/2003
	@pAT153	3658		Circular	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003
	@pATH1	3779	Ampicillin Resist	Circular	Basic	Demo User	NCBI Entrez	07/15/2003
	@pATH10	3771	Ampicillin Resist	Circular	Basic	Demo User	NCBI Entrez	07/15/2003
	@pATH11	3772	Ampicillin Resist	Circular	Basic	Demo User	NCBI Entrez	07/15/2003
	资pATH2	3753	Ampicillin Resist	Circular	Basic	Demo User	NCBI Entrez	07/15/2003
	资pATH20	3784	Ampicillin Resist	Circular	Basic	Demo User	NCBI Entrez	07/15/2003
	遼pATH21	3787	Ampicillin Resist	Circular	Basic	Demo User	NCBI Entrez	07/15/2003
	变pATH22	3790	Ampicillin Resist	Circular	Basic	Demo User	NCBI Entre	07/15/2003
	资pATH23	3790	Ampicillin Resist	Circular	Basic	Demo User	NCBI Entrez	07/15/2003
	@pATH3	3763	Ampicillin Resist	Circular	Basic	Demo User	NCBI Entrez	07/15/2003
	i⊛pBC1	1615		Circular	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003
	@pBLCAT2	4496	Ampicillin Resist	Circular	Basic	Demo User	NCBI Entrez	07/15/2003
	@pBLCAT3	4344	Ampicillin Resist	Circular	Basic	Demo User	NCBI Entrez	07/15/2003
	@pBLCAT5	4404	Ampicillin Resist	Circular	Basic	Demo User	NCBI Entrez	07/15/2003
	@pBLCAT6	4256	Ampicillin Resist	Circular	Basic	Demo User	NCBI Entrez	07/15/2003
	@pBlu2K5M	2961		Circular	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003
	@ pBlu2K5P	2961		Circular	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003
	i⊛ pBlu25KM	2961		Circular	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003
	i⊛ pBlu25KP	2961		Circular	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003
	遼 pBluKSM	2958		Circular	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003
	遼 pBluKSP	2958		Circular	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 🖕
	1							
254 DNA/RNA molecules								

Figure 7.11 Updating the Database Explorer to display the new field as a column in the list pane

Scroll through the Objects Pane, noting that Ampicillin Resistance is noted for some of the objects. Now click on the Ampicillin Resistance column heading, sorting the objects according to this feature. Click again and note the sorting changes. *While molecules in this subset can be sorted according to this new user field, as you may expect, all DNA molecules in the Ampicillin Resistance subset display "Ampicillin Resistance" in that column.* You could create a column for any feature by which you wish to sort molecules using these same steps.

Sorting by the Ampicillin Resistance column takes longer than sorting by other columns like Length. This is because the Ampicillin Resistance column is not cached in index tables and thus is slower to access. Caching requires extra memory, but it usually makes sense to turn it on for fields that are displayed as columns in the list pane.

To turn on caching of Ampicillin Resistance, open the User Field Manager dialog box again. Double-click on the Ampicillin Resistance definition to edit it, check the **Cache In Index Table** box and click **OK**. Vector NTI asks for confirmation and then rescans the database and rebuilds the database indices. Close the User Field Manager dialog box and try again to sort the DNA molecules by clicking on the Ampicillin Resistance column header. Sorting should work faster now.

10. Examine Vector NTI's Contact Manager

The Contact Manager is a tool for creating, updating, deleting and organizing contact records. This list, to simplify tracking of database objects, is automatically updated when you import molecules or proteins created by your colleagues. You can enter any suitable information about yourself; this information then is attached to your molecules and is automatically added to the contact list of those colleagues who import your molecules.

Select Database > Contact Manager,	opening the Cor	ntact Manager di	alog box (Figure 7.12):

Iontact Manager			? ×
		[Close
Name	Telephone	E-mail	
😰 InforMax, Inc.	(301)216-0586	informax@informaxinc.com	
😰 NCBI Entrez	(301)496-2475	info@ncbi.nlm.nih.gov	
PROSITE 2	+(41-22) 784-40	bairoch@cmu.unige.ch	
😰 REBASE			
SWISS-PROT	+(41-22) 784-40	bairoch@cmu.unige.ch	
I			

Figure 7.12 Contact Manager dialog box

This dialog box displays a list of all stored contact records. There are five operation buttons in the upper left corner of the Contact Manager allowing you to perform various operations on the contact records, including Add New, Edit, Rename and Delete.

11. Close the Molecule Display Windows and Exit Vector NTI

You have now taken a close look at Vector NTI's Database Explorer capabilities. Close all Display windows and exit Vector NTI as you learned in previous tutorials. Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

C H A P T E R

TUTORIAL: PCR ANALYSIS AND PRIMER DESIGN

Introduction

This chapter introduces you to tools for designing and analyzing PCR primers and procedures. At the end of this tutorial session, you will be able to:

- Design and analyze PCR primers using Vector NTI's primer design tool
- Add restriction enzymes to PCR primers
- Set parameters for optimum primer/target interactions and successful PCR
- Save primers and PCR results in the database
- Add primers to the Oligo List
- View and analyze PCR results
- Order Custom Primers from Invitrogen

Note: Press the F1 key to open Online Help for all of the dialog boxes in this tutorial.

1. Launch Vector NTI and Open a Molecule Display Window

- Launch Vector NTI using techniques described in previous tutorials (Select Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > Vector NTI).
- Using techniques learned in earlier tutorials, open a Molecule Display window containing CoIE I.

2. Select the Region of CoIE1

- Click the **Graphics Pane** button ()) on the Window Toolbar to activate the Graphics Pane.
- Select Edit > Set Selection. In the Set Selection dialog box, select the 5200–6400 region of ColE1, the target fragment for PCR.

3. Prepare for PCR Analysis

To perform PCR analysis on the selected fragment, select **Analyses > Primer Design > Find PCR Primers** on the menu bar. The Find PCR Primers dialog box appears (Figure 8.1):

Find Primers in Selected Region of ColE1
Primer Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters
Region of Analysis Product Length
From: 5200 bp To: 6400 bp Min: 900 bp Max: 1201 bp
Maximum Number of Output Options 3
Salt Conc. 50.0 Probe Conc. 250.0 dG Temperature (MMol) (C)
Tm (C) >= 40.0 >= 35.0 >= 20 © DNA © RNA
<= 65.0 <= 60.0 <= 25 More >>
Load Save OK Cancel Apply

Figure 8.1 Find PCR Primers dialog box

With this dialog box, you can direct Vector NTI to search for convenient sense and antisense primers according to your specifications and to check primers' uniqueness.

Click the **More>>** button on the lower right to enable a complete view of the Find Primers dialog box (Figure 8.2):

Find Primers in Selected Region of ColE1							
Primer Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity Region of Analysis From: 5200 bp To: 6400 bp	V 3' end U Product L Min: 900	niqueness Qua ength bp Max:	lities Filters				
Maximum Number of Output (Options 3	_					
Salt Conc. 50.0 Probe Conc. 250.0 dG Temperature (c) 25.0 Im (C) 250.0 c c c c							
>= 40.0 >= 35.0 <=	>= 20 <= 25						
User-Defined Primers Sense: Antisense:			Analyze Analyze				
Attach to 5' terminus of Sense Primer: 							
Load Save	OK	Cancel	Apply				

Figure 8.2 Find Primers dialog box

The **Primer** tab allows you to designate basic parameters for the PCR reaction and the primers that are generated. After clicking the **More>>** button, you can also define primers yourself and attach short sequences at the 5' and/or 3' ends of the product. (If you want the PCR target length to be the full extent of the selected target region, make sure that the Region of Analysis and Product Length sections of the dialog box reflect your selections.)

Note: The calculation for Tm is dependent on primer and salt concentrations; varying these concentrations can greatly affect the Tm for any given primer. Make sure to adjust these parameters according to your reaction conditions when performing your own PCR analysis to ensure that you obtain accurate Tm values.

For this tutorial, review the options on the **Primer** tab, but leave all the options unchanged.

Select the **Amplicon** tab (Figure 8.3). The options on this tab allow you to customize parameters relating to the resulting PCR product. %GC content for the product or a portion of the product next to the primer annealing site and allowed bases adjacent to the primer annealing site can be specified.

Find Prin	ners in Sel	ected Reg	ion of C	olE1					×
Primer	Amplicon	Structure	Pairs	Similariț	y 3'end l	Jniqueness	Qualities	Filters	
- Ampl Mir	icon %GC— n 20.0	Ma	к 85.0						
			-Next to) Primer A	nnealing Site	,			
1-st 2-nd 3-rd 4-th	Nucleotide: Nucleotide: Nucleotide: Nucleotide:	G D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D	с і а с і а с і а с і а	т ч т ч т т	Min 40.0	licon Region 1ust Have % — M	of 200 GC: ax 75.0	Ьр	
Loa	d	Save			ОК	Canc	el	Apply	

Figure 8.3 The Amplicon tab allows you to customize parameters relating to the resulting PCR product

Review the options, but leave all the options unchanged.

Select the **Structure** tab (Figure 8.4). The options on this tab set acceptable limits for nucleotide repeats, palindromes and hairpin loops for the primers. You can also check your primers/product for a selected group of restriction sites from this tab.

Find Primers in Selected Re	egion of ColE1	X
Primer Amplicon Structure	∍ Pairs ∫ Similarity ∫ 3' end	Uniqueness Qualities Filters
Nucleotide Repeats	Palindromes Max 8	Hairpin Loops Stem Length >= 3 Permited with dG >= -1.0
🔽 Check Hairpin Loops, F	'alindromes, Nucleotide Repe Only Within	eats and Dimers [10] 3' Region of (bp)
Check Primers for Rest	riction Sites From	<u> </u>
Load Save	ОК	Cancel Apply

Figure 8.4 The Structure tab sets limits for nucleotide repeats, palindromes and hairpin loops in primers

Inspect all options, leaving them unchanged.

Select the **Pairs** tab (Figure 8.5). Options on this tab specify how closely parameters such as Tm and %GC, etc. must match between two primers in a generated primer set.

Find Primers in Selected Region of ColE1
Primer Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters
Tm Difference (C) <= 50
%GC Difference <= 10.0
Primer-Primer Complementarity Primer-Primer 3' End Compl.
✓ Permitted with dG >= 15.0 ✓ Permitted with dG >= 3.0
Load Save OK Cancel Apply

Figure 8.5 The Pairs tab specifies how closely parameters must match between two primers in a primer set

Inspect all options, leaving them unchanged.

Select the **Similarity** tab (Figure 8.6). The options on this tab determine the similarity relationship between the primers and the target sequence.

ind Primers in Selected Region of ColE1			
Primer Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters			
Rest Fit			
C With Similarities >= Similarity Threshold			
Similarity Threshold: 75.0			
Last 3 Nucleotides Must Have 100% Similarity			
Similarity Between Ambiguous Nucleotides			
Average C Minimum C Maximum			
Load Save OK Cancel Apply			

Figure 8.6 The Similarity tab determines the similarity relationship between the primers and the target sequence

Inspect all options, leaving them unchanged.

Select the **3' end** tab (Figure 8.7). The options on this tab allow you to set specifications for the 3' end of the primers generated by Vector NTI. Parameters such as dG and specific nucleotide content for the 3' end of both sense and antisense primers can be set here.

Find Primers in Selected Region of ColE1	×
Primer Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity	3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters
dG <= Kcal/mol Length for A	Analysis: 7 bp
Sense Primer 3' Nucleotides	Antisense Primer 3' Nucleotides
First 🗹 G 🔽 C 🔽 A 🗌 T	First 🗹 G 🔽 C 🔽 A 🗖 T
Second 🔽 G 🔽 C 🔽 A 🔽 T	Second 🔽 G 🔽 C 🔽 A 🔽 T
Third 🔽 G 🔽 C 🔽 A 🔽 T	Third 🗹 G 🔽 C 🔽 A 🔽 T
Fourth 🔽 G 🔽 C 🔽 A 🔽 T	Fourth 🔽 G 🔽 C 🔽 A 🔽 T
Load Save	OK Cancel Apply

Figure 8.7 The 3' end tab allows you to set specifications for the 3' end of the primers generated by VNTI

Inspect all options, leaving them unchanged.

Select the **Uniqueness** tab (Figure 8.8). The options on this tab determine the uniqueness of the primers generated with respect to the PCR product. These parameters can be used to help ensure that generated primers bind to the desired template area with greater specificity than to the rest of the PCR product.

Find Primers in Selected Region of ColE1	×		
Primer Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters			
Uniqueness Checks for Only for Primer Annealing Sites within Amplicons			
Max Allowed Similarity 75.0 %			
Max Consecutive Match for Entire Primer 10 bp			
Primer 3' End			
Max Consecutive Match 7 bp			
For Last 3' 10 bp Max Complementarity 50.0 %			
Load Save OK Cancel Apply			

Figure 8.8 The Uniqueness tab determines the uniqueness of the primers generated with respect to the PCR product

Inspect all options, leaving them unchanged.

Select the **Qualities** tab (Figure 8.9). These parameters govern primer quality by determining how much weight should be assigned to parameters specified on the other tabs of the Find

Primers dialog box. These values affect scoring functions that evaluate the quality rating of the primer sets generated.

Find Primers in Selected Region of ColE1			
Primer Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters			
"Importance" below must be between 1 and 10:			
1 - not important (almost don't care) 10 - crucially important (disregard if not so)			
Importance to be inside specified limits			
Tm: 👩 Tm Difference: 9			
%GC: 9 %GC Difference: 9			
Importance to satisfy specified conditions			
Palindromes: 9 Nucleotide Repeats: 9			
Hairpin Loops: 9 Dimers: 9 3' End: 9			
Load Save OK Cancel Apply			

Figure 8.9 The Qualities tab governs primer quality by determining how much weight should be assigned to parameters specified on the tabs of the Find Primers dialog box

Inspect all options, leaving them unchanged.

Select the **Filters** tab (Figure 8.10). On this tab, you can select features that should either be excluded or included as regions to be considered for primer design. For example, if your sequence contains Repeat features, you may want to exclude them to obtain primers with greater specificity. Features can be added or removed by pressing the + and – buttons.

Find Primers in Selected Region of ColE1	×
Primer Amplicon Structure Pairs Similari	ity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters
Apply Feature Reject Filter	Apply Feature Include Filter
+ - Remove All	+ - Remove All
🔽 5' End Overlap	Distance from Sense Primer 3' End
Max 10 bp	to Feature 5'End Max 0 bp
I 3' End Overlap	Distance from Antisense Primer 3' End
Max 8 bp	to Feature 5'End Max 0 bp
Load Save	OK Cancel Apply

Figure 8.10 The Filters tab selects features that should either be excluded or included as regions to be considered for primer design

Leave all the options unchanged as you inspect them.

Notice the **Load** and **Save** buttons on the lower left of each tab in the Find Primers dialog box. These buttons allow you to save your PCR settings to a file and load the settings file in for subsequent analyses. This precludes having to reset the various parameters manually for frequently used PCR condition settings. You need only save/load the settings in one of the tabs and the parameters for all the tabs in the Find Primers dialog box will be saved/loaded.
4. Perform PCR Analysis

In the Find Primers dialog box, press the **OK** button in the lower center, initiating the PCR analysis. When it is finished, a new folder is created, added and opened in the Text Pane of the CoIE1 Display window.

5. Inspect the PCR Analysis Folder

Move the split bars as necessary to optimize viewing in the Text Pane. In the open PCR Analysis folder, inspect the subfolders.

- Each subfolder describes one possible set of primers for amplifying a fragment of the length within the maximum and minimum lengths specified in the Find Primers dialog box.
- The subfolders are listed in order of decreasing primer set quality rating which is calculated based on the importance factors assigned in the **Qualities** tab in the Find Primers dialog box. (Generally, maximum rating = 171.)
- Each subfolder contains useful information for the PCR reaction such as product melting temperature, optimum annealing temperature, sense and antisense primers with their melting temperatures, free energies, etc.

The sense and antisense primers are indicated with the symbol " " " followed by their nucleotide sequences. (In Vector NTI, this same symbol is used to mark oligonucleotides created by many of the program's functions such as PCR analysis, molecule design, and hybridization. You can perform oligo analysis on any nucleotide sequence marked by this symbol in the Text Pane of a Molecule Display window.)

6. Perform Oligo Analysis on a PCR Sense Primer

To perform oligo analysis on the sense primer given in the first subfolder of the PCR Analysis folder, scroll through the Text Pane and verify that the folder labeled "#1: Product of length 901" is open. (Open it by double-clicking it, if necessary.)

Inside this subfolder, position the cursor on top of the sense primer, represented by the line **ATTACTCTTTTGAATGGTACTCCTG**. Open the corresponding shortcut menu by right clicking on the primer sequence. Choose the **Analyze** command, opening the Oligo Analysis dialog box (Figure 8.11):

Oligo Analysis		<u>? ×</u>		
Oligonucleotide: Length:	25			
ATTACTCTTTTGAATGGT/	ACTECTG			
💿 DNA 🔿 RNA 🛛 🗖 Co	mplementary Analyze	Save Results Close		
Parameters				
dG Temperature (C) 25.0	Mol. Wt			
Probe Conc.(pMol) 250.0	D %GC			
Salt Conc.(mMol) 50.0	Therm. Tm			
% Formamide 0.0	%GC Tm			
3' End Length (bp) 7	dG	Repeats:		
Palindromes (bp) 8	3' End dG			
Nucl. Repeats (bp) 4	dH			
Stem Length (bp) 3	dS			
Dimers & Hairpin Loops				

Figure 8.11 Oligo Analysis dialog box

In this dialog box you can set numerous parameters for oligonucleotide analysis. Leave the default parameters unchanged and press the **Analyze** button.

Note: The calculation for Tm is dependent on primer and salt concentrations; varying these concentrations can greatly affect the Tm for any given primer. Make sure to adjust these parameters according to your reaction conditions when performing your own oligo analysis to ensure that you obtain accurate Tm values.

The analysis results appear in the dialog box. Note the biochemical and structural parameters in the Results column. Press the **Dimers & Hairpin Loops** button to inspect the dimers and hairpin loops that may form if this primer is used.

Press the F1 key to view Vector NTI's on-line help information for this dialog box. Press the **Close** button.

7. Order Custom Primers

In Vector NTI Advance 10, you can order custom primers that you have generated and analyzed in the software. Custom primers are synthetic oligonucleotides made with your specified sequence for use in a variety of applications from PCR and sequencing to probes for gene detection. Custom modifications, such as standard deoxynucleotides, modified bases, 5' modified nucleotides (including fluorescent dyes, enzyme conjugates), and S-oligos for antisense studies can be designated. Specifications also include scale of synthesis, level of purity and 5' or 3' modifications.

To initiate the ordering process, inside the PCR Analysis folder, scroll through the Text Pane and verify that the folder labeled "**#1: Product of length 901**" inside the subfolder is selected by positioning the cursor on top of the sense primer, represented by the line

ATTACTCTTTTGAATGGTACTCCTG. Open the corresponding shortcut menu by right clicking on the primer sequence. Choose the Add to Oligo List command, opening the New Oligo dialog box, with the **General** tab activated. Enter **Sense primer - CoIE1** in the name box and click **OK**. Vector NTI verifies the oligo has been added.

Open the Oligo List dialog box by selecting List > Oligo List. Select the oligo named Sense

primer - CoIE1 and click the Order button (

L	ists								×
	ີ່ ແລ Add	📂 Load	Save	🖾 🕺 Edit Re	X 🗛 🖓 move Analyze	5프 Duplexes	i Order		
	Oligos								
	PRM1(DNA PRM2(DNA): AACGCA): ATCCGT	GTCAGGCACC TAGCGAGGTG	CGTGT Sens CCGC Antis	e primer for PCR ense primer for P	amplification CR amplifica	of 86-1286 re tion of 86-128	egion of pBR322 36 region of pBR322	
	Fragments	Oligos	Gel Samples	Multiplex PC	R Alignment PC	R			

Figure 8.12 Oligo List dialog box

The Invitrogen webpage opens automatically, and your primer sequence is entered in the custom primer order form. If you in reality wanted to order the primers, at this point you would proceed to checkout. For this tutorial, however, simply inspect the Invitrogen Custom Order webpage, then exit and return to the Vector NTI workspace.

8. Save a PCR Primer to the Database

Now let's save the same primer to the database for future use. Right-click on the **ATTACTCTTTTGAATGGTACTCCTG** line in the Text Pane, to open the corresponding shortcut menu and select **Save To Database**. This opens the New Oligo dialog box, with the **General** tab activated (Figure 8.13).

New Oligo	×
General Oligo User Fields Comments Keywords	
Sense primer ColE1	
Type: Oligo	
Record #: 0	
Status: Local (created or modified by current user)	
Originally Created by: Jill Hadfield About	
Creation date: 03/20/03 01:12PM	
Last Modification by: Jill Hadfield About	
Modification date: Unknown	
OK Cancel Apply Help	

Figure 8.13 New Oligo dialog box with the General tab activated

Enter **Sense primer - CoIE1** in the name box and click on the Oligo tab. The oligo sequence and description appear automatically in their respective text boxes.

Click on the **Keywords** tab. Click in the New Keyword entry box and enter **PCR-CoIE1**. Press the **< Add** button to add your new keyword to the keyword list. Then select the existing SENSE_PRIMER keyword and add it to the keywords list, too.

Press the **OK** button. The primer is saved to the database under the name **Sense primer - CoIE1**.

9. Add Restriction Enzyme Sites to the PCR Primers

You will load the sense primer you just saved to the database and then attach sequences to the 5' and 3' ends of the product to allow convenient cloning. Vector NTI will then find an optimum antisense primer.

Activate the Graphics Pane again and make sure the 5200–6400 region is still selected. (Check the status bar.) Open the Find Primers dialog box again by selecting **Analyses > Primer Design > Find PCR Primers** on the menu bar.

Locate the User-Defined Primers box in the Find Primers dialog box by pressing the **More>>** button on the **Primer** tab. (Any previously selected restriction sites will appear in the User-defined Primers Sense and Antisense text boxes by default. To continue with this tutorial, select

each and press the DELETE button so each text box is blank.) Press the **Browse** button (____) to the right of the Sense Primer box. In the dialog box that appears, showing oligonucleotides saved in the database, select the "Sense primer - ColE1" oligo you just saved and click **OK**. The "Sense primer - ColE1" oligo is loaded into the Sense Primer text box (Figure 8.14). Note that you are not specifying the anti-sense primer, but leaving that up to Vector NTI.

To attach a BamHI cloning site to the 5' end of your sense primer, locate the Attach to 5' Termi-

nus of Sense Primer box and press its **Browse** (...) button. In the Choose Database Enzyme dialog box that opens, select the MAIN Enzymes subset. Scroll down to find and select *BamH*I. Click **OK**. The *BamH*I recognition site is entered into the Attach to 5' Terminus of Sense Primer box.

To attach a *Hin*dIII cloning site to the 5' end of the antisense primer, locate the Attach to 5' Terminus of Antisense Primer box and press its **Browse** button. In the dialog box, select the MAIN Enzyme subset and *Hin*dIII and click **OK**. The *Hin*dIII recognition site is entered into the Attach to 5' Terminus of Antisense Primer box.

Find Primers in Selected Region of ColE1				
Primer Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters Region of Analysis From: 5200 bp To: 6400 bp Min: 900 bp Max: 1201 bp				
Maximum Number of Output Options 3				
Salt Conc. [50.0 Probe Conc. [250.0 dG Temperature [25.0 (C)]				
Tm (C) %GC Length © DNA C RNA >= 40.0 >= 20				
<= 65.0 <= 60.0 <= 25 Less <<				
User-Defined Primers				
Sense: ATTACTCTTTTGAATGGTACTCCTG Analyze				
Antisense: Analyze				
Attach to 5' terminus of Sense Primer: GGATCC				
Load Save OK Cancel Apply				

Figure 8.14 The "Sense primer - ColE1" oligo is loaded into the Sense Primer text box; restriction enzymes are designated for the sense primer terminus.

Locate and check the Check Primers for Restriction Sites From check box on the **Structure** tab, directing Vector NTI to search for certain restriction sites in the PCR product-plus-primer fragment you are creating. The restriction sites searched for are listed in the Restriction Endonuclease subset shown in the Check Primers for Restriction Sites From drop-down menu. Choose the **Palindromes/Non-Ambiguous** subset from the list (Figure 8.15).

Find Primers in Sele	ected Region of ColE			×	
Primer Amplicon	Structure Pairs Sin	nilarity 3' end U	Iniqueness Quali	ties Filters	
Nucleotide Repe Max 4	ats Palindro Max Loops, Palindromes, Nu	nes 8 cleotide Repeats Only Within 3' Re	Hairpin Loop Stem Length I Permited with dG and Dimers egion of (bp)	NS >= 3 I >= -1.0 D	
Check Primers for Restriction Sites From Palindromes/Non-Ambiguous					
Load	Save	OK	Cancel	Apply	

Figure 8.15 Searching for certain restriction sites in the PCR product-plus-primer fragment on the Structure tab

Now press **OK** at the lower center of the Find Primers dialog box. Press **OK** when Vector NTI shows the warning dialog box. Click **OK** to override the previous PCR analysis results.

A new PCR analysis is performed using the additional information you have entered.

10. Inspect the New PCR Analysis Results

Inspect the subfolders of the new PCR Analysis results in the Text Pane.

Note that this time, all of the new options use the same sense primer, "Sense primer - CoIE1", and that the REN sequences have been attached at the 5' ends of both primers. (They are separated from the primers by a space.) Only the antisense primers vary because they were not defined in the last dialog box.

The RENs appearing beneath each primer indicate those from the selected Palindromes/Non-Ambiguous subset whose recognition sequences are found within the generated fragment. The number of times that a REN recognition sequence is found within the PCR product is indicated. If no number is given after a REN's name, then that REN is found only in the primer or the attached sequence and not within the product.

11. Save the PCR Product to the Database and Open a Display Window

Place the mouse cursor on the folder labeled "#1: Product of length 919," and open the shortcut menu with a right click. Choose the **Save to Database and Create Window** command. In the dialog box that opens, in the Name field, enter **PCR Product 1**, and click **OK**. Choose the Main subset and click **OK**. The molecule is saved to the database, and a new Molecule Display Window is created containing the molecule.

12. Arrange the View of the Product

Arrange the new Molecule Display window to show your PCR product conveniently. Activate the

Text Pane, and click the **Link Panes** button ()) on the Window Toolbar. Most of the symbols in the Graphics Pane disappear because most of the folders in the Text Pane are closed.

Place the cursor on the Feature map folder and open the shortcut menu. Choose the Expand

Branch button (), opening the Feature map folder and all its subfolders. Now the signals are displayed in the Graphics Pane.

Locate the Restriction Map folder and open it with a double-click. Open the BamHI and HindIII folders by double-clicking them. These sites now appear in the Graphics Pane.

Activate the Graphics Pane and press the **Standard Arrangement** button. Arrange the graphics to fit the window so that the restriction sites and primers can be seen. (Use the SHIFT + **Zoom In**

() and **Zoom Out** () buttons.) Use the CTRL + **Zoom** buttons to change only the horizon-

tal dimensions of the graphical map. (You can enhance your picture further using picture editing techniques described in Chapter 6.)



Figure 8.16 Standard Arrangement of restriction site and functional signal labels

13. Close Display Windows and Exit Vector NTI

This concludes the PCR analysis tutorial. Close all Molecule Display windows using the techniques described in previous tutorials: **File > Close**, then **File > Exit**.

C H A P T E R

TUTORIAL: MOLECULE CONSTRUCTION

Introduction

This chapter introduces you to creation of a new DNA molecule by *Construction*. In Vector NTI terminology, Construction means creating a DNA molecule from fragments that are completely defined and made compatible by the user.

At the end of this tutorial session, you will be able to:

- Use Fragment Wizard to define the needed fragments for the Goal Molecule Definition List
- Name and describe the new molecule in the Construct Molecule dialog box
- Verify that the fragments are correctly defined
- Direct Vector NTI to construct your new molecule
- Modify the fragment termini biochemically, when necessary, to allow completion of the Construction process

DNA molecules can be composed of fragments of existing DNA molecules, linkers, adapters, dummy fragments and so forth. Most of the fragments you will use to create new molecules are fragments of existing molecules, and most of the work involved in creating a new molecule is in defining them. Fragments like linkers and adapters are much easier to describe.

The Fragment Wizard guides you through the process of describing a new molecule fragment. In addition to using the Fragment Wizard, you can define fragments using the Fragment Editors available from the Construct/Design Molecule dialog box. While they can describe fragments of all types, Fragment Editors are most convenient for defining linkers, adapters, and so forth.

Molecules that you or Vector NTI create from fragments of existing molecules are called constructed molecules. Molecules that you import or describe by hand are called basic molecules because they enter the database as complete units rather than being built in Vector NTI from fragments.

For more information regarding other methods of adding new molecules to Vector NTI's database, such as design, importing molecules, assembling a molecule from a sequence text file, refer to Chapters 10 and 11.

1. Launch Vector NTI

Launch Vector NTI using techniques you learned in previous tutorials.

2. Create Display Windows for pBR322 and pUC19

Using the techniques you learned in previous tutorials, click the **Open** button and open pBR322. Then click the **Open** button again to open pUC19. Two display windows are now open, one for each plasmid. Both molecules, pUC19 and pBR322, can be viewed by selecting **Window > Cascade** from the Main menu (Figure 9.1), or you can move from one molecule to the other by selecting the molecule in the drop-down Window menu.



Figure 9.1 Opening and Viewing two Display Windows using the Cascade option in the Window menu.

3. Arrange the Display Windows

Expand the working space for the Graphics and Sequence Panes by reducing the Text Pane in each Display window. Adjust the graphical map for each plasmid so you can easily read the features and labels.

4. Define the First Fragment (from pUC19)

The first fragment of the goal molecule includes most of pUC19, with the 5' end of the fragment being the *Sma*l restriction site and the 3' end being the *Eco*RI restriction site. The second fragment is from pBR322, the 5' end being the *Eco*RI site and the 3' terminus being the *Ava*l restriction site.

Activate the Graphics Pane of the pUC 19 Display window. Click the Add Fragment to Goal

List button ()) to open the Fragment Wizard (Figure 9.2).

This dialog box guides you through the process of fragment selection, with several sequential screens describing the corresponding actions you should take. If you make a mistake you can return to the previous step using the **Back** button.

Fragment Wizard			
What kind of fragment do you want to select?			
Construction fragment (□ insert Inverted)			
C Design Recipient fragment			
C Design Donor fragment			
<u> </u>			
< Back. Next > Finish Cancel			

Figure 9.2 The Fragment Wizard guides you through the process of fragment selection

• First screen (Figure 9.2): Select the Construction Fragment option. Leave the Insert Inverted option unchecked, and click the Next button to proceed.



Figure 9.3 The second screen of the Fragment Wizard determines the 5' terminus

Second screen (Figure 9.3): Drag the dialog box out of the way (*left-click with the cursor* on the blue title bar) so you can see the Smal and EcoRI restriction sites on the molecule graphical map. To determine the 5' terminus of the new fragment, click on the Smal restriction site label in the Graphics Pane. The Set to a Restriction Site option is auto-

matically checked and the name and position of the restriction site is displayed in the Fragment Wizard. Click the **Next** button in the dialog box to proceed.



Figure 9.4 The third screen of the Fragment Wizard determines the 3' terminus

- Third screen (Figure 9.4): To define the 3' terminus of a new fragment, hold the SHIFT key and click on the *EcoRI* restriction site label in the Graphics Pane. The Set to a Restriction Site option is automatically checked and the name and position of the 3' end are displayed.
- **Note:** If you do not hold down the SHIFT key when selecting the 3' end, Fragment Wizard reverts to choosing the 5' site.

Both labels in the Graphics Pane are now highlighted. The selected fragment is indicated by the wire-frame in the Graphics Pane. Click the **Finish** button in this screen to complete the definition of the fragment.

New Frag	ment		? ×
•	Fragment type: Left (5') Terminus: Right (3') Terminus: Add to List	Construction Fragment Site Smal #1 at 415 bp Site EcoRI #1 at 397 bp Cancel	
	Hidd to Elot		

Figure 9.5 Adding the first fragment to the Molecule Goal list

Check the description of the fragment in the New Fragment message box: 5' *Sma*l, and 3' *Eco*RI. If there is an error, press the **Cancel** button and return back to the Fragment Wizard. Otherwise, press the **Add to List** button, adding the first fragment to the Molecule Goal list (Figure 9.5).

5. Define the Second Fragment (from pBR322)

On the toolbar, select **Window > pBR322**, which opens the corresponding Molecule Display

window. Activate the Graphics Pane. Click the **Add Fragment to Goal List** button (¹) to display the Fragment Wizard dialog box again. Move the dialog box so that you can see the *Eco*RI and the *Ava*l restriction sites on the graphical map.

- First screen: Select the Construction Fragment option. Leave the Insert Inverted option unchecked, and click the Next button to proceed.
- Second screen: To determine the 5' end of the new fragment, click on the *Eco*RI restriction site label in the Graphics Pane. The Set to a Restriction Site option is automatically checked, and the name and position of the restriction site are displayed. Click the Next button to proceed.
- Third screen: To define the 3' terminus of the new fragment, hold down the SHIFT key and click on the Aval restriction site label in the Graphics Pane. The Set to a Restriction Site option is automatically checked and the name and position of the restriction site are displayed.

Click the Finish button to complete the definition of the fragment.

In the New Fragment message box, verify the fragment definition: 5' *Eco*RI and 3'*Ava*I. If the description of the fragment is correct, press the **Add to List** button. The second fragment is added to the Molecule Goal list.

6. Inspect the Goal List

To verify that the fragments in the Goal Molecule Definition List are correct, click the **Open Goal**

List button () on the Main Toolbar. This opens the Lists dialog box (Figure 9.6), where the two fragments are listed in the Fragments section.



Figure 9.6 Lists dialog box

7. Enter General Information About the New Molecule

Click the **Run** button. Click in the Name field text box in the Construct Molecule dialog box (Figure 9.7) and enter the name of the new molecule, *TUTORIAL1*.

Construct Molecule		<u>? ×</u>
Create All Possible Constructs With Compatible Fragments	Cpen Display Windows for All	Construct Close
Name: Tutorial 1	© Circular © Linear (ONA C RNA
General Info Start Position:	◯ Position]1 of Frag	ment # 1

Figure 9.7 Construct Molecule dialog box

The radio buttons on the bottom describe the choices for the new molecule start. The first fragment in the list of component fragments is always considered the "recipient" molecule. Click the **Recipient's Start** button to position the start of the new molecule at the same place where pUC19 starts. (If you prefer, you can choose any nucleotide of any component fragment as the starting coordinate of the new molecule by checking the **Position ... of Fragment # ...** button. By default, it's the first nucleotide of the first fragment.

Click the **General Info** button, opening the General Data dialog box where you can specify general information about the new molecule (Figure 9.8).

NEWMOL General Data			? ×
Description:		OK Cance	
Tutorial molecule #1			
Extra-Chromosome Replication	T Yeast	Animal/Other Eukaryot	ic
Replicon Type Plasmid Phagemid Cosmid Virus	Key Words: Hadfield	Hadfield << Add	•
Phage Chromosome		Delete	

Figure 9.8 General Data dialog box, where you can specify general information about the new molecule

- Click in the Description field and type Tutorial molecule #1.
- In the Extra-Chromosome Replication field, check Bacteria.
- In the Replicon Type field, select **Plasmid**.
- In the text entry box of the Key Word area, enter your last name. Press the << Add button to add your last name to the list of keywords for this molecule. Keywords are a convenient way to find molecules you created—just search Vector NTI's database for all molecules with your last name as a keyword.
- Click **OK** to return to the Construct Molecule dialog box.

8. Attempt to Construct the New Molecule

Click the **Construct** button in the upper right corner of the Construct Molecule dialog box. In the Insert Molecule into Main subset dialog box, name your subset **Tutorial** and confirm the creation of the subset. Click **OK**. Vector NTI attempts to construct your new molecule and save it into the database. Vector NTI soon informs you that the left end of fragment #1 (the *Smal* site) is incompatible with the right end of fragment #2 (the *Aval* site).

Vector NTI cannot process your molecule. You must figure out why your fragments are incompatible and modify them appropriately so they are compatible for ligation. If you check the fragment termini, you can see the problem. The blunt 5' end of the pUC19 fragment cannot link with the cohesive 3' end of the pBR322 fragment. You need to modify these termini to make them compatible.

Click **OK** in message dialog boxes to return to the Construct Molecule dialog box.

9. Fill in the Aval Site of the pBR322 Fragment to Make it Blunt

Close the Construct Molecule dialog box to return to the Lists dialog box. In the Fragments section, click on the second fragment in the list ("Molfragment of pBR322"). As you make the selection, the **Edit** button becomes enabled (Figure 9.9).

Lists
Add Edit Delete Up Down Mode: Edit Run Fragments Fragments
Molfragment of pUC19: Left terminus: Smal site #1; Right terminus: EcoRI site #1 Molfragment of pBR322: Left terminus: EcoRI site #1; Right terminus: AvaI site #1
Fragments Oligos Gel Samples Multiplex PCR Alignment PCR

Figure 9.9 Enabling the Edit button in the Lists dialog box

Click the Edit button, opening the Fragment Editor dialog box (Figure 9.10).

Fragment of Molecule	? ×
C Construct C Design Recipient C	Design Donor OK Cancel
Parent Molecule:	
pBR322	Restriction Sites Counted From Nucleotide
Inverted	
Left Terminus EcoRI site #1	
Right Terminus Aval site #1	
For De	sign Donors Only
Descriptor(s):	Add Subset of Parents:
	Jelete Maximum Left Flank Region Right Flank Region

Figure 9.10 Fragment Editor dialog box

Click on the **Right Terminus** button, because you need to modify the *Ava*l site that makes up this fragment's right terminus. The Terminus Editor dialog box opens (Figure 9.11).

Right Terminus	<u>?</u> ×
Terminus Type	ОК
Restriction Site Aval	Cancel
O Nucleotide Context	
C Position	During Design
C End of Molecule	🗖 Save Site
O Not Defined	🗖 Lose Site
Site or Context Data	
Number: Point: Region: 1	
Biochemical Operations	
Completely filled in bp	
None bp	
None Dp	

Figure 9.11 Terminus Editor dialog box

Because you need to perform a biochemical "operation" on the ends of the fragment, in the Terminus Editor, look in the Biochemical Operations section in the lower left corner. Although Vector NTI can handle up to three sequential biochemical operations per terminus, you need to perform only one, filling in the cohesive Aval site. Click in the first biochemical operations box. From the list of allowable options, choose **Completely Filled In**. Then click **OK** in the Terminus Editor and **OK** in the Fragment Editor, returning you to the List dialog box.

Click the **Run** button on the Lists dialog box to launch the Construct Molecule dialog box. Redefine the molecule's name, Tutorial 1, if necessary. Press the **Construct** button. Select the "Tutorial" subset in the Insert DNA/RNA Molecule(s) into Subset dialog box and click **OK**. In the new dialog box, click the **Overwrite** button to overwrite your previously saved TUTORIAL1. Vector NTI analyzes your molecule and this time enters it into the database. Close the Lists dialog box.

10. Inspect Your New Molecule

After creating the new molecule and saving it to the database, a new Molecule Display window opens with your new molecule. Find TC(R) on TUTORIAL1's graphical map. The molecule's functional and restriction maps are created automatically. *Vector NTI is able to create the maps and nucleotide sequences for new molecules with complete accuracy, even in the most complicated cloning situations.*



Figure 9.12 Inspecting the two fragments used to create your new molecule

In the Text Pane, open the folder called "Component Fragments". The two fragments that you used to make this molecule are listed (Figure 9.12). Their subfolders describe the left and right termini of each fragment.

Congratulations, you have created your first new molecule with Vector NTI! You defined all of the necessary restriction sites and biochemical operations to clone a fragment from pBR322 into pUC19 in the user-defined process called *Construction*. In Vector NTI's *Design* mode, described in the next chapter, the program itself determines the recombinant strategy.

11. Close the Display Windows and Exit Vector NTI

To finish your session with Vector NTI, close the Molecule Display windows and exit the program using the methods you learned in previous tutorials.

C H A P T E R

TUTORIAL: MOLECULE DESIGN

Introduction

This chapter introduces you to the creation of a new molecule by *Design*, Vector NTI's term for using its built-in biological knowledge for new molecule creation. In Design, the user defines the molecule fragments, but the restriction sites, methods of terminus modification, etc., are left up to Vector NTI. The Design process results in a construction plan that takes advantage of the best possible restriction sites and recombinant strategy.

At the end of this tutorial session, you will be able to:

- Define the recipient and donor fragments for Design, using the Fragment Wizard
- Confirm the correct order of recipient and donor fragments in the Design Molecule dialog box
- Name and describe the new molecule
- Specify Design parameters and preferences
- Direct Vector NTI to design the new molecule

Fragments are described as they were for molecule construction. Fragments for Design, however, must consist of exactly one recipient fragment from the parent molecule, which must be listed first in the Goal Molecule Definition List, and one or more donor fragments. Every nucleotide in the designated recipient fragment is included in the final molecule. Vector NTI searches the parent molecule nucleotides outside of the recipient fragment to try to find convenient restriction sites for inserting donor fragment(s).

You may want to indicate a specific restriction site at one or both ends of the recipient fragment. If a terminus of the recipient fragment is a restriction site, then Vector NTI automatically uses that restriction site in building the new molecule. You may request to save or lose such a specific restriction site. If it is not specified that the site should be retained, then that site may disappear from the final created molecule even if you did not specify that the site must be lost.

Fragments other than that listed first on the list are called donor fragments. Because the purpose of donor fragments is to carry functional signals into the recipient, you should describe a donor fragment, not by its termini, but by the functional signals it contains. Thus when you define

a donor fragment in a Molecule Display window, you should click on specific functional signals. Every nucleotide of these specific functional signals is included in the goal molecule, but nucleotides outside these functional signals may or may not be included in the goal molecule. Without at least one functional signal, a fragment cannot be treated as a donor fragment.

A donor fragment can contain flanking regions outside the functional signals. In describing a donor fragment, if you drag the edges of the selection zone beyond the functional signals you have targeted, the fragment will be defined as the functional signal(s) plus flanking nucleotides. You have defined the maximum allowable flanking regions. Vector NTI tries to reduce the flanking regions of donor fragments to be as small as possible, but does not go outside of these flanking regions when looking for restriction sites.

In this exercise, you will perform essentially the same cloning procedure as you did in the Construction tutorial. This time, however, you will simply define the fragments and allow Vector NTI to design the rest.

Follow the steps of the tutorial in the order shown. Figures show what your screen should look like at various points along the way.

1. Launch Vector NTI and Create Display Windows for pBR322 and pUC19

Launch Vector NTI using techniques you learned in previous tutorials. Open Molecule Display windows containing the molecules pBR322 and pUC19.

2. Arrange Display Windows

In order to view both windows, select **Window > Tile Vertical**. The display screen for both molecules appears at the same time, making it easy to work with them side by side (Figure 10.1). Activate either window (indicated by a dark blue title bar) with a left click. Using the split bars, reduce the Text and Sequence Panes for each molecule to optimize viewing the molecule maps. Use the SHIFT + **Zoom** buttons to arrange the panes so you can easily read the features and labels.



Figure 10.1 Displaying two screens using Tile Vertical feature

3. Define the Recipient Fragment (from pUC19)

For the goal molecule, the recipient fragment is most of the pUC19 molecule. (Molecule pBR322 provides the donor fragment.) In the pUC19 Display window, activate the Graphics Pane. Click

the **Add Fragment to Goal List** button (), opening the Fragment Wizard. You learned in the previous tutorial that Fragment Wizard guides you through the process of fragment selection.

- First screen: Select the Design Recipient Fragment option and click Next.
- Second screen: For the 5' terminus of the new fragment, in the Set To a Position option, enter 500 in the text box. Click Next.
- Third screen: Enter 250 in the Set to a Position text box to define the 3' terminus. Click the Finish button to complete the definition of the recipient fragment.

New Fra	gment		?
٩	Fragment type: Left (5') Terminus: Right (3') Terminus:	Design Recipient Position 500 bp Position 250 bp	
	Add to List	Cancel	

Figure 10.2 New Fragment message box

In the New Fragment message box, check the description of the fragment (Figure 10.2). If correct, click the **Add to List** button, adding the recipient fragment to the Molecule Goal list.

In the Graphics Pane, the recipient fragment is marked with a wire-frame. Note that the polylinker near the 2 o'clock position is *outside* the selection. If you included the polylinker in the selection, Vector NTI would not be able to use those restriction sites because *every nucleotide included within the selection zone in the recipient fragment will be included in the final molecule.*

4. Define the Donor Fragment (from pBR322)

In the pBR322 Display window, activate the Graphics Pane, then click the **Add Fragment to Goal List** button (

- First screen: Select the Design Donor Fragment radio button. Click Next.
- Second screen: Move the cursor until it is over the TC(R) arrow or label in the Graphics Pane. Drag the Fragment Wizard out of the way, if necessary. The cursor changes to a hand (,), indicating that you are pointing directly at a functional signal. Click once to select the entire TC(R) signal. The selection wire-frame appears, aligned directly with the start and end of TC(R). The name of the signal is displayed in the Fragment Wizard.

Click the **Finish** button. The default values are used to complete the definition of the fragment. Continuing with the Fragment Wizard allows specifications for more complicated design, to be covered in the next chapter.

In the New Fragment message box, check the donor fragment description. Note that the 3' and 5' termini of the donor fragment are described (correctly) as "Undefined". Click the **Add to List** button, adding the donor fragment to the Molecule Goal list.

5. Inspect the Goal Molecule Definition List

Click the **Open Goal List** button () in the main toolbar, opening the Lists dialog box. Notice that the **Design** button is selected, indicating that Vector NTI already has recognized that your fragments are for Design and not Construction.

In the Goal Molecule Definition List appearing in the Fragments section of the dialog box, inspect the two fragments you defined. For the recipient fragment (pUC 19, listed first), the termini are defined by nucleotide positions. For the donor fragment (pBR322, listed second), the termini are not defined (NODEF), but the fragment must contain the TC(R) descriptor.

Note: For Design to proceed correctly, recipient and donor fragments must be listed correctly. If one is listed incorrectly, select it and use the **Up** and **Down** buttons to reposition it.

6. Enter General Information for Your New Molecule

Click the **Run** button. Although this box is almost identical to the Construct Molecule dialog box, in the previous chapter, its name and operational mode have changed to Design Molecule. This is a result of the molecule building process you designated in the Fragment Wizard.

In the **Name** text box, enter the name of the molecule, *TUTORIAL2*. Click the **General Info** button. In the General Data dialog box, in the Description field, enter *Tutorial molecule #2*.

Set the Extra-Chromosome Replication type to **Bacteria** and the Replicon Type to **Plasmid**. To enter your last name as a keyword, select it from the existing keyword list in the drop-down menu and click the **<< Add** button.

Click **OK** to return to the Design Molecule dialog box (Figure 10.3).

Check the **Recipient's Start** button in the radio button group on the bottom of the Design Molecule dialog box to position the start of the new molecule at the same place where the recipient molecule (pUC19) starts.

	Design Molecule
Add Edit Delete Up Down	Design
Fragments	Create Best Options L Upen Display Windows for All
Molfragment of pUC19: Left terminus: position 500; Right terminus: position 250 Molfragment of pBR322: Left terminus: NODEF; Right terminus: NODEF; Descriptors: CDS, Name: TC(R)	Name: Tutorial 2 C Dicular C Linear C DNA C RNA
	General Info
Fragments Oligos Gel Samples Multiplex PCR Alignment PCR	Start Position: C Recipient's Start C Position 1 of Fragment # 1

Figure 10.3 Entering general information for your new molecule in the Design Molecule dialog box

7. Prepare to Design the New Molecule

Click the **Design** button in the upper right corner of the Design Molecule dialog box. When asked, select the "Tutorial" subset you created in the last tutorial, and click **OK** to continue. The Design Parameters dialog box opens (Figure 10.4).

Design Parameters		? ×
REN Subbases: MAIN common freezer Palindromes/Non-Ambiguous	Transformation System ✓ Bacteria ✓ Yeast ✓ Animal/Other Eukaryotic Extra-Chromosome Replication – ✓ Bacteria ✓ Yeast ✓ Animal/Other Eukaryotic	Start Design Cancel Preferences PCR Primers Parameters Quality
Dephosphorylation Permittee	🛛 🔲 Fragment List Gives Order o	f Cloning Steps
🔽 Try to Lose Junction Sites	🔲 Fragment List Gives Order in	r Goal Molecule
Delete Regi	ion of Length bp	
Phage Size	May be Changed by 📃 🎖	

Figure 10.4 Design Parameters dialog box

Here you can select the subsets of restriction endonucleases (RENs) that Vector NTI considers when designing the new molecule. For example, you could create a subset listing the RENs you

have on hand in the laboratory and tell Vector NTI to design the new molecule using only those enzymes.

You can also indicate the transformation systems to be used in your experiments, as well as the presence or lack of extra-chromosome replication capability of your molecule in those transformation systems. You can permit or forbid the use of dephosphorylation as a pre-selection method, etc.

Make sure that the Palindromes/Non-Ambiguous REN subset is selected. For this tutorial, leave all other parameters at their default values.

8. Set Your Preferences for Molecule Design

Now click on the **Preferences** button, opening the Design Preferences dialog box (Figure 10.5) In this box, you can choose the parameters *you* prefer to create new molecules. You can designate which genetic engineering techniques are permissible and assign priorities for use of the permissible techniques. You can set preferences in the categories of fragment isolation, fragment ligation, and terminus modification.

Design Preferences				
Fragment Isolation ✓ Partial Digestion (Simple) Partial Digestion (Medium) Partial Digestion (Complicated) ✓ PCR	Ligation Junction 1Junction 2 CohesiveCohesive ShortShort CohesiveBlunt ShortBlunt BluntBlunt	Terminus Modification Enzymes ↓ Linkers Adaptors For Separation in Gel Minimum Relative Differe in Fragment Lengths (%):	OK Cancel Advanced	
For Complicated Partial Digestion Number of Sites Inside Required Fragment: 5 Total Number of Sites: 20				
What's Better PCR PD (Simple) PD (Medium) PD (Complicated) Down Cohesive/Short Short/Short Cohesive/Slunt Down Down Cohesive/Slunt Down Cohesive/Slunt Down Down Cohesive/Slunt Down Cohesive/Slunt Down Cohesive/Slunt Down Cohesive/Slunt Down Cohesive/Slunt Down Cohesive/Slunt Cohesive/Slu				

Figure 10.5 Design Preferences dialog box, where you can choose parameters to create new molecules

You may find it useful for Vector NTI to design the same goal molecule several times, changing the design preferences each time. This gives you several alternatives for constructing your molecule.

Let's change the preferences for fragment ligation. Turn off the check box for blunt-blunt ligation. In a blunt-blunt ligation, both the donor and the recipient have only blunt termini. Since we are deactivating this option, Vector NTI will make sure that all fragments have at least one cohesive end.

Below the check boxes are priority lists specifying which of the techniques are preferable. Leave these at their default values.

With the **Advanced** Preferences, accessible through the Design Preferences dialog box, you could alter the way Vector NTI's evaluates possible design paths. For this tutorial, ignore the Advanced Design Settings.

Click the **OK** button, accepting the Design Preferences and returning to the Design Parameters dialog box.

9. Design the New Molecule

Click the **Start Design** button. Vector NTI generates many possible ways of cloning the donor into the recipient and seeks the best solution using its biological knowledge and the preferences you indicated. An optimum cloning method is quickly found and the goal molecule is created based on that best option.

10. Inspect the New Molecule

When the design is complete, Vector NTI opens a new Molecule Display window containing the molecule you have created (Figure 10.6).



Figure 10.6 Inspecting the new molecule you have created

Maximize and inspect the graphical map and text description of your new molecule. In the Text Pane, the new Design Description folder contains instructions for creating TUTORIAL 2 at the laboratory bench.

11. Inspect the Design Plan

To verify the restriction enzymes used in the design process, they must be specified in the restriction enzyme display list. This is accomplished by clicking the Display Setup (
) button on the Pane Selection toolbar.

In the Molecule Display Setup dialog box, check the **Restriction Map** checkbox and press the **RMap Setup** button to specify the restriction sites to be displayed. The Restriction Map Setup dialog box displays in the Use Enzymes column the restriction enzymes, whose sites are shown by default. To include the enzymes from the design process in the display list, click the **< Add** button.

In the Choose Database Enzymes dialog box, with the Palindromes/Non-ambiguous subset selected in the Look in: pull -down menu at the top of the dialog box, select *CfrJ4I* and *Ball* from the list of available restriction enzymes. Click **OK**. For more information, See *Restriction Map Setup* on page 219.

In the Text Pane, open the Design Description folder and its subfolder labeled Step #1.

• Vector NTI uses the CfrJ4I and EcoRI sites of the recipient, and the EcoRI and Ball sites of the donor. The donor fragment has short flanking regions on either side of the func-

tional signal TC(R). The sites chosen are compatible, so no biochemical operations are necessary to modify the termini.

- With the selected restriction sites, each fragment has one cohesive end and one blunt end, so blunt-blunt ligation is avoided as requested. The selected cloning option gives the required orientation of the cloned fragment in the recipient.
- One of the recipient's restriction sites—*CfrJ*4I—is lost after ligation. This allows preselection of ligated molecules using *CfrJ*4I before transformation. Because the recipient's *CfrJ*4I site is lost in the successful cloning process, this prescreening eliminates improperly ligated fragments. As only one transformation system (bacteria) was designated, Vector NTI suggests no alternatives. If you had permitted several transformation systems, Vector NTI would have chosen the system that involves the least effort.
- For clone analysis after transformation, Vector NTI suggests using the restriction enzyme *Aaa*l. Its recognition site is new in the recombinant molecule and does not exist in the recipient.
- For alternative methods of clone analysis, the system recommends an oligonucleotide for colony hybridization and PCR primers to use in that technique.
- Vector NTI lists restriction sites close to the cloned fragment that can be used to isolate the cloned fragment from the recombinant molecule: *Eco*RI and *Bsp*AAII. *Vector NTI has only considered the restriction endonucleases in the REN subset selected in the Design Parameters dialog box.*
- The Design Description folder shows what sites the recombinant lacks, and lists all unique sites on the recombinant, divided into two groups, those inside the cloned fragment and those outside.

If the design were to consist of more than one cloning step, similar information would be given in a separate folder for each stage of the process.

12. Print Out the Design Plan

To print the design plan generated for your new molecule, activate the Text Pane of the TUTORIAL2 Display window. Close all of the folders, then open the Design Description folder

and the Step #1 subfolder. Click the **Print Active Pane** button (¹²⁾) on the Window Toolbar, and the open folders in the Text Pane are printed to your printer. You now have a hard copy of the Design Plan for TUTORIAL 2.

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

C H A P T E R

TUTORIAL: ADVANCED MOLECULE DESIGN

Introduction

In the previous two tutorials, you were introduced to simple molecule creation using Vector NTI's Construction and Design tools. This chapter introduces you to more complex Design procedures. In the first scenario, you will assign some complex conditions to the recipient molecule, leaving the donor fragment relatively simple. In the second, you will use a relatively simple recipient but make the donor fragment more complex. Since you are probably getting tired of pBR322 and pUC19, let's change molecules. You will now use BPV1 and SV40.

At the end of this tutorial session, you will be able to:

- Define the recipient and donor fragments for Design using Fragment Wizard, placing complex requirements upon the recipient.
- Define the recipient and donor fragments for Design using Fragment Wizard, placing complex requirements upon the donor.
- Describe the new molecule.
- Design the new molecule.

Follow the steps in the order shown. Figures show what your screen should look like at various points along the way.

1. Launch Vector NTI, Open and Arrange Display Windows

Launch Vector NTI using techniques you learned in previous tutorials.

Using techniques you learned in previous tutorials, open Molecule Display windows for molecules BPV1 and SV40. Select **Window > Tile Vertical** to work with the molecules side by side. Since you will be working with the molecules' graphical maps, arrange the display windows conveniently.

First Design: Complicated Recipient

In the first complex design, you will insert SV40's LARGE_T gene into the second ApaLI site of BPV1. You will direct Vector NTI to save the 5' ApaLI site and prohibit blunt-blunt fragments. If

the donor has ApaLI sites appropriate for cutting the cloned fragment, then the problem will be simple. If not, the system must take a more complicated approach to perform the insertion.

2. Define the Recipient Fragment

In the BPV1 Display window, activate the Graphics Pane. Open the Fragment Wizard using the **Add Fragment to Goal List** button () as you did in the previous tutorials, and follow these steps:

• First screen: Select the Design Recipient Fragment option. Click the Next button.

- Second screen: To define 5' terminus, click on the label of the ApaLI restriction site #2 in the Graphics Pane (nucleotide 7631, or about the 11 o'clock position). Click the **Next** button to continue.
- Third screen: Select Save Site to save the ApaLI site on 5' end of the recipient fragment. Click the Next button.
- Fourth screen: To define the 3' terminus, press SHIFT + CLICK on the same ApaLI site. The name and the position of the site are now displayed in the Fragment Wizard. Click the Finish button to complete the definition of the recipient fragment.

New Frag	ment		? ×
٩	Fragment type: Left (5') Terminus: Right (3') Terminus:	Design Recipient Site ApaLI #2 at 7631 bp (save) Site ApaLI #2 at 7631 bp	
	Add to List	Cancel	

Figure 11.1 New Fragment message box, with 3' and 5' termini of the recipient fragment set on the same ApaLI site

In the New Fragment message box, inspect the recipient fragment. Note that the 3' and 5' termini of the recipient fragment are set on the same ApaLI site (Figure 11.1). Click the **Add to List** button, adding the recipient fragment to the Molecule Goal list.

3. Define the Donor Fragment

Switch to the SV40 Display window and activate its Graphics Pane. Open the Fragment Wizard again:

- First screen: Select the Design Donor Fragment option on the first screen; click the Next button.
- Second screen: Click on the LARGE_T signal's symbol or label in the Graphics Pane to select it. Click the **Finish** button in the Fragment Wizard.

Inspect the donor fragment in the New Fragment message box, and click **Add to List** button. (Figure 11.2) The donor fragment is added to the Molecule Goal List.

4. Inspect the Goal Molecule Definition List

Click the **Open Goal List** button () in the main toolbar, opening the Lists dialog box. The Fragments section of the dialog box contains the Goal Molecule Definition List, listing the two fragments you defined. The recipient fragment (BPVI) must be the first in the Goal Molecule Definition List. (If it is not, select the fragment, then click the **Up** button to move it into the correct position.)

Highlight the SV40 fragment and click the **Edit** button, opening the Fragment Editor dialog box. Click the **Inverted** check box to change LARGE_T's direction to match the recipient's direction and click **OK**.

You could leave LARGE_T in its original orientation if you want to; the system will design your new molecule either way. We have changed LARGE_T to Inverted only to demonstrate that Vector NTI can clone fragments in different orientations.

5. Enter General Information for Your New Molecule

Click the **Run** button. Enter the name and description for you new molecule as you learned in previous tutorials:

- Name the molecule TUTORIAL 3.
- Click the General Info button, opening the General data dialog box.
- In the Description field, enter Tutorial molecule #3.
- Set the Replicon Type to Plasmid.
- Turn on the Bacteria Extra-Chromosome Replication option.
- Enter your name as a keyword.
- Click OK to return to the Design Molecule dialog box.
- Check the Recipient's Start button in the radio button group to position the new molecule start at the same place (if possible) where the recipient molecule (BPV1) starts.

6. Prepare to Design the New Molecule

Click the **Design** button in the upper right corner of the Design Molecule dialog box. When asked for a subset name, select the **Tutorial** subset you created before; click **OK** to continue.

The Design Parameters dialog box appears. Leave all the settings at their default values and move on to the next step.

7. Set the Design Preferences

Click on the **Preferences** button, opening the Design Preferences dialog box. Note that the blunt-blunt ligation box is already turned off. Vector NTI remembers your previous design preferences so that you do not have to set them every time you design a new molecule.

Below the check boxes are priority lists specifying which of the techniques are preferable. Leave these at their default values.

Click the **OK** button to accept the Design Preferences and return to the Design Parameters dialog box.

8. Design the New Molecule

Click the **Start Design** button. As before, an optimum cloning method is quickly found, and the goal molecule is constructed based on that best option.

9. Inspect the New Molecule

When the design is complete Vector NTI opens a new Molecule Display window containing the molecule you have created (Figure 11.2).



Figure 11.2 Inspecting the new molecule you have created

10. Inspect the Graphical Map and Text Description of Your New Molecule

To verify the restriction enzymes used in the design process, they must be specified in the restriction enzyme display list. This is accomplished by clicking the Display Setup (E) button on the Pane Selection toolbar.

In the Molecule Display Setup dialog box, check the **Restriction Map** checkbox and press the **RMap Setup** button to specify the restriction sites to be displayed. The Restriction Map Setup dialog box displays in the Use Enzymes column the restriction enzymes, whose sites are shown by default. To include the enzymes from the design process in the display list, click the **< Add** button.

In the Choose Database Enzymes dialog box, with the Palindromes/Non-ambiguous subset selected in the Look in: pull -down menu at the top of the dialog box, select *Acc*EBI and *M.Ngo*AV from the list of available restriction enzymes. Click **OK**. For more information, See *Restriction Map Setup* on page 219.

Activate the Text Pane, and open TUTORIAL 3's Design Description folder and the Step #1 subfolder. Review the description of how to create TUTORIAL 3. In particular, note the following:

You defined a specific ApaLI site on the recipient molecule as the site into which the donor fragment was to be cloned. You also requested that Vector NTI save this site in the recombinant molecule. ApaLI was not a unique site, so Vector NTI had to use partial digestion to isolate the recipient. Then the system had to find a way to insert the donor fragment. There may not have been any good sites available on the donor fragment to fit into the recipient's ApaLI site; therefore, Vector NTI excised the donor fragment with convenient sites that did not require partial digestion and left short flank regions, AccEBI and M.NgoAV. These termini were then filled in completely and ApaLI linkers were attached to the blunt ends. This fragment was then cloned into the recipient.

- You can be sure the cloned fragment contains no ApaLI sites (Vector NTI checked this when selecting a linker) and that there were no easier ways to perform this cloning.
- The rest of TUTORIAL 3's Design Description is similar to the Design Description of TUTORIAL 2, designed in the previous tutorial. However, because the 5' and 3' termini of the recipient for TUTORIAL 3 are identical, we need to know how to distinguish clones with the proper orientation. Thus a new paragraph appears in TUTORIAL 3's design description, recommending that the Aaul and ApaLI restriction sites would allow you to distinguish between different insert orientations upon gel analysis.

You may print out this design plan if you wish, and then proceed to the next design task.

Second Design: Complex Donor Fragment

You will now design a second molecule based on BPV1 and SV40, this time making the donor more complicated rather than the recipient.

1. Define Recipient

Return to the BPV1 Display window's Graphics Pane and open the Fragment Wizard:

- First screen: Select the Design Recipient Fragment option and click the Next button.
- Second screen: Select the Set to a Position option and enter *5000* as the position of the 5' terminus. Click the **Next** button.
- Third screen: To define the 3' terminus, select the Set to a Position option again; enter *2500*. Click the **Finish** button.

Inspect the results in the message box, and click the **Add to List** button. The recipient fragment is added to the Molecule Goal List.

2. Define Donor

Switch to the SV40 Display window's Graphics Pane and open the Fragment Wizard.

- First screen: Select the Design Donor Fragment option and click the Next button.
- Second screen: Click on the LARGE_T signal's symbol or label in the Graphics Pane to select it. Click the Next button.
- **Third screen:** The default option on the next screen is "Leave terminus Undefined." Do not change this option; click the **Next** button.
- Fourth screen: On this flank region screen, you can specify the maximum size of the flank region or let Vector NTI use all available space outside the selected signal. Select the Use flank region no larger than option. You can either enter the maximum length in the text box or select the fragment in the Graphics Pane. Move your cursor over the 5' end of the selection wire-frame in the Graphics Pane (indicated by the $\bigoplus_{i=1}^{n}$, symbol). Click and drag the 5' end to the position at about nucleotide 2250. The current position is displayed in the status bar. (Remember you can use SHIFT + right and left arrow keys to fine-tune the selection.) The edit box in the Fragment Wizard shows you the maximum size of the flank region (it should be about 400 nucleotides). When you are finished, click the Next button to go to the 3' terminus screen.
- Fifth screen: Specify here that Vector NTI should use the *Ncol* restriction site at nucleotide 38 to cut the 3' terminus of the donor fragment. Select the Use specific site option, SHIFT + CLICK on the Ncol restriction site at nucleotide 38. (Drag the Fragment Wizard out of the way, if necessary). The name and the position of the restriction site appear in the

Fragment wizard screen. Click the **Finish** button to complete the definition of the donor fragment.



Figure 11.3 New Fragment message box

In the New Fragment message box, inspect the selected donor fragment. Note that the 5' terminus is described as "Undefined," with the specified maximum length of a flank region and the 3' terminus is set to the *Ncol* site (Figure 11.3). Click the **Add to List** button, adding the donor fragment to the Molecule Goal list.

3. Inspect the Goal List

Click the **Open Goal List** button to open the List dialog box and inspect the fragments you have defined. The recipient fragment (BPV1) must be listed first in the Goal Molecule Definition List. Select the donor fragment (SV40) and press the **Edit** button, opening the Fragment Editor. One end of the donor is determined by a restriction site, while the other end has a flank region defined. This makes the situation considerably more complicated than our previous cases, where the donors were more simply defined. Click the **Inverted** check box and click **OK**.

4. Design the New Molecule

Click the **Run** button. Enter the name **TUTORIAL 4** and enter the other necessary information about the new molecule. Check the **Recipient's Start** button to make the start of the new molecule at the same place (if possible) where the recipient molecule (BPV1) starts.

Click the **Design** button in the upper right corner of the dialog box. Select the "Tutorial" subset for the molecule and click **OK** to continue. Leave the Design Preferences at their default settings and click the **Start Design** button. After a few moments, Vector NTI produces a workable design for the molecule you have requested.

5. Inspect and Print the New Molecule

To verify the restriction enzymes used in the design process, as mentioned in the previous tutorial, they must be specified in the restriction enzyme display list. Using the skills you learned previously in this tutorial, add AccEBI to the restriction enzyme display list.

In the new Molecule Display window containing TUTORIAL 4, inspect the Step #1 subfolder of the Design Description folder. In this case, despite the more complex conditions you specified, Vector NTI found a simple and convenient design. Both donor and recipient can be isolated at the Ncol and AccEBI sites, so the cloning is straightforward.

You specified a maximum flank region of about 400 nucleotides; Vector NTI found a good AccEBI site, allowing the actual flank region to stay within the assigned limit.

If you wish, print out the design description and/or graphical map of TUTORIAL 4.

C H A P T E R

TUTORIAL: GEL DISPLAY WINDOWS; RESTRICTION DIGESTION

Introduction

This chapter introduces you to Vector NTI's Gel Display windows, powerful tools for running and analyzing Gel electrophoresis. Vector NTI predicts the results of actual Gel electrophoresis experiments and displays them in text and graphics form.

At the end of this tutorial session, you will be able to:

- Open a new Gel Display window
- Create a gel marker (size standard)
- Add samples and gel markers to a "virtual" gel
- "Run" the gel and animate it
- Calculate the time needed to separate a specific fragment
- Manipulate gel graphics

Follow the steps in the order shown. Figures show what your screen should look like at various points along the way.

1. Launch Vector NTI

Launch Vector NTI using techniques learned in previous tutorials. Open the Vector NTI workspace window and maximize it.

2. Create a New Gel and Open a Display Window

Click the **New Gel** button (**III**) on the Main Toolbar to create a new Gel. In the Gel Setup dialog box that opens (Figure 12.1), you can define your own gel and electrophoresis parameters, such as:

- gel type (agarose, polyacrylamide, ...)
- gel concentration
- gel dimensions
- voltage

Gel Setup	<u>?</u> ×
Electrophoresis Profile	OK
Save Settings As Remove	Saved Settings
Electrophoresis Type C Agarose (Constant Field) C Polyacrylamide (Constant Field) C Pulse Field	Electrophoresis Parameters Gel Concentration (%) 1.0 Applied Field (V/cm) 2.5 Length of Gel (cm) 15.0
View ParametersTime Increment (min)15.0Animation Speed (min/sec)5.0Separation Distance (cm)0.10	Pulse Time (sec) 2.0 Buffer Tris-Acetate (TAE) Tris-Borate (TBE)

Figure 12.1 Gel Setup dialog box, where you can define your own gel and electrophoresis parameters

Leave all of the default gel settings.

From the Electrophoresis Profile drop down menu, select the **Examples of Agarose Gel** and click **OK**. Your new gel opens in the Gel Display window. Maximize the window.

3. Create a Sample and Add it to the Gel

The Display window that opens displays an empty gel ready to receive samples. Your sample will consist of the SV40 molecule cut by the HaeIII and HindIII restriction endonucleases.

Click the **Create Sample** button (III) on the Window toolbar. In the Create Gel Sample dialog box that opens (Figure 12.2), in the Molecules box, select SV40. In the Enzymes box, scroll to select HaeIII and HindIII. As you select the molecule and RENs, their names appear in the Selected for Gel Sample column on the right side of the dialog box.

In the Sample Name box near the bottom of the dialog box, enter **Sample I**. In the Description box, enter **SV40 cut by HaellI and HindllI**.

Create Gel Sample		? ×	
Add to Gel Add to G	el Sample List 📔 Save as Ge	Marker Close	
Source Molecules Subset: MAIN	Source Enzymes Subset: MAIN	Selected for Gel Sample Molecules: SV40	
Molecules: RAP1 RGS1 RGS3 SCYGR244C SKP1A SMT3H1 SV40 T7 X174 YAL038W YAL054C YBR196C YCL040W	Enzymes: Hin1II Hin2I Hin4I Hin6I Hin6II Hin6II Hin6II Hin6II Hin7II Hin7II Hin7II Hin7II Hin7II Hin7II Hin7II V Select All Unselect All	Enzymes: (Check for Partial Digestion) HaeIII HindIII	
Sample Name: Sample 1			
Description: SV40 cut by	HaellI and HindIII		

Figure 12.2 Create Gel Sample dialog box

Click the **Add to Gel** button in the upper left corner of the dialog box. Vector NTI cuts SV40 with the two RENs and adds the resulting fragments to the gel shown in the active Gel Display window. Click the **Close** button to close the dialog box.

4. Add Gel Markers

Now let's add three gel markers as size standards for the gel.

Click the **Add Marker Lane** button (E) on the Window toolbar. The dialog box that opens displays the gel markers currently stored in the database. Add the following gel markers:

- Lane 2: Select the PBR322-HaellI gel marker; click OK.
- Lane 3: Select SPP-EcoRI; click OK.

No lambda-HindIII size marker appears in the Vector NTI database. Because it's a commonly used size standard, let's create our own. Select **Gel > Create Gel Marker** on the menu bar. In the New Gel Marker dialog box, on the General tab, enter Lambda HindIII. On the Gel Marker tab, enter each fragment size, then click the **Add** button: 23130, 9416, 6557, 4361, 2322, 2027, 560. Click **OK**.

• Lane 4: Select Lambda HindIII, your newly created gel marker. Click OK.

5. Arrange the Gel Display Window Conveniently

Using the split bars, scroll bars and Zoom buttons, arrange the Gel Display window to your liking (Figure 12.3).



Figure 12.3 Arranging the Gel Display window

6. Inspect the Gel Display Window Text Pane

Activate the Text Pane of your Gel Display window by clicking the **Text Pane** button (**L**) and inspect its contents. The General Description folder describes the electrophoresis parameters. There is also a folder for each lane of the gel.

Open the folder "1. Sample 1" by double clicking on it or clicking on [+]. Open the folder representing the longest fragment in the sample, labeled 861. For this fragment, the source molecule is SV40, and the ends of the fragment are the HindIII site found at position 4003 and the HaeIII site found at position 4864. Note that the source of the fragment is described. There are also subfolders for each fragment in decreasing order of length. Close the Sample 1 folder with a double-click.

Double click the folder labeled "SPPI – EcoRI" the gel marker found in lane 3 of the gel, and open the subfolder "8000". Note that it is empty. The folder is empty because for gel marker fragments, only the length is stored in the database.

7. Change Display Color for a Fragment

You can use the Text Pane to change the color and style for displaying fragments. Open the SAMPLE1 folder again. Scroll down to a folder labeled "540 [length of fragment]" and open its associated shortcut menu.

Choose **Sample Fragment Properties**. In the dialog box that opens, you can choose line style and color for this fragment. Leave the line unchanged, but change the color to green.

As the gel runs, you can locate the 540-bp fragment by looking for the green color.

8. Run the Gel

To run the gel, activate the gel pane. Click the **Fit To Window** button ((), causing the gel display to fit exactly within the current window.

Click the **Step Forward** button () in the Window Toolbar. The time indicator increases by fifteen minutes, and the fragments advance in the "gel". Click the **Step Forward** button several more times.

Click the **Step Back** button (**1**) in the Window toolbar. The time indicator and gel display now back up.

Now click once in the time indicator box to activate it. Enter **1:30** in the time indicator box, and press Enter. The gel display is set for 1 hour and 30 minutes of elapsed time.



Figure 12.4 Running the gel

As the gel advances and retreats, note how the scale at the left of the gel keeps track of the fragment sizes (Figure 12.4).

9. Gel Animation

Click the **Animate** button () on the window toolbar to view a continuous simulation of a Gel electrophoresis. The gel now runs continuously at the speed specified in the Gel Setup dialog box when you created the gel.

When the gel time indicator reaches three or four hours, click the **Animate** button again to stop the run. The fragments are now well separated.

10. Optimize the Gel Display

Click the **Zoom In** button (()) several times until fuzzy gray bars appear around the lines representing the DNA fragments (Figure 12.5). Using the scroll bar, move down along the gel until

your green fragment appears. The gray bars show the minimum distance by which fragments must be separated so that you can distinguish them in the gel.

Note that the gray bars of many fragments touch each other. This indicates that you will not be able to distinguish those fragments in the gel. The size of the gray bars is determined by the Separation Distance parameter, defined in the Gel And Display Setup dialog box described in step 2.



Figure 12.5 Optimizing the Gel Display

Click the **True-Scale View** button (**b**), which sizes the gel to represent its true scale in a laboratory.

Click the **Fit To Window** button () again, and the graphical gel display is sized to fit exactly within the current window.

11. Change to a Polyacrylamide Gel from the Electrophoresis Profile

Change the parameters of the gel by clicking on the **Gel and Display Setup** button () in the Window Toolbar. In the Electrophoresis Profile drop-down menu in the dialog box, select **Example of Polyacrylamide Gel** and click **OK**. The electrophoresis parameters are changed. While the contents of the lane have not changed, as you view your gel again, note that the positions of the various fragments have been altered.

12. Estimate Fragment Separation Time

Some fragments in our gel are still too close together to distinguish. To estimate how long the gel would have to run to separate them, use Vector NTI's built in calculator as follows:

to run to separate them, use Vector NTI's built in calculator as follows:

- Activate the Graphics Pane.
- In the Time Indicator box of the Window Toolbar, type in 2 hours and 30 minutes (2:30).
- Click ENTER.

Click the **Fit to Window** button (()) to set the gel to its standard size and press the **Zoom In**

button ()) three times to magnify the view of the gel.

Review the first lane of the gel, containing SAMPLE1. With the scroll bar, scroll down until you find the section of the gel containing fragments with lengths between 500 and 700 bp. (You will see three fragments just above the 500-bp mark.) The middle fragment (length 540 bp) is green, because you set its display color in step 7 of this tutorial. The fragments' gray borders overlap with each other, indicating that these fragments are still too close together to be distinguishable on the real gel.

Move the cursor to Lane 1, where it changes into a horizontal I-beam (). Place the mouse cursor above the three fragments. Left-click + drag the mouse (I-beam) downwards, highlighting all three unseparated bands.

Click the **Calculate Separation Time** button () in the Window Toolbar. A message appears, telling you that the gel would have to run for 5 hours and 30 minutes to separate the selected fragments. This gives you a general idea of what to expect in an actual gel run. Click **OK**. The gel moves immediately to the position at that time elapse. Scroll down so you can view the fragments.

Click anywhere in the gel pane to remove the selection.

13. Save the Gel Display Window to a Gel Document File

To save the data in the Gel Display window, including gel settings and fragments positions, select **Gel > Save as Document** from the menu bar.

A dialog box appears, asking you for a filename. Name the file **Tutorial.gd** and click the **Save** button. The gel is saved in a Gel Document file.

To close the Gel window, select **Gel > Close**.

Now open the saved Gel Document you created. Select **Gel > Open Document**, and select the name of the saved document file from the file list. Your Gel Document opens, and all your fragments and settings have been preserved.

14. Close the Gel Display Window

You have now taken a first look at Vector NTI's Gel Display windows and restriction digestion features. Close the window using **Gel > Close**.

15. Calculate Restriction Fragments

One of the simple options in Vector NTI is creating restriction fragments of molecules.

Using techniques you have learned, open and maximize the pATH23 Molecule Display window. Select **Analyses > Restriction Analyses > Restriction Fragments** on the menu bar. Deselect all of the RENs listed. Then select ApaLI and EcoRI. Click **OK**.

Inspecting the Text Pane reveals that all of your resulting fragments are noted, with their size, source, and the restriction sites producing those fragments.

Identify several of the restriction fragments on the molecule map by placing the cursor on the appropriate line in the Restriction Fragments folder (Text Pane) and opening the shortcut menu. Select **Find Fragment**. Clicking this option results in the selection of the fragment on the graphics map. Close the windows.

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual
C H A P T E R

TUTORIAL: INTERNET CONNECTIVITY AND TOOLS

Introduction

This chapter introduces you to Vector NTI tools that provide connections to external programs and Internet services.

At the end of this tutorial session, you will be able to:

- Send data from Vector NTI to several public Internet servers
- Perform a simple BLAST search, alignment and analysis
- Save Internet search results as Comments in a database file

Follow the steps in the order shown. Figures show what your screen should look like at various points along the way.

1. Launch Vector NTI and Open pBR322 in a New Display Window

Launch Vector NTI by selecting Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > Vector

NTI. Click the **Open Document** button ()) on the main toolbar. Open the Molecule Viewer for pBR322 using the techniques you learned in previous tutorials.

2. Select the Whole Sequence of pBR322 and Use the BLAST Search Tool

Select Analyses > Web Analyses > Compare Against > Many databases using BLAST @ NCBI.

Alternatively, BLAST Searches can be launched in Analysis Monitor (*page 569*), or by selecting **Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > BLAST Search**.

Note: Some World Wide Web browsers require the Internet connection to be established before you start the browser. If your TCP/IP stack or other Internet connection software cannot be started "on the fly," you need to connect before selecting any of Vector NTI's Internet-related commands.

In the Sequence Data dialog box of the BLAST viewer (Figure 13.1), choose the range and strand of the sequence to be sent to the server: Whole Sequence/Direct Strand.

Sequence Data	?×
Range Whole Sequence Selection Only Current CDS feature	OK Cancel
Strand © Direct © Complementary	k}

Figure 13.1 Sequence Data dialog box of the BLAST viewer

Click **OK** to continue. Your selected browser may open automatically or a list of available browsers may open.

If appropriate, select the name of your Internet browser from the list and click **OK** to continue. This configures Vector NTI's connection to the Internet for all subsequent connections.

Note: The standard Vector NTI distribution contains support modules for many popular Internet browsers. If your Internet browser is not in the list, try selecting one of the "Autodetect" modules from the displayed list. The latest additions to the list are available on the Vector NTI web page: www.invitrogen.com/bioinformatics

Vector NTI opens the BLAST Search page in the Internet browser (Figure 13.2). (The page may look only similar to this, depending on your browser).

SKBI Blast - Microsoft Internet Explorer	_ 8 ×
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help	
j ← Beck + → → 🐼 😰 🚰 🔞 Search 💼 Favorites 🎯 History 🔄 + 🎯 🐨 + 📄 🎉	
Address D:\Temp\tmp\$5.htm	▼ 🖓 Go 🛛 Links ≫
Nucleotide Protein Translations Retrieve results for an RID	*
tteteatgtttgacagettateateggaaggettaatgeggtagtttateacagttaaa ttgetaacgeagteaggeacegtgtatgaaatetaacaatgegeteategteateetegg Sauch eacegtaaceetggagetggggataggettggetatgeegggetett gegggaatatgeteattegeaggettgegeatgeetgeeggagetet tgegttgatgeaatteteatgegeacegtteteggagaetgteeggeegttggeegg	
Set subsequence From: To:	
Choose database nr	
Now: BLASTI or (Reserquery) (Reseran	-
e) (Hy Computer

Figure 13.2 NCBI Blast Search page

This page is Vector NTI's gateway to the NCBI BLAST Search server and contains options that can be used to change various BLAST search parameters.

The sequence of pBR322 is already entered in the Search field. In the Choose database section, select the nr database. Scroll to the bottom of the page. If your e-mail address appears in the Send results by e-mail text box, delete it. Click the **BLAST!** button.

Note: At this step, your Internet browser may display a dialog box or start a program to establish an Internet connection. If this happens, enter the required parameters and continue.

Once an Internet connection with the NCBI server has been established, you should see the NCBI formatting BLAST page. To proceed, click the **Format!** button on that page. The response time for the BLAST results varies depending on the server load. If the server is busy, wait several minutes and resubmit the query.

Note: Since the interface of Internet servers changes from time to time, you may receive a message that the requested resource is not found. This means that Vector NTI's server gateway page is obsolete.

When you receive the results from the BLAST server, click on the second molecule link (at the time of this writing (9/2003), the first hit was pBR322 itself and second hit was U03501/YRP7). Another page appears, containing the GenBank description of the molecule (Figure 13.3):



Figure 13.3 NCBI Web page containing the GenBank description of the molecule

3. Display the Result of the Query in a Molecule Display Window

To transfer the result of the query back to Vector NTI, highlight the GenBank text starting at the word "LOCUS" and ending with the "//" at the end of the sequence. Select **Edit > Copy** from the drop-down menu (or its analog) in your browser to copy the selected text to the Clipboard. Switch back to the Vector NTI workspace and choose **Edit > Open from Clipboard** from the Vector NTI Main menu (Figure 13.4).



Figure 13.4 Transferring the result of the query back to Vector NTI

In the Open/Import from 'Clipboard' dialog box that opens, select **GenBank file** from the list of file types and click the **Open** button (Figure 13.5).



Figure 13.5 Selecting the file type for the transferred query

Vector NTI opens your molecule in a new Molecule Viewing window, automatically generating the restriction map and graphics representation of the molecule.

4. Save (Send to) or Open the Result of the Query Using the Save Button

An alternative way to transfer search results from the NCBI server to Vector NTI is to use the **Send to** button on the query's GenBank report. You can also use the **Send to** button to save the query molecule to your hard drive as an independent file.

Switch back to the U03501/YRP7 GenBank report and locate the **Send to** button just above the text of the GenBank report. Click the **Send to** button. In the drop-down menu that appears along side the **Send to** button, make sure the **File** option is selected. The File Download dialog box appears.

- If you choose the **Open** option, your browser will try to load the document into the associated application. The Open With dialog box appears, scroll down the list of available programs and select Vector NTI. Click **OK**. In the Open/Import dialog box, select **Gen-Bank file** from the list of file types and click the **Open** button (Figure 13.5). If Vector NTI was configured correctly, a new window should appear in its workspace showing the U03501 molecule.
- If you choose the **Save** option, you can specify a file name and a location to store the U03501 molecule as a file on your hard drive.

5. Use Alignment and Analysis Tools

The standard distribution of Vector NTI has several tools to perform sequence alignment and analysis. To perform the alignment, switch to the Database Explorer window using the **Local**

Database button (**U**). Select the Proteins table from the drop-down menu.

Vector NTI displays the list of proteins in the database CTRL + CLICK on 41BB_HUMAN and 41BB_MOUSE to select both. Choose Align > Web Alignment Tools > Multiple Alignments > Multiple Alignment @ BCM Server from the Database Explorer menu bar. Vector NTI opens

the browser and displays the BCM Search page containing the sequences of the selected proteins in FASTA format (Figure 13.6).



Figure 13.6 BCM Search page

Click the **Submit** button to start the ClustalW alignment (the default option). If the BCM server is not too busy, you will receive the response in 5-10 seconds. Scroll through the screen to review the text-based alignment results.

To analyze a protein using the PROSITE program on the ExPASy server in Switzerland, return to the Database Explorer window and click on the 41BB_HUMAN protein again to select it. Choose Analyses > Web Analyses > Protein Feature Search > Domain Database PROSITE using ScanProsite @ ExPASy from the Database Explorer's menu bar.

When you see the ScanProsite page containing the sequence of 41BB_HUMAN in the browser, select and copy the sequence from the Scan a Protein for PROSITE matches text entry box by right-clicking and opening a short-cut menu. From the task bar of the ScanProsite webpage, select PROSITE. In the PROSITE: Database of Protein Families and Domains, scroll down to the Tools for PROSITE section and paste the sequence into the text entry box by right-clicking the mouse. Click the **Quick Scan** button. If the ExPASy server is not too busy, you will receive the response in 2-5 seconds.

Searches are performed in PROSITE for biologically significant protein patterns and profiles for known protein families and domains. When the search is complete, the results are displayed on the ScanProsite webpage. Scroll the page to review the pattern matches listed in their numerical

and graphical form. For details, click on the site ID links, such as PDOC00001 for the glycosylation site, opened and illustrated in Figure 13.7.

Vector NTI - [41_HUMAN]		No. of Concession, Name of Concession, Name of Street, or other	_6×
Molecule Edit Yew Analyses Gel List	Align Assemble Tools Window Help		_(#) X
	1.3 5 8 6 H H Z	555 V 06 X	
Active Pane:	x = 3336		
3 🖄 41_HUMAN	MYRISTYL No. 1		CK2 PHOSPHO SITE No. 18
🗟 🦲 General Description	D PHOSPHO SITE Na 9		CK2 PHOSPHO SITE No. 19
C C Standard Fields	HOOPHO OTTE NA R		CV3 PHOCPHO OTTENA 20
C Annotations	NOCENIO DITE No. 7		CAMP RUOPPUO POTE No. 4
🗄 🛄 Analysis	Program offer the a		COMP_PHOSPHO_SITE No.4
B 🗀 Author	DSPHQ_SITE No. 6		MYRISTYL No. 5
🗉 🧰 Original Author	Splicing_Var_1		CK2_PHOSPHO_BITE No. 21
18 🖬 Comments	DSPHO_SITE No. 2		MYRIST/G, No. 6
E C Feature Map	SPHO_SITE No. 5		Splicing_Var_4
🖙 😋 External Analyses	O_SITE No. 4		Dom_Misc_3
R PROSITEAnalysis of 41 HUMAN	D_SITE No. 3		PKC_PHOSPHO_SITE NC
SASN GLYCOSYLATION No. 1	SITE No. 2		PKC_PHOSPHO_SITE N
Source: Prosite	E No. 1		MYRISTVL No. 7
Type: Domain	No.1		CK2_PHOSPHO_SITE #
Start 258 End 261			
Pattern: N-(P)-(ST)-(P)		the second because the second	1210 21 - 22
ASN_GLYCOSYLATION No. 2	Construction of the second sec		00 00 00 00
ASN_GLYCOSYLATION No. 3	(2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	23 232 23 2000 200	
R CAMP_PHOSPHO_SITE No. 1	/2 2 10 22 1 2 292		-
B CAMP_PHOSPHO_SITE No. 2	22 8		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
B CAMP_PHOSPHO_SITE No. 3	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		
CAMP_PHOSPHO_SITE No. 4		Analysis LEUCINE_ZIPPER No	. 1' 406 aa - 427 aa (drect)
PKC_PHOSPHO_SITE No. 1			
PKC_PHOSPHO_SITE No. 2			
E DPKC_PHOSPHO_SITE No. 3	-1 -1	1	
PIC PHOSPHO SI	TENo.4 MIRESTILNO.2		
www.ww PKC	PHOSPHO SITENo.5		-
CK2_PHOSE	HO_SITE No.14		
CN2_	PHOSPHO_SITE No. 15		
	DAND, 4L INo. I		
	EANO_41_1No.2		
		258 aa - 261 aa	(4 aa) 258 aa (a)

Figure 13.7 Site ID link for PDOC00001 (glycosylation site)

6. Saving Search Results as Comments

Vector NTI allows you to associate any text data with database objects in the form of comments. Let's save the search results to the database for future reference.

Select the resulting hits, starting with hit [1], by dragging the mouse across and down the page. Do not include the sequence, which is already stored in the Vector NTI database.

Choose Edit > Copy or press CTRL-C to copy results to the Clipboard Return to Database Explorer, and with 41_BB HUMAN still selected in the Database Explorer window, select **Pro-tein > Edit** from the Explorer's menu bar.

In the tabbed Edit dialog box that opens, you can edit various information associated with the protein molecule (Figure 13.8). Click on the **Comments** tab, scroll to a point at the end of the existing comment text and click to set the text cursor for insertion.

1_HUMAN Properties
General Comments Parents
41_HUMAN comments:
 FUNCTION: PROTEIN 4.1 IS A MAJOR STRUCTURAL ELEM ERYTHROCYTE MEMBRANE SKELETON. IT PLAYS A KEY I MEMBRANE PHYSICAL PROPERTIES OF MECHANICAL ST/ DEFORMABILITY BY STABILIZING SPECTRIN-ACTIN INTER WITH A HIGH AFFINITY TO GLYCOPHORIN AND WITH LOV BAND II PROTEIN. PTM: PHOSPHORYLATED AT MULTIPLE SITES BY DIFFERI AND EACH PHOSPHORYLATION EVENT SELECTIVELY MO FUNCTIONS. PTM: PHOSPHORYLATION ON TYR-627 REDUCES THE AB PROMOTE THE ASSEMBLY OF THE SPECTRIN-ACTIN.Y.1 PTM: O-GLYCOSYLATED; CONTAINS N-ACETYLGLUCOSAM IN THE CABBOXYL-TERMINAL DOMAIN. DISEASE: DEFICIENCY OF E41P IS A CAUSE OF HEREDITA ELLIPTOCYTOSIS (HE) AND OF HEREDITARY PYROPOIKILI 4. ALTERNATIVE ROULCTS: THE DIVERSITY OF PROTEIN 4 ARISES BY ALTERNATIVE SPLICING. SIMILARITY: CONTAINS A DOMAIN FOUND IN BAND 4.1, E2 RADIXIN, AND TALIN.
OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 13.8 Edit dialog box, where you can edit information associated with the protein molecule

Now press CTRL-V to paste the search results from the Clipboard.

t 41_H	IUMAN							>
ieneral	Protein	Sequenc	e and Fe	atures	User Fields	Comments	Keywords	1
ARI -!- SIM RAC	SES BY AL' ILARITY: C DIXIN, AND	TERNAT DNTAINS TALIN.	IVE SPLI 5 A DOM	CING. AIN F	OUND IN BAN	ND 4.1, EZRI	N, MOESIN	
(1) PD N-glyc	OCOOOO1 P osylation sit	500001 #	SN_GL	rcosi	LATION			
Numb 1 2 3	er of matche 258-261 N 281-284 N 358-361 N	s: 3 ATS FTF QTK						
(2) PD cAMP	OC00004 P and cGMP	soooo4 o depende	CAMP_PI ent protei	HOSP n kina	HO_SITE se phosphoryl	ation site		
Numb 1 2 3 4	er of matche 391-394 Ki 443-446 Ki 537-540 Ki 673-676 Ki	s: 4 KLS RSS RAS RLS						-
•								•
			OK.]	Cancel	époly	H	lelp

Figure 13.9 Editing the resulting text

Edit the resulting text to your liking and click the **OK** button to save it to the database (Figure 13.9).

The search results are now saved in the database for later retrieval. To view the comments from 41_HUMAN's Display window, double-click on the Comments line in the Text Pane of a Mole-cule Display window for 41_Human.

7. Close the Molecule Display Windows and Exit Vector NTI

You have now taken a first look at Vector NTI's Tools for Internet connection. To close all display windows, select **File > Close**; to exit the program, select **File > Exit** from the menu bar. If you are not going to continue your work with the Internet, close the Internet browser and disconnect, if necessary.

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

CHAPTER L L TUTORIAL: ALIGNX

Introduction

This chapter introduces you to operations of AlignX. The simultaneous alignment of many nucleotide or amino acid sequences is an essential tool in molecular biology. Multiple alignments are used to find diagnostic patterns, characterize protein families, as well as to detect or demonstrate a similarity between new sequences and existing families of sequences. They are also useful in predicting secondary and tertiary structures of new sequences, suggesting oligonucleotide primers for PCR and serving as an essential prelude to molecular evolutionary analysis.

At the end of this tutorial session, you will be able to:

- Import molecules from other Vector NTI Advance applications into AlignX
- Describe elements of the AlignX user interface
- Create an alignment, and add molecules to an alignment
- Modify alignment graphics and sequence
- Edit an alignment
- Create and interpret an AlignX Dot Matrix
- Export molecules from AlignX into other Vector NTI applications

Follow the steps of the tutorial in the order shown. Figures show what your screen should look like at various points along the way.

1. Launch AlignX from the Database Explorer

Using techniques you learned in previous tutorials, open the Vector NTI Database Explorer. Now open AlignX from the **Start** menu by selecting **Start > Program > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > AlignX**. Alternatively, you can open AlignX from the Database Explorer by selecting **Align > AlignX - Open New Alignment Window**. In the Database Explorer, activate the Protein table by selecting **Table > Protein Molecules** and select the Protein Molecules (MAIN) subset. In the Database Objects List Pane, scroll to the molecules 5HIA for human, rat, and mouse. Click the cursor to the right of the bottom of the last of the three proteins, and drag a box around all three molecules. This is a new way to select a group of objects in a subset list (Figure 14.1).

🔍 Exploring - Local Vector NTI	Database					_ 🗆 ×
Protein Edit View Analyses /	Align Database Assemble Tool	s Help				
Protein Molecules		h 🗊 F) CL ta (/i aje 🗙 🖆	j 💷 • 🗔] ∲?
All Subsets	All database Protein Molecules					
Protein Molecules (MAIN)	Name	Length	Storage Type	Author	Original Aut	Modified 🔺
🗊 41BB	10KD_VIGUN	75	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07::
	115B_CUCMA	480	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07::
	1814_HUMAN	361	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07::
	2AAA_CAEEL	664	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:
	2SS_BEREX	146	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07::
	HUMAN	831	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:
	41BB_HUMAN	255	Basic	Demo User	SWISS-PROT	09/01/2003 11:0
	HIBB_MOUSE	256	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07::
	#4F2_HUMAN	529	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:(
	HIA_FUGRU	423	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:
	E SH1A_HUMAN	422	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:
	E SH1A_MOUSE	421	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:
	E SH1A_RAT	422	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07::
	5H1B_CANFA	161	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07::
	5H1B_HUMAN	390	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:
	5H1B_RAT	386	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07::
	5H1D_CAVPO	376	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07::
	HID_FUGRU	379	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:
	5H1D_RABIT	377	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07::
	5H1E_HUMAN	365	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:
	5H1E_PIG	149	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:
1	5H1F_MOUSE	366	Basic	InforMax, Inc.	SWISS-PROT	07/10/2003 07:
		2504	Racic	InforMay Inc	SMISS-DDOT	07/10/2003 07/
3 protein molecules selected						

Figure 14.1 Selecting a group of objects in a subset list

Now position the Database Explorer window and the AlignX window side by side, and click and drag the selected molecules into the AlignX viewer.

Next, in the Database Explorer protein list, select the 41_BB Human molecule and drag it into AlignX.

An alternative method is to select the molecules in Database Explorer and select Align > AlignX – Align Selected Molecules.

2. Examine AlignX Display Window

When you open AlignX, even after bringing molecules in, three of the panes are empty. After you initiate the alignment, the alignment results will appear in the empty panes.

In the Text Pane, select the 5H1A molecules. Click the **Align** button () or choose **Align > Align Selected Sequences** from the drop-down menu, initiating the alignment that now appears in the display window.



Figure 14.2 AlignX Display window

The AlignX Display window consists of a menu bar, three toolbars and context menus specific for each pane (Figure 14.2). The AlignX Display window includes the Text Pane, the Guide Tree Pane (still empty), the Analysis Pane and the Alignment Pane. The panes are divided by split bars that can be moved to resize the panes.

Note: Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function. Hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button.

As in the other Vector NTI Advance applications, to apply a command from the main menu in a given pane (Print, Print Preview, Camera), that pane must be active. The active pane can be

toggled with the **Switch Panes** (, , ,) buttons in the Pane Selection Toolbar or by clicking anywhere in the pane you want to activate.

In the Text Pane, double click on a molecule folder to open and review it. Move the split bar at the bottom of the pane and open some of the subfolders. A Text Pane folder and its subfolders contain a thorough description of the molecule. Data includes molecule type and form, user-defined fields (from Vector NTI) and standard fields (such as GenBank), comments, references and so forth.

The default Analysis Pane contains three graphical representations of alignment results. Move the lower split bar and the split bars between the graphs and/or use the scroll bar to better view them.

- The first graph displays the alignment quality profile (Similarity). The specific values (in a 0-1 range) are assigned to each residue at a given alignment position in each aligned sequenced depending on whether the residue is identical, similar or weakly similar to the corresponding residue of the consensus sequence. The values for each residue at a given position are added together and the number of the sequences in the alignment normalizes the resulting value. The default values are 1, 0.5 and 0.2 for identical, similar and weakly similar residues respectively.
- The second graph displays the statistical significance profile (Absolute Complexity) of an alignment. It is calculated as a sum of all pairwise residue substitution scores at a given alignment position normalized by the number of pairs in the alignment. The scores are taken from the residue substitution matrix used for alignment calculation.
- The third graph displays the statistical significance (Absolute Complexity) of an alignment for a selected molecule to the consensus sequence. The graph is calculated in a manner identical to the one in the second graph.

The Alignment Pane is described in step 4.

You can add additional analyses to the graphics pane by activating the Graphics Pane and choosing **View > List of Analyses** from the drop down menu to open the Analysis List setup dialog box (Figure 14.3):

nalysis list setup									
Available analyses:									
Name	Author	Reference							
f(x) Absolute Complexity	Informax, Inc	Vector NTI Suite 🚽							
f⊗ Amino acid composition (%) in the S	Bairoch A.	Release notes f							
∫⊗ Antigenicity value × 10	Welling G.W.,	FEBS Lett. 188:							
fx Atomic weight ratio of hetero eleme	Grantham R.	Science 185:86 👻							
۱									
*# Selected	analyses:								
Name		Sequence for analyse							
Similarity		Consensus							
Absolute Complexity		Consensus							
E≏, Absolute Complexity		Alignment							
× B, B' P		OK Cancel							

Figure 14.3 Protein Alignment Analysis List setup dialog box

The dialog box lists all of the analyses available for DNA or Protein, depending on the type of aligned molecules. Currently displayed analyses are listed in the Selected Analyses box. To add

an analysis, select it in the Available Analyses list box and click the **Add Analysis** button (¹) to move it to the Selected Analyses list. Alternately, you can move an analysis to the lower list by double clicking on it.

The plot display order is determined by the order the analyses are listed in the Analysis List setup box. To modify the order, select an analysis and move it up by clicking the Move Up button

E). Click **OK** to close the Analysis list setup dialog box and generate the new analyses.

3. Add Molecule to Alignment

To add a molecule to your alignment, select the 41_BB Human molecule in the Text Pane and

click the **Add to Alignment** button ()). You can add as many molecules as you like to the alignment as long as they are listed in the Text Pane.

4. Inspect the Guide Tree

Note that now the Guide Tree Pane shows in its specific pane (Figure 14.4). Phylogenetic analysis is the means of studying presumed evolutionary relationships. An inferred evolutionary history is displayed in a treelike diagram suggesting the inherited relationships between the molecules. In Vector NTI, a guide tree is only calculated when there are more than 3 molecules in the alignment.

5H1A_HUMAN (0.0518)	
5H1A_MOUSE (0.0357)	
5H1A_RAT (0.0261)	
	- 41BB_HUMAN (0.8454)

Figure 14.4 Guide Tree Pane

The guide tree, which resembles a phylogenetic tree, is built using the Neighbor Joining method (NJ) of Saitou and Nei. The NJ method works on a matrix of distances between all pairs of sequence to be analyzed. These distances are related to the degree of divergence between the sequences. The guide tree is calculated after the sequences are aligned. AlignX displays the calculated distance values in parenthesis following the molecule name.

5. Review the Alignment Parameters and Matrix

Click the **Alignment Setup** button () on the Viewer Toolbar to see how you can adjust different parameters for the alignment. Select each of the tabs in the dialog box to quickly review the settings. Leave the last tab, Score Matrix selected.

All algorithms designed to evaluate pairwise sequence alignment are based on systems that assign scores to aligned residues, detecting similarities between differing sequences. This page displays the matrix, blosum 62mt2, used to generate your multiple alignment. Amino acids that are identical or similar in alignment score higher than those less similar. The most common of many different scoring systems are based on substitutions of amino acids in related proteins.

BLOSUM matrices are calculated from local, ungapped alignments of distantly related sequences. The matrix scores represent the minimum percent identity of the blocks used to construct the matrix; greater numbers represent lesser distances.

In Vector NTI, you can modify matrices using the Matrix Editor. Customized matrices can also be devised and stored in the database for shared or private use.

Leave the settings unchanged. It is a good idea when performing the various analyses in Vector NTI applications to run them first using the default settings. Review the results, then change the parameters as you like before running the analyses again.

6. Examine the Alignment Pane

Now move the split bars up to optimizing viewing of the Alignment Pane. Sequences of all the molecules included in the alignment are displayed here, with their names listed at the left of the corresponding sequence. Residues in the alignment are colored according to the following scheme:

Alignment Color	Interpretation
black on window default color	non-similar residues
blue on cyan	consensus residue derived from a block of similar residues at a given position
black on green	consensus residue derived from the occurrence of greater than 50% of a single residue at a given position
red on yellow	consensus residue derived from a completely con- served residue at a given position
green on window default color	residue weakly similar to consensus residue at given position

Table 14.1 Alignment color scheme

Move the horizontal scroll bar at the bottom of the Alignment Pane. Drag the mouse across some of the sequence, selecting it. Note that the corresponding region is selected in the Analysis Pane as you do so.

The sequence names remain stationary at the left of the Alignment Pane no matter how the sequences are repositioned horizontally. If the list of molecules listed in the Alignment Pane is longer than the size of the pane, a vertical scroll bar appears as well. Vertical scrolling affects both sequences and their names but the consensus sequence remains visible at the bottom of the pane.

7. Edit the Alignment

After inspecting the alignment, click the **Edit Alignment** button (**M**) on the Viewer Toolbar to open the Alignment Editor dialog box (Figure 14.5). This dialog box displays rows of selected molecule names and sequences.

🛱 Edit Alignment	x
Select a block on a sequence and use arrow buttons to move it by inserting, removing and resizing gaps on its ends:	
5H1A_HUMAN QGD-DGAALEVIEVHRVGNSKEHLPLPSEAGPTPCAPASFERKNERNAEAKRKMALAR 5H1A_MOUSE QGE-DDATLEVIEVHRVGNSKOLLPLPSESGATSVVPACLERKNERTAEAKRKMALAR 5H1A_RAT QGD-DEATLEVIEVHRVGNSKEHLPLPSESGSNSYAPACLERKNERNAEAKRKMALAR 41BB_HUMAN FSVVKRGRKKLLYIFKQPFMRPVQTTQEEDGCSCRFPE DEGGGEL	
Move Selected Block: 👘 💼 1 🏩 🛤 🛛 DK Cancel Apply	
Positives: 98.1% Old: 98.1% Identity: 5.4% Old: 5.4% sel: 322-330	1

Figure 14.5 Alignment Editor dialog box, which displays rows of selected molecule names and sequences

Scroll the sequences to find the 3' end of the 41_BB Human molecule. Click and drag to select **EEEGGCEL**. Note that as you do so, two of the Move Selected Block buttons in the bottom of the dialog box become enabled. The **Move Selected Block** text box indicates the number of

positions at a time to move, and defaults to one. Click the () button, which moves the selected block one space to the right, as indicated in the Move Selected Block text box. (The

() button would move the block to the extreme right of the gap.) Because editing an alignment can only occur when selected residue(s) are shifted into an adjacent gap, the arrows are only enabled when the selection block is next to a gap into which the selection may be shifted.

8. Generate Dot Matrix Plot

To perform a Dot Matrix analysis, select open a Dot Matrix window by clicking the Dot Matrix

() button on the main toolbar. A Dot Matrix window opens in a separate modal popup window (Figure 14.6). In the drop-down menu at the top of the screen, select 5H1A HUMAN (the first selected molecule in the AlignX window.) In the second drop-down menu, select, 5H1A mouse, launching the Dot Matrix.



Figure 14.6 Dot Matrix analysis

The Dot Matrix analysis is primarily a method for finding all possible matches of residues between two sequences. One sequence (A) is listed across the top of a page and the other sequence (B) is listed down the left side.

The graphical representation of a Dot Matrix is a dashed rectangle in which any region of similar sequence is revealed by a diagonal row of dots. The molecule selected first corresponds to the horizontal axis, its name being shown in the right top corner of the Dot Matrix rectangle. The second molecule corresponds to the vertical axis. Each axis has its own scale that initially displays the sequence positions.

When the Dot Matrix is first calculated, it is shown as a representation of the full length of a molecule. Because it is difficult to analyze specific molecule regions when several thousand residues are represented, click and hold the left mouse button within the Dot Matrix rectangle while dragging the mouse, displaying the tracking dotted rectangle (Figure 14.7).



Figure 14.7 Selected region of the Dot Matrix

When the mouse button is released, the selected region is enlarged to the entire Dot Matrix rectangle (Figure 14.8).



Figure 14.8 Enlarged region of the Dot Matrix

Click Undo Zoom () to return to the previous screen. Close the Dot Matrix window.

9. Export Alignment Molecules

AlignX is fully integrated with other components of Vector NTI Advance. As an example of exporting a molecule from AlignX into other applications, select the molecule 5H1A_HUMAN in the Text Pane and select **Analyses > Back Translation**. In the Sequence Data dialog box, enter the Range (Whole Sequence or Selection Only). Click **OK**. The display window that opens displays the original amino acid sequence in the upper pane, and the back translated sequence in the lower pane. In Figure 14.9, that sequence displayed is the "most ambiguous" as shown by the scale above the sequence.

.	seq.txt	- BT			and the second second											
File	Table	Camera	Help													
	1	MDVI	SPG	QGN I	NTTSI	PPAPI	FE TO	GGNT	rgisi	D VTV	VSYQV	/ITS	LLL	GTLI	FCA	
	51	VLGN	VACV	ZAA	IALE	RSLQ	IN N	VYL I	GSLAV	V TDI	LMVSV	/LVL	PMA	ALYQ	VLN	
	101	KWTI	GQV	FCD 1	LFIAI	DVL	с тя	SSIL	HLCA	I ALI	DRYW	AITD	PID	YVNKI	RTP	1
	151	RRAJ	AALIS	SLT 1	WLIG	LIS	IP PI	MLGW	RTPEI	D RSI	DPDAG	TIS	KDH	GYTI	YST	
	201	FGAI	YIP	LLL I	MLVLY	GRI	R A.	ARFR	IRKT	V KKV	VERT	GADT	RHG	ASPA	PQP	
_	251	KKSV	/NGE:	GS I	RNWRI	GVES	SK AG	GGAL	CANG	A VR	QGDDC	GAAL	EVI	EVHR	VGN	•
Sta	anslation andard	I able					•] /- lea:	st dege	nerate		•			most d	egenerate
								- lea:	st dege	nerate					most a	egenerate
	•1	Met	Asp	Val	Leu	Ser	Pro	Gly	Gin	Gly	Asn	Asn	Thr	Thr	Ser	_
	1	ATG	GAT	GTG	TTA	TCA	CCA	GGA	CAA	GGA	AAT	AAT	ACA	ACA	TCA	
	•1	Pro	Pro	Ala	Pro	Phe	Gilu	Thr	Gily	Gily	Asn	Thr	Thr	Gily	lle	
	43	CCA	CCA	GCA	CCA	TTT	GAA	ACA	GGA	GGA	AAT	ACA	ACA	GGA	ATA	
		Ser TCA	Asp	Val	Inr	vai cmc	TCA	TAT	GAA	Val	ile A TEA	Inr	Ser	Leu	Leu	
	00	ICA	GAT	The	Lau	GIG	Phe	Cus	O A A	GIG Val	AIA	Gh	Aco.	118	Cus	
		Lea	Cing		Lea	ne.	1.114	- 095	- Cita		rea	City	- nan	C I G	095	-
			1-1-1-1-1			0.000					·					
	letters i	n translatio	on					Cop	oy selec	ction		Сору	all		E	xit

Figure 14.9 Back translated sequence

Drag the scale button to the right, noting how the translation code is modified as you proceed. Uncheck the "3 letters in translation" box at the bottom, changing the amino acid code to 1-letter representation. Exit the Back Translation mode. (For more information on the Back Translation function, see page 297.)

Now select **Analyses > BioAnnotator >Analyze Selected Molecule**. The BioAnnotator display window opens, displaying physiochemical characteristics of the 5H1A_HUMAN protein. BioAnnotator will be discussed in the next tutorial. Close the BioAnnotator window.

10. Copy and Print an AlignX Pane

The Copy and Print features work the same in AlignX as in the other Vector NTI components. To copy the contents of a pane and paste them exactly as they appear in AlignX, activate the pane

and click the **Camera** button (). Paste the copied material in any other application, such as a word processing document.

Print pane contents in the usual manner, by pressing the **Print** button ()

11. Save the Project and Close AlignX

You can save your project if you choose by selecting **Project > Save As** and selecting your project destination in the Save As dialog box. The next time you open Align X, the last several opened projects are listed under the Project menu option. Selecting a project from that list opens it.

Close AlignX in the same way you close other applications of Vector NTI: select **Project > Exit**. This ends your tutorial session with AlignX. Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

CHAPTER 15

TUTORIAL: BIOANNOTATOR

Introduction

This chapter introduces you to the Vector NTI Advance application, BioAnnotator. BioAnnotator performs certain types of DNA and protein sequence analyses and displays the results as linear graphics. This allows you to visualize the physiochemical characteristics of a molecule, which may be useful for inferring the potential structure/function of molecule regions.

At the end of this tutorial session, you will be able to:

- Launch BioAnnotator for a molecule you create by translating DNA in Vector NTI.
- Examine and modify plot properties
- Modify plot layout
- Format sequence text
- Add new analyses to the display window

Follow the steps in the order shown. Figures show what your screen should look like at various points along the way.

1. In Vector NTI, Open a Molecule Display Window for pSV2-dhfr; Create a New Protein by Translating a CDS

For the first part of this tutorial, you will create a new protein in Vector NTI by translating a coding DNA sequence (CDS) found by using the ORF tool in a Molecule Display window. When you create the new protein, a new Molecule Display window opens from which you will then launch BioAnnotator. BioAnnotator can also be launched from Database Explorer or from the **Start** menu by selecting **Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > Bioannotator**.

Using techniques you learned in previous tutorials, in Vector NTI open a display window for pSV2-dhfr. To launch the ORF Setup dialog box, select **Analyses > ORF** or choose **View > Display Setup**, check the ORF box and click the **ORF Setup** button. Review the ORF settings in the ORF Setup dialog box and leave them as they appear. Click **OK**. The ORF tool finds all open reading frames on the molecule according to the parameters set in the ORF Setup dialog box. ORFs are displayed in the graphics pane represented by arrows that indicate whether the ORF is found on the direct or complementary strand of the DNA/RNA molecule's sequence. ORFs on the direct strand point clockwise; ORFs on the complementary strand point counter-clockwise.

Click on the arrow for the ORF that corresponds to the functional signal for the gene entitled "DHFR" (dihydrofolate reductase). The amino acid sequence translation from the selected ORF will form the basis for the new molecule.



Figure 15.1 Black arrows represent ORFs, which correspond to specific regions on the sequence

Translate the ORF DNA to protein by selecting **File > Create New Sequence > Using Translation Procedure (Protein) > Direct Strand**. A New Protein Molecule dialog box opens with a default name of **Translation of pSV2-dhfr** for the new molecule. Change the name to **DHFR** and click **OK**. A new Molecule Display window for the new protein opens.

2. Launch BioAnnotator from a Vector NTI Molecule Display Window

In the new Molecule Display window, select **Analyses > BioAnnotator > Analyze Selected Molecule**. BioAnnotator opens featuring the new protein (Figure 15.2). If you had selected **Bio-Annotator > Open New Analyzer Window**, BioAnnotator would have opened with empty panes, waiting for you to create a new project. Maximize the window by clicking the **Maximize**



Figure 15.2 BioAnnotator with the new protein

3. Review the BioAnnotator Display Window

The BioAnnotator interface is similar to those of other Vector NTI Advance applications: it consists of a menu bar, three toolbars that are context sensitive, a Text Pane, a Plot Pane, and Sequence Pane. Maximize the Display window and arrange its panes conveniently, using the split bars and scroll bars as you have in other tutorials.

The Pane selection buttons (\square), (\square), and (\square) are for quick navigation between panes.

Note: Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function. Hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button.

In the Text Pane, open each of the folders with a double-click and review them. They contain descriptions of the molecule being analyzed in BioAnnotator. You'll note that dihydrofolate reductase is a small protein, 188 amino acids. The General Description folder verifies that the molecule was translated from a fragment of pSV2-dhfr.

Click in the Plots Pane to activate it. The Plot Pane displays visual results of physiochemical analyses as plots that you can manipulate as you have done with graphics in other display windows.

Activate the Sequence Pane by clicking on the **Sequence Pane** button (^{IIII}). If the sequence is long enough, you can navigate through the Sequence Pane by moving the vertical scroll bar. As in other Vector NTI applications, the cursor position in the Sequence Pane is noted on a pop-up label when the cursor is paused or on the Status Bar when you click in a certain position.

4. Examine and Modify Plot Properties

Click in the Plots Pane to activate it, then click on the **Zoom In** button () two times, enlarging the plot. Move the horizontal split bar down to increase the Plots Pane viewing area. A plot's vertical axis shows the minimal and maximal values of analysis results; the horizontal axis displays either numerical positions in the sequence or residues, if the scale of the plot is enlarged sufficiently.

To review properties of any plot, click on it, then click the **Properties** button (), opening the Properties dialog box. Open this dialog box for the hydrophobicity plot. The Analysis tab displays the specific reference for this analysis, and the hydrophobicity index at pH 3.4 for each residue in the protein. Select the Datagram tab (Figure 15.3) and change the color to bright red. Click **OK**.

Hydrophobicity in	dices at ph 3.4	determined b	y HPLC Prope	rties 🗴
Analysis Datagra	m			
Personal graph	properties			
🔽 Show indiv	idual axis		kt III	
Visual type:	Bar	•		
Threshold:	0.5			
Color:		• 10	15 20 25	
		ß		
	ОК	Cancel	Apply	Help

Figure 15.3 Datagram tab of the Properties dialog box

5. Modify Plot Layouts

Click the Edit Layout button () on the toolbar. Click on the Enable Overlapping button

(¹). Now plots can now be repositioned anywhere in the pane, even being superimposed upon each other. Left-click on the hydrophobicity plot and drag it on top of the hydrophilicity graph (Figure 15.4). Note how, in this case, the two graphs almost perfectly complement each other.



Figure 15.4 Hydrophobicity plot superimposed on top of the hydrophilicity graph

Drag the hydrophobicity plot back to its original position. Now move the cursor to one of the small black selection boxes at the bottom of the plot, where it changes to a vertical two-headed arrow. Drag the box down, modifying the plot height.

Turn off the **Enable Overlapping** option by clicking on the button again. With only the Edit Layout button still on, a plot can be moved, but dropped only in specific positions. Click and drag the

lower plot to the top of the pane. When the cursor shape changes from $^{\circ}$ to $^{\circ}$ a new position

is allowed. When the cursor shape changes to \bigotimes , the new position is invalid. The upper pane now repositions itself in the lower position.

Click the Edit Layout button again to turn off that mode.

Select a region of the sequence on the plot using the click + drag technique. Note that the same region is selected in the Sequence Pane. Increase the scale of the selected region in the Plots

Pane by clicking the **Zoom to Selection** button (¹²³). *Note that now you can read the individual residues in the Plot Pane.* To discern the plot data for a specific residue, pause the cursor over the residue position and read the populabel. Return to the original scale by clicking the **Fit to**

Window button (

6. Format the DHFR Sequence

Reposition the horizontal split bar so you can easily work in the Sequence Pane and activate the pane. Sequence text can be formatted in much the same way as you would in a word processor.

Select aa #131-140. Click on the **Format** button (), enabling the text format buttons you may

be familiar with. Click on the **Bold** (**B**) and **Italics** (**I**) buttons (Figure 15.5).

1	MVRPLNCIVA	VSQDMGIGKN	GDLPWPPLRN	EFKYFQRMTT	TSSVEGKQNL
51	VIMGRKTWFS	IPEKNRPLKD	RINIVLSREL	KEPPRGAHFL	AK SLDDALRL
101	IEQPELASKV	DMVWIVGGSS	VYQEAMNQPG	HLRLFVTRIM	QEFESDTFFP
151	EIDLGKYKLL	PEYPGVLSEV	QEEKGIKYKF	EVYEKKD	

Figure 15.5 Formatting the DHFR sequence

To reverse these actions, with the text still highlighted, click on the **Bold** and **Italics** buttons again. You can even change text color if you wish.

7. Open a DNA Project in BioAnnotator

You have launched BioAnnotator from a Vector NTI window with a protein molecule you created by translating DNA. Now let's open a BioAnnotator project containing a DNA molecule from the Vector NTI DNA/RNA database.

In the BioAnnotator window, select **File > Open**. Browse for the Demo Projects folder in the Open dialog box. Open the DemoProjects folder and click on DNA (or DNA.apf, if your computer is set to show file extensions). Click **Open** and BioAnnotator reads the file format and opens the display window for the DNA molecule, CoIE1. Use the split bars to enlarge and optimize the display of the Plot Pane.

8. Add New Analyses to BioAnnotator

Since a DNA molecule is now open in BioAnnotator, the displayed default analyses have changed. Since an important part of configuring BioAnnotator is the selection of analyses to perform for a molecule, let's add some analysis to those already displayed. Click the **Analysis List**

button ()) to open the Analysis List setup dialog box (Figure 15.6).

nalysis list setup			
Available	analyses:		
Name	Author	Reference	
f Refractivity	Jones, D.D.	J. Theor. Biol. 5	
f⊗ Relative mutability of amino acids (A	Dayhoff M.O., S	In "Atlas of Prot	
f Retention coefficient in HFBA	Browne C.A., Be	Anal. Biochem	
f Retention coefficient in HPLC, pH 2.1	Meek J.L.	Proc. Natl. Acad	
f Retention coefficient in HPLC, pH 7.4	Meek J.L.	Proc. Natl. Acad	
f⊠ Retention coefficient in TFA	Browne C.A., Be	Anal. Biochem	
f(x) Sequence Complexity	Stephen F. Altsc	Nature Genetics	
•		•	Ē
Name	anayooo.		
Hydropathicity			
Hydrophobicity indices at ph 3.4 deterr	mined by HPLC		
Amino acid composition (%) in the SWI	SS-PRUT Protein		
Sequence Complexity			
× 5, 5 A		OK Cance	4

Figure 15.6 Analysis List setup dialog box

The dialog box lists all of the analyses available for the molecule type open in BioAnnotator (DNA). Currently displayed analyses are listed in the Selected Analyses box. In the Available

Analyses list box, select Melting Temperature (GC content). Click the Add Analysis button

() to move it to the Selected Analyses list. Using an alternative method, move **Nucleic Acid Distribution** to the lower list by double clicking on it.

The plot display order is determined by the order the analyses are listed in the Analysis List setup box. To modify the order, select Nucleic Acid Distribution and move up by clicking the

Move Up button ($\stackrel{E}{\models}$). Click **OK** to generate the new analyses.

9. Copy, Paste, and Print BioAnnotator Panes

As in other applications of Vector NTI Advance, you can copy display window contents to the Clipboard or to a file. Make sure the Plot Pane is active. Position the plots for the display you

would like to copy. Click the **Camera** button () and select **All** and **Clipboard** in the dialog box that opens. Open a new word processing document and paste the Clipboard contents to it. The Camera feature copies and pastes pane contents exactly as you have specified and selected, even the colors in the copied pane.

The contents of any BioAnnotator pane can be printed the same as you do in other Vector NTI

Advance Applications, by clicking the **Print** button (^(D)). To see a preview first, click the **Print**

Preview button (

10. Close the Display Window and Exit Vector NTI

Close BioAnnotator by selecting **File > Close**, **File > Exit**. You have finished your session with Vector NTI. Close the Molecule Display window using the Close command in the File menu. Quit Vector NTI by selecting **File > Exit**.

CHAPTER 16

TUTORIAL: CONTIGEXPRESS

Introduction

ContigExpress is a program for assembling DNA fragments into longer contiguous sequences commonly called "contigs."

Work done in ContigExpress is saved as a ContigExpress Project, a file with a .cep extension in which you can store fragments, their assemblies, assembly options, and descriptions related to your project. In ContigExpress, fragments can be edited directly, with the chromatograms in full view. Changes are tracked and a history is maintained. The contigs thus generated can then be saved, exported into other applications of Vector NTI Advance or exported to third-party tools available on the Internet.

This tutorial can be completed in one session or divided into three sessions as noted. At the end of this tutorial, you will be able to:

- Create a ContigExpress project
- Navigate and manipulate the CE Project Explorer window
- Assemble contigs
- Trim or edit fragments in the Fragment Viewer
- View and edit fragments and contigs in the Contig Viewer

Follow the steps of the tutorial in the order shown. Figures show what your screen should look like at various points along the way.

Session 1 Project Explorer

1. Open a ContigExpress Window

Launch ContigExpress (CE) from the **Start** menu by selecting **Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Advance 10 > ContigExpress**. You can also launch ContigExpress from the Assemble menu in most other Vector NTI Advance applications. ContigExpress opens with an empty Project Explorer.

2. Open a ContigExpress Project and Add a Fragment to the Project

To open the project, in the Project Explorer window, select **Project > Open Project**. Browse to C:\Program Files\Invitrogen\Vector NTI Advance 10 (if a default installation has been performed). Open the Demo Projects folder and double-click on DemoProject.cep to open the project in the Project Explorer window. The ContigExpress DemoProject contains 13 fragments, listed in the List Pane of the Project Explorer (Figure 16.1):

ContigExpress Project - <demoproject *=""></demoproject>								
Project Edit View Assemble a	Project Edit View Assemble Align Analyses Tools Help							
History View	13 fragment(s) in project							
📳 Fragments (MAIN)	Name	Length	Original length	5'Trimmed bases	3'Trimmed bases			
	= TWO11KANR	765	765	0	0			
	- ONE11KANR	755	755	0	0			
	- ONE13KANR	819	819	0	0			
	- ONE15KANF	784	784	0	0			
	- ONE16KANF	767	767	0	0			
	III ONE17KANR	759	759	0	0			
	IIII ONE2KANR	747	747	0	0			
	III ONE3KANR	755	755	0	0			
	- ONE4KANR	756	756	0	0			
	IIII ONE6KANR	770	770	0	0			
	- ONE8KANR	764	764	0	0			
	- ONE9KANR	758	758	0	0			
	- ONE10KANF	758	758	0	0			
13 fragments	,							

Figure 16.1 Fragments listed in the List Pane of the Project Explorer

Many files saved from an automatic sequencer have an .abi, .ab1 or .esd extension. Add one .abi format fragment to the list by selecting **Project > Add Fragments > From ABI file...**

This option opens the Import Sequence From dialog box (Figure 16.2). Select Rb.abi and Sample 1303.abi and click **Open**.

Import seque	nce from	? ×
Look jn: 🔂	Demo Projects 💽 🖛 🛍 🖝	
ONE11R.ab ONE13R.ab ONE15F.ab ONE16F.ab ONE16F.ab	bi 🗟 ONE3R.abi 📓 Sample1303.abi bi 🗟 ONE4R.abi 📓 TWO11R.abi bi 📓 ONE6R.abi bi 📓 ONE8R.abi bi 📓 ONE9R.abi	
•		
File <u>n</u> ame:	"Sample1303.abi" "Rb.abi" Dpen	
Files of <u>type</u> :	ABI files (*.abi;*.ab1) Cance	

Figure 16.2 Import Sequence from dialog for browsing in one or more sequence files

Often the names of the imported fragments registered within the fragment file do not directly correspond to their Windows file name designations. ContigExpress can either assign Windows file names or fragment names that are found inside the imported files to the newly imported fragments. Upon pressing the **Open** button, ContigExpress asks you to specify your naming preference (Figure 16.3):



Figure 16.3 Indicate the naming preference of imported sequence files

If you choose **No**, ContigExpress imports the fragment, naming it according to the Windows file name, Rb and *Sample1303*. For this example, however, choose **Yes**. The files Rb.abi and *Sample1303.abi* are imported and named according to their internal file names and are therefore listed as "RB 1" and "*xb-control*" in the ContigExpress List Pane.

After you specify your naming convention preference, a dialog box appears, confirming the number of fragments imported and time elapsed during import.

3. Examine the ContigExpress Project Explorer Window

As noted, ContigExpress opens to an empty Project Explorer window to which you added a list of molecules. The window is similar to other Vector NTI Advance windows with a title bar, menu bar and tool bar (Figure 16.4). The Tree Pane on the left and the List Pane on the right are divided by a movable split bar. A Status Bar at the screen bottom displays the Project Explorer status.

Note: Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function. Hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button.

4. Create Contigs

Start Assembling

To start an assembly, select all the fragments except an arbitrary one, say, *xb-control*, by **SHIFT** + **CLICK** on all the names on the list except that one (Figure 16.4). Click the **Assemble**

`	/	,			0
🚔 ContigExpress Project - <d< td=""><td>emoProject *></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td><u> </u></td></d<>	emoProject *>				<u> </u>
Project Edit View Assemble	Align Analyses Tools Help				
	. 8 d • X 6 d	• 🖂 🎟 🕅	<u>₽</u> <u>₽</u> []‡[]	🛛 🖄 🔞	<i>}</i> ?
History View	nble Selected (s) in project				
Fragments (MAIN)	Name	Length	Original length	5'Trimmed bases	3'Trimmed bases
	= ONE10F	758	758	0	0
	= ONE11R	755	755	0	0
	= ONE13R	819	819	0	0
	I III ONE15F	784	784	0	0
	I ONE16F	767	767	0	0
	= ONE17R	759	759	0	0
	I III ONE2R	747	747	0	0
	= ONE3R	755	755	0	0
	= ONE4R	756	756	0	0
	- ONE6R	770	770	0	0
	- ONE8R	764	764	0	0
	I III ONE9R	758	758	0	0
	- RB 1	530	530	0	0
	= TWO11R	765	765	0	0
	⇒ xb-control	1100	1100	0	0
14 fragments selected					

Selected button (🚢). This button is enabled only when two or more fragments are selected.

Figure 16.4 Selecting fragments for assembly

Note: If you want to select *all* the sequences in the Project window for assembly, right click on the first sequence in the list and choose **Select All** from the shortcut menu.

An Assembly Progress dialog box allows you to monitor the assembly process or cancel the assembly at any time. After the assembly process is finished, a summary dialog box displays, showing the elapsed assembly time, the number of contigs assembled, and number of fragments used.

Assembly Setup

More than likely you would want to control the assembly through fine-tuning the assembly parameters, rather than relying on the default settings. To see what assembly parameters are available for control, choose **Assemble > Assembly Setup** from the menu or choose the

Assembly Setup button on the toolbar (¹²). The Assembly Setup dialog box (Figure 16.5) appears (more detailed information about Assembly Setup can be found in Chapter 30). For now, proceed with the assembly you created using default values. Click Cancel on the Assembly Setup dialog and return to the Project Explorer.

Assembly Setup
Assembly Clipping Overlap Contig Description Lite Settings
Use Automatic Clipping 🔽
Match Score Factor
Mismatch Score Factor -5
Gap Penalty Factor
Quality Cutoff for Clipping 12
Clipping Ranges 250
Min. Number of Good Reads at Clip Position 3
Default
OK Cancel <u>L</u> oad <u>S</u> ave

Figure 16.5 The Assembly Setup dialogs

Examine Assembly Results

Once you have performed the contig assembly, the Tree Pane in ContigExpress Project Explorer shows the new assembly, Assembly 1 (Figure 16.6).

An assembly can be made up of one or more contigs. Click on Assembly 1 to select it. All of the project fragments and contigs are listed in the List Pane. Assembly 1 includes two assembled contigs, with Contig 1 made from eleven fragments and Contig 2 composed of two. Unassembled fragments are shown below the contigs. Assembly 1 includes one unassembled fragment, RB 1, that was selected for assembly, but did not assemble (indicated by the grey arrow icon to

the left of its name) and one fragment, xb-control, which was not selected for assembly (Figure 16.6). Note that many of the fragments that are included in contigs underwent trimming at their 5' or 3' ends or both. This results from the operation of the assembly algorithm, although it can be turned off if so desired (Figure 16.6).

🚊 ContigExpress Project - <demoproject *=""></demoproject>								
Project Edit View Assemble	Project Edit View Assemble Align Analyses Tools Help							
▞▋▓░҉҈҈҈ҲӮ҈Ѽ҈ҟ҈ѩҲゴ҇Ҍҏ⊞ѬѮҸ҈Ѥ҄҉Ѽ҉ѽѷ								
History View	7 item(s) in 'Assembly 1'							
Fragments (MAIN)	Name	Length	Original length	5'Trimmed bases	3'Trimmed bases			
Assembly 1	BContig 1	3676						
	Amone17KANR	737	759	0	22			
	x == ONE13KANR	723	819	96	0			
	X==ONE15KANF	567	784	76	141			
	SamonE10KANF	688	758	70	0			
		698	755	38	19			
	SamonE16KANF	599	767	90	78			
		719	758	38	1			
		714	770	39	17			
	X=TWO11KANR	678	765	87	0			
		683	755	59	13			
		705	747	42	0			
	🗟 Contig 2	764						
		762	764	0	2			
		719	756	37	0			
	*⇒RB 1	530	530	0	0			
	⇒xb-control	1100	1100	0	0			
2 contigs	~							

Figure 16.6 Results of assembling the demo set using default parameters

Let's create another assembly, a "child" of Assembly 1. For this, hold down the Shift key and click on fragments ONE17KANR and ONE9KANR, thus selecting seven fragments in Contig 1: ONE17KANR, ONE13KANR, ONE15KANF, ONE10KANF, ONE11KANR, ONE16KANF, and ONE9KANR (Figure 16.7). Click the Assemble Selected button as before.

🚔 ContigExpress Project - <demoproject *=""></demoproject>							
Project Edit View Assemble	Align Analyses Tools Help						
History View	17 item(s) in 'Assembly 1'						
Fragments (MAIN)	Name	Length	Original length	5'Trimmed bases	3'Trimmed bases		
Assembly 1	🖼 Contig 1	3676					
	See ONE17KANR	737	759	0	22		
	See ONE13KANR	723	819	96	0		
	See ONE15KANF	567	784	76	141		
	ONE10KANF	688	758	70	0		
	ONE11KANR	698	755	38	19		
	See ONE16KANF	599	767	90	78		
		719	758	38	1		
	2 ONE6KANR	714	770	39	17		
	Z=TWO11KANR	678	765	87	0		
	2 ONE3KANR	683	755	59	13		
	[±] ∞ONE2KANR	705	747	42	0		
	🔁 Contig 2	764					
	2 ONE8KANR	762	764	0	2		
	_ [±] ∞ONE4KANR	719	756	37	0		
	* ■ RB 1	530	530	0	0		
	⇒xb-control	1100	1100	0	0		
7 fragments (included in assembly) :	selected						

Figure 16.7 Selecting fragments in contig 1 for a "child" assembly

Another assembly derived from Assembly 1 is listed in the Tree Pane (Figure 16.8). The numbering system (Assembly 1.1) describes its relationship to the parent contig. Note that Contig 2 has been inherited unchanged from the parent assembly, Assembly 1, into Assembly 1.1. Also note that in Assembly 1.1, the four unselected fragments, ONE2KANR, ONE3KANR, ONE6KANR and TWO11KANR, are "released" to the pool of unselected fragments as indicated by the icon.

🖹 ContigExpress Project - <demoproject *=""></demoproject>							
Project Edit View Assemble #	Project Edit View Assemble Align Analyses Tools Help						
C = 1 = 4 ≤ 2 ≤ 1 = 1 = 4 × 2 = 1 = 1 = 1 = 1 = 4 + 5 = 0 < 0							
History View	17 item(s) in 'Assembly 1.1'						
Fragments (MAIN)	Name	Length	Original length	5'Trimmed bases	3'Trimmed bases		
E Assembly 1	💼 Contig 2	764					
Assembly 1.1	2 ONE8KANR	762	764	0	2		
	±mone4kanr	719	756	37	0		
	📾 Contig 3	2544					
	± ONE9KANR	719	758	38	1		
	Amone16KANF	599	767	90	78		
	Amone11Kanr	698	755	38	19		
	2 ONE10KANF	688	758	70	0		
	Amone15KANF	567	784	76	141		
		723	819	96	0		
	Samone17KANR	737	759	0	22		
	⇒xb-control	1100	1100	0	0		
		530	530	0	0		
	ONE2KANR	705	747	42	0		
	IIII ONE3KANR	683	755	59	13		
		678	765	87	0		
	ONE6KANR	714	770	39	17		
2 contigs	*						

Figure 16.8 "Child" Assembly 1.1, derived from fragments in Contig 1 from Assembly 1

5. Review and Modify Viewing Options

By default, the Project Explorer is configured to display five columns listing the identification code of each fragment, their original lengths, current lengths, and 5' and 3' trims. Let's modify the viewing options to display more information for each fragment. Select **View > Options** to open the Options dialog box (Figure 16.9):

Options		×				
Details View Status Bar	Copy Fragment/Contig					
Available Fields: Comment Date created Date modified Description Fragments Non-ambiguous bases Status Type	Displayed Fields Name Length Original length 5'Trimmed base 3'Trimmed base	S S S C C Left C Left C Left C Left C Left C Left C Left C Left				
Minimum number of overlapping fragments to calc unambiguity: 1						
40	Cancel	<u>А</u> ррју Неlp				

Figure 16.9 Options dialog box

This dialog box, similar to those in other Vector NTI Advance applications, has three tabs. The **Details View** tab controls the information displayed in the List Pane of Project Explorer. The **Status Bar** tab controls the information displayed on the Status Bar for a selected item in the

Project Explorer. The **Copy Fragment/Contig** tab controls the copy format for fragments and contigs.

On the **Details View** tab, the top to bottom order of the Displayed Fields corresponds to the left to right order of columns in the List Pane. In the **Available Fields** pane, select **Non-ambiguous Bases** and click the >> button to add it to the list of displayed fields. In the **Displayed Fields** pane, select **Non-ambiguous Bases** and click the **Move Up** button to move it to the top of the list.

Click **OK**. Note that **Non-ambiguous Bases** and **Length** now appear as columns to the immediate right of the **Name** column in the Project Explorer List Pane (Figure 16.10):

🖹 ContigExpress Project - <demoproject *=""> 📃 🔟 🔀</demoproject>									
Project Edit View Assemble a	<u>Project Edit ⊻iew Assemble Align Analyses Tools Help</u>								
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·									
History View	17 item(s) in 'Assembly 1.1	item(s) in 'Assembly 1.1'							
Fragments (MAIN)	Name	Non-ambiguous bases	Length	Original length	5'Trimmed bases	3'Trimmed bases			
E Assembly 1	🗟 Contig 2	97.38%	764						
Assembly 1.1			762	764	0	2			
	2 ONE4KANR		719	756	37	0			
	🔁 Contig 3	96.86%	2544						
	Smone9kanr		719	758	38	1			
	Smone16KANF		599	767	90	78			
	Smone11Kanr		698	755	38	19			
	Smone10KANF		688	758	70	0			
	Smone15kanf		567	784	76	141			
	Smone13KANR		723	819	96	0			
	2 ONE17KANR		737	759	0	22			
	□ xb-control		1100	1100	0	0			
	■RB 1		530	530	0	0			
	■ONE2KANR		705	747	42	0			
	■ ONE3KANR		683	755	59	13			
	TWO11KANR		678	765	87	0			
	■ONE6KANR		714	770	39	17			
2 contigs	-								

Figure 16.10 Non-ambiguous bases field is added to the List Pane display

On the toolbar, the List Format group of buttons control the list display (Figure 16.11). Click each of these buttons and observe how the information display of the Project Explorer changes.

Leave the **Details** button (^{IIIII}) selected.



Figure 16.11 List Format group of buttons

The next group of buttons allows you to filter data displayed in the List Pane (Figure 16.12):



Figure 16.12 Filter Data group of buttons

By default all 4 toggle buttons, or viewing filters, are selected, showing the maximum amount of information. To see how they work, make sure that Assembly 1.1 in the Tree Pane is selected. Note that no matter how you display the list, all elements are still identified by one of the following icons:

- Contigs (🖻)
- Fragments included in the assembly (¹/₂)
- Fragment not included in the assembly (^{*})
- Fragments not considered for the assembly (-)

Now click the **Show Contigs** button (¹), turning it "off". Contigs 2 and 3 and their fragments are no longer displayed in the List Pane (Figure 16.13):

ContigExpress Project - <demoproject> Image: Section 2 - <demoproject -="" -<="" <demoproject="" th=""></demoproject></demoproject>								
Project Edit View Assemble A	Project Edit View Assemble Align Analyses Tools Help							
S □ □ □ □ ↓ × □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □								
History View	6 item(s) in 'Assembly 1.1'							
Fragments (MAIN)	Name	Non-ambiguous bases	Length	Original length	5'Trimmed bases	3'Trimmed bases		
E-B Assembly 1	⇒xb-control		1100	1100	0	0		
Assembly 1.1	⇒RB 1		530	530	0	0		
	ONE2KANR		705	747	42	0		
	■ONE3KANR		683	755	59	13		
			678	765	87	0		
	■ONE6KANR		714	770	39	17		
2 contigs								

Figure 16.13 Hide contigs control leaves only non-assembled fragments in display

Click this button again to restore the original display, then click **Expand Contigs** button ($\underline{\mathbb{B}}_{i}$), turning *it* "off". Now the fragments included in Contigs 2 and 3 are not displayed (the contigs are not "expanded").

Click the **Expand Contigs** buttons again to restore the original display. Click each of the remaining two buttons, turning them off then on again in turn: the **Show Unassembled Fragments**

button $(\frac{1}{2})$ and the **Show Other Fragments** button $(\frac{1}{2})$. Note which fragments are excluded and which included in each display. Finish with all filters enabled (all buttons pushed) as it was in the original display.

You can use any combination of enabled and disabled data filters for list display.

6. View Contents in the Tree and Content Panes

The default enabled viewing mode in the Tree Pane is called the History View. It shows the historical relationship between the assemblies in a tree form. For a view with a different perspec-

🚊 ContigExpress Project - <demoproject></demoproject>								
Project Edit View Assemble Align Analyses Tools Help								
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·								
Content View	17 item(s) in 'Assembly 1.1'							
Fragments (MAIN)	Name	Non-ambiguous bases	Length	Original length	5'Trimmed bases	3'Trimmed bases 🔺		
E Assembly 1	🗟 Contig 2	97.38%	764					
E Assembly 1.1	2 ONE8KANR		762	764	0	2		
Contig 2	2 ONE4KANR		719	756	37	0		
Contig 3	🗟 Contig 3	96.86%	2544					
	2 ONE9KANR		719	758	38	1		
	X ONE16KANF		599	767	90	78		
	X ONE11KANR		698	755	38	19		
	CONE10KANF		688	758	70	0		
	√							
2 contigs								

8-8

Figure 16.14 Project Explorer in Content View

The Content View (Figure 16.14) does not display the mutual relationships of the assemblies, but it does enable you to open each assembly from the Tree Pane, displaying each assembly's

contents in the List Pane. Click the **History View** button (^{then}) to return to History View, which displays assembly relationships (trees), but not their contents, in the Tree Pane.

7. Manage Fragment Lists and Project Items

ContigExpress can use the Windows clipboard for standard copy and paste operations. Most operations are accessible through the **Edit** and shortcut menus, or dedicated toolbar buttons.

Select fragment *xb-control* and click the **Copy** button (¹) (enabled when anything is selected

in the List Pane). Click the **Paste** button (¹¹⁾) and **Copy of xb-control** appears in the List Pane.

Project Explorer allows you to change the names of the project items and delete them from the

project. Select the fragment **Copy of xb-control** and click the **Rename** button (^{a)e}), enabling the text box (Figure 16.15). In the text box, change the name to **123** and press ENTER, renaming the fragment.

Z=ONE6KANR	770		
TWO11KANR	765		
	755		
	747		
■ONE17KANR	759		
🖬 xb-control	1100		

Figure 16.15 Activating fragment name text box for renaming

Select **123** and click the **Delete from Project** button (\checkmark). Confirm the action. Fragment 123 is deleted from the project and the Explorer is reset to the upper level of the project (Fragments (MAIN).

Select Assembly 1.1 and fragment ONE4KANR in Contig 2 of this assembly. Click the Delete

from Project (\checkmark) button. ContigExpress warns you that the selected fragment is included in several assemblies and deleting this fragment will delete those assemblies as well (Figure 16.16).

ContigExpress X						
⚠	You are about to delete an item 'ONE4KANR' included in assemblies 'Assembly 1', 'Assembly 1.1'. Those assemblies to be deleted as well. Do you want to continue?					
	Yes No Cancel					

Figure 16.16 Deletion of a fragment will dismiss assemblies in which the fragment is in a contig

Click **No**, and the deletion will not continue. Had you clicked **Yes**, all assemblies would have been deleted.

8. Save and Close a ContigExpress Project

Even though you may wish to continue the tutorial, save and close the project and then open it again to become familiar with these functions.

To save the project, select **Project > Save As**. Name the project **Tutorial Project** and select the Demo Projects folder as the destination.

To close your project, select **Project > Close Project**. ContigExpress reverts to its initial state, with an empty workspace. You can either start a new project by importing the fragments or open an existing project from the disk.

Exit ContigExpress as you would close any other Windows application.

Session 2 Working in Fragment Viewer

1. Open and Inspect the Fragment Viewer

Open the Project Explorer and select Project on the menu bar. The name of the project you worked with last is shown in the used projects list at the bottom of the drop down menu. Select Tutorial Project, opening it in Project Explorer. Select the upper level of the project (Fragments (MAIN)) and in the List Pane, double-click the fragment **ONE8KANR** to open it in a Fragment

Viewer (Figure 16.17). Maximize the window and arrange the panes conveniently by dragging the split bars with the mouse.



Figure 16.17 ContigExpress Fragment Viewer

The Fragment Display window consists of a title bar, a menu bar, three toolbars (Main Toolbar, Window Toolbar, and Pane Toolbar) and three panes: a Text Pane, a Sequence Pane and a Chromatogram Pane. The panes are divided by movable split bars.

Note: Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function. Hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button.

Text Pane

Click the **Text Pane** button (^[D]) to activate it. The Text Pane lists properties of the fragment, such as its name, general description, some record of the chromatogram data, and feature annotations on the fragment, if any.

Click the + to the left of the General Description line to open and view the folder contents. Double click on the folder icon to close it.

Sequence Pane

Click the Sequence Pane button ()) to activate it. By default, only one strand of the sequence

is shown. Click the **Show Two Strands** button $\binom{\text{HIG}}{\text{HIG}}$) from the toolbar or **View** menu. Now both strands of the sequence are displayed (Figure 16.18).

🖀 ContigExpress - [ONE8KANR (read-only)]						- 🗆 🗡	
Fragment Edit View Align Analyses Assemble Tools Window Help						_ 8 ×	
C C 17 (* X C C K 17 2) Q 🥔	¥?						
□ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □	ગ્ર્						
🗷 📩 ONE8KANR (764)	1	CAATT NTCG	A TGATG GTTGA	GATGT GTATA	AGAGA CAGGC CT	CAA CCTAC	
🖂 🔄 General Description		GTTAA NAGC	г астас сааст	CTACA CATAT	TCTCT GTCCG GA	GTT GGATG	
DNA Linear 764 BP	51	TACTG GGCT	G CTTCC TAATG	CAAGA GTCGC	ATAAG GGAGA GC	GTC GAATG	
Creation Date: 09:13 AM August 22, 2002		ATGAC CCGA	C GAAGG ATTAC	GTTCT CAGCG	TATTC CCTCT CG	CAG CTTAC	
Last Modification Date: 09:13 AM August 22, 2002	101	GTGCA CTCT	C AGTAC AATCT	GCTCT GATGC	CGTAT AGTTA AG	CCA GCCCC	
🖻 🚍 Chromatogram Data		CACGT GAGA	G TCATG TTAGA	. CGAGA CTACG	GCATA TCAAT TO	GGT CGGGG	
Start date of the gel run: 05:42 PM January 02, 2001	151	GACAC CCGC	C AACAC CCGCT	GACGC GCCCT	GACGG GCTTG TO	TGC TCCCG	
Stop date of the gel run: 09:57 PM January 02, 2001		CTGTG GGCG	G TTGTG GGCGA	CTGCG CGGGA	CTGCC CGAAC AG	ACG AGGGC	
Scaling factors for the average signals: A: 20, C: 31, G: 15, T: 26	201	GCATC CGCT	T ACAGA CAAGO	TGTGA CCGTC	TCCGG GAGCT GC	ATG TGTCA	
		CGTAG GCGA	A TGTCT GTTCG	ACACT GGCAG	AGGCC CTCGA CO	TAC ACAGT	
	251	GAGGT TTTC	A CCGTC ATCAC	CGAAA CGCGC	GAGAC GARAG GO	CCT CGTGA	
		CTCCA AAAG	T GGCAG TAGTG	GCTTT GCGCG	CTCTG CTTTC CC	GGA GCACT	-
CAATTNTCGATG			G A T G T				Fragment ONE8KANR
	X X - C		G A T G T				
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 3 10 11 12 1	3 14 15 16	17 18 19 20	21 22 23 24 25	26 27 28 29 30	0 31 32 33 34 35	36 37 38 39 40	
						Þ	
kinant			Pos	: 1/1			

Figure 16.18 Double- stranded sequence display

Scroll to the end of the sequence. Note that 2 bases (CA) were dropped down from their original row, and replaced by down-pointing arrows. This is a result of clipping (default - on) performed by the assembly process. Activate the Chromatogram Pane and scroll to the far right to see how the clipped bases are represented in the chromatogram. Return to the Sequence Pane by clicking it.

To modify the number of sequence blocks displayed per line, click the **Lane Width** button (^{IIII}) and enter **15** in the Blocks per Line field of the Set New Number of Blocks dialog box. Click **OK** and the number of blocks per line increases as directed (Figure 16.19).

🖀 ContigExpress - [ONE8KANR (read-only)]						
Fragment Edit View Align Analyses Assemble Tools Window Help	_ & ×					
_ C £ ∽ ~ X & B & M D Q 3 X						
_ 🗐 🔄 🔄 🛱 🏭 🍀 ∰ 🍜 📿 🛸 🏭 ダ [Courier New 🖃 T3 🗩 B I 🖉 (簧 簧 簧						
1 CAATT NTCGA TGATG GTTGA GATGT GTATA AGAGA CAGGC CTCAA CCTAC TACTG GGCTG CTTCC	TAATG CAAGA 🔺					
GTTAA NAGCT ACTAC CAACT CTACA CATAT TCTCT GTCCG GAGTT GGATG ATGAC CCGAC GAAGG	ATTAC GTTCT					
76 GTCGC ATAAG GGAGA GCGTC GAATG GTGCA CTCTC AGTAC AATCT GCTCT GATGC CGTAT AGTTA	AGCCA GCCCC					
CAGCG TATTC CCTCT CGCAG CTTAC CACGT GAGAG TCATG TTAGA CGAGA CTACG GCATA TCAAT	TCGGT CGGGG					
151 GACAC CCGCC AACAC CCGCT GACGC GCCCT GACGG GCTTG TCTGC TCCCG GCATC CGCTT ACAGA	CAAGC TGTGA					
CTGTG GGCGG TTGTG GGCGA CTGCC CGGGA CTGCC CGAAC AGACG AGGGC CGTAG GCGAA TGTCT	GTTCG ACACT					
226 CCGTC TCCGG GAGCT GCATG TGTCA GAGGT TTTCA CCGTC ATCAC CGAAA CGCGC GAGAC GAAAG	GGCCT CGTGA					
GGCAG AGGCC CTCGA CGTAC ACAGT CTCCA AAAGT GGCAG TAGTG GCTTT GCGCG CTCTG CTTTC	CCGGA GCACT					
301 TACGC CTATT NNNAT AGGTT AATGT CATGA TAATA ATGGT TTCTT ANACN NCAGG TGGCA CTTTT	CGGGG AAATG					
ATGCG GATAA NNNTA TCCAA TTACA GTACT ATTAT TACCA AAGAA TNTGN NGTCC ACCGT GAAAA	GCCCC TTTAC					
Pos: 1/1						

Figure 16.19 Sequence Pane displayed as 15 blocks (5 bases each) per line

The same control is available via the **View** > **Grouping** > **Set Number of Blocks** menu. Change the blocks display back to 10.
Chromatogram Pane

Click the **Chromatogram Pane** () button to activate the pane (Figure 16.20). The vertical scroll lever on the left side of the Chromatogram Pane can be used to resize chromatogram peak height.



Figure 16.20 Fragment Viewer Chromatogram Pane

Individual base traces can be displayed or removed by clicking the corresponding Show Trace

toggle buttons (\square) on the toolbar or by choosing **View > Show Traces** for the particular base you want to show or hide. For example, to hide the chromatogram trace for Ts only, make sure that the **Show Trace -T** button is not pressed, but that the **Show Trace A**, **C** and **G** buttons are pressed. Press each button to see the effect on the Chromatogram Pane.

2. Sequence Selection Techniques

In ContigExpress, positioning the cursor in the Sequence Pane transforms it into a short, verti-

cal, blinking I-beam called a caret (1). When a sequence is selected and highlighted, one end (the "active" end) is marked with a caret. The current position of the caret is always shown in the Position Box on the status bar (Figure 16.21):



Figure 16.21 Details of status bar on Fragment Viewer

Click the position box to open a Set Caret Position dialog box that can be used to position the caret anywhere in the sequence. Enter the nucleotide position number and click **OK**.

For setting a selection range, click on the Selection box on the Status Bar, opening the Set Selection dialog box. Set the selection from 10 bp to 30 bp and press **OK**.

The selection is simultaneously highlighted in the Sequence and Chromatogram Panes and shown in the Selection Box on the status bar (Figure 16.22).



Figure 16.22 Highlighted selection in the Sequence and Chromatogram Panes

To modify the 5' and 3' ends with the mouse:

- Click the 5' end of the selection, moving the caret [note its change to a 5' mark (¹/₂^{sr})] to that position and activating the 5' end. CLICK + DRAG the 5' end to a position near the start of the molecule. Observe the selection box as you drag. The caret remains with the end of selection you are dragging.
- The end of the selection marked with the caret can also be moved with arrow keys on the keyboard. Hold the SHIFT + the left or right arrow keys to move the 5' end of selection one nucleotide at a time. (If you hold down CTRL + SHIFT + use the arrow keys, the selection is changed 5 nucleotides at a time.) When the 5' end is placed on the start of the molecule (1 bp), release the SHIFT key.
- To set a selection with the mouse, click anywhere inside the sequence and drag the caret with the mouse, releasing when the selection is complete.

Note that the selected fragment is also displayed concurrently in the Chromatogram Pane. This occurs no matter where the selection was made.

3. Display ORFs and Translate the Nucleotide Sequence

Display ORFs for the Sequence

In the Fragment Viewer Sequence Pane choose Show ORFs from the View menu or click the

Show ORFs button () on the toolbar. ORFs are displayed for the direct and complementary strands (Figure 16.23). If single-stranded sequence is displayed, only the ORFs for that strand

are shown. ORF finding criteria (e.g. minimum length, inclusion/exclusion of stop codon, etc.) can be adjusted via the **View Options** dialog **ORF** tab from the **View** menu or toolbar button



Figure 16.23 ORF display in Sequence Pane

Translate the Nucleotide Sequence

Select the region from 127 to 138 bp. The Chromatogram Pane has also made the corresponding selection and has scrolled its graph to the selection. Click the **Translate Selection** button

(^{Ard}) on the **View** menu or toolbar. ContigExpress shows the amino acid abbreviations above the selected sequence (Figure 16.24).



Figure 16.24 Direct strand translation of a selection in Sequence Pane

To translate the complementary strand of the selection, click the Translate Complementary but-

ton (⁽¹⁾) on the menu or toolbar. If the sequence is displayed as single-stranded, the pane automatically switches to two-strand mode to show the complementary translation below the selection (Figure 16.25):



Figure 16.25 Two-strand translation of a selection in Sequence Pane

To toggle between 1 and 3 letter codes in the translations click the **Show 1-letter AA codes** but

ton ()) on the View menu or toolbar.

To delete all translations, click the **Clear All Translation** button (⁴⁾)on the **View** menu or tool-

bar. Click the **Show Two Strands** button (^{###}) to return to 1-strand display. Notice that when you return to single-strand sequence display, the ORF display changes to direct ORFs only.

Click on the **Show ORFs** button (^{SPE}) to remove the ORFs display.

4. Edit the Nucleotide Sequence in the Sequence Pane

You may freely edit a fragment in the Fragment Viewer only if it is not part of a contig. A fragment that is part of a contig, as ONE8KANR currently is, opens in Read-only mode. To edit such a fragment, you must open the contig in a Contig Viewer and edit the fragment there. (Any edits made there will be saved to the fragment.) Otherwise, you must dissolve the contig before you open and edit a fragment contained in it.

In Project Explorer, select Contig 1 from Assembly 1 and select **Dissolve Contig** from the shortcut menu. This discards Contig 1 and frees up member fragments for editing; repeat on Contig 3 of Assembly 1.1. Double-click the fragment, ONE17KANR to open it in Fragment Viewer. Fragment ONE8KANR remains in Read-Only mode and Contig 2 is unaffected, since they are not descended from the dissolved contig. 📋 ContigExpress - [ONE17KANR *] - 🗆 🗵 - Fragment Edit View Align Analyses Assemble Tools Window Help _ 8 × ▼ 13 🗵 📩 ONE17KANR (759) 1 CAATT NTCGA TGATG GTTGA GATGT GTATA AGAGA CAGCC CTTAT GCGAC 🕀 🧰 General Description TCCTG CATTA GGAAG CAGCC CAGTA GTAGG TTGAG GCCGT TGAGC ACCGC 51 🗄 🧰 Chromatogram Data 101 CGCCG CAAGG AATGG TGCAT GCAAG GAGAT GGCTG CCCAA CAGTC CCCCG GCCAC GGGGC CTGCC ACCAT ACCCA CNGCC GAAAC AAGCG CTCAT GAGCO CGAAG TGGCG AGCCC GATCT TCCCC ATCGG TGATG TCGGC GATAT AGGCG 201 CCAGC AACCG CACCT GTGGC GCCGG TGATG CCGGC CACGA TGCGT CCGGC 251 GTGGA GTTTG ATCTG GCT $\downarrow\downarrow$ $\downarrow\downarrow$ ATG ACCCT GCTGA TTGGT TCGCT GACCA A 1111 AG CG 301 351 TTINC GGGTG CGGGA CGGCG TTACC AGAAA CTCAG AAGGT TCGTC CAACC AAACC GACTC TGACG GCAGT TTACG AGAGA GATGA TAGGG TCTGC TTCAG 401 TARGE CAGAT GETAE ACAAT TAGGE TIGTA CATAT IGTEG TIAGA ACGEC G G G G ò GΤ т G A Т т G G Fragment ONE17KAN 311 312 313 314 • Pos: 305/305

You will learn three ways to edit the fragment sequence. All are illustrated in the same screen shot, Figure 16.26.

Figure 16.26 Editing a sequence in the Fragment Viewer

- Nucleotide Deletion In the Sequence Pane, select nucleotides 316 through 319. Press the Delete key on your keyboard. The selected symbols move under the row, with downward pointing arrows (↓) taking their place.
- 2. Now move your attention to the Chromatogram Pane. There is a sequence above and one below the graph. Before we started editing, they were identical. The sequence above the graph reflects all your editing commands, the sequence below always remains in its original form, thus giving you a useful reference to track and compare your changes. Note that the deletion resulted in each deleted nucleotide being replaced by a dash (-) in this sequence.
- 3. *Nucleotide Insertion* Back in the Sequence Pane, move the caret in the Sequence Pane to position 307 and type *TTT*. Three Ts with upward pointing arrows (↑) below them are inserted at the caret position.
- 4. In this case, the arrows indicate that symbols were inserted in a sequence ("added to" the sequence) into a position, not substituted for other nucleotides. The sequence above the graph in the Chromatogram Pane also shows the insertion (in another color). Note that a gap appeared in the graph because there is no data to build chromatograms for newly inserted symbols.
- 5. Nucleotide Substitution Select nucleotide 303 and type G. The selected base is replaced by G, and A is shown below G to help you track the change. The *chromatogram* does not change because the G was not inserted; it just replaces the original base call. You can only replace the bases one by one.

By default, peaks for deleted bases are still shown in the chromatogram. One important consequence is that although bases have been deleted, they are still considered part of the sequence during translation. Deleted peaks can be removed using the **Show Deleted Peaks** feature,

allowing translation in the new/resulting reading frame. Press the **Show Deleted Peaks** (**TAT**) button or choose **View > Show Deleted Peaks** to turn *off* the Show Deleted Peaks function. When a message appears indicating the fragment will switch to read only mode, choose **Yes**. Make a selection across the area where you have edited bases from 301 to 375 bp and trans-

late the sequence using techniques previously described. Notice the translation considers the deletions in the sequence and proceeds according to the new frame (Figure 16.27).



Figure 16.27 Translation reading frame ignores the 4 deleted bases

Click the **Show Deleted Peaks** button (^{thit}) again to reactivate the function. Notice the translation now includes the 4 deleted peaks, as if no deletions have been made (Figure 16.28). Consequently, the downstream translation is changed.



Figure 16.28 Translation reading frame includes the 4 deleted bases.

Erase your translation using techniques described earlier. You can use the Undo and Redo

commands to reverse or restore your editing actions. Click the **Undo** (^{SC)}) Main toolbar button several times, and watch your earlier edits disappear. Eventually it becomes disabled and both Sequence and Chromatogram panes return to their original sequences.

5. Edit a Sequence in the Chromatogram Pane

Activate the Chromatogram Pane by clicking the **Chromatogram Pane** () Toolbar button.

In the top, editable sequence in the Chromatogram Pane, select "T" at bp 11 and type **C**. As in the Sequence Pane, T is replaced by C. Note that each of these actions is simultaneously reflected in the Sequence Pane.

Play with editing in both panes to become familiar with all features, but do not be afraid to edit too much. You can restore the original sequence by selecting **Fragment > Revert to Saved**.

Note that all editing operations are reflected in both the Sequence and Chromatogram Panes.

They can be summarized as follows (NTs = nucleotides):

Action	How to Perform	Sequence Pane Result	Chromatogram Pane Result
Delete	Select	Replaces NT with (↓);	() Appear in
	residues;	original NT moves	upper, editable
	press Delete	below strand	sequence
Insert	Place caret; type new NTs	([↑]) appears below new NTs; new NTs are colored	A break appears in the chromatogram
Replace	Select existing	New NT appear in	New NT appears in
	NTs and type	sequence; replaced	upper sequence; no
	new NTs one	NTs moved below	break or change in
	by one	strand	chromatogram

Table 16.1 Editing operations for Sequence and Chromatogram Panes

6. Close the Fragment Viewer

Select **Fragment > Close** or click the close box to close the Fragment Viewer. If asked, confirm the operation.

7. Exit ContigExpress

Close ContigExpress by selecting **Project > Close Project**. When asked whether to save the changes, click **No** so you can continue to use the project with the assemblies and contigs created (and dismissed during this session) in the first part of this tutorial.

Session 3 Working in the Contig Viewer

When you are in a ContigExpress project, selecting and opening a fragment brings up Fragment Viewer. Selecting and opening a contig opens a Contig Viewer.

1. Open and Examine a Contig Viewer

Re-open ContigExpress as you have done before. Load the Tutorial Project that you created in Session 1 by selecting **Project > Tutorial Project.cep**. In the Project Explorer window, select Assembly 1 and double-click on Contig 1 in the List Pane, opening the Contig Viewer (Figure 16.29). Maximize the window.

Contig Viewer has many elements similar to the Fragment Viewer: a title bar, three toolbars and three panes: a Text Pane, a Graphics Pane and an Alignment Pane. Arrange the panes conveniently by dragging the split bars with a mouse. A Status Bar at the screen bottom displays the Project Explorer status.

Note: Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function. Hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button.



Figure 16.29 ContigExpress Contig Viewer

Text Pane

To activate the Text Pane, click on the **Text Pane** button (). The Text Pane is similar to other Text Panes with its folders containing various properties of the fragment.

Open the Fragments Folder and select fragment *ONE11KANR*. When you click on it, this fragment is located in the remaining two panes: in the Graphics Pane it is highlighted in blue, and in the Alignment Pane, its name is highlighted (Figure 16.30).

ContigExpress - [Contig 1 (read-only)]					<u>_ ×</u>
🗃 Contig Edit View Align Analyses Assemble	'ools <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp				_ B ×
0 C 10 C X B B 17 4) 🗋 🍠 🚀				
☑ [™] Contig 1 (11 fragments) ⊕ General Description				ONE 3KAMS:: 2428 > 5488	0HE2K6881(2972) 1676
Fragments				Thro 15KANR: 2423 - 3182	
ONE17KANR: 1 > 737			ONE3KONR: 1824 - 2546 (officiants 2545 - 5827	
ONE13KANR: 541 > 1271			ONE 15X ANT: 1713 - 2555	alizad	
ONE15KANF: 1140 « 1706 (complementary)			(HE11KARR: 1511-2511		
ONE10KANF: 1362 « 2051 (complementary)		ONE 41KAN7:	1962 «2054] anny franza faraj		
ONE11KANR: 1601 > 2300	ANE (1997)	ONE 15KAN7: 1141 < 1215 [dementary		
ONE16KANF: 1733 « 2333 (complementary)	ONE (2Konk: 1) 757				
ONE9KANR: 1824 « 2546 (complementary)					
ONE6KANR: 2343 > 3057	1 500	1000 15	00 2000	2500	2000 2500 -
TWOTIKANR: 2423 > 3102					
ONE2KANR: 2423 × 3100 ONE2KANR: 2972 × 3676			1 1 1		
01220000					
	II				
2430	2440 2450	2460 247	0 2480	2490	2500 2510
» UNE2KANR I » ONE2KANR I Lease American America	TTACLO TALACAC				amm.a.a.
» TWO11KANR 1CGGAATTCGGATCTG	GITACCAC <mark>-</mark> TRARCCAGC	CTCARGARCECCUGAR.	IGGAGICICIAAGCI	ACATAATACCAA	CTTACAC CTTTACAAAAIG
» ONE6KANR 80CGGAATTCGGATCTG	TTACCAC <mark>C</mark> TAAACCAGO	CTCAAGAACACCCGAA'	IGGAGTETETAAGET	ACATAATACCAA	CTTACAC-TTTACAAAATG
« ONE9KANR 599 CGGAATTCGGATCTG	GTTACCAC-TAAACCAGC	CTCAAGAACACCCGAA'	IGGAGTCTCTAAGCT	ACATAATACCAA	CTTACAC-TTTACAAAATG
« ONE16KANF • 600					
» ONE11KANR • 699					* I
Contig 1 2422 CGG MATTCGG MTCTG	TTACCAC-TANACCAGO	CTCDAGDACACCCGDA	IGGAGTOTOTAAGOT	ACATAATACCAA	CTTACAC-TTTACAAATG
	+				+
				1	Þ

Figure 16.30 Fragment selection in Contig Viewer is synchronized in all 3 panes

It is possible to perform additional assemblies from the Text Pane without returning to the Project Explorer. **Assemble Selected Fragments** becomes accessible from the **Assemble**

menu or a toolbar button () when two or more sequences are selected. The Assemble Not

Selected (button (toolbar only) becomes available when there are at least two unselected sequences and one selected sequence in the Text Pane. The **Assemble Not Selected** command is similar to **Assemble Selected Fragments**, except that it excludes the selected fragment(s) when attempting to assemble a Contig.

When either of these commands is executed, the new assembly is performed and added to the project as a child assembly of the assembly that the current Contig is a part of. For example, if the Contig is part of Assembly 1, the new assembly will be called Assembly 1.1.

Graphics Pane

Click the **Contig Graph** button (
) in the Window toolbar to activate the Graphics Pane.

By default, the data in this pane is drawn in **Fit to screen** mode. The Graphics Pane contains horizontal arrows representing the relative positions of the fragments forming the contig. The arrowheads indicate the direct or complementary placement in the contig of the respective fragment.

Below the fragment arrows are a Coverage Map and a scale, or Weight Graph, with position markers for this contig. The Coverage Map summarizes the depth of coverage and directionality of the fragments. The Weight Graph displays the quality of the assembly. Click the Zoom In button until a horizontal scroll bar appears below the weight graph and position markers are shown every 50 bases. Move the scroll bar on the Weight Graph so that you can view the region at about position 1235. Note the green vertical line there. Position the cursor at that site and click

the **Zoom In** button (^{LA}) several times to enlarge the graph. You may need to scroll the horizontal scroll bar to keep the site you marked in view as you enlarge the area. *When the maximal zoom is reached, the Zoom In button becomes disabled.*



Figure 16.31 Using the Weight Graph to identify positions of poor consensus

The negative peak in the Weight Graph line (Figure 16.31) indicates a position where the consensus is poor. In the Alignment Pane, look at the symbols at the same position. The nucleotide at bp 1235 appears to be unresolved. Instead of having to thoroughly examine all nucleotides sequences throughout the contig, you can see the "bad" points with just one glance at the Weight Graph.

For details regarding the weight calculation, refer to Chapter 31.

Click **Fit to Screen** from the **View** or shortcut menu, or toolbar button (^(C)) to return to the standard sizing.

You can make selections in the Contig Viewer using techniques you have already learned. Select nucleotides from 2000 to 2077 bp by dragging the mouse on the Graphics Pane. Note that the selection is concurrently scrolled to in the Alignment pane, with blue vertical lines at the start and end coordinates of this selection (Figure 16.32).



Figure 16.32 Sequence selection in the Contig Viewer

ORFs can be displayed in the Graphics Pane of the Contig Viewer by activating the Graphics Pane and either choosing **View > Show ORFs** from the menu or clicking the **Show ORFs** but-

ton ($\stackrel{\square}{\longrightarrow}$) on the toolbar. Click the **Show ORFs** button. The ORFs display area appears below the fragment display in the Graphics Pane (Figure 16.33). Green bars in the ORFs display area represent individual ORFs. Click on a green bar to highlight the ORF in the Graphics Pane. The

selected ORF is also scrolled to in the Sequence Pane; note the blue vertical line at the end coordinate of this selection.

📁 ContigExpress - [Contig 1 (read-only)]		×
🚘 Contig Edit View Align Analyses Asser	nble Tools Window Help	×
001001%01%		
□ □ □	·····································	
🛛 🖄 Contig 1 (11 fragments)		
🗄 🦲 General Description		
🖃 😋 Fragments		
ONE17KANR: 1 > 737		
ONE13KANR: 541 > 1271		
ONE15KANF: 1140 < 1706 (complementary)		
ONE10KANF: 1362 < 2051 (complementary)		
ONE11KANR: 1601 > 2300		
ONE16KANF: 1733 « 2333 (complementary)	1 <u>500</u> 1000 150 <mark>. 2000</mark> 2500 3000 3500	-
ONE9KANR: 1824 « 2546 (complementary)		2
UNEBRANK: 2343 > 3057		-
ONE3KAND: 2423 > 3108		i
ONE2KANB: 2972 > 3676		-
		1
		<u> </u>
160 217	J 2180 2190 2200 2210 2220 2230 2240 2250	÷.,
« ONE9KANR 33/TAACTCAGATGO	Get CACCCATAATCCCATCTCCCCGGTCTCTTAATGGATTAGGATGTTCCTGCCTCTGGATTCATTGGAGGCCATGCATG	· 🛋
» ONE11KANR 560 TALCTCAGATGO	General Concentration of the concentration of the second state of	
« ONE10KANE • 689		
« ONE15KANF • 566		
» ONE13KANR • 730		
» ONE17KANR • 736		Ŧ
Contig 1 2160 TAACTCAGATGO	SCTCACCCCATAATCCCATCTCCCGGTCTCTTAATGGATTAGGATGTTCCTGCCTCTGGATTCATTGGAG-CCATGCATGT/	
	• + •	
	<u>د</u> ا	
Ready	Sel: 1583 - 2207 : 1 - 607	1.

Figure 16.33 Display and selection of an ORF in the Contig Viewer

Gaps that appear in the contig consensus are ignored during ORF calculation, i.e., they are skipped over. Additional parameters for the ORFs search can be configured in the Contig View Options dialog box. Choose **View > View Options** from the menu in the Contig Viewer or click

the **Viewing Options** button () on the toolbar to launch the dialog box. Select the **ORF** tab on the **Contig View Options dialog** box (Figure 16.34).

Contig view options
General Fragments Highlight Weight Table ORF Consensus
■ Nested ORFs ✓ Include stop codop in OBF
Minimum size 50 codons Start codons: ATG Stop codons: TAA TGA TAG
OK Cancel Load Save

Figure 16.34 Configurable ORF parameters for Contig Viewer

Acceptable start and stop codons can be designated here. Minimum ORF size for the search can also be set, as well as the option to show nested ORFs. Close the Contig View Options dia-

log box by clicking on the Cancel button. Click the **Show ORFs** button to remove the ORFs from the Graphics Pane display.

Activate the Graphics Pane and choose View > Show Contig Coverage from the menu or click

the **Show Contig Coverage** button (**II**). The graphical representation of how the assembled fragments cover Contig 1 is removed from the Graphics Pane. Click the **Show Contig Coverage** button again to return the graphic to the display.

2. Review the Contig in Contig Alignment Pane

Click the **Alignment** button (E) in the Toolbar to activate the Contig Alignment Pane (Figure 16.35). The Alignment Pane displays the nucleotide sequences of the contig consensus as well as those of the fragments forming the contig and their positions. In the standard configuration of this Viewer, positions/columns in the consensus where the fragments do not completely agree are highlighted in yellow. The particular bases at such positions that disagree with the consensus appear in red.



Figure 16.35 Contig Viewer – Alignment Pane with ambiguous positions highlighted

	FRAGMENT CUR	RENT POSITION		F	RAGMENT SEQUEN	CES
FRAGMENT NAME LIS	ят /		SCAL	LE		
	2440	2450	2460	2470	2480	2490
» ONE2KANR	X			/	/	
> ONE3KANR	1 ACCAC <mark>-</mark> T	AAACCAGCCT	CAAGAAC	CACCCGAATG G	AGTCTCTAAGC	TACATAATAC
» TWO11KANR	1 ассас <mark>-</mark> т	AAACCAGCCT	CAAGAAC	CACCCGAATGG	AGTCTCTAAGC	TACATAATAC
» ONE6KANR	56 TGACCAC <mark>C</mark> T	AAACCAGCCT	CAAGAAC	CACCCGAATGG	AGTCTCTAAGC	TACATAATAC
« ONE9KANR 5	575 TGACCAC <mark>-</mark> T	AAACCAGCCT	CAAGAAC	CACCCGAATGG	AGTCTCTAAGC	TACATAATAC
≪ ONE16KANF ● 6	500					
│ » ONE11KANR • 6	599					
« ONE10KANF • 6	589					
« ONE15KANF • 5	566					
NONE13KANR • 7	730					
NONE17KANR • 7	736					
Contig 1 23	398 tgaccac <mark>-</mark> t	AAACCAGCCT	CAAGAAC	CACCCGAATGG	AGTCTCTAAGC	TACATAATAC
	+					
	•					•
Ready		Pos: 2343/1				
				/	\backslash	
	CONSENSUS	SEQUENCE		CONSEN	SUS SEQUENCE	
	(SYMBOL FOR	RMAT)		(NUCLEC	TIDE FORMAT)	

Let's study the elements of the Alignment Pane (Figure 16.36):

Figure 16.36 Elements of the Alignment Pane

- The **fragments name list** on the left contains all fragments used in this contig. Reorder fragments in this list by selecting and dragging vertically.
- The **scale** gives a reference for all fragments and the consensus shown in the alignment.
- The fragment current position is the relative (counted from the fragment start) position
 of the currently shown left end of the respective fragment.
- The **fragment sequences**, with the option of showing chromatograms, if available. Some fragment ends were clipped as part of the assembly process; hovering the mouse alongside such a fragment end will display the trimmed sequence in a tooltip.
- The **consensus sequence (nucleotide format)** shows the nucleotide consensus for the assembly.
- The consensus sequence (symbol format) shows the symbol consensus for the assembly. In the symbol consensus, blank spaces indicate identical residues, dots (•) indicate positions with an IUPAC ambiguity symbol in a fragment, and plus symbols (+) indicate ambiguous positions containing specific base disagreements and/or gaps. The two consensus sequence tracks, nucleotide and symbol, may be repositioned at the top of the Alignment Pane, using the Alignment on Top command from the shortcut menu. You may navigate easily among ambiguous positions using Find Next/Previous

Ambiguous from the View menu or toolbar button (Ambiguous).

There are two Find features in the Contig Viewer: Find Fragment and Find Sequence. **Find Fragment** can be be activated from the **Edit** menu in any pane. In the dialog (Figure 16.37), enter the name of a fragment and click **Find**. Wild cards (*) are permitted in the search name (e.g. *16*). If a result is returned, double-click on it and the Viewer will jump to that fragment in the Text and Graphics panes.

Find Fragment	? ×
Fragment's Name	
16	<u> </u>
Search Results	Cancel
ONE16KANF	

Figure 16.37 Find Fragment dialog

Find can be used to find a specific sequence in the Alignment Pane. Click on the **ONE6KANR** fragment name in the Alignment Pane list to select it. Place the cursor at the beginning of the sequence. Launch the Find sequence dialog box either by choosing **Edit > Find** from the menu

or by clicking the **Find** button ()) on the toolbar. When Find dialog box appears, type in the sequence "gagactccatt" (Figure 16.38). Click the **Complementary Search** checkbox.

Find			? ×
Fi <u>n</u> d what:	gagactccatt		Eind Next
Complement	entary Search 18	Direction C Up C Down	Cancel

Figure 16.38 Find (sequence) dialog

Click the **Find Next** button. The Alignment Pane jumps to and highlights contig positions 2470 to 2480 where the complementary sequence has been found (Figure 16.39). The **Set Selection** box on the Status bar also reports the position of the found sequence using the fragment coordi-

nates (128-138). The search is case-insensitive and can operate on the consensus as well as individual fragments. Click **Cancel** to close the Find dialog box.



Figure 16.39 Find a sequence in the Alignment Pane

Click on the **ONE6KANR** fragment name in the Alignment Pane. Right-click anywhere in the Alignment Pane, opening the shortcut menu. Select **Show Chromatogram for ONE6KANR**. The chromatogram for the selected fragment is shown below its sequence, the same as it was in the Chromatogram Pane of the Fragment Viewer (Figure 16.40).



Figure 16.40 Chromatogram display in Alignment Pane

Right-click anywhere in the Alignment Pane. Select **Show All Chromatograms** from the shortcut menu. Now the chromatograms for all four fragments at this position are displayed (Figure 16.41):



Figure 16.41 All chromatograms displayed in Alignment Pane

Right-click anywhere in the Alignment Pane and choose **Hide All Chromatograms** from the shortcut menu. Chromatograms in the Alignment Pane are no longer displayed.

The contig consensus sequence can be translated in the Alignment pane in any one or all of the three direct frames. Translate the contig sequence in the first frame by activating the Alignment Pane and choosing **View > Consensus Translation > 1**st frame from the menu or by pressing

the **Consensus Translation 1st Frame** button $(\overrightarrow{s_1})$ on the toolbar. Translate the contig sequence in the second and third frames by choosing their respective menu commands or toolbar buttons (Figure 16.42). Gaps in the consensus are ignored in the translation, with the result being that the introduction of gaps does not result in frameshift. Toggle between viewing translations in single-letter or three-letter codes using the **Show 1-letter AA codes** button on the toolbar.



Figure 16.42 Amino acid translations of the contig consensus

Translations can be removed by clicking the **Consensus Translation** buttons again or by deselecting the translation options from the **View > Consensus Translation** menu.

3. Edit a Fragment in the Alignment Pane

Fragments can be edited in the Alignment pane of the Contig Viewer. Highlight the fragment name **ONE9KANR** in the Alignment Pane and open the **Set Selection** box on the Status bar. Enter coordinates 100 to 110 and check Fragment radio button and click OK. This jumps the Alignment Pane to a sequence TGTAAAATCCC at positions 1923-1933 in the contig. The fragment coordinates, read 5' to 3', are 611-621, as you can read on the status bar. (Coordinates 100-110 refer to the coordinates as the original fragment is positioned in the contig – in this case, a complementary positioning.)

Click on the "Use Enhanced Edit Mode" button (E) on on the toolbar to allow editing. Choose **Edit > Delete Sequence from 611 to 621 bp** from the menu. Because this fragment is a part of a contig in Assembly 1.1, in addition to the current assembly, the following message appears (Figure 16.43):

ContigEx	press
<u>.</u>	You are attempting edits on fragment included in multiple assemblies. If the fragment length changes after the editing, all other contigs containing this fragment, except this one, will be dissolved. Do you want to proceed anyway?

Figure 16.43 Approval for fragment editing that may dissolve other contigs

Click **Yes** to accept the changes. When you proceed with the deletion, the bases are deleted from the chromatogram and the resulting gap is closed. A vertical red bar appears in the sequence marking the position where the deletion was made (Figure 16.44). The consensus

and the alignment are changed radically because sequence originally to the right in ONE9KANR is shifted left, and is out of alignment with the other fragments in this region.

ContigExpress - [Contig 1 *]							
🗃 Contig Edit View Align Analyses Assemble	Tools Window Help						_8
1 日本) () () () () () () () () () () () () () ()						
	$\begin{array}{c c} & \underline{\mathbb{A}} & \underline{\mathbb{A}} & \underline{\mathbb{A}} \\ & \underline{\mathbb{A}} & \underline{\mathbb{A}} & \underline{\mathbb{A}} \\ \end{array} \xrightarrow{\mathbf{A}} & \underline{\mathbb{A}} & \underline{\mathbb{A}} & \underline{\mathbb{A}} & \underline{\mathbb{A}} \\ \end{array} \xrightarrow{\mathbf{A}} & \underline{\mathbb{A}} & \underline{\mathbb{A}} & \underline{\mathbb{A}} & \underline{\mathbb{A}} \\ \end{array} \xrightarrow{\mathbf{A}} & \underline{\mathbb{A}} & \underline{\mathbb{A}} & \underline{\mathbb{A}} & \underline{\mathbb{A}} & \underline{\mathbb{A}} & \underline{\mathbb{A}} \\ \end{array}$	ず3 諦 蔏 蔏					
🛛 📩 Contig 1 (11 fragments)							
🗄 🧰 General Description					1		
🗄 🧰 Fragments							
M					_		
Vertical red bar					_		
	1 500	1000	1500	2000	2500	3000	3500
		1111111 11			3		///////////////////////////////////////
			·····			11 1	
					fatil Maria	11	
		1020	1040			1070	1000
0 1900	1910 1920	1930	1940	1950	1960	1970	1980
× ONEGKANR 1 × ONEGKANR 1 « ONEGKANR 68		1930	1940	1950	1960	1970	1980
NOREGKANR 1 NOREGKANR 1 NOREGKANR 5 NOREGKANR 1 SPECTACCACGGTTT KOREJKANR 1 SPECTATCRCCACGGTT	1910 1920		r 1940 AAAGATTTT GGATGCAGC	1950	1960	1970	1980
NNEGKANR 1 ONEGKANR 1 ONEGKANR 68 CTTTCACCACGGTT ONEGKANF 1990 TTTCACCACGGTT NOKIGKANR 2910 TTTCACCACGGTT	1910 1920 CCATCCTACAACTGTGCAG CCATCCTACAACTGTGTGT CCATCCTACAACTGTGTGT	1930 CGGATGCAGCC AAAATCCCCAGC	1940 AAAGATTTT GGATGCAGG GGATGCAGG	1950 TAACAACCA CCTAAAGATT CCTAAAGATT	1960 AGAATTTGCTC TTTAGCAACCA TTTAACAACCA	1970 AGCTTTTGGCC AGAATTTGCT AGAATTTGCT	1980 CAGTCTGTA AGCTTTIGG
NNEKANR 1 NOLEKANR 68CTTTCACCACGGTTT ONEIKANR 159CTTTCACCACGGTT NONEIKANR 291CTTTCACCACGGTT ONEIKANF 530CTTTCACCACGGTT	1910 1920 CCATCCTACAACTGTGCAG CCATCCTACAACTGTGTG CCATCCTACAACTGTGTGT CCATCCTACAACTGTGTGT		1940 AAAGATTTT GGATGCAGG GGATGCAGG GGATGCAGG	1950 TTAACAACCA CCTAAAGATT CCTAAAGATT	1960 AGAATTTGCTC TTTAGCAACCA TTTAACAACCA	1970 AGCTTTTGGC AGAATTTGCT AGAATTTGCT AGAATTTGCT	1980 CAGICIGIA ACCITIIGG ACCITIIGG
NOREGKANR 1 NOVESKANR 1 NOVESKANR 68CTTTCACCACGGTTT NONEIJKANR 599CTTTCACCACGGTTT «ONEIJKANF 591CTTTCACCACGGTTT «ONEIJKANF 50CTTCACCACGGTTT «ONEIJKANF 50C	1910 1910 1920 CCATCCTACAACTGTGCAG CCATCCTACAACTGTGCGC CCATCCTACAACTGTGTGT CCATCCTACAACTGTCTGT	1930 CGGATGCAGCCT AAAATCCCCAGC AAAATCCCCAGC	1940 AAAGATTTT GGATGCAGG GGATGCAGG GGATGCAGG	1950 ITAACAACCA ICTAACAACT ICTAAACATT ICTAAAGATT	1960 AGAATTTGCTC TITAGCAACCA TITAACAACCA TITAACAACCA	1970 AgCTTTTGGCC AgAATTTGCTC AgAATTTGCTC AgAATTTGCTC	1980 CAGTCTGTA AGCTTTIGG AGCTTTIGG AGCTTTIGG
» ONEGKANR 1 «ONEGKANR 1 «ONEGKANR 58 «ONEGKANR 59cTTTCACCACGGTTT «ONEIGKANF 59cTTTCACCACGGTTT «ONEIGKANF 59cTTTCACCACGGTTT «ONEIGKANF 59cTTTCACCACGGTTT «ONEIGKANF 59cTTTCACCACGGTTT «ONEIGKANF 59cTTTCACCACGGTTT	1910 1920 CCATCCTACAACTERICAG CCATCCTACAACTERICAG CCATCCTACAACTERICAG CCATCCTACAACTERICAG CCATCCTACAACTERICAG	1930 COGAT OCACCCA AAAAT CCCCAG AAAAT CCCCAG AAAAT CCCCAG	1940 AAAGATTTT GGATGCAGC GGATGCAGC GGATGCAGC	1950 ITAACAACCA ICTAACAAT ICTAACAT ICTAAAGATT	1960 AGAATTIGCTC TITAACAACCA TITAACAACCA TITAACAACCA	1970 AGCTTTTGGCC AGAATTTGCT AGAATTTGCT AGAATTTGCT	1980 CAGTCTGTA AGCTTTTGG AGCTTTTGG CAGCTTTTGG
> ONESKANR 10 1900 < ONESKANR	1910 1920 CCATCCTACAACTGTGCAG CCATCCTACAACTGTGCAG CCATCCTACAACTGTGTGT CCATCCTACAACTGTGTGT CCATCCTACAACTGTGTGT CCATCCTACAACTGTGTGT	1930 CGGAT GCACCCT AAAAT CCCCAG AAAAT CCCCAG AAAAT CCCCAG AAAATCCCCAG	1940 AAAGATTTT GGATGCAGG GGATGCAGG GGATGCAGG	1950 TTAACAACCA CCTAACAACT CCTAAAGATT CCTAAAGATT	1960 IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII	1970 AGCTTTTGOC AGAATTTGCT AGAATTTGCT AGAATTTGCT AGAATTTGCT +++++	1980 CAGTCTGTA ACCTTTTGG ACCTTTTGG ACCTTTTGG CAGCTTTTGG
» ONE6KANR 1 «ONE9KANR 1 «ONE9KANR 50%CTTTCACCACGGTTT » ONE11KANR 520/CTTTCACCACGGTTT «ONE13KANF 530/CTTTCACCACGGTTT «ONE13KANF 556 » ONE13KANF 731 Contig 1 1991/CTTTCACCACGGTTT	1910 1920 ccatcctacAACterdCAC ccatcctacAACterdCac ccatcctacAACterdCac ccatcctacAACterdCac ccatcctacAACterdCac ccatcctacAACterdCac ccatcctacAACterdCac + ++++	1930 	1940 AAAGATITI GGATGCAGC GGATGCAGC GGATGCAGC CGATGCAGC CGATGCAGC	1950 CTAACAACCA CCTAACAAT CCTAAAGATT CCTAAAGATT CCTAAAGATT CCTAAAGATT	1960 NGAATTTGCTC TITAGCAACCA TITAACAACCA TITAACAACCA TITAACAACCA	1970 AGCTTTTGCC AGAATTTGCT AGAATTTGCT AGAATTTGCT AGAATTTGCT +++ ++	1980 CAGTCTGTA AGCTTTTGG AGCTTTTGG AGCTTTTGG CAGCTTTTGG CAGCTTTTGG

Figure 16.44 Deleting a fragment sequence in the Contig Viewer Alignment Pane

If you save the edited contig and open the edited fragment in the Fragment Viewer, the editing changes are reflected in the fragment sequence.

Undo/Redo functions can be used to revert or repeat the changes you make. Click the **Undo** button until it becomes disabled, and the fragment and the consensus return to their original state.

Highlight fragment **ONE13KANR**, select bp 208 G and type T. If asked to confirm the edit, click the **Yes** button. The G is replaced in the fragment and the contig consensus is updated (Figure 16.45). In the fragment, the new base is colored teal to indicate it is a replacement.



Figure 16.45 Replacing a fragment sequence in the Contig Viewer Alignment Pane

Additional editing operations in the Alignment Pane include sliding entire fragments into place manually and sliding a block within a fragment into an adjacent gap. Use the **Move Fragment**

buttons ($\stackrel{{}_{\frown}}{\boxminus} \stackrel{{}_{\frown}}{\textcircled}$) and **Move block to the left/right** buttons ($\stackrel{{}_{\frown}}{\boxminus} \stackrel{{}_{\frown}}{\textcircled}$), respectively. Find and select appropriate fragments/regions and try them.

The only limitation of fragment editing in the Contig Viewer is that if it affects contigs in other assemblies containing the newly edited fragment, those contigs must be dismissed.

Fragment in-place editing and update of the consensus on the fly makes the Contig Alignment pane a convenient tool for working with contigs after their initial assembly. Remember that after editing is performed in the Contig Viewer, fragments can be realigned as needed by reassembly after selecting the appropriate fragments in the Text Pane.

At any time, before or after editing, you can generate a Difference Report comparing any two fragments, or a fragment and the consensus. Select ONE13KANR in the fragment name list and check **Compare To** from the **View** or shortcut menus. In the dialog, accept the default comparison to the consensus and click **Compare**. The resulting report (Figure 16.46) may be saved as a .txt file to your computer.

Differenc	e Repor	t					×
Conser	isus			•	Compare	Save As	Cancel
Found 1 ONE13 LEGEN	15 differen KANR an D:	ice(s) betw d Consens	een us.				-
Pos Seq1 Seq2 Action	- Urigin - Base - Base - Chang to mai	al position in ONE13 in Consen ge needed tch corresp	IN UNE LIKANR. KANR. sus. in ONE13KANR ponding position in	ı Consensus.			
Pos	Seq1	Seq2	Action				
49 89 111 114 115 130 152 159 177 620 622 623	T N T G	C A G C A G G C T A G A	Insert base Insert base Change base Change base Insert base Change base Insert base Insert base Change base Insert base Insert base Insert base				

Figure 16.46 Difference Report between a fragment and the contig consensus

When editing has been performed in a Fragment/Contig Viewer, separate prompts will appear upon closing both the Fragment/Contig Viewer AND the ContigExpress Project Explorer requiring approval for the edits to be saved.

4. Exit ContigExpress

You have finished the ContigExpress tutorial. Close ContigExpress as you would close any other Windows application.

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

CHAPTER **1**7 DATABASE EXPLORER

Introduction

The Vector NTI database is a collection of molecules and laboratory data, organized for easy retrieval and management in Vector NTI's Database Explorer. Eight different types of objects are stored and organized in databases and subsets in Database Explorer:

- DNA/RNA molecules are annotated with Feature maps. Upon import from other sources, molecule data is parsed and stored in an internal format. Users can add molecules to the database through import or creating basic or constructed molecules.
- Protein molecules are also annotated with Feature maps. Like DNA molecules, upon import from other sources, protein molecule data is parsed and stored in an internal format. Users can add molecules to the database through import or creating basic molecules.
- Restriction enzymes are imported from the REBASE database; data for the enzymes in the Vector NTI database is parsed and stored in an internal format. Users can add other restriction enzymes from the REBASE file included in the Vector NTI software.
- Oligonucleotides in the database are user-defined except for several included in the Vector NTI software for demonstration purposes.
- Gel markers commonly used in molecular biology laboratories are included initially in the Vector NTI software, but new gel markers can be created by the user.
- Citations for physiochemical analysis of molecules in BioAnnotator and other Vector NTI analyses are stored in the Vector NTI Database Explorer.
- BLAST results can be stored independent of molecules in a BLAST Results database.
- Analysis results performed on DNA/RNA and Protein Molecules, such as PCR analysis, PFAM analyses, etc. can be stored in the Vector NTI Database.

Very similar in functionality to the Windows 95/98/Windows NT interface, Database Explorer supports intuitive browsing of local and shared Vector NTI databases, clipboard data exchange, drag and drop operations and other functions typical of window-based database management.

From the Exploring Database window, you can perform the following:

- Create new molecules
- Sort, Edit and delete molecules
- Search the database for text sequence, motifs, feature types, keywords etc.
- Organize our data into convenient groups (subsets)
- Import and export data (this is inactive in the demo version)
- Open the other applications of Vector NTI Advance—AlignX, BioAnnotator and ContigExpress
- Copy and save or print a list of the objects in a subset.

Parent-Descendant relationships (to keep track of your constructs), user fields, comments, keywords etc., are kept for all molecules in the database

All database molecules and other objects can be placed into "archives"—data files of special format—that can be transferred to another computer (Mac or PC) and read by Vector NTI there. Through archives, you can share molecules, constructs, or other objects with your colleagues, or use them simultaneously on several computers (for instance, at work and at home).

In the Vector NTI archives:

- All DNA/RNA molecule information is written to and read from an archive file. This
 includes molecule component fragments (if the molecule is constructed from other molecules) and parent-descendant connections between molecules.
- Vector NTI automatically checks the consistency of molecule archive information adding necessary parents (including DNA parents of translated protein molecules) or disconnecting them if you have neglected to transfer them to the archives.
- When the archive is loaded into a new database, Vector NTI checks the information consistency on any of database molecules and recalculates them if necessary.

Opening Vector NTI Database Explorer

The Vector NTI Database Explorer can be opened from several sources:

- Vector NTI Database Explorer can be opened and used independently by selecting Vector NTI Explorer in the Vector NTI Advance options under Start > Programs on your computer. Select Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > Vector NTI Explorer.
- From a Molecule Display window, select File > Local Database or click the Local Database base button (
) to open Database Explorer.
- The Vector NTI Database Explorer can also be configured to open automatically in the Vector NTI workspace each time a Vector NTI session is initiated. From a Molecule Display window, select Edit > Options from the menu bar. On the General tab of the Options dialog box, select Open Local Explorer At Startup.

In this User's Manual, the term "Explorer" refers to Vector NTI Explorer, not to Windows Explorer.

Elements of Vector NTI Database Explorer

The Vector NTI Database Explorer window consists of a menu bar, a toolbar, Table drop-down menu in the upper left corner, a Subset Pane on the left and a Database <Object > Pane on the right of the window (Figure 17.1).

🔍 Exploring - Local Vector NTI Database								
Table Edit View Analyses A	lign Database As	semble To	ools Help)				
🔟 DNA/RNA Molecules 🔄 ← → 🗊 🔅 🗛 🕩 🖹 🛍 🐔 🖄 🍻 🗡 🖆 🖽 + 🙆 🛠								
All Subsets	All database DNA/	RNA Molecu	ıles					
DNA/RNA Molecules (MAIN)	Name	Length	Form	Storage	Author	Original Aut	Modified	▲
Amplicillin Resistance	# ADCY7	6196	Linear	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
	💥 Adeno2	35937	Linear	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1	💥 ADRA1A	2306	Linear	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1	资 BPV1	7945	Circular	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1	BRAF	2510	Linear	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1	₩CDK2	2226	Linear	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1	变 ColE1	6646	Circular	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1	CREB1	2964	Linear	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1	₩ EPAC	3261	Linear	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1		2647	Linear	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1	👾 GNAI1	3367	Linear	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1	∰ GNAQ	1700	Linear	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1	🚊 GNB2	1666	Linear	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1	👾 GNG5	698	Linear	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1	🚊 GPRK2L	1730	Linear	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1	🚊 GPRK5	2557	Linear	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1	💥 GRB2	1109	Linear	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1	₩HSU33054	2113	Linear	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1	💥 HSU33055	2017	Linear	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1		1975	Linear	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1	HUMGPRKLG	1879	Linear	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1	🔅 Lambda	48502	Circular	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
1	. 例13	6407	Circular	Basic	InforMax,	NCBI Entrez	07/10/2003 07:	
<u> </u>	Discharge Boot	6407	Circular	Discio	Domo Usor	NCDT Colver	07/20/2002 00-	
230 DNA/RNA molecules								

Figure 17.1 Elements of Vector NTI Database Explorer

Database Tables

The Vector NTI Database consists of the following eight tables:

- DNA/RNA Molecule Table Stores DNA and RNA Molecules, including constructed and designed molecules. Three types of DNA/RNA molecules can exist in the Local Vector NTI Database Explorer:
 - Circular (0) DNA Molecules
 - ^o Linear () DNA/RNA Molecules
 - ° Invitrogen (🚺) Proprietary Molecules

Note:

- Among the different types of molecules present in the Vector NTI Database are Invitrogen[™] proprietary molecules. Over one hundred of the most commonly used, fully annotated, Invitrogen vectors are available in the database. When working with these specific molecules, included in a Molecule Viewer Text Pane is a hyperlink to the Invitrogen website providing you with relevant information about reagents specific to the annotated features of that molecule.
 - Protein Molecules Table Stores Protein Molecules.
 - Enzymes Table Stores restriction enzymes.
 - Oligos Table Stores oligonucleotides up to 1000 bases in length.
 - **Gel Markers Table** Stores gel markers that can be used in Vector NTI's gel simulation function.
 - Citations Table Stores citations retrieved through the Vector NTI PubMed Search engine, from the NCBI website or from other searches. In addition, the Citation Table section of Database Explorer provides complete bibliographic conversion features described in the *Citation Table* section below.

- BLAST Results Table Stores BLAST results retrieved using the BLAST Search module.
 BLAST Results can be opened in the BLAST Viewer module and saved to the Vector NTI Database from there.
- Analysis Results Table Stores various analyses performed in Vector NTI and Analysis Monitor (see page 559), such as PCR analysis, PFAM, etc. When a saved analysis is opened from the Vector NTI Database, the associated molecule opens with the analysis information displayed in the Text, Graphics and Sequence Panes. (The Analyses display option must be turned on. See page 221).

The Vector NTI Database Explorer window displays the contents of one table at a time. You can alternate between tables by selecting a table from the Table menu or the Table drop-down list in the top left corner of the Explorer window.

Citation Table

One of the most convenient features of the Citation Table is its ability to generate citations and bibliographies for theses, dissertations and other publications. Bibliographies are generated according to the rule of scientific journals.

Formatting Bibliographic References

To format each bibliography record, you must insert a tag in the document where the reference is to be cited. In Database Explorer Citation Table, select the desired reference. From its associated shortcut menu, select the **Copy Tag** command. Then go to your word processor document and paste it. For example, the tag at this point might read [Smith, J. 1994 #213].

After finishing the writing, save your document as Rich Text Format (*.rtf) file.

When you are ready to prepare your manuscript, select the Citations Table in Database Explorer. Open a shortcut menu in the subsets pane and select **Format Manuscript**. In the dialog box that opens (Figure 17.2), browse for the RTF file you want to format.

In the Format Reference For drop-down menu, select a journal name. Click the **Start** button. The tagged document will be formatted into the document with properly formatted citations and bibliographies.

Format manusc	ript	×
The Input File The Output File	D:\Vector Documentation\miscellaneous\Documentation Plan VN D:\Vector Documentation\miscellaneous\Documentation Plan VN	Browse
Format reference	es for American Chemical Society	▼
some referen 1. Maier, H. ; Wochenschr	ced text (1) Tisch, M. ; Conradt, C. ; Potschke-langer, M. <i>Dtsch Me</i> Jul-16-1999, 124, 851-4.	d
	Start Close	

Figure 17.2 Format Manuscript dialog box

To place selected citations onto the Clipboard formatted according to the rules of specific journal, select the citation(s) and open the shortcut menu in the Database Objects pane. Select **Copy Bibliography**. In the dialog box that opens (Figure 17.3), select the journal whose formatting the bibliography should follow. Click **OK**.



Figure 17.3 Copy Bibliography dialog box

Then proceed to your word processing document and paste the citations. They will be in the format for the journal you selected.

Note: In the Database Explorer, one cannot edit citations downloaded from NCBI.

Database Subsets

Each database table contains a list of *subsets*, groups of objects (molecules, enzymes, etc.) organized into logical categories. You might have one subset for each of your molecule families, one for each taxonomic group, etc.

Subset *separators* are used to group subsets into logical categories by providing a visual separator or division between subsets in the Subset Pane. For example, you may create separators to divide subsets containing molecules used for different projects. You can add separators by right-clicking in the Subset Pane and choosing **Add Separator** from the shortcut menu. Once you have created a separator, you can change its position in the Subset Pane by clicking and dragging it to a new location in the Subset Pane.

- The principal subset is called Main and all database objects are always included in Main. Other subsets are merely windows into Main, showing a subset of the contents of Main; they do not serve as containers for molecules. Because of this, a database object can be included in any number of subsets without increasing the amount of disk storage the object occupies.
- Subsets are created, edited and deleted through the Database Explorer.
- When you select a subset in the left pane, Explorer lists the subset contents in the right
 pane and displays table- and subset-related commands on the menu bar and toolbar
 buttons on the toolbar. When you select one or more database objects in the right pane
 (activating the Object Pane), the menu bar displays object-related menu options and
 toolbar buttons.
- To alternate between panes, click on a pane to activate it or use the F6 keyboard shortcut. To open context-sensitive shortcut menus, click on subsets or database objects with a right click. The shortcut menu displays commands appropriate for the object under the cursor.

Database Objects

Each database object is described by a set of fields, describing various object data. Each object type defines its own set of fields. System fields are common for all database objects; other fields are specific for a particular object type. A user may also define additional user fields.

Database Object System Fields

Most of the object system fields, assigned names by Vector NTI, are accessible from various parts of the program's user interface. Some of them, however, are only visible in specialized object type-specific dialog boxes or display windows.

The following is the full list of named system fields displayed by Vector NTI:I

Field name	Description	Used in: N(DNA/RNAs) P(proteins) E(enzymes) O(oligos) G(gel markers) C(contacts) U(user field defs)
Name	Name of an object	NPEOGCU
Local/Foreign	Object's 'ownership' status in the local database	NPEOG (local DB only)
Original Author	Original author (creator) of an object	NPEOG
Created	Date of an object's creation (See Date and Time section following)	NPEOG
Author	Author of the last modification to an object (see following section)	NPEOG
Modified	Date of the last modification to an object	NPEOG
Submitted by	The name of a Vector NTI user who submitted the object	NPEOG (shared DB only)
Description	Description string	NPEOGU
Form	Circular or Linear	N
Storage Type	Basic, Designed or Constructed	NP
Fully Pro- cessed?	Molecule's construction status	Ν
Length	Length of a molecule/oligo/enzyme's recognition string in bp	NPOE
DNA/RNA	Nucleic acid type	NO
Degenerate?	Is an oligo degenerate?	0
Oligo Sequence	Oligo's nucleotide sequence	0
Recognition String	Enzyme's recognition string	E
Terminus Type	Enzyme's terminus type	E
Palindromic?	Is an enzyme palindromic?	E
Ambiguous?	Is an enzyme ambiguous?	E
Number of Fragments	Number of fragments in a gel marker	G
Longest Frag- ment	Length of the longest fragment in a gel marker	G

Table 17.1 Named system fields displayed by Vector NTI

Field name	Description	Used in: N(DNA/RNAs) P(proteins) E(enzymes) O(oligos) G(gel markers) C(contacts) U(user field defs)
Shortest Frag- ment	Length of the shortest fragment in a gel marker	G
Telephone	Phone part of the Contact info	С
E-mail	E-mail part of the Contact info	С
Field Type	User field type	U
Indexed?	Is user field cached/indexed?	U
Default	Default value of a user field	U
List of Pre- defined Values	List of predefined values of a user field	U
Record #	Database record ID number	NPEOG

Table 17.1 Named system fields displayed by Vector NTI (continued)

In addition to the system fields named above, every database object has comments and keywords associated with it. These fields are accessible from within specialized object editors and Display windows.

Note: All automatically updated fields, user-defined fields and comments are searchable. Using the database search interface described later in this chapter, you can perform string context searches through any of the fields above for any database objects.

Of the general system fields data itemized in the above table, only Author and Date and Time display features are independent of object types. Their sources and modification options are summarized below.

Author Information

Information regarding authors and times of creation and modification for all database objects is stored in the following named System Fields:

- Original Author: name of Vector NTI user who created the object,
- Author: name of Vector NTI user who last modified the object,
- Creation Date: date and time when the object was created,
- **Modification Date:** date and time when the object was last modified in the local Vector NTI database.

When you start Vector NTI for the first time, in the Author Information dialog box you can identify yourself as Vector NTI user and author of all modifications and new objects you create in the local database. By default, it presents the name given to the Vector NTI Installation program. This information is automatically attached to all database objects you create and/or modify when you export them, copy to shared databases etc.

- **Note:** Changes you might make later to Author Information do not affect information stored in database objects you submitted to shared databases earlier.
 - An object you create in your database is marked as a "Local Object" naming you as both the author and the original author. While author information is not displayed on local

objects while you view or edit them, the data does follow the object and is displayed when exported or viewed by another VNTI user.

- When you import an object or transfer it from a VNTI Shared Database into your local database, if you are the author the object is still marked as Local. If the author is someone else, then the object is marked as "Foreign" and the author information is always displayed when you are viewing or editing the object.
- The original author (creator) of an object, either "Local" or "Foreign", never changes. If you modify a "Foreign" object, however, it becomes "Local" and you become its new "immediate" author.
- If you are importing an object in which author or original author information is not stored in your contact database, VNTI lets you update the contact and author data in your database.

To review or edit author data, select **View > Author Info...** opening the Author Information dialog box where you can do that.

Date/Time Display

To change the date/time display format, select **Edit > Options** on the menu bar of the main Vector NTI's window (Molecule Display Window). On the General tab of the Options dialog box, select the standard US date format (for example, 03/20/96 04:20PM) or a regional date/time format, the default format recognized by your computer. Change this format using the Windows Control Panel/Regional (or International) dialog box. (For more information regarding formatting, see Chapter 3.)

Authors, original authors, and times of creation and modification for all database objects are updated automatically by Vector NTI and should not, in normal circumstances, be modified manually. If such a need occurs, use the **<database object > Set System Attributes** command for setting values of these fields in the Vector NTI Database Explorer.

User-defined Fields

For information management functions, user-defined fields are associated with any database object (molecules, oligos, etc.). A User Field containing laboratory-specific and user-specific descriptions can be imported, exported, displayed, printed and managed just as the regular database fields.

While previously defined User Fields are maintained and presented when you create new database objects, imported objects may contain fields not described on the local list. Vector NTI helps you to add their descriptions to the list whenever you try to edit the information contained in these fields. Vector NTI also allows you to import and export User Field Definitions across several VNTI databases.

The "User Field Manager" section on page 197 of this chapter contains the detailed description of all User Fields-related operations. For a detailed example of how to use the User Fields Manager, walk through the Tutorial: Database Explorer in Chapter 7.

Comments

Each database object can contain a text comment of unlimited length. Vector NTI automatically converts stored comments when importing or exporting molecules from/to GenBank/GenPept and EMBLSWISS-PROT files.

Comments can be edited in the Comments tabs of the objects' editors or immediately in the Molecule Display window (for molecules only). In a Molecule Display window, double click on the Comment line or click on the Comment icon to open the Comment Editor containing the molecule comment.

Keywords

Each database object can contain a list of associated keywords that are very useful for database searches. Keywords can be edited in the Keywords tabs of the object's editors.

To enter keywords, in the keywords text box, type a new word or select an item from the list of existing keywords. Click the **< Add** button to move the keyword into the keyword list. To remove an item from the list of keywords, select the item(s) you want to remove and click the **> Remove** button.

Database Search

You can perform a database search to locate any type of object stored in the database. In general, search procedures launched from Database Explorer follow these basic steps:

- Select the appropriate Database Table type and select Database > Search on Explorer's menu bar or click the Search button () on the toolbar.
- 2. In the <Object > Database Search dialog box, verify the Database Table type.
- 3. In the Search dialog box, (Figure 17.4) check the boxes for the filters to be included in the search. Press the enable filter buttons to open dialog boxes.
- 4. In the Conditions Filter dialog boxes that open, define additional search parameters. (See detailed descriptions of filters below.) Only those molecules that satisfy all the conditions you define are found in the search. Click OK in each to return to the Search dialog box.
- 5. When you are satisfied with the search setup, click the **Start Search** button.
- If Vector NTI finds any objects by a database search, the appropriate Subset Name dialog box appears. Enter a name of new subset or choose a subset name from those listed. All objects found will be placed in the specified subset overwriting the existing subset content (if any).
- If the specified subset already exists, Vector NTI empties it before adding found objects. You can refine your search by using the resulting subset to limit the search space of the next search.
 - If you check multiple Filters in the Molecule Database Search dialog box, a search that satisfies all the checked criteria (an AND search) is performed. If you want to search according to only one filter criterion, remember to leave all other filters, except the one of interest, unchecked.

Database search filter parameters specific to particular database objects are outlined below. Specific settings are not discussed unless they need clarification.

DNA/RNA and Protein Molecule Database Searches

The Molecule Database Search dialog box (Figure 17.4) for DNA/RNA and protein molecules are identical except for the database shown in the Look In drop-down menu. Differences in the specific filter setup dialog boxes are specified in the discussion for each.

Molecule Database Search				
Look in: DNA/RNA Molecules (MAIN) Start Search Close for molecules satisfying all of the specified search conditions below:				
Attribute Filter				
Ancestor Filter	Oligo & Peptide Filter	Feature Filter		
Name (Wildcard ch	aracters * and ? are allowed)			

Figure 17.4 Molecule Database Search dialog box

To set the conditions for a particular search filter, check the appropriate filter checkbox and press the corresponding filter button. For example, if you want to set the parameters for a Text Search, check the **Text Filter** checkbox and then click the **Text Search Setup** button.

Searching by Object Name in the Vector NTI Database

Database Search Name Filter

To perform a Name search, check the **Name** checkbox and type the name you want to search for in the textbox in the Name section of the Molecule Database Search dialog box. If you want the search to match the case of the entered name, check the **Match Case** checkbox.

The wildcard characters * and ? are allowed in a name search and have the following significance:

- * = any number of characters (including no characters)
- ? = any single character

Alternate Name Search Method

You can perform a quick name search in the Database Exploring window by performing the following steps:

- 1. Open the Exploring Local Vector NTI Database window.
- 2. Navigate to the database table of interest by choosing it from the Database Table dropdown list.
- 3. Sort the objects alphabetically according to name (if not already sorted by name) by clicking on the Name column heading.
- 4. Highlight the first name on the list.
- 5. Using the keyboard, type the first letter (or first few letters, quickly) of the desired object name. The list scrolls to that area on the list.

Attributes Search Conditions Box (DNA)

Search Conditions: DNA/RNA Mol	ecule Atributes
Look only for molecules with these a	ttributes: OK
Storage Type	signed Cancel
Nucleic Acid	Form
🔽 DNA 🔽 RNA	🔽 Circular 🔽 Linear
Replicon Type	Extra-Chromosome Replication-
🔽 Plasmid 🔽 Phagemid	🔽 Bacteria
🗹 Cosmid 🔽 Virus	🔽 Yeast
Phage 🔽 Chromosome	Animal/Other Eukaryotic
Size	- 100 000 bp 🔽 > 100 000 bp

Figure 17.5 Attributes Setup dialog box (DNA)

Attributes Search Conditions Dialog Box (Protein)

Search Conditions: Protein Atributes	? ×
Look only for proteins with these attributes:	OK
Storage Type Basic Constructed (translated)	Cancel
Size Size Image: Constraint of the state of the st	🗹 > 1500 aa

Figure 17.6 Attributes Setup dialog box (Protein)

If all conditions in a group are checked, or if all conditions in a group are blank, that group has no effect on the search.

Text Search Conditions Dialog Box (DNA and Protein)

Search Conditions: Text	<u>? ×</u>
Find only the objects with one or more of these substrings:	New substring:
wector	vector
	< Add > Remove
Match Case	
Select one or more fields in which it	must occur:
	<u> </u>
Commercial Sources	
🗌 🧾 Freezer Position	_
	OK Cancel

Figure 17.7 Text Setup dialog box

To add a new substring, enter the text and click the **< Add** button (Figure 17.7). To remove a substring, highlight it and click the **> Remove** button. Check the fields to be searched for the text substrings. Check **Match Case** for case-sensitive text substrings.

Keywords Search Conditions Dialog Box (DNA and Protein)

Search Conditions: Keywords	? ×
Find only the molecules with one or more of the	OK
following keywords:	Cancel
ATCC	< Add
	> Remove
	>> Remove All

Figure 17.8 Keywords Setup dialog box

Click the < Add button to select from the list of existing keywords (Figure 17.8). To remove a keyword from the box, select it and click the > Remove button. To clear the Keywords box, click the >> Remove All button.

Note: You cannot add keywords in this dialog box.

Ancestors Search Conditions Dialog Box (DNA and Protein)

Search Conditions: Ancestors	? ×
Find only the molecules with one or more of the following ancestors:	OK Cancel
逐 CoIE1	< Add > Remove >> Remove All

Figure 17.9 Ancestors Setup dialog box

Molecules that have as a direct ancestor any one of the molecules shown in this dialog box will be found by the search. *Ancestors for proteins in this context are DNA molecules.*

To add a molecule to this box, click < Add. Select from the database molecules list and click OK. To remove a molecule from the ancestors list, select the molecule in the dialog box and click > Remove, or to clear the list, click >> Remove All.

Search Conditio	ns: Oligo & Peptido	2	? ×
Add Oligos	Add Peptide	Delete	Clear
PRM2(DNA): AT	CCGTTAGCGAGGT	GCCGC Antisens	e primer for PCR
•			Þ
Genetic Code:	Standard		•
Include hits	with ambiguous symbo	ols Simila	rity (%) 100.0
		ОК	Cancel

Oligo & Peptides Search Conditions Dialog Box (DNA and Protein)

Figure 17.10 Oligo & Peptides Setup dialog box

Click the **Add Oligos** button to add an oligonucleotide for similarity search. In the Oligonucleotides dialog box that opens, you can select the oligo(s) from the Vector NTI Database or create new oligo(s) for the search.

To add a peptide for similarity search, click the **Add Peptide** button. In the Peptide dialog box that opens, enter the peptide name and query sequence, and description, if desired.

To remove a search condition from the list box, select the condition and click **Delete**. To clear the Oligonucleotides/Peptides box, click **Clear**.

Select the genetic code you want to use for the search from the Genetic Code drop-down box.

Feature Search Conditions Dialog Box (DNA and Protein)

Search Conditions: Features	? ×
Find only the molecules with one or more of the following features:	OK Cancel
🐑 CDS, Name(s): AP(R)	< Add
	>> Remove All
4F	

Figure 17.11 Feature Setup dialog box

To add a feature to the search conditions, click the **< Add** button (Figure 17.11). In the dialog box that opens (Figure 17.12), define restrictions for the molecule search. *Feature types differ for DNA/RNA searches and protein searches.*

Add Features		?×
Feature Type: DNA/RNA Features Image: Strip Image: Strip	Add all features of this type Add only features of this type with the following names: ● 102, ORF ● 102, ORF ● 103, ORF ● 138, ORF ● 138, ORF ● 33% ● 52/55K0 ● 60, ORF ● 64, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, ORF ● 65, O	OK Cancel

Figure 17.12 Add Features dialog box

Select a feature type in the left pane and optionally, using the radio button, one or more feature names. If you define a type of feature but no specific feature names, the search condition is defined as any feature of that type.

To remove a search condition from the Features list, select the condition and click **> Remove**. To clear the Features list, click **>> Remove All**.

Enzyme Database Search

When you launch an enzyme search, the following Search dialog box opens (Figure 17.13):

Enzyme Database Search		? ×		
Look in: Enzymes (MAIN)	Start S	earch Close		
Recognition String Filter Iok for enzymes with these attributes: recognition string should contain: Iok for enzymes with these attributes: Text Filter Iverage with the second string with the second st				
		< Add > Remove >> Remove All		

Figure 17.13 Enzyme Database Search dialog box

- **Recognition String Filter:** Enter a nucleotide string that must be found in the recognition site of the desired enzyme.
- Attributes Filter: Specify enzyme attributes necessary for the search. "Ambiguous" recognition site means the site containing any nucleotide besides A, T, G, or C.
- Text Filter: Check the Text Filter button to filter search results based on text inside various object fields. Refer to page 173 for a description of the Text Filter Condition.
- **Keywords Filter:** Refer to page 174 for a description of the Keywords filter. **Note:** You cannot add new keywords in this dialog box.

Oligo Database Search

When you launch an Oligo database search, the following dialog box opens (Figure 17.14):

Oligo Database Search	? ×
Look in: 🛛 🔄 Oligos (MAIN)	Start Search Close
for oligos satisfying all of the specified search of	conditions below:
Nucleotide String Filter Image: Complementary	nce should contain the following substring:
Text Filter	Attributes Filter
Keywords Filter look for aligos with one or more of the follow	ing keywords:
	< Add
	> Remove
	>> Remove All

Figure 17.14 Oligo Database Search dialog box

- Nucleotide String Filter: Enter a Nucleotide String filter that must be found in the sequence of the desired enzyme and select the strand to search, direct or complementary.
- Attributes Filter: Check to limit the search space to DNAs only or RNAs only. If both are checked or unchecked, the filter has no effect.
- Text Filter: Check the Text Filter button to filter search results based on text inside various object fields. Refer to page 173 for a description of the Text Filter Condition.
- **Keywords Filter:** Refer to page 174 for a description of the Keywords filter. **Note:** You cannot add keywords in this dialog box.

Gel Marker Database Search

When you launch a search in the Gel Marker Database, the following dialog box opens (Figure 17.15):

Gel Marker Database Search	? X
Look in: 🔠 Gel Markers (MAIN) 💌 Start Se	arch Close
for gel markers satisfying all of the specified search conditions b	elow.
Attributes Filter look only for get markers with longest fragment in the following $\overrightarrow{\mathbb{M}}$ ($\overrightarrow{=1015}$ $\overrightarrow{\mathbb{M}}$ 10 K + 100 K $\overrightarrow{\mathbb{M}}$ 100 K + 1 M $\overrightarrow{\mathbb{M}}$ 1	prange: M→10 M 🛛 🔽 > 10 M
Text Filter	
Keywords Filter look for markers with one or more of the following keywords:	
	< Add
	> Remove
	>> Remove AT

Figure 17.15 Gel Marker Database Search dialog box

- Attributes Filter: Check to limit the search space to gel markers with specified length of the longest fragment. If all are checked or unchecked, the filter has no effect.
- Text Filter: Check the Text Filter button to filter search results based on text inside various object fields. Refer to page 173 for a description of the Text Filter Condition.
- **Keywords Filter:** Refer to page 174 for a description of the Keywords filter. **Note:** You cannot add keywords in this dialog box.

Citation Database Search

When a Citations Database Search is launched, the following dialog box appears, allowing you to search by Citation, Text and/or Keywords

itations Database Search	×
Look in: 🔟 Citations (MAIN)	✓ Start Search Close
or Citations satisfying all of the specified se	earch conditions below:
Citation Text Search Ke	eywords
Find only the citations with one or more of these substrings:	New substring:
	< Add
	> Bemove
Match Case	
In one or more of the selected fields:	
Article Title	
Article Authors	
Abstract	
C Source Title	
Publication Date	
MeSH Terms	

Figure 17.16 Citations Database Search dialog box

BLAST Results and Analysis Results Database Searches

When a BLAST Results or Analysis Results Database Search is launched, the following dialog box appears, allowing you to search by Attributes, Text and/or Keywords:

BLAST Results Database Search
Look in: BLAST Results (MAIN)
for BLAST results satisfying all of the specified conditions below:
T Attributes
- Ourse Manage application following substitutes
- quey name contains rollowing substituig.
Hit Count

Figure 17.17 BLAST Database Search dialog box

Database Management Operations

Backup, Restore and Cleanup

Three general functions (all initiated by choosing options under the Database menu of Database Explorer) relate to the entire database:
- **Database Backup** makes a copy of your database in a specified directory or folder. For instance, you may back up the data to removable storage to make a permanent, safe record of your database. Making such a backup is the *only* way to be sure your data is safe in the case of hard drive failure.
- **Database Restore** restores all database files from the last backup. Your database is restored from a specified directory or folder, overwriting all current database files.
- Database Cleanup removes from the data files and database tables all the "garbage" data that may accumulate when you extensively create and delete database objects. This also serves as a recover function when files or tables are lost or damaged. Although these data do not affect Vector NTI functionality, it is wise to perform Database Cleanup once a week.
- Important: Vector NTI Database Backups are NOT cross-platform compatible (i.e. the Vector NTI Database on a PC cannot be restored using a VNTI Database Backup made from Vector NTI on a Macintosh, and vice versa. If you want to move the VNTI Database from PC to Macintosh (or vice versa), you must do so using VNTI Archive files. For more information on importing and exporting VNTI Database objects as Archives, see page 181 and page 184, respectively.

Selecting the Local Database

The Select Local Database command in Database Explorer allows you to direct Vector NTI to the local Vector NTI database of interest, in the case where you have created multiple local databases. For example, you may create additional Vector NTI databases by copying the existing local database to a different location on your hard drive. In this case, you can use the Select Local Database command to alternate Vector NTI's focus to the different local databases.

Note: Vector NTI/Database Explorer can only view one database at a time.

To point Database Explorer to a different Vector NTI local database, choose **Database > Select Local Database** from the Database Explorer menu, navigate to the Vector NTI database of interest in the Choose Local Database Directory dialog box that opens, highlight the database folder and click the **OK** button. The selected Vector NTI database now appears in the Database Exploring window.

Note: You must have all other Vector NTI Advance programs closed, except Database Explorer, when executing the Select Local Database command.

Operations on Subsets

To initiate any of the following operations on a subset, select the subset name in the left pane of Database Explorer. Press the toolbar buttons as described or choose Table or Edit or corresponding shortcut menu commands. Descriptions of each operation are included below.

Creating a New Subset

To create a new subset and/or add objects to it, perform one of the following options:

- Select Table > New > Subset or click the New Subset button () to create a new (empty) subset with a default name, Group 1. You can edit this name in the enabled text box; press ENTER to confirm.
- Select Table > New > Subset (Using Subset Editor) to create a new subset and select its contents using the Edit Subset dialog box described below under Editing a Subset.
- A simple way to add new molecule or other object to a subset is to open the source subset in the Subset Pane. Select and drag selected objects from the list to the new subset. The objects are now listed in the original subset and the new subset.

• To create a new subset and place objects in it at the same time, select objects for the new subset in the Database Objects Pane and click the **New Subset** button ()).

Editing a Subset

In the Subset Pane, select a subset to be edited and select **Table > Edit Subset**. *This option is not available for subsets where the content is maintained automatically.* This opens the Edit Subset dialog box (Figure 17.18):

Editing Protein Subset	'41BB'	<u>? ×</u>
Source Subsets:	Source Content:	Resulting Content:
MAIN C Intersection C Union D ifference	10KD_VIGUN 11SB_CUCMA 1B14_HUMAN 2AAA_CAEL 2SS_BEREX 41BB_HUMAN 41BB_HUMAN 41BB_HUMAN 5H1A_FUGRU 5H1A_FUGRU 5H1A_RAT 5H1B_CANFA 5H1B_HUMAN 5H1B_HUMAN	41BB_HUMAN 41BB_MDUSE
	Select All Unselect	Select All Unselect
	OK Cancel	

Figure 17.18 Edit Subset dialog box

- The Source Subsets column shows all of the subsets in your Vector NTI database table **except** the one you are editing. The buttons below this column control how subset objects in subsets selected in the Source Subsets column are displayed in the Source Content column:
 - Intersection: Each molecule that is present in all highlighted subsets is displayed in the Source Content column. Molecules not included in all selected subsets are thus excluded.
 - Difference: Each unique molecule from selected subsets, in other words, a molecule present in only one of the highlighted subsets is displayed. Molecules that occur in more than one subset are thus excluded.
 - ^o **Union:** All molecules that is present in any of the selected subsets is displayed.

If only one subset is highlighted, the **Intersection**, **Difference**, and **Union** buttons are disabled, and all the objects in that subset are shown in the Source Content column.

- The Source Content column shows combinations of objects present in the subsets highlighted in the Source Subsets column. See descriptions under the previous bullet.
- The Resulting Content column shows the contents of the subset you are editing.

To add objects to a subset, highlight one or more subsets in the Source Subsets Column. In the Source Content column, highlight the object names or use the **Select All** and **Unselect All** buttons in that column to highlight or deselect all objects at once. When the objects you want are highlighted, click the **Add** >> button to add them to the Resulting Content column. Click **OK** to exit the dialog box. The objects are now listed in the original subset and the new subset.

Removing Molecules from a Subset

In the Subset Pane, select the subset to be edited. Select **Table > Edit Subset** or **Edit** from the shortcut menu. The Resulting Content column in the Edit Subset dialog box (Figure 17.18) shows the current contents of the subset you are editing. To remove objects from the subset,

highlight their names in the Resulting Content column and click the **<< Remove** button. **Select All** and **Unselect All** buttons below the Resulting Content column allow you to highlight or deselect all objects in the column. Click **OK** to exit the dialog box. Database objects that are removed continue to exist in the database and other subsets where they were included before this operation.

For alternative ways of removing objects from a subset, see Operations on Database Objects on page 185.

Rename Subset

Select **Table > Rename Subset** or click the **Rename** button (). In the enabled text box, edit the name. This operation does not affect the subset contents or database objects. *This option is not available for subsets where the content is maintained automatically.*

Dismiss Subset

Select **Table > Dismiss Subset** or click the **Dismiss Subset** button (). This operation removes a selected subset, but does not affect the database objects. They are still stored in the database and exist in other subsets where they were included before this operation. *To empty the subset first, use the Clear Subset operation.*

Clear Subset

Select **Table > Clear Subset** to exclude all objects from the selected subset. The subset itself is emptied but not removed. This operation does not affect database objects; they are still stored in the database and included in all other subsets where they were included before this operation. *This option is not available for subsets where the content is maintained automatically.*

Delete Contents

Select **Table > Delete Contents from Database** to **physically delete from the database** all objects of the specified subset. If you choose **OK** in the confirmation dialog box, the objects in the subset are permanently deleted from the Vector NTI database, and the subset itself is removed.

Subset Summary

Select **Table > Subset Summary** to create a text file containing a summary of the specified subset. In the Write Summary To dialog box that opens, indicate the directory or folder and file name where the summary will be stored. Click the **Save** button and Vector NTI creates the summary.

Subset Properties

Select **Table > Properties** or the **Properties** button ()) to display properties for the selected subset.

Import Molecules into a Subset

To import molecules into a subset using *drag and drop*, use one of the following techniques:

- Import Molecule(s) or Sequence(s) From Text File(s): Highlight the molecule file name(s) in Windows Explorer (Note: molecule files must be in accepted formats, see below). Drag and drop the highlighted name(s) onto the desired subset in the VNTI Database Exploring window.
- Import *Directory* of Files: For a folder containing multiple molecule files (in accepted formats, see below), drag and drop the folder onto the desired subset in the Exploring

Local VNTI Database window. All the molecules in the folder are imported into the subset.

To import molecules into a subset using *menu options*, select **Table > Import**, then one of the following options:

- Import Molecule From Text File imports DNA/RNA or protein molecule data from a GenBank/GenPept, EMBL/SWISS-PROT, or FASTA file. Vector NTI imports all molecule data including feature table (if any).
- In the Import Molecule dialog box, choose the appropriate import file format—GenBank, EMBL, or FASTA for DNA/RNA molecules and GenPept, SWISS-PROT or FASTA for proteins and click **OK**. In the Import dialog box, browse for the source and file to be imported and click **Open**. Vector NTI reads the file, checks all data, creates the new molecule, and displays its data in the Molecule Editor dialog box. After entering or editing the data, press **OK**. Vector NTI saves the new molecule in the database.
- Import Sequence From Text File imports a nucleotide or amino acid sequence text file, creating a new DNA/RNA or protein molecule with the sequence. *This must be in ASCII format.* In Import dialog box, browse for the source and file to be imported and click **Open**. Vector NTI reads the file, checks all data, creates the new molecule, and displays its data in the Molecule Editor dialog box. After reviewing or editing the data, click **OK**, saving the new molecule in the database.
 - ^o For ASCII format details, see Appendix C.
- Import Molecules From Archive imports objects from a Vector NTI archive. In the Import dialog box, browse for the source and archive file to be imported and click Open.
- Import Molecules From Directory of Text Files, (option for molecules and oligos only), imports molecules and oligonucleotides from text files that must be in the GenBank format (DNA/RNA molecules), GenPept format (protein molecules) or Vector NTI's oligo text format (oligonucleotides). In the Import dialog box, browse for the List File and open. When Vector NTI exports the objects into a directory of text files (see below), it automatically creates the appropriate List File.
 - ^o Notes on Molecule Import.
 - In Vector NTI versions prior to 6.0, import and export functions could be performed from the Molecule Display window. In version 7.0, they can be performed only through Database Explorer.
 - ^o GenBank, GenPept and EMBL feature tables usually do not contain names for features. When importing, Vector NTI assigns "artificial" names for the features so that they will be recognizable on a graphics map. You can change features' names after import using Vector NTI's Molecule Editor, or assign names to features before import, by adding "label=<name > " descriptors in the flatfile for any desired features. Here is a sample GenBank/EMBL feature description with a defined feature name:

CDS 86..1276

/label=TC(R)

 For more information about GenBank/GenPept /EMBL Feature Table descriptors, see GenBank/GenPept /EMBL documentation.

Import Enzymes into a Subset

Restriction endonucleases can be imported into Vector NTI from the REBASE database, which is available through anonymous ftp site, <u>ftp.neb.com</u>. To obtain further information, refer to the website: <u>http://rebase.neb.com/rebase/rebase.html</u>. *For a recent review of the REBASE database see Nucleic Acids Research 22: 3628-3639, 1994.*

Each REBASE release contains several data files in different formats. Vector NTI uses *bairoch* format, so you can download the bairoch.### file where ### indicates the current version (for

example, 506 indicates June 1995). Distributive version of Vector NTI contains the last release of the REBASE bairoch.### file in the Vector NTI working directory.

To import restriction endonucleases into the Enzymes Table, select **Table > Import**, then one of the following options:

- Enzymes From Archive: Browse for the Archive file and open.
- From REBASE Database: Browse for Vector NTI Suite > bairoch.###file (see above) and select it in the Read REBASE Enzymes dialog box (Figure 17.19). Click Open. In the dialog box that opens, select the subset or name a new subset where objects will be inserted. This file includes all enzymes in the bairoch file.

Read REBASE	Enzymes From	<u>?×</u>
Look in: 🔁	Vector NTI Suite	- 🖬 🖆 🖬 -
Matrices MedLineSty MolData MotData New Folder	ProData Replicator Suite 6 Suite 62 Tables test folder	☐ <u>Tools</u> ☐ <u>Irash</u> ☐ <u>VecContData</u>
File name: Files of type:	REBASE Files (bairoch.*)	Cancel

Figure 17.19 Read REBASE Enzymes dialog box

• New Enzymes From REBASE Database: Browse for Vector NTI Suite > bairoch.###file and select it in the Read REBASE Enzymes dialog box (Figure 17.19) and click Open. In the dialog box that opens, select the subset where objects will be inserted. *This file includes only enzymes in the bairoch file not currently included in the Vector NTI Enzymes database.*

Vector NTI reads the file and checks the data it contains. If Vector NTI detects any inconsistencies between Commercial Source designations/codes in the VNTI Restriction Enzyme Database and those designated in the bairoch file, the Commercial Sources Import dialog box appears (Figure 17.20).

Note: For a Commercial Sources codes key, see the REBASE text file.

Commercial Sources Import	
Some of the commercial sources codes in imported data may be assigned to company other then your current settings. Will your:	
$\ensuremath{\mathfrak{S}}$ Merge commercial sources data. Leave current commercial sources codes intact	
C Overwrite current commercial sources data with company name(s) from imported data	
C Do not import commercial sources data OK Cancel	

Figure 17.20 Commercial Sources Import dialog box

Your are given the choice to 1) merge the Commercial Source codes in the imported file with the current codes in the Database, 2) overwrite the current codes with the incoming codes, or 3) decline importing Commercial Sources data. Choose the appropriate option and click the **OK** button.



Vector NTI then loads the REBASE enzymes in the file into the REBASE Enzymes dialog box (Figure 17.21):

Figure 17.21 REBASE Enzymes dialog box

To filter the enzymes in the Source Enzymes/Selected columns, check on or off the appropriate boxes in the **Use REBASE Subset** group in the lower right corner of the dialog box and click the **Hide Others** button. This is particularly convenient when you wish to identify restriction enzymes based on certain criteria.

When all the desired enzymes are in the Selected list, click the **Import Selected** button to import them into Vector NTI.

Export Subset

Export Subset Into Vector NTI Archive

Select **Table > Export > Subset into Archive** to export all objects of the specified subset to a VNTI archive. In the Write To dialog box, indicate the directory or folder, and file name for archive storage. Click the **Save** button.

Export All Subset Objects Into Directory of Text Files (molecules and oligos only)

Select **Table > Export > Subset to Directory of Text Files** to export all objects of the specified subset into a directory of text files in GenBank (DNA/RNA molecules), GenPept (protein molecules) or Vector NTI's oligo text format (oligonucleotides). In the dialog box, browse for the location and enter the file name under which the subset is to be stored.

Copy and Save or Print a List of the Objects in a Subset

You can copy and save/print a list of the objects in a subset, including the object names and other desired column information by performing the following steps:

- 1. Open the Exploring Local Vector NTI Database window.
- Navigate to the database table of interest by selecting it from the Database Table drop-down box.
- 3. Right-click on the column headings in the Database <Object> Pane (right-hand pane) and choose **Columns...** to launch the Columns dialog box.
- Add or remove columns to customize the information showing in the Database <Object> Pane according to what you want to print/save.
- 5. Close the Columns dialog box.
- 6. Create a subset and add to it the objects you want to print/save or navigate to the desired subset, if already created. (Alternately, highlight the particular objects of interest, instead of creating a subset.)

- 7. With the Database <Object> Pane activated, click the **Camera** button on the toolbar or choose **Edit > Camera** from the menu to launch the Camera dialog box.
- 8. Select the desired Range (Selection or All) and Clipboard as the Copy To location.
- 9. Open Microsoft Word or Excel and paste the data from the Clipboard.
- 10. Print and/or save the data from Word/Excel.

Operations on Database Objects

To perform various operations on an individual database object or group of objects selected in the Object Pane of the Database Explorer, select menu options from the left-most menu option that correspond to the currently displayed table type. For example, when the **DNA/RNA Molecule** table is selected, the left-most menu option is **DNA/RNA Molecules**, when the **Citations** table is selected, the left-most menu option is **Citations**.

Notes Most of the following options appear with all database objects.

about object

operations

- Most commands are also available from the objects' shortcut menu, opened with a right click. When available from toolbar buttons, they are shown.
- : Menu commands specific for certain objects are discussed after the following bulleted list.
 - **Open**: opens display windows for selected objects; available only for DNA/RNA and protein molecules.
 - Edit: includes editing options for an object selected in the Database Objects Pane, such as user fields, comments, keywords, etc. This command is enabled only with a single selected object. You can also use the Edit button (2).
 - New: includes options for creating a new subset for selected object(s) or creating a new molecule or object. For specific details, refer to creating new <specific object > in the index.
 - Import...: operations are described in the previous section.
 - Export: operations are described in the previous section.
 - Exclude from Subset Tree Pane History view excludes selected objects from the current subset. Objects are still stored in the database and are included in all other subsets where they were included before this operation.
 - Delete from Database: Physically deletes a selected object from the database. (Confirmation is requested before deleting the object.) If a DNA molecule is deleted, Vector NTI scans all its descendants and disconnects them from the deleted molecule. You can also use the Delete button (X).
 - Rename: renames the selected object. If a DNA molecule is renamed, Vector NTI scans all its descendants and also changes molecule's name in all component fragment descriptions of all the molecule's descendants. You can also use the Rename button (a)e.
 - **Duplicate:** makes copies of the selected database objects. The replicas of selected objects are created in the database and included in the current subset. The replica of an object named 'x' will be called 'Copy of x'. **Note:** Copies of objects are not related to original objects. Thus, "copies" do not track further changes you may make to the originals.
 - Properties: displays the properties of the selected object(s). If one object is selected, all
 the named object fields with their values are displayed. Some object data (like sequence
 and comments) are not stored in named fields and are not displayed in the properties
 dialog box. For molecules, the property dialog box has two extra tabs: Parents and
 Descendants, displaying Parent and Descendant trees for the selected molecule. You
 can also use the Properties button (
).

• Set System Attributes: Allows manual modification of the automatically updated fields of the selected objects - Author, Original Author and Creation Date in the Set System Attributes dialog box. If checked, the drop-down menu (edit box in case of Creation Date) below the check box is activated for setting the value of the appropriate field.

The Author and the Original Author fields can be set only with the names of contacts already stored in the contact database. The Creation Date field must be set with a date and time in the USA format: "MM/DD/YY H:MIN AM (or PM)" where H is from 1 to 12. For more information, refer to page 169.

DNA/RNA Molecule Operations

These operations are applicable to DNA/RNA molecules:

- Table > New > Molecule (Using Sequence Editor) creates a new DNA/RNA molecule, entering the nucleotide sequence manually using Sequence Editor. The Molecule Editor dialog box is described in Chapter 19 (see page 237).
- DNA/RNA > Gateway Cloning is an Invitrogen[™] technology that functions as a universal cloning system with rapid and efficient routes to protein expression, functional analysis and cloning/subcloning of DNA segments. This menu option launches a Vector NTI 9 feature that provides an interlocking set of computational tools for planning a Gateway cloning experiment from beginning to end. (This option is also available from the shortcut menu opened with a right click when a DNA or RNA molecule is selected in the Database Objects Pane. For more information, see GATEWAY and TOPO Cloning, Chapter 23).
- DNA/RNA > Delete with Descendants from Database physically deletes the selected DNA molecule together with its descendants (DNA/RNA and protein molecules) from the Database. Confirmation is requested before deletion.

Protein Molecule Operations

This operation is applicable to protein molecules:

• Table > New > Molecule (Using Sequence Editor) lets you create a new protein molecule, entering the amino acid sequence manually using Sequence Editor. The Molecule Editor dialog box is described in Chapter 19 (see page 237).

Enzyme Operations

These operations are applicable to RENs (restriction endonucleases) only.

• **Table > New > Enzyme** opens the Enzyme Editor tabbed dialog box where you can create a new database enzyme in the Enzyme Editor (Figure 17.22):

Recognition String:	Cleavage Point/Methylation Base:
 Restriction Enzyme Methylase 	Cleavage Point on Complementary Strand:
Type of methylation	,
Description:	

Figure 17.22 Enzyme Editor dialog box, Enzyme/Methylase tab

Enter information about the new REN as follows:

- General Tab: Enter the name of the REN in the Name text box.
- Enzyme Tab:
 - Recognition String Enter the enzyme's recognition string in the Recognition String text box
 - ^o Cleavage Point/Methylation Base In the Cleavage Point/Methylation Base field on the Enzyme tab, enter the number of the nucleotide immediately after the directstrand cleavage point. The following figure demonstrates how cleavage points of palindromic sites are defined.

Cleavage Point = 2 $A \quad A \quad T \quad A \quad T \quad T$ $1 \quad 2 \quad 3 \quad 4 \quad 5 \quad 6$ $T \quad T \quad A \quad T \quad A \quad A$

^o Cleavage Point on Complementary Strand – If the REN has a non-palindromic recognition site, the Cleavage Point on Complementary Strand field will be enabled. In this field, enter the number of the nucleotide immediately after the complementary-strand cleavage point.

The following figure demonstrates how cleavage points are defined for non-palindromic sites on both direct and complementary strands:



The preview box on the Enzyme tab helps you to enter cleavage points.

 Restriction Enzyme/Methylase – Select the enzyme type, regular REN or Methylase. Note: The enzyme type can be displayed in a field in the Database (Figure 17.23) by adding the Enzyme Type column to the Enzyme Database columns display (for more information on adding columns to the Database Explorer display, see Options dialog box Details View Tab on page 192):

🔍 Exploring - Local Yector NTI Database 📃 🗆 🗙							
Enzyme Edit View Analyses Align Database Assemble Tools Help							
All Subsets	All database E	inzymes					
Enzymes (MAIN)	Name	Recognition String	Palindromic?	Ambiguous?	Author	Original Author	
Palindromes/Non-Ambiguous	📒 SanDI	gggwccc	Yes	Yes	InforMax,	REBASE	
	<u></u> ≣ SapI	gctcttc	No	No	InforMax,	REBASE	
	📱 Sar I	aggoot	Yes	No	InforMax,	REBASE	
	📜 SatI	genge	Yes	Yes	InforMax,	REBASE	
	📱 Sau3239I	ctcgag	Yes	No	InforMax,	REBASE	
	📱 Sau3AI	gatc	Yes	No	InforMax,	REBASE	
	🖹 Sau96I	ggncc	Yes	Yes	Demo User	REBASE	
	📱 SauBMKI	gccggc	Yes	No	InforMax,	REBASE	•
1535 enzymes							

Figure 17.23 Enzyme Type field added to Enzyme Database display

- Type of Methylation If Methylase is selected for the enzyme type, the Type of Methylation field becomes enabled. Enter the methylation type.
- **Note:** The enzyme type and methylation type, if applicable are indicated in the Restriction/Methylation Map folder in the Text Pane of the Molecule Viewing window for displayed cutters (Figure 17.24):

🗷 🖄 pUR278-1
🗄 🧰 Genera Description
🗆 🛅 Standard Fields
🗄 🧰 Original Author
🗷 📝 Comments
Annotations
🗆 🗀 Feature Map
🗉 🚘 Restriction/Methylation Map
ApaLI: 4 sites CrGCAC CACGTG
Aval: 2 sites chrcGRG GRGCYC
BamHI: 1 site GRATCC CCTAGG
Clal: 2 sites ATCGAT TAGCTA
EcoRI: 2 sites CAATTC CTTAAG
HindIII: 1 site AAGCTT TTCCAA
Ncol: 0 sites CCATGG
GGTACC
Psti: 1 site GACGTC
Saci: 1 site GAGCTIC Chrcgag
🗏 🖼 Sau961: 10 sites conce
methylation at 2 (DCM)
N1: 342
N2: 1772
N3: 2658
N4: 2320 NE 30E0
NG: 3000 MC: 32E0
N6. 3336
NB: 4196
N9 4213
N10:4292

Figure 17.24 Restriction/Methylation Map showing methylation position and type

- Description In the Description box on the Enzyme tab, enter the REN's description.
- User Fields tab: Add custom data in a form of fields. For details, refer to page 200.
- Comments tab: Enter text comments.
- Keywords tab: Enter key words for the REN, following the directions on page 171.

When all data is correct, choose **OK** to save the enzyme and return to the Database Explorer.

Oligo Operations

These operations are applicable to oligonucleotides only.

 Table > New > Oligo opens the New Oligo dialog box where you can create a new database oligo (Figure 17.25). The New Oligo and Edit Oligo dialog boxes are the same.

lew Oligo		×
General Oligo Use	r Fields Comments Keywords	
E ACTCT	ГТТБААТАСТСС	
Type: Oligo		
Record #: 0		
Status: Local (cre	ated or modified by current user)	
Originally Created by:	Jill Hadfield	About
Creation date:	03/26/03 02:30PM	
Last Modification by:	Jill Hadfield	About
Modification date:	Unknown	
	OK Cancel A	Apply Help

Figure 17.25 New Oligo dialog box

Enter information about the new (or to-be-edited) oligo as follows:

- General Tab: Enter the name of the oligo.
- Oligo Tab:
 - Nucleotide Sequence: Enter or edit the oligo's nucleotide sequence. Valid characters: ATUCG.
 - ^o Select the oligo type.
 - Complementary box: Check to replace the oligo sequence with the complementary one
 - ^o Description box: Enter or edit the oligo's description.
- User Fields Tab: Add custom data in a form of fields. For details, refer to page 200.
- Comments Tab: Enter text comments.
- Keywords Tab: Enter keywords for the oligo. For details, see page 171.

When all data is correct, choose **OK** to save the oligo and return to the Database Explorer.

Analyze Oligo: With an oligo highlighted in the Database Objects pane, select Analyses > Oligo Analyses > Thermodynamic Properties or Oligo Duplexes to open corresponding dialog boxes. These dialog boxes are both described in Chapter 21.

Gel Marker Operations

These operations are applicable to gel markers only.

• **Table > New > Gel Marker** opens the Gel Marker Editor tabbed dialog box (Figure 17.26) where you can enter (or edit data) for a gel marker.

New Gel Marker		×
General Gel Marker	User Fields Comments Keywords	
Lambda	HindIII	
Type: Gel Mark	91	
Record #: 0		
Status: Local (cr	ated or modified by current user)	
Originally Created by:	Demo User	About
Creation date:	08/01/2003 10:06:52 AM	
Last Modification by:	Demo User	About
Modification date:	Unknown	
	OK Cancel	Apply Help

Figure 17.26 Gel Marker Editor tabbed dialog box

You may enter information about the new (or edited) gel marker as follows:

- General Tab: Enter the name of the gel marker.
- Gel Marker Tab:
 - Fragments list box: Lists by length all the fragments making up the marker. To add a fragment to the marker, enter its length in bp in the New Fragment box and click Add. The fragment is added to the fragment list. To remove a fragment from the marker, select it in the Fragments box and click the Delete button.
 - ^o Description box: Enter the gel marker's description.
- User Fields Tab: Add custom data in a form of fields. For details, refer to page 200.
- Comments Tab: Enter text comments.
- Keywords Tab: Enter keywords for the gel marker. For details, refer to page 171.

When the information is correct, choose \mathbf{OK} to save the Gel Marker and return to the Database Explorer.

Citation Operations

The New/Edit Properties dialog box for Citation objects has the following standard object tabs: General, User Fields, Comments and Keywords. For information about these tabs, refer to the above sections.

The Edit Properties dialog box for Citation objects has the following unique tabs:

- **Citation Tab** Contains information about the citation, such as title, authors and reference lookup information.
- Abstract Tab Contains the abstract for the citation.
- **MeSH Tab** MeSH is the National Library of Medicine's controlled vocabulary thesaurus. The MeSH entries on this tab are terms or subject headings found in the selected citation. These terms can be reviewed, but not edited.

BLAST and Analysis Results Operations

The Edit Properties dialog boxes for BLAST and Analysis Results objects have the following standard object tabs: General, User Fields, Comments and Keywords. For information about these tabs, refer to the above sections.

Drag and Drop

You can transfer objects by selecting them and using the LEFT-CLICK + DRAG technique to move them to another location. The result of drag/drop is equivalent to copy/paste operations, except that drag/drop leaves the Clipboard contents unchanged.

If you RIGHT-CLICK + DRAG, when you drop, you have the option to **Copy** [**Here**] or **Cancel** the operation. In case of transfer between subsets of the same database, a third option, **Move Here**, allows you to combine two operations: add selected objects to another subset and exclude them from the current subset. *The Move operation is not available if the source subset has its contents maintained automatically.*

Edit Menu Commands

The menu options under Edit are available for all database objects and are typical of other Windows Explorer applications. They are described as follows:

Copy/Paste

Copy copies selected database objects and places them in subsets of the same database, local and shared databases, and databases and the file system. Selected objects, their source and names are copied to the Clipboard. You can also use the Copy button

button (). This mode of **Copy** copies meaningful biological data to be pasted into other biological analysis/management applications.

Notes about Copy:

- **Copy** using the **Camera** button (), copies data to the Clipboard as it appears on the computer screen. This is useful for pasting into a word processor during the preparation of publication documents, etc.
- Because only one copy can exist on the Clipboard at one time, the Copy command replaces previous Clipboard contents.
- Paste pastes copied data in one of four possible locations: (You can also use the Paste

button (🖾).

- The same subset of the same database where they were copied. This is an alternative way to duplicate copied objects.
- Into another subset of the same database where they were copied.
- Into another database such as a shared database. The resulting actions create a temporary archive for selected objects¹ and import it into the target database.
- To a file system or vice versa. If you paste copied objects to the Windows 95/98 or Windows NT Explorer, Vector NTI Explorer automatically creates an archive file containing copied objects². If you paste files from the Windows Explorer to Vector NTI Explorer, the files are imported into the target database. Vector NTI Explorer is usually able to recognize the types of the pasted files automatically and take appropriate actions. When it cannot determine the type of imported files, it allows you to select the type or cancel the operation.

^{1.} In case the transfer of molecules, the archive may also contain parents of the selected molecules. See the Explorer Options section for details.

^{2.} For molecules, the type of the created file depends on the Explorer settings. See the Explorer Options section for details.

Note: If database objects are renamed or modified AFTER you have copied them to the Clipboard, when you paste the object(s), the changes subsequent to copying are not reflected. Remember that the actual data is collected when you copy it, not when you paste it.

Explorer Display Options

The Explorer's database object pane can work in one of four view modes, selected under the View menu or by clicking on the **View Mode** button arrow, displayed at the right end of the toolbar (Figure 17.27): Icons, Small Icons, List and Details. By default, the Database Explorer shows objects in the Details mode.



In the first three modes, only object icons and names are displayed. The Details view displays object icons, names and the values of object fields displayed in columns.

Options Dialog Box

To view or modify options related to the current database table display in Vector NTI Database Explorer, select **View > Options** to open the Options dialog box (Figure 17.28). *To set options for a table other than the active one, switch to that table first.* All of your settings are preserved between Vector NTI sessions

Options (Local DNA/RNA Molecules)					
Details View Status Bar	Tips	Copy Molecule Archives	_		
Available Fields: Commercial Sources Created Description DNA/RNA Freezer Position Fully Processed? Local/Foreign LS Owner Organism Record # WWW Source	× «	Displayed Fields: Name Length Ampicialin Resistance Form Storage Type Author Modified Alignment C Left Right C Center			
ОК		Cancel Apply Help			

Figure 17.28 VNTI DB Explorer Options dialog box

Details View Tab

On the Details View tab, you can select the fields to be displayed (in columns) for each object type, change the order of columns and the text alignment of each column.

Currently displayed columns are listed in the Displayed Fields list box. To customize the displayed columns, in the Available Fields list box, select fields to be displayed and click the (>>) button. To remove fields, select them in the Displayed Fields list, and click the (<<) button. To modify the alignment of displayed data, select among the **Alignment** radio buttons. The

descending order in the list is the left to right display order of the columns. To modify that, select fields and use the **Move Up** and **Move Down** buttons. Click **OK** to apply the settings.

This page can also be opened with a right click on any column heading in Database Explorer. When opened from that source, it is called the Columns page.

Status Bar Tab

This tab allows you to choose the type of information displayed on the Status Bar for a single selected object in the object pane. The default selection, **Description**, describes the item selected. If you select one of the fields, that value for the selected object is displayed. The **1 item selected** option simply describes the selection.

Tips Tab

When you pause the mouse pointer over an object in the list pane of the Explorer, a popup message (tip) appears containing information about the object under the mouse pointer. On the Tips Tab, you can configure what is displayed.

Archives Tab

This tab allows you to choose what should happen to parent molecules when they are not included in a list of selected molecules to copy from the database to another location. In the Archives tab, you can choose to expand the set of molecules to include all missing selected molecules' parents, copy each molecule independently (losing all links to its parents), copy each molecule while maintaining parental lines via "open" links imported into a database, or copy sequences of selected molecules to a FASTA file.

Copy Molecule(s) Tabs (DNA/RNA or Proteins Molecules Table)

These two tabs let you select the preferred file format for a single molecule or a set of molecules export (either via copy/paste or drag/drop to the file system or other programs). Each tab includes detailed explanations of the available options.

Note: 'Parents' for proteins are 'DNA parents'.

Click **OK** to apply your settings to database display. All of the settings in the Database Options dialog box are preserved between Vector NTI sessions.

Modifying Database Object Column Widths

Column width settings can be changed directly. Move the cursor to the divider between columns where it changes to a two-headed arrow. Drag the divider right or left with the cursor until the column is the desired width.

Sorting Objects in Database Explorer

If you are in the Details View Mode, click on the column header to sort column contents. Clicking on the same column header for a second time reverses the sorting order.

To select descending or ascending sorting order for columns, or sort database objects by name or any of the displayed fields in any view mode, select **View > Arrange Icons**.

Database Reports

Reports on Database Explorer's contents, suitable for word processing and spreadsheet programs, can be generated. The Database Objects Pane should contain all objects you would like to include in the report. If you do not have a subset containing all objects you need, select them and create a new subset or generate the report on selected objects only.

To prepare a report:

- 1. Select a database table and object subset. Make sure Explorer is in the Details View mode.
- To select the objects' fields to be displayed, right click on a column heading, select Columns, opening the Columns display dialog box. Move the fields between the Fields columns, as described above in the Display View Tab section. Click OK to apply the settings.
- 3. Sort your objects by clicking on column's headers.
- 4. Select **Edit > Camera** or press the **Camera** button () on the Explorer's toolbar. In the Camera dialog box, select the objects to be included in the report its destination.
- 5. Switch to a word processor, spreadsheet or database application and paste/import the report data there.
- 6. Vector NTI copies the report data in one of two different formats, depending on the copy location:
 - ^o Plain text format with the TAB character used as column separator and the newline character as a row separator (sometimes called the "CSV" format) when copying to the Clipboard.
 - ^o Rich Text format (RTF) when copying to a file.

Explorer Shortcuts

Database Explorer offers many shortcuts to make your work more productive:

- Drag one or more molecules from the local database Explorer window onto the main Vector NTI window or into other Vector NTI Advance applications
- Drag molecules or other database objects into subsets
- Open Windows Notepad and drag/drop a molecule on its window. The molecule is displayed in the text format you chose for file system export. See Copy Molecule(s) Tabs (DNA/RNA or Proteins Molecules Table) on page 193.

The following is the list of useful Vector NTI Explorer keyboard shortcuts:

Shortcut	Action		
F2	Rename		
F3	Search		
F4	Select table		
F5	Refresh		
F6 or TAB	Switch to another pane		
ENTER	Open selected object		
CTRL+ENTER	Show Properties		

Table 17.2 Vector NTI Explorer keyboard shortcuts

Savein: 🛛 🔀 DNA/	'RNA Moleo	cules (MAIN)	•	
Name	Length	Modified	Storage Type	▲
🖭 aad amplicon	1437	03/27/02 10:54AM	Constructed	
💥 Adeno2	35937	12/14/00 03:50PM	Basic	
😐 AF337816 mar	1908	03/28/02 02:58PM	Basic	
😐 AF401671thi	2613	03/27/02 03:50PM	Basic	
🔤 AF411963 S. f	2185	03/28/02 07:04PM	Basic	
🛞 BPV1	7945	12/14/00 03:50PM	Basic	
💥 CNS06GRM	984	09/24/02 02:37PM	Basic	
😐 CNS06HMZ	955	09/25/02 11:41AM	Basic	
👾 CNS06J7T	1027	09/25/02 11:41AM	Basic	
🚊 CNS06JCO	839	09/25/02 11:41AM	Basic	-
	AE41100	C floumori marD		

Figure 17.29 Open and Save As dialog boxes

Many features of Vector NTI Explorer are available in the Open and Save As dialog boxes (Figure 17.29) appearing in many situations such as when you open a Molecule Display window or save a modified molecule to the database. These dialog boxes display object lists in the same way the Explorer does. You can:

- select between Small Icons, List and Details view modes
- choose object fields to be displayed in the Details mode
- · sort by any one of displayed fields
- display the Object Properties dialog box for selected objects.

Select the view modes with the buttons on the upper right or from the shortcut menu. Since there are no menu bars, select Properties (with an object selected), Options or Columns from a shortcut menu from an object or column header (in the Details view). You can also use the

Properties button (). The Columns page is managed as described under Details View Tab on page 192.

Contact Manager

Vector NTI is increasingly used as a communication tool for exchanging information between researchers. Contact Manager is a tool for creating, updating, deleting and organizing contact records.

To launch Contact Manager, select Database > Contact Manager:

Contact Manager			? ×
			Close
Name	Telephone	E-mail	
😰 InforMax, Inc.	(301)216-0586	informax@informaxinc.co	m
😰 NCBI Entrez	(301)496-2475	info@ncbi.nlm.nih.gov	
PROSITE	+(41-22) 784-40	bairoch@cmu.unige.ch	
😰 REBASE			
😰 SWISS-PROT	+(41-22) 784-40	bairoch@cmu.unige.ch	
1			

Figure 17.30 Contact Manager dialog box

The Contact Manager dialog box displays a list of all stored contact records (Figure 17.30). Many user interface features of the Contact Manager are similar to those of the Open/Save As dialog boxes described above. You can choose record properties to be displayed, sort by any one of the displayed properties and display the record properties dialog for selected objects. For operations on the Contact List, press one of the following buttons:

Add New or Edit Contact Records

• Click the **New** () or **Edit** buttons () to open the Contact Information dialog box (Figure 17.31), where you can enter new data or edit the data for a current contact. Only the Name box is mandatory for the new contact record. All other fields may be left empty and edited later if you don't know the appropriate data.

Contact Information	×
Name: NCBI Entrez	
E-mail: info@ncbi.nlm.nih.gov	
FTP:	
WWW: http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov	
Tel: (301)496-2475 Fax	
- Address	
National Center for Biotechnology Information	-
Nation Library of Medicine	-
Building 38A, Room 8N805	-
Bethesda, MD 20894	1
0K Cancel	

Figure 17.31 Contact Information dialog box

Choose **OK** to save the contact record and return to the Contact Manager.

- Delete (X) deletes the selected contact record from the list. Confirmation is requested before the contact record is deleted.
- Rename (de) changes the name of the selected contact record in an edit box.

Properties () displays the properties of the selected contact record. Only indexed contact fields—Telephone and E-mail—are displayed in the Properties dialog box. Use the Edit operation to view/edit the entire contact record.

User Field Manager

The User Field Manager dialog box maintains a list of user field definitions necessary to provide an appropriate description of the object. Some interface features of the User Field Manager are similar to those of the Contact Manager just described. You can add User Field Definitions, select properties to be displayed, sort by displayed properties and modify User Field Definition properties.

Tip: To walk through a detailed exercise using the User Field Manager to create a new field definition and apply its values to a group of database objects, see Tutorial: Database Explorer in Chapter 7.

Select **Database > User Field Manager**, opening the User Field Manager dialog box (Figure 17.32):

Jser Field Definitions				? >
	Import	Export	Close	
Name	Description		Indexed	±? [
Ampicillin Resistan			No	
🚯 Commercial Sources	List of commerc	ial sources	No	
ab Freezer Position	Rack, box, pos	No		
👪 Organism	Source of gene	No		
👪 tetracycline resista		No		
ab WWW Source	x) hotlinks No			
Global Operations with S	elected Field			
Set "in:	1	📋 Local Database	Objects	<u> </u>
Do not overwrite exis	sting values	 ■ ■ ■ ■ ■ ■ ■ ■ ■ ■ ■ ■ ■	tolecules (MAIN) cules (MAIN) AIN)	
Clear " in:		⊕	IJ	-
To set or clear fields in ind	ividual obiects, u	se the Edit command	d in the Explorer windo	w.

Figure 17.32 User Field Manager dialog box

The operation buttons in the upper left corner perform various operations, described below, on the User Field Definitions. Select the User Field Definition in the list, then press the appropriate button. *The add New operation does not require any items to be selected.*

- **Note:** You cannot use the exact name of a system field (see the System Fields Table on page 168) as the name of a new User Field you define. *Vector NTI field names are case-sensitive.* If you really want to name your field 'Default', you could use 'default' or 'DEFAULT.'

User Fie	ld Definition		<u>? ×</u>					
Name:	Organism		ОК					
Туре:	Cancel							
	Cache in Index Table for I	aster access						
_ Defau ≺Non	It Values e> fined Values	[Change					
Droso HIV	ophila	E. coli Add						
Descript	tion							
I								

Figure 17.33 User Field Definition dialog box, where you can create or edit User Field Definitions

- **Name:** In the text box, enter (or edit) the name of the new user field. The user field will appear under this name in the descriptions of database objects and in the Database.
- **Type:** Select the data type that the user field will accommodate from the data type choices listed in the drop-down menu:
 - String arbitrary text string, including numbers and symbols (e.g. a word, sentence or description)
 - ^o Yes/No binary field which may be set only to "Yes" or "No"
 - ^o List of Strings list of arbitrary text strings of any length
 - ^o One of Predefined Strings field which may be set only to one of predefined text strings from a user-defined list
 - ^o List of Predefined Strings field which may be set only to any subset of predefined text strings from a user-defined list
 - ^o List of URLs list of web addresses.
- Cached Fields: Any User Field can be indexed and "cached" in the database tables. Cached fields are stored in a special memory subsystem from which they can be more quickly recalled. To cache a User Field, check Cache in the Index Table. Because cached fields occupy more RAM in your computer, we recommend caching only frequently used fields, for instance, those displayed in the Database Explorer in the Details mode of the Vector NTI Explorer or in the Open/Save As dialog boxes.

If Vector NTI Explorer slows down when displaying an object's fields in the Details View mode, open User Field Manager, select the field, press the **Edit** button and cache the field. Because cached and ordinary fields have no functional differences, you can turn this option on or off any time you need it.

- **Default Values:** Any User Field may have a default value or values that are displayed when you attempt to fill the previously blank field of the database object. To change the default, click the **Change** button.
- **Predefined Values:** This section is enabled only for fields of the One of Predefined Strings and List of Predefined Strings types. For those fields, enter one or more value strings to choose from. These values are displayed as a list of available options when you try to fill or change the actual object's fields. Use the text box and the < Add and > Delete buttons to define the predefined values for the User Field.
- **Description:** Enter a description of the field to help you fill or edit the value of the field in a database object. The description entered here is displayed in the field value dialog box

for this field as well as the popup label displayed whenever you pause the cursor on the field name in the User Field's tab of object editors (see below).

Note: To save space on your computer's screen and still allow you to see which predefined values are selected, you may define these values using the 'abbreviated' format: abbrev=full form as shown below (these are some of predefined values for a sample "Commercial Sources" field for enzymes):

A=Amersham Life Sciences-USB B=Life Technologies Inc, Gibco-BRL C=Minotech Molecular Biology Products D=Angewandte Gentechnologie Systeme

Vector NTI displays only abbreviated form (for example A, B, D) in the Explorer windows and other places, but you will see the full forms in value-editing dialogs.

Click **OK** to return to the User Field Manager.

When you have edited data, Vector NTI automatically rebuilds the database indices.

Back in the User Field Manager:

- Rename () lets you change the name of a selected User Field. In the enabled text box, change the field name. *After renaming a User Field, Vector NTI automatically rebuilds the database indices.*
- Delete (X) deletes a selected User Field Definition from the Field Definitions list and, optionally, to delete field values from database objects. Confirmation is requested before deletion.
- You are also asked to confirm whether to delete the appropriate User Field values from <u>all</u> database objects. Deleting only the User Field Definition does not affect consistency of the database information. When you delete the Field Definition from the list, Vector NTI no longer prompts you to fill this field in new objects and existing objects where it was blank. However, unless you delete the field value from database objects, Vector NTI still stores and displays the existing field data in the database objects. If you try to edit the existing value of that "unlisted" field in any database object, Vector NTI will ask you to add the definition of the field back to the User Field Definition List before proceeding.
- Properties () display the properties of the selected User Field Description. These properties can be also displayed in the User Field Manager dialog box by opening the shortcut menu from the list headings and selecting Columns.

Import/Export

To simplify the maintenance and sharing of User Fields across several databases and/or several computers, you can save your User Field Definitions as "archives."

To export User Field Definitions to the archives, click the **Export** button. In the dialog box that opens, select the definitions to be exported and click **OK**. In the Export User Field Definitions To dialog box, locate the directory and archive file name for storing the exported definitions. Click **Save** to create the archive.

To import User Field Definitions from the archive, click the **Import** button. In the dialog box, locate the directory and archive file to be read. Click the **Open** button, initiating the import. After importing, Vector NTI automatically rebuilds the database indices.

Set In/Clear In

In the User Field Manager, you can assign or "set" a value or clear all values for a particular User Field in a group of database objects.

To set a value for a user field:

Select the user field in Field Definition List (large window). In the database tree in the lower right corner, select a subset of database objects that the field would pertain to. You may choose all database objects regardless of their type or a particular subset for database objects of a particular type (molecules, enzymes, oligos or gel markers). If you don't want to overwrite existing values of the User Field in the selected group of objects, check the **Do not overwrite...** box.

In the Global Operations section, click the **Set <user field > In** button. In the dialog box that opens, specify the field value string to be set and click **OK**. Vector NTI shows a description of the action about to be performed, asks for your confirmation, then inserts the specified value into the appropriate objects in the subset you selected.

• To clear all values of a user field:

Select the user field. Choose a subset of database objects in the database tree. You can choose all database objects regardless of their type or a particular subset for database objects of a particular type (molecules, enzymes, etc.)

Click the **Clear <user field > In** button. Vector NTI warns you of the action about to be performed. If you confirm the operation, it clears the values of the specified user field in the specified objects.

To set or clear fields in a set of individual objects not currently represented by an existing subset, close the User Field Manager, create the required subset in Database Explorer and return to the User Field Manager. Alternatively, you may change field values in individual objects by editing them in the Explorer one by one as described below.

Editing User Fields in Individual Objects

When a User Field is defined in the User Field Manager, you can edit it for any database object using the User Fields tab in the Edit <object name > dialog box (Figure 17.34). To open the Edit dialog box from Database Explorer, select the object in the Object Pane and click the **Edit** button (

menu.

User Fields Tab in the Edit Dialog Box

General Di	NA/RNA Molecule Sequence and Maj
User Hields	Comments Keywords
Field Name	Value
ampicillin resistance	
🔊 Commercial Sources	
Reezer Position	
🖹 Organism	
)www.Source	
se the User Field Manager	
ormand to define more field	s. Change Value Remove Val

Figure 17.34 User Fields Tab in the Edit dialog box

All of the tabs of this dialog box except the User Fields tab are discussed in the section *Operations on Database Objects* in this chapter. User Fields shows a list of all User Fields currently applied to the object being edited and the list of blank fields defined in the local User Field Definition list but not yet specified for the current object.

To set or edit any field, double-click the field name or select the field name and press the **Change Value** button. If the field you want to edit is not listed in the local User Field Definition list, enter the field definition first. When added, the appropriate field value dialog box is displayed. To quickly clear any User Field of the object, select the name of the field and press the **Remove Value** button.

User Fields in Molecule Display Windows

You can view and edit User Fields tab from Molecule Display windows. To open the Edit dialog box, select **Edit > <object > Properties** or in the Text Pane, select Molecule Properties on the shortcut menu opened from the topmost folder <Object Name > or click on the () box to the left of the <Object Name > folder.

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

C H A P T E R

MOLECULE DISPLAY WINDOWS; FORMATTING GRAPHICS

Introduction

A Molecule Display window displays text information, including a description of a molecule, features and a graphical map of the molecule and its sequence. For DNA/RNA molecules you can also see restriction sites, ORFs, motifs, PCR analysis, etc. The Molecule Display window includes powerful graphical tools allowing you to:

- manipulate and analyze DNA/RNA and protein molecules
- visually select fragments of DNA molecules for recombination
- prepare publication-quality figures

A Molecule Display window enables editing in two modes:

- Molecule Editing mode: you can modify a molecule's functional features and restriction map and sequence. Molecule editing is covered in Chapter 6.
- Picture Editing mode: you can modify the graphical formatting of the molecule's image, allowing you to create publication-quality illustrations.

Molecules can be saved in the Vector NTI Database or as Molecule Documents. Molecule Document files contain all the information from Molecule Display windows, including the molecule analyses results, as well as graphics display settings you may have formatted or modified for that particular molecule. Molecules in the database maintain consistency in their internal files and graphical representation.

Vector NTI Display Window Options Dialog Box

To view or modify Vector NTI display window options, select **Edit > Options** in the Vector NTI main workspace or Molecule Viewing window. This opens the Options dialog box (Figure 18.1):

Options				×			
Molecule Graphics General	Sequence	Editor Undo/F	Internet Redo				
Start And Exit	lorer At Startup						
Confirm Exit From	Confirm Exit From Application						
Date/Time Format US (03/20/96 04:20PM) Date/Time Format O Date/Time Format							
Open Molecule							
 Use Default Display Setup Settings Use Profile of Open/Active Molecule 							
ОКС	ancel A	pply	Help				

Figure 18.1 Vector NTI Options dialog box

The Options dialog box has five different tabs for setting various Vector NTI parameters:

- General sets Vector NTI start-up/exit, date/time format and molecule display profile opening options
- **Note:** The Vector NTI Database Explorer can be configured to open automatically with the Vector NTI main workspace or Molecule Viewing window each time a Vector NTI session is initiated. On the General tab of the Options dialog box, select **Open Local Explorer At Startup**.
 - Undo/Redo sets Graphics and Sequence Pane tracking and undo buffer size parameters
 - Molecule Graphics sets graphics, font and label formatting options
 - Sequence Editor sets block format in the Molecule Sequence Editor dialog box
 - Internet sets Vector NTI HTML pages creation parameters

All settings saved in the Vector NTI Options dialog box are preserved between Vector NTI sessions.

Opening Molecules in Molecule Display Windows

The display window can open for a molecule from the Vector NTI database, from a Molecule Document File or from a file in a public format recognized by Vector NTI: GenBank/GenPept, EMBL/SWISS-PROT, BLAST, and FASTA.

Molecule Database Files

Molecules are stored in the Vector NTI database as GenBank/GenPept, EMBL/SWISS-PROT, BLAST, or FASTA files.

Molecule Document Files

Molecule Document files saved in Vector NTI contain all the information contained in a Molecule Display window such as graphical representation and molecule analysis results as well as the molecule itself in a portable format suitable for information exchange. Because the Molecule Document format is based on GenBank/GenProt, any other program able to import GenBank/ GenProt files could import Molecule Documents.

All molecule document files, imported and even those created within Vector NTI, are considered external files. Vector NTI restricts the set of operations you can perform on molecules opened from external files. To be able to perform all molecule operations on a molecule from a Molecule Document, you will be prompted to first save the molecule in the Vector NTI database.

When opening a molecule from an external file, you can view it in a Molecule Display window before saving it into the Vector NTI database. You still need to save the molecule in the database to analyze it, construct other molecules from it, etc.

Opening a Molecule from the Database

• From Vector NTI's Database Explorer:

Select the molecule table and subset in the upper left corner. In the Database Objects Pane, scroll to the molecule and select **<molecule type > > Open** on the Main Menu bar or double-click on the molecule name in the list.

• From the Vector NTI workspace or a Molecule Display window:

Click the **Open Document** button() on the main toolbar or choose **File > Open**. In the Open dialog box (Figure 18.2), select either the Database DNAs/RNAs or Database Proteins tab.

.ook in: 🛛 📓 DNA	/RNA Mole	cules (MAIN)	•	
Name	Length	Modified	Storage Type	
😐 aad amplicon	1437	03/27/02 10:54AM	Constructed	_
😐 Adeno2	35937	12/14/00 03:50PM	Basic	
😐 AF337816 mar	1908	03/28/02 02:58PM	Basic	
😐 AF401671thi	2613	03/27/02 03:50PM	Basic	
💥 AF411963 S. f	2185	03/28/02 07:04PM	Basic	
⊛ BPV1	7945	12/14/00 03:50PM	Basic	
🚊 CNS06GRM	984	09/24/02 02:37PM	Basic	
😐 CNS06HMZ	955	09/25/02 11:41AM	Basic	
😐 CNS06J7T	1027	09/25/02 11:41AM	Basic	
🛒 CNS06JCO	839	09/25/02 11:41AM	Basic	-

Figure 18.2 Database DNAs/RNAs tab of the Open dialog box

From the **Look In** drop-down menu, select the subset where your molecule is located, scroll to the molecule, select it and double-click on it or click **OK**.

The **Properties** button () in the Open dialog box is to modify the default set of parameters used to create the Molecule Display window contents. See page 215 for details on Molecule Display Setup.

Note: The number of data fields displayed for objects in the Open dialog box can be modified. Select **Options** from the shortcut menu associated with this dialog box. In the Options dialog box that opens, select fields from the Available Fields list, press the(>>) button to move them to the Dis-

played Fields list. For more information on using this dialog box, refer to page 192 in Chapter 17.

Opening a Molecule from a Molecule Document File

To open a molecule from a Molecule Document file, click the **Open Document** button(\supseteq) on the main toolbar or choose **File > Open**. In the Open dialog box, select the Molecule Files tab. Browse to the location of the molecule file, select it and click **OK**.

Opening a Molecule from a Molecule Shortcut File

Molecule Shortcut files contain the names of database molecules along with the Display Setup parameters. When you open a database molecule via the Shortcut file, Vector NTI uses the Display Setup parameters stored in the file.

To open a database molecule via a Shortcut file, choose **File > Open Shortcut**. Select the name of the Shortcut file from the file list. To set up a Molecule Shortcut file, see page 232.

Elements of a Molecule Display Window



Figure 18.3 Molecule Display window

A Molecule Display window is divided into three panes: a Text Pane (upper left), a Graphics Pane (upper right) and a Sequence Pane (bottom) (Figure 18.3).

The Molecule Display window title bar shows the name of the open molecule. Vertical and horizontal split bars separating the panes can be moved using the click and drag technique to resize the viewing areas.

Each pane has scroll bars when the pane contents exceed the viewing area. These allow vertical and horizontal movement through the pane.

The Text Pane has folders containing descriptions and analyses of the molecule currently open.

The Graphics Pane displays a graphical depiction of the molecule map. Features, restriction sites, motifs, etc. are shown by symbols. Each symbol typically has a label connected to it by a dropline.

The Sequence Pane of a DNA/RNA molecule depicts the nucleotide sequence with selected functional signals, restriction sites, motifs, ORFs, and protein translations. The Sequence Pane of a protein molecule displays the amino acid sequence and selected features.

Menu Bar and Toolbars

The menu options for the Molecule Display window are discussed when corresponding operations are described. Many menu options have corresponding toolbar buttons and shortcut menu commands.

Many objects and features have associated shortcut menus opened with a right click on the item.

The Main Toolbar remains fairly consistent through Vector NTI Advance, while other toolbars vary according to the display window and the active pane. Because Vector NTI has many toolbars corresponding to different display windows, active panes and applications. Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function. Hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button.

The Text Pane

The Text Pane of a Molecule Display window contains a thorough description of the molecule, including common database information, Feature map, and results of analyses as well as molecule type-specific information such as restriction maps, ORFs, motifs for DNA/RNA molecules and physiochemical analyses. The content of the Text Pane depends on a specific Display Setup.

Folders

The Text Pane is divided into a hierarchy of folders and subfolders. A folder and its subfolders are called a branch. Text Pane can contain the following folders:

Folder	Contents
General Description	Molecule name, length, notes, etc.
Standard Fields	All standard field descriptions in the molecule's file: for example, keywords, original source, public database IDs.
Component Fragments (DNA/ RNA)	Describes the fragments from which the molecule is con- structed
Design Description (DNA/RNA)	Design plan determined by Vector NTI's built-in biological knowledge
References	Literature references applying to the molecule
Feature map	Feature map of the molecule
Restriction Map/Methylation Map (DNA/RNA)	Restriction enzyme cutting and methylation site information for the molecule for those enzymes chosen for display
Open Reading Frames (DNA/ RNA)	ORFs found on the molecule
Motifs (DNA/RNA)	Motifs found on the molecule
PCR Analysis (DNA/RNA)	Results of PCR analysis
Sequencing Primers (DNA/RNA)	Results of sequencing primer search
Hybridization Probes (DNA/RNA)	Results of hybridization probes analysis

Table 18.1 Text Pane folders on the Molecule Display window

Folder	Contents
Protein Analysis (Proteins)	Results of common physiochemical analyses
Annotations	Text annotations added by the user

Table 18.1 Text Pane folders on the Molecule Display window (Continued)

Note: Among the different types of molecules present in the Vector NTI Database are Invitrogen[™]

() Proprietary Molecules. One hundred of the most commonly used, fully annotated, Invitrogen vectors are available in the database. When working with these specific molecules, included in the Text Pane is a hyperlink to the Invitrogen website providing you with relevant information, annotated features and related reagents pertaining to that molecule.

Opening and Closing Text Pane Folders

The general rules for opening and closing Text Pane folders and subfolders are summarized as follows:

- Click on the + at the left of the folder name to open it; click on the to close it.
- Double click on a folder name to open it; double click again to close it.
- Click on the Expand Branch button (10) to open it; select View > Expand All to open

a folder and all of its subfolders. Click on the **Collapse Branch** button (b) to close all related folders.

Finding Molecule Features on Graphics and Sequence Panes

To display molecule features described in the Text Pane in the corresponding region of the molecule in the Graphics and Sequence Panes, open the folder containing the feature and select

the feature by clicking on its name. Click the **Find** button (**M**). The corresponding region is marked with a wire-frame in the Graphics Pane and highlighted in the Sequence Pane.

The Graphics Pane

The Graphics Pane graphically displays molecule maps, including features, restriction sites, and motifs, and user annotations. Features represented as clockwise arrows appear on the direct DNA strand; counter-clockwise arrows represent features on the complementary DNA strand.

Circular and Linear Displays

Circular DNA molecules can be displayed in either circular (Figure 18.4) or linear form (Figure 18.5). Linear DNA/RNA molecules and proteins can only be viewed in linear form.

Choose circular/linear display format with the **Circular Display**(^{**}) or **Linear Display**(^{**}) buttons on the toolbar of the Graphics Pane or with the equivalent commands in the **View** menu.



Figure 18.4 DNA molecule displayed in circular form



Figure 18.5 DNA molecule displayed in linear form

Standard Arrangement

Standard Arrangement sets all symbols to standard sizes, sets labels to a standard font size, and arranges text to prevent or to minimize overlap. When a display window opens, it appears in its default Standard Arrangement settings. After modifying graphics formats, you can return a Graphics Pane to its Standard Arrangement by clicking the **Standard Arrangement** button

() on the Graphics Pane Window toolbar or choosing **View > Standard Arrangement**. While certain changes you have made to the layout in the Picture Editing mode such as label repositioning are lost, many object attributes such as colors, patterns, and font as well as relative symbol sizes are unaffected. Hidden objects remain hidden and the way objects overlap is not affected.

Setting up the Standard Arrangement

To change the sizes of symbols and labels in the Standard Arrangement, press CTRL + the Stan-

dard Arrangement button (<u>)</u>) on the Viewer toolbar, opening the Arrangement Setup Palette:



The palette has three sets of buttons:

- Stretch Symbols(➡) and Shrink Symbols(➡) buttons respectively increase and decrease the standard thickness of *symbols* by ~15%. Hold down the SHIFT key while pressing a button to change thickness in small increments.
- Stretch Labels(A) and Shrink Labels(A) buttons respectively increase and decrease the standard size of *labels* by ~15%. Hold down the SHIFT key while pressing a button to change size in small increments.
- Spread Labels () and Condense Labels () buttons respectively spread out and compress labels on the linear layout. Hold down the SHIFT key while pressing a button to move labels in small increments.

Click the Standard Arrangement button again to close the palette.

Selecting Signals and Sites

In the Graphics Pane, elements of the functional and restriction maps, ORFs, and motifs can be selected, enlarged or reduced and have various operations performed on them. In brief, to select regions or sites, use the left click + drag method, or click on the feature or its label. Selected regions are marked with a wire-frame.

Note: For detailed instructions on selection and viewing options, refer to Chapter 3.

Viewing a Selected Molecule Region

Although a display window always shows an entire molecule, the window can be configured to show only a fragment of an opened molecule. This is useful for manipulating a small region of a larger molecule.

To view only a selected region, activate a Graphics or Sequence Pane and select the targeted

region. Click on the View Molecule Fragment button (📮) or select View > View Selection.

Only the selected region of the molecule is now displayed in the Graphics and the Sequence Panes. The list of functional signals, restriction sites and motifs in the Text Pane now reflects only those objects located inside the selected region.

To return to the view of the entire molecule, click on the **View Molecule Fragment** button again or choose **View Whole Molecule** from the drop-down menu.

Multi-component Features Display

A multi-component feature is a feature that contains introns and exons. The example shown in Figure 18.6 has two exons and one intron, shown graphically on a molecule. The ordinary feature is shown as a wide arrow on the Graphics Pane. Coding sequences, or exons, are shown

as filled parts of the arrow, while the intervening sequence, or intron, is shown as a gap within the arrow.



Figure 18.6 Multi-component feature with two exons and one intron

Selecting and Translating Exons

When a DNA molecule containing a non-contiguous multi-component CDS is open in a molecule display window, the user can translate the exons three ways. Click on any of the exons to select the entire CDS. *Translate commands are enabled on the shortcut menu*.

The first two options create a new protein. The last simply displays the translation of the selected area in the Sequence Pane.

• Translate Feature into New Protein

This command translates the entire feature into a new protein molecule. Because reading frames may be shifted in translating intron/exon features in this method, the resulting amino acid sequence may not match the valid protein sequence for intron/exon features translated in this manner.

In the above case, a new molecule display window opens featuring the new protein.

• Translate Feature in Sequence Pane

This command displays the translation of the selected feature in the Sequence Pane of the Molecule Viewing window. A new protein molecule is NOT created.

For more information on Translation, see Translation, page 292. For information on creating a new molecules by splicing together the exons of a multi-component feature, see Creating New DNA/RNA or Protein Molecules Using Splicing, page 307.

Changing the Settings for Graphics Pane

For changing Graphics Pane settings, see Display Setup later in this chapter. For editing a molecule or modifying its graphical format in the Graphics Pane itself, refer to Molecule Editing in Chapter 20.

The Sequence Pane

A Sequence Pane displays a molecule's nucleotide or amino acid sequence as well as selected features.

Features	Display	Position on Sequence
Functional features (labeled)	deep red serrated lines	Above—direct strand; protein Below—complementary
RENs (labeled)	blue wavy lines	Above only
Motifs (labeled)	deep red serrated lines	Above—direct Below—complementary

 Table 18.2
 Selected features of Sequence Pane

Features	Display	Position on Sequence
ORFs	dark blue arrows	Above—direct Below—complementary Phase indicators in left margin

Table 18.2	Selected	features o	of Seauence	Pane	(Continued)
10010 10.2	Sciecica	jeannes o	Joequenee	1 0000	(commuca)

Selective display of these features is defined by corresponding commands under the Analyses menu option. They can also be defined in Display Setup, discussed later in this chapter.

Changing the Settings for Sequence Display

To change the settings for sequence display, select parameters in the Display Setup dialog box, discussed in detail on page 215.

Setting an Internal Start Point in the Sequence Pane

By default, Vector NTI numbers the molecule sequence in the Sequence Pane starting with the number 1, which coincides with the origin of the molecule.

You can create an additional, secondary numbering system in the Sequence Pane display (DNA/RNA Molecules only) by setting an internal start point. The sequence is numbered starting with 1 at the internal start point, with increasing numbers to the right of the start point and decreasing numbers (negative numbers) to left of the start point.

To set an internal start point, choose **View > Internal Start Point** from the drop-down menu in a DNA/RNA Molecule Viewing window. The Internal Numbering dialog box displays (Figure 18.7):



Figure 18.7 Internal Numbering dialog box

Enter the number of the base where you want to set the internal start point or press the **Current** button to set the number to the current cursor position and then press the **OK** button. Internal Start Point numbering is displayed in the Sequence Pane:

	-130	-120	-110	-100	-90	-80	-70	-60	-50	-40
1	EcoRI TTCTCATGTT	TGACAGCTTA	CIN TCATCGATAA	GCTTARTO	ggtagtttat	CACAGTTAAA	TTGCTAACGC	AGTCAGGCAC	CGTGTATGAA	ATCTAACAAT
	AAGAGTACAA	ACTGTCGAAT	AGTAGCTATT	CGALATTACC	CCATCAAATA	GTGTCAATTT	AACGATTGCG	TCAGTCCGTG	GCACATACTT	TAGATTGTTA
101	-30 GCGCTCATCG CGCGAGTAGC	-20 TCATCCTCGG AGTAGGAGCC	-10 CACCGTCACC GTGGCAGTGG	CTGOATGCTG GACOTACGAC	10 TAGGCATAGG ATCCGTATCC	20 CTTGGTTATG GAACCAATAC	30 CCGGTACTGC GGCCATGACG	40 CGGGCCTCTT GCCCGGAGAA	50 GCGGGGATATC CGCCCTATAG	60 GTCCATTCCG CAGGTAAGGC
201	70 ACAGCATCGC TGTCGTAGCG	80 CAGTCACTAT GTCAGTGATA	90 GGCGTGCTGC CCGCACGACG	TAGOGCTAT	110 TGCGTTGATG ACGCAACTAC	120 CAATTTCTAT GTTAAAGATA	130 GCGC&CCCGT CGCGTGGGGC&	140 TCTCGGAGCA AGAGCCTCGT	150 CTGTCCGACC GACAGGCTGG	160 GCTTTGGCCG CGAAACCGGC
	170	180	190	200	210	220	230	240 BamHI	250	260
301	CCGCCCAGTC GGCGGGTCAG	CTGCTCGCTT GACGAGCGAA	CGCTACTTGG GCGATGAACC	AGCCACTATC TCGGTGATAG	GACTACGCGA CTGATGCGCT	TCATGGCGAC AGTACCGCTG	CACACCCGTC GTGTGGGCAG	CTGTGGATCC GACACCTAGG	TCTACGCCGG AGATGCGGCC	ACGCATCOTC TGCGT You have net
401	270 GCCGGCATCA	CCGGCGCCAC	290 AGGTGCGGTT	300 GCTGGCGCCT	310 ATATCGCCGA	CATCACCGAT	330 GGGGAAGATC	340 GGGCTCGCCA	350 CTTCGGGCTC	ATGAC meil

Figure 18.8 Internal Start Point numbering in the Sequence Pane. Internal start point is circled.

Note: Internal start point numbering is considered a form of molecule editing and can, therefore, be saved as part of the molecule.

Navigating the Sequence

In the Sequence Pane, the cursor becomes an I-beam that you can move with the mouse or the arrow keys. Pause the cursor over a sequence position for a few seconds, and a pop-up label identifies its exact position on the sequence.

Selecting Regions of the Sequence

There are several methods for selecting a sequence in the Sequence Pane:

- Use the LEFT-CLICK + DRAG technique, dragging the cursor across the nucleotides.
- Select Edit > Set Selection. Enter the residue range in the dialog box that opens.
- Click on the Set Selection box on the Status Bar, opening the Set Selection dialog box. Enter the residue range in the dialog box.

The selection range is always display in the Set Selection box on the Status Bar.

The general rule for modifying sequence selections is to hold the SHIFT key (to alter the selection by small increments) or the SHIFT + CTRL keys (to alter the selection by large increments) as you press the left and right arrows.

A selected fragment in the Sequence Pane is marked simultaneously with a wire-frame in the Graphics Pane.

A fragment selected in the Sequence Pane is marked simultaneously with a wire-frame in the Graphics Pane.

Translations

Translating in the Sequence Pane

Select the region you wish to translate.

To translate in the selected frame in the Sequence Pane, press the Translate Direct

Strand($\frac{\text{M}}{\text{MG}}$) or Translate Complementary Strand($\frac{\text{MG}}{\text{MG}}$) buttons in the Window toolbar, or choose the corresponding commands from the Shortcut menu.

If ORFs are displayed, you can translate ORFs in the Sequence Pane by choosing **Translate ORFs** from the Shortcut menu.

- Notes: Translations of the direct strand appear above the sequence; translations of the complementary strand appear below the sequence.
 - You can select three- or one-letter amino acid codes through the Display Setup dialog box, discussed on page 215 in this chapter.

To clear Sequence Pane translations, do one of the following:

- click the Erase Translations button (2)
- choose View > Clear All Translations from the drop-down menu

A variety of Sequence Pane translation options, including those mentioned above are available under the Analyses drop down menu by choosing **Analyses > Translation > In Sequence Pane > <translation option>**. For more information on these options, see Translating in the Sequence Pane, page 293.

Translating into a New Protein Molecule

You can also translate a DNA/RNA molecule Sequence Pane selection into a new Protein molecule stored in the Vector NTI Database. The selected portion of a DNA/RNA molecule can be translated (direct or complementary strand) and saved in the Vector NTI Database by choosing the **File > Create New Sequence > Using Translation Procedure (Protein) > <strand option>** from the drop-down menu in the Vector NTI Molecule Viewing window.

Other options for translating DNA/RNA selections into new protein molecules are available under the Analyses drop-down menu by choosing **Analyses > Translation > Into New Protein**

> <translation option>. For more information on these options, see Translating into a New Protein Molecule, page 293.

Setting the Genetic Code

In Vector NTI, Standard genetic code is used for translations by default. However, you can choose from among a list of alternate genetic codes or create your own custom genetic code to use for translations. For instructions on setting the genetic code, see Setting the Genetic Code for DNA/RNA Translations, page 294.

Phase Indicators for ORFs and Protein Translations

Phase indicators in the left margin of the Sequence Pane show the phases of ORFs and protein translations. For translations of the direct strand, the phase is determined by the position of the first selected nucleotide relative to the beginning of the molecule. For the complementary strand, the phase is determined by the position of the last selected nucleotide relative to the end of the molecule.

Finding DNA/RNA Sequence Fragments

To quickly find a defined fragment on a sequence, in the Sequence (or Graphics) Pane, click the

Find button (), select **Edit > Find Sequence** or press CTRL + F. In the Find Sequence dialog box (Figure 18.9), enter the desired sequence, indicate the strand to search, choose exact or degenerate matching and set the acceptable mismatch tolerance. The sequence can contain any standard IUPAC symbols for nucleotide sequences. (See Appendix C.)

Find Sequence	? ×
Find what:	
GATACATA	Find Next
Options	Cancel
Strand: 💿 Direct	
C Complementary	
Nucleotides:	
C Match degenerate nucleotide(s)	
Tolerance: Allow up to 0 in mismatches	
Search will start from 1 bp	

Figure 18.9 Find Sequence dialog box (DNA)

Press the **Find Next** button. The search begins from the current caret position or the current selection. A located fragment is automatically selected in the Sequence Pane. If none are found, the caret does not move from its current position.

Finding Protein Sequence Fragments

To quickly find a defined fragment on a sequence, in the Sequence (or Graphics) Pane, click the

Find button (**M**), select **Edit > Find Sequence** or press CTRL + F. In the Find Sequence dialog box (Figure 18.10), enter the desired sequence and set the acceptable mismatch tolerance.
The sequence can contain any standard IUPAC symbols for amino acid sequences. (See Appendix C.)

, , ,	
Find Sequence	? ×
Find what: MTTSEKL	Find Next
Tolerance Allow up to 0 imismatches	Cancel
Search will start from 1 aa	

Figure 18.10 Find Sequence dialog box (Protein)

Click the **Find Next** button. The search begins from the current caret position or the current selection. A located fragment is automatically selected in the Sequence Pane. If none are found, the caret does not move from its current position.

Change Text Character Display Attributes

Character display attributes in the Sequence Pane can be changed in a manner as you would in a word processor program. To change the font name, font size, font color and font attributes (bold, italic, underline) for any character in a nucleotide sequence, highlight these characters and click the corresponding buttons on the toolbar. For further information, refer to Chapter 3.

To preserve text formatting between sessions, save the Vector NTI molecule as a Molecule Document.

Cut, Copy and Paste

To Cut, Copy, or Delete a region of the molecule's sequence, select the region and choose the appropriate command from the Edit menu. *If a region to be deleted overlaps with features, a confirmation dialog box opens, allowing you to keep or remove affected features.* All the features inside the deleted region will be removed without confirmation; positions of other features will be adjusted accordingly.

A copied sequence is placed on the Clipboard in the standard text format, so you can freely exchange the sequence data between Vector NTI and other applications. All sequence formats recognized by Vector NTI can be pasted from the Clipboard. Sequence formats are described in detail in Chapter 14 (Import section).

To paste a sequence from the clipboard, set the cursor to the insert position. Choose **Edit** > **Paste Sequence**, opening and displaying the sequence in the Insert Sequence dialog box. Click the **OK** button, and the sequence is inserted at the cursor position. If the insertion point is within a feature, a confirmation dialog box opens, to let you keep or remove the affected features. The positions of all features surrounding the insertion point are updated automatically.

Insert a new sequence fragment manually by setting the cursor at the insertion point; choose **Edit > New > Insert Sequence**. In the Insert Sequence dialog box, enter the sequence to be inserted. For more information on editing a sequence, see Chapter 19.

Editing a Molecule Sequence

Instructions for editing a molecule sequence and its text attributes are found under Molecule Editing in Chapter 19.

Molecule Display Setup

Vector NTI uses Display Setup parameters to create the Molecule Display window contents. You can edit Display Setup before or after a display window is created, assign names to different settings and store them as a Setup profile, and change the default Setup settings.

To open the Display Setup dialog box, click the **Display Setup** button (<u>E</u>) on the Window toolbar. Select **Display Setup** from the drop-down menu.

The Display Setup dialog box has two forms, one for DNA/RNA molecules and another for proteins. The type of Molecule Display Setup dialog box that opens corresponds to the type of molecule display window from which it was launched (i.e. If you launch the Display Setup dialog box from a DNA/RNA Molecule Viewing window, the DNA/RNA Molecule Display Setup dialog box opens; if you launch the Display Setup dialog box from a Protein Molecule Viewing window, the Protein Molecule Display Setup dialog box opens.

DNA/RNA Display Setup

The following figure (Figure 18.11) is the Display Setup dialog box for DNA/RNA Molecules:

Molecule Display Setup		<u>? ×</u>
Setup Profile		ОК
Save Settings As	Remove Saved Settin	Cancel
FMap Setup	Motifs Motifs	Sequence Sequence Setup
Restriction Map	ORFsetup	Autoload Analyses
Picture Type	Graphics Display	Save To File Load From File

Figure 18.11 Display Setup dialog box for DNA/RNA molecules

To apply a previously saved Setup Profile to a current display window, select the Profile in the Setup Profile drop-down menu. Click **OK**.

Use the check boxes to indicate the information to be displayed in the Molecule Display window. Click on the **Setup** buttons (described below) to open corresponding dialog boxes where you can specify in more detail what information should be displayed for each category. Click **OK** in each to return to Display Setup.

Feature Map Setup

Check the **Feature Map** check box and click the **FMap Setup** button to select the types of features to be displayed in the Display window's Sequence Pane. *Some features appear by default in the Text and Graphics Panes.* The Feature Map Setup dialog box appears (Figure 18.12):

Feature Map Setup	? ×
All kinds of features will be displayed in the text and	ОК
graphics panes. Add here the kinds of features you want to see in the sequence pane:	Cancel
 ➡ CDS ➡ Misc. Feature 	< Add
	> Remove
	>> Remove All
You may also limit the length of features to be displayed in the sequence pane:	
40 (Enter a number or leave this field blank)	

Figure 18.12 Feature Map Setup dialog box

Click the < Add button to select one or more of available feature types. Click the > Remove button to remove previously selected feature types or >> Remove All empties the entire list.

You can limit the features shown in the Sequence Pane according to feature length. To set a feature length limit, enter the maximum feature length in bases in the textbox in the lower left of the FMap Setup dialog box. Leave the textbox blank for no limit.

Motifs Setup

Check the **Motifs** checkbox and press the **Motifs Setup** button to open the Motifs Setup dialog box (Figure 18.13) that controls the motifs map display.

Motifs Setup	1
Add New Oligo Database Oligo List OK Cancel	
<u>۲</u>	
Remove Remove All Save to Database Edit Analyze	
Find Sites:	
Similarity Best Similarity Only	
Maximum Number of Sites:	
Sorted by Strand(s) to Search	
Motif String O Number of Sites Image: Direct The Complementary	
Ignore Motifs with sites outside region: From: To: From: To: To:	

Figure 18.13 Motifs Setup dialog box

The list box in the upper part of the dialog box contains motifs already chosen for a search.

- Add New Adds new motifs and Edit lets you edit a highlighted motif. Both of these
 operations take place in the Oligo Editor dialog box.
- Oligo Database Uses the Vector NTI oligo database as a source for motifs to be searched for.
- Oligo List Loads oligos from the Oligo List.
- Remove Removes selected motifs.
- Remove All Removes all listed motifs.
- Save To Database Saves the selected motif to the oligo database.
- Edit Allows you to edit the selected motif.
- Analyze Initiates an analysis of a highlighted motif.
- Find Sites Press the Similarity button to specify the similarity between motif and molecule sequence for the motif's site to be accepted. In the Find Motif Locations dialog box (Figure 18.14) that opens, choosee the method for calculating the similarity and the similarity requirements.

nd Motif Location	5		<u>? ×</u>
With Best Similar	ity Only		ОК
○ With Similarity >=	Similarity Threshold		Cancel
Similarity Thresh	rold: 75.0		
🗖 Last 🗍 Nucl	eotides Must Have 100% S	imilarity	
Similarity Between	Ambiguous Nucleotides —		
Average	O Minimum	O Maximum	

Figure 18.14 Find Motif Locations dialog box

- With Best Similarity Only selects only those motif sites that received the best relative score
- With Similarity >= Similarity Threshold displays all motif sites that have a similarity more than or equal to the similarity you specified in the Similarity Threshold box.
- To filter out all the motif sites that do not meet the specific requirement for 3' end similarity, check the **Last** box and enter the number of nucleotides on 3' end that should have 100% similarity.

Any motifs that have more sites than specified in the Maximum Number Of Sites box in the Motifs Setup dialog box (Figure 18.13) are displayed as grayed-out folders in the Text Pane; they are not displayed at all in graphics or Sequence Panes.

Similarity Between Ambiguous Nucleotides specifies acceptable similarity between ambiguous nucleotides (if any). The **Average**, **Minimum**, and **Maximum** buttons indicate that the average, minimum, and maximum possible similarity will be calculated respectively for any nucleotide pair. For instance, if you are calculating similarity between N and A, then the average similarity is 25%, the minimum similarity is 0%, and the maximum similarity is 100%. In case of R and A they are 50%, 0%, and 100%; in case of R and T—0%, 0%, and 0%. *For clarification of these IUB nucleotide symbols, see Appendix C.*

	N-N	N-R	N-A	R-W	R-A	R-T
Maximum	100	100	100	100	100	0
Average	25	25	25	25	50	0
Minimum	0	0	0	0	0	0

Table 18.3 Average, minimum, and maximum possible similarity

Click **OK** to return to the Motifs Setup dialog box.

- Sorted By Select the motifs sorting procedure to be used for the Motifs folder. Choose the Motif String radio button to sort motifs alphabetically or the Number of (Recognition) Sites radio button to sort motifs by their number of sites on the molecule.
- Strands to Search Turn these boxes on or off to specify the strand(s) to be searched.
- Ignore Outside / Ignore Inside Enter these regions to specify additional limitations on the motif sites to be displayed. Specify the Ignore Motifs With Sites Outside Region to display only those motifs located inside the region. Specify the Ignore Motifs With Sites Inside Region to display only those motifs located outside the region.

Sequence Setup

Check the **Sequence** checkbox and press the **Sequence Setup** button to indicate how the sequence should be displayed in the Display window's Sequence Pane. The Sequence Setup dialog box appears (Figure 18.15):

Sequence Setup	<u>? ×</u>
Nucleotide Sequence Translation Length of Block: 10 Blocks per Line: 10 Prefer Single-Stranded Display 3 Letter AA Code	OK Cancel Reset
Default Font	
Name: Size: Color:	
Sample	
-3 Cys Ser Tyr Ne Asp Lys Asn Lys Leu As 1 TTCTATGGTC CTATATTGAT AAGAATAAAC TTAA AAGATACGAG GATATAACTA TTCTTATTTG AATT	

Figure 18.15 Sequence Setup dialog box

Set the number of nucleotides per block in the sequence display (10 is default), the number of blocks per line (5 is default) and whether protein translations should be shown in one- or three-letter code (three is default). Check the Prefer Single-Stranded Display box if you prefer the molecule sequence displayed as single-stranded in the Sequence pane. Set the default font name, size, color and effect characteristics.

Restriction Map Setup

Check the **Restriction Map** checkbox and press the **RMap Setup** button to specify the restriction sites to be displayed. The Restriction Map Setup dialog box (Figure 18.16) displays in the Use Enzymes column the restriction enzymes, also called RENs, whose sites are shown by default.

To remove enzymes from the display list, select the enzyme and click > **Remove**. The >> **Remove All** button clears the list. Click the < **Add** button to select database enzymes to be added.

After clicking the **< Add** button, to quickly move to the vicinity of the enzyme of interest in the Choose Database Enzymes dialog box enzyme list, highlight the first enzyme name on the list and, using the keyboard, type the first letter (or first few letters, quickly) of the name of the enzyme of interest. The enzyme list scrolls to the vicinity of that enzyme (**Note:** For this technique to work, the enzyme list must be sorted alphabetically by enzyme name. To sort the list

alphabetically by enzyme name, click on the Name column header in the Choose Database Enzymes dialog box.).

Restriction Map Setup		?)
Use Enzymes:		
II Apall	< Add	OK
BamHI	> Remove	Cancel
Clai	>> Bemove All	
HindII	- Sort Sites in the Text F	Pane hv
II Ncol	Enzyme Name	
Smal	C Number of Recog	nition Sites
Xmal	Ignore RENs having: -	
Permitted Terminus Types	less than	sites
🗹 5' 🔽 3' 🔽 Blunt	more than	sites
Ignore RENs cutting outside region:	Ignore RENs cutting in	nside region:
From: To:	From:	To:



- The **Sort Site...** radio buttons determine how the restriction sites are displayed in the Text Pane. **Enzyme Name** sorts the RENs alphabetically. By **Number of Recognition Sites** sorts the RENs by the number of their sites on the molecule.
- Permitted Terminus Types check boxes filter the types of RENs displayed.
- Ignore RENs Having Less Than/More Than ... Sites removes from the restriction map RENs that do not fall with in the specified cut site range. Such RENs will be listed but grayed out in the Restriction Map folder in the Text Pane. They will not be displayed at all in the graphics and Sequence Panes.
- Ignore RENs Cutting Outside Region causes only those enzymes with sites inside the region to be displayed.
- Ignore RENs Cutting Inside Region causes only those enzymes with sites outside the region to be displayed.

Picture Type Checkbox

If you check the **Prefer Linear** checkbox in Display Setup, Vector NTI uses linear display for both circular and linear molecules.

ORF Setup

Check the **ORFs** checkbox and press the **ORF Setup** button to open the ORFs Setup dialog box (Figure 18.17) for specifying how open reading frames are displayed.

ORF Setup	<u>? ×</u>
Minimum ORF Size: 50	codons OK
Nested ORF	Cancel
Start Codons: ATG GTG	
Stop Codons: TAA TGA T	AG
Default St	art & Stop
🔲 Include Stop Codon in OF	3F
Incomplete ORFs	
Undefined Start	Minimum Size:
Undefined Stop	bp
ORF Names	
Old Style	New Style

Figure 18.17 ORFs Setup dialog box

- In the **Minimum ORF Size** field, enter the minimum ORF size in codons.
- Check the Nested ORF check box to look for nested ORFs (ORFs that have the same stop codon but different start codons.)
- In Start and Stop Codons fields, enter start and stop codons for the new viewer's ORFs. Press the Default Start & Stop button to set the start and stop codons to the following conventional values: Start codons—ATG, GTG; Stop codons—TAA, TGA, TAG.
- Check the Include Stop Codon in ORF box if you want the stop codon to be considered part of the ORF. Otherwise, the stop codon is not considered part of the ORF and is not included.

Incomplete ORFs

- Undefined Start/Undefined Stop: Check the appropriate box, depending on whether you want to search for ORFs with undefined starts, stops or both.
- Minimum Size: Specify the minimum size in base pairs for the incomplete ORF to be displayed.
- **Note:** Incomplete ORFs are displayed as a dashed arrow in both the Graphics and the Sequence Pane. Complete ORFs are displayed as solid arrows.

ORF Names

- Old Style: ORF# (sequential)
- New Style: Nucleotide position of ORF start, direct or complementary, sequential #

Analyses Setup

Check the **Analyses** checkbox and press the **Analyses Setup** button to open the Analyses Setup dialog box (Figure 18.18). In the Analyses Setup dialog box you can specify the analyses to be shown in the Sequence and Graphics Panes and in the External Analyses folder in the Text Pane.

Analyses Setup	<u>?</u> ×
Available Subsets 🖟	Load Analyses Results from Subset
MAIN	>> MAIN
	OK Cancel

Figure 18.18 Analyses Setup dialog box

From the Available Subsets drop-down box, choose the Vector NTI Database subset of saved analyses you want to display. Click the >> button to move the selected subset into the Load Analyses Results from Subset section. All analyses listed in this subset are shown in the Molecule Viewing window.

Graphics Display Settings

You can edit the graphical styles for graphical map elements directly from the Display Setup dialog box or in the Graphics Pane in Picture Editing mode. Click the **Edit** button in the Graphics Display Settings group, opening the Graphics Display Setup dialog box (Figure 18.19).

Graphics Display Setup	<u>? ×</u>
DNA/RNA Map Elements DNA/RNA Features DNA/RNA Features DNA/RNA Features S Clip S Clip S Clip Alteruator Alteruator D Alteruator CAT Signal CAT Signal	OK Cancel
Style: @N More	
Show Symbol	
C Short C Long C Auto	
Style: More	

Figure 18.19 Graphics Display Setup dialog box

Select the graphical map element type and define the shape and style for a particular symbol picture as well as the style for a label attached to the symbol picture. Add new styles by clicking the **More** buttons (one button adds label styles, another adds symbol styles). When the styles are defined, click **OK**.

Note: You can also edit existing styles directly in the Graphics Pane of a Molecule Display window as described later in this chapter.

Save To File/Load From File

Display settings configured in the Molecule Display dialog box can be saved to and loaded from external files on your hard drive. To save the current Display Setup profile to an external file, click the **Save To File** button and enter a name and storage location for the new Molecule Setup file. To load a previously saved Display Setup file, click the **Load From File** button and navigate to the location of the file on your hard drive. Select the Setup Profile from the dialog box; the selected settings are applied to the current Molecule Display window.

Setup Profile

The upper part of the Display Setup dialog box contains a list of saved setup settings called *Setup Profile*. Add your newly defined settings to the Profile list by clicking the **Save Settings As** button. Enter a name for these settings and click **OK**. In the future, you can apply at once all of the settings saved in a Profile to a new molecule opened in a Molecule Display Window. Open a saved setting by selecting the Profile name in this list or **View > Display Profile**.

Vector NTI always uses the default Display Setup when you open a molecule from the database in a new Molecule Display window, with two exceptions:

- As you open a molecule from the Vector NTI workspace window, you can specify the Display Setup for the new display window. To do this, choose File > Open from the Vector NTI window, select the Database tab for the type of molecule you want to open (DNA/RNA or Protein) and click the **Display Setup** button. In the Molecule Display Setup dialog box that opens, select the Settings Profile you want from the list of saved profiles.
- 2. If you open a molecule from the database via a Molecule Shortcut file, the settings stored in the shortcut file are used instead of the (Default) entry in the Setup Profile.

Protein Molecule Display Setup

The options in the Display Setup dialog box (Figure 18.20) for a protein differ slightly from that for nucleic acid molecules.

Protein Display Setup		? ×
Setup Profile		ПК
Save Settings As	Remove Saved Setting	Cancel
FMap Setup	Motifs Motifs Setup	Sequence Sequence Setup
Picture Type Prefer Constant Horiz. Resolution	Autoload Analyses	Graphics Display
	Save To File	Load From File

Figure 18.20 Display Setup dialog box for a protein

Feature Map Setup

With a protein in the Molecule Display window, press the **FMap Setup** button to select the types of features to be displayed in the Display window's Sequence Pane. (Many features appear by default in the text and Graphics Panes.) The Feature Map Setup dialog box for proteins differs from that for DNA/RNA only in the features listed. The functionality of the dialog box is identical to the DNA/RNA Feature Map Setup box. See page 216.

Click the < Add button to select one or more of available feature types. Click the > Remove button to remove previously selected feature types. Click the >> Remove All button to delete the list.

Motifs Setup

Click the **Motifs Setup** button to open the Protein Motifs Setup dialog box (Figure 18.21) that controls the protein motifs map display:

Protein Motifs Setup			<u>? ×</u>		
Add	emove Remove All	OK	Cancel		
Motif Name	Pattern(s)		Description		
Find Sites: Similarity for ambiguous AA					
Sorted by: Motif Nar Ignore Motifs with site From:	me O Nu es outside region: Ignor To: Fro	mber of Sites e Motifs with site m:	es inside region: To:		

Figure 18.21 Protein Motifs Setup dialog box

Note: The list box in the upper part of the dialog box contains motifs already chosen for a search.

Features of the Protein Motifs Setup dialog box (Figure 18.21) their associated subdialog boxes are described in the following bullets:

• Add – Launches the All Protein Motifs dialog box (Figure 18.22).

All Protein Motifs		<u>? ×</u>	
Add New Edit	Remove Remove All Of	Cancel	
Motif Name	Pattern(s)	Description	
📰 C-mannosylatio	WxxW	Site for potential C	
🔣 ER targeting motif	ER targeting motif (K,R,H,Q,S,A)(D,E,N,Q)EL		
🔜 HLA-A2	HLA-A2 x(L,M)xxxxxx(L,V)		
🔣 Integrin adhesio	Recognition motif		
🔣 N-glycosylation	N{P}S	Motif for potential	
J			
Total :5			

Figure 18.22 All Protein Motifs dialog box

In the All Protein Motifs dialog box, highlight the motifs for which you wish to search and click the **OK** button to enter the selected motifs into the Protein Motifs Setup dialog box (Figure 18.21).

In the All Protein Motifs dialog box, you can also create new motifs and add them to the motifs list by clicking the **Add New** button. You can edit an existing motif by highlighting the motif and clicking the **Edit** button. Clicking either the **Add New** or **Edit** buttons in the all Protein Motifs dialog box launches the Protein Motif Properties dialog box (Figure 18.23):

In the Protein Motifs Properties dialog box, you can create and edit motif patterns.

Protein Mol	if Properties		? ×
Name:		OK	Cancel
Pattern	(s)		
		Remove]
		Remove All	1
	New Pattern String:		
		Add To Pat	terns
Description:			

Figure 18.23 Protein Motif Properties dialog box

To define a new pattern, type the pattern in the New Pattern String box. Click the **Add to Patterns** button to add the new pattern to the current list of patterns. To remove a pattern from the list, click the **Remove** button. To remove all patterns from the list, click the **Remove All** button.

- Remove Removes selected motifs.
- Remove All Removes all listed motifs.
- Find Sites Specify the similarity between motif and molecule sequence for the motif's site to be accepted. Select the method for calculating the similarity and the similarity requirements.
 - ^o Find Best Fit Finds only those motif sites that have the best relative similarity.
 - With Similarities Not Less Than Finds motif sites with similarity equal to or greater than the specified percent similarity. Number of sites found is limited by the Maximum Number of Sites value specified.
- Similarity for Ambiguous AA Specifies the acceptable similarity between ambiguous amino acids, based on the Minimum, Average or Maximum similarity for any amino acid

pair. For an example of similarity calculations, see the Similarity Between Ambiguous Nucleotides bullet of the DNA Motifs Setup section on page 217.

- Sorted By Select the motifs sorting procedure to be used for the Motifs folder in the Text Pane. Choose the Motif Name radio button to sort motifs alphabetically or the Number of Sites radio button to sort motifs by their number of sites on the molecule.
- Ignore Outside / Ignore Inside Enter these regions to specify additional limitations on the motif sites to be displayed. Specify the Ignore Motifs With Sites Outside Region to display only those motifs located inside the region. Specify the Ignore Motifs With Sites Inside Region to display only those motifs located outside the region.

Sequence Setup

Click the Sequence Setup button to open the Sequence Setup dialog box (Figure 18.24):

Dialog	×
Amino Acid Sequence Length of Block: 10 Blocks per Line: 5	OK Cancel
Cefault Font Name: Size: Color: Effects: Bold Italic Underline	Reset
1 MTTEKSLVTE AENSQHQQKE EGEEAINSXP EHGB	
51 EGDNWCEQKL KASNGDTPTH EDLTKNKERT SESR	
4	

Figure 18.24 Sequence Setup dialog box

In this dialog box, set the number of amino acids per block in the sequence display and the number of blocks per line. Set the default font name, size, color and effect characteristics. A sample of the designated configuration appears in the lower text box.

Picture Type

Ordinarily, if you select a protein fragment and click the **View Selected Fragment** button for closer inspection, the selected region "expands" to fill the entire Graphics Pane. If the **Prefer Constant Horizontal Resolution** check box is checked in the Protein Display Setup dialog box, the current protein display is "not scalable," meaning that the current visual length of graphics features is retained instead of stretching the picture to fit in the window.

Analyses Setup

The Display Setup Analyses settings for proteins are managed as explained on page 221.

Graphics Display Settings

The Display Setup Graphical Map settings for proteins are managed as explained on page 222.

Save To File/Load From File

Display settings configured in the Molecule Display dialog box can be saved to and loaded from external files on your hard drive. To save the current Display Setup profile to an external file, click the **Save To File** button and enter a name and storage location for the new Molecule Setup file. To load a previously saved Display Setup file, click the **Load From File** button and navigate to the location of the file on your hard drive. Select the Setup Profile from the dialog box; the selected settings are applied to the current Molecule Display window.

Setup Profile

See setup Profile in the DNA/RNA Display Setup section on page 226.

Picture Edit Mode: Formatting and Annotating Pictures

Vector NTI has two modes of operation in Graphics Panes.

- Molecule Editing mode (default) in which the Graphics Pane serves as a visual environment for viewing and *editing the content* of a molecule itself. In molecule editing, you are changing the nature of the molecule map and sequence. Selecting DNA molecule fragments for Construction and Design also take place in Molecule Editing mode. See Chapter 21 and Chapter 22 for details about Construction and Design. Molecule Editing mode is discussed in Chapter 19, Editing Molecule Content.
- Picture Editing mode where you can *edit the graphical representation* of an image such as format and arrange individual graphics symbols and labels. This mode is useful for preparing publication-quality figures of the molecule.

When in Picture Editing mode, Vector NTI changes the way it selects objects in the Graphics Pane: the elementary units of selection are graphics objects like labels and symbols, not elements of the molecule content. In Picture Editing mode, you can reposition and reformat labels and symbols, hide objects to prevent them from being displayed, and format multiple objects at once using centralized style sheets.

Notes about Picture Editing Mode:

- If you intend to edit the molecule itself, it is recommended that you perform that first before you format molecule graphics.
- Picture editing changes are not saved in database, but in a Molecule Document file.

To activate Picture Editing Mode, in an active Graphics Pane, click the Edit Picture button

() on the toolbar. When the Graphics Pane is in the Picture Editing mode, the button is shown in depressed state and **View > Edit Picture** is checked.

All of the following operations are performed in Picture Editing mode.

Formatting Objects on the Graphical Map

To format an object in the Graphics Pane, select the object by clicking on it or its label. *Review* selection techniques in Chapter 3. To format more than one graphics object at a time, HOLD SHIFT + CLICK on each.

Selected objects in Picture Edit mode are displayed with selection boxes or handles at each corner. If this is not the case, check to make sure the **Edit Picture** button is depressed.

When the graphics objects to be formatted are selected, choose **Edit > Properties**, press ALT + ENTER or select **Properties** from the associated shortcut menu.

In the Properties dialog box, select Line, Fill, or Text attributes (if a label is selected). If a single symbol is selected, you may also change its **Shape**.

On the Properties tabs, select the pattern and color for Lines and Fill for selected graphics objects. On the Shape tab, click the down arrow for selections. Click **OK**.

Note the following about formatting objects:

- Lines associated with symbols are the lines that surround the main symbol. Lines associated with labels are the droplines connecting the labels to its corresponding symbol.
- **Fill** refers to the pattern and color with which the selected symbols are filled. Changing a symbol's filling does not affect the formatting of the line around that symbol.

 The Default Shape option forces Vector NTI to assign the default shape to the given symbol. You can edit the association between the element type and the default shape/ style in the Graphics Display Setup dialog box accessible from the Display Setup dialog box. Note: You cannot undo the Shape formatting.

If you have selected label(s), the Properties dialog box includes a Text field (Figure 18.25).

Properties X
Line Fill Shape
Line
Pattern:
Color:
OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 18.25 Properties dialog box

In the text box, enter ordinary text or choose from a variety of special codes that are converted into information about the symbol to which the label is attached. To insert a substitution code, choose the code from the Substitutions box and click the **Insert** button. The code is inserted at the current caret position.

This substitution model allows assignment of a single text "style" to all labels of a certain kind. For example, if the text attribute for all restriction sites is "@N (@S)" then the actual label for a *Smal* site 5354 bp will look like "*Smal* (5354)" with the REN name and site position substituted for @N and @S. You might want to experiment with the different substitution models.

Using the **Font** button on this tab, choose the font, font style, font size, effects, and display color attributes of labels you selected. *Attributes of currently selected font are displayed to the right of the Font button.*

Note: The font size you choose is not necessarily equal to the font size on the screen or on the printed output. Displayed objects are stretched and shrunk as the picture magnification is changed.

Annotations

To insert a text annotation on a graphical map, click the **Add Annotation** button(\checkmark) in the Window toolbar or choose **Edit > New > Add Annotation**. In the Annotation dialog box, enter the text of a new annotation label. Click **OK** to return to the Molecule Display window where the annotation is highlighted and selected with handles. Click and drag it to the location you choose in the Graphics Pane.

You can move annotations and change their font and formatting using the label formatting techniques described above.

Note: Annotations are elements of the graphical representation of the molecule only and are not stored in the database. To save an annotation, you need to save the display window as a Molecule Document. To associate text information with a molecule itself, not its temporary graphical representation, use the Comments or User Fields described in Chapter 17.

Deleting Annotations

To delete an annotation, select it in the Graphics Pane, and choose **Edit > Delete Annotation**, or to delete an annotation from a Text Pane, click the annotation subfolder to select its line, and

click the **Delete Annotation** button () in the Window toolbar or choose **Edit > Delete Anno**tation.

To delete annotations from the Graphics Pane, select them in the Picture Editing mode and choosing **Edit > Delete Annotation**.

Note: Annotation subfolders are the only folders of the Text Pane that can be deleted.

Undo and Redo

You can undo/redo movement and formatting of graphics objects, redefinition of styles, etc. Undo/Redo also works in the Sequence Pane. The list of actions, tracked by undo/redo as well as the size of the undo buffer can be changed in the Undo/Redo tab, accessed from **Edit > Options**.

- To undo an action, click the Undo button(¹) in the main toolbar or choose Edit > Undo <Formatting>.
- To redo an action, click the **Redo** button() in the main toolbar or choose **Edit** > **Redo** <**Formatting**>.

Changing the Sizes And Shapes of Symbols

To change the size or shape of a symbol, click the **Edit Picture** button(); *you cannot modify* a graphic unless the Graphics Pane is in Edit Picture mode. Next, select the object to be changed with a mouse click. Black drag boxes will appear at its corners. Move the cursor to any

drag box, changing it to a thin four-headed arrow (\clubsuit). Click and drag the black box, causing the symbol to change shape and/or size (Figure 18.26). Release the mouse when the symbol has the new shape you want.



Figure 18.26 Changing a symbol's shape and/or size

Moving Objects on the Graphical Map

To move a graphics object around the Graphics Pane, select the symbol or label. When the cur-

sor placed in the middle of the selected object turns into a four-headed arrow (

As labels are dragged, their droplines follow, tracking the connection to the object to which they refer.

Most symbols representing features, restriction sites, etc., do not move completely freely around the graphical map. They do move freely perpendicular to the "sequence" bar/ring, but Vector NTI prevents them from moving parallel to the sequence bar without your permission. This is to keep the objects in the places corresponding to their actual locations in the nucleotide or amino acid sequence.

To move a symbol parallel to the sequence bar of a graphical map, press and hold CTRL+ SHIFT and drag the object.

Note: This *does not* change the coordinates of the feature in the Feature map. To change the coordinates you need to edit the feature in the Molecule Editing mode described in Chapter 19.

Changing the Display Order Of Overlapping Graphics Objects

To change the display order of overlapping graphics objects, select them; choose **View > Picture Element > Bring To Front or Send To Back** or the corresponding commands from the shortcut menu. *To make these changes, the Graphics Pane must be in Edit Picture mode.*

The following image demonstrates the results of bringing the DNA ring to the front of a circular molecule display (Figure 18.27):



Figure 18.27 Bringing the DNA ring to the front of a circular molecule display

Hiding Graphics Objects

To hide an object, select it and choose **Edit > Hide**. *If you hide symbols, their labels remain visible unless you hide them specifically.* The Hide feature is useful if you don't want objects to appear on a final picture or if you want to have more room for better layout of important picture elements.

Restoring Hidden Graphics Objects

To restore hidden graphics objects to the Graphics Pane's display, click the **Undo** button(<u>)</u>) or **Edit > Undo**. You can also activate the Text Pane, link the text and Graphics Panes, and open the folder(s) containing the hidden graphics objects.

Styles

A *style* is a named set of formatting attributes for graphics objects. Styles in Vector NTI work much the same as they do in most word processing programs. Styles provide a convenient and powerful way to organize the formatting of graphical maps.

Each style contains one or more of the following attributes: line, fill, text, and shape.

Although Vector NTI has standard styles for symbols and labels, you can also define your own. Once created, styles can be saved together with other parameters in the Display Setup Profile or in Vector NTI Setup files.

To learn what style a graphics object has, turn on the Picture Editing mode, select the object and select **View > Picture Element > Style** or **Style** from the shortcut menu. The style box in the Picture Element Style dialog box shows the style of the selected object. If more than one object is selected, the style box shows the style of the last object selected. The last selected object is displayed with small squares around it.

Assigning Styles to Graphics Objects

To assign an existing style to a graphics object, select the object(s) to which you want to assign a style and choose **View > Picture Element > Style** or **Style** from the shortcut menu. In the Style box in the Picture Element Style dialog box, choose an existing style from the pull-down list, or type a name, and click the **OK** button.

If you select an existing style or type its name, that style is assigned to the selected graphics object(s), and the object(s) assume its format.

If you type a name that is not in the style list, a new style with the format of the currently selected object(s) is created. If the selection includes more than one graphics object, a newly created style contains only those attributes that are the same for all selected objects.

A style is the base format for a graphics object. You may make additional formatting changes to graphics objects using the methods described in preceding sections.

Redefining a Style's Format

To redefine the style of a graphic object, select the object, open the Properties dialog box, opened from the shortcut menu and make the desired changes for the object. Click **OK**. Select **View > Picture Element > Style** or select **Style** from the shortcut menu. In the Style drop-down menu, the name of the current style is displayed. Click **OK**, signaling that you wish to apply the new format to an existing style. In the Reapply Style dialog box (Figure 18.28) that opens, choose the redefine operation you wish to occur and click **OK**:

Reapply Style	? ×
Style: Splicing_Var (line, fill, font, text, shape)	OK
Selection: (line, fill, font, text, shape)	Cancel
Do you want to:	
Redefine the style using the selection as an example?	
C Return the formatting of the selection to the style?	



To accomplish the same end, you could select **View > Picture Element > Redefine <name> Style by Example** or the corresponding command from the shortcut menu.

If you have chosen the Redefine Style option, any objects (even unselected ones) that currently have that style will automatically change format to reflect the style's new settings.

If you have chosen the Return Formatting to Style option, then the selected objects' format is restored to that Style's format. **Edit > Undo** or the **Undo** button restores the former style.

Copy and Paste Styles

Once you have modified a symbol or label with a new format, you can easily reformat other objects with the same format. Select the modified object, and select **Copy Style** from the short-cut menu associated with the modified object. Move the cursor to another feature or label, and select **Paste Style** from the shortcut menu.

Saving Styles

The set of the styles and Standard Arrangement parameters appearing in the Molecule Display Window are a part of the Display Setup settings.

To save a display window's current styles, choose the Edit > Display Setup or click the Display

Setup button(<u>E</u>)) n the Window toolbar and choose **Display Setup** from the drop-down menu. In the Display Setup dialog box, there are two options for saving styles:

Save Settings As saves all the settings in Display Setup. The settings are given a name that is then listed in the Display Setup drop-down menu. Properly saved Setup Profiles are easily retrieved and applied to display windows. Click this button and enter the name you want to assign to the current settings.

Save To File saves current graphics display settings that you have defined. They are not as easily retrieved as when you use the **Save Settings As** option. This option could be used, as an example, when you are focused on preparing graphics for publications and wish to transfer formatting instructions from one display window to another. In the standard **File Save** dialog box, choose a file name for current styles and Standard Arrangement information.

Loading Styles

To apply a saved Display Profile to a Molecule Display window, choose a profile entry name from the list in the **Display Setup** drop-down menu or in the **Settings Profile** drop-down menu in the Display Setup dialog box. When you make the selection, Vector NTI loads the styles as well as other settings from the profile but does not apply them to the active window until you click the **OK** button. Modify the settings further, if you like; click the **OK** button to accept the new setup or click the **Cancel** button to leave the current window's settings unchanged.

To retrieve styles saved in a separate setup file, press the **Load From File** button in the Graphics Display Settings box of the Display Setup dialog box. Choose a setup file from the standard File Open dialog box. Click the **OK** button in the Display Setup dialog box to apply new setup to the active Display window.

Saving Molecules

Vector NTI allows for two kinds of permanent storage for molecules:

• In the Vector NTI's database.

The database supports parent-descendant connections between molecules. It saves automatic tracking of modifications, search, and many other operations on the set of molecules as a whole.

• In a Vector NTI Molecule Document file.

Molecule Documents save all the information contained in a Molecule Display window such as graphical representation and molecule analysis results. In this format, the molecule itself is in a portable format suitable for information exchange between different Vector NTI users. Since the Vector NTI Molecule Document format is based on GenBank/GenPept format, other programs that are able to import GenBank/GenPept files can import Molecule Documents as well.

A Molecule Document for a constructed molecule does not contain or track the molecule's parents and thus, unlike the database, it is not suitable for storing related molecules. To save a molecule, click the **Save As** button(**I**) or select **File > Save As**, opening the Save As dialog box (Figure 18.29):

Save As File Save in Save in: 🚺 DN/	A/RNA Molec	cules (MAIN)	ote Sources ▼	
Name	Length	Modified	Storage Type	
⊯ADCY7	6196	07/10/2003 07:3	Basic	
🛒 Adeno2	35937	07/10/2003 07:3	Basic	
🚊 ADRA1A	2306	07/10/2003 07:3	Basic	
遼 BPV1	7945	07/10/2003 07:3	Basic	
💥 BRAF	2510	07/10/2003 07:3	Basic	
🖳 CDK2	2226	07/10/2003 07:3	Basic	
🔯 ColE1	6646	07/10/2003 07:3	Basic	
😐 CREB1	2964	07/10/2003 07:3	Basic	
🛒 EPAC	3261	07/10/2003 07:3	Basic	
) 」 FYN	2647	07/10/2003 07:3	Basic	-
DNA/RNA	ColE1			

Figure 18.29 Save As dialog box

Select the appropriate destination tab for the storage of your molecule.

Save in <Molecule> Database

Select the subset where the molecule is to be stored. Enter (or modify) the molecule name in the text box at the bottom of the dialog box and click **OK**.

Save as (Molecule Document) File

On the Save as File tab, browse for the destination where the document is to be saved. Enter a file name and click **OK**.

If Vector NTI is configured for Internet publishing, you will see a subsequent dialog box asking your permission to create an HTML file for the molecule. This HTML file will contain a brief description of the molecule and a hypertext link to the Molecule Document file.

Creating A Molecule Shortcut File For A Database Molecule

Molecule Shortcut files contain the name of a database molecule along with the Display Setup parameters. When you open a database molecule via the Shortcut file, Vector NTI uses the Display Setup parameters stored in the shortcut file.

To create a shortcut file, open the molecule in a Display window, set the desired Display Setup parameters and select **File > Create Shortcut**. In the standard File Save dialog box, enter a file name and location for the new Shortcut file.

Molecule Export

Exporting a Molecule to a GenBank/GenPept, EMBL/SWISS-PROT or FASTA file

Vector NTI allows you to easily export a molecule opened in a Molecule Display window to Gen-Bank/GenPept, EMBL/SWISS-PROT, or FASTA file. For details about using Vector NTI's complete export capabilities, refer to the Database Explorer, described in detail in Chapter 17.

To export a molecule to an external file, choose **File > Molecule Operations > Export**. Select the type and name of the file in the standard File Save dialog box.

C H A P T E R

EDITING MOLECULE CONTENT

Introduction

DNA/RNA and protein molecules can be edited in two environments:

 A Molecule Display window Graphics Pane, allowing editing of the molecule content in the graphics-oriented environment.

Molecule Display windows give you immediate visual feedback and more automatic processing (that is, automatic adjustment of functional signal coordinates on sequence insertions and deletions).

- Molecule Editor, a text-based dialog box opened from a Molecule Display window of either molecule type.
 - ^o Editing a molecule in the Molecule Editor is more convenient if you want, for example, to delete ten functional signals from the functional map.
 - ^o Molecule Editor is the only way to create a molecule from scratch. (Molecule Display windows cannot show molecules of zero length).

Edit Operations in a Molecule Display Window

Molecule Editing

Vector NTI has two modes of editing operations in Graphics Panes.

- Molecule Editing mode (default) in which the Graphics Pane serves as a visual environment for viewing and editing a molecule map and sequence and for selecting DNA molecule fragments for construction and design. *In Molecule Editing mode, the molecule itself can be modified. Molecule Editing mode is the subject of this chapter.*
- Picture Editing mode where the graphical display of an image such as the format and arrangement of individual graphics objects is edited. This mode is useful for preparing publication-quality figures of the molecule. Picture Editing mode is discussed in Chapter 18 on page 226.

Note: The Vector NTI Database Explorer can be configured to launch independently or simultaneously with the Vector NTI workspace each time a Vector NTI session is initiated. From a Molecule Display window, select **Edit > Options** from the menu bar. On the **General** tab of the Options dialog box, clear the **Open Local Explorer At Startup** checkbox.

A Molecule Display window opens in Molecule Editing mode by default. Molecule Editing mode is used for viewing and editing graphical maps of a molecule, viewing ORFs and motifs (for DNA molecules), and editing molecule's sequence. This mode is also used to select DNA molecule fragments for construction and design.

If the display window is in Picture Editing mode, the **Edit Picture** button (***) is shown in depressed state and **View > Edit Picture** is checked.

Selection Techniques on the Graphical Map

The following techniques can be used for making selections in Molecule Editing mode:

- On the Graphics Map, point the cursor at a symbol or label. If pointing at a restriction site
 - or motif, the cursor becomes a crosshair with a word "site" (\bigoplus_{stre}). With the cursor paused at the site, a pop-up label appears, giving the type and site position. If pointing at

a functional feature or an ORF, the cursor becomes a hand (0) and upon pausing, it displays a message telling you the type, name, and location of the feature or ORF. Click on the symbol, site or its label to select it.

- Choose Edit > Set Selection. In the Set Selection dialog box, enter the coordinates of the region to be selected. Both start and end nucleotides are included in the selection, so to select the nucleotides or amino acids 50 through 60 you should enter From: 50, To: 60. Press OK. The coordinates of the selection are shown in the Selection Box on the status bar at the bottom of the screen.
- Click on the Set Selection box on the Status bar, opening the Set Selection dialog box. Enter the region coordinates in the Set Selection box. Click OK.

A selected region is marked with a selection wire-frame on the Graphics Pane (Figure 19.1). Concurrently the selection is highlighted in the Sequence Pane.



Figure 19.1 Wire-frame selection on the Graphics Pane

A caret (heavy black marker) appears at the "active" end on the wire-frame and the sequence at either the 5' or 3' end (a or c end for proteins). *The caret position is also shown in the caret position box on the status bar.*

The caret makes it easy to modify the ends of the selection in the Graphics Pane:

- To activate an end of the selection, click on it with the mouse or click on the HOME or END key.
- Hold the cursor over the active end; it changes shape to a cross-hair with the 5' (\$\frac{1}{5'}\$) (or 3', or a/c mark), click the mouse button and drag the end to the desired position (watch the selection box on the status bar while you are dragging it). Drag the 3' end of the selection in the same way.
- To move the active end of the selection one residue at a time, hold the SHIFT + LEFT or RIGHT ARROW key to move the active end of selection one nucleotide/amino acid at a time.
- To move the caret 10 residues at a time, hold down the CTRL key (do not release the SHIFT key) with arrow keys. When the CTRL + SHIFT + LEFT OR RIGHT ARROW key.
- **Note:** If you release your hold on the CTRL + SHIFT keys, you will lose your current selection.

Setting The Caret Position On The Graphical Map

To set the caret to a position of the molecule, choose **Edit > Set Caret Position** or click on the Set Caret box on the Status Bar. In the Set Caret Position dialog box, enter the coordinate of the nucleotide/amino acid *following* the caret. The coordinates start from 1; so to set the caret before the first nucleotide of the molecule you should enter **1**. Click **OK**. The position of the caret appears on the Graphics and Sequence Panes and in the caret position box on the status bar.

Note: Setting a coordinate in a Set Selection or Set Caret Position dialog box replaces any previous selection.

Selection Techniques for Choosing DNA Fragments for Recombination

The simplest way to select DNA fragments for recombination is to use the Fragment Wizard, discussed in detail in Chapter 22 and Chapter 24. However, if you wish, you may select regions as described above.

To select more than one functional signal at a time, click on each while holding down the SHIFT key. The wire-frame will include all selected signals (plus intervening nucleotides). Press the TAB key to move the selection ends to the next gap between selected functional signals; press SHIFT + TAB moves the selection ends to the previous gap between selected functional signals. *If you prefer to select features without intervening nucleotides, select the fragments one by one and add them to the Goal List individually.*

To set a 3' or 5' end of the selection to a restriction site, press HOME or END to move the caret to the desired end of the selection and hold down the SHIFT key while clicking on the label of the restriction site. If an end of the selection zone is set to a restriction site, an @ symbol appears in front of that end's coordinate in the status bar.

After the fragment is defined, click on the **Add Fragment to Goal List** button (1986), identify the role in construction or design the fragment will play, and press **Finish**.

Editing the Molecule Map

The elements of a molecule map can be divided into two categories.

- Items explicitly described in the molecule data (features on DNA/RNA and protein molecules and restriction sites on un-sequenced regions of a DNA molecule). These CAN be edited.
- 2. Items calculated automatically from the DNA molecule's nucleotide sequence (ORFs, motifs, and restriction sites on sequenced regions of the molecule) each time the molecule is displayed. These are not stored with the molecule; these CANNOT be edited.

Editing operations are as follows:

- To edit a feature of the graphics map, double-click on it or select it and choose Edit > Feature Properties, select Feature Properties from the shortcut menu or press ALT + ENTER. The Molecule Feature dialog box opens, where you can edit the properties of the selected object. The Molecule Feature dialog box for automatic objects does not contain editable fields.
- To add a feature to a molecule, select the corresponding region of the molecule and choose Edit > New > Add Feature To FMap. In the Molecule Feature dialog box, you can describe the new feature.
- To add an ORF to a DNA molecule's Feature map, select the ORF you want to add and choose Edit > New > Add ORF to FMap. In the Molecule Feature dialog box, you can name the feature (all fields are initialized with the information taken from the selected ORF).
- To add restriction sites to unsequenced regions of a DNA molecule, move the caret to the desired position and choose Edit > New > Add REN Site to RMap. In the Restriction Sites dialog box, the Site Positions field shows the current caret position. You can enter more than one site position separated by space. Select the name of the enzyme and press OK. Vector NTI adds the sites modifying the nucleotide sequence accordingly.
- To delete a feature from the molecule map, select the feature. Choose Edit > Delete Feature from FMAp, select Delete Feature from FMap from the shortcut menu or press DELETE on the keyboard. To remove "automatic" objects from the graphics map display, you must change the parameters in Display Setup.
- Notes about molecule editing:
- If you have chosen an *automatic* feature to delete, a window appears reminding you that this feature cannot be deleted.
- You can rescind all molecule content edits by selecting File > Revert to Saved.

Editing the Sequence from the Sequence Pane

Sequence editing operations in the Sequence Pane are similar to those in the Graphics Pane. Three editing operations make use of the standard Clipboard (Cut, Copy, and Paste) operations. Others allow you to insert literal fragments or modify existing fragments.

The copied sequence on the Clipboard is in the standard text format, for free exchange of the sequence data between Vector NTI and other applications.

To Paste ("insert") a cut or copied sequence, set the cursor, which in the Sequence Pane

becomes a vertical I-beam (\perp), to the insert position. Paste with a toolbar button or select **Edit** > **Paste Sequence.**

To insert a new sequence fragment manually, click the I-beam at the insertion position; choose the **Edit > New > Insert Sequence**. In the Insert Sequence dialog box, enter the sequence to be inserted. Click **OK**. If the inserted sequence will affect a feature, you are given the option to delete the feature (**Delete** or **Delete AII**) or keep it (**Keep** or **Keep AII**) in its modified form.

Once the sequence is inserted, you can delete it manually or select **File > Revert to Saved** Molecule in Database to return to the unedited version.

This section explains the Vector NTI Sequence Editor, which can be used for creating new molecules from scratch (raw sequence), as well as for editing existing molecules.

To open the Molecule Editor dialog box:

From the Vector NTI Workspace/Molecule Display window:

- File > Create New Sequence > Using Sequence Editor (DNA/RNA) or > Using Sequence Editor (Protein) opens Molecule Editor for creating a new molecule raw sequence
- Edit > <Molecule> Properties opens Molecule Editor for the open molecule (Figure 19.2)

From Database Explorer:

 Select the DNA/RNA or Protein subset in the drop-down menu, select a molecule in Objects list and click on the Edit button (2) or <Molecule type >> Edit on the Menu Bar.

The figure shows the DNA/RNA Molecule tab of the Molecule Editor opened from Database Explorer (Figure 19.2):

Edit pBluSKM		<u>×</u>
User Fields General	Comments DNA/RNA Molecule	Keywords Sequence and Maps
 Circular Cinear Extra-Chromosom I I Bacteria 	DNA DNA RNA e Replication Yeast Animal/Othe	er Eukaryotic
Replicon Type Plasmid Cosmid Phage	Phagemid Virus Chromosome	
Description: pBluescript SK(-) v	ector DNA, phagemid excised from	n lambda ZAP
	OK Cancel	Apply Help

Figure 19.2 DNA/RNA Molecule tab of the Molecule Editor

The Molecule Editor contains information for one molecule at a time. Note these points about the Molecule Editor:

- Most tabs for protein or DNA/RNA are basically the same. Any variations are mentioned below.
- Molecule Editor opened from Database Explorer has one additional tab for sequence and feature editing. Sequence editing of an open molecule must be performed in the Sequence Pane of the Molecule Display window itself.
- To be edited with the Molecule Editor, a molecule must be fully processed. For instance, when you are trying to construct a DNA molecule from incompatible component fragments, Vector NTI saves the entered molecule's data but does not process the molecule completely. It allows you to load molecule data from the database into the Construct/

Design Molecule dialog box, edit its component fragments, and reconstruct the molecule. But you cannot load a molecule into the Molecule Editor until it's fully processed.

- The Molecule Editor can be used to describe a new molecule from scratch. The Molecule Editor is almost identical for New Molecule (creating a new molecule from scratch) or for Edit Molecule. The New Molecule mode lets you enter all data including a sequence.
- **Note:** You must enter a new molecule's nucleotide sequence using the Sequence Editor (Figure 19.6) to be able to save the new molecule. If the new DNA molecule is unsequenced, it is easier to construct it first from one DUMMY fragment using Construct/Design Molecule dialog box, and then enter its functional and restriction maps loading the molecule from the database into the Molecule Editor.
 - If you have made any changes to a molecule in the Molecule Editor, you must press the Molecule Editor's **OK** button to enter the new information into the database.
- **Note:** When a molecule is created during the design or construction process, its nucleotide sequence and functional map are generated automatically from its parents. You may add new functional signals to the map or delete or edit automatically-generated functional signals or edit an automatically generated nucleotide sequence. In that case, the system disconnects the molecule from its parents to avoid data inconsistency. The system prompts you if such a situation occurs.

Each of the tabs of DNA/RNA and protein Molecule Editors are discussed below.

The General Information Tab

Edit pBR325		×
User Fields General	Comments DNA/RNA Molecule	Keywords Sequence and Maps
Type: DNA/RN Record #: 8c	A Molecule	
Status: Foreign (i		
Originally Created by:	NCBI Entrez	About
Creation date:	01/01/1996 12:00:00 PM	
Last Modification by:	InforMax, Inc.	About
Modification date:	07/10/2003 07:34:07 PM	
	OK Cancel	Apply Help

Figure 19.3 The General Information tab displays general object data

The General Information tab has the same format for all database objects (Figure 19.3). For existing molecules or other database objects, this tab allows you to only *review* object properties. For new objects **only**, you can enter a name for the new object in the active text box. *Figure 19.3 displays the tab that opens with the Molecule Properties command for an existing molecule, thus there is no text box.*

The DNA/RNA Molecule Tab

Edit pBR322	×
General DNA	/RNA Molecule User Fields Comments Keywords
Circular	• ONA
O Linear	C RNA
- Extra-Chrom	osome Replication
✓ Bacteri	a 🔽 Yeast 🔽 Animal/Other Eukarvotic
Replicon Ty	pe
🔽 Plasmic	d 🥅 Phagemid
Cosmid	Virus
🗖 Phage	Chromosome
Descriptions	
Description:	
ATCC 37017,	ATUL 31344: Lioning vector plasmia pBR322, complete genome.
	OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 19.4 DNA/RNA Molecule tab

- Molecule type: Circular/linear and DNA/RNA
- Extra-Chromosome Replication: Transformation systems in which the molecule is capable of extra-chromosome replication.
- Replicon Type: The source of the replication origin for the molecule
- Description: single-line description of the molecule.

The information in these fields appears in the General Description folder when the molecule is loaded into a Display window.

The Protein tab contains a one-line molecule description.

The Sequence and Maps Tab (DNA/RNA)

This tab appears only when the Edit <molecule > dialog box is opened from Database Explorer (Figure 19.5).

t pUC19		
User Fields	Comments	Keywords
General	DNA/RNA Molecule	Sequence and Maps
Sequence length: 26	86 bp	Edit Sequence
Feature Map		
Promoter Proka	ryotic, Name: P(BLA), From 2521	To 2521 (C Add
CDS, Name: AF	-(m), From 1629 16 2486 (Compl .PHA, From 149 To 471 (Comple ruptic Name: B(LAC), From 507	ementary) Edit
Replication Orig	7 Delete	
- Restriction Map		
		Add
		E dit
		Delete

Figure 19.5 Sequence and Maps Tab (DNA/RNA)

Editing Sequence

From the Sequence and Maps tab, click the **Edit Sequence** button to open the Sequence Editor to edit the sequence of the molecule (Figure 19.6).

Ec	dit Nucleotide Sequence of pUC19						
	Cut	Сору	Paste	Find	0K.	Cance	:
	1 51 101 151 201	TCGCGCGTTT GAGACGGTCA TCAGGGCGCG CGGCATCAGA CCGCACAGAT	CGGTGATGAC CAGCTTGTCT TCAGCGGGTG GCAGATTGTA GCGTAAGGAG	GGTGAAAAACC GTAAGCGGAT TTGGCGGGGTG CTGAGAGTGC AAAATACCGC	TCTGACACAT GCCGGGAGCA TCGGGGCTGG ACCATATGCG ATCAGGCGCC	GCAGCTCCCG GACAAGCCCG CTTAACTATG GTGTGAAATA ATTCGCCATT	
	251 301 351 401 451	CAGGCTGCGC TACGCCAGCT ACGCCAGGGT CGAGCTCGGT TTGGCGTAAT	AACTGTTGGG GGCGAAAGGG TTTCCCAGTC ACCCGGGGGAT CATGGTCATA	AAGGGCGATC GGATGTGCTG ACGACGTTGT CCTCTAGAGT GCTGTTTCCT	GGTGCGGGGCC CAAGGCGATT AAAACGACGG CGACCTGCAG GTGTGAAATT	TCTTCGCTAT AAGTTGGGTA CCAGTGAATT GCATGCAAGC GTTATCCGCT	
	501 551 601 651 701	CACAATTCCA GTGCCTAATG GCTTTCCAGT ACGCGCGGGG TCACTGACTC	CACAACATAC AGTGAGCTAA CGGGAAACCT AGAGGCGGTT GCTGCGCTCG	GAGCCGGAAG CTCACATTAA GTCGTGCCAG TGCGTATTGG GTCGTTCGGC	CATAAAGTGT TTGCGTTGCG CTGCATTAAT GCGCTCTTCC TGCGGCGAGC	AAAGCCTGGG CTCACTGCCC GAATCGGCCA GCTTCCTCGC GGTATCAGCT	•
				before 1 b	PP q		

Figure 19.6 Using the Sequence Editor to edit the sequence of the molecule

Edit the sequence using standard text editing techniques, Cut, Copy, and Paste through the Clipboard.

Click the **Find** button to specify a string to find in the sequence and the search direction (up or down). Click **Find Next** to launch the search and **Cancel** to leave the Find dialog box.

Click the **OK** button to save any changes you made in the sequence and to return to the Sequence and Maps tab of the Molecule Editor.

Editing the Feature Map

To add an item to a molecule's Feature map, click the **Add** button in the Feature map pane of the Sequence and Maps tab. (This dialog box can also be accessed by: Select **Edit > New > Add Feature to FMap** or right-click on a feature in the Graphics Pane. Select **Feature Properties** from the shortcut menu.) The Molecule Feature dialog box appears (Figure 19.7):

eature Type:	Feature Name:
DNA/RNA Features DNA/RNA Features 3' UTR 3' UTR 5' Clip 3' UTR Allele Allele C-Region C-Region C-Region CAAT Signal CAAT Signal Cellular Centromere Conflict	
D-Loop D-Segment D-Segment DNasel Site Site scription: rpE anthranilate synsthase	Original Location string:

Figure 19.7 Molecule Feature dialog box

To add a feature, select a particular Feature Type in the classification tree on the left. Enter the specific name of the feature in the Feature Name field. To see a list of specific names for each

feature type, press the **Browse** button (....) next to the Feature Name field, opening the Feature Name dialog box, which lists the specific names available for that feature type (Figure 19.8):

Feature Name (CDS)	<u>? ×</u>
10.2_0RF 100K 13.6KD 13.8_0RF 14.5_0RF 33K 52/55KD 6.0_0RF 6.4_0RF 6.4_0RF 6.7_0RF 6.9_0RF 6.9_0RF 8.8_0RF A A* AAC2	OK Cancel

Figure 19.8 Feature Name dialog box, which lists the specific names available for that feature type

After selecting a feature signal name, click OK.

Back in the Molecule Feature dialog box, select feature positions by using one of two formats:

- **Simple**: In the **From** and **To** fields, enter the starting and ending coordinates of the functional signal you are adding.
- Check Complementary if the signal is located on the complementary strand.
- **Note:** Vector NTI uses the currently accepted convention for the coordinates of complementary features. All coordinates are given as if on the direct strand, from the leftmost to the rightmost nucleotide of a signal, as shown in Figure 19.9:



Figure 19.9 Defining feature position coordinates

 GenBank/EMBL format: Set a complex location string that describes the positions of the exons and location of the features. The full description of location string format can be found in the GenBank or EMBL sources. For your convenience, you can always see the original location string of the feature.

In the Description text box, enter notes about the feature you are adding.

Click **OK** to add your feature and return to the Sequence and Maps tab.

To edit a feature: Double-click or highlight the feature in the Feature map pane and press **Edit**. The Molecule Feature dialog box (Figure 19.7) opens loaded with the feature you selected. Make any changes you want, and click **OK** to apply your changes or click **Cancel**.

To remove a feature from a molecule's Feature map: Highlight the feature in the Feature map pane and click **Delete.**

Editing the Restriction Map

To add a restriction site to the molecule's restriction map: Click the **Add** button in the Restriction Map group of the Sequence and Maps tab (Figure 19.5), opening the Restriction Sites dialog box (Figure 19.10). (You can also access this dialog box by selecting **Edit > New > Add REN Site to RMap**.)

Restriction Sites	? ×
Enzyme Name:	ОК
BamHI	Cancel
Site Positions:	
1	

Figure 19.10 Restriction Sites dialog box

In the Enzyme Name field, enter the name of the restriction endonuclease or click the Browse

button (....) to see a list of RENs in the Vector NTI database.

In the Site Positions field, enter the nucleotide position numbers where the sites of the enzyme you have chosen are found, separated by spaces.

To edit a restriction site: Double-click it or highlight the item you want to edit and click **Edit**. The Restriction Sites dialog box appears, loaded with the site you selected. Make any changes you want. and click **OK** to register your changes or the **Cancel**. Vector NTI returns you to the Molecule Editor.

To remove an item from the restriction map: Highlight the item and click the **Delete** button in the Restriction Map group. Sometimes Vector NTI does not allow removal of a restriction site if it is not entered manually.

Sequence and Features Tab (Protein)

Edit 41BB_MOUSE	×
General Protein Sequence and Features User Fields Comments	Keywords
Sequence length: 256 aa Edit	Sequence
Feature Map	
Signal Sequence, Name: Signal_1, From 1_To 24 Mature chain, Name: Chain 1, From 25_To 256	Add
Extracellular, Name: Extracellular_1, From 25 To 187	E dit
 Transmembrane Region, Name: Transmem_1, From 188 To Cytoplasmic, Name: Cytoplasmic_1, From 209 To 256 Domain: Misc, Name: Dom_Misc_1, From 17 To 159 Repetitive region, Name: Repeat_1, From 17 To 45 Repetitive region, Name: Repeat_2, From 46 To 85 Repetitive region, Name: Repeat_3, From 86 To 117 Repetitive region, Name: Repeat_4, From 118 To 159 Glycosylation, Name: Glycosylation_1, From 128 To 128 Glycosylation, Name: Glycosylation_2, From 138 To 138 	Delete
OK Cancel Apply	Help

Figure 19.11 Sequence and Features tab (Protein)

This tab's functionality is the same as that of the Sequence and Maps tab of the DNA/RNA Molecule Editor, however, only sequence and Feature map editing are supported.

User Fields Tab

Edit 41BB_MOUSE				×
General Protein Sequence a	nd Features	User Fields C	omments Keyword:	s]
Field Name	Value			
Ampicillin Resistance				
Commercial Sources				
Freezer Position				
🕄 Organism				
🕄 tetracycline resistance				
• WWW Source				
Use the User Field Manager command to define more fields.		Change Value	Remove Va	ue
	ĸ	Cancel	Apply	Help

Figure 19.12 User Fields tab

The User Fields tab (Figure 19.12), used for adding custom data for a molecule in the form of fields, has the same format for all database molecules. It contains a list of all User Fields currently applied to the object being edited as well as the list of blank fields defined in the local User Field Definition list but are not yet applied to that object.

- To fill or edit any field, double-click on the field name or select the field name and click the **Change Value** button. If the field you want to edit is not listed in the local User Field Definition list, Vector NTI asks you to enter the field's definition first. When the field definition is added to the local definition list, Vector NTI displays the appropriate field value dialog box.
- To clear any User Field for the object, select the field and click the Remove Value button.
- Refer to Chapter 17 for more user field details.

Comments Tab

The Comments tab (Figure 19.13) has the same format for all database objects. Enter text comments of unlimited length about the molecule.



Figure 19.13 Comments tab

Keywords Tab

The Keywords tab (Figure 19.14) has the same format for all database objects. This tab lets you enter keywords useful for database search.

To add a keyword for the molecule, type a new word or select an item in the list of existing keywords. Click the **< Add** button to move the keyword into the keyword list.

To remove an item from the keyword list, select item(s) click the > Remove button.

Edit 41BB_MOUSE		×
General Protein Sequence and	Features User Fields	Comments Keywords
Keywords:	Features User Fields New	Comments Reywords Keyword: Ismembrane ID-structure Alternative splicing ATP ATP-binding Cell adhesion Duplication Giycoprotein G-protein coupled recer Hydrolase Immunoglobulin domain Lipoprotein Multigene family Myristate Nuclear protein Duplication
OK	Cancel	Apply Help

Figure 19.14 Keywords tab

Changing the Starting Coordinate of a DNA Molecule

You can change the starting coordinate of a molecule by choosing **File > Molecule Operations** > **Advanced (DNA/RNA) > Change Starting Coordinate** from the drop-down menu in a DNA/ RNA Molecule's Display window. Upon choosing this command, the Change Starting Coordinate dialog box appears, allowing you to designate the current molecule position that you want to define as the new starting coordinate:

Change Starting Coordinate of pBR	322 ? X
	ОК
New Start: 1	Cancel

Figure 19.15 Change Starting Coordinate dialog box

Click the **OK** button to accept the new start position. Vector NTI redraws the molecule, setting the *New Start* position as position 1. All features, restriction sites, etc. remain in the same positions relative to each other, but they are shifted in the display accordingly.

Note: When the starting coordinate of a molecule is changed, the change takes effect immediately. You are not asked to re-save the molecule to the database to register the change.

Making the Reverse Complement of a DNA Molecule

To make the reverse complement of a DNA/RNA molecule, open the molecule in a Molecule Viewing window in Vector NTI. With any pane activated, choose **File > Make Reverse Complement** from the drop-down menu. The Choose New DNA/RNA Molecule Name dialog box appears, allowing you to save the reverse complement.

C H A P T E R

PRIMER DESIGN: PCR, SEQUENCING AND HYBRIDIZATION

Introduction

This chapter describes Vector NTI's oligonucleotide analysis functions: the design, execution and analysis results for PCR primers, sequencing primers, and hybridization probes. The chapter also covers "silent mutation" analysis, ORFs and motif searches, calculation of restriction fragments, back translating and RFLP analysis.

The following table summarizes the various dialog boxes that open as you proceed through PCR, Sequencing and Hybridization Probe design:

Analysis/Dialog Box	Purpose
Find PCR Primers	Specify limits for PCR primer search such as length of target sequence, output options, attach restriction sites, etc.
Amplify Selection	Similar to Find PCR Primers except that primer hybridization domains upstream and downstream from the target sequence can be specified. Primers will be generated anywhere within the designated upstream and downstream domains.
Amplify Features	Similar to Find PCR Primers except that multiple features of a specific type can be selected for amplification. Use this dialog box when you need to amplify multiple features from a single molecule.
Long PCR	Similar to Find PCR Primers, but allows you to design primers for the amplification of regions that exceed 20 KB in length. Creates primers for a set of overlapped PCR products that cover the amplification region.
PCR Using Existing Oligos	Similar to Find PCR Primers, but, for the selected amplification region, allows you to search for suitable PCR primers from among those selected from the Vector NTI Oligo Database.

Table 20.1 Primer, oligo and probe dialog boxes

Analysis/Dialog Box	Purpose
Multiplex PCR	Allows you to design PCR primers for amplifying several target sequence regions in one reaction.
Alignment PCR	Allows you to design PCR primers for amplifying a region of aligned DNA molecules.
Sequencing primers	Set parameters for sequencing and primer regions and primer; analyze primers.
Similarity of <technique> primers</technique>	Determine relationship of complementarity between primers and target sequence. Therefore, the number of nucleotides on 3' end required to have 100% complementarity with target.
Primer/Oligo Parameters	Set acceptable limits for primer/probe interaction with target sequence. Also relates to formation of secondary structures between the oligos themselves.
Primer/Oligo Quality Specif- ics	Assigns "importance factors" to different primer parameters. Importance factors are integers between 1 to 10, all relating to parameters specified in other dialog boxes, such as %GC, Tm, and so forth. These parameters determine how much weight should be given to each of the named specifications. For minimal importance, enter 1; maximal, enter 10.
Hybridization Probes	Set parameters for target region, output options; analyze probes.

Table 20.1 Primer, oligo and probe dialog boxes (continued)

PCR Primers

Vector NTI locates primers for performing PCR analysis on a DNA molecule fragment selected in the Graphics Pane of a Molecule Display window. (Vector NTI can also evaluate user-defined primers.) After selecting the target sequence for primer design, the maximum and minimum product length and primer parameters are determined. Vector NTI evaluates, rates and sorts several primer options. You can further fine-tune the primers and annealing parameters if you wish, generate and display a PCR product in a Molecule Display window, save the primers (or product) in the database, order custom primers from Invitrogen, or use the product in recombinant cloning strategies.

Vector NTI provides seven different modes of PCR amplification:

- Find PCR Primers Finds primers for a DNA selection within the selected region.
- **Amplify Selection** Defines allowed regions upstream and downstream of the selected area for primer design.
- Amplify Features Amplifies one or more selected features in a molecule.
- Long PCR Designs primers for the amplification of regions that exceed 20 KB in length.
- **PCR Using Existing Oligos** Searches for suitable PCR primers from among those selected from the Vector NTI Oligo Database.
- Alignment PCR Design PCR primers for amplifying a region of aligned DNA molecules.
- **Multiplex PCR** Designs PCR primers for amplifying several target sequence regions in one reaction.

This section covers preparation for PCR analysis, saving and loading PCR settings, the various PCR Primers dialog boxes, the results of PCR analysis presented in PCR Analysis folders, and operations with PCR primers and PCR products.

Open a Display window for the DNA molecule selected for PCR analysis. Select the target region of the molecule and choose **Analyses > Primer Design > <PCR amplification method>**, depending on the type of PCR analysis you want to perform. (These commands are disabled if an appropriate target is not defined.) This opens the corresponding PCR Analysis dialog box.

Saving and Loading PCR Settings

As you review the Find Primers, Amplify Selection, Amplify Features, Long PCR and PCR Using Existing Oligos dialog boxes, notice the **Load** and **Save** buttons on the lower left of each tab. These buttons allow you to save your PCR settings to a file and load the settings file in for subsequent analyses. This precludes having to reset the various parameters manually for frequently used PCR condition settings. You need only save/load the settings in one of the tabs and the parameters for all the tabs in the Find Primers dialog box will be saved/loaded.

Important: If you have made changes to the settings in a PCR Primers dialog box and want to save the settings to a file before running the analysis, you must first click the **Apply** button to register the changes before saving to a file. If the new settings are not applied, the preexisting settings are saved.

Find PCR Primers Dialog Box

The Find Primers dialog box (Figure 20.1) allows you to search for convenient sense and antisense primers according to your specifications and to check primers' uniqueness. Clicking the **More>>** button on the Primer tab enables complete view of the Find Primers dialog box.

Find Primers in Selected Region of BPV1
Primer Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters Region of Analysis
From: 5200 bp To: 6400 bp Min: 900 bp Max 1201 bp
Maximum Number of Output Options 3
Salt Conc. 50.0 Probe Conc. 250.0 dG Temperature (C) 25.0 (C)
Tm (C) %GC Length © DNA C RNA >= 40.0 >= 20
<= 65.0 <= 60.0 <= 25 Less <<
Sense: Analyze
Antisense: Analyze
Attach to 5' terminus
GGATCC
Load Save OK Cancel Apply

Figure 20.1 Find Primers dialog box allows you to search for convenient sense and antisense primers

Primer Tab

The options in the **Primer** tab allow you to set parameters for PCR primer search and define primers and/or primer attachments, if desired:

Primer Tab Parameters – Find Primers Dialog Box		
Region of Analysis	Enter the start and end coordinates of molecule's target region.	
Product Length	Enter the maximum and minimum lengths of the molecule target region. Note: Unless you specify differently here, the minimum amplicon length may be less than the target sequence you selected.	
Maximum Number of Output Options	Enter the number of sense-antisense primer pairs to be found. The actual result may contain fewer than this number if there are not enough possible primers.	
Salt Concentration	Enter the PCR reaction salt concentration in mMol, if known.	
Probe Concentration	Enter the value of probe concentration in pMol, if known.	
dG Temperature	Enter the temperature in degrees Celsius to be used for calculating free energy values.	
Tm	Enter limits in degrees Celsius for primer melting temperature (T_m) (temperature at which 50% of primer is a duplex) and the difference between T_m for sense and antisense primers.	
%GC	Enter the limits of G/C percentage in the primer and the difference between GC percentages for sense and antisense primers.	
Length	Enter primer length limits. Note: Nucleotide sequences such as RENs attached to a primer's 5' end are included when calculating primer length.	
DNA/RNA radio button	Select the type of target nucleotide sequence.	
More>> and Less<< buttons	Extend or contract the lower portion of the Primers tab, which contains the user-defined primer and primer attachment fields.	
User-Defined Primers	Enter user-defined primer sequences or a primer from the oligo database. The search engine checks the compatibility of the primers according to primer parameters.	
Attach to 5' Terminus of (Anti)Sense Primer	Enter a short (=/<18 bp) nucleotide sequence (if any) to be attached to the 5' end of either primer, or choose from recognition sites of database RENs. (To select RENs to add, click the Browse button ().) This sequence, while considered in primer parameters, does not affect the calculation of complementarity between primer and molecule. A sequence can be attached to the primer whether or not the primers are user-defined or designed by Vector NTI.	

Table 20.2 Primer tab parameters – Find Primers dialog box

Note: The calculation for Tm is dependent on primer and salt concentrations; varying these concentrations can greatly affect the Tm for any given primer. Make sure to adjust these parameters according to your reaction conditions when performing your PCR analysis to ensure that you obtain accurate Tm values.

Amplicon Tab

Click the **Amplicon** tab (Figure 20.2). The options on this tab allow you to customize parameters relating to the resulting PCR product. %GC content for the product or a portion of the product and allowed bases adjacent to the primer annealing site can be specified.

Find Primers in Selected Region of BPV1	×
Primer Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Fi	lters
Amplicon %GC Min 200 Max 85.0 Next to Primer Annealing Site	
1-st Nucleotide: Image: Gim C integration of G	q
Load Save OK Cancel A	pply

Figure 20.2 Amplicon tab on Find Primers dialog box

Amplicon Tab Parameters – Find Primers Dialog Box		
Amplicon %GC	Enter the minimum and maximum for the desired %GC content in the PCR product.	
Next to Primer Annealing Site	Choose accepted bases for the four successive bases adjacent to the primer annealing site. Set minimum and maximum %GC range for a specified length of the amplicon adjacent to the primer annealing site.	

Table 20.3 Amplicon tab parameters – Find Primers dialog box

Structure Tab

Click the **Structure** tab (Figure 20.3). The options on this tab set acceptable limits for nucleotide repeats, palindromes and hairpin loops for the primers. You can also check your primers/product for a selected group of restriction sites from this tab.

Find Primers in Selected Region of BP¥1					
Primer Amplicon	Structure Pairs	Similarity 3' end	Uniqueness	Qualities Filters	
Nucleotide Repeats Max Palindromes Hairpin Loops Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max Image: Max					
Check Primers for Restriction Sites From					
Load	Save	OK	Cance	l Apply	

Figure 20.3 Structure tab on Find Primers dialog box

Structure Tab Parameters – Find Primers Dialog Box		
Nucleotide Repeats	Enter the maximum permitted length of nucleotide repeats in primers.	
Palindromes	Enter the maximum permitted length of palindromes in primers.	
Hairpin Loops	Stem Length: Enter the minimum number of base pairs in a hairpin stem. (This value is also used as a minimum stacking length for primer-primer com- plementarity and primer-primer 3' end complementarity.) Permitted with dG: Check the Permitted box for hairpin loops; enter the minimum permitted value for free energy of hairpin loops. Primers with hairpin loops which have free energy values > /= to this number will be accepted.	
Check Hairpin Loops, Palin- dromes, Nucleotide Repeats and Dimers Only Within 3' Region of	Check this box and enter the length of a 3' region if all of a primer's features (repeats, palindromes, hairpin loops, dimers) should be checked only within that 3' region.(If this box is empty, the whole primer will be evaluated.)	
Check Primers For Restriction Sites From	Check to find possible cloning sites inside primers and attached nucleotide sequences (if any). In the drop-down menu, specify the REN subset. Enzymes will be checked for the presence of their sites in the primers and attached sequences, and within the PCR product.	

Table 20.4 Structure tab parameters – Find Primers dialog box

Pairs Tab

Click the **Pairs** tab (Figure 20.4). Options on this tab specify how closely parameters such as Tm and %GC, etc. must match between two primers in a generated primer set.

Find Primers in Selected Region of BP¥1				
Primer Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters				
Tm Difference (C) <=				
%GC Difference <= 10.0				
Primer-Primer 3' End Compl.				
$\overrightarrow{\bullet} \text{ Permitted with dG >= } \boxed{-15.0} \qquad \overrightarrow{\bullet} \text{ Permitted with dG >= } \boxed{-3.0}$				
Load Save OK Cancel Apply				

Figure 20.4 Pairs tab on Find Primers dialog box

Pairs Tab Parameters – Find Primers Dialog Box		
Tm Difference	Enter difference in degrees Celsius between T _m for sense and antisense primers.	
%GC	Enter the difference between GC percentages for sense and antisense primers.	

Table 20.5 Pairs tab parameters – Find Primers dialog box
Pairs Tab Parameters – Find Primers Dialog Box	
Primer-Primer Comple- mentarity	Check the Permitted box for primer-primer complementarity; enter the minimum permitted value for duplex free energy.
Primer-Primer 3' End Complementarity	Check the Permitted box for primer-primer 3' end complementarity; enter the minimum permitted value for duplex free energy.

Table 20.5 Pairs tab parameters – Find Primers dialog box (continued)

Similarity Tab

Click the **Similarity** tab (Figure 20.5). The options on this tab determine the similarity relationship between the primers and the target sequence.

Find Primers in Selected Regio	on of BP¥1	X
Primer Amplicon Structure	Pairs Similarity 3' end	Uniqueness Qualities Filters
 Best Fit 		
○ With Similarities >= Simila	arity Threshold	
Simila	arity Threshold: 75.0	
Last 3 Nucleotides Must Have 100% Similarity		
Similarity Between Ambiguous	s Nucleotides	
 Average 	C Minimum	C Maximum
Load Save	OK	Cancel Apply

Figure 20.5 Similarity tab on Find Primers dialog box

Similarity Tab Parameters – Find Primers Dialog Box		
Best Fit	Check this button to specify the search for site(s) with maximum similarity with no set threshold.	
With Similarities > = Similarity Thresh- old	Check this button to indicate similarity site search above the specified similarity threshold.	
Similarity Threshold	Enter the percentage of minimally acceptable similarity.	
Last Nucleotides Must Have 100% Similarity	Check and specify the number of nucleotides necessary to have 100% complementarity with the target sequence at the 3' end.	
Similarity Between Ambiguous Nucle- otides	The Average , Minimum , and Maximum buttons specify the acceptable similarity between an ambiguous nucle- otide pair. For instance, if you are calculating similarity between N and A, the average similarity is 25%, the mini- mum similarity is 0%, and the maximum similarity is 100%. In case of R and A they are 50%, 0%, and 100%; in case of R and T - 0%, 0%, and 0%. See similarity chart on page 218.	

Table 20.6 Similarity tab parameters – Find Primers dialog box

3' End Tab

Click the **3' end** tab (Figure 20.6). The options on this tab allow you to set specifications for the 3' end of the primers generated by Vector NTI. Parameters such as dG and specific nucleotide content for the 3' end of both sense and antisense primers can be set here.

Find Primers in Selected Region of BP¥1	×
Primer Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity	3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters
dG <= 10 kcal/mol Length for A	analysis: 7 bp
Sense Primer 3' Nucleotides	Antisense Primer 3' Nucleotides
First 🔽 G 🔽 C 🔽 A 🗔 T	First 🔽 G 🔽 C 🔽 A 🗖 T
Second 🔽 G 🔽 C 🔽 A 🔽 T	Second 🔽 G 🔽 C 🔽 A 🔽 T
Third 🔽 G 🔽 C 🔽 A 🔽 T	Third 🗹 G 🔽 C 🔽 A 🔽 T
Fourth 🔽 G 🔽 C 🔽 A 🔽 T	Fourth 🔽 G 🔽 C 🔽 A 💌 T
Load Save	OK Cancel Apply

Figure 20.6 3'End tab on Find Primers dialog box

3' End Tab Parameters – Find Primers Dialog Box	
dG <=	Specify the maximum permitted value of 3' end free energy.
Length for Analysis	Enter the length of the primer's 3' region that should be ana- lyzed.
Sense Primer 3' Nucleotides	Check the nucleotide boxes to specify permitted last primer nucleotides for the sense primer.
Antisense Primer 3' Nucleotides	Check the nucleotide boxes to specify permitted last primer nucleotides for the antisense primer.

Table 20.7 3' End tab parameters – Find Primers dialog box

Uniqueness Tab

Click the **Uniqueness** tab (Figure 20.7). The options on this tab determine the uniqueness of the primers generated with respect to the PCR product. These parameters can be used to help

ensure that generated primers bind to the desired template area with greater specificity than to the rest of the PCR product.

Find Primers in Selected Region of ColE1
Primer Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters Image: Similarity Image: Similarity Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters Image: Similarity Similarity
Max Allowed Similarity 55.0 %
Max Consecutive Match for Entire Primer 10 bp
Primer 3' End
Max Consecutive Match 7 bp
For Last 3' 10 bp Max Complementarity 50.0 %
Load Save OK Cancel Apply

Figure 20.7 Uniqueness tab on Find Primers dialog box

Uniqueness Tab Parameters – Find Primers Dialog Box	
Uniqueness Checks for	Choose the area of the molecule to check for primer uniqueness. Either the entire molecule or the Amplicon only can be selected for the uniqueness check.
Max Allowed Similarity	Check this box and enter the similarity threshold to check primer uniqueness on the molecule. Primers which have parasitic hybridization with similarity > /= this threshold will be rejected. Note: this similarity threshold must be = the<br minimum similarity required for hybridization of user- defined primers (if any).
Max Consecutive Match for Entire Primer	Check this box and enter the maximum acceptable match of consecutive bases for the entire primer and the Ampli- con.
Primer 3' End	Check the first box and enter the number of consecutive 3' bases that must match the amplicon with 100% similarity. Check the second box and specify the maximum acceptable % match between the Amplicon and the designated number of bases on the 3' end of the primer.

Table 20.8 Uniqueness tab parameters – Find Primers dialog box

Qualities Tab

Click the **Qualities** tab (Figure 20.8). These parameters govern primer quality by determining how much weight should be assigned parameters specified on the other tabs of the Find Prim-

ers dialog box. These values affect scoring functions that evaluate the quality rating of the primer sets generated.

Find Primers in Selected Region of BPV1		×
Primer Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities	Filters	L,
"Importance" below must be between 1 and 10:		
1 - not important (almost don't care) 10 - crucially important (disregard if not so)		
Importance to be inside specified limits		
Tm: S Tm Difference: 9		
%GC: 9 %GC Difference: 9		
Importance to satisfy specified conditions		
Palindromes: 9 Nucleotide Repeats: 9		
Hairpin Loops: 9 Dimers: 9 3' End: 9		
Load Save OK Cancel	Apply	

Figure 20.8 Qualities tab on Find Primers dialog box

The importance factors are integers between 1 and 10 used in calculating the score evaluating primer/oligo quality. The lower the factor, the less weight given in the calculation. For example, for minimal importance, enter 1 in the appropriate box. For maximum importance, enter 10.

Filters Tab

Click the **Filters** tab (Figure 20.9). On this tab, you can select features that should either be excluded or included as regions to be considered for primer design. For example, if your sequence contains Repeat features, you may want to exclude them to obtain primers with greater specificity. Features can be added or removed by pressing the + and – buttons.

Find Primers in Selected Region of BP¥1	×
Primer Amplicon Structure Pairs Similar	ity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters
Apply Feature Reject Filter	Apply Feature Include Filter
+ - Remove All	+ - Remove All
✓ 5' End Overlap Max 10 bp	Distance from Sense Primer 3' End to Feature 5' End Max 0 bp
3' End Overlap Max 8 bp	Distance from Antisense Primer 3' End to Feature 5' End Max 0 bp
Load Save	OK Cancel Apply

Figure 20.9 Filters tab on Find Primers dialog box

Filters Tab Parameters – Find Primers Dialog Box	
Apply Feature Reject Filter	Check the Apply Feature Reject Filter box and press the + and – buttons to add or remove features from the list. This tells Vector NTI to avoid making primers to the region of the specified feature(s). A maximum allowed overlap of the primer with the feature's 5' and 3' ends can be specified.

Table 20.9 Filters tab parameters – Find Primers dialog box

Filters Tab Parameters – Find Primers Dialog Box	
Apply Feature Include Fil- ter	Check the Apply Feature Reject Include box and press the + and – but- tons to add or remove features from the list. This tells VNTI to include these features in the amplicon when making primers. The maximum acceptable distance from the primer ends to the feature ends can be specified.

Table 20.9 Filters tab parameters – Find Primers dialog box (continued)

Amplify Selection Dialog Box

The Amplify Selection feature is similar to Find PCR Primers except that primer hybridization domains upstream and downstream from the target sequence can be specified. Amplify Selection picks primers to amplify the entire selection. If suitable primers cannot be found inside the selected region, the search will expand within the specified upstream and downstream flanking regions.

Like the Find PCR Primers dialog box, clicking the **More>>** button enables complete view of the dialog box. Only the tabs and parameters that differ from the Find PCR Primers dialog box are discussed here. For a description of the tabs and parameters common to the Amplify Selection and Find PCR Primers dialog boxes, see page 248 to page 254.

Primer Tab

The options in the **Primer** tab (Figure 20.10) allow you to set parameters for PCR primer search and define primers and/or primer attachments, if desired:



Figure 20.10 Primer tab on Amplify Selection dialog box

Primer Tab Parameters – Amplify Selection Dialog Box	
Before	Provides additional upstream region where the Primer may be made.
Amplicon Must Include Region of Molecule	Set the 5' and 3' positions for region of the molecule that must be included in the final amplified product.
After	Provides additional downstream region where the Primer may be made.

Table 20.10 Primer tab parameters – Amplify Selection dialog box

Amplify Features Dialog Box

Amplify Features is similar to Find PCR Primers except that Vector NTI will find the best primers for amplifying the designated feature(s) within the region of analysis indicated. Like the Find

PCR Primers and Amplify Selection dialog boxes, clicking the **More>>** button enables complete view.

Only the tabs and parameters that differ from the Find PCR Primers dialog box will be discussed here. For a description of the tabs and parameters common to the Amplify Features and Find PCR Primers dialog boxes, see page 248 to page 254.

Primer Tab

The options in the **Primer** tab (Figure 20.11) allow you to set parameters for PCR primer search and define attachments, if desired. User-defined primers are not allowed:

Features Amplification in Selected Region of BP¥1		
Primer Features Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filter		
Region of Analysis Every Amplicon Length From 5200 bp To 6400 bp Min 100 bp Max 1000 bp		
0 Feature(s) Inside the Region Number of Output Options Max 3 per Feature		
Salt Conc. (mMol) 50.0 Probe Conc. (pMol) 250.0 dG Temperature (C) 25.0		
Tm (C) 2GC Length ⊙ DNA C RNA >= 35.0 >= 20		
<= 65.0 <= 60.0 <= 25 More >>		
Load Save OK Cancel Apply		

Figure 20.11 Primer tab on Amplify Features dialog box

Primer Tab Parameters – Amplify Features Dialog Box		
Region of Analysis	Specify the 5' and 3' boundaries of the region for primer analysis. Features to be amplified must be within the chosen region. The number of features in the selection is indicated.	
Every Amplicon Length	Specify the range for acceptable minimum and maximum product length. Vector NTI determines primers that will produce products within the set length range.	
User-Defined Primers	This feature is NOT present.	

Table 20.11 Primer tab parameters – Amplify Features dialog box

Features Tab

The **Features** tab (Figure 20.12) allows you to specify the features you want amplified, how many of the chosen features you want in one amplicon and whether primer-feature overlap is permitted:

Features Amplification in Selected Region of	ColE1
Primer Features Amplicon Structure Pairs	Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters
Add Features to Amplify CDS, Name(s): TC(R)	< Add
Feature - Primer Overlap	
Min bp Max bp	Min bp Max bp
Load Save	OK Cancel Apply

Figure 20.12 Features tab on Amplify Features dialog box

Features Tab Parameters – Amplify Features Dialog Box		
Add Features to Amplify	Click the <add< b=""> button to display the feature list. From the list, choose the features you would like to amplify.</add<>	
Features per Amplicon	Designate the minimum and maximum number of features you want to occur in the amplicons.	
Feature-Primer Overlap	To allow feature-primer overlap for the selected features, check the appro- priate box/boxes and specify the minimum and maximum permitted base overlap.	
Find Primers in Feature	Specify whether VNTI should find primers either inside or outside of the amplified feature.	

Table 20.12 Features tab parameters – Amplify Features dialog box

Filter Tab

The **Filter** tab (Figure 20.13) allows you to specify the features you do not want amplified as part of the product:

Features Amplification in Selected Region	of ColE1	
Primer Features Amplicon Structure Pair	s Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters	
Apply Feature Reject Filter		
H Bemove Áll	+ - Bernve Ál	
	E Distance from Cauce Rings 21 Find	
Max 10 bp	to Feature 5' End Max 0 bp	
🔽 3' End Overlap	Distance from Antisense Primer 3' End	
Max 8 bp	to Feature 5' End Max 0 bp	
Load Save	OK Cancel Apply	

Figure 20.13 Filter tab on Amplify Features dialog box

Filter Ta	b Parameters – Amplify Features Dialog Box
Apply Feature Reject Filter	Check this box to enable the features reject filter. Add or remove fea- tures with the +, -, and >Remove All buttons
Apply Feature Include Filter	Check this box to enable the features include filter. Add or remove features with the +, -, and >Remove All buttons
5' End Overlap	Check the box and specify the maximum permitted overlap of the primer and the rejected feature(s) for the 5' end.
3' End Overlap	Check the box and specify the maximum permitted overlap of the primer and the rejected feature(s) for the 3' end.
Distance from Sense Primer 3' End to Feature 5' End	Check this box and specify the maximum distance in base pairs from the Sense Primer 3' End
Distance from Antisense Primer 3' End to Feature 5' End	Check this box and specify the maximum distance in base pairs from the Antisense Primer 3' End

Table 20.13 Filter tab parameters – Amplify Features dialog box

Long PCR Dialog Box

Long PCR is similar to Find PCR Primers except that Vector NTI finds a set of primers for a group of overlapped PCR products that cover the selected amplification region. Applications for Long PCR include cloning of large genomic regions to search for polymorphisms and viral genome amplification.

Note: The selected region for amplification must exceed 20Kb in length for the Long PCR option to be enabled.

Like the Find PCR Primers dialog box, clicking the More>> button enables complete view.

Only the tabs and parameters that differ from the Find PCR Primers dialog box will be discussed here. For a description of the tabs and parameters common to the Long PCR and Find PCR Primers dialog boxes, see page 248 to page 254.

Primer Tab

The options in the **Primer** tab (Figure 20.14) allow you to set parameters for Long PCR primer search and define attachments, if desired. User-defined primers are not allowed



Figure 20.14 Primer tab – Long PCR Analysis dialog box

Primer Tab Parameters – Long PCR Dialog Box	
Amplicon(s) Length	Specify the range for acceptable minimum and maximum product length. Vector NTI determines primers that will produce products within the set length range.
Overlap(s)	Specify the range for acceptable minimum and maximum overlaps between generated PCR products along the length of the long sequence. Vector NTI determines primers that will produce products within the set length range.
User-Defined Primers	This feature is NOT present.

Table 20.14 Primer tab parameters - Long PCR dialog box

PCR Using Existing Oligos Dialog Box

PCR Using Existing Oligos is similar to Find PCR Primers except that, for the selected amplification region, VNTI searches for suitable PCR primers from among those selected from the Vector NTI Oligo Database. Like the Find PCR Primers dialog box, clicking the **More>>** button enables complete view.

Only the tabs and parameters that differ from the Find PCR Primers dialog box will be discussed here. For a description of the tabs and parameters common to the PCR Using Existing Oligos and Find PCR Primers dialog boxes, see page 248 to page 254.

Primer Tab

The options in the **Primer** tab (Figure 20.15) allow you to set parameters for PCR primer search using primers from the VNTI Database and define attachments, if desired. User-defined primers are not allowed:



Figure 20.15 Primer tab – PCR Using Existing Oligos dialog box

Primer Tab Parameters – PCR Using Existing Primers Dialog Box		
Sense Primers	Click the Sense Primers button and select the desired primer(s) from the VNTI Oligo Database.	
Antisense Primers	Click the Antisense Primers button and select the desired primer(s) from the VNTI Oligo Database.	
User-Defined Primers	This feature is NOT present.	

Table 20.15 Primer tab parameters – PCR Using Existing Primers dialog box

Note: Since you can choose the number of 3' and 5' primers, the PCR Using Existing Primers feature effectively enables you to analyze one 3' primer against an array of 5' primers or vice-versa.

Alignment PCR Analysis

The Alignment PCR feature in Vector NTI allows you to design PCR primers for amplifying a region of aligned DNA/RNA molecules. Using this feature you can design primer pair sets that will amplify any of the DNA/RNA molecules in the specified alignment. In this type of PCR analysis, the molecules are first aligned in AlignX and the alignment is subsequently analyzed using the Alignment PCR feature in Vector NTI.

Basic Steps in the Alignment PCR Process

The basic procedure for performing an Alignment PCR analysis consists of defining the set of DNA/RNA molecules you want to use for Alignment PCR analysis, aligning the set of molecules in AlignX and, finally, performing the Alignment PCR analysis on a selected region of the AlignX alignment.

Defining DNA/RNA Molecules for Alignment PCR

In Vector NTI, you define the DNA/RNA molecules you want to use for Alignment PCR using the Alignment PCR tab of the Lists dialog box. From the Alignment PCR tab of the Lists dialog box, Align X is then launched so the alignment can be performed. Alternately, you can drag and drop DNA/RNA molecules from the Vector NTI Database directly into AlignX or highlight molecules in

the Database and choose **Align > AlignX – Align Selected Molecules** from the menu to open AlignX with the selected molecules, without using the Lists dialog box. However, using the Lists dialog box to initiate Alignment PCR gives you the additional capability of saving molecule lists for Alignment PCR that you do not have if you use AlignX directly.

Note: For more information about using AlignX, see Chapter 14 and Chapter 28.

To launch the Lists dialog box, choose List > Show Lists or from the Vector NTI Workspace/ Molecule Viewing window and select the Alignment PCR tab or choose List > Alignment PCR List or Analyses > Primer Design > Alignment PCR List to display the Alignment PCR tab directly (Figure 20.16).

Lists 🛛 🕹 🕹 🕹 🕹 🕹 🕹 🕹
Add Load Save Delete Run
DNA/RNA Molecules
DNA/RNA Molecule pATH2 DNA/RNA Molecule pATH20
Fragments Oligos Gel Samples Multiplex PCR Alignment PCR

Figure 20.16 Alignment PCR tab of the Lists dialog box

Note: Initially the text box on the Alignment PCR tab of the Lists dialog box is empty.

- Add Click the Add button to select molecules for Alignment PCR analysis from the Vector NTI DNA/RNA Database.
- Load Click the Load button to load in a previously saved Alignment PCR molecule list file (.apcr file).
- Save Click the Save button to save the current Alignment PCR molecule list to a file (.apcr file).
- **Delete** Highlight a molecule on the list and click the **Delete** button to delete the molecule from the list.
- Run Launches AlignX for the molecules on the Alignment PCR list.

Once you have configured the Alignment PCR molecule list, click the Run button to continue.

Aligning DNA/RNA Molecules for Alignment PCR

The molecule alignment for Alignment PCR is performed in AlignX, as mentioned above. For more information on aligning molecules in AlignX, see Chapter 14 and Chapter 28.

Performing the Alignment PCR Analysis

To launch the Alignment PCR dialog box, in the AlignX Alignment Pane highlight the region of the alignment you want to analyze, right-click and choose **Design PCR Primers** from the shortcut menu. The Alignment PCR dialog box displays (Figure 20.17), allowing you to configure the parameters for the PCR analysis.

Note: The Alignment PCR dialog box is part of Vector NTI and In the case where Vector NTI is not currently open, when the **Design PCR Primers** command is executed Vector NTI opens first, followed by the Alignment PCR dialog box.

Alignment PCR Dialog Box

Only the tabs and parameters of the Alignment PCR dialog box that differ from the Find PCR Primers dialog box will be discussed in this section. For a description of the tabs and parameters common to the Alignment PCR and Find PCR Primers dialog boxes, see page 248 to page 254.

Primer Tab

The options in the **Primer** tab (Figure 20.17) allow you to set parameters for the Alignment PCR primer search and define attachments, if desired. User-defined primers are not allowed.

Alignment PCR
Primer Results Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters
Primer/every Molecule
Overall Similarity Min 75.0 % © Inside © Outside
For Primer Last 3'End 8 bp Similarity Min 90.0 % 3 Molecules to Amplify
Amplicon Length Min 100 bp Maximum Number of Output Options 1
Salt Conc. 50.0 Probe Conc. 250.0 dG Temperature 25.0 (pMol)
Tm (C) >= 40.0 >= 35.0 >= 20 ○ DNA ○ RNA
<= 65.0 <= 60.0 <= 25 More >>
Load Save OK Cancel Apply

Figure 20.17 Primer tab on the Alignment PCR dialog box

Primer Tab Parameters – Alignment PCR Dialog Box		
Primer/Every Molecule	Set the minimum overall similarity and 3' end similarity for the primer with every molecule in the alignment	
Selection	Specify whether Vector NTI is to find primers inside or outside of the region of the alignment selected for analysis	
Amplicon Length Min.	Specify the minimum length for the PCR product	
User-Defined Primers	This feature is NOT present.	

Table 20.16 Primer tab parameters – Alignment PCR dialog box

Results Tab

The options in the **Results** tab (Figure 20.18) allow you to specify the output format of the Alignment PCR primer search.

Alignment PCR		
Primer Results Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters		
✓ Generate Report		
Save PCR products as DNA molecule(s) to DB		
Create Subset Pair <##> for each Primers Pair		
Create DNA molecule PCR Product of		
Save Primer(s) as Oligo(s) to DB		
Create Subset Pair <##> for each Cluster		
Create Oligo		
Create Oligo		
Load Save OK Cancel Apply		

Figure 20.18 Results tab on the Alignment PCR dialog box

Resul	Results Tab Parameters – Alignment PCR Dialog Box			
Generate Report	Displays a report of the Alignment PCR results in a Preview window once the analysis is completed. You can print, copy or save the report to your hard drive from the Preview window (See Figure 20.29). Note: Alignment PCR results must be saved to an external file; they cannot be saved in the Text Pane of a particular molecule (as is the case for Find Primers PCR results, for example), because they pertain to a group of mol- ecules rather than an individual molecule.			
Save PCR Product(s) as	Allows you to save the resulting PCR products to the Vector NTI Database.			
DNA Molecule(s) to DB	Specify the name for the molecules and the DNA/RNA subset in which you want to save them.			
Save Primer(s) as	Allows you to save the resulting PCR primers to the Vector NTI Database.			
Oligo(s) to DB	Specify the name for the primers and the Oligo subset in which you want to save them.			

Table 20.17 Results tab parameters – Alignment PCR dialog box

Alignment PCR Analysis Report

When the search is finished, if you have checked the **Generate Report** option on the **Results** tab, the Alignment PCR Report preview window displays the results of the analysis. The Alignment PCR Analysis Report dialog box appearance and function is similar to the Multiplex PCR Analysis report dialog box (Figure 20.29).

Note: Alignment PCR results must be saved to an external file; they cannot be saved in the Text Pane of a particular molecule (as is the case for Find Primers PCR results, for example), because they pertain to a group of molecules rather than an individual molecule.

Multiplex PCR Analysis

Multiplex PCR allows you to design PCR primers for amplifying several target sequence regions or features unambiguously in one reaction.

Basic Steps in the Multiplex PCR Process

The basic procedure for performing a Multiplex PCR analysis consists of defining the selections or features of the DNA/RNA molecules you want to use for Multiplex PCR analysis (selecting the region and adding it to the Lists dialog box) and performing the Multiplex PCR analysis on the selections and/or features you have designated.

Defining DNA/RNA Molecule Selections and/or Features

In Vector NTI you define the portion or feature(s) of a DNA/RNA molecule you want to use for Multiplex PCR by first opening the molecule in a Molecule Viewing window. Once the molecule is opened, select the region you are interested in analyzing or, in the case of Multiplex amplification of features, select a region containing the feature(s) you are interested in amplifying. After you have selected the region for analysis, launch the Lists dialog box and add the selection or feature type to the **Multiplex PCR List** tab.

To launch the Lists dialog box, choose List > Show Lists from the Vector NTI Workspace/Molecule Viewing window and select the Multiplex PCR tab or choose List > Multiplex PCR List or Analyses > Primer Design > Multiplex PCR List to display the Multiplex PCR tab directly (Figure 20.19). Initially the Multiplex PCR tab of the Lists dialog box is empty.

Note: Run GW ($\underset{\text{Run GW}}{\overset{\textcircled{\mbox{{\scriptsize F}}}}}$) and Run TOPO ($\underset{\text{Run TOPO}}{\overset{\textcircled{\mbox{{\scriptsize F}}}}}$) are tools for managing high throughput prepara-

tive PCR for these respective cloning technologies. They are described fully in Chapter 23.

Li	sts								×
	ີ່ໄລ Add	🗃 Load	📕 Save	X Delete		8 Run	😵 Run GW	Run TOPO	
	Fragments								
Fragments DNA/RNA Molecule pACYC184 Selection 36152802 DNA/RNA Molecule M13mp11 Selection 17136 DNA/RNA Molecule M13mp8 Selection 67781764									
Į	Fragments (Oligos Gel 9	amples M	ultiplex PCR	Alig	gnment	PCR		

Figure 20.19 Multiplex PCR tab of the Lists dialog box with added molecule selections

• Add – Click the Add button to add the highlighted region/feature(s) to the Lists dialog box. The Add Fragment to Multiplex PCR Analysis dialog box opens (Figure 20.20).

Important: If you have not highlighted a molecule or portion of a molecule or portion of a molecule in a Molecule Viewing window in Vector NTI, the **Add** button is greyed out and inaccessible.

Add Fragment to Multiplex PCR Analysis				
O Add Whole Selection	ОК			
Add Features inside Selection	Cancel			
× ·	► Remove All			

Figure 20.20 Add Fragment to Multiplex PCR Analysis dialog box

- Add Whole Selection Adds the selected molecule region to the list for Multiplex PCR analysis (Figure 20.19)
- Add Features Inside Selection From the molecule selection, adds the feature(s) that you designate to the list for Multiplex PCR analysis. Click the Add button () to launch the Add Feature dialog box (Figure 20.21) where you can choose the types of features you want to add.

Add Features		? ×
Feature Type: DNA/RNA Features DNA/RNA Features DNA/RNA Features S Clip D S Clip D S Clip D S UTR D Allele D Altenuator D BHLH Domain D CAT Signal D Contomere D Continct D Cloop	 Add all features of this type Add only features of this type with the following names: Add only features of this type with the following names: 102_0RF 13.6KD 13.6KD 13.6KD 13.6KD	OK Cancel
1: DDC		

Figure 20.21 Multiplex PCR Add Features dialog box

- Feature Type Highlight the feature type from the molecule selection that you want to add.
- Add all features of this type Adds all features of the selected type within the molecule selection.
- Add only features...with the following names Only adds features of the selected type with the names that you specify in the names list.

Once you have added the appropriate feature/feature names, click the **OK** button to accept the configuration. The Add Fragment to Multiplex PCR Analysis dialog box displays the new configuration (Figure 20.22):

Add Fragment to Multiplex PCR Analysis			
C Add Whole Selection	ОК		
Add Features inside Selection	Cancel		
Any CDS	Þ		
+ ·	Remove All		

Figure 20.22 All CDSs in the molecule selection added

Note: Highlight a feature and click the **Remove** (_____) button to delete the feature from the Add Fragment to Multiplex PCR Analysis dialog box.

Click the **OK** button to add the fragment features to the Lists dialog box (Figure 20.23):

Lists												×
	값 Add	Lo	≩ ad	🔒 Save		X Delete		₿ Run	୍ଷ Run GW	' Ri	an TOPO	
Fr	agments											
DN	IA/RNA N	1olecule	pACYC18	84 Feat	ures	(Any CDS	5) insi	ide Select	tion 1424	5	1	
												- 1
												- 1
												- 1
												- 1
												- 1
느							_					
Fra	igments	Oligos	Gel Sa	mples	Multi	iplex PCF	<u> A</u>	ignment F	PCR			

Figure 20.23 Lists dialog box with added features

- Load Click the Load button to load in a previously saved Multiplex PCR molecule list file (.mpcr file).
- Save Click the Save button to save the current Multiplex PCR molecule list to a file (.mpcr file).
- Delete Highlight a molecule on the list and click the Delete button to delete the molecule from the list.
- Run Launches the Multiplex PCR Analysis dialog box.

Performing the Multiplex PCR Analysis

Click the **Run** button on the Lists dialog box to launch the Multiplex PCR Analysis dialog box (Figure 20.25) where you can configure parameters for the PCR analysis (see *Multiplex PCR Dialog Box* below).

Click the **OK** button to begin the primers search. The Searching for PCR Primers dialog box displays, indicating the progress of the search (Figure 20.24):

Searching	g for PCR Primers
.	3 Region(s) to process 0 Cluster(s) build 3 Unclusterized 0 Failed Amplification of M13mp11 Fragment 17136 Generating Antisense Primers
	Stop Search

Figure 20.24 Searching for PCR Primers, Multiplex PCR

Multiplex PCR Dialog Box

Only the tabs and parameters of the Multiplex PCR dialog box that differ from the Find PCR Primers dialog box will be discussed in this section. For a description of the tabs and parameters common to the Multiplex PCR and Find PCR Primers dialog boxes, see page 248 to page 254.

Primer Tab

The options in the **Primer** tab (Figure 20.25) allow you to set parameters for the Multiplex PCR primer search and define attachments, if desired. User-defined primers are not allowed.

Multiplex PCR Analysis		×
Primer Results Amplicon Structure Cluster Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities	Filters	L
Before Amplicon Length After Max 300 bp Min 100 bp Max 300 bp Find Primers in Selection/Feature		
Clustering Multiplex Fold Min 3 Amplicon Length Difference Min 50 C Maximize Clusters C Minimize Clusters		
Salt Conc. 50.0 Probe Conc. 250.0 dG Temperature 25.0 (mMol) (C) (D) (C) (D) <		
Tm (C) >= 40.0 >= 35.0 >= 20 O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O		
<= 65.0 <= 60.0 <= 25 More >>		
Load Save OK Cancel	Apply	

Figure 20.25 Primer tab on the Multiplex PCR dialog box

Prime	Primer Tab Parameters – Multiplex PCR Dialog Box			
Find Primers in Selection/ Feature	Set the parameter to search for primers outside or within the selection/ feature.			
Clustering – Multiplex Fold Minimum	Minimum number of selections/features with comparable parameters to be considered a cluster.			
Clustering – Amplicon Length Difference Mini- mum	Minimum length in base pairs between the amplicons found for the dif- ferent selections/features amplified within a cluster. A larger amplicon length difference helps distinguish amplified products when run on a gel, for example.			
Clustering – Maximum/ Minimum Clusters	Directs the program to divide the selections/features analyzed into more or less clusters. Minimizing the clusters in the case of large numbers of selections/features may lead to increased instances of random priming of found primers.			
User-Defined Primers	This feature is NOT present.			

Table 20.18 Primer tab parameters – Multiplex PCR dialog box

Results Tab

The options in the **Results** tab (Figure 20.26) allow you to specify the output format of the Multiplex PCR primer search.

Multiplex PCR Analysis	×
Primer Results Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities F	filters
Generate Report	
Save PCR products as DNA molecule(s) to DB	
Create Subset Cluster <##> for each Cluster	
Create DNA molecule PCR Product of <molecule name=""><##> for each PCR product</molecule>	
Save Primer(s) as Oligo(s) to DB	
Create Subset Cluster <##> for each Cluster	
Create Oligo	
Create Oligo ASP <molecule name=""><##> for each Antisense Print</molecule>	ner
	[]
Load Save OK Cancel A	Apply

Figure 20.26 Results tab on the Multiplex PCR Analysis dialog box

Result	Results Tab Parameters – Multiplex PCR Dialog Box			
Generate Report (see page 266)	Displays a report of the Multiplex PCR results in a Preview window once the analysis is completed. You can print, copy or save the report to your hard drive from the Preview window (see Figure 20.29). Note: Multiplex PCR results must be saved to an external file; they can- not be saved in the Text Pane of a particular molecule (as is the case for Find Primers PCR results, for example), because they generally pertain to a group of molecules rather than an individual molecule.			
Save PCR Product(s) as DNA Molecule(s) to DB	Allows you to save the resulting PCR products from clusters to the Vec- tor NTI Database. Specify the name for the molecules and the DNA/ RNA subset in which you want to save them.			
Save Primer(s) as Oligo(s) to DB	Allows you to save the resulting PCR primers from clusters to the Vector NTI Database. Specify the name for the primers and the Oligo subset in which you want to save them.			

Table 20.19 Multiplex PCR dialog box, Results tab

Note: At least one of the options on the **Results** tab MUST be selected before you are allowed to continue configuring parameters on the other tabs of the Multiplex PCR Analysis dialog box.

Cluster Tab

The options in the **Cluster** tab (Figure 20.27) specify how closely thermodynamic parameters must match between all primers generated within a cluster.

Multiplex PCR Analysis	×
Primer Results Amplicon Structure	Cluster Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters
For all primers in one cluster:	
Tm Difference (C) <= ∫.〔	%GC Difference <= 10.0
Primer-Primer Complementarity	Primer-Primer 3' End Compl.
✓ Permitted with dG >= -15.0	✓ Permitted with dG >= -3.0
Load Save	OK Cancel Apply

Figure 20.27 Cluster tab, Multiplex PCR Analysis dialog box

Cluster Tab Parameters – Multiplex PCR Analysis Dialog Box		
Tm Difference	Enter difference in degrees Celsius between T _m for primers in a cluster.	
%GC	Enter the difference between GC percentages for primers in a cluster.	
Primer-Primer Comple- mentarity	Check the Permitted box for primer-primer complementarity; enter the minimum permitted value for duplex free energy.	
Primer-Primer 3' End Complementarity	Check the Permitted box for primer-primer 3' end complementarity; enter the minimum permitted value for duplex free energy.	

Table 20.20 Cluster tab parameters, Multiplex PCR Analysis dialog box

Uniqueness Tab

The options in the **Uniqueness** tab (Figure 20.28) determine the uniqueness of the primers generated with respect to the PCR product. These parameters can be used to help ensure that generated primers bind to the desired template area with greater specificity than to the rest of the PCR product.

Note: In the case of Multiplex PCR where many amplicons and primer sets may be used in the same reaction, often the conditions must be relaxed to allow some level of ambiguity in order to obtain results. Setting parameters to maximum stringency may result in no primers found.

Multiplex PCR Analysis			
Primer Results Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters			
C Entire Molecule C Only for Primer Annealing Sites within Amplicons			
I Max Allowed Similarity 75.0 %			
Max Consecutive Match for Entire Primer 10 bp			
Primer 3' End			
Max Consecutive Match 7 bp			
For Last 3' 10 bp Max Complementarity 50.0 %			
Load Save OK Cancel Apply			

Figure 20.28 Uniqueness tab, Multiplex PCR Analysis dialog box

Uniqueness Tab Parameters – Multiplex PCR Dialog Box		
Uniqueness Checks for	Choosing the Entire Molecule option for Multiplex PCR often results in the inability to form clusters. It is recommended that you choose the Only within Primers Annealing Sites in Amplicons option for Multiplex PCR.	

Table 20.21 Uniqueness tab parameters, Multiplex PCR Analysis dialog box

Multiplex PCR Analysis Report

When the search is finished, if you have checked the **Generate Report** option on the **Results** tab, the Multiplex PCR Report preview window displays the results of the analysis (Figure 20.29):



Figure 20.29 Multiplex PCR Analysis results report

Three main folders in the report contain the details of the Multiplex PCR Analysis results:

- Clusterized (Amplicons in Clusters) Contains the PCR results for selections/features amplified within each cluster, organized according to cluster number. Number of selections/features in the cluster appears in parenthesis in the cluster name. Clusters are numbered consecutively beginning with 1 and are listed according to number of selections/features in the cluster from highest to lowest as you move down the report.
- Unclusterized (Amplicons not in any Clusters) Contains the PCR results for selections/features amplified that could not be included as members of a cluster. The number of unclusterized products is shown in parenthesis after the folder name.
- Unamplified Contains the names of selections/features that could not be amplified using the parameters set in the Multiplex PCR dialog box. The number of unamplified products is shown in parenthesis after the folder name.

Click the appropriate buttons to print, copy and/or save the PCR report from the report preview dialog box.

Note: Multiplex PCR results must be saved to an external file; they cannot be saved in the Text Pane of a particular molecule (as is the case for Find Primers PCR results, for example), because they generally pertain to a group of molecules rather than an individual molecule.

The PCR Analysis Folder

After all of the parameters are defined in the PCR Analysis dialog box, click **OK** to begin analyzing/designing the primers.

During PCR primer analysis, Vector NTI generates a number of primer options that satisfy the conditions defined in the PCR Analysis dialog. These options are inserted into your Molecule Display window's Text Pane as subfolders of the PCR Analysis folder (Figure 20.30).

Note: The PCR Analysis folder does not appear for Alignment PCR or Multiplex PCR Analyses. Alignment PCR and Multiplex PCR Analyses have their own reporting functions (see page 263 and page 270, respectively).

🛛 🚍 PCR Analysis	-
🖃 😋 #1: Product of length 924 (rating: 171)	
Contains region of the molecule from 86 to 1009	
Tm: 84.2 C TaOpt: 58.8 C GC: 61.1	
Sense Primer:	
ATGAAATCTAACAATGCGCTC	
Similarity: 100.0%	
Length: 21 Tm: 49.0 C GC: 38.1	
dH: -158.6 kcal/mol_dS: -414.7 cal/mol_dG: -33.2 kcal/mol	
Antisense Primer:	
AATCATAATGGGGAAGGCCA	
Similarity: 100.0%	
Length: 20 Tm: 53.3 C GC: 45.0	
dH: -161.6 kcal/mol_dS: -417.6 cal/mol_dG: -35.3 kcal/mol	
Tm Difference: 4.3	
GC Difference: 6.9	
🖃 🔄 #2: Product of length 926 (rating: 171)	
Contains region of the molecule from 86 to 1011	
Tm: 84.2 C TaOpt: 58.8 C GC: 61.1	
Sense Primer:	
ATGAAATCTAACAATGCGCTC	
Similarity: 100.0%	
Length: 21 Tm: 49.0 C GC: 38.1	
dH: -158.6 kcal/mol_dS: -414.7 cal/mol_dG: -33.2 kcal/mol	
Antisense Primer:	
AGAATCATAATGGGGAAGGC	
Similarity: 100.0%	
Length: 20 Tm: 49.9 C GC: 45.0	
dH: -158.2 kcal/mol_dS: -412.4 cal/mol_dG: -33.5 kcal/mol	
Tm Difference: 0.9	
GC Difference: 6.9	
🖃 🔄 #3: Product of length 927 (rating: 171)	
Contains region of the molecule from 86 to 1012	
Tm: 84.2 C TaOpt: 58.3 C GC: 61.1	•

Figure 20.30 PCR Analysis folder

In the PCR Analysis Folder, the primer results are sorted in descending order according to their rating values calculated based on the importance factors assigned in the **Qualities** tab. The subfolder titles are numbered and show the length and rating of the PCR products they contain. *The typical maximum rating is 171, although higher ratings are occasionally seen.*

Each subfolder contains:

- The coordinates of molecule's region included in the PCR product.
- Melting temperature for the product
- Optimum annealing temperature for the PCR reaction
- GC percentage of the product.

The next two folder sections describe the sense and antisense primers, each identified at the left with the primer icon (\blacksquare).

- The complementarity between the primer and its target sequence
- The actual primer sequence in the $5' \rightarrow 3'$ direction (with attached sequence, if any)
- The primer length in nucleotides
- The primer melting temperature
- The primer's GC percentage
- Primer values for enthalpy, entropy, and free energy.

If the **Check Primers for Restriction Sites From** box was checked on the Structure tab of the PCR Analysis dialog box (Figure 20.3), the primer section also contains a line showing restriction sites found in the primers and attached sequences. A number in parentheses after the cloning site name indicates the number of times that site occurs in the PCR product.

The last line in each product folder shows the difference in the melting temperatures and GC percentages of the sense and antisense primers.

Operations with PCR Products

Note: This section does not apply to Alignment PCR or Multiplex PCR Analyses. Alignment PCR and Multiplex PCR Analyses have their own PCR products operation functions (see page 263 and page 270, respectively).

Several operations can be performed on PCR products listed in the PCR Analysis folder in the Text Pane. Place the cursor on a PCR product folder line in the Text Pane and open the shortcut menu with its options:

- Save as Molecule in Database saves the product as an independent molecule in the database. This option first opens the New DNA/RNA Molecule tabbed dialog box (described in Chapter 19). Enter a name in the text box on the General tab. You can't tab to the other pages without a name. The Description field on the DNA/RNA Molecule tab automatically defines the origin of the fragment. After entering data, click the OK button to save the product to the database.
- Save to Database and Create Window option saves the fragment in the database and immediately opens it in a display window. The option first opens the New Database Molecule dialog box, described immediately above. After entering information, click **OK**. The molecule is saved to the database and is immediately loaded into a Molecule Display window for your review.

Operations with PCR Primers

Note: This section does not apply to Alignment PCR or Multiplex PCR Analyses. Alignment PCR and Multiplex PCR Analyses have their own PCR primers operation functions (see page 263 and page 270, respectively).

Wherever you see the oligo symbol to the left of a primer sequence, (=), you can perform various oligo functions. Place the mouse cursor on the oligo line and open a shortcut menu with these options:

- Analyze opens the Oligo Analysis dialog box (see Chapter 21) for performing oligo analysis.
- Add to Oligo List adds the primer to the Oligo List (see Chapter 21). This may be useful
 if you want to investigate possible duplexes between sense and antisense primers or
 order custom primers (For more information on ordering custom primers, see the next
 section.)
- Save To Database stores it in the database for future use.

Ordering Custom Primers

In Vector NTI Advance 10, you can order custom primers that you have generated and analyzed in the software. Custom primers are synthetic oligonucleotides made with your specified sequence for use in a variety of applications from PCR and sequencing to probes for gene detection.

To initiate the order process, select the oligo from the PCR Analysis Text Pane folder by placing

the mouse cursor on the oligo line (indicated by the oligo symbol \rightleftharpoons to the left of a primer sequence) and open a shortcut menu with a right click. Choose the **Add to Oligo List** feature. In the New Oligo dialog box, enter the name of your oligo and click **OK**. (Additional information pertaining to the New Oligo, such as user fields and keywords, can be entered in the New Oligo dialog box. For more information on adding a new oligo to the database see page 72.) Vector NTI verifies the oligo has been added.

Open the Oligo List dialog box by selecting List > Oligo List. Select the appropriate oligo(s) and

click the **Order** button (). The Invitrogen webpage opens automatically, and your primer

sequence is entered in the custom primer order form. Enter your name and any custom modification you want, such as standard deoxynucleotides, modified bases, 5' modified nucleotides (including fluorescent dyes, enzyme conjugates), and S-oligos for antisense studies. Specifications also include scale of synthesis, level of purity and 5' or 3' modifications. Press the **Add to Cart** button and proceed to checkout, following the steps outlined on the website.

Saving, Viewing and Printing PCR Analysis Results

Note: This section does not apply to Alignment PCR or Multiplex PCR Analyses. Alignment PCR and Multiplex PCR Analyses have their own PCR saving/reporting functions (see page 263 and page 270, respectively).

The Vector NTI Advance data type, *Analysis Results*, enables you to save PCR analysis results to the Vector NTI Advance Database. Saving PCR analysis results to the Database, allows you to view the results in a Molecule Viewing window at a later date and print the results, including the PCR Settings used for the analysis.

Saving PCR Analysis Results to the Database

To save PCR analysis results to the Database, after performing the analysis, right-click on the PCR Analysis folder in the Text Pane of the Molecule Viewing window and choose **Save As**

Analysis Result from the shortcut menu. In the dialog box that opens, name the PCR analysis and select the Analysis Results subset to which you want to save it (Figure 20.31):

Choose New Analysis Result Name		? ×
Add to:		
Analysis Result PCR Analysis of pBR322		
	OK	Cancel

Figure 20.31 Saving PCR results to the Database

Viewing Saved PCR Analysis Results

To view PCR analysis results saved in the Database, open the molecule for which the analysis was performed and saved. In Display Setup, make sure that **Analyses** is checked and that the Analyses Setup is configured appropriately (see Analyses Setup, page 221). This tells Vector NTI to display the designated analyses in the Molecule Viewing window as part of your display profile (Figure 20.32):



Figure 20.32 Saved PCR results displayed in the Molecule Viewing window

Tip: You may want to save one display profile with **Analyses** turned on and one with **Analyses** turned off, so that you may easily choose either profile from your list of saved profiles.

Printing PCR Analysis Results and Settings

When the Analyses parameter is turned on in the display profile, Analysis Results are shown in the Graphics and Sequence Panes and the details of the analysis appear in the Text Pane in the External Analyses folder in a subfolder named according to the name you specified when you saved the result to the Database. The analysis settings you used to perform the PCR analysis appear in the PCR Analysis Settings subfolder.

You can copy with the Camera the results of your PCR analysis, including PCR settings, and print them as follows:

1. Open the folders of interest in the Text Pane.

- 2. Highlight the desired information.
- 3. Copy the selection to the Clipboard (or file) using the Camera tool.
- 4. Paste from the Clipboard (or open the saved file) into a text editor program.
- 5. Print from the text editor program.

Sequencing Primers

To find primers for sequencing a DNA molecule fragment when the molecule is opened in a DNA Molecule Display window, select the target sequence of the molecule—the region to be sequenced. Primers will be generated anywhere within the designated the "Primer Hybridizing Domain" (upstream and downstream). If the sequencing region is long enough, it is divided by Vector NTI into sequencing domains, areas in which a single sequencing reaction will take place. The size of the primer hybridizing domain may then be set (the region in which primers are sought) as well as other desired primer parameters. Several primer options are evaluated and sorted from best to worst.

To prepare for sequencing primer design, open a sequence or Molecule Display window for the molecule and select the region for analysis, using ordinary selection techniques (described in Chapter 3).

Select **Analyses > Primer Design > Sequencing Primers**. *This command is disabled if a selection zone is not defined.* This opens the Sequencing Primers dialog box (Figure 20.33).

Sequencing Primers Dialog Box

Sequencing Primers		? ×	
Molecule: BPV1		ОК	
€ DNA C RNA	Complementary Strand	Cancel	
Sequencing Region From: 101 To: 3593	Sequencing Domain: 300 Primer Hybridizing Domain: 50	Maximum Number of Primer Options for Each Domain: 3	
User-Defined First Primer			
		Analyze	
Primer Similarity Best Fit (No Similarity Threshold)			
Primer Parameters		Primer Quality Specifics	

Figure 20.33 Sequencing Primers dialog box

The options in this dialog box allow you to set parameters for sequencing primer search:

Sequencing Primers Dialog Box Parameters		
DNA/RNA	Select the type of nucleotide sequence.	
Sequencing Region	Region that you want to sequence. Enter the start and end coordinates of the region to be sequenced.	
Sequencing Domain	Enter the number of bases to be sequenced in a single sequencing reaction.	

Table 20.22 Sequencing Primers dialog box parameters

Sequencing Primers Dialog Box Parameters		
Primer Hybridizing Domain	Enter the length of region where primers for each sequencing domain should be sought. Primers are generated within the set domain.	
Maximum Number of Primer Options for Each Domain	Enter the number of primers to be found for each sequencing domain. (The actual result may contain fewer primers than this number if there are not enough possible primers.)	
User-Defined First Primer	Enter a user-defined nucleotide sequence to be evaluated as a primer for the FIRST sequencing domain instead of leaving primer search to Vector NTI.	
Analyze	Click the Analyze button to analyze a specified primer in the Oligo Analysis dialog box (see Chapter 21).	
Primer Similarity	Click the Primer Similarity button to specify similarity requirements in the Similarity of sequencing Primers dialog box (Figure 20.34). (See Table <i>20.23</i>)	
Primer Parameters	Click the Primer Parameters button to set parameters for sequencing primers in the Primer/Oligo Parameters dialog box (Figure 20.35). (See Table 20.24 for description.)	
Primer Quality Specifics	Click the Primer Quality Specifics button to open the Primer/Oligo Quality Specifics dialog box (Figure 20.36) for assigning "importance factors" to sequencing primers.	

Table 20.22 Sequencing Primers dialog box parameters (continued)

After all parameters are defined, click **OK** to search for the primers. During primer analysis, Vector NTI generates a number of primer options that satisfy the conditions you have defined. The primer options appear in the Text Pane as subfolders (Figure 20.30).

Primer Similarity Dialog Box

Click the **Primer Similarity** button in the [Sequencing Primer] [Hybridization Probe] Analysis box to open this dialog box to specify similarity requirements for the primer(s)/probe (Figure 20.34).

Similarity of Seque	ncing Primer(s)		? ×
 Best Fit (No Simil 	arity Threshold)		OK
C >= Similarity Thre	shold		Cancel
Similarity Thresh	old: 75.0		
Last 3 Nucl	olides Must Have 100% S		
Similarity Between	Ambiguous Nucleotides		
 Average 	C Minimum	C Maximum	
• Average	C Minimum	Maximum	

Figure 20.34 Primer Similarity dialog box

Primer Similarity Dialog Box Parameters		
Best Fit	Check this button to specify the search for site(s) with maximum similarity with no set threshold.	
> = Similarity Threshold	Check this button to indicate similarity site search above the specified similarity threshold.	
Similarity Threshold	Enter the percentage of minimally acceptable similarity.	

Table 20.23 Primer Similarity dialog box parameters

Primer Similarity Dialog Box Parameters		
Last Nucleotides Must Have 100% Similarity	Check and specify the number of nucleotides necessary to have 100% complementarity with the target sequence at the 3' end.	
Similarity Between Ambigu- ous Nucleotides	The Average , Minimum , and Maximum buttons specify the acceptable similarity between an ambiguous nucleotide pair. For instance, if you are calculating similarity between N and A, the average similarity is 25%, the minimum similarity is 0%, and the maximum similarity is 100%. In case of R and A they are 50%, 0%, and 100%; in case of R and T - 0%, 0%, and 0%. See similarity chart on page 218.	

 Table 20.23 Primer Similarity dialog box parameters (continued)

Primer/Oligo Parameters Dialog Box

Click the **Primer Parameters** button in the [Sequencing Primer] [Hybridization Probe] Analysis box to open this dialog box to specify acceptable limits for the interaction of the primer(s) or hybridization probes (oligo) with the selected target sequence (Figure 20.35).

Primer/Oligo Paramete	18	? ×	
dG Temperature (C) 25. Probe Conc. (pMol) 250. Salt Conc. (mMol) 50. % Formarride	0 Hairpin Loop Stem Length >= 3 0 Palindromes <= 8 0 Nucleotide Repeats <= 4	Cancel	
Length Tm >= 20 <= 25 ×= 35.0 <= 60.0 C C C C C C C C C C C C C	3' End Ha dG <= [1.0] kcal/mol	sirpin Loops Permitted with dG >= 1.0 imer-Primer Complementarity Permitted with dG >= 15.0 imer-Primer 3' End Compl. Permitted with dG >= -3.0	
Check All Features Only Within 3' Region of 10 bp			

Figure 20.35 Primer/Oligo Parameters dialog box

Primer/Oligo Parameters		
dG Temperature	Enter the temperature in degrees Celsius to be used for calculating free energy values.	
Probe Concentration	Enter the value of probe concentration in pMol, if known.	
Salt Concentration	Enter the value of salt concentration in mMol, if known.	
% Formamide	When hybridizing in formamide, enter the formamide concentration in %.	
Length	Enter primer length limits. Note: Nucleotide sequences such as RENs attached to a primer's 5' end are included when calculating primer length.	
%GC	Enter the limits of G/C percentage in the primer and the difference between GC percentages for sense and antisense primers.	
Tm	Enter limits in degrees Celsius for primer melting temperature (T_m) (temperature at which 50% of primer is a duplex) and the difference between T_m for sense and antisense primers.	

Table 20.24 Primer/Oligo parameters

Primer/Oligo Parameters		
3' End	Specify parameters for the primer's 3' end. In the Length for Analysis field, enter the length of the primer 3' region that should be analyzed. In the dG <= field, specify the maximum permitted value of 3' end free energy. Check the nucleotide boxes to specify permitted last primer nucleotides.	
Hairpin Loop Stem Length > =	Enter the minimum number of base pairs in a hairpin stem. (This value is also used as a minimum stacking length for primer-primer complementarity and primer-primer 3' end complementarity.)	
Palindromes <=	Enter the maximum permitted length of palindromes in primers.	
Nucleotide Repeats <=	Enter the maximum permitted length of nucleotide repeats in primers.	
Hairpin Loops	Check the Permitted box for hairpin loops; enter the minimum permitted value for free energy of hairpin loops. Primers with hairpin loops which have free energy values > /= to this number will be accepted.	
Primer-Primer Comple- mentarity	Check the Permitted box for primer-primer complementarity; enter the min- imum permitted value for duplex free energy.	
Primer-Primer 3' End Complementarity	Check the Permitted box for primer-primer 3' end complementarity; enter the minimum permitted value for duplex free energy.	
Check All Features Only Within 3' Region of	Check this box and enter the length of a 3' region if all of a primer's fea- tures (repeats, palindromes, hairpin loops, dimers) should be checked only within that 3' region.(If this box is empty, the whole primer will be evalu- ated.)	
Primers/Oligos Must Be Unique With Similarity	Check this box and enter the similarity threshold to check primer unique- ness on the molecule. Primers which have parasitic hybridization with simi- larity > /= this threshold will be rejected. Note: this similarity threshold must be = the minimum similarity required for hybridization of user-defined<br primers (if any).	

Table 20.24 Primer/Oligo parameters (continued)

Primer/Oligo Quality Specifics Dialog Box

Click the [**Primer]/[Oligo] Quality Specifics** button in the [Sequencing Primer] [Hybridization Probe] Analysis box to open this dialog box to assign "importance factors" to different primer/ oligo parameters (Figure 20.36).

Primer/Oligo Quality Specifics	1×
"Importance" below must be between 1 and 10: 1 - not important (almost don't care) 10 - crucially important (disregard if not so)	OK Cancel
Importance to be inside specified limits	
Tm: 9 Tm Difference: 9	
3/GC 9 %GC Difference: 9	
Importance to satisfy specified conditions	
Palindromes: 9 Nucleotide Repeats	9
Hairpin Loope: 9 Dimena: 9 3' End	9

Figure 20.36 Primer/Oligo Quality Specifics dialog box

The importance factors are integers between 1 and 10 used in calculating the score evaluating primer/oligo quality. The lower the factor, the less weight given in the calculation. For example, for minimal importance, enter 1 in the appropriate box. For maximum importance, enter 10.

The Sequencing Primers Folder

🛿 🚾 Sequencing Primera: 149 - 471
🗄 🔄 Sequencing Domain #1: from 143 to 443
Primez
I: TGTCGGGGCTGGCTTAACTA
Hybridization elle: 129 Similarity: 100.0%
Length 20 Trix 54.8 C GC: 55.0
dH: 161.9 kosl/mol dS: 416.5 cal/mol dS: 35.9 kosl/mol
E 2: GTGTCGGGGGCTGGCTTAACT
Hybridization site: 128 Similarity: 100.0%
Length: 20 Tin: 55.6 C GC: 60.0
drt -162.4 kcal/mol dS: -416.9 cal/mol dB: -36.3 kcal/mol
■ 3: GGTGTCB999GCT69CTTAAC
Hybridization site: 127 Similarity: 100.0%
Length: 20 Tm: 58:1 C GC: 65.0
dH: 195.6 keal/meil dS: 422.7 cal/mol dB: -37.8 keal/mol
Sequencing Domain #2: from 450 to 471
Primers:
I: TASAGTOGACCTGCAGGCATGC
Hybridization site: 425 Similarity: 100.0%
Length: 22 Tri: 58.0 C GC: 59.1
dH +166.0 keal/mel dS: 422.6 cal/mol dB: -38.2 keal/mol
E 2: NGAGTCGACCTGCAGGCWTG
Hybridization site: 425 Similarity: 100.0%
Length: 20 Tri: 55.0 C GC: 60.0
dH: -149.9 kcal/hol dS: -379.0 cal/hol dS: -34.1 kcal/hol
E 3: TAGAGTOGACCTGCAGGCAT
Hybridization site: 425 Similarity: 100.0%
Length 20 Tex 52.3 C GC 95.0
dht -149.1 koa0mol dS: -363.0 ca/mol dB: -33.1 koa/mol

Figure 20.37 Sequencing Primers folder

The Sequencing Primers folder (Figure 20.37) contains one subfolder with primers for each sequencing domain in the analyzed region. Subfolder titles are numbered and show the length and boundaries of the sequencing domains. Each subfolder contains:

- The primer sequence, in the 5' \rightarrow 3' direction
- The primer hybridization site and primer similarity for that site
- The primer length in nucleotides
- Melting temperature for the primer
- GC percentage of the primer
- Values for enthalpy, entropy, and free energy

Wherever you see the oligo symbol to the left of a primer sequence, (E), you can perform various oligo functions. The shortcut menu associated with these primers, launched by right clicking on the primer sequence, has these options:

- Analyze opens the Oligo Analysis dialog box (see Chapter 21) to perform oligo analysis.
- Add to Oligo List adds the primer to the Oligo List (see Chapter 21). This can be useful to investigate possible duplexes between sense and antisense primers or to order custom primers. For more information on ordering custom primers, see page 273.
- Save To Database stores it in the database for future use.

Hybridization Probes

Hybridization probes analysis is used to design oligonucleotides that will hybridize with a selected molecule fragment, within specified parameters. Vector NTI can generate a set of oligos or use user-defined or database-stored oligos to test for hybridization efficiency with a target molecule.

Open a Molecule Display window for the molecule and select the region for analysis, using ordinary selection techniques (described in Chapter 3).

Select **Analyses > Primer Design > Hybridization Probes**. *This command is disabled if a selection zone is not defined.* This opens the Hybridization Probes dialog box (Figure 20.38).

Hybridization Probes Dialog Box

Hybridization Probes	? ×
Molecule: BPV1	ок
O DNA O RNA O Complementary Strand	Cancel
Search Region Maximum Nun From: 101 To: 3593 Maximum Nun	nber tions: 3
User-Defined Oligo(s)	
Oligo: —	Analyze
ATTACTCTTTTGAATGGTACTCCTG	
Oligo Subset:	~
Oligo Similarity Best Fit (No Similarity Threshold)	
Oligo Parameters Oligo Quality	Specifics

Figure 20.38 Hybridization Probes dialog box

Set parameters in this dialog box for successful hybridization of your probes with your target fragment:

Hybridization Probes Dialog Box Parameters		
Search Region	Enter the start and end coordinates of the region where oligos should be hybridized:	
DNA/RNA	Select the type of nucleotide sequence.	
Maximum Number of Output Options	Enter the number of oligos you would like to find. The actual result may contain fewer oligos than this number if there are not enough possible oligos.	
User-Defined Oligo (s)	Enter an oligo's nucleotide sequence or choose an oligo from the oligo database to check hybridization qualities of a specific oligo. Enter oligo subset name or choose a name from oligo subsets if you want to check hybridization qualities of all oligos in this subset.	
Analyze	Click the Analyze button to analyze a specified oligo. This button brings up the Oligo Analysis dialog box (See Chapter 21).	
Oligo Similarity	Click the Oligo Similarity button to open the Probe Similarity dialog box (Figure 20.34) to specify similarity requirements. (See Table 20.23)	
Oligo Parameters	The Oligo Parameters button opens the Primer/Oligo Parameters dialog box (Figure 20.35). for setting parameters for probes. (SeeTable 20.24 for description.)	
Oligo Quality Specifics	Click the Oligo Quality Specifics button to open the Primer/Oligo Quality Specifics dialog box (Figure 20.36) for assigning "importance factors" to probes.	

Table 20.25 Hybridization Probes dialog box parameters

The Hybridization Probes Folder

Hybridization probe analysis generates oligos that will hybridize with the target sequence and stores them in the Hybridization Probes folder (Figure 20.39) in the Text Pane.



Figure 20.39 The Hybridization Probes folder

If a user-defined oligo was specified, the Hybridization Folder contains only that oligo, if it could hybridize in the defined conditions. The Hybridization folder contains one subfolder for each probe for the analyzed region.

Subfolder titles show the name of the oligo contained within.

For each oligo, the subfolders contain:

- The nucleotide sequence of the probe in the 5'-3' direction
- The oligo hybridization site and similarity
- The oligo length in nucleotides
- The oligo melting temperature
- The oligo GC percentage
- Oligo values for enthalpy, entropy, and free energy.

Wherever you see the oligo symbol to the left of a probe sequence, (), you can perform various oligo functions. Place the mouse cursor on the oligo line and right click to open a shortcut menu with these options:

- Analyze opens the Oligo Analysis dialog box (see Chapter 21) to perform oligo analysis.
- Add to Oligo List adds the primer to the Oligo List (see Chapter 21). This may be useful
 if you want to investigate possible duplexes between sense and antisense primers or
 order custom primers. For more information on ordering custom primers, see page 273.
- Save To Database stores it in the database for future use.

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

C H A P T E R

SEARCH AND ANALYSIS TOOLS

Introduction

This chapter describes Vector NTI's search and analysis functions, including Oligo analyses, ordering Custom Primers, Motifs and ORF searches, Mutagenesis, Translation, Back Translation and various Restriction Enzyme analyses.

Oligonucleotide Analyses

This section describes Vector NTI's oligonucleotide functions, including the Oligo List and the Oligo Editor, Thermodynamic Properties analysis, and Oligo Duplexes dialog boxes. Vector NTI Oligo analysis tools are summarized in the following table:

Analysis/Dialog Box	Purpose
Oligo List	Stores a list of oligos for current use. From this dialog box, add new, edit, analyze, or order oligos.
Edit/New Oligo	Enter new or edit oligo data, including name, sequence, user fields, comments, keywords.
Thermodynamic Proper- ties (Oligo Analysis)	Set limits for annealing conditions with target sequence; analyze oligo for meeting specified criteria.
Dimers and Hairpin Loops	Examine oligo's dimer and hairpin loop structures.
Oligo Duplexes	Generate all possible duplexes of selected oligos.

Table 21.1 Oligo Analysis Tools

The Oligo List

The Oligo List is a data clipboard for listing and analyzing oligonucleotides from a display window or from the database. Oligonucleotides can be user-defined or determined by selecting a target sequence and letting VNTI design an oligo for the sequence. From this central list, you can add new oligos or select existing ones for editing and analysis. To open the Oligo List tab of the Lists dialog box (Figure 21.1), in the Vector NTI workspace or Molecule Viewing windows, click the Open Oligo List button (choose List > Oligo List from the menu.

Lists	×
Land Save Edit Remove Analyze Duplexes Order	
Oligos	
PRM1(DNA): AACGCAGTCAGGCACCGTGT Sense primer for PCR amplification of 86-1286 region of pBR322 PRM2(DNA): ATCCGTTAGCGAGGTGCCGC Antisense primer for PCR amplification of 86-1286 region of pBR322	
Fragments Oligos Gel Samples Multiplex PCR Alignment PCR	

Figure 21.1 Oligo List dialog box

Note: Initially, the Oligo List is empty.

Button options in the dialog box are summarized as follows:

	Oligo List Dialog Box Parameters	
Add	Opens the Oligo Editor dialog box (Figure 21.2) to enter a new oligo to the Oligo list. Note: The calculation does not include an H atom at the 5' end and an OH group at the 3' end of the oligo. It does include the PO4 group at the 5' end.	
Load	Loads oligos into the list from the VNTI oligo database.	
Save	Click Save to Database button (
Edit	Opens the Oligo Editor dialog box (Figure 21.2) to edit the selected oligo.	
Remove	Removes the selected oligo from the Oligo List.	
Analyze	Initiates oligo analysis on the selected oligo. (See Figure 21.1)	
Duplexes	Investigates the duplexes on one or more oligos. (See Figure 21.1)	
Order	Link to Invitrogen to order custom primers (see section on Ordering Custom Primers below).	

Table 21.2 Oligo List dialog box parameters

Order Custom Primers

In Vector NTI Advance 10, you can order custom primers that you have generated and analyzed in the software. Custom primers are synthetic oligonucleotides made with your specified sequence for use in a variety of applications from PCR and sequencing to probes for gene detection.

Open the Oligo List dialog box by selecting List > Oligo List (Figure 21.1). Select the appropri-

ate oligo(s) and click the Order button (🌞). The Invitrogen webpage opens automatically,

and your primer sequence is entered in the custom primer order form. Enter your name and any custom modification you want, such as standard deoxynucleotides, modified bases, 5⁻ modified nucleotides (including fluorescent dyes, enzyme conjugates), and S-oligos for antisense studies. Specifications also include scale of synthesis, level of purity and 5' or 3' modifications. Press the Add to Cart button and proceed to checkout, following the steps outlined on the website.

Oligo Editor Dialog Box

To open the New/Edit Oligo dialog box, called the Oligo Editor:

- Database Explorer: select the Oligo subset in the drop-down menu, select an oligo from the list in the Object Pane and double-click on it, select Oligo > Edit or press the Edit button ().
- Molecule Viewing window: In the Text Pane showing oligos, highlight an oligo and either right click and select Add to Oligo List from the shortcut menu or click on the Add to Oligo List button (
), or click Add in the Oligo List dialog box (see previous section).

The dialog box that opens is the same for a new oligo or one to be edited (Figure 21.2).

New Oligo		×
General Oligo Use	er Fields Comments Keywords	
PRM1		
		_
Type: Oligo		
Record #: 65		
Status: Foreign (i	imported and not modified)	
Originally Created by:	Infothing Inc.	_
Originally created by.	About	
Creation date:	01/01/96 12:00PM	
		-
Last Modification by:	InforMax, Inc. About	
Modification date:	12/14/00 03:50PM	
	OK Cancel Apply H	elp

Figure 21.2 Oligo Editor dialog box

The Oligo Editor contains information for one oligo at a time. In the New Oligo dialog box, you will enter all data including the oligo sequence (except when opened from an oligo in a Text Pane folder. In that case, the sequence is already entered.) To enter or modify information about an oligo on the tabs:

General: Enter or edit the name of the oligo.

Oligo:

- Select a radio button for the oligo type.
- Check the **Reverse Complementary** box to replace the oligo with its complementary sequence.
- In the Nucleotide Sequence box, enter or edit the standard I.U.B. base code characters for the molecule sequence. (See Appendix C.)
- Enter the oligo's description.

User Fields: Modify custom data in a form of fields (see Chapter 17 for User Fields details.)

Comments: Enter text comments about the oligo.

Keywords: To add a keyword for the oligo, type a new word or select an item in the list of existing keywords. Click the **< Add** button to move the keyword into the oligo's keyword list. To remove an item from the keyword list, select it and press the **> Remove** button.

Exit Oligo Editor by clicking **OK** or **Cancel**.

Thermodynamic Properties Analysis (Oligo Analysis) Dialog Box

Oligonucleotides for analysis can be selected by selecting a target sequence and letting VNTI design an oligo for the sequence or entering a user-defined oligo.

• Select a target sequence in an open Molecule Display window, and select **Analyses > Oligo Analyses > Thermodynamic Properties**; the oligo selected by Vector NTI is displayed in the text box of the Oligo Analysis dialog box (Figure 21.3) that opens.

or

 Open the Oligo Analysis dialog box first with Analyses > Oligo Analyses > Thermodynamic Properties, and then enter a user-defined oligo sequence in the Oligonucleotide text box

You can also select an oligo listed in a Text Pane folder and select **Analyze** from the shortcut menu.

Oligo Analysis		<u>? ×</u>
Oligonucleotide: PRM1	Length: 20	
AACGCAGTCAGGCACCGT	GT	
💿 DNA 🔿 RNA 🛛 🗖 Co	mplementary Analyze S	ave Results Close
Parameters		Palindromes:
dG Temperature (C) 25.0	Mol. Wt	
Probe Conc.(pMol) 250.0) %GC	
Salt Conc.(mMol) 50.0	Therm. Tm	
% Formamide 0.0	%GC Tm	
3' End Length (bp) 7	dGi	Repeats:
Palindromes (bp) 6	3' End dG	
Nucl. Repeats (bp)	dH	
Stem Length (bp) 3	dS	
	Dimers & Hairpin Loops	

Figure 21.3 Oligo Analysis dialog box

Select radio buttons for molecule type, and check **Complementary** to replace the oligo with its complement.

The **Parameters** column lets you accept default settings or specify acceptable limits for the interaction of the oligo with its selected target sequence. Settings are summarized as follows:

Oligo Analysis Parameters		
dG Temperature	Enter the temperature in degrees Celsius to be used for calculating free energy values.	
Probe Concentration	Enter the value of probe concentration in pMol.	
Salt Concentration	Enter the value of salt concentration in mMol.	
%Formamide	When hybridizing in formamide, enter the formamide concentration in %.	
3' End Length (bp)	Specify the length of the oligo 3' region that should be analyzed.	
Palindromes	Enter the minimum length of palindromes to search for.	
Nucleotide Repeats	Enter the minimum length of nucleotide repeats to search for.	

Table 21.3 Oligo Analysis parameters
	Oligo Analysis Parameters
Stem Length	Enter the minimum number of base pairs in a hairpin or dimer stem.

Table 21.3 Oligo Analysis parameters (Continued)

Note: The calculation for Tm is dependent on primer and salt concentrations; varying these concentrations can greatly affect the Tm for any given primer. Make sure to adjust these parameters according to your reaction conditions when performing your oligo analysis to ensure that you obtain accurate Tm values.

After these parameters are set, click **Analyze**. Results are summarized in the same dialog box as follows:

	Oligo Analysis Results
Mol. Wt	Molecular weight of the oligo.
%GC	The percentage of G and C in the oligo.
Therm. Tm	The melting temperature (temperature at which 50% of the oligo is a duplex) calculated by the Nearest-Neighbors method. <i>This is useful for short oligos, < ~35 bp.</i>
% GC Tm	The %GC Tm field shows the melting temperature calculated by the %GC method. <i>This is useful for long oligos, > ~35-40 bp.</i>
dG	The free energy values of the entire oligonucleotide.
3' End dG	The free energy of the 3' end of the oligo.
dH	The enthalpy of the entire oligo.
dS	The entropy of the entire oligo.
Palindromes	Examine the palindromes in the oligo.
Nucleotide Repeats	Examine the nucleotide in the oligo.

Table 21.4 Oligo Analysis results

Click the **Dimers & Hairpin Loops** button to examine the oligo's dimers and hairpin loops. Both are undesirable secondary structures that interfere with hybridization or amplification efficiency.

Dimers & Hairpin Loops Dialog Box



Figure 21.4 Dimers & Hairpin Loops dialog box

Note: In the graphical depiction of dimers and hairpin loops, vertical lines indicate the primary interaction, based on the stem length set and plus symbols indicate secondary interactions. The greater the dG value, the weaker the interaction; secondary interactions are not considered in the dG calculation.

Dimers

Dimers are formed when one oligo anneals to another oligo. See the Dimer example in the upper pane of Figure 21.4. Examine the dimers the oligo contains. Click the **Next** (\rightarrow) button to view the next dimer. Click the **Previous** button (\ll) to view the previous dimer.

Hairpin Loops

Hairpin loops are formed when an oligo doubles back on itself. See the Hairpin Loop example in the lower pane of Figure 21.4. Examine the hairpin loops the oligo contains. Click the **Next**

 (\rightarrow) button to view the next hairpin loop. Click the **Previous** button (<) to view the previous hairpin loop.

Note: To avoid any of the observed results in your final product, modify the oligo or the parameter settings and re-analyze the oligo.

Oligo Duplexes Dialog Box

This dialog box is opened by pressing the **Duplexes** button in the Oligo List dialog box or by selecting **Analyses > Oligo Analyses > Oligo Duplexes**. The Oligo Duplexes dialog box (Figure 21.5) allows you to generate all possible duplexes of selected oligonucleotides.

Oligo Duplexe	25				? ×
Analyze	Save Results	Add New	Remove		Close
PRM1(DNA):	AACGCAGTCAG	GCACCGTGT	Sense primer fo	r PCR amplification	of 86 - 128
•					Þ
Database	Oligo List	dG Temperature	e (C): 25.0	Stem Length (bp):	3
~< >>	1 of 4				
AACGCAG + TGTGCCAC Stem Len Dimer dG	TCAGGCACCGT + + + +++ GGACTGACGCA gth = 3 ; = 0.0 kca]	[GT ↓ ÀA L/mol			

Figure 21.5 Oligo Duplexes dialog box

The upper pane shows oligonucleotides that are currently in the workspace. Select one oligo to analyze self-duplexes. Select any two oligos to analyze their cross-duplexes. Options in the dialog box are summarized as follows:

- Analyze: analyzes duplexes of the selected oligos when one or two oligos are selected, click to generate. At least one, but no more than two oligos, must be selected to enable the Analyze button.
- Save Results: Save results to the database.
- Add New: opens the Oligo Editor to enter a new oligo for the Oligo Duplexes workspace.
- Remove: removes selected oligos from the workspace.
- **Database:** adds oligos to the workspace from the oligo database.
- Oligo List: adds oligos to the workspace from the Oligo List.
- dG Temperature: enter the temperature in degrees Celsius to be used for calculating free energy values.
- Stem Length: enter the minimum acceptable number of base pairs in a hairpin or dimer stem.

The display pane at the bottom shows the dimers found in oligos selected in the top display window. The stem length and dimer dG are shown. Use the scroll bar to move left or right along the dimer. Click the **Next** button (\rightarrow) to view the next dimer. Click the **Previous** button (\rightarrow) to view the previous dimer.

Note: In the graphical depiction of duplexes, vertical lines indicate the primary interaction, based on the stem length set and plus symbols indicate secondary interactions. The greater the dG value, the weaker the interaction; secondary interactions are not considered in the dG calculation.

ORFs and Motifs Search

You can use Vector NTI tools to search for ORFs and user-defined motifs on DNA molecules. Both searches are launched from setup dialog boxes where you define parameters for the search. To initiate either search, in a Molecule Display window select **Analyses > ORF** or **Anal**-

yses > Motifs or click the **Display Setup** button () and select **Display Setup** from the dropdown menu. In the Display Setup dialog box, check the Motifs or ORFs checkbox to activate the **Motifs Setup** or **ORFs Setup** button, opening the corresponding dialog box. The parameters in these boxes are discussed in depth in Chapter 18.

After setting parameters, click **OK** to launch either search.

ORFs Search Results

ORFs search results are displayed in a Text Pane folder, listing the ORF regions meeting the criteria specified in the search. ORFs are displayed as black arrows in the Graphics Pane (Figure 21.6). Phase indicators in the left margin of the Sequence Pane show the phases of the ORFs. For the direct strand, the phase is determined by the position of the first select nucleotide relative to the beginning of the molecule. For the complementary strand, the phase is determined by the position of the molecule. To eliminate the ORF arrow display, return to the Display Setup dialog box and uncheck **ORFs Setup**.



Figure 21.6 ORFs search results

Ultimate ORF Blast

Invitrogen has generated a database of proprietary ORFs, the Invitrogen Ultimate[™] ORF collection. With the Ultimate ORF BLAST web tool in Vector NTI Advance, you can BLAST your fragments obtained from an ORF search against the Ultimate[™] ORF collection. Using this tool, you may determine that your sequence has been previously characterized and is commercially available from Invitrogen.

To launch a search using Ultimate ORF Blast, select the target sequence by left-clicking and dragging the mouse across nucleotides in the Sequence Pane, or locating the folder in the Text Pane (under the **Open Reading Frames** subfolders) containing the target sequence. Click on the target sequence. With the target sequence selected, select **Tools > Ultimate ORF Blast**. The Sequence Data dialog box opens, allowing you to set the search parameters:

- **Range** selects the range of the target sequence: the entire sequence, a selected sequence or a selected CDS.
- Strand selects either the direct or complementary strand.

Click OK to begin the search or Cancel to abort the search process.

The Ultimate ORF Blast tool copies your target sequence and pastes it into the UltimateTM ORF Browser Sequence Text entry box located on the Invitrogen webpage, which opens automatically when you launch this tool.

Select the animal species to search the sequence query against, checking the **Human** and/or **Mouse** checkbox located above the Sequence Text entry box. To proceed with your search, click the **BLAST** button. The Blast dialog box appears, informing you that it is blasting your sequence.

Once your search is completed, the UltimateTM ORF Browser displays your search results. If your search identifies similar ORFs, the target sequence, or UltimateTM ORF clone, is commercially available through the Invitrogen website, <u>http://www.invitrogen.com</u>.

Motifs Search Results

Motifs found in a motifs search are displayed in a Motifs folder in the Text Pane and concurrently on the molecule map in the Graphics Pane (not shown). The shortcut menu that opens from a selected motif lists three commands specific to motifs:

- **Motif Site Properties** displays the site and the percent similarity of the query motif with that found on the molecule at that site
- Add Motif Site to F(eature)Map opens the Molecule Feature dialog box where you can name and categorize the motif before adding it to the molecule.
- Find Motif site (in the Graphics Pane) positions the caret at the motif site on the molecule map.

Mutagenesis

In a DNA/RNA Molecule Display window, you can search for "silent mutations" which, in any selected region, do not affect amino acid translation of the selected DNA but result in presence or disappearance of one or more restriction sites. You can search separately for direct or complementary sequence strand mutations.

To search for the silent mutations make sure that Display Setup contains Restriction Map options for an at least one restriction enzyme. Select a region of a molecule in the display window and choose **Analyses > Mutagenesis>Direct (or Complementary) Strand**.

In the Choose Restriction Enzymes dialog box that opens, select one or more restriction enzyme sites to be analyzed. Select at least one enzyme.

Note: You can only analyze restriction sites for the enzymes listed in the dialog box. To modify the enzyme selection, select **Analyses > Restriction Analyses > Restriction Sites** to open the Restriction Map Setup dialog box where you can modify the list of RENs in use. For a discussion of Restriction Map Display Setup, see Chapter 18.

Click **OK** to initiate the mutagenesis search. Vector NTI analyzes the selected region of the molecule and attempts to generate suitable silent mutations. The reading frame for amino acids is defined by the start of the selected region so that the first three nucleotides of the selected region form the first codon.

Note: The program is able to find both "single" (just one nucleotide altered) and "multiple" (several neighbor nucleotides altered) mutations for any elementary event (appearing and/or disappear-

ing of at least one site) significantly widening the set of possible solutions compared to just "single"-mutation analysis.

The analysis results are listed in the Mutagenesis folder	r (Figure 21.7) of the Text Pane of the
display window.	



Figure 21.7 Mutagenesis folder

The folder contains a list of mutation options that result in the appearing and/or disappearing of at least one restriction site. The options are sorted by the position of the first altered nucleotide. If you selected the complementary strand option, mutation coordinates on both complementary and direct strands are listed.

To identify a mutation region on the molecule for each mutation option, set the cursor on a num-

bered line under the Region line. Click the **Find** button (**M**), the CTRL + F keys, select **Edit** > **Find Mutation**, or the corresponding command on the shortcut menu. This locates the nucleotides to be altered according to the mutation option.

Translation

Vector NTI offers a number of translation options, both for translating in the Sequence Pane of the Molecule Viewing window and for translating into a new molecule.

Translating in the Sequence Pane

A variety of Sequence Pane translation options are available under the Analyses drop down menu by choosing **Analyses > Translation > In Sequence Pane > <translation option>** (Figure 21.8):



Figure 21.8 Analyses menu Sequence Pane translation options

- Direct Strand displays a translation of the direct strand selection in the current frame
- **Complementary Strand** displays a translation of the complementary strand selection in the current frame
- 6 Frame Translation displays six translations of the selection, three direct strand and three complementary strand translations, in the Sequence Pane
- Feature(s) displays the translation of the selected Feature(s)
- ORFs displays translations of ORFs displayed in the Graphics Pane according to filtering parameters that you designate
- **Notes:** Translations of the direct strand appear above the sequence; translations of the complementary strand appear below the sequence.
 - You can select three- or one-letter amino acid codes through the Display Setup dialog box.

To clear Sequence Pane translations, do one of the following:

- Click the Erase Translations button ()
- Choose View > Clear All Translations from the drop-down menu or the corresponding command from the shortcut menu.

Translating into a New Protein Molecule

You can translate a DNA/RNA molecule selection into a new Protein molecule stored in the Vector NTI Database. The selected portion of a DNA/RNA molecule can be translated (direct or complementary strand) and saved in the Vector NTI Database by choosing the **File > Create New Sequence > Using Translation Procedure (Protein) > <strand option>** from the dropdown menu in the Vector NTI Molecule Viewing window. Other options for translating DNA/RNA selections into new protein molecules are available under the Analyses drop-down menu by choosing **Analyses > Translation > Into New Protein > <translation option>** (Figure 21.9):



Figure 21.9 Analyses menu translation into new Protein molecule options

- **Direct Strand** creates a new protein molecule from the direct strand translation of the current selection
- **Complementary Strand** creates a new protein molecule from the complementary strand translation of the current selection
- 6 Frame Translation creates six new protein molecules, one for each of the three direct and three complementary frame translations
- Feature creates a new protein molecule from the translation of the selected feature
- CDS with Splicing creates a new protein molecule from an Intron/Exon CDS feature by joining the Exons and then translating
- **Note:** Protein molecules created by translation display a table of codon usage in the Analysis folder in the Text Pane of the Molecule Viewing window.

Setting the Genetic Code for DNA/RNA Translations

In Vector NTI, Standard genetic code is used for translations by default. However, you can choose from among a list of alternate genetic codes or create your own custom genetic code to use for translations.

For more information on genetic codes, see <u>http://www.ncbi.nih.gov/Taxonomy/Utils/</u> wprintgc.cgi?mode=c. To change the genetic code used in translations, select **Analyses > Translation > Set Genetic Code** from the drop-down menu in the Vector NTI workspace or Molecule Viewing windows. The Genetic Codes dialog box appears (Figure 21.10):

netic	: Code					?
Stan	idard					T
N	ew	Delete				Reset
		2nd				
1st	T	С	A	G	3rd	A Ala M Met
	F Phe	S Ser	Y Tyr	C Cys	Т	C.Cus. N.Ann
Т	F Phe	S Ser	Y Tyr	C Cys	С	D Are D Dr
	L Leu	S Ser	* ***	* ***	Α	D Asp P Pro
	L Leu	S Ser	* ***	W Trp	G	E Giu 🛛 Q Gin
	L Leu	P Pro	H His	R Arg	Т	F Phe R Arg
С	L Leu	P Pro	H His	R Arg	С	G Glv S Ser
	L Leu	P Pro	Q Gin	R Arg	Α	
	L Leu	P Pro	Q Gin	R Arg	G	
	l lle	T Thr	N Asn	S Ser	Т	l lle VVal
А	l lle	T Thr	N Asn	S Ser	С	K Lys 🛛 W Trp
	l lle	T Thr	K Lys	R Arg	Α	L Leu Y Tyr
	M Met	T Thr	K Lys	R Arg	G	X XXX
	V Val	A Ala	D Asp	G Gly	Т	
G	V Val	A Ala	D Asp	G Gly	С	
	V Val	A Ala	E Glu	G Gly	Α	OK
	V Val	A Ala	E Glu	G Gly	G	Cancel

Figure 21.10 Genetic Codes dialog box

From the drop-down list at the top of the Genetic Codes dialog box, select the type of genetic code you want to use for translations (Figure 21.11):

Ger	netio	: Code						? X
r								
	Star	Idard						•
	Molo Scer	l, Protozoa nedesmus	in, Coelent Obliquus N	erate Mito /litochondi	. and Myc ial	o/Spin	oplasma	-
	Stan	dard						
	Thra	ustochytrii	um Mitochi	ondrial				
	Tren	natode Mit	ochondrial					
	Verte	ebrate Mito	ochondrial					
Ľ	Yea	st Mitocho	ndrial					•
		F Phe	S Ser	Ylyr	CLYS		C Cys N	Apn
	Т	F Phe	S Ser	YTyr	C Cys	Ċ	D Asp 1	

Figure 21.11 Genetic Codes dialog box code selection drop-down list

If the desired genetic code type is not available on the drop-down list or if you want to create your own custom genetic code, click the **New** button on the Genetic Codes dialog box (Figure 21.12):

New Genetic Code	<u>? ×</u>
String:	ОК
Jills custom code	Cancel

Figure 21.12 Naming the new genetic code

In the New Genetic Code dialog box, type in the name for the new code you are about to define and click the **OK** button to continue. The Genetic Code dialog box now displays the name of your new code and the buttons for defining the new code are enabled (Figure 21.13):

Ge	netio	: Code						? ×
	Jills	custom co	de					•
	N	ew	Delete				 Re	set
			2nd					
	1st	Т	С	A	G	3rd	A Ala	M Met
		A Ala	S Ser	Y Tyr	C Cys	T	C. Cus	N Ann
	Т	F Phe	S Ser	Y Tyr	C Cys	С		D.D. I
		G Gly	S Ser	* ***	* ***	Α	UASP	P Pro
		L Leu	S Ser	* ***	W Trp	G	E Glu	Q Gin
		L Leu	P Pro	H His	R Arg	Т	F Phe	R Arg

Figure 21.13 Defining a custom genetic code

To define your custom genetic code, perform the following steps:

- Highlight the amino acid you want to change in the table on the left side of the Genetic Codes dialog box
- Press the appropriate amino acid button on the right side of the dialog box to redefine the highlighted box in the table
- Repeat the above two steps for each amino acid you want to change in the table
- Click the **OK** button to save your custom genetic code and designate it as that to be used for translations

When a custom genetic code is selected in the Genetic Codes dialog box, the **Delete** button is enabled, allowing you to delete the custom created code from the drop-down selection list.

Note: When a non-standard genetic code is displayed in the Genetic Codes dialog box, amino acids that differ from the Standard code appear shaded, as is seen in the following figure (Figure 21.14):

N	614	Delete-				B	9996
		2nd			1883 ·		
lst	180 1 -08	C	Α	G	3rd	A.Ala	M Me
3	F Phe	S Ser	YTyr	C Cys	12	C Das	-N'Apr
T	F Phe	S Ser	YTyr	C Cys	C	D.A.	Differen
8	L Leu	S Ser	8 300	W Trp	A	DAQ	11110
	L Leu	S Ser	8 100	W Tip	G	: E Bibr	Q Gh
123	L Leu	P Pro	H His	R Aig		FiPhe	BAg
C	L Leu	P Pro	H His	R Arg	C.	G Gip	-Si Ser
	L Leu	P Pro	Q Gin	R Aig	A	Li Gra	TTO
	L Leu	P Pro	QGIn	R Arg	G	0.018	1.046
26	l lle	Tiltr	N Asn	S Ser	10	fille: .	- VNd
A	He	Tibr	N Asn	S Ser	200	K.Lyz.	:Witte
	l lle	M Met	K Lys		A	L Leo	Y Te:
	M Met	Tihr	K Lys	* ***	G	1 1994 -	
33	V Val	A.Ala	D Asp	G Gly			1.1
6	VVal	A.Ala	D Asp	GGIy	C		
58	V Val	A.Ala	E Glu	G Gly	A		אכ

Figure 21.14 Non-standard code with highlighted amino acids

Back Translation

The Back Translation feature of Vector NTI Advance allows you to obtain a DNA sequence from a protein sequence by reversing the translation process. You can select from a list of codon usage table options or configure your own custom codon usage table. You can also set the display to show degrees of ambiguity in the Back Translation, from most ambiguous to most probable, as defined in the selected translation table.

Opening the Back Translation Dialog Box

You can launch the Back Translation dialog box (Figure 21.15) either from a Protein Molecule display window or from the Vector NTI Suite program files on your hard drive or Start menu as follows:

- From a Protein Molecule Display window, choose Analyses > Back Translation.
- From the Start menu, choose Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > Utilities > Back Translation.
- From the Vector NTI Suite program files on your hard drive, double-click on the Back Translation executable file (BT.exe).

If you open the Back Translation dialog box from a Protein Molecule display window, the dialog box opens with that protein displayed. If you open the Back Translation dialog box from the Start menu or Vector NTI program files, an empty Back Translation dialog box opens. To populate the empty Back Translation dialog box, select **File > Open** from the menu to open previously saved protein documents or drag and drop a Protein Molecule from the Vector NTI Protein Database into the Back Translation dialog box.

.	seq.txt	- BT														<u>- 🗆 ×</u>
File	Table	Camera	Help													
	1	MGND	NC YNV	ZVV 🔅	IVLLI	VGCE	EK VO	GAVQI	ISCDI	A CON	GTF	CRKY	NPV	CKSCI	PPS	
	51	TFSS	SIGG	2PN (CNICH	NCAG	GY FI	RFKKI	ress	Γ HNJ	AECE	CIEG	FHCI	GPQ	CTR	1
	101	CEKI	DCRPG	GQE I	LTKQ	GCKT	CS LO	GTFNI	DQNG	r gvo	CRPW	ncs	LDGI	RSVLI	КТG	1
	151	TTE	KDVVG	GP 1	PVVSI	SPST	FT IS	SVTPI	EGGP	G GHS	SLQVI	TLF	LAL	FSALI	LLA	
	201	LIFI	ITLLE	sv I	LKWI	RKKFI	PH IN	FKQPI	KKT	Γ GAJ	AQEEI	ACS	CRCI	QEEI	EGG	
	251	GGG	YEL													-
	odon Usa 2 plaque v ranslation	ge i able- /irus Table													Change	
S	tandard						•] /- lea:	st dege	nerate					most de	generate
	+1	Met	Giy	Asn	Asn	Cys	Tyr	Asn	Val	Val	Val	lle	Val	Leu	Leu	
	1	ATG	GGA	AAT	AAT	TGT	TAT	AAT	GTG	GTG	GTG	ATA	GTG	TTA	TTA	
	+1	Leu	Val	Gly	Cys	Glu	Lys	Val	Gly	Ala	Val	Gin	Asn	Ser	Cys	
	43	TTA	GTG	GGA	TGT	GAA	AAG	GTG	GGA	GCA	GTG	CAA	AAT	TCA	TGT	
	+1	Asp	Asn	Cys	Gin	Pro	Gly	Thr	Phe	Cys	Arg	Lys	Tyr	Asn	Pro	
	85	GAT	AAT	TGT	CAA	CCA	GGA	ACA	TTT	TGT	AGA	AAG	TAT	AAT	CCA	
	+1	Val	Cys	Lys	Ser	Cys	Pro	Pro	Ser	Thr	Phe	Ser	Ser	lle	Gly	-
	3 letters i	n translatio	on					Cop	by seler	otion		Сору	all		E>	ait
Read	ly ````														NUM	

Figure 21.15 Back Translation dialog box

The protein sequence appears in the upper pane of the Back Translation dialog box in a format similar to that in the Sequence Pane of a Protein Molecule Display window. The back translation appears in the lower pane of the Back Translation dialog box. You can change the Codon Usage and Translation tables used for the back translation, which you can display in one or three-letter code and to various degrees of degeneracy.

Codon Usage Tables

The Back Translation feature in Vector NTI allows you to specify the codon usage table you want to use for the back translation. You have the option of choosing the codon usage table from a list of many thousands of stock codon usage tables or of creating and using your own custom codon usage table.

Back Translation also has the ability to detect and repair damaged/corrupt codon usage tables.

Changing the Codon Usage Table

The current Codon Usage Table used for back translation appears in the Codon Usage Table section below the sequence. To change the current codon usage table, click the **Change** button or choose **Table > Change Codon Usage Table** from the menu to open the Codon Usage Tables dialog box (Figure 21.16):

don Usage Tables								
Sporosarcina sp.	Staphyle	ococcus aure	us					
Sporosarcina ureae								
Sporothrix schenckii		31.6	Писи	14.4	TIALL	32.9	LIGH	4.9
Spring viremia of carp virus	000	101.0	1000	1.4.4	1000	52.5	000	14.0
5 qualus acanthias	UUC	11.2	UCC	2.3	UAC	9.7	UGC	1.4
Squash leaf curl virus		47.6	LICA	21.5		22	LIGA	0.5
Squash wellow mettle vinue	DOA	47.0	I UCA	21.5	UAA	2.3	DUA	0.0
Squash yellow mottle virus	UUG	12.9	UCG	4.0	UAG	0.6	UGG	7.8
Sri Lankan cassava mosaic virus			-		-		-	
St. Thomas 3 rotavirus		11.3	CCU	11.3	CAU	16.5	CGU	11.7
Stachvbotrvs chartarum		27	000	1.3	CAC	47	CGC	2.9
Standard								
Staphylococcus arlettae	CUA	8.9	CCA	14.9	CAA	34.0	CGA	4.5
Staphylococcus aureus	CUG	2.7	CCG	3.2	CAG	5.4	CGG	0.7
Staphylococcus aureus bacteriophage		1	1	,	1		1	J
Staphylococcus aureus bacteriophage	AUU	47.7	ACU	18.4	AAU	48.6	AGU	18.1
Staphylococcus aureus phage phi 11								
Staphylococcus aureus prophage phi	AUC	13.7	ACC	3.4	AAC	16.6	AGC	6.7
Staphylococcus aureus subsp. arraero		21.6		29.1		70.3	AGA	12.8
Staphylococcus aureus subsp. aureus								
Staphylococcus aureus temperate nha	AUG	23.5	ACG	8.4	AAG	16.5	AGG	2.1
Staphylococcus auricularis		05.0		40.4	Low L	45.0	0.001	00.7
Staphylococcus capitis	GUU	25.2	GCU	19.1	GAU	45.8	GGU	28.7
Staphylococcus capitis subsp. capitis 🔤	GUC	6.7	GCC	4.3	GAC	13.5	GGC	8.7
Staphylococcus caprae								1
Staphylococcus carnosus	GUA	J22.0	GUA	25.9	GAA	55.1	GGA	14.6
Staphylococcus chromogenes 🛛 🖵	GUG	85	GCG	72	GAG	11.2	GGG	4.2
	1	1		1	1		1	1
4056 Table(s)	Cre	ate Table	Сор	y+Rename	Sa	ave Table	De	lete Table
ilter		Apply Filter	l Pa	ste Table	ΙŪυ	se Table		Close

Figure 21.16 Codon Usage Tables dialog box

- **Current Table Name** shown in the grey area above the codon usage table values. A list of codon usage table choices appears on the left side of the dialog box. Highlight the table of interest to select it. The selected codon usage table data appears on the right.
- **Important:** A newly selected table must be registered as the new current table. See the **Use Table** bullet below.

You can navigate through the codon usage table list by highlighting an entry in the list and typing the first letter (or first few letters, quickly), using the keyboard, of the name of the codon usage table you want to move to. The list scrolls to that area.

- Filter provides another method of selecting a codon usage table. Type the name or
 part of the name of the codon usage table in the Filter text box and click the << Apply
 Filter button to select it. Codon usage table names containing the entered text display in
 the list; any table names not containing the entered phrase are filtered out of the list.
- **Create Table** clears the codon usage data from the right side of the dialog box. To create a new, custom codon usage table, enter the desired codon usage data, designate a new name (or the name of an existing codon usage table if you want to overwrite that table) in the **Table Name** field. Click the **Save Table** button to save the new table to the list.

Note: You can also "create" a new table by modifying an existing table. To modify an existing table, display the table and replace the appropriate displayed codon usage values.

- Copy + Rename allows you to copy the selected table and designate a new name for the copy.
- Paste Table allows you to paste in a new codon usage table from the Clipboard. The table must be pasted in the format found at the following Codon Usage Database site: www.kazusa.or.jp/codon. At this site, navigate to the table of interest, highlight the table, beginning with the table name and ending with the last codon/codon information listed in the table (you can also highlight only a portion of the codon information, if you do not want the entire table). In the Vector NTI Codon Usage Table, click the Paste button to paste in the table. You are asked to confirm or designate a name, depending on whether or not you included the table name as part of the copied text.
- Save Table allows you to save to the list a newly created or modified codon usage table.
- **Delete Table –** deletes the selected table from the list.
- Use Table registers the table as that to be used in the Back Translation dialog box. When you press this button, the Codon Usage Tables dialog box closes and the selected table appears in the Codon Usage Table field of the Back Translation dialog box.
- **Important:** If you do not click the **Use Table** button to register a newly selected table, when you close the Codon Usage Table dialog box, the table choice in the Back Translation dialog box defaults to the previously registered codon usage table.

Repairing Corrupt Codon Usage Tables

When you open the Back Translation dialog box, an automatic scan of the codon usage tables is performed. If the tables are undamaged and no corruption is detected, the back translation dialog box opens normally, as described above. If Back Translation detects corruption in the codon usage tables file, a message dialog box appears offering you the option of repairing the codon usage tables immediately or repairing them at a later time. If you choose **Yes**, Back Translation repairs the tables immediately. If you choose **No**, you can execute the repair command manually at any time by choosing **Table > Repair Corrupted Tables** from the Back Translation menu.

Translation Tables and Codon Ambiguity

In the Back Translation dialog box, you can vary the level of codon ambiguity by sliding the slider from **Least Degenerate** to **Most Degenerate** or any setting in between. Ambiguity is displayed to the degree set by the slide bar as determined by the designation translation table.

By default, the Standard genetic code translation table is selected in the Back Translation dialog box. To change the Translation table, select from among the options in the drop-down box. For more information on genetic codes, see <u>http://www.ncbi.nih.gov/Taxonomy/Utils/</u><u>wprintgc.cgi?mode=c</u>.

Back Translation Copy Options

The resulting back translation sequence can be copied to the Clipboard by clicking the **Copy All** or **Copy Selection** buttons at the bottom of the screen. The resulting sequence can be pasted in the Vector NTI Sequence Editor (see Chapter 20) to create a new molecule in Vector NTI. If you copy using the **Camera** tool, you have the choice of copying the original sequence or the

translation to either the Clipboard or to an external text file. Choose **Camera** on the Main Menu to launch the Camera dialog box (Figure 21.17):

Camera	×
Pane © Sequence © Translation	Copy Cancel
Range All C Selection	
Copy To	
O File	

Figure 21.17 Back Translation Camera dialog box

- Pane Select the pane you want to copy.
- **Range** Select the part of the sequence you want to copy, all or selection, if you have made a selection.
- Copy To Select the location for the copy.

Restriction Analyses

Restriction Fragments/Restriction Sites

From an open DNA/RNA Molecule Display window, you can calculate restriction fragments that are the result of cutting the molecule with any subset of enzymes constituting the restriction map.

With a Molecule Display window open, select **Analyses > Restriction Analyses > Restriction Fragments**. In the dialog box that opens, all enzymes are selected by default. Click **Unselect All** and select at least one restriction enzyme in the list for "digesting" your molecule.

Note: To modify the enzyme you can use for calculating restriction fragments, select Analyses > Restriction Analyses > Restriction Sites to open the Restriction Map Setup dialog box. Here you can change the list of RENs in use. For a discussion of Restriction Map Display Setup, see Chapter 19.

Vector NTI calculates the appropriate restriction fragments and lists the results in the Restriction Fragments folder of the Text Pane.

To easily identify a restriction fragment on the molecule map in the Graphics Pane, set the cur-

sor on the appropriate line in the Restriction Fragments folder. Click the **Find** button (**M**), or select **Edit > Find Fragment** or the corresponding command on the shortcut menu.

RFLP Analysis

RFLP (Restriction Fragment Length Polymorphism) analysis detects variations in the banding patterns of different DNA fragments that have been subjected to restriction enzyme digestion. These restriction fragment length differences originate from polymorphic regions on the DNA and can be used as markers on both physical and genetic linkage maps. Such differences in RFLP profiles have revolutionized criminal investigations and have become powerful tools in the identification of individuals in paternity and maternity cases, population genetics and in the diagnosis of a variety of diseases.

RFLP Analysis Dialog Box

Vector NTI's RFLP Analysis function performs a virtual RFLP assessment for two selected molecules and any number of selected restriction enzymes. To begin an RFLP analysis, choose **Analyses > Restriction Analyses > RFLP** from the drop-down menu in a Molecule Viewing window. The Select Molecules and Enzymes for RFLP Analysis dialog box appears (Figure 21.18):

Select Molecules and Enzy	rmes for RFLP	<u>?</u> ×
- Source Molecules	Source Enzymes	
Subset:	Subset:	Molecules: pAT153 pATH1
Milectules. M13mp18 M13mp19 M13mp8 M13mp9 MAP2K1 MAPK1 MAPK1 My pBR322 pACYC184 pAM34 pATH1 pATH10 pATH10 pATH11 ▼ Calculate	AstWI AsuC2I AsuHPI AsuI AsuII AsuIII AsuIII AsuIII AsuIII AvaI AvaI AvaI AvaI AvaI	Enzymes: Avall

Figure 21.18 Select Molecules and Enzyme for RFLP dialog box

- In the Source Molecules section, select a Database subset and highlight the two molecules you want to analyze. The highlighted molecules move to the Selected for RFLP section on the right side of the dialog box. To remove a molecule from the Selected for RFLP section, click on it to un-highlight it in the Source Molecules section.
- In the Source Enzymes section, select an Enzyme subset and highlight the enzyme you want to use for the analysis. The selected enzyme moves to the Selected for RFLP section. To remove an enzyme from the Selected for RFLP section, click on it to un-highlight it in the Source Enzymes section.

Note: Only one enzyme may be selected for this analysis.

• Click the **Calculate** button to initiate RFLP analysis.

RFLP Analysis Results

Unfiltered results of the RFLP analysis for the selected molecules and enzymes are displayed in the RFLP dialog box (Figure 21.19):

		- ing		X
pAT153	min 🚺	lanta ya	max 1	
pATH1	min 🚺		так 1	
# in pAT15	53	# in pATH	-11	223
7		2		
Cr	eate Gel	1	Clos	e]
	pAT153 pATH1 # in pAT15 7	pAT153 mm pATH1 mm # in pAT153 7 Create Gel	pAT153 min 1 pATH1 min 1 # in pAT153 # in pATH 7 2 Create Gel	pAT153 min 1 max 1 pATH1 min 1 max 1 # in pAT153 # in pATH1 7 2 Create Gel Create

Figure 21.19 RFLP results dialog box

The RFLP results dialog box shows the resulting digestion products for the two analyzed molecules with each of the selected restriction enzymes.

• Use Filter – Initially the results are unfiltered (i.e. results for all analyzed restriction enzymes are shown). You can subsequently filter the results by checking the Use Filter box, specifying the filtering parameters in the *Number Of Sites In* sections and clicking the **Apply** button (Figure 21.20):

RF	LP						×
Γ	🔲 Use filter ——						
	Number of sites in	Lambda	min 1		max 🛛	1	
	Number of sites in	M13	min 1		max [1	
	Results						1
	Enzyme	# in Lambo	la	# in M13			
	ApaLl	4		1			
		·					
	Apply	Cre	eate Gel			Close	l

Figure 21.20 Filtered RFLP results

• **Results** –Double-click on the enzyme entry in the RFLP Results section to view the digestion fragments for the analyzed molecules with that enzyme (Figure 21.21).

1677 Aval (4721) - Aval (19398)			
			1
3334 Aval (39889) - Aval (4721)			
388 Aval (21000) - Aval (2788			
	6407	Aval (5826) - Aval (5826)	
716 Aval (33499) - Aval (38215			
730 Aval (27888) - Aval (31618			
881 Aval (31618) - Aval (3349)			
674 Aval (38215) - Aval (3988)			
602 Aval (19398) - Aval (2100)			

Figure 21.21 Digestion fragments dialog box

 Create Gel – Launches the Gel Setup dialog box so you can perform a gel analysis on the RFLP results for an enzyme analysis. For more information on Vector NTI's Gel Analysis function, see Chapter 25.

Finding Common Non-Cutter Restriction Enzymes

The Find Common Non-Cutting Enzymes tool in Vector NTI performs a restriction analysis on two or more selected DNA/RNA molecules for one or more selected restriction enzymes. The tool reports non-cutting enzymes from the selected list that are common to all molecules selected for analysis.

To launch the Non-Cutting Enzymes tool, choose **Analyses > Restriction Analyses > Find Common Non-cutter RENs** from the drop-down menu in a Vector NTI DNA/RNA Molecule viewing window. The Non-Cutting Restriction Enzymes dialog box appears with the active molecule selected for analysis (Figure 21.22):

on-cutting restricti	on enzym	es				2
Molecules Subset: MIDN	A/RNA Mol	ecules (M4	Enzymes Subset: 😿 E	nzymes (MAIN)	Selected for Analy Molecules	ses
Name	Length	Modified 🔺	Name	Recognitior A	<u>@</u> M13	
👾 GNB2	1666	07/10/200:	📜 Aaal	cggccg		
💥 GNG5	698	07/10/200:	Aagl	atcgat		
🚊 GPRK2L	1730	07/10/200		cacctgc		
😐 GPRK5	2557	07/10/200	📕 Aasl	gacnnnnn		
💥 GRB2	1109	07/10/200:	📜 Aatl	aggoot		
🛒 HSU33054	2113	07/10/200:	🛄 Aatli	gacgtc	Enzumes	
😐 HSU33055	2017	07/10/200:	🛄 Aaul	tgtaca	Linzymes	
😐 HSU33056	1975	07/10/200:	🔢 Abal	tgatca		
🚊 HUMGPRKLG	1879	07/10/200:	Abel	cctcagc		
🔅 Lambda	48502	07/10/200:	Abri	ctcgag		
资 M13	6407	07/10/200:	Acc113	agtact		
资 M13 test	6407	07/20/200:	Acc16I	tgogoa		
M13mp11	7244	07/10/200:	🚊 Acc36l	acetge		
■ UH0 H0	2010		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •			
	>>	\rightarrow		>>> >>		
					Start	Cancel

Figure 21.22 Non-cutting Restriction Enzymes dialog box

- Molecules Lists the molecules in the Vector NTI Database DNA/RNA Molecule subset selected in the Subset drop-down box.
- Enzymes Lists the enzymes in the Vector NTI Database Enzyme subset selected in the Subset drop-down box.
- Selected for Analyses Lists the DNA/RNA Molecules and Enzymes you have selected for Non-cutter Enzyme analysis. Allows you to set an upper limit for cut sites; enzymes that cut more than the designated number of times are ignored.
- Note: Initially, the Selected for Analyses section of the dialog box is not populated.

Highlight the molecules you want to analyze in the **Molecules** section and click the > button to enter those molecules into the **Selected for Analyses** section. Click the >> button to enter all the molecules in the selected subset into the **Selected for Analyses** section.

Highlight the enzymes you want to use for the analysis in the **Enzymes** section and click the > button to enter those enzymes into the **Selected for Analyses** section. Click the >> button to enter all the enzymes in the selected subset into the **Selected for Analyses** section.

Click the **Start** button to begin the analysis. When the analysis process completes, the Preview: Non-Cutting Enzymes Report window displays (Figure 21.23):



Figure 21.23 Non-Cutting Restriction Enzymes Report preview window

Non-cutting enzymes common to the molecules analyzed are listed in the Preview: Non-Cutting Enzymes Report window. From the Preview: Non-Cutting Enzymes Report window, you can print the file directly, copy it with the Camera feature to the Clipboard or file, or save it directly to an external file.

Restriction Report

You can create a restriction analysis report for the active molecule with all the enzymes in your Vector NTI Enzyme Database using Vector NTI's Restriction Report analysis tool. To create a restriction analysis report for a molecule, open the molecule in a Molecule Viewing window in Vector NTI and choose **Analyses > Restriction Analyses > Restriction Report** from the Main Menu. When the analysis is completed, a summary of the results appears in the Report Preview window (Figure 21.24):

folders will appea	ar on the repo	rt (Collapse the folders you don't want to appear on the report)	
1			Print Preview
MI3	<u>.</u>		Camera
TF00L(F7)		25 104 000 070 040 005 000 001 001 1100	
130001(07)	aall	20, 134, 220, 276, 343, 660, 633, 661, 661, 1136	
		1504, 1538, 1590, 1603, 1679, 2187, 2603, 2636, 2654, 2733	
		3015, 3050, 3084, 3225, 3274, 3546, 3652, 3717, 3753, 3794	
		3836, 3905, 3924, 4065, 4134, 4217, 4228, 4241, 4292, 4305	
		4431, 4461, 4481, 4493, 4534, 4569, 4631, 4672, 4780, 5316	
		5906, 5917, 5943, 6130, 6259, 6367, 6376	
Mnll (56)	cete	488, 629, 1377, 1736, 1838, 1853, 1868, 1883, 2012, 2222	
		2324, 2339, 2354, 2369, 3340, 4025, 4824, 4839, 5451, 6247	
		6352, 258, 377, 564, 591, 659, 1043, 1092, 1235, 1301	
		1322, 1330, 1349, 1420, 1510, 1901, 1949, 2024, 2267, 2273	
		2677, 2898, 3056, 3325, 3356, 3707, 4311, 4702, 4776, 4925	
		4930, 5351, 5420, 5685, 6099, 6117	
Msel (56)	ttaa	194, 230, 278, 345, 381, 477, 771, 822, 851, 863	
		1288, 1405, 1498, 1540, 2028, 2078, 2121, 2217, 2645, 2854	
		2945, 3008, 3082, 3158, 3311, 3480, 3735, 3755, 3863, 3902	
		3926, 4029, 4092, 4136, 4206, 4233, 4243, 4411, 4627, 4633	
		4656, 4912, 4969, 5004, 5314, 5412, 5512, 5783, 5881, 5898	
		5909, 5921, 5932, 5946, 6236, 6365	-

Figure 21.24 Restriction Report results for M13mp11

The Restriction Report result has two sections, *Cutters* and *Non-Cutters*. The Cutters folder shows, for each cutting enzyme, the enzyme name, recognition sequence and cut site position(s) on the analyzed molecule. The Non-Cutters section shows the list of the enzymes that do not cut the analyzed molecule.

C H A P T E R

MOLECULE CONSTRUCTION

Introduction

This chapter describes the essentials of creating new molecules with Vector NTI. Features of two important dialog boxes used for molecule creation—the Construct/Design Molecule dialog box, and the Molecule Editor—are discussed.

This chapter covers the following points:

- · descriptions of molecule types: basic and constructed
- differentiating in Vector NTI between molecule Construction and Design
- preparing fragments for Construction using Fragment Wizard
- using the Construct/Design Molecule dialog box as a tool for molecule creation
- · modifying component fragments termini with biochemical operations
- using Molecule Editor to prepare molecule fragments
- importing molecules

Molecule Types: Basic And Constructed

Molecules in Vector NTI can be of two fundamental types: basic and constructed.

Basic molecules are not built from component fragments. Their sequences, Feature map, and restriction maps of unsequenced regions (DNA molecules only) are entered by the user or imported from other databases.

Constructed molecules are built from one or more fragments. For DNA molecules, these can be fragments of existing DNA molecules, linkers, adapters, etc. The Feature map and nucleotide sequences of parent molecules are automatically transferred to a constructed DNA molecule. You can add features to the Feature map in addition to those obtained from the ancestors. Constructed DNA molecules are created by Construction or Design, Vector NTI terms for recombinant processes that are differentiated below. Protein molecules can be constructed by translating a certain region of a DNA molecule. A constructed protein molecule does not receive any Feature map from its parent DNA molecule.

Methods of creating new DNA/RNA molecules

In Vector NTI, there are several different ways of creating new DNA/RNA molecules:

Basic Molecules:

- Importing molecules or sequences (including their feature tables) in the following formats: GenBank, GenPept, EMBL, SWISS-PROT, FASTA, and ASCII text. You can also import molecule data from "quasi-GenBank" files (that is, GCG's "GenBank" output files). Molecule import is discussed on page 182.
- Creating new molecules "from scratch." You can define a molecule's nucleotide or amino acid sequence by hand or paste it from the clipboard and enter the sequence as a new molecule, describing the feature and restriction maps if you wish. This is described in Chapter 19 (see page 237).

Constructed Molecules:

- Creating new DNA/RNA or Protein molecules by splicing together the exons of an Intron-Exon join feature of another molecule. In the case of Protein molecule creation, the spliced molecule is subsequently translated and stored in the VNTI Protein Database. A molecule created by this method is considered a constructed molecule; it is a child molecule of the molecule it was spliced (or spliced and translated) from.
- **Construction of new DNA/RNA molecules** from compatible components fragments from other molecules, linkers, adapters, etc. In Construction, the fragments and restriction sites are entirely defined by the user.
- Design of new DNA/RNA molecules from components also in a user-defined fragment list. In Design, however, instead of personally choosing the restriction sites, methods of terminus modification, etc., the user turns the Design process over to Vector NTI. The software takes advantage of the best possible restriction sites and genetic engineering techniques to design the recombination process.
- Translation of new Protein molecules from selected portions of existing DNA/RNA molecules. A protein molecule created by this method is considered a constructed molecule; it is a child of the DNA/RNA molecule from which it was translated. For more information on creating new protein molecules using various translation procedures, see Translating into a New Protein Molecule, page 293.
- **Note:** For creating new molecules, Vector NTI must be in Molecule Editing mode, the default mode when the Molecule Display window opens.

Creating New DNA/RNA or Protein Molecules Using Splicing

For molecules with a marked intron/exon CDS feature (denoted by the join statement in the molecules GenBank file, see Figure 22.1), you can create a new molecule from the intron/exon feature by splicing out the introns and joining the exons.

Mole with e	cons introns.txt - Notepad	_ [2] ×
File Edit Forma	t Help	
ORGANISH REFERENCE	Nome sapiens Eukaryota; Netazoa; Chordata; Craniata; Vertebrata; Euteleostoni; Hanmalia; Eutheria; Prinates; Catarrhini; Hominidae; Homo. 1 (bases I cutheria;	-
AUTHORS	Stam,N.J., Vanderheyden,P., van Alebeek,C., Klomp,J., de Boer,T., van Delft,A.H. and Olijve,W. Compnie projektion and Euretional expression of the gone encoding	
JOURNAL	Eur. J. Pharmacol. 269 (3), 339-348 (1994)	
MEDLINE	95203331	
REFERENCE	2 (bases 1 to 1616)	
TITLE	aldm,n.d. Divost Submission	
JOURNAL	Submitted (29-JUL-199%) N.J. Stam. Scientific Development Group. NV	
ooonnane	Organon, PO Box 20, 5340 BH OSS, NETHERLANDS	
FEATURES	Location/Qualifiers	
source	11616	
	/organism="Homo sapiens"	
	/db_xref="taxon:9606"	
005		
605	(codon start=1	
	/product="5-budroxytrotamine 2C receptor"	
	/protein id-"CAB59978.1"	
	/db_xref="GI:6179582"	
	/translation="MUNLRNAUHSFLUHLIGLLUWQCDISUSPUAAIUTDIFNTSDGG	
	RFKFPDGUQNWPALSIVIIIINTIGGNILVIMAVSMEKKLHNATNYFLMSLAIADHLV	
	GLLUHPLSLLAILYDYUWPLPRYLCPUWISLDULFSTASIMHLCAISLDRYUAIRNPI	
	EHSKENSKI KATAKTATOWATSTEOSOPTPOTELKDEEKOPONNI TCOLNDPNFOLTE	
	SOMPFILLINGIITGLIITGLAMAINAEDVOSVIL	
	III CEKSCHNEI MERLI NUEHUSCHESCTNPI UVTI ENKTVERAESNVI BENVRUEKK	
	PPUBOIPBUAATALSGRELNUHIVBUTHEPUIEKASDHEPGTEMOUENLELPUNPSSU	
	USERISSU"	
exon	4983 /nunber-1	
intron	8496 /number=1	
exon	97418 /number=2	
exon	/number=2 433633	
	/number=3	
intron	634656	ك.
Start 8	TO DE TA NUMBER OF STREE ADER OPER	0-27 AM

Figure 22.1 Join statement in GenBank file denoting intron/exon CDS feature

To create a new molecule by splicing the intron/exon feature of another molecule, open the molecule with the intron/exon feature in a Molecule Viewing window, select the intron/exon feature in the Graphics Pane and choose **File > Create New Sequence> Using Splicing (DNA/RNA/ Protein)** from the drop-down menu. The Create New Molecule(s) by Splicing dialog box appears (Figure 22.2):

Create new molecule(s) by sp	licing	×
CEF26D2	From 13891	To 15021
- Splice Features Types	•	Direct Strand Complementary Strand
•	▶ Remo	ve All
Target © DNA	C RNA	C Protein
Results should be from Min # of Exons	Max # of Exons 2	
		Cancel Proceed

Figure 22.2 Create New Molecule(s) by Splicing dialog box

In the *Source* section of the Create New Molecule(s) by Splicing dialog box the following information is defined:

- Molecule Name this is preset according to the name of the opened molecule
- Feature Position predefined according to the molecule selection when the Create New Molecule(s) by Splicing dialog box is launched

• Feature Type(s) To Splice – initially, the Splice Feature Types box is empty; you must select the feature type(s) to splice from the Add Features dialog box. To add a feature type, click the plus sign button to the right of the Splice Feature Types box (Figure 22.2). This opens the Add Features dialog box (Figure 22.3):

Add Features		? ×
Add Features Feature Type: Cellular Centromere Conflict D-Loop D-Loop DNasel Site Enhancer Stop Conflict Conflict C	Add all features of this type Add only features of this type with the following names:	Cancel
Gly osylation Site Gly osylation Site Homeodomain DNA Insertion Insertion J-Segment		

Figure 22.3 Add Features dialog box

• Strand - direct or complementary

The *Target* section indicates the type for the resulting spliced molecule. If **Protein** is selected, the feature is spliced and then translated into a Protein molecule.

In the *Results Should Be From* section, you can define the number of spliced products you want generated:

- Min # of Exons specify the minimum number of exons to splice to create a product.
- Max # of Exons specify the maximum number of exons to splice to create a product.

Vector NTI creates the range of all possible spliced products between the specified minimum and maximum number of exons. If you want only the full length product (all exons spliced), enter the total number of exons in both the **Min # of Exons** and **Max # of Exons** fields. Unchecking the **Results Should Be From** box results in the generation of all possible products from one exon in length to the maximum possible number of joined exons for the selected molecule feature.

Tools for Creating New Constructed and Designed DNA/RNA Molecules

Vector NTI has three important tools for creating new constructed molecules: the Fragment Wizard, the Construct/Design Molecule dialog box and the Molecule Editor. The process of creating a molecule generally follows these steps, in an active Graphics Pane:

- 1. Define the component fragments for the recombinant molecule using Fragment Wizard.
- 2. Add defined fragments to the Goal Molecule Definition List.
- Open the Construct/Design Molecule dialog box where you set construction parameters.
- 4. Name, select data and describe the new molecule.
- 5. Verify and edit, where needed, the component fragments in the Goal Molecule Definition List.
- 6. Initiate molecule construction.

If construction is successful, your molecule is entered into the database and is opened in a new Molecule Display window.

The Molecule Editor is the tool for editing existing database molecules and for creating new basic molecules from scratch. For details, refer to page 237.

Construction Tips:

- Before you begin, open display windows for all of the molecules that are fragment sources. If you have several display windows open concurrently, the source molecule for your fragment must be the topmost window.
- It is sometimes convenient to work with two Molecule Display windows on display at the same time. Select Window > Tile Vertical. For each window, resize the Graphics Pane and molecule maps using the split bars, scroll bars and Zoom buttons to optimize viewing of the graphics. Click in a display window to activate it; an active window is designated by a dark blue Title Bar.

Describing Component Fragments in the Fragment Wizard

The Fragment Wizard guides you through several steps required to fully define molecule fragments suitable for construction or design. While in view, it allows you to continue to work in the Graphics Pane to select the fragment, while providing visual feedback and explanation of the actions.

To define a fragment using Fragment Wizard, open a display window for the molecule to be the source of a fragment.

Activate the Graphics Pane and click the **Add Fragment To Goal List** button (), or select **List > Add Fragment to Goal List**, opening the Fragment Wizard dialog box (Figure 22.4):



Figure 22.4 Fragment Wizard dialog box

The Fragment Wizard screen changes to display the entry fields and descriptions corresponding to the current step in the fragment definition process.

At any point in the process, you can choose to **Cancel**, go **Back** a screen, go to the **Next** screen, or **Finish** the process using the appropriate buttons. (**Finish** goes directly to the last step, skipping all the remaining steps, if any. Fragment Wizard goes through all the steps you skipped and supplies the missing information using default values and the coordinates of the current selection in the Display window.)

In the first screen (Figure 22.4):

Select the fragment type and process: Construction fragment, Design Recipient fragment and Design Donor fragment. Since this chapter covers Construction, select **Construction Fragment**.

Design donor and design recipient fragments are discussed in Chapter 24.

When Construction fragment is selected, you can specify that the fragment should be inverted in the constructed molecule by checking the **Insert Inverted** box. Click the **Next** button to proceed.

In the second screen (Figure 22.5):

Specify the 5' terminus of a new fragment. The options are:

- Set to a position on the molecule map (in one of the two following ways)
- Enter the coordinate in the text box or CLICK in the Graphics Pane of the display window. In the latter case, the option button will be selected automatically and the caret position is displayed in the position field of the dialog box and on the Status Bar. Use left or right arrows to reposition the caret. **Tip:** If, when you click in the Graphics Pane, the entire molecule is selected (as indicated by the wire-frame), click in the Sequence Pane to deselect, and begin again.
- 2. Specify the start of the molecule

To set the 5' terminus at the start of the molecule, select the Start of Molecule option in the dialog.

• Specify a restriction site.

Click on the site or its label in the Graphics Pane. The name of the restriction endonuclease and the position of the site are displayed in the Set to a Restriction Site box.

Note: If the Fragment Wizard screen limits your view of the molecule map, click on its title bar and drag it out of the way.

Fragment Wizard
How would you like to define the left (5') terminus? Set to a position: 1397 C Start of molecule C End of molecule
Set to a restriction site: Shift-click on a position or restriction site in the graphics pane. You can use shift-left
arrow or shift-right arrow on the keyboard to adjust position.
< Back Next > Finish Cancel

Figure 22.5 Specifying the 5' terminus of a new fragment

Click the Next button to proceed.

In the third screen (Figure 22.6):

Specify the 3' terminus of the fragment. Options are:

- Specify a position on the molecule map (in one of the two following ways)
- Enter the position in the text box or SHIFT + CLICK in the Graphics Pane on a position, restriction site or label, automatically selecting this option. The 5'-3' selection is now indicated with a wire-frame in the Graphics Pane and in the set selection box on the Status Bar. Reposition the 3' end using SHIFT + the left or right arrows.
- 2. Specify the Start or End of the Molecule

The selection is indicated with a wire-frame and on the Status Bar.

• Specify a restriction site.

SHIFT + CLICK on the site or its label in the Graphics Pane.

Tip: The SHIFT key must be held down for all actions in the Graphics Pane for setting the 3' end. If you neglect to do this, your actions will change the 5' terminus and Fragment Wizard will revert to screen 2.

Fragment wizard				
How would you like to define the right (3') terminus?				
O Set to a position: O Start of molecule O End of molecule				
Set to a restriction site: Aval #1 at 1426 bp				
Shift-click on a position or restriction site in the graphics pane. You can use shift-left arrow or shift-right arrow on the keyboard to adjust position.				
< Back Next > Finish Cancel				

Figure 22.6 Specifying the 3' terminus of the fragment

Click the Finish button, completing the fragment definition.

Review the description of the selected fragment in the New Fragment message box (Figure 22.7).

New Frag	ment		?×
•	Fragment type: Left (5') Terminus: Right (3') Terminus:	Construction Fragment Site HindIII #1 at 30 bp Site Aval #1 at 1426 bp	
	Add to List	Cancel	

Figure 22.7 New Fragment message box

If you made a mistake, press **Cancel** to return to the Fragment Wizard. Otherwise, click the **Add to List** button, adding the fragment to the Goal Molecule Definition List and closing the Fragment Wizard.

Now go to the Molecule Display window for the molecule source of the second Construction fragment and define it using the Fragment Wizard in the manner just described. After reviewing your fragment as before in the New Fragment dialog box, enter it into the Goal Molecule Definition List.

The Goal Molecule Definition List (Goal List)

The Goal Molecule Definition List is a list of fragments that will be combined to create a new molecule.

You can add fragments to the Goal Molecule Definition List using the Fragment Wizard as just described or you can add them directly from the Construct dialog box.

To see the Goal Molecule Definition List, click the **Open Goal List** button () on the Main Toolbar or choose **List > Molecule Goal List**. At the bottom of the Lists dialog box (Figure 22.8)

that opens, the Fragments display lists the fragments currently on the Goal Molecule Definition List.



Figure 22.8 Lists dialog box

Constructing a New Molecule

The Construct & Design Molecule Dialog Boxes

In these dialog boxes, you can describe the new molecule to be constructed (or designed) and saved into the Vector NTI database. Also you can open it for an existing constructed or designed database molecule to reconstruct/redesign it, that is, after changing its component fragments.

To open the Construct or Design dialog box, first open the Lists dialog box from a Molecule Dis-

play window by clicking the **Open Goal List** button () or selecting **File > Create New Sequence > Using Construct/Design Procedure (DNA/RNA)** or selecting **List > Molecule Goal List**. Click the **Run** button on the Lists dialog box to display the Construct or Design Molecule dialog box. The dialog box is automatically loaded with the new molecule described through Goal Molecule Definition List.

Note: There are two operational modes—a mode for molecule Construction and mode for molecule Design. The appropriate mode is set automatically when you designate the component fragment type in Fragment Wizard. The title of the box "Construct Molecule" or "Design Molecule" reflects the mode. (*If this dialog box is opened before the method is designated, the box title is also Construct Molecule.*) Because Construction is the subject of this chapter, we will refer to it as Construct Molecule dialog box (Figure 22.9).

Construct Molecule		<u>? ×</u>
Create All Possible Constructs With Compatible Fragments	Cpen Display Windows for All	Construct Close
Name: NEWMOL	© Circular © Linear (
General Info		
Start Position: 🔘 Recipient's Start	Position 1 of Frage	ment # 1

Figure 22.9 Construct Molecule dialog box

Enter or select the dialog box fields as follows:

- Name enter a new name for the molecule to be constructed
- Circular/Linear the form of the molecule.
- DNA/RNA molecule type
- Click the General Info button to enter molecule description information:

- ^o **Description -** notes about the molecule
- ^o Extra-Chromosome Replication transformation systems
- ^o **Replicon Type** molecule's replicon type
- ^o **Keywords** keywords useful for database search. See page 171.
- ^o Click **OK** to return to the Construct dialog box.
- All of the General Info data will appear in the General Description folder when the molecule is loaded into a Display window.
- **Recipient's Start** start of the new molecule is as close as possible to the start of the "recipient" component fragment (the first fragment listed of the Component Fragments).
- **Position ...** specify a specific nucleotide of a specific fragment as the starting nucleotide of the new molecule. (By default, the first nucleotide of the first fragment.)

The Component Fragments Field

The Fragments field in the Lists dialog box contains the Goal Molecule Definition List. Constructed molecules consist of one or more component fragments that can be verified, entered, deleted, repositioned or edited in this field. In addition, you can add new fragments of five types, described below in the section on adding new fragments.

To perform an operation on a fragment, select it and press one of the following enabled buttons:

- Edit: This action can also be initiated by double-clicking the fragment. In the dialog box that opens, you can edit fragment information. The specific dialog box appears depends on the type of the fragment you have highlighted. Five fragment types (described below in the section on adding new fragments) each have their own Edit dialog box.
- Delete: The selected fragment disappears from the list.
- **Reposition a fragment:** To change the position of a fragment in the list, highlight the fragment you want to move, and click the **Up** or **Down** buttons to change its position in the list.

The molecule will be constructed from the fragments in the order shown, so changing the positions in the list changes the resulting molecule. The fragment listed first is always considered the "recipient" fragment.

Adding New Component Fragments

To add a new fragment to the list of component fragments, click the **Add** button above the Fragments field and choose the desired fragment type from the drop down list. In the corresponding Fragment Editor dialog box that opens, you can enter information about the new fragment:

• **Dummy:** A Dummy fragment can be created for a recombinant molecule as a last resort when a DNA fragment length is known but the exact sequence is not. Residues in Dummy fragments are added as "nucleotides" only. *They will appear in a sequence as "N".*

When you add or edit a Dummy fragment, the Dummy Fragment dialog box (Figure 22.10) appears where you can enter the number of unsequenced nucleotides the fragment contains:

DUMMY Fragment	<u>? ×</u>
Length: 1217	
ОК	Cancel

Figure 22.10 Dummy Fragment dialog box

Dummy fragments have blunt termini. A Dummy fragment must be inserted into a vector with compatible linkers or adapters flanking the sequence. To add REN sites to ends of a Dummy fragment, see the Linker section below.

• **Sequence:** Sequence fragments are user-specified oligonucleotides. When you add or edit a Sequence fragment, the Sequence Fragment dialog box appears (Figure 22.11):

SEQUENCE Fragment	<u>ı x</u>
Nucleotide Sequence:	
ATACCTGTCTAATGGCCATAGCCTGA	
Direct C Complementary	
OK Cancel	

Figure 22.11 Sequence Fragment dialog box

In the Nucleotide Sequence field, enter an oligonucleotide up to 120 units long. With the radio buttons, indicate direct or complementary orientation.

Sequence fragments have blunt termini. A Sequence fragment must be inserted into a vector with compatible linkers flanking the sequence. To add REN sites to ends of a Sequence fragment, see the Linker section below.

 Linker: Linker fragments are single restriction sites that can have short flanking sequences. They are used to link together longer fragments in Construction or Design. When you add or edit a Linker fragment, the Linker Fragment dialog box (Figure 22.12) appears:

LINKER Fragment			<u>? x</u>
⊙ Whole C L	eft C Right	OK	Cancel
Left Nucleotides:	Restriction Site BamHI		Right Nucleotides:

A TTCGA

Figure 22.12 Linker Fragment dialog box

In the Restriction Site field, enter the name of the restriction endonuclease being used or click the **Browse** button () to select from a list of RENs in the database.

In the Left Nucleotides and Right Nucleotides fields, you can enter nucleotide sequences flanking the restriction site.

Once the restriction site is in place, select the radio button that indicates whether the linker should be the whole restriction site or whether it will attach at the left end or the right end of another sequence or dummy fragment.

If you click **Whole**, then both ends of the Linker are blunt. If you click **Left**, the 5' end is blunt and the 3' end is the restriction site. If you click **Right**, the 3' end is blunt and the 5' end is the restriction site.

Examples:

Left Linker *Hin*dIII

Right Linker EcoRI AATTC

If you want restriction site Linkers to be attached on each end of a sequence to be cloned, you must generate a right and a left Linker. In the following example, the Left Linker will ligate to the 5' end of the digested recipient fragment and the Right Linker will ligate to its 3' end.

Right Linker EcoRI	AATTC G	Dummy Fragment]A]TTCGA Left Linker	HindIII
--------------------	------------	----------------	--------------------------	---------

Construction Tip: To add linkers at each end of a Dummy or Sequence fragment, they should be listed in the Component Fragment list in the following order:

- ^o Recipient Fragment
- ^o Linker (Left Linker)
- ^o Dummy or Sequence
- ^o Linker (Right Linker)
- Adapter: Adapter fragments are like linkers except that in the Adapter Fragment dialog box, you enter or edit nucleotides manually or choose the components of the Adapter Fragment from the Enzyme and Oligo Databases. Adapters with sticky or blunt ends can be designed. Adapters are often special-ordered from a synthesizer vendor, as they tend to be linkers that are "adapted" to the given experiment/need at hand.

When you specify adding an Adapter, the Adapter Fragment dialog box appears (Figure 22.13). In Vector NTI, an Adapter consists of a 5' or 3' left terminus, a central double-stranded part, and a 5' or 3' right terminus, although any part of an Adapter fragment is optional.

ADA	PTOR Fragm	ent	<u>? ×</u>
L	eft Termini		Right Termini
5			3,
3			5'
		Calculate Adapter	1
	Left REN:	Oligo Sequence	Right REN:
	BgIII	AACGCAGTCAG	ApaLl
	Clear		Clear
	Load	Load	Load
		ОК	Cancel

Figure 22.13 Adapter Fragment dialog box

In the Adapter Fragment dialog box, enter these segments manually in the appropriate fields of the dialog box or click the appropriate **Load** button near the bottom of the Adapter Fragment dialog box to select the various Adapter parts from the Restriction Enzyme or Oligo Databases:

Once you have selected the appropriate Oligo and left and right Restriction Enzymes for the Adapter, click the **Calculate Adapter** button to calculate and enter the sequence into the upper portion of the Adapter Fragment dialog box (Figure 22.14):

ADA	PTOR Fragm	ient	<u>? ×</u>
Le	eft Termini		Right Termini
5'	GATC	TAACGCAGTC	3'
3,		ATTGCGTCAG	ACGT 5'
		Calculate Adapter	
	Left REN:	Oligo Sequence	Right REN:
	BgIII	AACGCAGTCAG	ApaLl
	Clear Load	Load	Clear Load
		ОК	Cancel

Figure 22.14 Adapter parts from Database calculated

Once you have completed your Adapter fragment design, click the **OK** button to add the new Adapter to the Fragment List.

- Add Fragment: There are three choices available from the Add Fragment selection, adding a fragment from the molecule that is currently in focus in the VNTI workspace, adding a fragment of a molecule in the VNTI database or adding a fragment using the Fragment Editor. The first two choices will open the appropriate molecule and launch the Fragment Wizard. The third choice will launch the Fragment Editor.
- **Note:** Although you can add molecule fragments using the Fragment Editor, it is much more convenient to add them either in advance using the Fragment Wizard—the tool specifically designed for visual selection of molecule fragments from Molecule Display windows (see page 309) or via the first two choices on the Add Fragment list, which also use the Fragment Wizard.

Fragments of existing molecules are the key part of most constructed molecules. Click the **Add** button and select the **Add Fragment > with Fragment Editor** choice, or select a component fragment in the list and click the **Edit** button to open the Fragment of Molecule dialog box (Figure 22.15) where you add or edit such a fragment:

Construct C Design Recipient C Design Donor OK Cancel
Parent Molecule:
pUC19 Restriction Sites Counted From Nucleotide
Inverted
Left Terminus NODEF
Right Terminus NODEF
Descriptor(s): Subset of Parents:
Add
Delete Maximum Maximum Left Flank Region Right Flank Region

Figure 22.15 Fragment of Molecule dialog box

Options in this dialog box are summarized as follows:

- Construct/Design Recipient/Design Donor: molecule fragment type
- Parent Molecule: Enter the name of the source molecule for the fragment to be added, or click the Browse button () to select a molecule from the Vector NTI database.
- Inverted: Check to insert the fragment in the inverted orientation.
- **Restriction Sites Counted From Nucleotide:** Enter the position in the parent molecule from which restriction site occurrences should be counted. This field is important when this fragment is taken from a selection display window, where the numbering of sites in the selection display window may not correspond to the numbering of sites in the molecule as a whole. Usually the value of this field is 1.
- **Termini:** To describe a fragment from an existing molecule, you must describe its left and right termini. Brief descriptions of the termini are displayed next to the corresponding buttons. Click each of the <...**Terminus** > buttons to define the termini.

Editing the Termini of Fragment of Molecule-type Component Fragments

Click the **Left Terminus** or **Right Terminus** buttons in to open the Terminus Editor dialog box (Figure 22.16).

Left Terminus	? ×
Terminus Type	ОК
Restriction Site Hindlil Mucleotide Context Position Start of Molecule Not Defined	Cancel Curing Design Save Site Lose Site
Site or Context Data Number: Point: Region: 1	
Biochemical Operations	
None bp	

Figure 22.16 Terminus Editor dialog box

The Left (and Right) Terminus dialog box options are summarized as follows:

Terminus Type:

• **Restriction site**: If the terminus is a restriction site, enter its name in the text box, or click the **Browse** button (....) to select from a list of the RENs in the database.

The restriction site chosen here determines the form of the terminus (blunt, 5', 3'). The terminus can be further modified by biochemical operations, as described below.

• **Nucleotide context**: If the terminus is a nucleotide context (oligonucleotide), enter the sequence in the text box.

This type of terminus is blunt.

• **Position:** If the terminus is a position in the molecule's nucleotide sequence, enter its position in the text box.

This type of terminus is blunt.

• Start / End of Molecule: If the terminus is the start or end of the parent molecule, click the appropriate radio button.

This type of terminus is blunt.

• Not Defined (NODEF): Click this button if the terminus is undefined.

A fragment with one or more NODEF termini can only be used for automatic molecule Design, discussed in the next chapter.

Site or Context Data

If the terminus is a restriction site or nucleotide context, these fields are enabled where you are required to indicate where on the parent molecule the site or context can be found.

 Enter an integer value in the Number field to use that occurrence of the site or context on the parent molecule.

In place of a number, you can enter an area of the molecule within which the site or context occurs only once.

• Enter a value in the Point and Region fields to look for the site or context within (Region) nucleotides of the (Point) nucleotide of the parent molecule.

Vector NTI uses the Point and Region fields only if the Number field is empty.

Biochemical Operations

Termini of Restriction Site type can be treated with up to three consecutive biochemical operations, performed in the sequence listed in the Terminus Editor dialog box. The operations are performed in the order in which they are listed.

These operations from the lists in the Biochemical Operations drop-down menus have the following effects:

- None leaves the terminus untreated.
- Completely filled in fills in cohesive fragment termini to make them blunt.
- **Incompletely filled in** fills in cohesive fragment termini to within a few nucleotides of being blunt.
- S1-treated cuts cohesive termini down to blunt.
- **Bal31 treated** cuts off a given number of nucleotides from both strands.
- 3'-5' exonuclease treated cuts off a given number of nucleotides in the 3'-5' direction.
- 5'-3' exonuclease treated cuts off a given number of nucleotides in the 5'-3' direction.

Click **OK** to return to the Fragment Molecule dialog box (Figure 22.15).

The For Design Only subsection of this dialog box is enabled only in Design mode and is described in Chapter 24.

Click **OK** to return to the Lists dialog box. Click the **Run** button to launch the Construct Molecule dialog box.

The Control Fields and Commands

In Construction mode, the following mode is enabled: Create All Possible Constructs...

When checked, the system creates all possible constructions (up to 24) that can be obtained from the molecule component fragments. *This option allows Vector NTI to include even the parasitic constructs (inserts in the wrong orientation) in the reaction mix.*

The **Open Display Windows for All** field is active only when the **Create All Possible Constructs** box is checked or the specified number of design output options is more than one. If this box is checked, and more than one molecule is created during the construction or design process, Molecule Display windows are opened for each new molecule immediately after completing the procedure. If this box remains unchecked, a new Molecule Display window opens automatically for just the molecule with the name specified in the Name field.

Note: In Design, display windows are not created for intermediate molecules, but only for the final option(s).

Once all parameters are set in the Construct Molecule dialog box, click the **Construct** button to initiate the process.

Naming of Construction Recombinants

If you start a construction task for a goal molecule with a name that causes a conflict with an existing set of construction options, Vector NTI informs you of the conflict and asks permission to delete the existing options. To avoid this, choose a different name for the new goal molecule or rename old construction options.

For additional constructs, Vector NTI creates names on the basis of the name of the "main" constructed molecule. If the name of the molecule is <MOLNAME >, the name of the first additional construct will be <MOLNAME > _#1, the name of the second additional construct will be <MOL-NAME > _#2, etc. As Construction proceeds, Vector NTI creates a special subset for the molecules, named by the program on the basis of the name of the "main" constructed molecule. If the name of the molecule is <MOLNAME >, then the name of the subset containing additional constructs will be <MOLNAME > _\$Construction Options.

Reconstructing a Molecule

You can reconstruct a previously constructed molecule by right-clicking on the constructed molecule in the Database Explorer window and choosing **Reconstruct** from the shortcut menu. This launches the Construct Molecule dialog box with all the parameters used for the original construction of that molecule. The Reconstruct feature is useful for constructing molecules that are similar to a previously constructed molecule and for reconstructing molecules that have failed a previous construction attempt (such molecules appear with a question mark icon to the left of their names in the Database Explorer window).

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

C H A P T E R

GATEWAY[®] AND TOPO CLONING

Introduction to Gateway Cloning

Gateway Cloning Technology is Invitrogen's universal cloning system that provides a rapid and highly efficient route to protein expression, functional analysis and cloning/subcloning of DNA segments. This system is based on the well-characterized bacteriophage lambda-based site-specific recombination system (*att*L x *att*R \leftrightarrow *att*B x *att*P). In overview, Gateway is a 2-step cloning process; in the first step a sequence of interest is inserted into an Entry Clone. The second step transfers the sequence into a variety of *att*B-containing Expression Clones that can be propagated and expressed in a range of host cells for a given experiment.

TOPO Technology is a fast, efficient way to clone. The key to TOPO Cloning is the enzyme DNA topoisomerase I, whose biological role is to cleave and rejoin DNA during replication. To harness this activity, vectors are linearized and each end is conjugated with topoisomerase on the 3' phosphate. This enables fast ligation of DNA sequences with compatible ends. After 5 minutes at room temperature, enzyme is released, the ligation is complete and the recombinant molecule is ready for transformation into *E. coli*. Many Invitrogen expression vectors are adapted for one-step TOPO Cloning of PCR products in both directional and non-directional formats. Other vectors contain *att* recombination sequences exterior to the TOPO cloning sites so that cloned inserts are ready for entry into the Gateway system.

Vector NTI Advance 10 offers an interlocking set of computational tools for planning Gateway or TOPO cloning experiments from beginning to end. These allow you to simulate recombinant strategy, as well as to validate design of your reagents before proceeding to primer ordering, bench-top operations, etc. Steps necessary to identify and screen transformants, expedite purification, fuse an insert with vector tags, etc. can be identified and modifications made before

investing time and money. Vector NTI tools can be used to plan individual experiments (singleor multi-site cloning) or to design batch cloning experiments.

Warning !	If you upgraded to Vector NTI Advance 10 from a previous version and chose to continue working with your existing database, some Invitrogen mol- ecules needed for the Gateway Cloning feature will not exist in your data- base. To obtain those molecules, you must download them from the Invitrogen website at www.invitrogen.com.
	If you chose to overwrite your existing database when you upgraded, the Invitrogen molecules will be part your Vector NTI database.

Introduction to Gateway Cloning

This chapter describes the Vector NTI tools for *in silico* Gateway Cloning and provides you with directions for using these tools:

- Creating Entry Clones To participate in a Gateway cloning reaction, a DNA sequence
 of interest must first be incorporated into an Entry Clone. Five ways for generating or
 retrieving Entry Clones are described in this chapter:
 - a. Generate an Entry Clone from an Expression Clone by BP Recombination– This option uses a BP reaction to generate an Entry Clone employing an already existing *att*B-containing DNA molecule, such as a Gateway Expression Clone or a pCMVSPORT6 library. See page 323.

DNA sequence of interest in an existing clone (flanked by attB sites) + pDONR vector (with attP) \leftrightarrow Entry Clone (with attL)

b. Create an Entry Clone by PCR Amplification and BP Recombination – This option allows you to amplify your sequence of interest with *att*B-containing primers designed by Vector NTI, then perform a BP recombination using the PCR product you amplified. See page 324.

PCR product (flanked by attB sites) + pDONR vector (with attP) \leftrightarrow Entry Clone (with attL)

c. Generate an Entry Clone by PCR and Restriction-Ligation into a pENTR Vector – This process allows you to specify your sequence of interest and amplify it using standard Vector NTI primer design and amplification techniques. Then insert the amplicon into a pENTR vector using Vector NTI molecule construction techniques. See page 329.

PCR product (no attB) + pENTR vector (with attL) \leftrightarrow Entry Clone (with attL)

- d. **Obtain a functional Entry Clone from Invitrogen** Find Entry Clones in the Invitrogen collections. See page 331.
- e. Generate an Entry Clone by TOPO cloning This option allows you to amplify your sequence of interest and clone it into a Gateway-ready TOPO vector. This is described fully in the TOPO Cloning section of this chapter. See page 323.
- **Perform an LR Recombination** Entry Clones from any of the above methods are recombined with pDEST vectors. The resulting Expression Clones can drive expression of the sequence of interest when transformed into host cells. See page 331.

Entry Clone (with DNA sequence of interest flanked by attL sites) + pDEST vector (with attR) \leftrightarrow Expression Clone (with attB)
- ORF and Translation Analyses Use Vector NTI analysis tools to verify that a DNA sequence in an Expression Clone is expressed as intended before committing bench time to subsequent steps. See page 334.
- Creating a New Destination Vector This allows you to create a user-defined destination vector, incorporating unique promoters, fusion tags, etc. See page page 335.

Selected vector + Reading Frame Cassette (with attR) \rightarrow Destination Vector

Creating Entry Clones

Invitrogen offers several methods for inserting a DNA sequence of interest into an Entry Clone. Vector NTI tools can perform these recombinant techniques *in silico*, and additionally, Vector NTI can be used to design primers, amplify products, construct molecules, track recombinants, suggest reagents and predict the outcome.

As a general rule, any Entry Clone generated *in silico* should be submitted to a Gateway LR recombination in Vector NTI. (See *Performing an LR Recombination* on page 331.) The resulting Expression Clones should be examined by ORF analysis and translation to verify that the DNA sequence will indeed be expressed as intended.

Generate an Entry Clone in a BP reaction by Recombining an Expression Clone

A DNA sequence of interest may already be in an *att*B-containing DNA molecule such as an existing Gateway Expression Clone or pCMV-SPORT6 library. For information, contact Invitrogen Technical Services at the Invitrogen website http://www.invitrogen.com.

In this strategy, the sequence is extracted from the existing Gateway clone or library and recombined with a Donor Vector in a BP recombination to produce a new Entry Clone. Ultimately, the Entry Clone can be recombined into a new Expression Clone.

 Open the Expression Clone in a Molecule Display Window, and from the menu, choose Cloning > Gateway Cloning > Create an Entry Clone > Recombine an Expression Clone by BP.

Alternatively, in the Database Explorer, select one or more such clones and from the DNA/ RNA or shortcut menu choose Gateway Cloning > Recombine an Expression Clone by BP.

- 2. *First screen* (Figure 23.1): Use the **Add/Remove** buttons to browse in one or more pDONR vectors and *att*B-containing sequences, in the upper and lower windows respectively. If the tool was launched from an open file window displaying either type of molecule, those molecules automatically appears in the appropriate pane. Click **Next**.
- **Note:** pDONR vectors for multi-site Gateway reactions contain *att*P sites that are different from those used in single-fragment cloning. In all reactions, the *att*B sequences must be compatible with

pDONR *att*P sites. If invalid files or incompatible vectors and sequences are entered, Vector NTI will issue an alert and return to this screen.

Name	Sites	
DUNH 201	מתרו, מתרב	Add
		Remove
ttB sequences:		
Name	Sites	
Expression Clone/pDEST 15/CREB1	attB1, attB2	Add
		Remove
tB sequence must contain two attB site	es compatible with attP sites in pD	ONR vector

Figure 23.1 Gateway BP cloning – first screen

- 3. Second screen (Figure 23.2): An expandable preview page appears, summarizing valid Entry Clones that can be generated from the entries displayed on the first screen. Batch submissions from the first screen (e.g. a single pDONR vector and multiple compatible *att*B sequences) are summarized as separate Entry Clones.
- To automatically save the results to the Vector NTI database, check the Save results to DB checkbox. You are offered the option to open the new clone in a Molecule Display Window. Click Finish.

In molecules created by the Gateway cloning tools, a folder called **Design Description** appears in the Text Pane. It contains a brief description of the protocol and can be copied and pasted into a word document for reference during the actual experiment.

Create Entry Clone by BP reaction BP reaction(s):	×
Entry Clones	These Entry Clones will be generated from the selection of Donor Vectors and attB sequences. If Clones that you expect are not on the list, mismatching or mis-annotated att sites are indicated. Check sequence of respective entries and result on
K Seck	Save results to DB Open results in Viewer Finish

Figure 23.2 Gateway BP cloning – second screen

- 5. If the **Save results to DB** option was not checked, Entry Clones will open in Molecule Display Windows as temporary molecules that can be saved in the Database.
- Perform an LR recombination in Vector NTI (see page 331) and examine the resulting Expression Clone by ORF analysis and translation to verify that the DNA sequence is expressed as intended (see page 334).

Generate an Entry Clone by PCR Amplification and BP Recombination

This strategy is a highly flexible process for entering the Gateway Cloning system by amplifying a sequence of interest using standard PCR techniques and generating an Entry Clone in a BP Recombination. This is also the approach used most often when multi-site Gateway cloning is

planned, since each fragment of the final clone must be prepared with a unique combination of attB sites. Some of the benefits to this approach to creating Entry Clones are:

- You can add additional sequences to the primers to assist in protein expression and purification.
- You can open online help topics for assistance in the placement of stop codons and maintaining reading frames.
- If reading frame errors are detected, you can return and make the appropriate edits.
- You can add primer recommendations to an Oligo Goal List from which orders can be submitted to Invitrogen's custom Oligo Synthesis service.
- Open a Molecule Display Window for a DNA molecule containing the sequence of interest. Select the target region on the molecule and choose Cloning > Gateway Cloning > Create an Entry Clone > Amplify Selection to Use in a BP Reaction. (These commands are disabled if an appropriate target is not defined.) This opens the Amplification of Selected Region for BP Recombination dialog box (Figure 23.3).

This dialog box allows you to search for convenient sense and antisense primers according to your specifications and to check the uniqueness of primers. Most of the tabs and parameters in this dialog box are common to those found in the Find PCR Primers dialog box discussed in Chapter 20. However, the differences on the Primer tab are described here. For more information on setting PCR parameters in this dialog box, see page 248.

Intel Amplicon St	ructure Pairs Simi	arity 3' end Unique	eness Qualities Filters
Before	Amplicon Must Includ	e Region of Molecule -	After
Max 0 bp	From: 189 bp	To: 1133 bp	o Max 🛛 bp
-1			
Maxi	num Number of Output	Options 1	
Salt Conc. 50.0	Probe Conc.	50.0 dG Tem	nperature 25.0
((pmoi) *		(0)
- Tm (C	-%GC	Length	O DNA O RNA
>= 40.0	>= 35.0	>= 18	
<= 65.0	<= [60.0	<= 25	
Amplifu on comple	neptaru strand		
Primer additions for a	xpression, purification,	etc	Instruction on
Sense:			
Antisense:			stop codons
Add GGGG-attBx 5'	extensions	and the second	
of Sen≎e Primer:		of Antisense Prime	r:
attB1		attB2	
1	1		1

Figure 23.3 Amplification of Selected Region for BP Recombination dialog box

The options on the **Primer** tab (Figure 23.3) allow you to generate a single pair of primers that amplifies but does not extend beyond the selected sequence. It also allows you to add primer attachments for a Gateway Cloning experiment.

Primer Tab Parameters – Amplification of Selected Region for BP Reaction Dialog Box		
Region of Analysis	Restricted to exactly the region being amplified. Therefore, Before = After = 0 bp and the Amplicon Must Include Region defaults to the selection.	

Table 23.1 Primer tab parameters – Amplification of Selected Region for BP Reaction dialog box

Primer Tab Parameter	s – Amplification of Selected Region for BP Reaction Dialog Box
Maximum Number of Output Options	Restricted to 1 (i.e., 1 pair of primers and the associated product).
Salt Concentration	Common to all PCR tools. See page 248.
Probe Concentration	Ibid
dG Temperature	Ibid
Tm	Ibid
%GC	Ibid
Primer Length	Defaults to 18-25, Invitrogen's recommendation for Gateway Primers
DNA/RNA radio button	Common to all PCR tools. See page 248.
Amplify on Complemen- tary Strand	Check to amplify and express a sequence or feature which maps to the complementary strand. When this is activated, the contents of the Sense and Antisense browse-ins will be exchanged in the Primer Additions and GGGG- <i>att</i> Bx Extension boxes. For example, the default <i>att</i> B1 extension that <i>leads into</i> the expressed sequence will be found in the Antisense text box and the attB2 extension that <i>exits from</i> the sequence will be found in the Sense text box.
Primer Additions	 Enter nucleotides in the text box, or click the Browse button () to add 5' sequences to the template-specific region of the primer. In the Choose Additions dialog boxes that open (Figure 23.4), there are some recommended additions specific to the sense and antisense primers. (Such sequences can assist in expression or purification when the template sequence is transferred to an Expression Clone and expressed in a host cell.) Click on the preferred addition, or click the Add button to name and enter an additional sequence that can be added to the primer. Click OK to enter your selection in the appropriate text box. Text box entries are fully editable. Note: If you type additions to the antisense window, enter the sequence in 5'> 3' order, as you want it to appear on the complementary strand primer.
Instruction	Click the Reading Frame and Stop Codons buttons to open context-sen- sitive Online Help topics with tips for preserving a reading frame and insert- ing stop codons into the primers.
Add GGGG- <i>att</i> Bx 5' Extensions	These text boxes must be filled in for a Gateway project. The defaults are for single fragment cloning: <i>att</i> B1 for the sense primer and <i>att</i> B2 for the antisense primer. Click the Browse buttons () to replace the defaults with other <i>att</i> B sequences for creating Entry Clones for multi-site cloning projects. In the Choose attB Extension dialog boxes that open (Figure 23.5), click on the preferred extensions and click OK .

Table 23.1 Primer tab parameters – Amplification of Selected Region for BP Reaction dialog box

Name	Sequence	Name	Sequence (complementary)
Shine-Dalgamo (SD) Kozak + ATG ATG initiation codon Histag LUMIO tag TEV cleavage site EK cleavage site	AGGAGGT ACCATGG ATG CATCACCATCACCATCAC TGTTGTCCTGGCTGTTGC GAAAACCTGTATTTTCAGGGA GACGATGACGATAAA	His tag LUMIO tag TEV cleavage site EK cleavage site Stop codon	GTGATGGTGATGGTGATG GCAACAGCCAGGACAACA TCCCTGAAAATACAGGTITTC TTTATCGTCATCGTC CTA
Additional expression sequen	ces, fusion tags, cleavage sites, etc. can be entered into the Primer Additions box by typing.	Additonal fusion tags, cleave typing. Note that sequer	age sites, etc. can be entered into the Primer Additions box nces are as they will appear on the complementary strand.
Add Remove	OK Cancel	Add Remove	e OK Cancel

Figure 23.4 Browse to suggested additions for controlling expression/purification of your sequence. Use the Add button to enter new sequences to your personal list.

Name	Sequence	Name	Sequence
attB1 attB2 attB4	ACAAGTTTGTACAAAAAAGCAGGCTTA ACAGCTTTCTTGTACAAAGTGGCT ACAACTTTGTATAGAAAAGTTGCT	attB1 attB2 attB3	ACTGCTTTTTTGTACAAACTTGC ACCACTTTGTACAAGAAAGCTGGGTA ACAACTTTGTATAATAAAGTTGC
For si	ngle-fragment cloning, select attB1 extension	Fors	single-fragment cloning, select attB2 extension

attB2 (antisense) are the choice for single-fragment cloning. The other extensions are for multi-site cloning.

The attB extensions listed here are intended to ensure that the sequence of interest remains in-frame if it is ultimately cloned into a pDEST vector with N-terminal or C-terminal fusion partners.

In Multi-site Gateway experiments, 2 or 3 distinct elements are cloned into separate Entry Clones, each using a distinct pairing of attB extensions and specialized pDONR vectors. The Entry Clones are then mixed with a pDEST vector in an LR recombination (see below) to generate a single Expression Clone in which the elements are carried together. This can be useful in coordinating expression of disparate elements from one vector, or in constructing mini-genes. The following table summarizes the available lineups (as of summer 2005) for designing primers and matching the amplicons with their respective vectors.

No. of fragments	fragment order	attB extensions	pDONR vector	pDEST vector
2 fragment clon- ing	First fragment	SP: attB4 ASP: attB1	pDONR P4-P1R	pDEST R4-R2
	Second fragment	SP: attB1 ASP: attB2	Any pDONR of type P1-P2	
3 fragment clon- ing	First fragment	SP: attB4 ASP: attB1	pDONR P4-P1R	pDEST R4-R3
	Second fragment	SP: attB1 ASP: attB2	Any pDONR of type P1-P2	
	Third fragment	SP: attB2 ASP: attB3	pDONR P2R-P3	

Table 23.2 Multi-site Gateway recommendations for attB primer extensions and pDONR vectors (BP reactions), and pDEST vectors (LR reactions)

The **Load** and **Save** buttons at the lower left of each tab are common to all PCR dialog parameter boxes. They allow you to save your PCR settings to a file and to load such settings files for subsequent analyses. See page 247 for more information.

In the context of this discussion, you might configure this dialog box to add a Lumio tag to a primer. By saving these settings, when you select other sequences for amplification, you could click the **Load** button and select the saved settings. The Lumio tag would automatically load in the Primer Additions text box and be added to the new primers when you click **OK**.

2. Once your PCR parameters are specified, click **OK** in the Amplification of Selected Region for BP Reaction dialog box.

PCR product and primers are calculated and displayed in the **PCR Analysis Text Pane folder** in the Molecule Display Window. Simultaneously, a dialog box opens (Figure 23.6), in which you can select to proceed directly to a BP reaction, and/or to add the primers to the Oligo Goal List to expedite ordering from Invitrogen's custom Oligo Synthesis service. To bypass both options, click **OK** without selecting either checkbox; this will return you to the starting molecule so that you can examine the calculated PCR product and primers.

PCR produ Viewer, Yo proceed to	cts and primers have been assigned to the Molecule u may exit now to save them to the database, or the BP reaction and save them later:
	Proceed to BP reaction
_	Add oligos to Oligo list for optional ordering

Figure 23.6 Choose to proceed directly to the cloning wizard, add the primers to your order list or examine the primers and products

• If you select **Proceed to BP Reaction**, the Create Entry Clone by BP Reaction dialog box (Figure 23.1) opens with the *att*B-containing PCR product(s) you generated appear-

ing automatically in the *att*B sequences pane. Continue as described in the previous section.

- If you elect to add the oligos to the Oligo List, you can order Oligos from Invitrogen at any time. See page 276 for more information.
- If you opt to exit here to examine the primers and products, you can pursue any of the following options and save the product and primers to continue at a later time:
 - a. After examining the results, select the PCR product in the PCR Analysis Text Pane folder and select Recombine a PCR Product by BP from the shortcut menu. Continue with the Create Entry Clone by BP Reaction dialog box (Figure 23.1) as described in the previous section.
 - b. Right click on the Product of Length (the PCR product) in the PCR Analysis Text Pane folder and select Save as Molecule in Database. At a later date, you can select the PCR product in the Database Explorer and Recombine a PCR Product to BP as described in the previous section. This option is useful if multiple PCR products are generated from different files, and you wish to store and submit them from the database in batch.
 - c. Save the parent molecule along with all PCR products and primers in one molecule file. Choose File > Save As and in the Save As dialog box, select the Save as file tab and choose a location in which the files are to be saved. Later, to submit the saved PCR product to a BP reaction, open the file in a Molecule Display Window, select the PCR product in the PCR Analysis Text Pane folder and continue as described above.

Generate an Entry Clone by BP Recombination

The Create Entry Clone by BP Reaction dialog box opens with your amplicon in the attB Sequences pane. Continue with the BP reaction, beginning with step #2 on page 323. The BP recombination will transfer the amplified sequence, plus any additions you chose during primer design, into an Entry Clone.

Generate an Entry Clone by PCR Amplification and Ligation into a pENTR Vector

This method uses the Molecule Construction tool in Vector NTI and Invitrogen pENTR Vectors. pENTR Vectors are closed, circular DNA molecules with a multiple cloning site (MCS) and a *ccdB* gene flanked by *att*L1 and *att*L2. By amplifying a DNA sequence of interest with extensions that anneal to cut sites in the vector, the sequence can be inserted using Molecule Construction techniques. For more information on Molecule Construction, see Chapter 9 Tutorial: Molecule Construction and Chapter 22 Molecule Construction.

The generic workflow using pENTR vectors is as follows:

 Open a Molecule Display Window for a selected pENTR vector and another for a DNA molecule with the sequence of interest. Use the menu command Window > Tile Vertical to conveniently view both files (Figure 23.7).



Figure 23.7 Creating a Gateway Entry Clone by restriction ligation using a pENTR vector

- 2. With the pENTR vector as the active window, define restriction site(s) on each side of the *ccdB* gene. Choose sites after and before attL1 and attL2, respectively, and avoid enzymes with internal sites in the sequence of interest. Choose List > Add Fragment to Goal List and follow the Fragment Wizard to add the fragment to the goal list. For directional cloning, choose sites that produce non-complementary overhangs.
- With the DNA donor fragment as the active window, select the sequence of interest using standard Vector NTI selection techniques. With the sequence selected, choose from the menu Analyses > Primer Design > Amplify Selection.
 - In the Amplification dialog box that opens, set **Before Max_BP** and **After Max_BP** to **0**, and **Maximum Number of Output Options** to **1**.
 - Under **More** >>, using the **Browse** () buttons, select 5' REN extensions for the sense and antisense primers that will anneal to the cut vector ends.
 - To amplify your selection, click **OK**.
- 4. In the PCR Analysis Text Pane folder, right-click on the PCR product and choose Save to Database and Create Window. In the New DNA/RNA Molecule dialog box that opens, enter the name of your new PCR product. Click OK. Select a subset to store the fragment in the DNA/RNA Molecule database and click OK.
- In the Molecule Display Window displaying the new PCR product, select on the REN sites you designed into your primers (Figure 23.8), and choose List > Add Fragment to Goal List. Follow the Fragment Wizard and conclude by adding the fragment to the goal list.



Figure 23.8 Selecting on REN sites of a PCR product for Molecule Construction

- 6. From the List menu, choose Show Lists. From the List Dialog box menu, choose Run.
- 7. In the Construct Molecule dialog box, ensure that the Circular radio button is selected and enter a name for your Entry Clone. Choose a subset to store it in the Insert DNA/RNA Molecule(s) into Subset dialog box and click OK. The newly constructed Entry Clone will contain the DNA sequence of interest flanked by the *att*L sites. Save the new Entry Clone to the database.
- Perform an LR recombination in Vector NTI (see below) and examine the resulting Expression Clone(s) by ORF analysis and translation to verify that the DNA sequence will be expressed as intended.

Obtaining a Functional Entry Clone from Invitrogen

Invitrogen offers collections of genomic sequences as *att*L-containing Source Clones (for example, the Ultimate ORF Collection). Check the Invitrogen website <u>http://www.invitrogen.com</u> or contact Invitrogen Technical Services.

Performing an LR Recombination

All the previously described methods in this chapter describe generating or obtaining an Entry Clone. In the Gateway LR reaction, one or more Entry Clones recombines with an *att*R-containing Destination Vector ((pDEST) to produce an Expression Clone. Vector NTI software performs LR recombination by accepting entries in several categories of projects (single-fragment, multisite, and batch) in a single workspace, recombining them and automatically sorting and validating the entries. A preview screen summarizes all successful Expression Clones and allows autosaving of the results to the database. (For details on multi-site cloning, refer to the Support link on the Invitrogen website, www.invitrogen.com.)

Open a Molecule Display Window and from the menu, choose Cloning > Gateway Cloning
 > Create an Expression Clone by LR. Alternatively, from the Database Explorer, select

one or more molecules, and choose Gateway Cloning > Create an Expression Clone by LR from the DNA/RNA or shortcut menu.

2. First Screen: In the Create Expression Clones by LR Reaction dialog box (Figure 23.9), use the Add/Remove buttons to browse in the pDEST vectors and Entry Clones, in the upper and lower panes respectively. If the tool was launched from an open file containing either type of molecule, those molecules will automatically appear in the appropriate pane. If invalid entries are browsed into either window, Vector NTI will issue a message and refuse the entry.

Name	Sites attB1_attB2	
5020110	duri, duriz	Add
		Remove
intry Clones: Name	Sites	
Entry Clone/attL1L2/C Elegans 7 tran Entry Clone/attL1L2/CRED1 Entry Clone/attL1L2/CRED1	attL1, attL2 attL1, attL2 attL1, attL2	Add
Entry Clone/attL1L2/HPV18E2	attL1, attL2	Remove
.ntry Clone/attL1L2/HPV18E2	attL1, attL2	nenove

Figure 23.9 Gateway LR cloning - first screen

Tip: The *att*L sites in an Entry Clone and *att*R sites in a pDEST vector must be compatible. For Entry Clones generated by Vector NTI software, the identity of *att* sites becomes part of the description annotation and can be displayed to help you select compatible molecules. When you click the **Add** button, the Choose Database DNA/RNA Molecules dialog box appears. Right click on the column header, and select **Columns**. In the Columns dialog box, select **Description** in the **Available Fields** panel to the left and move it to the **Displayed Fields** panel. You can click on the **Description** header to sort the molecules by description, or scroll through the list to find molecule(s) that contain the appropriate *att* sites.

You can follow the same procedure in the Database Explorer to display **Descriptions** and thus recognize att sites generated by Vector NTI software for any Gateway Clone.

- 3. Click **Next** to continue.
- 4. Second screen: An expandable preview page appears (Figure 23.10), summarizing the Expression Clones that can be generated from the available entries. Batch submissions (i.e. a single pDEST vector and multiple compatible Entry Clones) are summarized as separate Expression Clones. Check the Save results to DB checkbox to automatically save the Expression Clones to the Vector NTI database. Click Finish.

Expression Clone/pDEST 15/atlL1L2/C Elegans 7 transmembrar pDEST 15 (attR1, attR2) Entry Clone/attL1L2/C Elegans 7 transmembrane receptor (a Expression Clone/pDEST 15/attL1L2/CREB1 pDEST 15 (attR1, attR2) Entry Clone/attL1L2/CREB1 (attL2, attL1) Expression Clone/pDEST 15/attL1L2/GOTGHRA exon 3 pDEST 15 (attR1, attR2) Entry Clone/attL1L2/GOTGHRA exon 3 (attL2, attL1) Expression Clone/pDEST 15/attL1L2/HPV18E2 pDEST 15 (attR1, attR2) Expression Clone/pDEST 15/attL1L2/HPV18E2 pDEST 15 (attR1, attR2) Expression Clone/pDEST 15/attL12/HPV18E2 pDEST 15 (attR1, attR2) Expression Clone/pDEST 15/attL12/HPV18E2 pDEST 15 (attR1, attR2)	will be generated from the selection of Desthation Vectors and Entry Clones. If Clones that you expect are not on the list, mismatching or mis-annotated att sites are indicated. Check sequence of respective entries and resubmit.
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Figure 23.10 Gateway LR cloning - second screen

Note: If a pDEST vector and an Entry Clone share the same resistance markers, the recombination can proceed at the bench, but it will be difficult to select the final Expression Clone. If such Expression Clones can form, they will be noted on this page in orange. The simplest course in such cases is to recreate the Entry Clone using a pDONR vector with another marker, for example, pDONRzeo or pDONR207. Alternatively, consider using or creating a different pDEST vector.

The most likely situation for this to occur is when using new pDEST vectors that were not adequately annotated by the investigators who created them. (See *Creating a New Destination Vector* on page 335.) To minimize such occurrences, make sure that the new vectors have a unique marker and are annotated using permissible syntax, listed in Table 23.3. If your antibiotic resistance marker is not on this list, contact Invitrogen Technical Services to edit the appropriate configuration file. See Appendix A.

Resistance Marker	Permissible Syntax
Ampicillin	Ampicillin ampicilin Ampicilin AmpR Amp(R) AP(R) bla
Blasticidin	blasticidin Blasticidin Bsd Bsd(R)
Gentamicin	Gentamycin Gentamicin gentamycin gentamicin gentimicin gentimycin Gm(R) GmR

Table 23.3 Permitted Syntax for Antibiotic Resistance Markers

Resistance Marker	Permissible Syntax
Hygromycin	Hygromycin B hygromycin B Hygromycin B(R) hygromycin B(R) Hygromycin(R) hygromycin(R) Hygromycin hygromycin Hygro hygro Hygro(R) hygro(R) hyg hph hyg(R) hph(R)
Kanamycin	Kanamycin kanamycin KmR KN(R) Kn(R) Kan(R) Kan-Tn5
Neomycin	neomycin Neomycin Neo(R) NeoR
Spectinomycin	spectinomycin Spectinomycin SpnR Spn(R)
Zeocin	zeocin Zeocin ZeoR Zeo(R) Sh ble

Table 23.3 Permitted Syntax for Antibiotic Resistance Markers

- 5. To automatically save the results to the Vector NTI database, check the **Save results to DB** checkbox. You are offered the option to open the new clone in a Molecule Display Window. Click **Finish**.
- 6. If the Save results to DB option was checked, the Expression Clones are saved but do not open automatically in Molecule Display Windows. If the Save to the DB option was not checked, Expression Clones open in Molecule Display Windows as temporary molecules that can be saved in the Database.
- 7. Examine the resulting Expression Clone(s) by ORF analyses and translation to verify that the DNA sequence is expressed as intended. See the following section.

Verifying Expression Product

To verify that the DNA sequence is expressed as intended, examine the resulting Expression Clone(s) by ORF and translation analyses (Figure 23.11).



Figure 23.11 ORF and translation analysis on Expression Clone verifies that an expressed sequence is in-frame with a N-terminal fusion partner (a GST tag)

- 1. For ORF Analysis, select Analyses > ORF.
- 2. To verify translation, select Analyses > Translation > Into New Protein > <translation option>. If the DNA sequence was cloned into a Destination Vector containing N- or C-terminus fusion partners, make sure that they and sequence of interest are contained within a single ORF. Check that the reading frame translates the fusion partners and the sequence of interest correctly, and that no premature stop codons are encountered. If the reading frame is disrupted, it may be necessary to return to primer design for creating Entry Clones again. For detailed tips, see the Reading Frame Online Help topic available in the Primer tab.
- In molecules created by the Gateway cloning tools, a folder **Design Description** appears in the Text Pane. It contains a brief description of the protocol and can be copied and pasted into a word document for reference during the actual experiment.

Creating a New Destination Vector

Invitrogen offers a wide selection of Destination Vectors for expressing a sequence of interest in a variety of hosts and conditions. However, you may want to convert your own vectors into a Gateway Destination Vector in order to exploit unique promoters, fusion tags, etc. To assist in this process, Invitrogen offers sets of blunt-ended Reading Frame Cassettes for introducing *att*R1 and *att*R2 sites, and the requisite selectable marker genes, into any vector to convert it into a Destination Vector.

The set consists of three cassettes, each of which defines a different reading frame from vector features (tags, cleavage sites, etc.) to *att*R sites (and ultimately, to the insert sequences cloned in by LR recombination).

1. Browse the local database to your vector of choice and open it in a Molecule Display Window. Choose Cloning > Gateway Cloning > Create a Novel Destination Vector from the dropdown menu.

n the vector leature in void disrupting resistan ut-sites that produce 3'	ap, select a restriction site relative to promo ce genes, etc. 'overhangs can only be trimmed back.	ters, fusion tags, etc.
Cut al restriction sile:	HindIII #1 at 3512 bp	
Shift-Click on the featu	re map, il you want to cut the vector at a 2	nd site.
Cut al restriction sile:		
Fil-in overhangs		

Figure 23.12 Create a new Gateway pDEST vector – first screen

- 3. First screen (Figure 23.12):
 - Following the instructions, CLICK (and SHIFT-CLICK) on the vector feature map to select 1 (or 2) cut sites on the vector for inserting the cassette. If the digestions produce overhangs, choose a method to blunt the vector ends, then Click Next to continue.
 - ° Fill-in overhangs
 - Trim back overhangs (If any selected site generates 3' overhangs, only this option will be offered).

/ector pAM34 cut with REN HindIII #*	1 at 3512 bp
Choose Reading Frame Cassette:	- Reading Frame Cassette orientation:
rfa_verB	Oirect
rfa verB	C Reverse
rfb_ver8 rfc.1_ver8	C Both

Figure 23.13 Create a new Gateway pDEST vector – second screen

- 4. Second screen (Figure 23.13):
 - From the drop-down menu, choose a **Reading Frame Cassette**: rfa_verB, rfb_verB or rfc.1_verB. The cassettes differ in length by 1 bp, so that one of them will produce a pDEST vector with an unbroken reading frame between fusion partners in your vector (if any) and the attR sites introduced with the cassette.
- **Note:** Some combinations of cut sites and cassettes generate in-frame stop codons during ligation, which would prevent expression of a fusion protein between vector sequences and the sequence coded from inserts. Vector NTI will issue a message if such a combination is encountered, and recommend alternative actions if expression of a fusion protein is being considered. If the original vector lacks fusion partners, these instructions can be ignored.
 - 5. Choose to generate one or two new Destination Vector(s) with the cassette in direct, reverse or both orientation(s).

6. Click **Finish**. Inspect the new vector(s) and design restriction, sequencing or PCR screens with which to test transformants for cassette orientation.

Introduction to TOPO Cloning

TOPO cloning takes advantage of the activity of topoisomerase I, one molecule being covalently bound to each end of a linearized vector in a proprietary process. Inserts up to 3 kb in size are readily accepted. In a 5 minute bench-top reaction, incoming DNA fragments with 5'-OH ends are unwound by the enzyme and ligated to the vector end, in a process that releases energy and liberates the enzyme. The vectors can be grouped into 3 categories, based on the nature of their ends:

- **Zero-Blunt** vectors have 2 blunt ends and can accept blunt ended DNA fragments, including amplicons produced by a proofreading polymerase. Inserts are cloned in both orientations.
- T-A vectors have 2 ends with 3'-T overhangs. They can accept products of PCR amplification with a *taq* polymerase, whose terminal transferase activity adds 3'-A overhangs to the amplicon. Inserts are cloned in both orientations.
- In **directional** vectors one terminal is blunt ended and the other has a 5'-GGTG overhang on the bottom strand. PCR products are generated with a 5'-CACC extension on one end and this strand when unwound is preferentially annealed to the vector overhang. More than 90% of the clones are in the correct orientation and the time spent in screening colonies is thereby reduced.

The presence of topoisomerase enzyme also helps protect vector ends from degradation, particularly from contaminating nucleases that may be present in ligase preparations. Moreover, the avoidance of restriction site cutback for cloning PCR products means that internal cleavage sites are not a problem.

Generate a Clone by TOPO cloning

Any linear, double-stranded DNA sequence of interest may be cloned into a TOPO vector using VNTI NTI Advance. Circular molecules will not be accepted. In addition, linear sequences with 3'-A overhangs, the products of PCR amplification with a *taq* polymerase, may be cloned into TOPO-TA vectors. Such *taq*-generated molecules can be generated *in silico* using the Vector NTI Advance PCR tool **Amplify selection to use in TOPO reaction** (see below).

 Open the sequence in a Molecule Display Window, and from the menu, choose Cloning > TOPO Cloning > Launch TOPO Wizard.

Alternatively, in the Database Explorer, select one or more such molecules and from the **DNA/RNA** or shortcut menu choose **Launch TOPO Wizard**.

Remove
helibye
e
Add
Remove
desired inserts and vectors with matching cloning terminals

Figure 23.14 TOPO Cloning – first screen

 First screen (Figure 23.14): Use the Add/Remove buttons to browse in one or more sequences and TOPO vectors, in the upper and lower panes, respectively. If the tool is launched from open windows displaying either type of molecule, those molecules automatically appear in the appropriate pane. Use the information in the Type fields to ensure compatibility of insert sequence and TOPO vector. Click Next.

(If the insert sequence by chance has \geq 75% identity to CACC at both 5'-terminals, either naturally or due to PCR (see below), the type field will report the insert as double directional. These inserts are accepted by TOPO directional vectors, but the directional cloning ability is lost. In such cases, consider adding a cap to one of the primers, so that the insert will be cloned in the intended orientation.)

Create TOPO Clones TOPO reaction(s):	×
Cione results ⊕ Cione pCRR-Blunt II-TOPOR XM_012777_HUMCEACAM5 ⊕ Cione pCRR-Blunt II-TOPOR XM_012777_HUMCEACAM5-RC Unused Vectors └─ pCRII-TOPO	These clones will be generated from the selection of TOPO vectors and inserts. Blunt-end and T-A cloring are bi-directional. Directional vectors may also generate 2 clones; if an insert has 5°-CACC at both terminals. If clones that you expect are not in the list, mismatching terminals or mis-annotated vectors are likely. Check respective vectors and resubmit Save results to DB Open results in Viewer
< Back	Finish Cancel

Figure 23.15 TOPO Cloning - second screen

- 3. Second screen (Figure 23.15): An expandable preview page appears, summarizing valid clones that can be generated from the entries displayed on Screen 1. Note that vectors are regarded as "unused" if they are incompatible with the insert sequences (T-A in this case). Note also that cloning with bi-directional TOPO vectors will produce 2 clones, with the insert sequence in both orientations. Batch submissions from the first screen (e.g., a single vector and multiple compatible sequences) are summarized as separate clones.
- To automatically save the results to the Vector NTI database, check the Save results to DB checkbox. You are offered the option to open the new clone in a Molecule Display Window. Click Finish.

In molecules created by the TOPO cloning tools, a folder **Design Description** appears in the Text Pane. It contains a brief description of the protocol and can be copied and pasted into a word document for reference during the actual experiment.

5. If the **Save to the DB** option was not checked, clones will open in Molecule Display Windows as temporary molecules that can be saved in the Database (Figure 23.16).



Figure 23.16 Clones generated with the selected sequence cloned in opposite directions

Generate a Clone by PCR Amplification and TOPO Cloning

This strategy is a highly flexible, rapid process for generating clones by amplifying a sequence of interest with PCR and combining the amplicon with a TOPO vector. The sequence may be on either strand of any type of DNA molecule, linear or circular, since the first step will generate a linear PCR product in the desired orientation. You can choose between amplifying for combination with Zero-Blunt, directional or T-A TOPO vectors. For the latter, Vector NTI simulates the action of *taq* polymerase, including the addition of 3'-A overhangs to the amplicon by terminal transferase activity. In addition:

- You can add additional sequences to the primers to assist in protein expression and purification.
- You can open online help topics for assistance in the placement of stop codons and maintaining reading frames.
- If reading frame errors are detected, you can return and make the appropriate edits.
- You can add primer recommendations to an Oligo Goal List from which orders can be submitted to Invitrogen's custom Oligo Synthesis service.



Figure 23.17 Selection of Small T antigen sequence for amplification and TOPO cloning

 Open a Molecule Display Window for a DNA molecule containing the sequence of interest (Figure 23.17). Select the target region on the molecule and choose Cloning > TOPO Cloning > Amplify selection to use in TOPO reaction. (These commands are disabled if an appropriate target is not defined.) This opens the Amplification of Selected Region for TOPO cloning dialog box (Figure 23.18).

Amplification of Selected Region of SV40 for TOPO cloning.
Primer Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters
Before Amplicon Must Include Region of Molecule After Max 0 bp From: Image: Second sec
Maximum Number of Output Options 1
Salt Conc. [50.0 Probe Conc. [250.0 dG Temperature [C] 25.0 [C]
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $
Amplify on complementary strand
Primer additions for expression, purification, etc Sense: Antisense: Stop codons
Cloning termini
Load Save OK Cancel Apply

Figure 23.18 Amplification of Selected Region for TOPO cloning dialog box

2. This dialog box allows you to search for convenient sense and antisense primers according to your specifications and to check the uniqueness of primers. Most of the tabs and parameters in this dialog box are common to the those found in the Find PCR Primers dialog box discussed above with regard to Gateway cloning (Table 23.1). The difference on the Primer tab is described here. For more information on setting PCR parameters in this dialog box, see page 241.

The options on the **Primer** tab (Figure 23.18) allow you to generate a single pair of primers that amplifies but does not extend beyond the selected sequence. It also allows you to tailor the amplicon termini for specific types of TOPO vectors.

- a. In the box marked Cloning termini, choose **Blunt** to generate an amplicon with 2 blunt ends. These will be the exact boundaries of the selection. These amplicons are best used with Zero-Blunt TOPO vectors.
- b. Choose **T-A** to generate an amplicon as would be produced by amplification with a *taq* polymerase. The primers in such a case will anneal to the exact boundaries of the selection. However, terminal transferase activity in the enzyme will add 3'-A overhangs to each end of the amplicon (Figure 23.19).
- c. Choose directional for cloning in TOPO directional vectors, e.g. pENTR-D/TOPO. The amplicon will be generated using primers, one of which includes a 5'-CACC extension. The choice of primer is governed by the checkbox Amplify on complementary strand. In the example here, the small T antigen maps to the complementary strand of SV40. In order to orient it for cloning and expression the checkbox will be on. The resulting amplicon is shown in Figure 23.20. Note the CACC extension 5' to the start codon on the complementary strand.



Figure 23.19 SV40 small T amplified with computed primers and taq polymerase. Note the 3'-A overhangs exterior to the PCR primers.

Vector NTI - [CACC_SV40 small T]	ian Assemble Tools Window Help	
] [] ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ;	
Active Pane: 🔄 🕋 🛃 📰 🗸 🛄 🔹	🎇 🕺 🖆 🛍 👫 👫 🖑 🖉 🖉 🖪 🖌 🛄 13 🔽 Tr Courier New 💽 🔕 - <u>A</u> -	
🖪 焰 CACC_S¥40 small T		
🗄 🧰 General Description	ANTISENSE PRM	
🗄 🧰 Standard Fields	SENSE PRM SMALL T (sz)	
🗄 🧰 Original Author		
Comments		
Annotations		
Lomponent Fragments	CACC SV40 small T	
Peature Map Peature Map	529 bp	
Rescriction/Hethylation Hap		
SENSE_PRM		
1 TTAGAGCTTT AAATCTCTGT AGG	TAGTITE TCCAATTAIG TCACACCACA GAAGTAAGGT TCCTTCACAA AGATCAAGTC CAAACCACAT TCTAAAGCAA	
191 TOCANGGACT ACCANTGAGC CCA	ALCANCE CONTRETEC ACTIVITY TOTATTET A TOTATTETA TOTATTATE TOATTATCA CACCALCAL ATCONTING	
AGCTTCGTCA TCGTTAGTTG GGT	GTGTTCA CCTAGAAAGG ACATATTAAA AGATAAAAGT ACGAAGTAGG AGTCATTCGT GTCGTTCGTA TACGTCAATC	
201 CAGACATTTT CTTTGCACAC TCA	AGGCCATT GTTTGCAGTA CATTGCATCA ACACCAGGAT TTAAGGAAGA AGCAAATACC TCAGTTGCAT CCCAGAAGCC	
GTCTGTAAAA GAAACGTGTG AGT	CCGGTAA CAAACGTCAT GTAACGTAGT TGTGGTCCTA AATTCCTTCT TCGTTTATGG AGTCAACGTA GGGTCTTCGG	
301 TCCAAAGTCA GGTTGATGAG CAT	ATTTTAC TCCATCTTCC ATTTTCTTGT ACAGAGTATT CATTTTCTTC ATTTTTTCTT CATCTCCTCC TTTATCAGGA	
AGGTTTCAGT CCAACTACTC GTA	ITAAAATG AGGTAGAAGG TAAAAGAACA TGTCTCATAA GTAAAAGAAG TAAAAAAGAA GTAGAGGAGG AAATAGTCCT	
401 TGAAACTCCT TGCATTTTTT TAA	LATATGCC TTTCTCATCA GAGGAATATT CCCCCAGGCA CTCCTTTCAA GACCTAGAAG GTCCATTAGC TGCAAAGATT	
ACTITOROGA ACGIARAMA ATT	Neel	
501 CCTCTCTGTT TAAAACTTTA TCC	ATGGTG	
GGAGAGACAA ATTTTGAAAT AGG	STACCAC	
ANTISENSE_PRM		
Dent.		
Reauy	526 DP - 529 DP (4 DP) 526 DP (5)	

Figure 23.20 SV40 small T amplified for reaction with a TOPO directional vector. Note the 5'-CACC extension on the complementary strand.

As described above, the **Load** and **Save** buttons at the lower left of each tab are common to all PCR dialog boxes. They allow you to save your PCR settings to a file and load the settings file in for subsequent analyses. See page 240 for more information.

- Once PCR parameters are specified, click OK in the Amplification of Selected Region for TOPO cloning dialog box.
- 4. PCR product and primers are calculated, and display in the PCR Analysis Text Pane folder in the Molecule Display Window. Simultaneously, a dialog box opens (Figure 23.21), in which you can select to proceed directly to a TOPO reaction, and/or to add the primers to the Oligo Goal List to expedite ordering from Invitrogen's custom Oligo Synthesis service. To bypass both options, click OK without selecting either checkbox; this will return you to the starting molecule so that you can examine the calculated PCR product and primers.

Vector NTI
PCR products and primers have been assigned to the Molecule Viewer. You may exit now to save them to the database, or proceed to the cloning wizard and save them later:
Proceed to cloning wizard
Add oligos to Oligo list for optional ordering
(OK

Figure 23.21 Choose to proceed directly to the cloning wizard, add the primers to your order list or examine the primers and products

- If you select **Proceed to cloning wizard**, the Create TOPO Clone dialog box (Figure 23.14) opens with the PCR product(s) you generated appearing automatically in the inserts pane. Continue as described in the previous section.
- If you elect to add the oligos to the Oligo List, you can order the custom Oligos from Invitrogen at any time. See page 266 for more information.
- If you opt to exit here to examine the primers and products, you can pursue any of the following options and save the product and primers to continue at a later time:
 - a. After examining the results, select the PCR product in the **PCR Analysis** Text Pane folder and select **Clone PCR Product by TOPO** from the shortcut menu. Continue with the Create TOPO Clone dialog box (Figure 23.14) as described in the previous section.
 - b. Right click on the Product of Length (the PCR product) in the PCR Analysis Text Pane folder and select Save as Molecule in Database. At a later date, you can select the PCR product in the Database Explorer and Launch TOPO wizard as described in the previous section. This option is useful if multiple PCR products are generated from different files, and you wish to store and submit them from the database in batch.
 - c. Save the parent molecule along with all PCR products and primers in one molecule file. Choose File > Save As and in the Save As dialog box, select the Save as file tab and choose a location in which the files are to be saved. Later, to submit the saved PCR product to a TOPO reaction, open the file in a Molecule Display Window, select the PCR product in the PCR Analysis Text Pane folder and continue as described above.
- Generate a TOPO Clone. The Create TOPO Clone dialog box opens with your amplicon in the attB Sequences pane. Continue with the TOPO reaction, beginning with step #2 on page 315. The amplified sequence, plus any additions you chose during primer design, will be cloned into the chosen vector (Figure 23.22).



Figure 23.22 Small T cloned into Gateway-enabled TOPO vector pENTR-D/TOPO. Note that the amplicon is reoriented so that direction of expression is in the attL1 \rightarrow attL2 direction. This clone is ready for recombination with a Gateway pDEST vector in an LR reaction.

High Throughput Operations

The simplicity of Gateway and TOPO cloning easily lend themselves to automation and highthroughput operations. This final section describes procedures that can rapidly generate and store high numbers of primers, amplicons and clones.

High Throughput PCR

- 1. Open one or more Molecule Display Windows containing the sequences of interest. If more than one window is opened, consider **Tile** or **Cascade** from the **Window** menu to arrange them on screen for convenience.
- 2. For each open window, follow these steps
 - a. Select the entire sequence (CTRL-A or Select All from the Edit menu) and add to the Multiplex PCR List (List menu > Multiplex PCR List).



Figure 23.23 Lists Window – Multiplex PCR tab

- b. The Lists window opens on the Multiplex PCR tab (Figure 23.23). Click Add on the Lists window menu and in the ensuing Add Fragment to Multiplex PCR Analysis dialog, choose either Add Whole Selection or Add Features Inside Selection.
- c. If you choose **Add Whole Selection** and click **OK** the entire sequence from the respective Display Window is entered in the multiplex list.
- d. If you choose Add Features Inside Selection, use the Browse button (+) to specify the feature types to amplify (e.g. CDS, exons, etc.). You can specify individual instances of the feature type by name. Or accept the default Add all features of this type. Click OK and the Add Fragment to Multiplex PCR Analysis dialog will list the named features, or Any <feature type>. The Add Fragment to Multiplex PCR Analysis dialog can be used to mix and match different feature types on one or several molecules.

- e. Click OK and the Lists window will display a row <molecule name> Features <feature type/name> inside Selection <molecule length>
- f. Repeat these steps for all molecules open in Molecule Display Windows.
- When the list is complete, click either Run GW or Run TOPO from the Lists window menu. The Multiplex PCR Analysis dialog opens for the respective cloning operation. For this illustration, we will use Run GW (Figure 23.24).

Multiplex PCR Analysis
Primer Results Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters Before Amplicon Length After Find Primers in Selection/Feature Max bp Min 51 bp Max 0 bp C Outside Inside Clustering Clustering C Multiplex Fold 10 Amplicon Length 0 © Maximize Clusters Multiplex Fold 10 Amplicon Length 0 © Minimize Clusters
Salt Conc. (mMol) 50.0 Probe Conc. (pMol) 250.0 dG Temperature (C) 25.0 Tm (C) >= 35.0 Length © DNA C RNA <=
Primer additions for expression, purification, etc Primer additions for expression, purification, etc Instruction on reading frame stop codons Add GGGG-attBx 5' extensions
of Sense Primer: of Antisense Primer: attB1 attB2 Load Save OK Cancel

Figure 23.24 Multiplex PCR Analysis dialog for generating Gateway amplicons

4. The parameters are configured to generate sense and antisense primers that amplify but do not extend beyond the selected features. As in single-fragment cloning, sequence additions can be added/typed to assist in expression or purification. The attB-extensions appearing in the Add GGGG-attBx 5' extensions boxes will be added to respective sense and antisense primers.

Ideally, all features for amplification should be on the same strand of the open files, most often the direct strand. If some features are on the opposite strand, you should consider whether the cloning procedure downstream is directional. (TOPO Zero-Blunt and TOPO T-A are not and both orientations will be produced anyway) If cloning is directional (directional TOPO or Gateway), you can repeat the analysis, and in the list setup, specify the features on the opposite strand by name. Then check on the **Amplify on Complementary Strand** checkbox.

5. In addition, these parameters are configured to attempt amplification of the selected molecules/features without high regard to standard multiplex criteria.

Multiplex fold minimum = 10

Amplicon Length Difference Min = 0

Maximize clusters

Most strikingly, there is no attempt to ensure that amplicons in a cluster will be a minimum size difference from one another (**Amplicon Length Difference Min** = 0). It is assumed that the PCR reactions computed here will be executed in plate format, one reaction per well, rather than true multiplex format. If this is not the case in your experiment, adjust these parameters accordingly. Finally, the default configuration will record results in a Report file (**Results** tab > **Generate Report**).



Figure 23.25 Multiplex PCR report

6. Click OK. When PCR computations are complete, a report Preview: Multiplex PCR Amplification is generated (Figure 23.25), which summarizes the features that can be amplified and the primers computed for the PCR reactions. Under the configuration described above, most reactions will be grouped in one or a few clusters. Click Save Report to save the report to a file where it may be read in any text editor. Then click Close Report and check the preferred options from Save PCR products as DNA molecules to DB, Save Primers as Oligos to DB and Add Primers to Oligo List. Both "clustered" and unclustered amplicons, and their Gateway primers, are saved to subbases in their respective databases (Figure 23.26).

🔍 Exploring - Local Vector NTI	Database		
<u>D</u> NA/RNA <u>E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>A</u> nalyses	Align <u>D</u> atabase Assemble Tools	Help	
Cluster1	•		
← ⇒ ∰ ∭ 🖓 🗗	🖣 🖺 🖾 🏠 啡 🗙 🖆	i 🖽 • 🗇 🍐 🚷 😥	
All Subsets	Subset Cluster1 of DNA/RNA Molecules		
DNA/RNA Molecules (MAIN)	Name	Description	Length 🔺
CAP3 assembly testing	PCR Product of HUMBRCA1(1)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_1)	1911
CREB1	PCR Product of HUMBRCA1(7)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_10)	326
🗊 Invitrogen vectors	PCR Product of HUMBRCA1(73)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_101)	217
司 ILR8 alpha	PCR Product of HUMBRCA1(74)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_102)	338
Search Results	EmPCR Product of HUMBRCA1(75)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_104)	145
TOPO test	EMPCR Product ofHUMBRCA1(76)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_105)	363
ធា្លី Cluster1	EMPCR Product ofHUMBRCA1(77)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_106)	188
	EMPCR Product of HUMBRCA1(78)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_107)	364
	E PCR Product of HUMBRCA1(79)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_108)	225
	EmpCR Product of HUMBRCA1(80)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_110)	112
	EmPCR Product ofHUMBRCA1(81)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_111)	283
	EmPCR Product of HUMBRCA1(82)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_112)	371
	PCR Product ofHUMBRCA1(83)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_113)	362
	EmPCR Product ofHUMBRCA1(84)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_118)	183
	PCR Product ofHUMBRCA1(85)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_119)	196
	PCR Product ofHUMBRCA1(8)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_12)	360
	EmPCR Product of HUMBRCA1(86)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_120)	359
	EMPCR Product of HUMBRCA1(87)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_121)	230
	E PCR Product of HUMBRCA1(88)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_123)	112
	E PCR Product of HUMBRCA1(89)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_124)	348
	E PCR Product of HUMBRCA1(90)	PCR product of HUMBRCA1 (Repeat_Region_126)	146 🖵
	•		▶
205 DNA/RNA molecules			

Figure 23.26 Over 200 annotated features in HUMBRCA1 were amplified and deposited in a single subbase of the DNA/RNA database. Four features that were successfully amplified but not "clustered" were deposited in a separate subset ("Cluster_unclusterized")

High throughput cloning

One or more entries in the Explorer DNA/RNA database can be selected by standard operations (**CLICK**, **SHIFT + CLICK**, **CTRL + CLICK**). When this is done, the Gateway or TOPO cloning tools can be launched from the **DNA/RNA** or shortcut menu. Let's continue with the example using the Gateway amplicons generated above.

- 1. Click on the Cluster 1 subbase in the DNA/RNA database and select all of its contents.
- From the DNA/RNA or shortcut menu, choose Gateway Cloning > Recombine an Expr Clone by BP (Figure 23.27).

Contractor description birty	Database									a la
Exploring - Local Vector NT1	Database									
DNA/RNA Edit View Analyses	Align Database Assemble Tools	нер								
HUMBRCA1 Entry Clones		🗊 🖻 🛍 🖾 🐽 🗡	1	-	<u>i</u> i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i		?			
All Subsets	Subset HUMBRCA1 Entry Clones of D	NA/RNA Molecules								
DNA/RNA Molecules (MAIN)	Name	Description			Length	Form	Storage	Author	Original Aut	Modified 🔺
GP CAP3 assembly testing	Entry Clone/pDONRT201/PCR Pr	-	L.		2551	Circular	Construc	David Mich	David Michaels	8/15/20(
CREB1	Entry Clone/pDONRT201/PCR Pr	Open			2424	Circular	Construc	David Mich	David Michaels	8/15/200
Invitragen vectors	Entry Clone/pDONRT201/PCR Pr	[X] Edt			2424	Circular	Construc	David Mich	David Michaels	8/15/200
ILR8 alpha	Entry Clone/pDONRT201/PCR Pr	Analyses			2548	Circular	Construc	David Mich	David Michaels	8/15/20(
Search Results	Entry Clone/pDONRT201/PCR Pr	Align			2370	Circular	Construc	David Mich	David Michaels	8/15/20(
TOPO test	Entry Clone/pDONRT201/PCR Pr	Assemble	•		2368	Circular	Construc	David Mich	David Michaels	8/15/20(
ត្តា Cluster1	Entry Clone/pDONRT201/PCR Pr	Tools	- F		2558	Circular	Construc	David Mich	David Michaels	8/15/20(
Cluster undusterized	Entry Clone/pDONRT201/PCR Pr	Gateway cloning	•	Recombin	ie an Expr	Clone by	BP III	David Mich	David Michaels	8/15/20
HUMBRCA1 Entry Clones	Entry Clone/pDONRT201/PCR Pr	Launch TOPO wizard		Create ar	n Expressio	on Clone b	y LR	David Mich	David Michaels	8/15/20(
	Entry Clone/pDONRT201/PCR Pr		-т		2001	Servara	construc	David Mich	David Michaels	8/15/20
	Entry Clone/pDONRT201/PCR Pr	iii <u>C</u> opy			2557	Circular	Construc	David Mich	David Michaels	8/15/20(
	Entry Clone/pDONRT201/PCR Pr	Export	•		2559	Circular	Construc	David Mich	David Michaels	8/15/20(
	Entry Clone/pDONRT201/PCR Pr	De Caratanat			2397	Circular	Construc	David Mich	David Michaels	8/15/20(
	Entry Clone/pDONRT201/PCR Pr	Re-Construct			2555	Circular	Construc	David Mich	David Michaels	8/15/20(
	Entry Clone/pDONRT201/PCR Pr	Re-Design			2310	Circular	Construc	David Mich	David Michaels	8/15/20(
	Entry Clone/pDONRT201/PCR Pr	Delete with Descendants from DB			2331	Circular	Construc	David Mich	David Michaels	8/15/20(
	Entry Clone/pDONRT201/PCR Pr	Exclude from Subset			2556	Circular	Construc	David Mich	David Michaels	8/15/200
	Entry Clone/pDONRT201/PCR Pr	Delate from Database			2561	Circular	Construc	David Mich	David Michaels	8/15/200
	100 Febru Class/eDOMDT201/0CD Dr				20002	Circular	Construct	Douid Mich	Douid Michoole	8/15/20/

Figure 23.27 Launching Gateway BP reactions on multiple entries in the Explorer database

3. The first screen of the BP cloning tool opens, with all the amplicons listed in the attB sequences pane.

- 4. Continue as with BP for single fragment cloning. Add a pDONR vector, and click **Next.** You have the option of directly opening all resulting clones in Molecule Display Windows. Click **Finish**. The clones will be stored in a subset of your choosing.
- 5. To generate Expression Clones in batch, repeat steps 1 through 4., but choose **Gateway Cloning > Create an Expression Clone by LR** from the **DNA/RNA** or shortcut menu.

C H A P T E R

MOLECULE DESIGN

Introduction

This chapter describes the creation of DNA molecules through Design.

In Design, you can describe the list of fragments in very general or very specific terms. You can also describe preferences for techniques used in creating the molecule, such as how fragments may be isolated from their parent molecules, how termini may be modified, etc. In contrast to the Construction technique described in Chapter 22, in Design Vector NTI does the rest, taking advantage of the best possible restriction sites and genetic engineering techniques to engineer the molecule.

This chapter describes:

- The overall procedure for designing a DNA molecule
- How to describe a goal molecule using Display windows, Fragment Wizard, and the Molecule Editor
- How to start the design process
- How to set your preferences for design techniques
- What Vector NTI actually does during the design process, and how you can control the process
- Discussion of the design plans Vector NTI generates.

Creating a New DNA Molecule Using Design

For creating a molecule by Design, the Molecule Display window must be in Molecule Edit mode, the default mode when the window is opened.

The process of creating a new molecule with Vector NTI's Design capabilities generally follows these steps in an active Graphics Pane:

1. Describe your goal molecule by defining its recipient and donor fragments and placing them in the Goal Molecule Definition List in the proper order using Fragment Wizard.

- 2. Open the Lists dialog box, loaded with the component fragments for your Goal Molecule.
- 3. Open the Design Molecule dialog box, enter general information for the new molecule and initiate the Design.
- 4. When the Design Parameters dialog box appears, set the appropriate parameters and your design preferences.
- Start the design process. Vector NTI searches for optimum Design options. If Design is successful, your molecule is entered into the database and opens in its new Molecule Display window.
- 6. In the Text Pane of the display window containing the goal molecule, open the Design Description folder to inspect the design plan Vector NTI has generated.

If you are not satisfied with the design plan, you can choose to redesign the molecule by changing the description of the goal molecule or using different parameters.

Describing the Goal Molecule

In Design, you must define one *recipient fragment*, listed first in the Goal Molecule Definition List, and one or more *donor fragments*.

The simplest way to define fragments for Design is to use the Fragment Wizard and the Graphics Pane to visually define fragments. You can then use the Fragment Editor to fine-tune fragment descriptions. Fragments can be defined by hand in the Design Molecule dialog box, but it is much more tedious and much less effective than using Fragment Wizard. Refer to Chapter 22 for a detailed description of Fragment Wizard. Here we will describe how to use it to define design recipient and design donor fragments.

Defining the Recipient Using Fragment Wizard

- The recipient fragment of the goal molecule remains unaffected during the Design process. <u>All</u> nucleotides within the recipient fragment you defined are included in the goal molecule. This means that any polylinker sites used for cloning must be outside the recipient fragment.
- The recipient must be listed as the first fragment in the Goal Molecule Definition List. This will be covered later in the chapter.
- The recipient must come from a circular molecule stored in the Vector NTI database.

To define a recipient fragment, open the Display window for the recipient molecule. If you have several display windows open concurrently, you can display the source molecules concurrently by selecting **Window > Tile Vertically** or make sure the source molecule for your fragment is the topmost window. Activate its Graphics Pane and click the **Add Fragment To Goal List** but-

ton (
), or select List > Add Fragment to Goal List, opening The Fragment Wizard dialog box (Figure 24.1).

ragment Wizard				
What kind of fragment do y	ou want to selec	t?		
Construction fragme	nt (🗌 insert	Inverted]		
Design Recipient fra	gment			
C Design Donor fragm	ent			
	Back	Next>	Finish	Cancel

Figure 24.1 Fragment Wizard dialog box

The Fragment Wizard dialog box content changes to display the entry fields and descriptions corresponding to the current step in the fragment definition process.

At any point in the process, you can choose to **Cancel**, go **Back** a screen, go to the **Next** screen, or **Finish** the process using the appropriate buttons. (**Finish** goes directly to the last step, skipping all the remaining steps, if any. Fragment Wizard goes through all the steps you skipped and supplies the missing information using default values and the coordinates of the current selection in the Display window.)

In the first "screen":

Select the kind of fragment you wish to define from three choices: Since this chapter covers Design, choose the **Design Recipient Fragment** option and click the **Next** button to go to the second screen of Fragment Wizard:

In the second screen (Figure 24.2):

To specify the 5' terminus of the fragment, select one of the following options. Vector NTI will look for good cloning sites in the region upstream from the position you specify.

- Specify a position on the molecule map (in one of the two following ways)
- Enter the coordinate in the text box or click in the Graphics Pane of the display window. In the latter case, the Set to a Position button will be selected automatically and the caret position is displayed in the position field of the dialog box (and on the Status Bar). To reposition the caret, use the right and left arrow keys.
- **Tip:** If, when you click in the Graphics Pane, the entire molecule is selected (as indicated by the wire-frame), click in the Sequence Pane to deselect, and begin again.
 - 2. Specify the start of the molecule by selecting the Start of Molecule option in the dialog box.
 - Specify a restriction site.

To set the terminus to a restriction site, click on the site or its label in the Graphics Pane. *If* selected, Vector NTI <u>must</u> use that site in cloning. For Design, you may be setting an unrealistic limitation. If the site is not convenient, for example, requiring complicated partial digestion, the cloning may be very difficult.

Note: If the Fragment Wizard screen limits your view of the molecule map, left click on Wizard's blue title bar, and drag it out of the way.



Figure 24.2 Specifying the 5' terminus of the fragment

When the 5' terminus is set, click the Next button to proceed.

In the third screen (Figure 24.3):

This screen appears only if you specified that the 5' terminus should be set to a palindromic restriction site. If that was not your choice, move on the description of the fourth screen.

You are asked to specify whether the site should be saved or lost in the designed molecule. Your options are: **Save Site**, **Lose Site** or **Don't Care**. If you do not specify that site is to be saved or lost, its fate will be unpredictable. Choose the desired option and click the **Next** button to advance to the next screen of the dialog box.

Fragment Wizard	
Would you like to save or lose EcoRI site on the left (5') terminus? C Save Site C Lose Site C Don't care	
< Back Next > Finish	Cancel

Figure 24.3 Specifying whether the site should be saved or lost in the designed molecule

In the fourth screen:

Specify the 3' terminus of the fragment. Vector NTI will look for good cloning sites in the region following the position you specify. Options are:

- Specify a position on the molecule map (in one of the two following ways)
- 1. Enter the position into the text box or SHIFT + CLICK in the Graphics Pane and adjust the caret position using SHIFT-arrow key combinations described in Chapter 3.
- 2. Specify the end of the molecule
- Specify a restriction site.

SHIFT + CLICK on the site or its label in the Graphics Pane. If selected, Vector NTI <u>must</u> use that site in cloning. For Design, you may be setting an unrealistic limitation. If the site is not convenient, for example, requiring complicated partial digestion, the cloning may be very difficult.

Tip: The SHIFT key must be held down for all actions in the Graphics Pane for setting the 3' end. If you neglect to do this, your actions will change the 5' terminus and Fragment Wizard will revert to screen 2.

If you specified that the 3' terminus is set at a palindromic restriction site, you can go to the next screen and specify that the site should be saved or lost in the designed molecule. Choose the desired option and click the **Finish** button to complete the definition of the fragment.

If you did not specify a palindromic restriction site, the **Next** button is disabled; click the **Finish** button, signifying completion of fragment definition.

New Frag	ment		? ×
٩	Fragment type: Left (5') Terminus: Right (3') Terminus:	Design Recipient Position 824 bp Site ApaLI #3 at 2367 bp	
	Add to List	Cancel	

Figure 24.4 Adding the fragment to the Goal Molecule Definition List

Review the description of the selected fragment in the New Fragment message box. If you made a mistake, click the **Cancel** button to return to the Fragment Wizard. Otherwise, click the **Add to List** button (Figure 24.4), adding the fragment to the Goal Molecule Definition List and closing the Fragment Wizard.

Notes about Design:

- If you later edit the recipient fragment in the List/Design Molecule dialog box, any biochemical operations you order to be performed on the termini of the recipient fragment will be ignored. During the Design process, Vector NTI chooses all methods of terminus modification itself.
- The recipient fragment always has direct orientation. The Inverted box in the recipient's Fragment Editor dialog is disabled during the Design process.

Defining the Donors Using Fragment Wizard

Donors are fragments that Vector NTI inserts into the recipient fragment (vector) to produce the goal molecule. Donor fragments in Design must carry functional signals into the recipient.

When performing Design, Vector NTI requires all fragments except the first in the Goal Molecule Definition List to be donor fragments. Donor fragments can come from circular or linear molecules stored in the database.

To define a donor fragment, open the display window for the donor molecule. (If you have several display windows open concurrently, the source molecule for your fragment should be the topmost window.) Activate its Graphics Pane and click the **Add Fragment To Goal List** button

(1) on the Window toolbar or select List > Add Fragment to Goal List, opening The Fragment Wizard dialog box.

In the first screen:

Select the Design Donor Fragment option and click the **Next** button to go to the second screen of the Fragment Wizard.

In the second screen (Figure 24.5):

- To select the desired functional signals to be carried on the donor fragment into the recipient, click on the signal or its label in the Graphics Pane. To select more than one signal, hold down the SHIFT + CLICK. Note: If the Fragment Wizard screen limits your view of the molecule map, left click on Wizard's blue title bar, and drag it out of the way.
- To deselect a selected signal, hold down SHIFT + CLICK again.

Fragment Wizard						
What features would you like to be carried into the recipient?						
Include signals:	AP(R)					
Cut between:	3' and 5' ends of AP(R)					
Shift-click on func change the place	ctional signals you want to select in the graphics viewer. You can of the gap using <∥ and ∥> buttons above.					
	< Back Next > Finish Cancel					

Figure 24.5 Selecting the desired functional signals to be carried on the donor fragment into the recipient

The names of the signals you selected are displayed in the Fragment Wizard dialog box.

If the donor molecule is circular and you have chosen more than one signal, Fragment Wizard lets you choose the place of the "gap" between signals where Vector NTI will look for a convenient place to cut the donor molecule. To move the gap clockwise, click the right arrow button on the Fragment Wizard; counterclockwise, click the left arrow button. To illustrate this, select more than one signal and experiment. When the desired signals are selected, click the **Next** button to go to the next screen.

In the third screen (Figure 24.6):

The next screen for specifying the 5' terminus for design offers two selections:

- Leave Terminus Undefined if you want Vector NTI to choose restriction sites for you.
- Use Specific Site to use a restriction site to cut the signals from the donor molecule. Fragment Wizard prompts you to hold down the SHIFT key and click on the restriction site or its label in the Graphics Pane. The site label is selected and the name of the site and its position are shown in the Fragment Wizard dialog box. If selected in this way, Vector NTI is forced to use that site in cloning. If the site is not convenient, for example, requiring complicated partial digestion, you will be responsible for the difficulty of the cloning situation.

Fragment Wizard						
What is the design specification for the left (5') terminus?						
• Leave terminus Undefined (flank region can be specified on a next step)						
O Use specific site:						
	< Back Next > Finish Cancel					

Figure 24.6 Specifying the 5' terminus for design

Click the Next button to go to the next screen.

In the fourth screen (Figure 24.7):

If you have chosen the **Use Specific Site** option, this screen lets you specify the 3' terminus for design. The required actions are the same as for the 5' terminus screen described above.

If you have chosen the **Leave Terminus Undefined** option, this screen asks you to specify the maximum size of the 5' flank region (if you came from the 5' terminus definition screen) or 3' flank region.

Fragment Wizard	
What maximum size of the left (5') flank reg	ion would you prefer?
O Use flank region no larger than	bps
O not limit the size of a flank region	n
	Nexts Court
< Back	Next> Finish Lancel

Figure 24.7 Specifying the 3' terminus for design, or specifying the maximum size of the 5' flank region

• Use Flank Region No Larger Than ... bps limits the region within which cloning sites may be sought (thus limiting the size of the resulting flank region). At the prompt, enter either the maximum length of the flank region in the dialog's text box or move the appropriate end of the selection in the Graphics Pane into the gap beyond the edges of the selected functional signals. In this case, the selection in the Graphics Pane shows a maximum possible flank region. You can use all available techniques for extending a selection in the Graphics Pane: drag the appropriate end of the selection, SHIFT-CLICK on the desired position, etc. For details on Selection Techniques, refer to Chapter 3.

• **Do Not Limit the Size of a Flank Region** allows Vector NTI to search all available space for restriction sites.

When you are finished with the description of both termini of the donor fragment, the **Next** button becomes disabled. Click the **Finish** button to complete the definition of the donor fragment.

The New Fragment message box is displayed with the description of the selected donor fragment. If you made a mistake, click the **Cancel** button to return to the Fragment Wizard dialog. Otherwise, click the **Add to List** button. The fragment is added to the Goal Molecule Definition List and the Fragment Wizard dialog box is closed.

The Goal Molecule Definition List (Goal List)

The Goal Molecule Definition List (Figure 24.8) (in the **Fragments** tab at the bottom of the Lists dialog box) is a list of fragments to be combined to create a new molecule. In addition to adding fragments to the Goal Molecule Definition List using the Fragment Wizard, you can add them directly from the Lists dialog box.

To see the Goal Molecule Definition List, click the **Open Goal List** button (^(K)) or choose **List** > **Molecule Goal List**. In the Lists dialog box (**Fragments** tab) that opens, the Fragments display box lists the fragments currently in the Goal Molecule Definition List.

ists									×
C⊃ Add	Edit	X Delete	要の Up D	Ba Mode:	안 Design	Construct	₿ Run		
Fragments									
Molfragmen	t of pUC19:	Left terminus:	position 824;	Right terminus: A	paLI site #	3			
Moltragmen	it of pBR322	:: Left terminus	;: NODEF; Righ	it terminus: NODE	EF; Descript	ors: CDS, Nam	e: AP(R)		
	Olizon G	al Samples M	ultiplay PCB						
Fragments				Alignment FCh					

Figure 24.8 Goal Molecule Definition List

Note: The first fragment listed is considered the "recipient fragment." If a fragment is listed in incorrect order, highlight it and click the **Up** or **Down** buttons to reposition it.

Starting the Design

Although the goal molecule component fragments are ready for processing by Vector NTI's Design mode, remember that VNTI decides on the optimum Design fragment termini and cloning strategies.

To begin the design of your new molecule, open the Lists dialog box by clicking on the **Open Goal List** button or selecting **List > Molecule Goal List**.

Open the Design Molecule dialog box by clicking the Run button on the Lists dialog box.

Note: The Construct/Design Molecule dialog box has two operational modes—a mode for molecule construction and mode for molecule design. Because you have defined fragments in this chapter for Design, in this mode, the dialog box title is the Design Molecule. See Chapter 22 for details on the Construct Mode.

Enter or select the dialog box fields as follows:

- Name
- Circular/Linear the form of the molecule.

- DNA/RNA molecule type
- Click the General Info button to enter molecule description information:
 - ^o Description notes about the molecule
 - ^o Extra-Chromosome Replication transformation systems
 - ^o **Replicon Type** molecule's replicon type
 - ^o **Keywords** keywords useful for database search. Refer to page 171 for details.
 - ^o Click **OK** to return to the Design dialog box.

All of the **General Info** data will appear in the General Description folder when the molecule is loaded into a Display window.

- **Recipient's Start** start of the new molecule is as close as possible to the start of the "recipient" component fragment (the first fragment listed of the Component Fragments).
- **Position** ... specify a specific nucleotide of a specific fragment as the starting nucleotide of the new molecule. (*By default, the first nucleotide of the first fragment.*)

The Component Fragments Field

Designed molecules consist of one or more component fragments. Use the Fragments field in the Lists dialog box to verify or enter this information.

You may edit, delete, and change the order of the fragments in the Component Fragments field, and you may add new fragments of five types. These operations are described in Chapter 22.

It is essential in molecule design that the recipient fragment is first in the Fragments list, followed by the donor fragments. If you need to change this order, highlight the fragment(s) to be moved and click the **Up** or **Down** buttons until they are in the correct order.

Defining Design Fragments in Fragment Editor

An alternative to using Fragment Wizard for defining design fragments is to enter them manually into the **Fragments** tab of the Lists dialog. To do this, click the **Add** button and choose **Add <Donor/Recipient> Fragment > with Fragment Editor** to open the Fragment of Molecule dialog box (Figure 24.9).

Fragment of Molecule	<u>? ×</u>
C Construct C Design Recipient © Design I	Donor OK Cancel
Parent Molecule:	
BPV1	Restriction Sites Counted From Nucleotide
Inverted	
Left Terminus NODEF	
Right Terminus NODEF	
For Design Don	ors Only
Descriptor(s):	Cubert of December
CDS, Name: E7, From NODEF To NI CDS, Name: E8, From NODEF To NI	
Delete	Maximum Maximum
	Left Flank Region Right Flank Region
L &	449 859

Figure 24.9 Fragment of Molecule dialog box

Options in the Fragment Editor dialog box are summarized as follows:

• Design recipient/donor fragment

- A donor fragment created with a Display window always has a defined parent molecule name
- Change the orientation of a donor fragment by checking the **Inverted** box.
- Left/Right Terminus buttons open the Edit Terminus dialog box (Figure 22.16). The way you defined the termini initially governs which sections are enabled in this dialog box. For more information on modifying termini, refer to Chapter 22.

In Design, all donor fragments carry functional signals called descriptors into the recipient. To add or remove descriptors from a donor fragment, use the **For Design Donors Only** section of this dialog box. To add a descriptor, click the **Add** button, opening the Fragment Descriptor dialog box (Figure 24.10):

Fragment Descriptor	? ×
Feature Type:	OK
5' Clip 5' UTR Allele Attenuator bHLH Domain C-Region CAAT Signal CDS Cellular	Cancel
Feature Name:	
Complementary	

Figure 24.10 Fragment Descriptor dialog box

To define a descriptor for the donor fragment, choose the type of signal and enter the name of the signal, if necessary. If the signal is on the complementary strand, check the **Complementary** box. (If you do not enter a signal name, the descriptor is added to the donor fragment and is treated as any signal of the specified type.)

Note: The Fragment Descriptor dialog box is the only way to add a descriptor containing *any* signal of a specified type. Such a descriptor cannot be added from a display window.

Click **OK** to return to the Fragment of Molecule dialog box (Figure 24.9).

- To remove a descriptor from a donor fragment's description, highlight it in the **Descriptor(s)** box and click the **Delete** button.
- If after leaving the Display window you would like to add flank regions to a donor fragment, or change flank regions set through a Display window, you can use the **Maximum Flank Region** boxes.
- Subset of Parents If you prefer to simply identify the feature to be added to the new
 molecule, you can let Vector NTI decide which specific molecule of the subset is used as
 the source for the functional signal. In the Subset of Parents drop-down menu, select the
 subset where the parent molecules might be sought.

After entering and verifying the data in the Lists dialog box, you are ready to proceed with the design process. Click the **Run** button to launch the Design Molecule dialog box and then click the **Design** button.

Vector NTI performs a preliminary save of the current molecule state. The molecule's name, general information, fragment list, etc. are saved and can be recalled. The system then performs a preliminary analysis of the design possibilities, and opens the Design Parameters dialog box, described below.

If you start a design for a goal molecule with a name that causes a conflict with an existing set of design options, Vector NTI informs you of the conflict and ask permission to delete the existing

options. If you do not want to do this, choose a different name for the new goal molecule or rename old design options.

Design Parameters

After the Design is initiated, in the interim dialog box that opens, select a subset for storing Design results. The Design Parameters dialog box (Figure 24.11) then opens where you can set the Design parameters the program uses to design the molecule.

Design Parameters		? ×
REN Subsets: MAIN Palindromes/Non-Ambiguous	Transformation System ✓ Bacteria ✓ Yeast ✓ Animal/Other Eukaryotic	Start Design Cancel Preferences
	Extra-Chromosome Replication Extra-Chromosome Replication Yeast Animal/Other Eukaryotic	PCR Primers Parameters Quality
Dephosphorylation Permitted	📕 🗖 Fragment List Gives Order o	of Cloning Steps
☑ Try to Lose Junction Sites	📕 Fragment List Gives Order i	n Gioal Molecule
Delete Regi Phage Size	on of Length bp May be Changed by 2 %	

Figure 24.11 Design Parameters dialog box

Options in the Design Parameters dialog box are summarized as follows:

- REN Subsets displays the list of restriction endonucleases that Vector NTI will consider in the current Design task.
- Transformation System(s) and Extra-Chromosome Replication specifies the capabilities for the current Design process.
- Dephosphorylation Permitted allows dephosphorylation to be used as a pre-selection method.
- ^o Try to Lose Junction Sites directs the loss of junction sites if possible without increasing cloning complexity. Lost sites are then used for efficient pre-selection. This box is a request, not a command, and Vector NTI may save the site if that results in a more convenient design option. *If, in the Fragment Wizard, you specified that sites be saved or lost in the description of the recipient, they will automatically be saved or lost regardless of whether this box is checked.*
- ^o Fragment List Gives Order of Cloning Steps inserts the first donor into the recipient in the first cloning step, the second donor in the second cloning step, etc. If this box is unchecked, the order of cloning steps is based on the most convenient restriction sites.
- ^o Fragment List Gives Order in Goal Molecule places the donor fragments in the goal molecule in the same order in which they are listed in the goal molecule description. If this box is unchecked, the placement order is based on the most convenient restriction sites.
- Delete Region specifies the number of nucleotides to be deleted from the recipient molecule during cloning. This may be disabled, depending on how the fragments were defined.
- ^o Phage Size May Be Changed By is enabled if the recipient molecule is a phage, which may lose its functionality due to length changes. If you want to preserve phage functionality in the goal molecule, it may be useful to prevent the goal molecule from
being much different in length than the recipient molecule. Enter the maximum change in length (%) for phages in the field. If this field is enabled and specified, then the lengths of the goal molecule and all intermediate recombinants produced by the Design process are kept within the specified length limits.

- ^o **Preferences** opens the Design Preferences dialog box. See next section.
- PCR Primers Vector NTI can use PCR amplification to isolate donor fragments. The system also will propose primers for PCR amplification of cloned fragments in all molecules produced by the Design process, including the goal molecule.
- ^o Click the **Parameters** or **Quality** buttons under PCR Primers to set the desired parameters or Quality Specifics of PCR primers. Refer to page 253 for the details of the dialog boxes that open with these commands.
- ^o The primers used will satisfy the conditions set by the user in the PCR Analysis dialog box.

When all design parameters are set as you desire, click the Start Design button.

Design Preferences

Although much of the Design process is decided by Vector NTI, you can select preferred techniques for designing the molecules. Click the **Preferences** button in the Design Parameters dialog box (Figure 24.11) to open the Design Preferences dialog box (Figure 24.12):

Design Preferences			? ×	
 Fragment Isolation ✓ Partial Digestion (Simple) Partial Digestion (Medium) Partial Digestion (Complicated) ✓ PCR 	Ligation Junction 1Junction 2 CohesiveCohesive ShortShort CohesiveBlunt ShortBlunt BluntBlunt	Terminus Modification Enzymes Linkers Adaptors For Separation in Gel Minimum Relative Differen in Fragment Lengths (%):	OK Cancel Advanced	
For Complicated Par Number of Sites I	tial Digestion nside Required Fragment:	5 Total Number o	f Sites: 20	
What's Better PCR PD (Simple) PD (Medium) PD (Complicated)	Up Cohesive/Cohe Cohesive/Short Short/Short Cohesive/Blunt Short/Blunt Bluet/Blunt	sive Up Enzymes Down Adaptors	s Up Down	

Figure 24.12 Design Preferences dialog box

In this dialog box, you can set preferences in the categories of fragment isolation, fragment ligation, and terminus modification.

Depending upon your Design results, you may find it useful to have Vector NTI design the same goal molecule several times, changing the design preferences each time. This gives you several alternatives for constructing your molecule.

The parameters for this dialog box are as follows:

- Fragment isolation: Vector NTI isolates fragments for cloning using convenient restriction sites whenever possible. If no convenient restriction sites are present, partial digestion or PCR can be used to isolate fragments. Check the isolation methods you will permit:
- Partial Digestion (Simple): Partial Digestion with 1 site inside required fragment and 3 sites total.

- ^o **Partial Digestion (Medium):** Partial Digestion with 1 site inside required fragment and not more than 6 sites total.
- Partial Digestion (Complicated): Partial Digestion with more than 1 identical site inside required fragment.
- PCR
- ^o Ligation: Check the junction types you will permit Vector NTI to use in designing molecules. Cohesive...Cohesive junction means both ligated fragments have two cohesive ends, each longer than 1 nucleotide; Cohesive...Short junction means both ligated fragments have one cohesive and one short (exactly 1 nucleotide) end, etc.
- Terminus modification: Check the methods you will permit to make termini compatible.

Other Preferences

- Separation in Gel: Specify the minimum relative difference in length (%) for separating fragments in gel.
- **Complicated Partial Digestion:** Specify the maximum number of restriction sites inside the required fragment and the total number of sites on the molecule that are acceptable for fragment isolation using complicated partial digestion.

Priorities

What's Better – rate priorities for the techniques and ligation types by moving them in the corresponding lists. To reposition any item, select it and click the **Up** and **Down** buttons. Items near the top of the lists have higher priority than items lower in the lists.

Advanced Design Preferences

Click the **Advanced** button in the Design Preferences dialog box to open the Internal Design Parameters dialog box (Figure 24.13) to fine-tune Vector NTI's heuristic search for molecule design options. *Default settings are given in italics.*

Internal Design Parameters		<u>? ×</u>
Depth of Backtracking (>1)	đ	ОК
Min. Rating for Acceptance	3	Cancel
Min. Rating to Avoid Next PD Level(1-6)	1	
Min. Rating to Avoid PCR(1-6)	1	
Immediate Break When The Backtracking Options	re Are Enough	

Figure 24.13 Internal Design Parameters dialog box

- **Depth of Backtracking:** Specify the number of steps Vector NTI should retrace in its search algorithm to design a molecule if it hits a dead-end in finding a molecule according to the defined parameters. *Default value is* 5
- Min. Rating for Acceptance: Specify the minimum acceptable rating to immediately accept an option and end the current search step. Vector NTI rates design options on an integer scale of 1 to 8. The higher the number, the longer Vector NTI continues searching for a better construct according to the defined parameters. *Default value is 3*
- Min. Rating to Avoid Next PD Level: If Vector NTI cannot achieve a minimum rating for acceptance (see previous point), it may try the next more complicated level of PD (partial digestion.) For instance, if you have listed Simple Digest first (under What's Better in Fig-

ure 24.12), then Medium and then Complicated as partial digest preferences, Vector NTI tries to use the Simple Digest first. If it cannot reach the minimum rating for acceptance as specified, then it will use the next level of partial digestion, (medium) and so forth. Specify the rating below which the system will try more complicated partial digestion. *Default value is 1*

- Min. Rating to Avoid PCR: If Vector NTI cannot achieve a minimum rating for acceptance (see second point above), it will try to apply PCR. Specify the rating below which the system will try PCR. *Default value is 1*
- Immediate Break When There Are Enough Backtracking Options: If checked, Vector NTI stops searching for further solutions once it finds enough alternatives for backtracking. Checking this option can result in faster searches. Default setting is Yes. When this option is checked, the optimum design option will usually be among those found, but sometimes the system may find something better if permitted further search.

Click **OK** twice to return to the Design Parameters dialog box.

Note: InforMax recommends that you not change these parameters until you have developed extensive experience with Vector NTI's Design capabilities.

The Design Process

When you click the **Start Design** button in the Design Parameters dialog box, Vector NTI begins the Design process. An interim "Designing..." dialog box appears, showing you the progress of the design and allowing you to break and accept at certain points, or cancel the design entirely.

The design process consists of several stages:

- 1. Vector NTI collects all the information it needs to perform the design. The message "Collecting necessary data..." is displayed on the screen.
- Vector NTI creates restriction maps for all molecules, which may be involved in the design. If
 many maps need to be created (for example, if you chose a large subset of molecules as
 potential donors) and if many restriction endonucleases are involved, Vector NTI may take a
 relatively long time to create all the maps.
- Vector NTI begins to perform cloning steps. In each step, one donor fragment is cloned into the recipient.
- 4. When each cloning step is complete, Vector NTI constructs the best recombinant it obtained for that step, models cloning analysis after transformation, searches for important restriction sites in the recombinant, etc.
- 5. If a cloning step produces the goal molecule, that is, if no donors remain to be cloned, Vector NTI finishes the Design task and enters the goal molecule into the database.
- 6. If donor fragments remain, the system moves on to the next cloning step.
- 7. When the Design process is complete, all intermediate recombinants (if any) are stored in a new subset in the database, called *name_\$Intermediate*, where *name* is the goal molecule's name. A Molecule Display window opens only for the final molecule.

If you start a Design task for a goal molecule with a name that causes a conflict with an existing set of intermediate recombinants, Vector NTI informs you of the conflict and asks permission to delete the existing intermediates and turn the existing designed molecule into a basic molecule. If you do not want to do this, choose a different name for the new goal molecule.

The recombinants are named as follows: *name_\$step number_variant number*, where *name* is the goal molecule's name, *step number* is the number of the cloning step, and *variant number* is the number of the variant of this step, if more than one variant has been generated.

From a special subset created for the Design result molecules, you can open, examine and/or delete the intermediate recombinants as desired. *If you delete intermediate recombinants, the goal molecule becomes a basic molecule.*

From the moment Vector NTI begins making restriction maps, the **Cancel** button is active. Press it if you want to abort the design at any point. If you cancel the design, the information in the Design Molecule dialog box remains unchanged.

During each cloning step, if at least one acceptable design option has been found, the **Accept Now** button is active. Click it to stop further search and accept the best option already found for the current cloning step. You may wish to turn off the **Immediate Break When There Are Enough Backtracking Options** check box in the Advanced Design Preferences, and control the depth of the heuristic search for each cloning step with the **Accept Now** button.

Returning to the Pre-Design State

When Vector NTI designs molecules, it saves the original goal description (list of recipient and donor fragments) in the database along with all other information about the new molecule. After the molecule has been designed, you can return it to its original state.

This is useful if you want to try several different designs based on the same goal molecule description. Design the molecule one way and inspect the results in a Molecule Display window. If you are not satisfied with the results, change the design parameters or design preferences, and try again until you are satisfied,

Select **File > Molecule Operations > Advanced DNA/RNA > Design**. An intercept dialog box opens reminding you that you will be overwriting the new molecule with the original fragments. Click **Yes** to continue with the new Design. The Lists/Design Molecule dialog box opens again loaded with the original Design component fragments you selected.

If you cannot achieve a satisfactory design by changing the design parameters and preferences, try changing the description of the goal molecule. Change the molecule names each time so you will have a record of your attempts.

If you still cannot achieve a satisfactory design, try changing the internal design parameters to influence Vector NTI's heuristic searches for design options.

The Design Description Folder

The Molecule Display window for the final new molecule automatically opens upon the conclusion of Design. At a later time, you can open a Molecule Display window for newly designed intermediate molecules stored in the database. In either case, the Text Pane of the display window contains a Design Description folder with subfolders for each cloning step used to create the molecule. In each cloning step, one donor fragment is cloned into the recipient.

Cloning Step Subfolders

Each cloning step subfolder of the Design Description folder contains the following information:

- **Result Molecule:** Name of the recombinant obtained in this cloning step. If this is the final cloning step, the name of the recombinant is the same as the name of the goal molecule. If this is an intermediate recombinant, the name is formed according to the rules given previously in this chapter.
- Recipient
 - ^o The name of the molecule used as the recipient
 - ^o The restriction sites used as the left and right termini
 - ^o If and how the termini were modified

- ^o If partial digestion was used in this cloning step, the number of sites inside the required fragment and the total number of sites on the molecule
- Donor
 - ^o The molecule used as the donor
 - ^o Whether the fragment was inserted in complementary orientation,
 - ^o The restriction sites used as the left and right termini of the donor
 - ^o If and how the termini were modified
 - ^o If partial digestion was used in this cloning step, the number of sites inside the required fragment and the total number on the molecule
 - ^o The actual flank regions on each end of the donor fragment, that is, the distance in nucleotides between the first or last nucleotide in the fragment and the appropriate boundary of the nearest functional signal
 - ^o If the donor fragment was obtained through PCR amplification, the PCR primers used are displayed in the 5'-3' direction. If a restriction site was attached to the 5' end of the primer, that site is also shown here.
- Ligation Junction types: cohesive or blunt.
- Lost restriction sites on the recipient indicates sites lost during cloning
- **Donor fragment orientation** indicates if the ligation conditions prevent parasitic donor fragment orientations.
- Preselection: The recommended pre-selection method
 - ^o If one or both recipient sites are lost after ligation, they will be recommended for effective pre-selection.
 - If sites are not lost, the system will recommend dephosphorylation (if that was permitted in the Design Parameters dialog box).

The ability to perform pre-selection influences the choice of methods of clone analysis after transformation.

- **Transformation system:** The recommended transformation system for clone analysis. This information is useful if the user allowed more than one transformation system to be used. Vector NTI considers the size of recombinants, their replicon types, and extrachromosome replication capabilities.
- Recommended method(s) for clone analysis: Recommended methods for clone analysis after transformation. Vector NTI proposes the most reasonable set of four possible methods: Screening, Colony Hybridization, Restriction Analysis, and PCR amplification of the cloned fragment. These recommended methods are based on a number of conditions: ligation type, full or partial digestion, pre-selection, etc.
- **Recommendations for restriction analysis:** The recommended restriction sites give distinguishable gel patterns for the result molecule (recipient with insertion) and the recipient without insertion.

The following information is given even if these methods were not recommended for clone analysis:

- Recommended oligonucleotide for colony hybridization: The oligonucleotide will successfully hybridize with the inserted fragment.
- Primers for PCR: allow amplification of the region closest to the boundaries of the cloned fragment.
- If the ligation conditions permit parasitic donor orientations, restriction sites for restriction analysis are recommended to identify the clone with required donor fragment orientation.

• Important restriction sites for the result molecule are listed and categorized: sites missing on the molecule, unique sites located within the cloned fragment, and unique sites located outside the cloned fragment.

Redesigning a Molecule

You can redesign a previously designed molecule by right-clicking on the designed molecule in the Database Explorer window and choosing **Redesign** from the shortcut menu. This launches the Design Molecule dialog box with all the parameters used for the original design of that molecule. The Redesign feature is useful for designing molecules that are similar to a previously designed molecule and for redesigning molecules that have failed a previous design attempt (such molecules appear with a question mark icon to the left of their names in the Database Explorer window).

CHAPTER 25

GEL DISPLAY WINDOWS

Introduction

Vector NTI's Gel Display windows are graphical tools designed for supporting your electrophoresis work.

In a Gel Display window you can:

- Add gel markers and samples to gel lanes.
- View general electrophoresis data or specific fragments in Text Pane folders.
- Assign colors and line formats to individual gel fragments.
- "Run" a gel in increments or animation for a specific length of time.
- Enlarge or reduce a gel for optimum visualization.
- Move gel samples or markers to and from the Gel Sample List, a data clipboard or display windows.

Opening a Gel Display Window

Gel Display windows can be opened in two ways: by opening a new display window or by opening a previously saved Gel Document file.

Opening a New Gel Display Window

To open a new Gel Display window, click the **New Gel** button (**III**) on the Main Toolbar, or choose **Gel > Create New**. The Gel Setup dialog box (Figure 25.1) opens for setting gel parameters:

Gel Setup		? ×
Electrophoresis Profile		ОК
Example of Agarose Gel		
Save Settings As Remove	Saved Settings	Cancel
Electrophoresis Type	Electrophoresis Parame	ters
 Agarose (Constant Field) 	Gel Concentration (%)	1.0
C Polyacrylamide (Constant Field)	Applied Field (V/cm)	2.5
C Pulse Field	Length of Gel (cm)	15.0
View Parameters	Pulse Time (sec)	2.0
Animation Speed (min/sec) 5.0 Separation Distance (cm) 0.10	Buffer Tris-Acetate (TAE) Tris-Borate (TBE)	

Figure 25.1 Gel Setup dialog box

- Electrophoresis Profile: Select from preset settings or previously saved settings
 - ^o Save Settings As... Click to name and save new settings specified in this dialog box.
 - Remove Saved Setting Select an entry in the profile list and click this button to remove it
- Electrophoresis Type
 - ^o Agarose gel with constant electric field
 - Polyacrylamide (Constant Field)
 - Pulse Field (Agarose gel)
- Electrophoresis Parameters Default settings are in italics.
 - ^o gel concentration: 1.0%
 - ^o electric field: 2.5 V/cm
 - ^o gel length: 15.0 cm
 - ^o pulse time (for pulse field EP) 2 sec
- View Parameters
 - Time increment (time span that each gel modeling iteration adds or subtracts from the gel run)
 - Animation speed (time increments in minutes added to the gel run for each second of real time during animation.)
 - Separation distance (the minimum distance by which fragments must be separated in order for you to distinguish them in the gel.)
- Buffer All possible buffers are represented by two types.
 - Tris-Acetate (TAE)
 - ^o Tris-Borate (TBE).

Click **OK** to close the settings box and open a Gel Display window. See the Electrophoresis Profile bulleted point to the save the settings.

To modify the settings of a Gel Display window at any time, click the Gel and Display Setup

button (E), or select Edit > Gel and Display Setup. The Gel Setup dialog box opens where you can change data for the open display window.

Opening a Gel Document File

Gel Display window contents can be stored in a Gel Document file. To open an existing Gel Document file, select **Gel > Open Document**. In the standard File Open dialog box, browse for the directory or folder and file name of the Gel Document to be opened. Click **Open**.

Elements of a Gel Display Window

A Gel Display window is divided into two sections, or panes: a Text Pane and a Gel Pane, divided by a split bar. When the Gel Display window is first opened, it remains empty until you create your gel.

The Gel Display window toolbar has two different variants, depending on whether the active pane is the Text Pane or the Gel Pane. Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function. Hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button.

Gel Samples and Gel Markers

Vector NTI gels can contain two types of data:

- 1. Gel samples: fragments to be analyzed in a Gel Display window. They are created for shortterm use. *If saved to the database, they become gel markers.*
- 2. Gel markers: sets of fragments of known lengths used as standards for measuring migration speed. Gel markers are stored and loaded from the Vector NTI database.

Creating and Adding a Gel Sample to a Gel

To create a gel sample for one gel lane, click the **Create Sample** button (<u>III</u>) on the Window toolbar or choose **Gel > Create Gel Sample**, opening the Create Gel Sample dialog box (Figure 25.2):

Create Gel Sample				? ×
Add to Gel Add	d to Gel Sample List	Save as Gel N	darker	Close
Source Molecules Subset: MAIN Molecules: GRB2 HSU33054 HSU33055 HSU33055 HSU33055 HSU33056 HUMGPRKLG Lambda M13 M13 test M13mp11 M13mp13 M13mp19 M13mp8 M13mp9 Sample Name: M13HI	Source Enzym Subset: MAIN Enzymes: Gdil Gdil Gdil Gsul Hacl Hael Hael Hael Hael Hael Hael Hael Hae	Unselect All	Selected for Molecules: M13 Enzymes: (Check for Pa	Gel Sample
Description: digestic	on to completion			

Figure 25.2 Create Gel Sample dialog box

 Source Molecules – In the left column, select a DNA/RNA Molecule subset and one or more molecules from that subset.

- Source Enzymes In the center column, select an Enzyme subset and one or more enzymes from that subset.
- Selected for Gel Sample The right column of the dialog box shows molecules and enzymes currently selected for creating the sample.
 - Removing Entries To remove a molecule or enzyme from the Selected for Gel Sample column, deselect it in the source column or double-click on its name in the Selected for Gel Sample column.

Performing Partial Digestions – Notice that each enzyme name in the selected column has a checkbox to its left. Checking the box indicates to Vector NTI that you wish to perform a partial digestion for the enzyme.

• Sample Name/Description – Enter a sample name and description in the text box at the bottom of the dialog box. The gel data is identified in Text Pane folders by the name and description you enter in these boxes.

When the gel sample is defined, click one of the action buttons at the top of the dialog box:

- Add to Gel Adds the sample to one lane in the active Gel Display window. Select new molecules and enzymes for each lane and click Add to Gel. If there is no active Gel Display window, this button is disabled.
- Add to Gel Sample List Adds the sample to the Gel Sample List. The Gel Sample List dialog box is described below.
- Save as Gel Marker Opens the New Gel Marker dialog box (Figure 25.3) allowing you to save the sample to the Database as a gel marker (see the next section).
- **Note:** In the Create Gel Sample dialog box, you must select a molecule. To open the New Marker dialog box without having a molecule already selected, choose **Gel > Create Gel Marker**.
 - Click the **OK** button in the New Marker dialog box to save the sample as a gel marker and to return to the Create Gel Sample dialog box. To add the new marker to the gel, see Adding a Gel Marker to a Gel on page 369.

New Gel Marker Dialog Box

To create a new gel marker, select **Gel > Create Gel Marker**. The New Gel Marker dialog box opens to the **General** tab. Enter a name for the new marker. Once you have entered the name, select the Gel Marker tab.

New Gel Marker		×
General Gel Marker User F	ields Comments Keyw	vords
Fragments (5 total): 23130 9416 6557 4361 2322 Description:	< Add	New Fragment (length in b.p.):
	OK Cancel	Apply Help

Figure 25.3 New Gel Marker dialog box

The Fragments list box lists by length all fragments making up the current sample.

- To add a fragment to the sample, enter its length in bp in the New Fragment box and click the < Add button.
- To remove a fragment from the sample, select it in the Fragments box and click the > Delete button.
- **Tip:** If by chance you press **Enter** instead of the **< Add** key, thus closing the dialog box before you are finished, go to the Gel Markers table in the Database Explorer. Double click on the new gel marker you were creating. It opens in an Edit Gel Marker dialog box where you can continue the process.

On the Gel Marker tab you can also edit the sample's description, shown in the **Description** text box. The User Fields, Comments, and Keywords tabs are the same as for other kinds of database objects; they are described in Chapter 20.

Click the **OK** button to save the sample to the Database as a gel marker.

Adding a Gel Marker to a Gel

To add a gel marker to a gel, click the **Add Marker Lane** button () on the Gel Toolbar. In the Choose Database Gel Marker dialog box (Figure 25.4), select the gel marker and click **OK**, adding it to a gel lane. (If you have created your own gel marker, you will see it listed in this dialog box.)

Choose Database Gel Marker		<u>? ×</u>
Look in: 🔃 Gel Markers (MAIN)	•	
Name	Shortest Fragment	Longest Fragment
AD2_MARKER	1739	35937
📃 LAMBDA HindIII	105	27491
💻 Lambda HindIII	560	23130
LAMBDA_LADDER	48500	485000
PBR322-HAEIII	8	587
E SPP1-ECORI	370	8000
TYNN_MARKER	245000	2190000
Gel Marker Name: Lambda Hindl	I	
	OK	Cancel

Figure 25.4 Choose Database Gel Marker dialog box

The Gel Sample List

The Gel Sample List (Figure 25.5) is a data clipboard for mixing gel sample fragments taken from various sources within Vector NTI. *This is an alternative way to prepare gel markers.*

Lists 🔀
Add Remove Marker
3550: M13: Haell(5572) - Haell(2715)
2520: M13: Haell(3044) - Haell(5564)
■ 329: M13: Haell(2715) - Haell(3044)
8: M13: Haell(5564) - Haell(5572)
Fragments Oligos Gel Samples Multiplex PCR Alignment PCR

Figure 25.5 Gel Sample List

Viewing the Gel Sample List

To open the Gel Sample List, click the **Open Gel Sample List** button (**1**) on the Main Toolbar or choose **List > Gel Sample List**.

To remove a fragment from the Gel Sample list, select the fragment and click the **Remove** button. To remove multiple fragments, select all the desired fragments click the **Remove** button.

To save the Gel Sample List as a gel marker, click the **Marker** button. This opens the Gel Marker Editor, described previously.

Adding Fragments to the Gel Sample List

To add a fragment to the Gel Sample List, select it in the Gel Pane by CLICKING + DRAGGING over

its bands with the mouse. Then click the Add to Gel Sample List button (22), or choose List > Add Selection to Gel Sample List.

If the Gel Sample List is empty, the fragments you have selected will be added to the list. If the Gel Sample List is not empty, you will be given the option of adding the currently selected fragments to the existing set, or of having the selected fragments override the existing set.

Loading Fragments from the Gel Sample List

To load fragments from the Gel Sample List to the gel, click the Add Lane from Gel Sample

List button (22), or choose the Edit > New > Add Lane from Gel Sample List. All of the fragments currently contained in the Gel Sample List are added to a new lane of the active Gel Display window.

Panes in a Gel Display Window

Once a gel has been created, the contents of the two panes become apparent (Figure 25.6):

🗉 🔂 General Description
Constant Field Electrophoresis
in Agarose Gel
Concentration: 1.0%
Voltage: 2.5 V/cm
Length of Gel: 15 cm
Buffer: TAE
Separation Distance: 0.10 cm
Time Increment: 15.0 min
Animation Speed: 5.0 min/sec
∃ _ 1. SV40ApaLl, HaellI digest (19 fragments)
🗄 🦳 2. SPP1-ECORI (15 fragments)
= 🔁 3. Lambda HindIII (7 fragments)
range from 0.56 to 23.13 Kb
H 🗋 🔳 23130
H 🧰 🔳 9416
H 🛄 🗖 6557
I 💼 🔳 4361
H 📄 🔳 2322
H 🛄 🔳 2027
H 🗀 🔳 560
∃ 🔄 4. pUC19 digest (6 fragments)
with ApaLI, Aval, BamHI, HindIII
range from 0.01 to 1.25 Kb
🗄 🧰 1246
H 🧰 📕 673
H 🧰 📕 497
H 📄 🔳 235
H 🧰 🔳 30
H 🧰 🔳 5

Figure 25.6 Text Pane and Gel Pane of a Gel Display window when a gel has been created

Text Pane folders contain a listing of electrophoresis gel data pertinent to the gel shown in the Display window, and information about the samples loaded into the gel's lanes.

The Gel Pane shows a graphical depiction of an electrophoresis gel you have just loaded.

To switch back and forth between the panes, use the **Switch Pane** buttons on the Gel Pane

Toolbar (), ()). The display window panes can be manipulated using the scroll bars and split bars, as explained in detail in Chapter 3.

Gel Display Window Text Pane

The Gel Display window's Text Pane contains one or more folders that can be opened, closed, expanded, collapsed, etc. as described in Chapter 3.

The Gel Display window Text Pane always has a General Description folder, containing data about the gel itself, including parameters set in the Gel Setup dialog box. The folder also shows the separation distance, time increment, and animation speed for this gel.

The Text Pane also contains a folder for each occupied lane. Folders can contain:

- a line giving the length range of the fragments in the lane
- a description of the contents of that lane
- subfolders (gel sample), labeled by fragment length, for each fragment in the lane. For gel samples created and not yet saved, the subfolders contain a description of the source of the fragment, for example, "Source: ColE1; HaeII(5419) HaeII(1012)". The numbers refer to the REN site position on the source molecule map.
- subfolders (gel marker), while giving the fragment lengths, do not provide fragment sources

Modifying Fragment Properties

You can use the Text Pane to set the color and pattern with which a fragment is displayed in the Gel Pane. This is convenient for tracking the progress of a particular fragment as you run your simulated gel.

To set a fragment's display color, select the specific fragment's folder in the Text Pane. Select **Edit > Sample Fragment Properties** or **Sample Fragment Properties** from the shortcut menu. In the Format Sample Fragment dialog box, choose a pattern and color for the fragment, and click **OK**. The fragment is displayed in the Gel Pane with the appropriate pattern and color. You may not be able to see it until you run your gel.

To simply view the properties for an entire lane, select the lane number by clicking on its well in the Graphics Pane and choose **Edit > Lane [#n] Properties**, or select the corresponding option from the shortcut menu or press ALT + ENTER.

The Gel Display Window Gel Pane

The Gel Display window Gel Pane displays a simulated gel, the lanes of the gel running vertically in the pane. Each lane is numbered at the top of the lane in a box called a "well." As the gel progresses, a size scale runs down the left side of the Gel Pane, showing fragment sizes in bp. To activate the Gel Pane, click on the toggle switch on the Gel Pane Toolbar.

Step Forward, Step Back and Animation

The Time box on the Display window toolbar ([0:30]) tracks the time the gel "has been running", in the form **hours:minutes**. To set a new time, click this box to activate it, enter the new time and press ENTER.

Click the Step Forward () and Step Back (•) buttons to advance or reverse the gel one
increment of time per clici	K.			

Click the **Animate** button () to start the gel running continuously. To stop the animation, click the **Animate** button again or the **Step Forward** or **Step Back** button.

(The time increment and the animation speed were set in the Gel Setup dialog box [Figure 25.1])

Gel Lanes

A Gel Display window can contain any number of lanes. You can select a lane by clicking on its well.

To change the lane width, move the mouse cursor to the division between any two wells where

the cursor changes to a double-ended arrow (++). Drag the cursor left or right. Since all of a gel's lanes are displayed with the same width, if you change the width of one lane, all of the other lanes change as well.

To perform other operations on lanes, place the cursor within the lane's well and open a shortcut menu, with these options:

- Lane [#] Properties displays the properties for the selected lane.
- Move Left moves a lane one slot to the left. (Or click on the well and select Edit > Move > Move Lane Left.)
- Move Right moves a lane one slot to the right. (Or click on the well and select Edit > Move > Move Lane Right.)
- Delete deletes the selected lane. (Or click on the well and choosing Edit > Delete [#] Lane.)
- Select All selects all fragments in the lane.
- Add to Gel Sample List adds all selected fragments to the Gel Sample List.
- Save as Marker launches the New Gel Marker dialog box, allowing you to save the selected fragments as a gel marker.

Selecting Fragments

To select fragments in the Gel Pane, drag the cursor that becomes a horizontal I-beam (—) vertically across the fragments to be selected. All fragments in the highlighted selection zone are selected.

There are two reasons for selecting fragments:

- 1. Selected fragments can be copied to the Gel Sample List or saved as a gel marker.
- 2. If the selected fragments are too close to distinguish, VNTI can calculate how long the gel would have to run to separate them (Separation Time).

Copying fragments to the Gel Sample List and calculating separation times are described below.

Zooming In and Zooming Out

The Gel Pane Zoom buttons, which operate as in other Vector NTI windows, allow you to enlarge or reduce the gel lane display.

Note: Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function. Hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button.

The **True-Scale View** button (=) is specific to the Gel Display window: Click this button to display the gel in an approximation of true scale. When you select this display option, Vector NTI looks up the pixel size (dot pitch) of your monitor and displays the gel based on that value.

Separation Distance

After the Gel Pane has been enlarged several times, gray bars representing separation distances appear around each fragment. Separation Distance is the minimum distance by which fragments must be separated in order to be distinguishable.

The separation distance is specified in the Gel Setup dialog box (Figure 25.1).

To eliminate the gray zones, click the Zoom Out button several times.

Calculating Separation Times

To calculate a separation time, select any number of fragments, at least two of whose gray bars

are touching. Click the **Calculate Separation Time** button () on the Window toolbar or choose **Analyses > Calculate Separation Time**. The minimum time necessary to separate the selected fragments is displayed. The gel running time is then set to that value.

Note: To calculate Separation Time, at least two fragments must be selected.

Vector NTI prompts you if any one of the selected fragments would reach the end of the gel before all selected fragments have separated.

Modifying Fragment Properties

Note: To modify fragment properties to more easily track fragment migration, refer to the section Modifying Fragment Properties under Gel Display Window Text Pane earlier in this chapter.

Copying Gel Display Window Data

To copy information from a Gel Display window to the Clipboard or a file, use Vector NTI's Camera feature. *General directions for using this feature are described in Chapter 3.* Directions specific for the Gel Display window are given here.

When the pane to be copied is activated, click on the **Camera** button (2020). Select in the dialog box that opens the range and destination of the copied material. The dialog box that opens from the Gel Pane is unlike most of the other Camera dialog boxes, but is specific for the data to be copied (Figure 25.7).

Camera		? ×
Display Lanes: V #1 V #2 V #3 V #4	 Comb Scale Gray Zones Borders Colors 	Copy Cancel
Copy To Clipboard File		

Figure 25.7 Camera dialog box specific to the gel data being copied

The copy options are described as follows:

- Lanes: Include selected lanes.
- Comb: Include lane numbers (above selected lanes).
- Scale: Include scale (to the left of selected lanes).

- Gray Zones: Include separation thresholds (gray rectangles around fragments).
- Borders: Include borders between lanes
- Colors: Use fragment colors

Copied Gel Pane information is in Windows Metafile format.

Printing from Gel Display Windows

Printing from Gel Display windows is done one pane at a time. To print a pane, select it and click

the **Print Active Pane** button ()) on the main toolbar or choose **Molecule > Print**. In the standard Print dialog box, click **OK**.

Further print details (Page Setup and Print Preview) are given in Chapter 3.

C H A P T E R

REPORT GENERATION

Introduction

Vector NTI Report Generation Wizard is a convenient tool for customizing different types of reports of DNA/RNA or protein molecule data. This chapter provides step-by-step instruction for creating both reports and report templates using the Report Generation Wizard.

Report results are presented in a hierarchal structure, similar to the Text Pane of the Molecule Display window. The Print Preview feature reflects the actual appearance of the generated report to be printed. The Vector NTI Camera feature copies selected information to the Clipboard or file in text format, preserving the formatting and enabling easy data exchange with other applications.

Two types of reports can be generated:

- **General:** This report represents general molecule(s) information, such as general description, standard fields, Vector NTI specific fields, user-defined fields, authoring information, comments, Feature maps, restriction maps, sequence, components and fragments and all analyses performed for selected objects.
- **Relation:** The second report represents the parent/descendant relationship between molecules as well as construction information.

Vector NTI report templates enable you to store the settings for generated reports and retrieve them to use at a later time instead of default settings.

Starting the Report Generation Wizard

To generate a report on a molecule open the molecule in a Molecule Display Window and choose **File > Reports > <report type >** on the menu bar. Two of the options initiate Report Generation Wizard. The third allows you to work with report templates. Each of the three report options are discussed in this chapter.

The Report Generation Process:

Step 1: Opening the Report Generation Wizard Dialog Box

Selecting General or Relation (Reports) opens the same Report Generation Wizard dialog box, shown in . For both types of reports, follow the outlined steps to collect the required information.

New Report	
C Report based on existing template	
	<back next=""> Finish Cancel</back>

Figure 26.1 Report Generation Wizard dialog box

Use the **Next** > and < **Back** buttons at the bottom of the windows to proceed through the steps. Cancel the process at any time by pressing the **Cancel** button, or at any step press the **Finish** button to generate the report according to the current settings.

The first step offers two options:

- **New Report** lets you create a new report using the default settings. This initializes the options with default settings.
- Begin a Report based on an existing template. This initializes the options with previously saved settings.

Click Next > to proceed with either a new General or Relation Report.

To generate a report from an existing template without altering any settings, click **Finish** after selecting the desired template.

Step 2: Selecting General Options

In the Set General Report options window (Figure 26.2), check the informational fields with a left click or press the space bar. Due to the hierarchical organization of the fields, if you include the parent item, all of the descendants are automatically included. Excluding descendants automatically excludes their parent item as well. Grayed items indicate that the item's state cannot be changed. This notation usually indicates either mandatory fields or information that could be included in the report, but are unavailable currently because they were not generated prior to starting the generation wizard.

Note: The more fields that are selected for the report, the longer the report generation takes.

	General Description	4
ls I	Melecule Name	
i i i	M 📓 Molecule Lype	
5		
s	All Anticipation States and All All All All All All All All All Al	
5	🔽 📓 Molecule Modification Time	
5	🗹 📝 Extra Information	
]	📓 Standard Fields	
5	🗹 📝 Keywords	
5	🗹 📑 Original Source Database	
5	🗹 📝 Division	
5	🗹 🔮 Dataclass	-
5	Modification Date in the Original DB	
	Image: Comparison of the second se	
	El Unique Identifier in the Uriginal DB	
	Version in the Uriginal DB	
E E	✓ ≦ sequence source	
5	✓ ≝ Organizm(s)	
5	Associated Genes	
5	Alter Andrea Antrea	
5	V 📝 SSBM Specifics	
	A User Fields	
1	o don'n loido	

Figure 26.2 Select General Report Options window

- General description: This group of options consists of general information fields such as name, molecule length, form, and molecule type and nature of the sequence. Molecule name, type and length fields are mandatory and cannot be excluded from the report information.
- Standard fields: Standard fields include object data found routinely with all Vector NTI molecules and other objects. This includes for example, keywords, original source database, accession numbers, sequence source and identifiers in Vector NTI.
- User-defined fields: Check to include all user-defined fields in the report
- Authors: Specify the original and/or current authoring information
- References: Enter any references associated with the molecule
- **Comments:** Add any comments associated with the molecule
- Feature map: Specify molecule Feature map information. If this field is checked, the Wizard adds an additional step for adjusting Feature map information.
- Restriction map (DNA/RNA): Check this item to include a restriction map in the report. The output can be represented either as a tree (similar to the restriction map information in the Text Pane of the molecule display window), or as a table.
- Motifs (DNA/RNA): Check this item to include motifs in the report. The output can be represented either as a tree (similar to the restriction map information in the Text Pane of the molecule display window), or as a table.
- ORF (DNA/RNA): This outlines the ORF information that is present.
- Analysis: As analysis information is not stored in the database, these options are available only if you start the Report Generation Wizard from a Molecule Display Window. Your report can include only those analyses that have been performed on a molecule and are shown as available options.

DNA/RNA molecules

Supported options are:

- ^o PCR analyses
- ^o Hybridization probes
- ^o Sequencing primers
- ^o Mutagenesis
- ^o Restriction fragments

Proteins

Supported options are:

- ^o Protein properties
- ^o Acid content
- ^o Sequence: Check this option to include the molecule sequence.
- **Construction:** This option generates construction information for complex molecules, including components and fragments of other molecules.

Click **Next >** to proceed to the next window. *If you have not selected Feature map, you will go directly to*.

Step 3: Adjusting Feature Map Information



Figure 26.3 Set Feature Map Options dialog box

This step is necessary if you choose to include Feature map information. Select from the Set Feature Map Options window (Figure 26.3) list the features to be separately included or excluded from your report (according to the molecule type). All available feature types are organized into the same tree structure that is in the Display Setup Profile window.

Step 4: Report Preview Window



Figure 26.4 Preview dialog box

The steps for either a General or Relation report end at a Preview dialog box (Figure 26.4). Clicking **Finish** at any step in the process also brings you directly to this dialog box. The results, represented in a hierarchical structure, allow you to hide information you think unnecessary by closing the appropriate branches.

Scroll through the Preview window with the scroll bars. ToolTips appear if you pause the cursor over a partially visible item. Open shortcut menus on selected items to reveal commands for expanding and collapsing folders and subfolders in various combinations.

This window lets you review the report and go **Back** if there is something you would like to change, or **Save the report as a Template**. If you are satisfied with the report, proceed with **Print Preview** or **Print** the report (details below) or use the **Camera** feature to copy the report to the clipboard or to a file. For details about using the Camera/Copy feature, refer to Chapter 3.

Print Preview and Print

To preview results before printing, click **Print Preview.** Navigate though the pages using the **Next Page** and **Prev Page** buttons. Use the **Zoom** buttons to enlarge or reduce the image. To print the results, click the **Print** button.

To modify something, click the **Close** button, returning you to the report. You can go back several steps and change the generation options, or you can expand or collapse some branches to customize your report presentation.

Print	Next Page	Prev Page One Pag	e Zoom In Zoom Out I	Close	Camera
tioner (Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brander Brand	Transfer of the second				Save Template
Royan Industria, ipo	Tale gener powniek nation Disgin (* Islan) nation Disgin (* Islan) nation, 2003 (2013) (2016) Per Parys 3		haloming, kpc3 $\Omega_{\rm p}$ 203 Ω 30.0 Ω Pe heps 1		

Figure 26.5 Preview results before printing using the Print Preview feature

Saving Report Templates

To save the report format as a template, click the **Save Template** button, then enter a name and click **OK** on the Save Report Template window to save it. Templates are saved separately for report and molecule types. For example, when generating a relationship report for DNA/RNA molecules, the Report Wizard offers you templates saved for the same type of report and molecule type.

Save Re	port Template		? ×
Re	lations Template 1		
Name:	Relations Template 2	ОК	Cancel

Figure 26.6 Save Report Template window

Relation Report

The Relation report includes information on parents, construction and descendants of the molecules involved.

• The parents of a molecule are the molecules that were used in its construction. The molecule itself is called the descendant.

 Construction information, similar to the construction information presented in the Text Pane of Molecule Display Window, can be generated either for selected molecules only, or for selected molecules and all of their parent molecules. The latter option allows you to see the line of inheritance between the molecules.

Select File > Reports > Relations to generate a Relation Report.

Step 1

Step 1 in a Relational report takes place exactly as explained in Step 1 on page 376. Click **Next** > to proceed with a new report or **Finish** if you are using a Relation template.

Step 2

In Step 2 of a Relational Report, you can select the relationship information to be included in this report. *For an example, see Figure 26.7.* Click **Next** or **Finish** in this window to proceed to the Preview window, similar to Figure 26.4. At any time, click **Back <** to return to a previous screen.

Figure 26.7 Selecting the relationship information to be included in the report

Report Templates

To save any report that you generate as a template, click the **Save Template** button in the Report Preview window (Figure 26.4). In the Save Report Template dialog box that opens, name the new template. Click **OK** to save.

To use a saved report template to generate a new report, in an open Molecule Display window, select **File > Reports > <report type >**. In the Select Report Type dialog box that opens, select **Report based on existing template.** Select the template you wish to use and click **Next >** to proceed. Then follow the steps beginning on page 376 to generate the report.

Report templates are stored separately for DNA/RNA molecules and proteins. To rename or delete a template, select **File > Reports > Templates**. Use the drop-down menu at the top of

the Templates window (Figure 26.8) to select the template type. Select the appropriate template and click **Delete** to remove it or **Rename** to rename the selected template.

Templates	? ×
Relation report templates for proteins	•
General report templates for DNA/RNA molecules General report templates for proteins Relation report templates for DNA/RNA molecules	
Relation report templates for proteins	h.
	Ť
Delete Rename	Close

Figure 26.8 Templates window

CHAPTER 27

SHARED DATABASES

Introduction

Special databases, repositories of DNA/RNA or protein molecules, enzymes, oligonucleotides, and gel markers, can be created and shared between several Vector NTI users on a network.

Shared databases are not a replacement for local databases; each Vector NTI application still must have its own local database. The local database is used in all operations: construction, design, creation of viewers etc. The local database is also the place for storing private and temporary data. The main purpose of the shared database is to store common data.

The only operations you can perform on shared databases are:

- 1. Copying data to/from the local database.
- 2. Various database management operations such as creating and deleting subsets, etc.
- 3. Database searches. For instance, you may copy some of your molecules and enzymes from your local database into the shared database. In order to use them in the design process, your colleague must copy them to his/her local database first.

In addition to biological data, each database contains information about its creator and registered users. Only the creator and registered users can have access to database data. The database creator can also change database properties, remove registered users, and define the password required to become a register user.

Note: Vector NTI shared databases use portable data format and file naming conventions to ensure that both Macintosh and Windows users of Vector NTI can access common databases. Shared databases can be located on a wide range of file servers—Vector NTI can work using not only services native to each system, (Microsoft Network or AppleTalk) but also various Unix (NFS or Samba) and NetWare services.

Creating a New Shared Database

Shared database capability is a purchased addition to Vector NTI Advance. When shared database capability is purchased, you are issued a Vector NTI shared database license that allows

you to create shared databases. A shared database license is a special type of static license that allows you to create any number of shared databases but it also limits the number of users for each database you create. You do not need a shared database license to access shared databases, but you should have a Vector NTI application version 3.1 or later.

Note: Shared databases can be accessed but *cannot* be created from Vector NTI using a license that is shared through a network server (Dynamic License).

Before creating a shared database, you should find a place on your network (a computer, storage volume and directory or folder) where the database will be located and accessible from the computers of all potential users of the database. Users should be able to connect to this location or mount the corresponding network drive and have read/write/delete permissions for all files in a database directory and its subdirectories. Good places for shared databases are file servers that can be "visible" as storage devices to other computers in a network. Vector NTI requires that a separate empty directory should be created for each shared database.

When the network directory for a new shared database is arranged, click the Local/Shared

Data Exchange button ()) or choose **Database > Local/Shared Data Exchange**. This opens the Connect To Shared Database dialog box (Figure 27.1) where you can perform a number of database management operations: create a new database, find the location of an existing database, and edit database properties and user information.

Connecting to a Shared Database

Connect To Shared Database	<u>? ×</u>
Connection Profile	Connect
	Connect
Save Connection As Remove Connection	Lancei
Connect To	
Database Name:	
Database Path:	
Show this information to others when logged in:	
240-223-1414	
Edit Database Properties and User Accounts	
Create New Database Find Database	

Figure 27.1 Connect to Shared Database window

In the Connect to Shared Database dialog box, click the Create New Database button.

In the Create dbdef file dialog box that opens, enter a name and select the destination for the shared database definition file (dbdef). Click **Save**.

In the Database Properties and Users dialog box that opens (Figure 27.2), you can provide additional information for the database users:

Database Properties And Users	? ×
Database Name:	ОК
untitled	Cancel
Compatible With Earlier Vector NTI Versions	
Maximum Users: 5	
Registered Users: 0	
Creator Jane Brown	
User Information Remove User	
Password Required to Register at Login:	

Figure 27.2 Database Properties and Users dialog box

- Database Name: enter the name of the new database. This name will be displayed in all dialog boxes and messages related to the database.
- Password Required To Register At Login: enter in the text box a registration password that will be required to become a registered user of this database. If you decided that the password is not necessary you can leave this field blank. If the password is not blank, Vector NTI will ask you to confirm the password before you leave the dialog box.
- User Information: enter appropriate user information

When you are finished press the **OK** button.

Vector NTI writes your data into the database definition file and creates the files and directories required to store the database data. The database you just created has no registered users. To be registered, a user should login to the database and enter the registration password you specified in the Password Required to Register at Login box. This procedure is described in details below.

Note: If anything goes wrong at this stage, check the network connection and make sure that you have "write permissions" for the chosen directory. Then, delete all files in the directory and repeat the last step.

In the Connect To Shared Database dialog box (Figure 27.1) you will see the name and location of the database you just created.

Finding the Location of an Existing Shared Database

If you are going to use an existing shared database you should specify the location of the database. First, make sure that you have a working network connection to this location or that the corresponding network drive is mounted and you have read/write/delete permissions for all files in the database directory and its subdirectories.

Note: On some systems you can mount network drives from the standard File dialog boxes. In this case, no separate step is required.

In the Connect To Shared Database dialog box (Figure 27.1), click the **Find Database** button. In the Find dbdef file dialog box, locate the shared database definition file (dbdef). Find the database directory and click the **Open** button. Vector NTI tries to read the database definition file; if

it succeeds, you will see the name and location of the database in the Connect To Shared Database dialog box.

Editing Database Properties and User Accounts

When the location of a shared database you created is specified, you can edit the database name and registration password. The creator of the database can also remove registered users. To edit database properties and user account information, in the Connect to Shared Database dialog box (Figure 27.1), click the **Edit Database Properties and User Accounts** button, opening the Database Properties And Users dialog box where you can modify the corresponding database information.

Saving the Connections in a Connection Profile

When the location of a shared database is specified, you can enter login information that will be displayed to other users of a shared database. This is a good way to communicate your personal information such as name and phone number. When you are logged into a shared database, Vector NTI displays this information in addition to the login time and the information about your computer to other database users attempting to log in. In order to return to this configuration later, you may save both database location and login information in a *connection profile*.

To save the connections in a connection profile, in the Connect to Shared Database dialog box (Figure 27.1), click the **Save Connection As** button and enter the name of the connection in the Save Connection As dialog box. Vector NTI stores the connection profile in the preference file; each time you open the Connect To Shared Database dialog box you see the stored connections list near the top of the dialog box. You can select stored connections from this list. To delete the connection from the profile, click the **Remove Connection** button.

Connecting to a Shared Database

When the location of a shared database is specified, to connect to the database, click the **Connect** button. Vector NTI reads the information about the database creator and registered users. If you are not a creator or registered user of the database and the database limit of registered users is not reached, Vector NTI displays a dialog box allowing you to register.

To register, choose **Yes**. If the user registration is protected by registration password, you will be asked to enter the registration password in the Login Registration dialog box. If the password is correct, Vector NTI adds you to the list of registered users of the shared database.

If you are the database creator or registered user, you have full access rights to the database data. However, if you are not going to write to the shared database this time, you can check **Read Only** box. This guarantees that the shared database contents will not be accidentally modified.

If you are not the database creator or registered user, you can choose to connect to the database in a browse-only mode to look at the database contents.

Note: If Vector NTI cannot access the database at this or the subsequent stages, check the network connection and make sure that you have write permissions for the files in database directory and its subdirectories.

Managing a Shared Database

When your connection to the selected shared database is established, Vector NTI opens a separate Database Explorer window for the shared database (Figure 27.3). This window is a close functional equivalent of the local Database Explorer window. In this shared Database Explorer, you can search the database, manage subsets, rename and delete objects etc. However, the concept of Vector NTI's shared databases prevents you from manually creating new objects in shared databases, opening Display Windows for objects stored in shared databases and editing shared database objects in place using object editor dialogs.

👢 Exploring - Shared Vector NTI Database 'jbh'						
jable Edit View Analyze Align Database Assemble Tools Help						
🔟 DNA/RNA Molecules 🔄 🔄 🗇 🖘 🕼 🕼 🕼 🕼 🕼 🕼 🖄 唑 🗡 🖆 🗮 🛛						
All database DNA/RNA Molecules						
DNAVFINA Molecules (MAIN) Important Application Strenge Egorov Important Application Important Application Important Application						
5 DNA/RNA molecules						

Figure 27.3 Database Explorer window for the shared database

To modify a shared database object, you must copy it to your local database, modify it there and put the modified copy back into the shared database as described in the next section.

Note: If the original object was submitted by another user, instead of replacing it, Vector NTI creates a separate object. This new object has the same name but a different "Submitted by" field, containing the Author Name you used to identify yourself in the Author Information dialog box.

Exchanging Data with a Shared Database

Exchanging data between your local and shared databases is simple and intuitive. Open two Explorer windows (one for local and another for shared database), then copy data between them using drag-drop or copy/paste operations described in the Copying Objects section. The simplest way to start data exchange is to select **Database > Local/Shared Data Exchange** or

click the **Local/Shared Data Exchange** button (*P*) in the Database Explorer window. This command allows you to choose a shared database, connects to it (as described in the previous sections), opens the shared database Explorer window and the local Explorer window (if needed) and then tiles two Explorer windows on your screen.

You can place your objects into a shared database without worrying about possible name conflicts with objects placed there by your colleagues. Vector NTI automatically stores the name you used to identify yourself in the Author Information with the objects you put into a shared database. This name is stored in the shared database in the "Submitted by" field of an object (it can be different from both the Author and Original Author fields of the object). In addition, Vector NTI automatically creates and maintains special subsets containing objects that were submitted by the same users. The name alone is no longer a unique way to identify an object in the shared database; two or more different objects can have the same name provided that they came from different sources.

Disconnecting from a Shared Database

When you are finished exchanging data in the Shared Database Exchange dialog, click the **Close** button. You will be disconnected from the shared database and the database can be used by another user.

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

C H A P T E R 28 ALIGNX

Introduction

The simultaneous alignment of many nucleotide or amino acid sequences is an essential tool in molecular biology. Multiple alignments are used to find diagnostic patterns, to characterize protein families, and to detect or demonstrate a similarity between new sequences and existing families of sequences. They are also useful for predicting secondary and tertiary structures of new sequences, for suggesting oligonucleotide primers for PCR and serving as an essential prelude to molecular evolutionary analysis.

AlignX, the multiple sequence alignment application of Vector NTI Advance, is a comprehensive program designed to conduct and manage multiple sequence alignment projects. It uses a modified Clustal W algorithm (see page 402) and incorporates the following features:

- Profile alignment
- Guide tree construction, displayed in graphical representation
- Use of residue substitution matrices
- Secondary structure consideration
- Multicolored alignment presentation
- Automatic consensus calculation
- Full alignment editing capabilities
- Dot Matrix comparison of any two sequences

Launching Align X

To launch AlignX from the Start menu, select Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > AlignX. From Vector NTI Database Explorer, select Align > AlignX– Open New Alignment Window or select a group of molecules then choose Align > AlignX–Align Selected Molecules. You can also drag the selected molecules from the Database Explorer into the AlignX workspace. From other Vector NTI applications, select the molecules to be included in the alignment and choose Align > AlignX – Align Selected Molecules.

Features of the AlignX Workspace

When AlignX is first opened, the display window is empty. As molecules are added to an AlignX project, they are listed in the Text Pane. After aligning a group of molecules selected in the Text Pane, alignment results then appear in the Graphics Pane and the Alignment Pane.

Because it will be much easier for you to understand the AlignX features in a complete display window, open a demo project into the workspace. Select **Project > Open**. Find the Vector NTI Suite folder. (The default location is **Program Files\Vector NTI Suite 10\Demo Projects**.) Open the Protein.apr file, a sample alignment of 25 molecules.

The AlignX interface (Figure 28.1) consists of a menu bar, three toolbars, an AlignX Display window, with shortcut menus specific for each pane. A Dot Matrix window can be opened from the AlignX display window when the Dot Matrix tool is launched.



Figure 28.1 AlignX interface

AlignX has three toolbars: the Main Toolbar, the Pane Selection Toolbar and a Pane Toolbar. The Main Toolbar contains tools for major program functions, such as opening and saving projects, adding molecules to the project, exporting molecules' data in various formats, and creating alignments.

As you are introduced to various operations in this chapter, the toolbar buttons you will use are displayed appropriately. Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function; hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button. Many toolbar commands can also be launched from the menu bar or from a shortcut menu.

The AlignX Display window is divided into four panes separated by split bars: a Text Pane, a Guide Tree Pane, a Graphics Pane, and an Alignment Pane. To apply a command from the main menu in a given pane (i.e. Print, Print Preview, Camera), that pane must be active. The

Split bars allow re-sizing of the four panes in the AlignX Display window. Scroll bars appear when the contents of a pane exceed the viewing area, facilitating easier viewing of pane contents.

Text Pane

The Text Pane contains a thorough description of each molecule included in the alignment project. The information is organized in folders, named by molecule. Each top level (molecule) folder contains the following subfolders:

Folder	Contents
General description	Molecule type, form (for DNA only), length, etc.
Proprietary fields	User defined fields (for molecules which came from Vector NTI)
Standard fields	GenBank/SWISS-PROT-like fields: keywords, division, original accession numbers, etc.
Comments	Arbitrary text of any length associated with the molecule
References	Bibliographic references (in GenBank/SWISS-PROT format)
Analysis (Protein Mole- cules only)	Results of common physiochemical analyses
Feature Map	List of molecule features and their positions on the molecule

Table 28.1 AlignX Text Pane folders

Folders and sub-folders can be opened with a double-click or by clicking on the + to the left of the folder name.

Refer to Chapter 3 for more information regarding the following Text Pane manipulations:

- Expanding and collapsing folders
- Shortcut menus
- · Copying pane contents to the clipboard

Finding Features on Graphical and Alignment Panes

Features listed in the Feature Map subfolder in the Text Pane can be highlighted on molecule graphics and/or sequences in the Graphics and Alignment Panes (only for those molecules that are part of the current assembly). To visualize the positions of a signal in these panes, select the

feature in the Text Pane folder, then click the **Find** button (**M**) on the Text Pane toolbar or select **Edit > Find Feature** on the menu bar. *The Find command is disabled if selected line is not a signal with non-zero boundaries.*

Marking Features in the Alignment Pane

Features listed in the Feature Map subfolder in the Text Pane can be marked graphically in the Alignment Pane (for those molecules that are part of the current alignment).

To mark a particular feature in the Alignment Pane, right-click on the feature of interest in the Text Pane folder and choose **Show Feature on Alignment Pane** from the shortcut menu. A

graphic depiction of the feature displays below the molecule sequence where the feature occurs (Figure 28.2):

	284	290	300	310	320	330	340	350	360	370	380	390
\$59895	1	-ATTTGGGT	TTTCATAGCAGAG	LA GTATCCA	LAATTTCAAAAA	ATATTATTATT	TTACTGGCT	FTATAGAG <mark>A</mark> A(GTATTTAAATT	TTTGCATAAC	CCTCAATTGA	TAG <mark>A</mark> GT-G(
SC20635	19	AA-ATTCAT	F <mark>T</mark> TTCATGAAGGAA	ATTAG	GGTTCATACAG	GGAGTAGAGTI	C-ATTGATG	ГGGTAGCA <mark>A</mark> C∙	CTTGTTAG	CACTCATATT	GTTCGAAC	AAA <mark>A</mark> A.
HS11791	1											
AF036316	1											
APCYCL	76	AATTTCATC	A <mark>T</mark> GGCTCTTGGAAC <mark>.</mark>		GAACATGAATC	CTCCATGGTG	G-AGCAAACI	ACACATTC <mark>A</mark> AG	CAATGAAAATG	TCAGTGCAAG	GCTCGGGGGGA	AAG <mark>A</mark> GCAT
APCYCL		2					cyclin (8513	14)				
DMCYCA1	284	GCTGAACAAC	G <mark>T</mark> ACGGAGTTTGTA	ATACTTA	ATATTAGCTAS	AGTCCGTGCG3	GCGTAGCCAI	ACAAGGAAA	CTAATTCCAAC	GCTGCCGTGA	CACAAACTTC	CGT <mark>A</mark> CGAA.
S67490	269	GATATATT		AGGG	-AATTTATCAS	ATCCATATTTO	ATATGGCTC	гстаттса <mark>а</mark> т	FTCAAAGCCTG	TTGGTTCTAA	AATCAATAAG	CAT <mark>A</mark> GT'_1
CC7/00				1	a a car i c							<u></u>
Consensus	284		Т	LA				A				A
		•										•

Figure 28.2 Feature displayed graphically in the Alignment Pane

To mark all the features listed in the Feature Map subfolder for a particular molecule, right-click on the molecule of interest in the Text Pane and choose **Show all Features for <selected molecule name>** from the shortcut menu. All the features listed in the Feature Map subfolder of the molecule display graphically in the Alignment Pane under the molecule sequence.

To hide a feature or all features for a molecule displayed in the Alignment Pane, right-click on the feature or molecule, respectively, in the Text Pane, as described above, and choose the corresponding Hide command (**Hide Feature on Alignment Pane** or **Hide all Features for <selected molecule name>**, respectively) from the shortcut menu.

Other Feature-Related Commands

Various other feature-related commands are available on shortcut menus launched from the Alignment Pane. For more information on these commands, see Displaying Molecule Features in the Alignment Pane, page 396.

Guide Tree Pane

Phylogenetic analysis is the means of studying presumed evolutionary relationships. An inferred evolutionary history is displayed in a treelike diagram suggesting the inherited relationships between the molecules.

A guide tree, which resembles a Phylogenetic tree, in Vector NTI Advance is built using the Neighbor Joining method (NJ) of Saitou and Nei. The NJ method works on a matrix of distances between all pairs of sequence to be analyzed. These distances are related to the degree of divergence between the sequences. The guide tree is calculated after the sequences are aligned. AlignX displays the calculated distance values in parenthesis following the molecule name in the Guide Tree Pane.

If there are more than 3 sequences in an alignment, a guide tree is shown in the Guide Tree

Pane. To activate this pane, click the **Guide Tree** button (<u></u>) on the Pane Selection Toolbar. Scrollbars in the Guide Tree Pane enable you to view the entire tree.

Exporting a Guide Tree

To export the guide tree into a .ph file for use with other applications, click the **Export Tree** (**III**) button on the Guide Tree Pane Toolbar or choose **View > Export Guide Tree** on the menu bar or select **Export Guide Tree** from the shortcut menu. Select or enter the file name to export to in the File Save dialog and click **Save**.

Interconnection with Other Panes

Any molecule selected in the Guide Tree Pane is selected concurrently in the Alignment Pane.

Graphics Pane

To activate the Graphics Pane, click on the **Graphic Pane** button () on the Pane Selection Toolbar. The graphical representation of an alignment contains three graphs in the Graphics Pane. Graphs are divided by horizontal split bars that can be moved to change the height of the display area.

Descriptions of the Graphs

- Alignment Similarity (upper graph): Specific values (in a 0-1 range) are assigned to each residue at a given alignment position in each aligned sequence, depending on whether the residue is identical, similar or weakly similar to the corresponding residue of the consensus sequence. The values (1 (identical), 0.5 (similar), and 0.2 (weakly similar) for each residue at a given position are totaled; the sum is divided by the number of the sequences in the alignment, "normalizing" the resulting value.
- Absolute Complexity profile of the Multiple Alignment (center graph): This graph is calculated as a sum of all pairwise residue substitution scores at a given alignment position divided by the number of pairs in the alignment. The scores are taken from the residue substitution matrix used for alignment calculation.
- Absolute Complexity profile of the Pairwise Alignment for the molecule selected in the Guide Tree/Alignment Pane relative to the consensus sequence (lower graph): This graph is calculated in a manner identical to the one in the second graph. Selection of a molecule in any pane results in the calculation of this graph. This graph is the only one that changes according to which molecule is selected.

All graphs display the values averaged in a window of a specific length (defined by "window" parameter) that slides along the alignment.

You can add additional analyses to the graphics pane by activating the Graphics Pane and choosing **View > List of Analyses** from the drop down menu to open the Analysis List setup dialog box (Figure 28.3):

Analysis list setup		
Available	analyses:	
Name	Author	Reference
f ⋈ Absolute Complexity	Informax, Inc	Vector NTI Suite
f⊗ Enthalpy (dH) (kcal/mol)	Kenneth J. Bresl	PNAS 83, 3746
f⊗ Entropy (dS) (cal/K/mol)	Kenneth J. Bresl	PNAS 83, 3746
f⊗ Free Energy (dG) (kcal/mol)	Susan M.Freier	PNAS 83, 9373
f M GC Content (%)		
f Melting Temperature (GC Content) (C)	Francis H. Marti	PNAS 83, 3746
f Melting Temperature (Thermodyna	Francis H. Marti	PNAS 83, 3746 🤤
4		
+4		
Selected	analyses:	
Name		Sequence for analyse
🖾 Similarity		Consensus
🖾 Absolute Complexity		Consensus
🖾 Absolute Complexity		Alignment
		OK Cancel

Figure 28.3 DNA/RNA Analysis List Setup dialog box

The dialog box lists all of the analyses available for DNA or Protein, depending on the type of aligned molecules. Currently displayed analyses are listed in the Selected Analyses box. To add

an analysis, select it in the Available Analyses list box and click the Add Analysis button (📥)

to move it to the Selected Analyses list. Alternately, you can move an analysis to the lower list by double clicking on it.

The plot display order is determined by the order the analyses are listed in the Analysis List setup box. To modify the order, select an analysis and move it up by clicking the **Move Up** but-

ton (E). Click **OK** to close the Analysis list setup dialog box and generate the new analyses.

Adding Custom Protein Analyses

Specific values are used in the calculation of the various protein analyses. These values differ depending on the particular analysis and are stored in small text files having a .pa2 extension. All .pa2 analysis files are stored in the Analyses subdirectory in the Vector NTI Suite directory. The name of the analysis corresponds with the name of the .pa2 file.

For example, the Bulkiness analysis is characterized in the Bulkiness.pa2 file as follows:

```
[general]
author=Zimmerman J.M., Eliezer N., Simha R.
comment=Last modified 15/Mar/1996 by ELG
reference=J. Theor. Biol. 21:170-201(1968).
unique=s30
[data]
values=11.5,14.28,12.82,11.68,13.46,14.45,13.57,3.4,13.69,21.4,21.4,15.71,16.25,19.8,
17.43,9.47,15.77,21.67,18.03,21.57
```

The [general] section describes the attributes of the analysis and the [data] section contains the list of values used for calculating the analysis. Values are listed according to the alphabetical order of the acid coefficients.

You can create your own custom protein analysis by modifying the values in one of the existing .pa2 files using a plain text editor, such as Notepad. Once modified, the new .pa2 file should be saved in the Analyses subdirectory under a new name that corresponds to the new analysis type. If AlignX is open at the time the new .pa2 file is created, it must be closed and reopened before the new analysis is recognized.

Plot Setup

To modify a particular graph in the Graphics Pane, right click on the graph you want to change and choose **Plot Setup** from the shortcut menu.

Similarity Prop	erties	×
Analysis Data	agram	
Name:	Similarity	
Author(s):	Informax, Inc	
Reference:	Vector NTI Suite	
Comments:	AlignX's internal analysis	
Window size:	B	
	OK Cancel Apply	Help

Figure 28.4 Analysis tab of Plot Setup dialog box
On the **Analysis** tab of the Plot Setup dialog box (Figure 28.4), you can set the Window size, that is the number of sequential residues used to calculate the average for each graph point. The larger the number entered (Window size), the smoother the graph curve.

Simila	arity Properties				×
Ana	alysis Datagram				
F	Personal graph prop	erties			
	Show individua	axis	141		
	Visual type:	Polygon			
	Threshold:	0.5			
	Color:		• 10 15 20 2	5	
		OK Ca	incel /	Apply He	qle

Figure 28.5 Datagram tab of the Plot Setup dialog box

On the **Datagram** tab of the Plot Setup dialog box (Figure 28.5), you can modify the plot color. Both the size of the window and plot color you select are specific for the selected graph in the current project. You can also change the graph style and choose to show or hide the horizontal axis for that graph here. These settings are stored within the project file and applied to graph next time you load the project.

Zooming Graphs In and Out

Enlarging or reducing regions of alignment graphs is possible using the Zoom buttons. For descriptions of their use, refer to Chapter 3.

Managing the Scales of the Graphs

Each graph has its own vertical and horizontal scales. Vertical scales are similar for each graph and show the maximum and minimum values for the graph. On the horizontal scale, either numerical positions in the sequence or residues can be shown, depending on the degree of zooming in the graphics pane. If you would like to see the residue designations, zoom in on the graphics pane. The vertical and horizontal scales can be further managed as follows:

- As mentioned above, the horizontal axis can be shown or hidden for a particular graph by checking or unchecking the Show individual axis box on the **Datagram** tab of the Plot Setup dialog box.
- The **Show Vertical Axis** command is used to show or hide the vertical axis for all the graphs. This command can be accessed from a button on the tool bar or the shortcut menu launched by right clicking on the Graphics pane.

Graph legends can be removed from the pane by unselecting the **Show Legends** button from the Pane Toolbar or by unchecking the **Show Legend** command from the shortcut menu or the View menu. The **Place Legends Below Plots** command is used to toggle the graph legends display from the right side of the graphs to below the graphs. The **Place Legends Below** Plots command can be accessed either from the shortcut menu or from a button on the toolbar.

If no items are checked, the graphs are shown without annotation.

Interconnection with Alignment Pane

Selections within the Graphics Pane are concurrently selected in the Alignment Pane. In general, regions can be selected using the click + drag technique. Detailed selection techniques are discussed in Chapter 3.

Alignment Pane

To activate the Alignment Pane, click on the **Alignment Pane** button (**U**) on the Pane Selection Toolbar.

The Alignment Pane displays aligned sequences and the resulting consensus sequence. *Consensus residues are those that appear most commonly at a particular site.* The Alignment Pane has its own vertical and horizontal scrollbars. The last row in the pane consists of the alignment consensus.

Vertical scrolling affects both the aligned sequences and their names, but the consensus sequence is not included in the scroll region: it remains visible as the bottom sequence. The sequence names remain stationary at the left of the Alignment Pane no matter how the sequences are repositioned horizontally. If the list of molecules listed in the Alignment Pane is longer than the size of the pane, a vertical scroll bar appears as well. Vertical scrolling affects both sequences and their names but the consensus sequence remains visible at the bottom of the pane.

AlignX shows similarity and identity levels for the generated alignment in the Alignment Pane. The Status bar displays the percent of similar and identical residues for entire alignment or for a selected region on the alignment. When the mouse cursor is pointed to any particular column within alignment, a popup label shows the percent of similar and identical residues within an alignment column. *The popup label option is disabled if only two sequences are aligned.*

Interconnection with Other Panes

When a molecule is selected in the Alignment Pane, it is selected in the Guide Tree Pane as well. A guide tree is **<u>not</u>** calculated when there are **three or less** sequences in the alignment.

A selected region within the Alignment Pane is also selected concurrently in the Graphics Pane.

Displaying Molecule Features in the Alignment Pane

Features listed in the Feature Map subfolder in the Text Pane can be marked graphically in the Alignment Pane (for those molecules that are part of the current alignment) using commands executed from the Text Pane (see *Text Pane*, page 391). Once features have been marked in this way, a number of feature related commands are enabled on the Alignment Pane right-click shortcut menus as follows:

Graphical Feature Shortcut Menu Options

The following commands are available on the shortcut menu launched by right-clicking on a graphical feature shown in the Alignment Pane.

<feature name (position)> – launches the Feature Type Color Scheme dialog box where you can change the color scheme for the selected feature type or any other feature type (Figure 28.6):

Feature Type	Color	
10 Signal	White 💌	Ī
35 Signal	Green	
3' Clip	Blue	
3'UTR	Dark Green	
5' Clip	Blue	
5'UTR	Dark Green	
Allele	Blue	
Attenuator	Dark Green	
HLH Domain	Dark Green	
C-Region	Brown	
CAAT Signal	Blue	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	

Figure 28.6 Feature Type Color Scheme dialog box

Select the feature type you want to change the color of on the left side of the dialog box and choose the new color from the color drop-down box for that feature on the right side of the dialog box.

- Hide <feature name> removes the feature graphic from the alignment display.
- Copy to Consensus <feature name> copies the feature graphic to the consensus sequence display.
- Move to New Line moves to a new line a graphical feature that occurs on the same line as another graphical feature.

The following commands are available on the shortcut menu launched by right-clicking on a graphical feature shown in the Alignment Pane for the Consensus sequence ONLY:

- Delete from the Consensus <feature name> deletes the selected graphical feature from the Consensus sequence display.
- Edit <feature name> allows you to change the name of the selected Consensus sequence graphical feature.

Alignment Pane Shortcut Menu Options

The following commands are available on the shortcut menu launched by right-clicking anywhere in the Alignment Pane:

- Delete Selected Features deletes the currently selected graphical feature from the alignment display.
- Feature Type Color Scheme launches the Feature Type Color Scheme dialog box (Figure 28.6) where you can change the color display for feature types.
- Create Feature allows you to create a graphical feature for the consensus sequence. The portion of the consensus sequence you want to mark must be highlighted before the Create Feature command is enabled.

Finding Sequences in the Alignment Pane

You can perform sequence searches on molecules in the Alignment Pane using the AlignX Find Sequence feature. To open the Find Sequence dialog box (Figure 28.7), right-click on the Alignment Pane and choose **Find Sequence** from the shortcut menu.

Find Sequence	×
	Find
Direction	Cancel

Figure 28.7 Find Sequence dialog box

Select the molecule you want to search by highlighting its name on the left side of the Alignment Pane. Type the sequence you want to search for in the Find Sequence text box. Set the search parameters to achieve the desired search direction and looping status:

- Forward Searches forward from the cursor or highlighted area of the selected molecule, stopping at each point where the entered sequence string is found. Once the selected sequence has been searched to its end, the search continues with the next molecule down the list. This process continues until the last molecule in the list, the Consensus, has been searched.
- **Backward** Searches backward from the cursor or highlighted area of the selected molecule, stopping at each point where the entered sequence string is found. Once the selected sequence has been searched to its beginning, the search continues with the next molecule up the list. This process continues until the first molecule in the list has been searched.
- Loop Search When a selection is made on a sequence in the Alignment Pane, the search begins at the selection. The Loop Search option loops the search back to the beginning of the selection.

Once you have set the search conditions appropriately, click the **Find** button to begin the search.

Copying the Reverse/Reverse Complement of a Molecule

Although you can copy to the Clipboard the reverse sequence (Protein) or reverse complement (DNA/RNA) of a molecule (or selected portion of a molecule) in Vector NTI and ContigExpress, this feature is not available in AlignX.

Note: You can use the Reverse Complement feature employed in Vector NTI (Chapter 19) and ContigExpress (Chapter 30) with a molecule, and then subsequently add that molecule to an open AlignX project.

From AlignX, save the desired molecule to the database by selecting **File > Save As** (possible file extensions are ".txt", ".gb", ".gp"). Then open the molecule in Vector NTI or ContigExpress and follow the directions for making the reverse complement of the molecule as described in Making the Reverse Complement of a DNA Molecule, page 244 or Making a Reverse Complement, page 454.) Save the reverse copy/reverse complement of the molecule.

Once the reverse copy/reverse complement is saved, add it to an active AlignX project by selecting **Project > Add Files** (described on page 401 in this chapter). Locate the newly created reverse copy/reverse complement file and click **Open**, adding the reverse copy/reverse complement to the project.

Changing Molecule Order in Alignment Pane

There is one way to reorder the molecules in the Alignment Pane. Changes are retained in the AlignX project upon saving.

Moving Individual Molecules

To move individual molecules, click the molecule name in the Alignment Pane list and drag it to the desired position in the list.

Alignment Display Setup

To change a default set of alignment display parameters, click the Alignment Display Setup

() button on the Alignment Pane toolbar or choose **View > Display Setup** from the menu bar or **Display Setup** from the shortcut menu. The Alignment Display Setup dialog box opens with three alignment property tabs: Consensus Calculation, Similarity Tables, and Color Setup.

Consensus Calculation Tab

A consensus sequence is a theoretical representative nucleotide sequence in which each nucleotide represents either the residue seen most frequently at that same site in aligned sequences, or is selected by other criteria. The Consensus Calculation tab specifies how the consensus sequence, displayed as the bottom sequence in the Alignment Pane, is calculated in AlignX.

Alignment Display Setup	۱					
Consensus Calculation Similarity Tables Color Setup						
Consider only identical residues in consensus calculation						
Ignore gaps in consensus calculation						
Use sequence as consensus:						
AF036316 APC/CL DMCYCL1 HS11791 HS12685 HS4741310 S59895 S67490 ▼						
Residue fraction for consensus: 0.5						
OK Cancel Apply Help						

Figure 28.8 Consensus Calculation tab of Alignment Display Setup dialog box

On the Consensus Calculation tab (Figure 28.8), you can select among the following parameters:

- Consider only identical residues...
- Ignore gaps in the consensus calculation
- Specify a sequence to use as the consensus sequence. In this case, select one of the sequences listed (those used in the alignment).
- Residue fraction for consensus

If the **Use sequence as consensus** checkbox is checked, the Consensus will not be calculated but the sequence selected in the listbox below the checkbox will be used as the consensus.

Similarity Tables Tab

The Similarity Table (Figure 28.9) allows you to review or to define residue similarity information and values necessary for calculation of the alignment quality profile. Each residue pair can be defined as being strongly or weakly similar to each other. *The table is editable only for amino acid residues.*

Alignme	nt Display	Setup				×
Consen	Consensus Calculation Similarity Tables Color Setup					
✓ Show weak similarities Identity value: 1 Similarity value: 0.5 Weak similarity value: 0.2						
	Residue Strong*					
•	A	A				
		G				
	T	T				
*Only strong similarities are considered in consensus calculation						
OK Cancel Apply Help						

Figure 28.9 Similarity Tables tab of Alignment Display Setup dialog box

Color Setup Tab

Residues in an alignment are colored according to the following scheme:

Color	Description
black on window default color	non-similar residues
blue on cyan	consensus residue derived from a block of similar residues at a given position
black on green	consensus residue derived from the occurrence of greater than 50% of a single residue at a given position
red on yellow	consensus residue derived from a completely conserved residue at a given position
green on window default color	residue weakly similar to consensus residue at given position

Table 28.2 Alignment default color scheme descriptions

To modify alignment display colors, in the Alignment Display Setup dialog box, select the Color Setup tab (Figure 28.10).

Alignment Display Setup	×
Consensus Calculation Similarity Tables Color Setup	1
Non-similar Conservative Block of similar Identical Weakly similar	
Foreground: Background: automatic v	
Sample TRSKKLQKV KSLVQSIREAFRD NNGFS <mark>IDQIDYNAS</mark> TQAFGNTKVPVIVKTIKEAFRDGNGFNLEVINYETR NGQYFVCKIQAWARPLKEAFRDGNGFNLEVINYEQK TQQFKITKLFQSAGDIREAFRDGNGYNLE <mark>IV</mark> NYEAT	
OK Cancel Apply Help	

Figure 28.10 Color Setup tab of Alignment Display Setup dialog box

Change the colors for the specific project using the drop-down menus, observing the modifications in the preview box. Click **OK** to save color changes in the alignment project. They will be applied to the alignment next time you open the project.

After any changes are saved, consensus and colors for residues in the Alignment Pane are recalculated as well as values for all the three graphs in the Graphics Pane, and both panes are redrawn.

AlignX Projects

Creating a New Project

When AlignX is launched, a new, empty alignment workspace is created. To create a new alignment project while in the AlignX display window, select **Project > New** on the menu bar. *If you have any unsaved changes in an existing, and currently open project, AlignX suggests changes should be saved.*

In the dialog box that opens, select **Yes** to save changes, **No** to disregard changes or **Cancel** to discard changes and continue work on the opened project. In the first two cases, the current project will be closed and the workspace emptied.

Opening An Existing Project

To open an existing project, choose **Project > Open** on the menu bar or click the **Open Project**

button (\textcircled) on the Main Toolbar. In the Open dialog box, select the desired file and click **Open**. *By default, alignment projects have an ".apr" file extension.* If the file is an alignment project, information about molecules, properties and alignments (if any) appears in appropriate panes.

Another way to open an existing project is to drag and drop the project file on the AlignX workspace.

Adding Molecules to the Project

Molecules for a new (or existing) project can be added to AlignX in these ways:

 In the Vector NTI Database Explorer, in either a DNA/RNA subset or a protein subset, select a list of molecules, and drag them into the Text Pane of the empty AlignX workspace. Molecules can be dropped in the AlignX workspace to be added to the project if they are of an appropriate file format and molecule type. Select Project > Add files on the AlignX menu bar or click the Add Files button ()) on the Main Toolbar. Choose the appropriate file of molecules from the Add files to project dialog box, and click Open.

AlignX reads various file formats: GenBank and EMBL for DNA, GenPept and SWISS-PROT for proteins, FASTA and Vector NTI archives for both DNA and proteins. The first added molecule determines the molecule type. If you try to add molecules of a different type later, a warning message appears and the inappropriate molecule is not added. If a molecule's type correlates with the current project, the molecule(s) are added to the project and appear in the Text Pane.

If the program fails to define a file's format, the file can be imported as a raw sequence. If there are no molecules in the project, the molecule's type must be selected before it is possible to import the file (Figure 28.11). If the project is not empty, the molecule type is already defined and the raw sequence can be imported only if its file type matches the current project.



Figure 28.11 Importing a raw sequence

Imported raw sequences appear in the Text Pane with the names such as NONAME, and NON-AME#2. Select **Rename Molecule** from the shortcut menu to rename the molecule.

Even after molecules are brought in the AlignX workspace, three of the panes are empty until the alignment is created.

Alignment Import in MSF Format

In addition to its own projects, AlignX can open alignments of the MSF format. To open an MSF project, choose **Project > Import MSF Format** from the menu bar. In the Import MSF Format dialog box, select the MSF project to be opened. *By default, MSF projects have an .msf extension, but are not limited to it.* AlignX tries to recognize the MSF format itself, not simply by its file extension. You can also open an MSF project by dragging the file and dropping it within the AlignX window. An MSF project imported into a new AlignX project is initially named *untitled*. Select **Rename Molecule** from the shortcut menu to rename the molecule.

The information contained within an MSF project is molecule type, name, length and sequence. For this reason, Text Pane folders of MSF-format molecules contain no information about creation and modification date, author, original access number, references, and feature tables. Work is done with an MSF project just like any other AlignX project.

Initiating an Alignment

There are two ways to initiate alignments. In the Text Pane, select the sequences to be included in the alignment, then proceed with either a multiple alignment, or a profile alignment.

Multiple Alignment

In a multiple sequence alignment in AlignX, all sequences included in the alignment are "equally important." AlignX uses a modified Clustal W algorithm in which pairwise alignments are performed between sequences and the alignment tree proceeds using the particular scoring matrix designated by the user in Alignment Setup (see page 407), whereas in the traditional Clustal W,

the algorithm chooses the scoring matrix or series of matrices as the alignment progresses. (See page 661 for alignment algorithm references.)

To initiate a multiple alignment, click the **Align** button (<u>)</u>) on the Main Toolbar or select **Align** > **Align Selected Sequences** from the menu bar. *This function is enabled only if more than one molecule is selected in the Text Pane.*

Profile Alignment

A profile alignment in AlignX is based on aligning all selected sequences against a reference sequence. This is based on the Clustal W algorithm. To initiate a profile alignment, click the

Align Using Profile button ()) on the Main Toolbar or choose Align > Align Selected Using Profile on the menu bar. In the Select Profile dialog box (Figure 28.12) that opens, select the molecule to be used as the first profile.

Select Profile	×
Select a molecule to use as first profile: AF036314 AF036315 AF036316 APCYCL BBCA	
OK Cancel	

Figure 28.12 Select Profile dialog box

This function is available only if more than 1 molecule is selected in the text view.

Adding a Molecule to an Alignment

To add a molecule to the alignment, select the molecule in the Text Pane or drag it in from Data-

base Explorer. Click the Add to Alignment button ()) or choose Align > Add Selected To Alignment. A profile alignment using an existing alignment as the first profile will be performed. This function is available when an alignment already exists and at least one molecule that does not belong to alignment is selected in the Text Pane.

Realigning a Selected Area of an Alignment

To realign the selected portion of an alignment, in the Alignment Pane, select the region of the alignment you want to realign by clicking and dragging over the area of interest. Right-click in the Alignment Pane and choose **Realign Selected Area** from the shortcut menu. AlignX realigns the selected area; the unselected regions of the alignment retain their original alignment.

Removing a Molecule from the Project

To delete a selected molecule from the project, click the **Delete from Project** button () from the Text Pane toolbar, choose **Edit > Delete** *<molecule name>* **From Project** on the menu bar or **Delete** *<molecule name>* **From Project** from the shortcut menu. If you confirm this operation, the specified molecule will be deleted from the project. If the molecule is removed from the alignment, the guide tree, consensus and graphs are recalculated and refreshed.

Setting Alignment Parameters

The first molecule added to an alignment defines the molecule type of the alignment (DNA or protein). When initiated, a default set of alignment options is created for the defined molecule

type. To change these options, click the **Alignment Setup** button () on the Main Toolbar or choose **Align > Alignment Setup**. The Alignment Parameters dialog box opens with five possible property tabs: Pairwise Alignment, Multiple Alignment, Protein Profile Alignment, Tree Construction Options and Score Matrix (Figure 28.13).

Pairwise Alignment

The method for calculating pairwise distances is defined on the Pairwise Alignment tab.

Alignment PCR	2
Primer Results Amplicon Structure F	airs Similarity 3' end Uniqueness Qualities Filters
Primer/every Molecule	Selection
Overall Similarity Min 75.0 %	
For Primer Last 3'End 8 bp Simila	arity Min 90.0 % 4 Molecules to Amplify
Amplicon Length Min 100 bp	Maximum Number of Output Options 1
Salt Conc. Salt Conc. [50.0 Probe Conc. [0Mol]	250.0 dG Temperature (C)
Tm (C) %GC	Length O DNA O RNA
/- 400	120
<= 65.0 <= 60.0	<= 25 More >>
Load Save	OK Cancel Apply

Figure 28.13 Alignment Setup dialog box, with Pairwise Alignment tab displayed

Pairwise alignment parameters control the speed/sensitivity of the initial alignments:

- Fast (approximate) method
- Slow (more accurate) method uses two gap penalties (for opening or extending gaps) and a full amino acid weight matrix.

By default, the slower method is used. There are two groups of parameters enabled on this pairwise tab depending upon which method is chosen.

Note: Default settings are in parentheses: first number = DNA; second number = protein

Pairwise Alignment Parameters			
Slow Options			
Gap opening penalty (15/ 10)	The penalty for the first residue in a gap		
Gap extension penalty (6.66/0.1)	The penalty for additional residues in a gap		
Fast Options			
Number of K-tuple matches (2/1)	Change the K-tuple value to limit the word-length the search should use. A word-length of 2 is sensitive enough for most protein database searches. The general rule is that the larger the word length, the less sensitive, but faster the search will be.		
Number of best diagonals (4/5)	Number of the k-tuple matches on each diagonal used in the alignment		
Window size (4/5)	The number of diagonals around each of the best diagonals used		
Gap penalty (5/3)	Penalty for the existence of a gap		

Table 28.3 Pairwise Alignment parameters

Multiple Alignment

ŀ	lignment Setup	:
	Pairwise Alignment Multiple Alignment Tree Score Matrix	
	Gap opening penalty: 15 Gap extension penalty: 6.66 Gap separation penalty range: 8 No end gap separation penalty % identity for alignment delay: 40	
	Residue specific gaps off GPSNQEKR Transition weighting: 0	
	OK Cancel Help	

These parameters control the final multiple alignment (Figure 28.14).

Figure 28.14 Multiple Alignment tab of Alignment Setup dialog box

Note:	Default settings are in	parentheses: first numbe	er = DNA; second number =	protein
-------	-------------------------	--------------------------	---------------------------	---------

	Multiple Alignment Parameters
Gap opening penalty (15/ 10)	The penalty for the first residue in a gap
Gap extension penalty (6.66/0.05)	The penalty for additional residues in a gap
Gap separation penalty range (8)	Tries to decrease the distances between gaps
Use end gap separation penalty	Does not penalize for gaps introduced at the end of a sequence
% identity for alignment delay (40)	Delays the alignment of the most divergent sequences; that is, sequences that are less identical than the percentage shown will be introduced into the alignment later.
Use residue-specific gaps	Amino acid-specific penalties that increase or reduce penalties at each position in the aligned sequence
Use hydrophilic residue gap	Increases the chance of a gap within a region of hydrophilic residues (if yes, specify in the following text box)
Transition weighing	(For DNA only) Gives translations (A<- > G or C<- > T) a specific weight. (0) means the transition is treated as a mismatch while 1 gives the tran- sition a match score (0)

Table 28.4 Multiple Alignment parameters

Protein Profile Alignment

This dialog box allows you to raise penalties for opening gaps in secondary structure (protein) regions (Figure 28.15).

Alignment Setup
Pairwise Alignment Multiple Alignment Protein Profile Tree Score Matrix 🔓
Ignore secondary structure in first profile
Ignore secondary structure in second profile
Gap penalty for helix core residues: 4
Gap penalty for strand core residues: 4
Gap penalty for structure termini: 2
Gap penalty for loop regions: 1
Number of residues inside helix to be treated as terminal: 3
Number of residues outside helix to be treated as terminal:
Number of residues inside strand to be treated as terminal:
Number of residues outside strand to be treated as terminal:
OK Cancel Help

Figure 28.15 Protein Profile tab of Alignment Setup dialog box

Note: Default settings are in parentheses.

Prof	ile Alignment Parameters
Use secondary structure in first/sec- ond profile (yes or no) [If no in either profile, all other param- eters are disabled]	Determines if the secondary structure information is to be used in the indicated profile
Gap penalty for helix core residue (4)	For helix core residues breaking
Gap penalty for strand core residue (4)	
Gap penalty for structure termini (2)	For introducing gaps at the end of a secondary structure
Gap penalty for loop regions (1)	Raises the penalty for introducing gaps in a loop (By default this penalty is not raised.)
Number of residues inside/outside a helix/strand to be treated as terminal Inside helix (3) Outside helix (0) Inside strand (1) Outside strand (1)	Specifies the range of residues inside or outside a helix or strand beyond the structure

Table 28.5 Profile Alignment parameters

Guide Tree Construction Options

A guide tree is calculated from the alignment using the Neighbor Joining (NJ) method. On the Tree tab (Figure 28.16), two parameters may be changed for tree construction (neither of these are set initially):

	Tree Construction Parameters
Use Kimura's correction	Corrects for the fact that observed distances underestimate the actual evolutionary distance. For small divergence, this option makes no difference. For greater divergence (> 10%), substitutions can occur multiple times at different sites. (Kimura, 1983)
Ignore positions with gaps	When checked, any alignment positions where the sequences have gaps will be ignored.

Table 28.6 Construction parameters

Alignment Setup					×
Pairwise Alignment Multiple Alignment	Tree	Score Matrix			
🔲 Use a Kimura's correction					
Ignore positions with gaps					
)К	Cancel	Help

Figure 28.16 Tree tab of Alignment Setup dialog box

Score Matrix

The Score Matrix tab (Figure 28.17) displays the matrix used to generate the current multiple alignment. From this tab, you can also open other matrices for review or for application to the alignment.

When a project is created, a residue substitution matrix from the corresponding template (DNA or protein) is used. If either template file is not found, the default matrix is used (swgapdnamt for DNA and blosum62mt2 for protein). To review other matrices for either DNA or proteins, click

the **Select Matrix** button. From the Matrices file, select any other matrix to be loaded on the Score Matrix tab.

A	lign	mer	nt Se	etup)																X
	Pai	rwise	e Alig	inme	ent	Mul	tiple	Alig	nmei	nt	Tree		Sco	re M	atrix						
	Nar	ne: [s	wga	apdn	amt			6)rder	: AE	BCD	GHK	MN	RST	UW	vXY	1		_		
			А	В	С	D	G	Н	Κ	М	Ν	R	S	T	U	۷	W	Х	Y		
	•	Α	10	-9	-9	10	-9	10	-9	10	10	10	-9	-9	-9	10	10	10	-9		
		В	-9	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10		
		С	-9	10	10	-9	-9	10	-9	10	10	-9	10	-9	-9	10	-9	10	10		
		D	10	10	-9	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10		
		G	-9	10	-9	10	10	-9	10	-9	10	10	10	-9	-9	10	-9	10	-9		
		Н	10	10	10	10	-9	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10		
		К	-9	10	-9	10	10	10	10	-9	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10		
		М	10	10	10	10	-9	10	-9	10	10	10	10	-9	-9	10	10	10	10		-
	M	-	1	/17			1														
		Sele	ect m	natrix																	
																	οк			Cancel Help	

Figure 28.17 Score Matrix tab of Alignment Setup dialog box

Editing a matrix takes place in the Matrix Editor, accessible from the program files where you installed Vector NTI Advance. For further details regarding customizing or editing matrices, refer to Chapter 39.

Editing the Alignment

To edit an alignment, click the **Edit Alignment** button () on the Alignment Pane toolbar, or choose **View > Edit Alignment** from the menu bar or Edit Alignment from the shortcut menu. This opens the Edit Alignment dialog box containing rows of molecule names and sequences (Figure 28.18).

S59895	- ATTTGGGTTTTTCATAGCAGAGAAGTATCCAAAATTTCAAAAATATTATTATTTACT
SC20635	AA-ATTCATTTTTCATGAAGGAAAATTAGGGTTCATACAGGAGTAGAGTTC-ATT
HS11791	
AF036316	
APCYCL	AATTTCATCATGGCTCTTGGAACAAGAAATATGAACATGAATCTCCATGGTGAG-AGC
DMCYCA1	GCTGAACAAGTACGGAGTTTGTAAAATACTTAATATTAGCTAAGTCCGTGCGAGCGTA
S67490	GATATATTTCTATACGTTGATAAAAGGGAATTTATCAATCCATATTTCATATG
HS12685	
HS4741310	

Figure 28.18 Edit Alignment dialog box

Note: You can resize the Edit Alignment dialog box by clicking and dragging on the lower right corner.

To edit the alignment, select the desired region in the sequence by LEFT-CLICK + DRAG through the sequence in the appropriate direction with the mouse or double-click with the left mouse button within the sequence, selecting the entire region between two gaps. The current selection, as well as its position in the sequence, is shown in the status bar of the dialog box.

Editing can only occur by shifting selected sequences into adjacent gaps. Therefore, the four arrow buttons allowing movement of the selected block are enabled only when there is a gap to the left or right of the selected region. To shift the block, in the Move Selected Block area, designate the number of positions to move in the text box and press one or more of the following arrow buttons:

- to the beginning of the adjacent gap interval in the left direction

- moves the number of positions designated to the left

🚔 - moves the number of positions designated to the right

- to the end of the adjacent gap interval in the right direction

Click the **OK** button to save any changes and close the Alignment Edit dialog box. Click the **Apply** button to save any changes and leave the dialog box open. *This button is enabled only when there are differences between the alignment shown in the Alignment Pane and the edited alignment.* The **Cancel** button discards all the changes made since the last use of **Apply**.

Templates

Template files contain all the Alignment Setup, the Plot Setup, or the Alignment Display Setup properties for the AlignX program. When an alignment project is being created, AlignX locates the default template file (default.xp1 for protein and default.xn1 for DNA) in the main Vector NTI directory. If the file exists, the properties from it apply to the project. If the file is not found, default predefined values from AlignX itself are used.

(To change the default files, a new default.xp1 or default.xn1 file must be created and placed in the top level of the database directory, not the main Vector NTI program directory. Alternatively, additional template files can be retained and reloaded from any directory or path.)

You can save current settings of the alignment project in a template file or apply settings from an existing template to an open project. To save settings as a template, choose **Edit > Setup > Save to File** and select the destination for the settings (or type the name of the new template file). *Default extension for template files is "xp1" for proteins and "xn1" for DNA.* To apply settings from an existing template to the open project, choose **Edit > Setup > Load from File** and select the template file. Settings affecting the plot presentation (Plot Setup) or the alignment presentation (Alignment Display Setup) take effect immediately. The alignment properties (Alignment Setup) take effect only after the alignment is recalculated. To do this, select and realign the same molecules from the Text Pane.

Identity Table Analysis

The Identity Table analysis shows identity, similarity, and/or distance values for all possible sequence pairs for the sequences that are included in the alignment.

To open the Table, choose **Align > Show Identity Table** from the menu. An window opens like the one in Figure 28.19:

39 33 27	19 19	40	41				
33 27	19		71	49	52	100	\$59895
27	1.0	40	41	58	100	1991-0	SC20635
-1	17	39	45	100			HS11791
29	4	28	100				AF036316
37	25	100					APCYCL
23	100						DMCYCA1
100							S67490
							HS12685
							HS4741310
							S67490 HS12685 HS4741310

Figure 28.19 Similarity Table window

There are two (three for proteins) different pairwise comparison analyses accessible via the buttons on the top of the window.

- Click the top **Identity** button (**III**) to show identity scores between sequence pairs. This is the percentage of identical residues among all ungapped positions between the pairs.
- Click the top **Conserved** button ([iv]) (proteins only) to show similarity values between the sequence pairs. This is the percentage of identical + similar amino acids among all ungapped positions between the pairs.
- Click the top **Distance** button () to show distance scores (e.g., 100 identity score) between sequence pairs.

You can also use the **Print Table** button to print the table or the **Camera/Copy Table to Clipboard** button to copy the table to the Clipboard so that it can be pasted into another application, such as Word or Excel.

Dot Matrix Analysis

The Dot Matrix analysis is primarily a method for comparing two sequences to find all possible matches of residues. This method can also be used to find direct or inverted repeats in protein and DNA sequences. It can predict regions in RNA that are self-complementary and therefore might form a double-stranded region or secondary structure.

In the Dot Matrix method of sequence comparison, one sequence (A) is listed on the x-axis of the graph and the other sequence (B) is listed on the y-axis. Starting with the first positions in A and B, the program slides the window of **n** characters along the sequences, performing a comparison of adjacent positions in the windows. If the similarity of residues in each position is above a certain cutoff, a dot is placed in the matrix in the position defined by the starting positions of the window for both sequences. A diagonal line segment indicates that the two sequences match consistently over an extended region.

A larger window size is generally used for DNA sequences than protein sequences since the number of random matches is much greater for DNA.

Note: The window size and matching stringency for the Dot Matrix analysis are set in the Dot Matrix Setup dialog box (see *Dot Matrix Setup*, page 412).

Launching the Dot Matrix

To perform a Dot Matrix analysis, open a Dot Matrix window by clicking the Dot Matrix button

() or by choosing **Align > Show Dot Matrix Plot**. Initially, the Dot Matrix window (Figure 28.20) is empty.

All molecules present in the AlignX window Text Pane are available in both drop-down menus at the top of the empty screen (Figure 28.20). To calculate a Dot Matrix for a pair of molecules, select the molecules in the two drop-down boxes in the Dot Matrix window. A new Dot Matrix is calculated any time a new selection is made in either drop-down menu (the second should not be empty).

1 GLB1 SCAIN	-	→ CALM CHLRE	•
T Tarbi Togani		- Jonen-onene	

Figure 28.20 Dot Matrix window drop-down menus

The Dot Matrix window contains a menu bar, Main Toolbar, molecule selection toolbars, status bar, and Dot Matrix Pane. Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function; hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button. Toolbar buttons are described in this section as needed.

Dot Matrix Window

The Dot Matrix Window is represented in the following example (Figure 28.21):



Figure 28.21 Dot Matrix Window

The graphical representation of a Dot Matrix is a dashed rectangle in which any region of similar sequence is revealed by a diagonal row of dots. The molecule selected first corresponds to the horizontal axis, its name being shown in the right top corner of the Dot Matrix rectangle. The second molecule corresponds to the vertical axis. Each axis has its own scale that initially displays the sequence positions. When changing the scales (resizing Dot Matrix Window or zooming Dot Matrix Pane) it is possible to show residues along the axes. Residues are displayed only if they can be displayed on both axes. When the scales allow displaying of residues, a grid can

be laid upon the Dot Matrix. To apply (or revoke) a grid, click the **Show Grid** () button or choose the **Grid on Zoomed Matrix** command from the shortcut menu or the View menu.

There are two modes in displaying a Dot Matrix, alternated by clicking the Maintain Isotropic

Scaling button (III) or selecting View > Maintain Isotropic Scaling:

Equal scales are used for both axes, meaning the diagonal rows of dots always have a 45° angle relative to the axes.

Various scales for axes, that means that Dot Matrix always occupies maximum space in the Dot Matrix Pane.

The scales for X & Y-axes change dynamically when you resize the Dot Matrix Window. Also, the boundaries of regions currently displayed are shown for both molecules.

Resizing the Dot Matrix

When the Dot Matrix is first calculated, it is shown as a representation of the full length of a molecule. Generally it is impossible to analyze molecules of several thousand residues each when displayed in a 500 x 500 (approximate) screen matrix. To alleviate this problem, a region of a Dot Matrix may be enlarged: click and hold the left mouse button within the Dot Matrix rectangle while dragging the mouse, displaying the tracking dotted rectangle. When the mouse button is released, the selected region is enlarged to the entire Dot Matrix rectangle. The previous state is

saved in the history list. Click the **Undo Zoom** (\bigcirc) and **Redo Zoom** (\bigcirc) buttons for modifying the view of the selected region.

Dot Matrix Setup

The window size and stringency (minimum number of matches) for the Dot Matrix analysis is set in the Dot Matrix Setup dialog box. Open the Dot Matrix setup (Figure 28.22) by clicking the

Matrix Setup (
) button on the main toolbar or by choosing the Matrix Setup command from the Matrix menu.

Dot Matrix Setup		×
Stringency:	30	
Window:	5	
	OK	Cancel

Figure 28.22 Dot Matrix Setup dialog box

Two parameters affect the Dot Matrix calculation:

	Dot Matrix Setup
stringency (30% by default)	the minimal number of matches in the window to cause a dot to be set in the matrix
window (5)	the size of the sliding window

Table 28.7 Dot Matrix setup

Other AlignX Features

The following features can be performed in the AlignX display window. Details specific to AlignX are outlined here. For general information on these features, refer to Chapter 3.

- Print and Print Preview
- Copying to the clipboard

Notes: Data or graphics from any pane, including the Dot Matrix can be copied to the Clipboard.

When copying the Alignment Pane with the Camera, the Consensus sequence can be excluded from the copy, if desired.

For detailed information on copying the reverse/reverse complement to the Clipboard, see page 398.

- Exporting molecules
- Note: To export a currently open AlignX project into the MSF format, choose Project > Export MSF Format.
 - External tools

Alignment Algorithms

For details regarding alignment algorithms, refer to Appendix B.

Alignment PCR

Alignment PCR allows you to design PCR primers for amplifying a region of aligned DNA molecules. To launch an Alignment PCR primers search for a DNA/RNA alignment, in the AlignX Alignment Pane, highlight the region of the alignment you want to amplify, right-click on the Alignment Pane and choose **Design PCR Primers** from the shortcut menu. The Alignment PCR dialog box (Figure 28.23) displays:

Alignment PCR	×
Primer Results Amplicon Structure Pairs Similarity 3'	end Uniqueness Qualities Filters
Primer/every Molecule	Selection
Overall Similarity Min 750 %	
For Primer Last 3'End 8 bp Similarity Min 90.0 %	4 Molecules to Amplify
Amplicon Length Min 100 bp Maximum Number	r of Output Options
Salt Conc. 50.0 Probe Conc. 250.0 dG Te (mMol)	emperature 25.0
Tm (C) %GC Length >= 40.0 >= 35.0 >= 20	O DNA O RNA
<= 65.0 <= 60.0 <= 25	More >>
Load Save	DK Cancel Apply

Figure 28.23 Alignment PCR analysis dialog box

The Alignment PCR dialog box allows you to set parameters for your alignment PCR primers search. For detailed information on performing Alignment PCR, see *Alignment PCR Analysis*, page 260.

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

C H A P T E R 29 BIOANNOTATOR

Introduction

BioAnnotator is a sequence analyzer that performs certain types of DNA and protein sequence analyses, and displays the results as linear graphics. For proteins, amino acid scaling allows the user to visualize the distribution of the particular physiochemical properties along the polypeptide chain, thus providing helpful hints about the functional properties of the protein regions or domains. An amino acid scale is defined by a numerical value assigned to each type of amino acid. The most frequently used scales are the hydrophobicity, hydrophilicity, and the secondary structure conformational parameters scales, but many other scales exist which are based on different chemical and physical properties of the amino acids. This program provides about 60 predefined scales entered from the literature. BioAnnotator also includes the following advanced search and analysis tools, which are run in the Analysis Monitor (see Chapter 34): ProSite, PFAM, BLOCKS and Proteolytic Cleavage.

Launching BioAnnotator

To open BioAnnotator from the Start menu, select Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > BioAnnotator. To launch BioAnnotator from Database Explorer, with a molecule highlighted, select Analyses > BioAnnotator > Analyze Selected Molecule, or select Analyses > BioAnnotator > Open New Analyzer Window. From a Molecule Display Window or other Vector NTI applications, make the same selections, although, of course, the molecule to be analyzed will be that opened in the display window.

You can also drag a molecule from a partial Database Explorer screen or other Vector NTI applications into an empty BioAnnotator workspace.

Features of the BioAnnotator Workspace

Depending upon how BioAnnotator is first opened, the display window may be empty. As a new project is created or an existing BioAnnotator project is opened, the analysis results then appear in the display window.

If your BioAnnotator display window is empty, open a demo project into the workspace before you review its features. Select **File > Open**. Find the Vector NTI Suite folder. *It is probably located in Program Files\Vector NTI\Demo Projects*. Open the DNA or protein.apf file.

The BioAnnotator interface (Chapter 29.1) consists of a menu bar, three toolbars, and a BioAnnotator Display window, with shortcut menus specific for each pane.



Figure 29.1 BioAnnotator interface

BioAnnotator has three toolbars: the Main toolbar, the Pane Selection toolbar, and the Pane toolbar. The Main Toolbar contains tools for major program functions, such as opening BioAnnotator analysis projects, importing molecule data from various formats, adding and deleting analyses, etc. Many toolbar commands can also be launched from the menu bar or from a shortcut menu.

Note: Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function. Hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button.

Each Display Window is divided into three section or panes: a Text Pane, a Plot Pane, and a Sequence Pane. Split bars allow the resizing of the panes in the display window. In BioAnnotator, the heavy line at the bottom or top of a graph is also a split bar. Each pane has its own scroll bars, allowing vertical and horizontal movement through the pane.

As in the other Vector NTI Advance applications, to apply a command from the main menu in a given pane (Print, Print Preview, Camera), that pane must be active. The active pane can be

toggled with the Switch Panes (, , , ,), buttons in the Pane Selection Toolbar or by clicking anywhere in the pane you want to activate.

Elements of BioAnnotator Display Windows

Text Pane

To activate the Text Pane, click on the **Text Pane** button () on the Pane Selection Toolbar.

The Text Pane contains a thorough description of the analyzed molecule. The information is organized in a tree structure with the following folders:

Folder	Contents
General description	Molecule type, form (for DNA only), length, etc.
Proprietary fields	User defined fields (for molecules that came from Vector NTI)
Standard fields	GenBank/SWISS-PROT-like fields: keywords, division, original accession numbers, etc.
Comments	Arbitrary text of any length associated with the molecule
References	Bibliographic references (in GenBank/SWISS-PROT format)
Analysis	Results of common physiochemical analyses of proteins
Feature Map	List of molecule features

Table 29.1 BioAnnotator Text Pane folders

The following Text Pane manipulations are outlined in Chapter 3:

- Expanding and collapsing folders
- Opening the folder shortcut menus
- Copying pane contents to the clipboard

Plot Pane

The graphs for a DNA or protein molecule in BioAnnotator display physiochemical properties, many of which are based on parameters like charge that exert effects over distance. Other properties represented in the plot depend on the way adjacent bases/amino acids fold in 3-dimensional space, which is a function of the sequence itself.

The Plot Pane consists of the graphical analyses region: a vertical (Y) axis, showing minimal and maximal values of analysis results, and an individual horizontal (X) axis, displaying either numerical positions in the sequence or residues, scrollbars, and the legend region that displays the name of each analysis. *Even if residues do not show initially, if you enlarge the region enough, individual residues are displayed.* To change the width of the description section, drag the thin vertical bar in the right corner of the common horizontal scale.

At any point along the sequence (X-axis), the value (Y-axis) for the property is derived not just from the specific residue at that point, but from adjacent residues as well. For each property, the algorithm authors have determined the apparent optimum window of adjacent residues to be considered when calculating the value for a point. For instructions in modifying the Window Size parameter, see *Editing Analysis Properties* on page 419.

Note: You may note that there are no values for the property at the beginning (or end) of the sequence. Those regions do not have enough bases/amino acids to the left (or right) of the selected residue (as specified by the Window Size) to make the full calculation. To calculate values for those regions, you can reduce the Window Size. Directions for doing so are found in *Editing Analysis Properties* on page 419.

User Interaction Modes

BioAnnotator has two modes for working with plots.

• *Regular Mode* (default mode): In this mode, regions of data can be selected, the scale of plots can be changed, and the data section can be scrolled. In this mode, the Plot Pane

is synchronized with the Sequence Pane. This means that a selected data region on the Plot Pane is displayed concurrently in the Sequence Pane and vice versa.

 In the *Plot Layout Mode:* The plots are treated as pictures that can be arranged in a number of ways, including changes in positions and the heights of the plots. To activate

the Plot Layout Mode, click the **Edit Layout** button(¹⁰) on the Plots Pane Toolbar. This enables several edit buttons at the far right of the toolbar.

By default, plots do not overlap, but you can resize them by dragging horizontal separator bars.

Plot Layout Mode

To perform any of the following operations, BioAnnotator must be in Plot Layout Mode which is

activated by clicking the Edit Layout button (1990).

Selecting Plots

To perform certain actions on displayed plots, you must activate the Plot Layout mode by click-

ing the **Edit Layout** button (), then select one or more plots. To select a plot, click on it with the mouse. If you hold the SHIFT key down, previously selected plots stay selected; otherwise, they become unselected as you click on new selections. Selected plots can be distinguished from unselected ones by the black boxes or "handles" in the corners of the selected plot (Layout Mode only—see below).

Overlapping Plot Graphics

• If the Enable Overlapping option is turned on (with the Enable Overlapping button

(11), one plot can be superimposed on another (drag it into position). The overlapping order can also be modified. To bring a plot to the front, use the **Bring to Top** button

(^[1]) on the toolbar or select **View > Bring to Top**. To send a selected plot to the back,

press the Send to Bottom button (\square) on the toolbar or select View > Send to Bottom.

• When the Enable Overlapping option is turned off, superimposed plots return to their original order.

Changing Plot Position

If the Enable Overlapping option is on, the plot can be dragged and dropped anywhere in

the Plot Pane. Click on a plot + drag the mouse. The cursor shape is changes from $\frac{1}{3}$ to $\frac{3}{3}$. It will be placed on top of other plots that might occupy the same position.

If the Enable Overlapping option is off, the plot can be dropped in specific positions only.
 When the cursor shape changes from k to ., a new position is allowed. When the cursor shape changes to , the new position is invalid.

Changing Plot Height

Plot height can be changed only for a single plot at a time.

- To modify the plot height, move the cursor to one of the handles where it changes to a two-headed arrow (1). Drag the handles vertically to resize the plot.
- If the Enable Overlapping option is on, handles appear at the top and bottom of a graph.

Regular Mode

Selecting Data

A region of data may be selected in the Regular Mode only. To select a region, press and hold the mouse button and drag the mouse horizontally over the plot. To modify the current selection either hold the SHIFT key down and click/drag in the plot area or resize the edges of the existing selection by dragging them.

By clicking outside the plot area or individual horizontal axis, BioAnnotator removes the selection from plot.

Selecting a region on one of the plots also changes selected regions on all plots.

Changing Scale

As in other Vector NTI Advance applications, plot analysis graphs can be resized using the

Zoom buttons. The scale for all plots can be changed by using the **Zoom In** (🕄) and **Zoom**

Out () buttons or by selecting View > Zoom In or Zoom Out. Increase the scale of a

selected region in the Plots Pane by clicking the **Zoom to Selection** button (¹¹). *In this case, now you can read the individual residues in the Plot Pane.* To fit the entire plot into the data sec-

tion, use the **Fit to Window** button (🔍) or select **View > Fit to Window**.

Editing Analysis Properties

To modify individual properties and common display properties, double-click on a plot, opening the Plot Properties dialog box. Alternatively, click on a plot once to select it, then press the **Prop**-

erties button ()) or choose View > Properties command from the menu bar.

In the Plot Properties dialog box, both the analysis parameters and the display setup for the plot can be changed.

- The Analysis tab displays a short description of the analysis as well as the Window Size parameter, which is analysis dependent. The Window Size is the number of adjacent data points used in averaging values for each displayed data point. (See the description of Window Size under *Plot Pane* on page 417.) You may alter the Window Size to reflect experimental findings or thinking that has changed since the author first reported the algorithm, or you may want to calculate residues within a blank zone at the beginning or end of the sequence. Try varying the window size to see how it affects the plot display.
- The Datagram tab changes the display attributes of the plot, such as plot type and color. It also turns the display of the individual scale for the plot on or off.

Changing Common Display Properties

The common display properties of all plots can be customized using buttons on the Plot Pane

toolbar of the View menu. The Show Vertical Axis command/buttons (

play of vertical axes on all plots. The **Show Legends** (^{IEE}) and **Place Legends Below Plots**

(🗁) buttons turn on/off and change position of the legends for all of the plots.

Display Setup for Analyses is discussed later in this chapter.

Sequence Pane

Like other Vector NTI Advance applications, in BioAnnotator, nucleotide or amino acid sequences can be viewed, manipulated and formatted in the Sequence Pane. Regions of the sequence can be copied and pasted to the Clipboard.

Sequence Pane Elements

In addition to the sequence, the Sequence Pane displays a molecule's sequence features. Features are shown with a horizontal line above the sequence (protein features and DNA features on the direct strand) or below the sequence (DNA features on the complementary strand). Labels also show the name of the feature.

The sequence can be scrolled up or down with the Sequence Pane's scroll bar. If Sequence Pane is the active pane, standard arrow keys may be used to scroll the sequence.

Navigating the Sequence Pane Using the Keyboard

Key	Description	
Left	Move caret to previous position	
RIGHT	Move caret to next position	
Up	Move caret position one line up	
Down	Move caret position one line down	
Номе	Move caret position to the beginning of the current line	
END	Move caret position to the end of the current line	
CTRL-PGUP	Move caret position to the beginning of sequence	
CTRL-PGDN	Move caret position to the end of sequence	

Standard keyboard keys may be used to navigate the sequence:

Table 29.2 Navigating a sequence using the keyboard

Selecting a Sequence Region

To select sequence regions, CLICK + DRAG the mouse across the sequence. Press SHIFT + RIGHT or LEFT ARROW to start or extend a selection.

A selected region in the Sequence Pane is concurrently displayed on the plots in the Plot Pane.

Changing Sequence Pane Properties

In BioAnnotator, double-strand mode is default mode for DNA/RNA sequences. To switch to a

single strand display, press the $\left(\frac{\text{ATC}}{\text{TAG}}\right)$ button on the pane toolbar or select View > Show Both Strands.

The length of a single line of a sequence and number of blocks per line can be adjusted as well.

Click the **BioAnnotator Setup** (E) button on the toolbar to open the Setup dialog box (Figure 29.2):

Setup		×
🖵 Analysis list		ΠΚ
	Setup	
		Cancel
	Setup	
Feature Map		
	Setup	
- Settings		
Load from file	Save to file	

Figure 29.2 Setup dialog box

Click the **Setup** button for a **Sequence** to control sequence display (Chapter 29.3):

Display setup	×
Nucleotide sequence Length of blocks: Blocks per Line: 5	OK Cancel
Translation C 1-Letter AA Code S-Letter AA Code	

Figure 29.3 Sequence Display Setup dialog box

To choose what features should be shown in the Sequence Pane, click on the **Setup** button for **Feature Map** in the Setup dialog box, opening the FMap Setup dialog box (Chapter 29.4):

FMap Setup	×
All kinds of features will be displayed in the text and	OK
graphics panes. Add here the kinds of features you want to see in the sequence pane:	Cancel
CDS	< Add
	> Remove
	>> Remove All
You may also limit the length of features to be displayed in the sequence pane:	
40 (Enter a number or leave this field blank)	

Figure 29.4 FMap Setup dialog box

Click the **< Add** button to add features for display. Feature Map Setup is discussed in detail in *Editing the Feature Map* on page 240.

Changing Sequence Character Display Attributes

Display attributes for selected sequence residues can be changed in the same way that text is formatted in a word processor using the appropriate toolbar buttons. See Chapter 3 for details.

Copying a Raw Sequence

To copy real sequence data to the Clipboard, select a sequence region and choose **Edit > Copy**. The sequence will be copied in the plain text format without formatting or line numbering. This "raw" format is suitable for pasting into other molecular biology software including programs in Vector NTI Advance. The keystroke for the copy operation is CTRL+C.

BioAnnotator Projects

Creating a New Project

When BioAnnotator is launched, a new, empty display window is opened. To create a new project, you must import molecule information from various molecule file formats. To import a molecule, select **File > Open** on the menu bar.

BioAnnotator reads the following file formats: GenBank and EMBL for DNA, GenPept and SWISS-PROT for proteins. BioAnnotator also reads ASCII Text, FASTA, and Vector NTI archives for both DNA and proteins.

In the File Open dialog box that opens, select the desired file and click **Open**. The program tries to recognize which format is being used and whether the sequence is nucleic acid (DNA/RNA) or amino acid (proteins).

If the program fails to define a file's format, it will be suggested in the following dialog box that the file be imported as a raw sequence (Chapter 29.5):

Import	×
Unexpected kind of data file: D:\VNTI\molecules for\3CR0.pdb Would you like to import this file as raw? Select type C Import as DNA/RNA raw sequence	
C Import as protein raw sequence	
Import	

Figure 29.5 Importing a raw sequence

To create a new BioAnnotator project from Vector NTI, in Database Explorer, select a molecule, then choose Analyses > BioAnnotator > Analyze Selected Molecule or Analyses > BioAnnotator > Open New Analyzer Window.

Opening an Existing Project

BioAnnotator can save a molecule and its an analysis list (with individual options) and displayed character attributes, as a single file. At any time, BioAnnotator can restore the contents of this file and continue to work with it. An aggregate set of molecule, options, and attributes is called a BioAnnotator project.

To open an existing project, choose **File > Open** or press the ($\stackrel{\blacktriangleright}{=}$) button on the toolbar. In the Open dialog box, select the desired file and click **Open**. *By default, BioAnnotator project files have an "*.apf" file extension*. If the file is an analyzer project, information about the molecule, its analyses, and sequence display character properties (if any) appears in the appropriate panes. Another way to open an existing project is to drop the project file on the BioAnnotator window.

Analysis List Setup

The important part of configuring BioAnnotator is the selection of analyses to perform for a molecule. To add or remove any analysis from the plot, open the Analysis List Setup dialog box where you can choose from the list of available analyses.

To open the dialog box, click the **Analysis List** button () on the Main Toolbar, choose **Analyses > Analyses List** on the menu bar or click the **Setup** button for **Analysis List** in the **Bio-Annotator** Setup dialog box described previously in this chapter. This opens the Analysis List Setup dialog box (Chapter 29.6).

Analysis list setup			
Available analyses:			
Name	Author	Reference	
f⊗ Amino acid composition (%) in the S	Bairoch A.	Release notes f	
f⊗ Antigenicity value × 10	Welling G.W.,	FEBS Lett. 188:	
f⊗ Atomic weight ratio of hetero eleme	Grantham R.	Science 185:86	
f Average area buried on transfer fro	Rose G.D., Ges	Science 229:83	
f⊗ Average flexibility index	Bhaskaran R., P	Int. J. Pept. Prot	
f⊗ Average surrounding hydrophobicity	Manavalan P., P	Nature 275:673	
f⊗ Bulkiness	Zimmerman J.M	J. Theor. Biol. 2	T
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		- · - · •	
Selected	analyses:		
Name			
🔤 Hydropathicity			
Hydrophobicity indices at ph 3.4 deter	mined by HPLC		
x e, p a		DK Cance	1

Figure 29.6 Analysis List Setup dialog box

The dialog box lists currently displayed analyses in the Selected Analyses box and a list of 50 predefined analyses in the Available Analyses box. *Available analyses differ for DNA/RNA and protein molecules.* Citations for each analysis are noted in the dialog box.

To add one or more analyses to the displayed analysis list, in the upper list, select the appropri-

ate analyses and click the (¹) button or double-click on each analysis to be added. To see the same analysis with different parameters, you can add more than one "instance" of the same analysis.

The relative position of an analysis in the Selected Analyses list determines the order in which the plots appear in the Plot Pane. The list may be rearranged by moving a selected analysis up

or down by clicking ($\stackrel{\text{les}}{=}$) and ($\stackrel{\text{les}}{=}$) buttons.

Once analyses appear in the bottom box, properties of the selected analyses can be changed, analyses may be moved up and down in analysis list, and analyses may be removed from the

list. To change the properties of an analysis, select it in the list and click the (2) button or double-click the analysis in the list.

To remove an analysis from the displayed analysis list, select it in the analysis list and click the

(🎽) button.

Analysis Properties

To change analysis parameters and choose from the various plot representation options, open

the Analysis Properties dialog box by clicking the (¹) button in the Analysis List Setup dialog box, or the same button on the Plots Pane Toolbar or by double-clicking on a plot in the Plot Pane.

The Analysis Properties dialog box has two tabs, the Analysis tab and the Datagram tab.

Analysis Tab

On the Analysis tab, you can specify analysis-dependent analysis parameters. In general, every analysis has its own version of this tab for editing analysis-specific parameters. However, most protein analyses have very similar Analysis tabs. Examples of the Analysis tab for two different analyses are described below.

1. The Analysis tab for the ProtScale analyses has the following format (Chapter 29.7):

Hydrophobicity indices at ph 3.4 determined by HPLC Properties				
Analysis Dat	agram			
Name:	Hydrophobicity ind	dices at ph 3.4 determ	nined by HPLC	
Author(s):	Cowan R., Whitta	ker R.G.		
Reference:	Peptide Research	3:75-80(1990).		
Comments:	Last modified 15/	Mar/1996 by ELG		
⊙ Weighter ⊙ Average	d average	Minimal value: Maximal value: Window size:	0 5 51	
Name		Value		▲
Wr Ala		0.42		
W _i Arg		-1.56		
Wi Asn		-1.03		
Wi Asp		-0.51		
Wr Cys		0.84		
W: Gin		-0.96		
	OK	Cancel	Apply	Help

Figure 29.7 ProtScale analyses: Analysis tab of the Setup dialog box

- ^o Minimal Value Minimum value considered for weighted average.
- ^o Maximal Value Maximum value considered for weighted average.
- ^o Window Size Number of nucleotides or amino acids used to calculate average/ weighted average value, which is plotted on the graph. If you hover your cursor over a point on a graph, a tool tip appears showing the number of residues in the window (set window size) and the value calculated for that point using the set window size.

The Analysis tab for the Sequence Complexity analysis has the following format (Chapter 29.8):

Sequence Co	mplexity Properties 🛛 🕐 🔀
Analysis Da	atagram
Name: Author(s): Reference:	Sequence Complexity Stephen F. Altschul,Mark S. Boguski,Warren Gish & John C. Woott Nature Genetics vol.6 2/94
Comments:	
Window siz	e: B
	OK Cancel

Figure 29.8 Sequence Complexity analysis Analysis tab

Datagram tab

This Datagram tab is the same for all analyses (Chapter 29.9).

Sequence Comple	kity Properties
Analysis Datagr	m]
Personal grap	properties
🔽 Show inc	vidual scale
Visual type: Threshold:	Bar 🔽
Color:	0 10 15 20 25
	OK Cancel

Figure 29.9 Analysis Properties dialog box

In the Personal Graph Properties section, you can specify the following Datagram properties:

- Show Individual Scale Check/uncheck the box to display/hide the individual horizontal axis.
- ^o Visual Type Choose the plot type (Bar Chart, Line Chart, Boolean Chart).
- ^o Threshold The minimal relative value considered as "true" for Boolean Chart.
- ^o Color The color of the graph.

The datagram configuration is shown in the preview box on the tab. Choose **OK** to apply any changes you have made.

Analysis Descriptions

DNA/RNA Analyses

Melting temperature and free energy are calculated using the "nearest neighbors" method. Constants and algorithms used for calculation of thermodynamic parameters may be found in the sources listed in Appendix D.

The full list of DNA/RNA analyses are as follows:

- Free Energy (dG) (kcal/mol)
- Enthalpy (dS) (kcal/mol)
- Entropy (dS) (cal/K/mol)
- Melting Temperature (Thermodynamic) ©
- Melting Temperature (GC Content) ©
- GC Content (%)
- Nucleic Acid Distribution (%)
- Sequence Complexity

Protein Analyses

Nearly all protein analyses are based on ProtScale analyses. ProtScale allows the computation and representation of the profile produced by any amino acid scale on a selected protein.

An amino acid scale is defined by a numerical value assigned to each type of amino acid. The most frequently used scales are the hydrophobicity or hydrophilicity scales and the secondary structure conformational parameters scales. Many other scales exist which are based on different chemical and physical properties of the amino acids.

The full list of ProtScale analyses is as follows: Full citations appear in Appendix B.

- Amino acid composition (%) in the SWISS-PROT Protein Sequence data bank
- Antigenicity value X 10
- Atomic weight ratio of hetero elements in end group to C in side chain
- Average area buried on transfer from standard state to folded protein
- Average flexibility index
- Average surrounding hydrophobicity
- Bulkiness
- Conformational parameter for alpha helix (computed from 29 proteins)
- · Conformational parameter for alpha helix
- Conformational parameter for beta-sheet (computed from 29 proteins)
- Conformational parameter for beta-sheet
- Conformational parameter for beta-turn (computed from 29 proteins)
- Conformational parameter for beta-turn
- Conformational parameter for coil
- Conformational preference for antiparallel beta strand
- Conformational preference for parallel beta strand
- Conformational preference for total beta strand (antiparallel+parallel)
- Free energy of transfer from inside to outside of a globular protein
- Hydration potential (kcal/mole) at 25 C

- Hydropathicity
- Hydrophilicity scale derived from HPLC peptide retention times
- Hydrophobic constants derived from HPLC peptide retention times
- Hydrophobicity (delta G1/2 cal)
- Hydrophobicity (free energy of transfer to surface in kcal/mole)
- Hydrophobicity indices at ph 3.4 determined by HPLC
- Hydrophobicity scale (contact energy derived from 3D data)
- Hydrophobicity scale (pi-r)
- Hydrophobicity scale (pi-r)
- Hydrophobicity scale based on free energy of transfer (kcal/mole)
- Mean fractional area loss (f) (average area buried/standard state area)
- Mobilities of amino acids on chromatography paper (RF)
- Molar fraction (%) of 2001 buried residues
- Molar fraction (%) of 3220 accessible residues
- Molecular weight of each amino acid
- Normalized consensus hydrophobicity scale
- Normalized frequency for alpha helix
- Normalized frequency for beta-sheet
- Number of codon(s) coding for each amino acid in universal genetic code
- Optimized matching hydrophobicity (OMH)
- Overall amino acid composition (%)
- Polarity (p)
- Polarity
- Proportion of residues 95% buried (in 12 proteins)
- Recognition factors
- Refractivity
- Relative mutability of amino acids (Ala=100)
- Retention coefficient in HFBA
- Retention coefficient in HPLC, pH 2.1
- Retention coefficient in HPLC, pH 7.4
- Retention coefficient in TFA

ProtScale Algorithm

All of the ProtScale analyses use one algorithm:

- for average method and
- for Weight Method.

where,

 D_i -plot value in i^{th} position

W- window size

 S_i - amino acid in *i*th position

$$D_{i} = \frac{\frac{W}{2}}{W} f(S_{i+j})$$

$$D_{i} = \frac{\frac{W}{2}}{W} f(S_{i+j}) \times Wh_{j}$$

f()- coefficient for amino acid from table of coefficients (specified for each of analysis)

 Wh_i - linear weight coefficient

Advanced Analyses: BLOCKS, ProSite, PFAM and Proteolytic Cleavage

To launch an advanced analysis for the protein molecule displayed in the BioAnnotator workspace, choose **Analyses > BioAnnotator > <analysis type>** from the menu. Analysis Monitor opens for the molecule with the appropriate parameters interface for the chosen analysis. For more information on performing advanced analyses in Analysis Monitor, see Chapter 34.

Note: The advanced analyses available in BioAnnotator also become available from the Vector NTI Molecule Viewing window, assuming both BioAnnotator and Vector NTI are licensed.

Adding Custom Protein Analyses

Specific values are used in the calculation of the various protein analyses. These values differ depending on the particular analysis and are stored in small text files having a .pa2 extension. All .pa2 analysis files are stored in the Analyses subdirectory in the Vector NTI Suite directory. The name of the analysis corresponds with the name of the .pa2 file.

For example, the Bulkiness analysis is characterized in the Bulkiness.pa2 file as follows:

```
[general] author=Zimmerman J.M., Eliezer N., Simha R.
```

```
comment=Last modified 15/Mar/1996 by ELG
reference=J. Theor. Biol. 21:170-201(1968).
unique=s30
[data]
values=11.5,14.28,12.82,11.68,13.46,14.45,13.57,3.4,13.69,21.4,21.4,15.71,
16.25,19.8,17.43,9.47,15.77,21.67,18.03,21.57
```

The [general] section describes the attributes of the analysis and the [data] section contains the list of values used for calculating the analysis. Values are listed according to the alphabetical order of the acid coefficients.

You can create your own custom protein analysis by modifying the values in one of the existing .pa2 files using a plain text editor, such as Notepad. Once modified, the new .pa2 file should be saved in the Analyses subdirectory under a new name that corresponds to the new analysis type. If BioAnnotator is open at the time the new .pa2 file is created, it must be closed and reopened before the new analysis is recognized.

Other BioAnnotator Features

The following features can be performed in the BioAnnotator Display window. Details specific to BioAnnotator are outlined here. For more information, refer to Chapter 3.

- Printing from BioAnnotator
- Copying data from BioAnnotator
- Exporting molecule data

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual
C H A P T E R

CONTIGEXPRESS: PROJECT EXPLORER

Introduction

ContigExpress is a program for assembling and editing sequencing fragments, either in the form of text sequences or chromatograms from automated sequencers, into longer contiguous sequences or "contigs."

ContigExpress uses CAP3 (Huang and Madan, 1999; Huang, 1996) to drive the assembly process. This widely-used sequence assembly program can use quality value scores (QVs) in ends trimming, contig construction and consensus calculation. It also produces excellent results when QVs are unavailable. It is capable of using forward-reverse constraints to evaluate contigs, a feature that helps in accurate placement of repetitive sequence fragments. It can also identify and discard chimeric sequencing reads that frequently result from lane tracking errors. One of the major strengths of CAP3 is its consensus generation algorithm based on weighted sum of QVs.

Work in ContigExpress takes place in a ContigExpress Project, a file where you store fragments, their assemblies, and assembly options related to your current task. In ContigExpress, fragments can be edited directly, with the chromatograms in full view. Changes are tracked and a history is maintained. The contigs generated are then saved and managed as GenBank, EMBL or FASTA files. They can be exported into other applications of Vector NTI Advance for further analysis or visualization.

Launching ContigExpress

To launch ContigExpress from the Start menu, select Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > ContigExpress. To launch ContigExpress from Vector NTI Database Explorer or other Vector NTI Advance applications, select Assemble Menu > ContigExpress – Assemble Selected Molecules or Assemble Menu > ContigExpress – Open New Assembly Project.

Features of the ContigExpress Workspace

ContigExpress consists of three component windows:

- ConfigExpress Project Explorer: This window is the first window you see when you launch ContigExpress. In this window you open, save, and close the projects and set the assembly options. Project Explorer is also where you can import, organize, and assemble your sequencing fragments.
- Fragment Viewer: This is the workspace where you work with individual fragments and chromatograms.
- Contig Window: Contig Window is the place where you review and edit contigs.

Note: Fragment and Contig Windows are covered in Chapter 31.

CE Project Explorer

Project Explorer, similar to the Vector NTI Database Explorer, is central to the management of sequencing projects and assembly of fragments into contiguous sequences. When first opened, the project window is empty. The screenshots in this and the following two chapters use sequencing fragments supplied with your installation. Select **Project > Add Fragments > From ABI file** from the Project window menu. In the Open dialog box, navigate to folder HS354_C02 (located in C:\Program Files\Invitrogen\Vector NTI Suite 10\Demo Projects if a default Vector NTI Advance 10 installation has been performed). Open the folder and the ABI subfolder inside, select all the fragments and click the **Open** button.

Elements of Project Explorer

The CE Project Explorer window (Figure 30.1) consists of a menu bar, a toolbar, a Tree Pane on the left and a List Pane on the right side of the window.

🚔 ContigExpress Project - <u< th=""><th>ntitled *></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th>_ 🗆 🗙</th></u<>	ntitled *>				_ 🗆 🗙
Project Edit View Assemble	Align Analyses Tools Help				
	. 🕅 🖻 📭 🔤 🗡 💣			i 🗅 💩 🗞	\$?
History View	32 fragment(s) in project				
Fragments (MAIN)	Name	Length	Original length	5'Trimmed bases	3'Trimmed bases 🔺
		1326	1326	0	0
	➡ HS354_C02_M13F_0.b	1310	1310	0	0
		983	983	0	0
	➡ HS354_C02_7510_R_0.g	968	968	0	0
		975	975	0	0
	➡ H5354_C02_7035_R_0.g	974	974	0	0
		982	982	0	0
	□ H5354_C02_655_R_0.g	995	995	0	0
	➡ HS354_C02_6467_R_0.g	985	985	0	0
		980	980	0	0
	➡ HS354_C02_6031_R_0.g	988	988	0	0
		990	990	0	0 🚽
	➡ H5354_C02_5528_R_0.g	961	961	0	0
	□ HS354_C02_5378_F_0.b	948	948	0	0
	➡ HS354_C02_5061_R_0.g	940	940	0	0
	□ HS354_C02_4907_F_0.b	954	954	0	0
	□ H5354_C02_484_F_0.b	1002	1002	0	0
	➡ HS354_C02_4566_R_0.g	990	990	0	0
	□ H5354_C02_4417_F_0.b	1162	1162	0	0
		994	994	0	0 🗾
	<u> </u>				
32 fragments					

Figure 30.1 CE Project Explorer interface

As you are introduced to various operations in the chapters covering ContigExpress, the toolbar buttons are displayed as needed. Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function. Hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button. Many toolbar commands can also be launched from the menu bar or from a shortcut menu.

The ContigExpress Project Explorer window is divided into two panes: a Tree Pane on the left and a List Pane on the right. As a new project is created or an existing ContigExpress project is opened, the fragment and Assembly folders are listed in the Tree Pane. In Contents View, folders can be opened (expanded) or closed (collapsed) as in the other applications of Vector NTI.

Status bars in Project Explorer show information about the items in the Tree and List panes.

The status bar above the display panes shows the current Tree Pane view mode and the number of items contained in the selected project in the Tree Pane (Figure 30.2).

The status bar at the bottom of the Project Explorer shows the amount and type of currently selected item(s). It can be configured to show one of several properties of a selected single item in the List pane (View menu > Options > Status Bar tab, or left mouse-click on column header).

🚔 ContigExpress Project - <u< th=""><th>ntitled *></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th>_ 🗆 🗵</th></u<>	ntitled *>				_ 🗆 🗵
Project Edit View Assemble	Align Analyses Tools Help				
	. 🖉 🗈 🛍 🌵 🗙 🖆 🖿 🎫 📰	<i>a a</i> c te) 🗿 💩 🕲	<i>}</i> ?	
History View	33 item(s) in 'Assembly 1'				
Fragments (MAIN)	Name	Length	Original length	5'Trimmed bases	3'Trimmed bases
Assembly 1	Contig 1	8255			·t
_	±∞HS354_C02_7360_F_0.b	962	975	13	0
	±∞HS354_C02_6885_F_0.b	955	982	25	2
	±∞H5354_C02_7510_R_0.g	950	968	16	2
	±∞H5354_C02_6382_F_0.b	960	980	14	6
	±∞H5354_C02_7035_R_0.g	951	974	23	0
	±∞H5354_C02_5891_F_0.b	975	990	14	1
	±∞H5354_C02_6467_R_0.g	958	985	25	2
	±∞H5354_C02_5378_F_0.b	934	948	14	0
	±∞H5354_C02_6031_R_0.g	960	988	24	4
	±∞HS354_C02_4907_F_0.b	933	954	21	0
	±∞H5354_C02_5528_R_0.g	927	961	30	4
	2mHS354_C02_5061_R_0.g	821	940	22	97
	±mHS354_C02_3924_F_0.b	915	973	58	0
	¹ / ₂	732	990	16	242
	±∞HS354_C02_3422_F_0.b	915	995	12	68
	±∞HS354_C02_4064_R_0.g	936	994	51	7
	±∞HS354_C02_2947_F_0.b	940	978	16	22
	±mHS354_C02_3572_R_0.g	957	985	28	0
	±∞H5354_C02_2450_F_0.b	935	959	13	11
	±∞H5354_C02_2600_R_0.g	927	960	21	12
	\$_H5354_C02_2105_R_0.g	911	940	26	3
	\$_H5354_C02_975_F_0.b	960	983	21	2
	\$_H5354_C02_1630_R_0.g	949	970	20	1
	\$∞H5354_C02_484_F_0.b	990	1002	12	0
	±wHS354_C02_1124_R_0.g	968	981	13	0
	*∞H5354_C02_M13R_0.g	1300	1326	26	0
	#==H5354_C02_M13F_0.b	1297	1310	13	0
	[‡] ∞HS354_C02_655_R_0.g	823	995	172	0
	#==H5354_C02_4417_F_0.b	1162	1162	0	0
	#==H5354_C02_3072_R_0.g	1084	1084	0	0
	#==H5354_C02_1958_F_0.b	1193	1193	0	0
	[‡] ∞HS354_C02_1480_F_0.b	1163	1163	0	0
1 1 contig	1				
					, - ///

Figure 30.2 Contents of the assembly selected in Tree Pane are displayed in List Pane

Tree Pane

The Tree Pane displays the general structure of your ContigExpress Project in either of two viewing modes: History or Content view. The contents of each pane are displayed and manipulated similar to other Windows applications, such as Vector NTI Database Explorer or Windows Explorer.

The following types of items can be found in the Tree pane:

- Est of all fragments in the project
- 🗐 Assembly of fragments
- 🗟 Contig
- Image: Second state in the second
- Fragment not included in an assembly.

History View



Figure 30.3 Tree Pane History view

The root of the tree is always the list of all fragments existing in the project. The tree nodes are assemblies that have descendant assemblies, and the leaves are the assemblies that have no descendants.

Content View

Click the **Content View** button (Bis) to display a "flat" list of all assemblies in the project without displaying their mutual relationships. In Content View, you can display in the Tree Pane the contigs in the assemblies and non-included fragments by clicking on the + button at the left of assembly name.

As in the History View, the root of the tree always list all of the fragments existing in the project. The tree nodes are the assemblies. Contigs and fragments that were attempted to be included but were unsuccessful are listed under the assemblies. Fragments successfully included in the assemblies are listed inside the Contig Folders (Figure 30.4).



Figure 30.4 Contigs and fragments that were not successfully included are listed under the assemblies

Viewing Mode	Assemblies	Contigs	Fragments in Assemblies	Fragments not Included in Assemblies
History View	Yes	Yes	No	No
Contents View	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes

The following table summarizes the contents of each of the viewing modes:

Table 30.1 Viewing modes

List Pane

The List Pane shows the contents of an item currently selected in the Tree pane. When the Fragments (MAIN) is selected in the Tree Pane, the List Pane displays all fragments in the project (Figure 30.5).

🚔 ContigExpress Project - <untitle< th=""><th>ed *></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th>_ </th><th></th></untitle<>	ed *>				_	
Project Edit View Assemble Align	Analyses Tools <u>H</u> elp					
	j 🗈 📽 🍬 🗙 💐 🗗 🕞 🎫 🥅 🧕		1 💩 🚯 💖)		
Content View	33 item(s) in 'Assembly 1'					
Fragments (MAIN) Gasembly 1 Gasembly	Name Marie Marie </th <th>Length 6255 962 955 950 950 951 975 958 934 960 934 960 933 927 821 927 821 915 732 915 936 940 940 957 933 927 821 935 935 935 935 935 935 935 935</th> <th>Original length 975 982 982 986 980 974 990 985 948 986 954 961 940 973 990 995 993 994 973 995 994 995</th> <th>STrimmed bases 13 25 16 12 13</th> <th>3'Trimmed bases 0 2 2 6 0 1 2 0 4 4 97 0 242 68 7 22 0 7 22 0 11</th> <th></th>	Length 6255 962 955 950 950 951 975 958 934 960 934 960 933 927 821 927 821 915 732 915 936 940 940 957 933 927 821 935 935 935 935 935 935 935 935	Original length 975 982 982 986 980 974 990 985 948 986 954 961 940 973 990 995 993 994 973 995 994 995	STrimmed bases 13 25 16 12 13	3'Trimmed bases 0 2 2 6 0 1 2 0 4 4 97 0 242 68 7 22 0 7 22 0 11	
ļ	\$mH5354_C02_2600_R_0.g	927	960	21	12	_
1 contig						- //

Figure 30.5 List Pane displays contents of item selected in Tree Pane

When an assembly is selected in the Tree Pane, the List Pane contains:

- the contigs contained in the assembly
- the fragments that comprise contigs
- fragments that were considered in the assembly process, but were not included in the final assembly.

The following types of items can be found in a List Pane (see Figure 30.2). Note that the symbols to the left of each list item identifies its place in the project:

- 🖻 Contig
- Lite contig A contig generated under Lite Contig mode, in which imported chromatogram data is no longer viewable (page 450).
- Eragment not considered in an assembly
- Image: Second state of the second
- Image: Fragment considered in an assembly but not used in a contig (grayed out symbol)

A fragment not included in a contig contains no other items; therefore, nothing is shown in the List pane when it is selected in the Tree pane.

🚔 ContigExpress Project - <untitle< th=""><th>:d *></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></untitle<>	:d *>					
Project Edit View Assemble Align	Analyses Tools <u>H</u> elp					
	i 🗅 🛍 🍬 🗡 🎁 🖿 📰 📰	<i>a a</i> ⁶ †6	🗇 👌 🗞 🕅			
Content View	25 item(s) in 'Contig 1'					
Fragments (MAIN)	Name	Length	Original length	5'Trimmed bases	3'Trimmed bases	
Assembly 1	2mH5354_C02_7360_F_0.b	962	975	13	0	
Contig 1	2mHS354_C02_6885_F_0.b	955	982	25	2	
*= H5354_C02_655_R_0.g	2mHS354_C02_7510_R_0.g	950	968	16	2	
	2mH5354_C02_6382_F_0.b	960	980	14	6	
	±mHS354_C02_7035_R_0.g	951	974	23	0	
HS354_CU2_3072_R_U.g	2mHS354_C02_5891_F_0.b	975	990	14	1	
H5354_C02_4417_F_0.0 H5354_C02_M125_0.b	±mHS354_C02_6467_R_0.g	958	985	25	2	
	2mHS354_C02_5378_F_0.b	934	948	14	0	
	2mH5354_C02_6031_R_0.g	960	988	24	4	
	2mH5354_C02_4907_F_0.b	933	954	21	0	
	2mHS354_C02_5528_R_0.g	927	961	30	4	
	2mHS354_C02_5061_R_0.g	821	940	22	97	
	±mH5354_C02_3924_F_0.b	915	973	58	0	
	. uesex cos xeee n o ∞	700	000	12	242	-
1 contig						1/1

Figure 30.6 A contig contains its fragments

A fragment not included in a assembly contains no other items; therefore, nothing is shown in the List pane when it is selected in the Tree pane.

On the toolbar, the List Format buttons control the list display. In the first three modes, only item icons and names are displayed.

List Pane Formats

Button	Action
<u>0</u>	View the List pane in Large Icons mode
6- 6-	View the List pane in Small Icons mode
0-5- 0-0- 0-0-	View the List pane in List mode
	View the List pane in Details mode. In this mode, you can select the properties shown in column for each item type.

Table 30.2 List Pane format options

List Pane Filters

The next group of buttons filters data displayed in the List pane.

Button	Action
BI I	Enable the Show Contigs filter in List pane
₽ 	Enable the Expand Contigs filter in List pane
*	Enable the Show Unassembled Fragments filter in List pane
	Enable the Show Other Fragments filter in List pane

Table 30.3 List Pane filter options

Column Dialog

A Column Dialog (Figure 30.7) can be called up by a right-click on the column header bar:

Columns			×
Details View			,
Available Fields:		Displayed Fields:	
Comment Date created		Name	Urder
Date modified		Length Original length	Move <u>U</u> p
Fragments		5'Trimmed bases 3'Trimmed bases	Move <u>D</u> own
Status			
lype	~<		Alignment
			C Lerr
			C Center
Minimum number of over	lanning fr	aments to calo unambigu	
Save the last viewer	lassembl	agments to calc unambigu In	my. [*
	- 2000 mD	<i>,</i>	
10		Cancel App	Help
		DPP	

Figure 30.7 Column dialog for configuring appearance of List Pane

The List Pane column fields can be selected or de-selected in the Details View Tab. Order and alignment can be adjusted accordingly. Standard display fields are: Name, Length, Original Length, 5' Trimmed Bases, and 3' Trimmed Bases.

The value of "Minimum number of overlapping fragments to calculate unambiguity" dictates that unambiguity calculation algorithm consider only those segments of contig that have more then the specified number of overlapping fragments.

Sorting List Pane Columns

Objects are described in the List Pane by fields in columns. Sort column objects by clicking on the property column headings (in Details mode). Reverse the order by clicking on the same column header for the second time or by selecting **View > Arrange Icons**.

Note that when contigs are constructed in the Full Contig mode, all component fragments can be opened in the Fragment Window from within List Pane. However, when in the Lite Contig mode, the component fragments cannot be opened because the linkage between the fragments and contigs are not retained. The choice between Full Contig vs Lite Contig mode can be selected in the Lite Settings Tab in the Assembly Setup dialog box.

General Project Explorer Operations

Opening or Creating a Project

Opening an Existing ContigExpress Project

To open a ContigExpress (.cep) project from a disk or other location, select **Project > Open**

Project, click the **Open Project** button () or use CTRL-O. You can also drag and drop a project file from a folder in Windows Explorer into the ContigExpress Project workspace.

To open a ContigExpress (.cep) project from a disk or other location, select **Project > Open**

Project, click the **Open Project** button () or use CTRL-O. You can also drag and drop a project file from Database Explorer into ContigExpress.

In the Open Project dialog box, browse the folders available on your computer and select an existing project file (extension .cep). Select the project file and click **Open**:

Open		? ×
Look in: [Demo Projects 💽 🗢 🔁 📸 🖬 🗸	
C0	2	
Demoproje		
File name:	DemoProject.cep Oper	۱
Files of type:	ContigExpress project (*.cep)	el

Figure 30.8 Open project dialog, browsed to VectorNTI Demo Projects folder

If you get an error message, the selected project file probably has an invalid structure. If a project is currently open in the CE Project Explorer and it has been changed since its last save, you will be asked at this point to save the project. If you choose not to open a new project at this stage, to be click **Cancel**.

For your convenience, the four most recently opened projects are listed at the bottom of the Project menu option. Select **Project > <#><previously opened project name>** to open one of those listed.

After successful loading, the panes of the Project Explorer are updated to show the new project.

Importing and Exporting in ACE Format

ContigExpress can import an assembly project in ACE format. In a blank ContigExpress Project workspace, select Project > Add Fragments > From Phrap ACE file and choose the ACE file in the standard Windows file open dialog.

To export in ACE format an assembly from a ContigExpress project, select the assembly of interest in the Tree Pane. Select "Export Assembly to ACE" item from the context sensitive shortcut menu, invoked with a right mouse-button click. The name of the ACE file for the assembly can be specified in the file open dialog.

Importing Fragments to a Project

To import a fragments to a project, from the CE Project window menu, select **Project > Add Fragments > From <type> file...** or from the shortcut menu launched by right-clicking on *Frag ments (MAIN)* in the Tree Pane of the CE Project window, select **Add fragments > From <type> file**. Select the fragment file names in the Import Sequence From dialog box and click **Open**.

Alternatively, select one or several files/fragments in the Windows Explorer or Vector NTI Explorer and drag them to ContigExpress Project Explorer and drop them to any of the Project Explorer panes. Upon dropping, they are added to the project. Similarly, you can use copy and paste.

When importing a large number, say 1000, of fragments from individual files, you should select **Project > Add Fragments > Folder of Fragments.** This helps you to get around a limit set by Microsoft Windows on the number of files one can open simultaneously.

Accepted Fragment File Types

Files must be in one of the following supported file formats:

- GenBank (*.gb)
- FASTA (*.txt)
- ABI (*.abi)
- AB1 (*.ab1)
- EMBL (*.txt)
- Staden SCF (*.scf)
- ALF (*.alf)
- plain text sequence (*.txt)
- MegaBASE (.esd)
- Phred (.seq)
- Phrap ACE (.ace)

(Note that if sequence files were passed through an application that renamed them using proprietary file extensions, they may not be visible in their directory when specifying a supported extension suffix (e.g., .ab1). In most cases, simply change the Files of Type setting in the Import dialog to All Files (*.*).)

The imported fragment(s) are added to the project and the list of all fragments is updated.

Sequence chromatograms can be imported through AB1, SCF and ESD formats. Displaying chromatograms during review and editing is obviously preferable. However, when dealing with a large project, say, with more than a few thousands of fragments, computer resources may become a limiting factor. To help meet this challenge, ContigExpress provides two alternatives: one is to discard the chromatograms upon importing; the other is to assemble using Lite Contig mode instead of the Full Contig mode.

Discarding chromatograms can be selected with the "Discard chromatogram data on import" check box in the Lite Settings tab of the Assembly Setup dialog box. This will save about 50 K of memory on average for each read of 500 bases length.

In Lite Contig mode, chromatograms associated with the fragments are discarded and edits performed on the fragments contained in contigs are not applied to the individual fragment files as in the Full Contig mode. Usage of Lite Contig mode reduces the demand for computer memory tremendously and is thus recommended for assembling large number of fragments. ContigExpress provides a warning message when you try to assemble more than 500 fragments in Full Contig mode because of the projected requirement for computer resources during contig editing, if all fragments are assembled into one contig. Note that this number is based on our rough estimation and is definitely not a magic one and can vary in individual installations. It does NOT mean that ContigExpress cannot assemble more than 500 fragments in Full Contig mode. Users are recommended to experiment initially with this and find a number appropriate under your context. When an appropriate number is defined, you can set the controls on Assembly Setup > Lite Settings tab so that ContigExpress operates in Full Contig mode, but automatically switches to Lite contigs when the number is exceeded.

For Lite Contig mode, please refer to *Lite Settings Tab* on page 450.

Finding Fragments

Launch the Find Fragment dialog box by choosing **Edit > Find Fragment** from the Project Explorer menu or by pressing **CTRL+ F** on the keyboard. The Find dialog box displays (Figure 30.9):

Find Fragment	×
Object name	Find
 Match whole word only Match case Search area Current assembly only From current assembly C Entire project 	Close
Advanced search options	
Search fragments only	
Fragment length from 0 to 0	
Contig length from 0 to 0	

Figure 30.9 Find Fragment dialog

Type the object name in the Object Name box and set the search parameters:

- Match whole word only If checked, finds the object only if the entire object name is entered in the Object Name box.
- Match case If checked, finds the object only if the entire object name is entered in the Object Name box in case-sensitive fashion.
- Search area Specify the area of the project you want to search: the assembly currently highlighted only, from the current assembly forward, or the entire project.
- Advanced search options Allows you to search fragments only and/or fragments/ contigs of a specified length only. Once you have entered the object name and set the

search conditions appropriately, click the **Find** button to begin the search. Search results display in the lower portion of the Find dialog box (Figure 30.10):

Find Fragment			×
Object <u>n</u> ame M13	BR		<u> </u>
│ Match <u>w</u> hole w │ Match <u>c</u> ase	word only Search C Curre C From C Entir	area ent assembly only current assembly e project	Close
-Advanced search	options		
🔲 Search <u>f</u> ragme	nts only		
🔲 Fragment lengt	h from 🛛	to 0	
		to la	
Contig length fr	om JU	w lu	
Search Results: 1	om JU objects found	w <u>Ju</u>	
Contig length fr Search Results: 1	om U objects found	Status	Length
Contig length fr Search Results: 1 Name Assembly 1 *= HS354	om JU objects found Type Fragment	Status Not assembled	Length
Contig length fr Search Results: 1 Name Assembly 1 I HS354	om U objects found Type Fragment	Status Not assembled	Length 1300
Contig length fr	om U objects found Type Fragment	Status Not assembled	Length 1300
Contig length fr	om U objects found Type Fragment	Status Not assembled	Length 1300

Figure 30.10 Search results in Find Fragment dialog

Double-click on a fragment name in the results section of the Find dialog box to highlight the fragment in its assembly in the Project Explorer window.

Importing Phred Quality Values

You can load Phred quality values for fragments into your project. In ContigExpress, these values are used in sequence clipping calculation before assembly (see below), consensus determination (see Chapter 31, Contig Viewer Viewing options) or in fragment trimming (see Chapter 32). For more information on Phred quality values, see http://www.phrap.com/phred.

To load Phred quality values for existing fragments, right-click on a fragment listed in the Fragments Pane of the Project window and choose **Load Phred Quality Values** from the shortcut menu. In the Open dialog box, navigate to the Phred Quality Score File (.qual), highlight it and click the **Open** button.

AB1 and SCF files may contain QVs. Upon import, these QVs are parsed into ContigExpress. When there are QV files named as xxx.ab1.qual or xxx.scf.qual, the QVs from the .qual file replace the QVs from the corresponding .ab1 or .scf files in the ContigExpress project. Fragment names must match between the .qual and sequence file and the pair must contain an equal number of elements.

Importing a Directory of Fragment Files

You can import a directory containing multiple sequencing files (in supported file formats) using the **Import Folder of Fragments** command. To execute this command, choose **Project > Add**

Fragments > Import Folder of Fragments from the menu in the ContigExpress Project window.

Importing FASTA Files

You can import one or more, or a whole folder of FASTA files into a ContigExpress project. If there are .qual files in the same folder, ContigExpress automatically imports the corresponding Quality Values (QVs) based on the matching file names. For example, if the sequence file is named abc.fsa, then abc.fsa.qual will be imported along with the corresponding sequence file (abc.fsa) and values assigned to the respective bases.

For multi-sequence FASTA files, the corresponding file with a .qual suffix will be recognized just as the single-sequence files. Values are assigned to the respective bases in each of the fragments. One extra requirement is that the first word between the ">"at the line start and the first white space on each header line has to match for each sequence, in the sequence file and .qual files.

Selection Techniques

Selection techniques described here are unique to ContigExpress. General selection techniques are described in Chapter 3.

Tree Pane

In the Tree Pane, click on an item to select it. (Only one item can be selected at a time.) Change the selection by clicking the item with the left mouse button or by moving the selection bar with the cursor buttons on the keyboard.

List Pane

The List Pane allows multiple item selections:

- To select a range of items: SHIFT + CLICK on the first and last item in the list
- To select non-contiguous items: CTRL + CLICK on each item
- To select a group of contiguous items in the List Pane, click anywhere in the blank area of the pane. Drag a box around the files you want to select.
- To select all the items in the List Pane, right-click on any item in the list and choose Select All from the Edit menu, the shortcut menu, or use the keystroke CTRL + A.

When you select an item in the Tree Pane, the contents of the List Pane are updated to show the contents of the newly selected item. The upper status bar is updated as well. The lower status bar reflects selection changes in both panes of the Project Explorer.

To invert a current selection in the List pane (that is, make all currently unselected items selected and vice versa), select **Edit Menu > Invert Selection**.

Assembling Selected Items

Select at least two items in the List Pane, and choose Assemble > Assemble Selected Frag-

ments, or click the Assemble Selected button (🔩).

If one or several contigs are selected for assembly, the sequences of all fragments that comprise the contig(s) are used as fragment sequences for the assembly process. Since assembling is a lengthy process, a progress dialog box (Figure 30.11) appears showing you the assembly steps. You can abort the process at any time by clicking the **Cancel** button:

Assembly progress	
Assembling	

Figure 30.11 Assembly in progress

If a contig cannot be created from the selected fragments with the selected setup options, you will be informed.

If the assembly succeeds, a new "child" assembly is created inside the current assembly. The selection in the Tree Pane moves to the newly created assembly and the List Pane shows its contents. At the end of the assembly, an Assembly Completion message displays the duration of the assembly, the number of contigs constructed and the total number of fragments used.

Assembly of a Large Project:

Although ContigExpress does not have an exact upper bound for project size, your project size may be limited by the available computer resources in terms of both hardware and software (such as operating system). When you attempt to assemble more than 500 fragments in Full Contig mode, ContigExpress generates a warning message to bring this matter to your attention (Figure 30.12).

Warning
You are attempting to assemble 3862 fragments in Full Contig mode!
Depending on your computer resources, it may be difficult to edit contigs created in Full Contig mode containing more than 500 fragments. This is especially the case when performing multiple assemblies (i.e. under different conditions) in a single project. If you wish to proceed anyway, click OK.
You can choose to assemble the fragments in Lite Contig mode. This will not use the chromatograms and will result in significant improvements in performance. Click CANCEL and choose the Lite Contig option on the Assembly Setup > Lite Settings tab.
Do not show this warning again.
Cancel

Figure 30.12 Assembling a large contig in Full Contig mode places heavy demands on graphics units resources and makes editing in the Contig Viewer difficult.

If you still want to proceed with the current assembly in Full Contig mode, click the OK button. (If you check "Do Not show me this message again" ContigExpress will not generate this warning message again.) If you do encounter an "out of memory" situation, you should consider assembly in Lite Contig Mode (*Lite Settings Tab* on page 450). Many a times the "out of memory" problem occurs due to the presence of too many assemblies in the ContigExpress Project. In this case, you are advised to dissolve some of these assemblies, save the project and restart ContigExpress. Limiting the number of assemblies in a project is always a good idea with large projects. If you decide to use Lite Contig Mode but don't want to lose the linkage between your

contigs and fragments, you can discard chromatograms (page 451) and trade the ability to invoke chromatograms for a larger capacity.

Setting Assembly Setup Parameters

When you create or open a Contig Express project, a default set of assembly parameters is used for assembling contigs in the project. To change these values, click the **Assembly Setup**

button (1) or select **Assemble > Assembly Setup**, opening the Assembly Setup dialog box (Figure 30.13):

Assembly Setup		×
Assembly Clipping Overl	ap Contig Description Lite Settings	
	Use Quality Values (QVs) Detect Chimeric Reads Use Forward-Reverse Constraints	•
F/R Constraints		- I
Forward Reverse	Delimiter Add	
s r x y	Min. Dist. 0 Delete	
	Max. Dist. 6000	
Default		
OK	Cancel <u>L</u> oad <u>S</u> ave.	

Figure 30.13 Assembly Setup -- Assembly tab

Loading and Saving Assembly Setup Settings

Click the Load and Save buttons to read and save any set of parameters from Assembly Setup. Dialog boxes open allowing navigation to an existing parameter file to be loaded, or to a folder where a new parameter file will be saved. After loading an existing parameter file, all fields of the dialog box are updated.

Assembly Tab

There are three main check boxes to control some important aspects of the sequence assembly process: Use Quality Values, Detect Chimeric Reads and Use Forward-Reverse Constraints. These options are explained in Table 30.4.

Assembly Options	
Use Quality Values	When available, base quality values (QVs) are used to trim poor-quality ends, compute overlaps between reads, con- struct multiple sequence alignments, and generate a con- sensus sequence. Use of such scores is optional; when they are unavailable, assembly will still proceed. Default ON.

Detect Chimeric Reads	Chimeric reads consist of pieces from different parts of the sequence region, usually generated as artifacts. They are identified based on overlap conflicts and are excluded from the construction of contigs. The mechanism of detecting chi- meric reads can be enabled or disabled with "Detect Chi- meric Reads" check box. Default: ON
Use Forward-Reverse Con- straints	When reads from both ends of subclones are available, con- straints are satisfied if they lie on opposite strands of a dou- ble-stranded DNA molecule and within a specified minimum and maximum range. This corrects assembly errors due to misplacement of reads containing repeat sequences and minimizes occurrence of singletons. A few unmet constraints are allowed. However, if a sufficient number of constraints are not satisfied by a join AND they all suggest an alternative one supported by the overlap information, the alternative join will be made. For most small- and moderate-sized projects, it is not necessary to use this feature, unless in a situation involving large region of repeats. Default: OFF.

Table 30.4 Assembly Options

The Assembly Tab contains some detailed settings related to the use of forward-reverse constraints. All these settings are disabled when Use Forward-Reverse Constraints is unchecked, and are enabled and editable when checked.

Forward & reverse reads must be named identically up to the delimiter (default = dot), and must contain paired suffixes thereafter (e.g., .s & .r or .x & .y). Suffixes may be added and deleted. Only the letter immediately following the delimiter is recognized as the suffix. Other letters following it, if any, do not contribute to the identity as forward vs reverse end sequence; however, they do distinguish one forward/reverse pair from another, thus making two sequence pairs with the matching reverse/forward end sequence. Minimum & maximum distances may also be edited.

- **CAUTION** Take care when defining file names at the sequencer, especially when a project is loaded in batches over several days. Entries with misplaced suffixes (e.g. <filename>F.<projectName>, instead of <filename>.F<projectName>) will be overlooked by the constraints feature, although they may be included in an assembly.
 - Min. Dist. Minimum Distance between the forward and reverse reads. Default: 0.
 - Max. Dist. Maximum Distance between the forward and reverse reads. Default: 6000.
 - Delimiter the letter separating main part and suffix part in read names. In cases that there are multiple occurrences of the designated delimiter, the rightmost delimiter is selected.

The values of minimum and maximum distance are uniformly applied to all sequence pairs.

Clipping Tab

Sequence clipping based on quality and similarity is an essential step in the overlap computation and assembly process and ensures validity and correctness. You can control and fine-tune the clipping process through adjusting the parameters on the Clipping Tab (Figure 30.14). Note that the clipping is irreversible and iterative within each project. When multiple assemblies are made within a project, each round of clipping applies to the sequences that had been clipped in the last round of assembly. This implies that a later attempt to assemble may affect the existing assemblies. In such cases, ContigExpress generates a warning message (Figure 30.15). If you

2

choose to proceed, click on the Yes button. The affected contigs will be dissolved. If you choose not to proceed, click on the No button and the current assembly will be stopped.

Assembly 9	Setup				×
Assembly	Clipping	0verlap	Contig Desc	ription Lite Settin	gs
				Use Automati	c Clipping 🔽
			Μ	latch Score Factor	2
			Misn	natch Score Factor	-5
			(Gap Penalty Factor	6
			Quality	Cutoff for Clipping	12
				Clipping Ranges	250
		Min. Numbe	er of Good Re	ads at Clip Position	3
Defa	ult				
		ОК	Cancel	Load	<u>S</u> ave

Figure 30.14 Assembly Setup – Clipping tab

🐮 🖪 Contig	JExpress
?	Some of the fragments you have selected are being used in other assemblies!
~	If these fragments will be trimmed during the current assembly, all existing contigs containing these fragments will be dissolved.
	Do you want to proceed anyway?

Figure 30.15 Trimming fragments in subsequent assemblies may dissolve earlier assemblies in which they are contained.

- Use Automatic Clipping –Ends of sequencing reads are usually unreliable and low in QV values. CAP3 comes with a mechanism to detect and clip these poor end regions based on sequence similarities with or without QVs. Clipping is done before the computation of overlaps. Note: trimming is available in ContigExpress, in addition to CAP3 clipping, and can be carried out before loading input sequences into assembly projects. Default ON.
- Match Score Factor Also used in calculating Similarity Score for computing overlaps, but only editable in the Clipping Tab. Match Score Factor is a positive integer to award each match between two bases from the pair of sequences being compared during the banded Smith-Waterman alignment. Default: 2.

- Mismatch Score Factor Also used in calculating Similarity Score for computing overlaps, but only editable in the Clipping Tab. Mismatch Score Factor is a negative integer to penalize each mismatch between two bases from the pair of sequences being compared during the banded Smith-Waterman alignment. Default: -5.
- **Gap Penalty Factor** –Also used in the computation of overlaps, but only editable in the Clipping Tab. Gap Penalty Factor is a positive integer to penalize each gap extended during the banded Smith-Waterman alignment. Default: 6.
- Quality Cutoff for Clipping Quality Cutoff for Clipping applies to the clipping of a poor end region for each read when QVs are provided. It is not used when QVs are not available. The specified value is used to find the low-quality ends of reads, where the quality value of a base is considered low if it is less than this value. Default: 12.
- Clipping Range Clipping Range applies to the clipping of a poor end region for each read regardless of whether QVs are available. The value is used to extend the ranges for clipping further away from the ends based on the low-quality positions at each end as determined with the Quality Cutoff for Clipping value. The larger the value of Clipping Range, the more extensive the clipping for poor end regions. Default: 250.
- Min Num Good Reads at Clip Position This is the depth of good coverage at the clip position. It applies to the clipping of a poor end region for each read regardless of whether QVs are available. Depending on the actual depth of coverage, the Minimum Number of Good Reads at Clip Position parameter determines the exact clipping position within the clipping region. The larger this value is, the more extensive the clipping becomes. Default: 3.

Overlap Tab

Overlaps between reads are computed immediately following sequence clipping. This step serves as the basis for contig construction. In order to ensure the quality, each overlap is evaluated with a few measures (Figure 30.16). You can change the rigor of overlap computation. The parameters are explained below.

Assembly Setup	×
Assembly Clipping Overlap Contig De	escription Lite Settings
	Overlap Length Cutoff 40
Overlap F	Percent Identity Cutoff 0.8
Overlap	Similarity Score Cutoff 900
Base Quality	ty Cutoff for Difference 20
Max	QV Sum at Difference 200
Max Cle	earance for Error Rate 30
	Band Expansion Size 20
	Max Gap Length 20
Max Num	nber of Word Matches 300
Default Max Ove	erhang Percent Length 20
OK Cancel	Load Save

Figure 30.16 Assembly Setup – Overlap tab

- Overlap Length Cutoff Minimum length required for the length in base pair of all the overlaps. Default: 40.
- **Overlap Percent Identity Cutoff** Minimum percent identity of the overlap. Default: 0.80.
- Overlap Similarity Score Cutoff Minimum similarity score for an overlap. The score is computed as the sum of match, mismatch or gap scores for each pair of bases weighted by QVs. Default: 900.
- Base Quality Cutoff for Difference Determines the minimum overlap quality by examining the differences of the overlap at bases of high quality values. This is useful only when QVs are available. The Base Quality Cutoff for Difference value defines "high quality" bases. Default: 20.
- Max QV Sum at Difference Applies only when QVs are available. Each overlap is given a "difference score" based on the QVs and the Base Quality Cutoff for Difference. An overlap with a difference score over the Max QV Sum at Difference value is excluded from contig construction. Default: 200.
- Max Clearance for Error Rate Applies even and especially when QVs are not available. If the error rate of the overlap is greater than the sum of those of the overlapping fragments plus this value, the overlap is not used for assembly. The smaller the value, the better the quality control of the overlaps. Default: 30.
- Band Expansion Size This parameter specifies band expansion size. The program automatically determines a minimum band of diagonals for an overlapping alignment between two sequence reads. The band is then expanded, in each direction, by a number of bases specified here. This affects the computation of both potential overlaps and true overlaps. Default: 20.
- Max Gap Length This is the maximum gap length allowed in an overlap. Default: 20.
- Max Num Word Matches This parameter controls the fast method for finding potential overlaps between a pair of sequences. For each word in one read, at most Max Num Word Matches occurrences of the word in the other read are considered for non-gapped extension. A larger value forces the program to consider more word matches at the expense of time and computer memory. Default: 300.
- Max Overhang Percent Length This parameter controls the different overhang regions before or after the aligned region. It is defined as 100 times the total length of the different overhang regions divided by the length of the overlap. Overlaps with a value greater than the maximum cutoff are not used for assembly. Default: 20.

Contig Tab

Contig Tab (Figure 30.17) includes parameters affecting construction of contig and multiple sequence alignments, thus the consensus sequences. QVs are used extensively during this process, if they are available. If unavailable, the program assigns a QV of 10 for each base.

Assembly Setup	×
Assembly Clipping Overlap Contig Description Lite Settings	
Match Score Factor	
Mismatch Score Factor	1
Gap Penalty Factor	
Min. Num. Constraints Correction]
Min. Num. Constraints Linking 2	1
Default	
OK Cancel <u>L</u> oad <u>S</u> ave	

Three of the parameters, Match Score Factor, Mismatch Score Factor and Gap Penalty Factor, are editable only on Contig Tab.

Figure 30.17 Assembly Setup – Contig tab

- Match Score Factor –Match Score Factor is a positive integer to award each match between the existing alignment and the sequence being added when calculating the score of global alignments. Default: 2.
- Mismatch Score Factor –Mismatch Score Factor is a negative integer to penalize each mismatch between the existing alignment and the sequence being added when calculating the score of global alignments. Default: -5.
- Gap Penalty Factor –Also Gap Penalty Factor is a positive integer to penalize each gap extended when calculating the score of global alignments between the existing alignment and the sequence being added. Default: 6.
- Min Num Constraints Correction This is the minimum difference between the numbers of constraints satisfied in the current assembly and in the alternative assembly. A difference greater than this value, if the contig is also supported by an alternative set of overlaps, results in the alternative join.
- Min. Num Constraints Linking This is the minimum number of constraints for reporting a link between two contigs.

Description Tab

Any description of the assembly can be entered here (Figure 30.18). Clicking the Default button on this tab displays a text description of all the available parameters at their default values. Any value can be edited by typing, if the corresponding parameter has been changed elsewhere in the Assembly Setup. Or you can supplement this description with information of your own. All information entered here is viewable in the **Assembly Summary**... item on the shortcut menu of the assembly icon in Tree Pane. You can save this description as a text file.

Assembly Setup
Assembly Clipping Overlap Contig Description Lite Settings
Write here your description of the project:
Assembly settings: Use Quality Values: Yes Use Forward-Reverse Constraints: No Detect Chimeric Reads: Yes F-R Min. Distance: 0 F-R Max. Distance: 6000 Clipping settings: Use Automatic Clipping: Yes Match Score Factor: 2 Mismatch Score Factor: 5 Gap Penalty Factor: 6 Quality Cutoff For Clipping: 12 Clipping Ranges: 250
OK Cancel <u>L</u> oad <u>S</u> ave

Figure 30.18 Assembly Setup – Description tab

Lite Settings Tab

In ContigExpress, you can create two different types of contigs, Full Contigs or Lite contigs. On the **Lite Settings** tab (Figure 30.19), you can specify the type of contigs you want to assemble in the project.

In Full contigs mode, chromatogram data are retrievable and-sequence editing performed in the Contig Viewer are reflected in the individual fragment files.

Lite contigs disregard fragment chromatogram data and there is no dynamic association between a Lite Contigs and its component fragments. Editing done on Lite Contigs is NOT reflected in the original fragment sequences (original sequences remain unedited). Assembly in Lite Contig mode reduces memory consumption and is, therefore, the preferred contig type for assembling large projects.

Assembly Setup	×
Assembly Clipping Overlap Contig Description Lite Setti Discard chromatogram data on import Use contig type Full contigs only Lite contigs if selected more than 30 fragments	ngs
OK Cancel Load	<u>S</u> ave

Figure 30.19 Assembly Setup – Lite Settings tab

Lite Settings Parameters		
Discard chromatogram data on import	Check this box to discard sequence file chromatogram data when the sequences are imported. Check this box <i>before</i> you import your sequence reads. Note: you can also discard chromatograms for all fragments <i>after</i> import using Project > Discard All Chromatograms command.	
Full Contigs only	Check this box to perform assembly in Full Contig mode. You can retrieve chromatograms and maintain dynamic links between the contigs and their component reads.	
Lite Contigs only	Check this box to perform assembly in Lite Contig mode. All linkage between the contigs and sequence reads will be lost and no chromato- gram is retrievable in the Contig Viewer.	
Lite contigs if selected more than <#> fragments	Creates Lite Contigs during the assembly process only if the selected number of fragments is greater than the number specified; otherwise creates full/ regular contigs.	

Table 30.5 Light Settings Options

Registering Assembly Setup Changes

Click **OK** to apply the entered parameters; they will apply to the future assemblies in the project until updated. Click **Cancel** to abort the action.

Editing Project Item Properties

To edit the name, description, or comment about a fragment or contig, right-click on the fragment or contig in the CE Project Explorer List Pane and select **Edit** on the shortcut menu. In the Edit dialog box (Figure 30.20) you can change the name, description and comments of the fragment:

Edit Contig 1	×
Name:	
Contig 1	
Description:	
Some description	
Comment:	
Multi-line comments	A
T	
ОК	Cancel

Figure 30.20 Adding comments to fragments/contigs

Click **OK** to confirm the changes; all instances of the item throughout ContigExpress are updated to reflect the changes. Click **Cancel** to abort the action.

Viewing Project Item Properties

To view the properties of an item in a ContigExpress project, highlight the item (assembly, con-

tig, fragment, etc.) and click the **Properties** button (
) or select **Edit > Properties**. The corre-

sponding keystroke is ALT-ENTER. This opens the Properties dialog box (Figure 30.21) where you can review the properties of the selected item(s).

H5354_C02_7360_F_0	b Properties	×
General		
⊉ HS354_I	C02_7360_F_0.b	
Type: Fragmen	t (included in assembly)	
Property	Value	
Name Type Length Chromatogram Date created Date modified Description Comment	HS354_C02_7360_F_0.b Fragment 962 Data exists 09:42 AM August 09, 2005 09:42 AM August 09, 2005	
Status Original length 5'Trimmed bases 3'Trimmed bases	In contig 'Contig 1' 975 13 0	
ОК	Cancel <u>Apply</u>	Help

Figure 30.21 Viewing properties of fragments/contigs

Open Contig(s)/Fragment(s)

To view or edit a contig or fragment, select it in the Project List pane and double-click it or select **Open** in its shortcut menu.

The Contig or Fragment window for the selected item is opened.

For further information on how to work in the Workspace, Contig, and Fragment Windows see Chapter 31 and Chapter 32.

Dismissing an Assembly

Dismissing an assembly deletes the selected assembly from the open project. When an assembly item is selected in the Tree Pane or when the List Pane is active and shows the contents of

an assembly, click the **Dismiss Assembly** button ($\stackrel{\frown}{\Longrightarrow}$) or select **Edit > Dismiss Assembly** or the comparable option on the shortcut menu. If the assembly has "child" assemblies, they will be dismissed as well. The Project Explorer display window is updated to reflect the changes.

Dissolving a Contig

Dissolving a contig removes the selected contig from the assembly, but leaves the rest of the assembly intact. To execute the Dissolve Contig command, select the contig in the List or Tree Pane of the Project Window and choose **Dissolve Contig from Project menu** or from the shortcut menu. Once the contig has been dissolved, the Project Explorer display window is updated to reflect the change.

Deleting Contig(s)/Fragment(s) from a Project

To delete selected item(s) from the project, select the item in the List Pane and click the Delete

from Project button (X), press the keyboard DELETE key, select Edit > Delete from Project or Delete from Project from the shortcut menu. If any of the items to be deleted are included as a fragment in any assembly, you will be warned that all assemblies (and their child assemblies) that contain the item will be dismissed. You can confirm or cancel the action.

Renaming an Item

To rename a project item, select the item and click the **Rename** button (@e), select **Edit** > **Rename** or single click inside the name of the item to be renamed. Enter the new name in the enabled text box. If the item that has been renamed is used elsewhere in the project, all instances of the item are renamed.

Operations Changing Project Items

Converting a Contig to a Fragment

A fragment with the same sequence as a contig's consensus and the same name as the original contig can be created and added to the project. To convert an existing contig to a fragment, select **File > Convert Contig to Fragment** on the menu bar or select **Convert Contig to Fragment** on the shortcut menu.

Making a Reverse Complement

To generate reverse complement copies of selected contigs and fragments from the Project Explorer List Pane, select the item and choose **Make reverse complement** from the shortcut menu. If a contig is selected for this action, it is internally converted to a fragment and then the action will be applied to it.

The reverse complement copies of the selected items are added to the project with names *Copy of <name >*, derived from the names of the original items. The new item appears in the List Pane.

Finding Sequences

There are two find features available in the ContigExpress Project Explorer window. The Find Fragment feature allows you to search for and find the location of fragments in the project according to fragment name (See *Finding Fragments* on page 440.). The Find Sequence feature allows you to find fragments and contigs in the project that contain the sequence that you specify.

Launch the Find Sequence dialog box by choosing **Edit > Find Sequence** from the Project Explorer menu or by pressing **CTRL+ SHIFT+ F** on the keyboard. The Find Sequence dialog box displays (Figure 30.22):

Find Sequence	×
Sequence:	Revert
Search Uptions Search in fragments Search in contigs	Current assembly only From current assembly Entire project
Find	Close

Figure 30.22 Find Sequence dialog

Type the sequence you want to search for in the Sequence box and set the search parameters:

- Revert Reverse complements the sequence entered in the Sequence box.
- Search Options Allows you to search fragments or contigs only.
- Search area Specify the area of the project you want to search: the assembly currently highlighted only, from the current assembly forward, or the entire project.

Once you have entered the sequence and set the search conditions appropriately, click the **Find** button to begin the search. Search results display in the lower portion of the Find Sequence dialog box (Figure 30.23):

Find Sequence	×
Sequence: GCCAACTTTGTACAAGAAAGCTGGGTTCT Re	vert
Search Options	
Search in fragments	nly
Search in contigs	עוסו
1 objects found	
Find Close	
🔲 Hide object path	
News Twee Cheby	
Wame Type Status L - US254 C02 M12P 0 a Exament In main fragmentalist 1	ength 200
The House Coz_Mhon_o.g Thagment Infiniar hagments list	300
	►

Figure 30.23 Search results in Find Sequence dialog

Double-click on an fragment/contig name in the results section of the Find Sequence dialog box to highlight the fragment/contig in its location in the Project Explorer List Pane.

Blasting Ultimate ORF Collection

Ultimate ORF Blast Invitrogen has a generated a database of proprietary ORFs, the Invitrogen Ultimate[™] ORF collection. With the Ultimate ORF BLAST tool and using a fragment selected in Contig Express Contig Viewer as the query sequence, you can launch a search against the proprietary ORF collection.

To launch Ultimate ORF Blast, select **Tools > Ultimate ORF Blast**. Choose the **Range** (Whole, Selection Only, or Current CDS feature) and Sequence display (Single or Double Stranded). Click OK. See *Ultimate ORF Blast* on page 467.

Generating an Assembly Summary

To write a text file with an assembly summary, select an assembly in the Tree Pane, and select **Assembly Summary...** on the shortcut menu. This writes an "Assembly Summary" file with a ".log" suffix, summarizing the contig(s) by consensus length, sequence, number of fragments and date of generation. In addition, summaries of each fragment in a contig appear with name and position. Finally, data recorded in the Description Tab in the Assembly Setup dialog is summarized. Read the .log file in NotePad.

In the Write Assembly Summary dialog box, enter a file name for the summary and click Save. If the file with this name already exists, you can overwrite the file. Click Cancel to abort the action.

Trimming Fragments

Trimming fragments is often performed to remove unreliable (ambiguous) residues. To trim one or more fragments selected in the Project Explorer List Pane, select **Edit > Trim Selected Fragments <trim type>...** A Fragment Trimmer dialog box opens, listing all of the selected fragments and/or suggested operations, depending on which type of trimming operation you've chosen (see Chapter 32, page 493). Click **OK** to proceed with trimming the fragment(s). If no action is suggested, the **OK** button is disabled.

Notes on Fragment Trimming:

- This group of actions is used to trim the selected fragments according to various criteria.
- Because "trimming" applies only to fragments, if contigs are selected, they will be skipped.
- If a fragment selected for trimming is currently open in its Fragment Window, initiating the trimming mode in Project Explorer automatically forces the fragment into the readonly mode in the Fragment Window to avoid possible inconsistencies in the project after a successful trimming.
- If any of these fragments were already changed in their respective windows, select **Yes** to save the changes or **No** to lose the changes or **Cancel** to skip the fragment in question.
- Project Explorer reflects the changes if fragments are trimmed. If any of the changed fragments are open in Fragment Windows, the respective windows are updated as well.

For further information on the Fragment Trimmer dialog boxes, including modifying trimming settings, refer to Chapter 32, page 493 of this manual.

Calling Secondary Peaks for Fragments

If conflicting residues appear on a chromatogram, you can alter the nucleotides as you wish. With one or more fragments selected in the Project Explorer List Pane, select **Edit > Call Secondary Peaks for Selected Fragments**. The Call Secondary Peaks dialog box opens (see Chapter 32, page 502), listing all selected fragments will be presented to the user. Click **OK** to continue.

Notes on Calling Secondary Peaks:

- Because this operation applies only to fragments, if contigs are selected, they will be skipped.
- If a fragment selected for secondary peak search is currently open in its Fragment Window, initiating this operation in Project Explorer automatically forces the fragment into the read-only mode in the Fragment Window to avoid possible inconsistencies in the project after a successful search.
- If any of these fragments were already changed in their respective windows, select **Yes** to save the changes or **No** to lose the changes or **Cancel** to skip the fragment in question.

For further information on the Call Secondary Peaks dialog box, refer to Chapter 32, page 502 of this manual.

Other Operations in Project Explorer

Project Explorer Viewing Options

To review or modify viewing options in Project Explorer, highlight a fragment or contig in the List Pane and select **View > Options** from the menu. This opens the Options dialog box, which has several tabs.

Note: Option settings for contigs and fragments are independent of each other. If a fragment is highlighted when the Options dialog box is opened, display options for fragments are visible in the dialog box; if a contig is highlighted when the Options dialog box is opened, display options for contigs are visible.

Details View Tab

The Options dialog box initially opens to the **Details View** tab (Figure 30.24).

×
ntig
ields:
ath Move Up
bases Move Down
Alignment
O Left O Bight
calc unambiguity: 1
Apply Help

Figure 30.24 Options for displaying column headers in List Pane

The **Details View** tab controls the columns displayed in the List Pane Details View mode and related functions as follows:

- Available Fields Shows the list of fields that you can add to the List Pane display. Move columns from the Available Fields box to the Displayed Fields box (and vice-versa) by highlighting the desired column name and clicking the >> or << button.
- **Displayed Fields** Shows the fields that are currently being shown in the List Pane display. The top-to-bottom order of columns in the Displayed Fields list dictates the left-to-right column order shown in the List Pane; top to bottom order in the Displayed Fields list corresponds to left to right order in the Project Explorer List Pane.
- Order Allows you to rearrange the order of the fields in the Displayed Fields list. To change the order, select a field and click the **Move Up** or **Move Down** button.
- Alignment Controls the alignment of text in the column headers in the List Pane. To alter the text alignment for a column, highlight the column name in the Displayed Fields list and select the appropriate radio button.

- **Minimum number of overlapping fragments to calc unambiguity** Allows you to specify the minimum number of fragments used for calculating unambiguity for a contig. Percent unambiguity is shown in the **Unambiguousness** field.
- Save the last viewed assembly Saves the display format of the last viewed assembly.

Status Bar Tab

The second of the Option tabs is the **Status Bar** tab (Figure 30.25).

Options	×
Details View Status Bar Copy Fragment/Contig When a single item is selected in the list view, the status bar displays: • "1 item selected" • The value of the item's field: 3'Trimmed bases 5'Trimmed bases Comment Date created Date modified Description Fragments Length	
OK Cancel Apply Help	

Figure 30.25 Options for display in Explorer Status Bar when items are selected in List Pane

The **Status Bar** tab allows you to choose the type of information displayed in the status bar when a single item is selected in the List Pane:

- 1 Item Selected Select this option to show the text "1 item selected" in the status bar when an item is selected in the List Pane.
- **The Value of the Item's Field** Select this option and a field in the list to show the value of that field for the item selected in the List Pane.

Copy Fragment/Contig Tab

The third of the Option tabs is the Copy Fragment/Contig tab (Figure 30.26):

Options	×
Details View Status Bar Copy Fragment/Contig	
You may copy a fragment or contig from the database to another location (another database or file system) by selecting it and using Copy/Paste commands or drag-and-drop.	
If a fragment or contig is copied to the file system, you may choose one of the following file formats:	
GenBank file	
O EMBL file	
O FASTA file	
OK Cancel Apply Help	

Figure 30.26 Options for export file type

Here you can define the file format used when you drag an item outside of the Project Explorer or copy it to the Windows Clipboard.

Copying Selected Fragments or Contigs

In Project Explorer, to copy a fragment or a contig select it and click the Copy button ()).

Click the **Paste** button to paste the copy in the List Pane (**C**). The copied object is added to the list of objects and named "Copy of <selected object>".

Printing

You can print the contents of the Tree Pane in the CE Project Explorer window (Figure 30.27). To review what the printout of the Tree pane looks like before it is printed, select **Project > Print Preview**:

🚔 ContigEs	xpress Project - <untitled *=""></untitled>		_O×
Print	Next Page Prey Page Iwo Page Zoom In Zoom Out Close		
	ContigExpress Project - <untitled *=""> Fragments (MAIN)] [Assembly 1]</untitled>	Page 1	
			🛛 🗹 //.

Figure 30.27 Print preview of project history tree

In the Print Preview dialog box, you can resize the displayed output, send it to the printer, or press **Close** to return to the Project Explorer. To define your printer options, select **Project > Print Setup**. A standard Window Printer Setup dialog box opens.

To print a copy of the Tree Pane data, activate the Tree Pane. *The Tree pane is always printed in the History view mode with the tree completely expanded.* Select **Project > Print**. In the Print dialog box, click **OK** to print or **Cancel** to abort the action.

Exporting Items from the Project

To export contigs or fragments selected in the Project Explorer List Pane, choose **Project > Export Item > To <file>** from the Project Explorer menu or select **Export Contig/Fragment > To <file>** on the contig/fragment shortcut menu. ContigExpress can export items in the following formats: GenBank (*.gb), FASTA (*.txt), EMBL (*.txt), and plain text sequence file (*.txt). Choose Project > Export Item > Send to VectorNTI, and the selection will open directly in a VectorNTI viewer.

In the Export To dialog box, select or enter a file name and destination for the exported item. Click **Save** to export the item to the entered file. You can overwrite an existing file or click **Cancel** to abort the action.

Alternatively, you can select one or several contigs or fragments in the List pane and drag and drop them to Windows Explorer or Vector NTI Explorer. The export format for dragged and dropped files is defined by the setting on the **Copy Fragment/Contig** tab of the Options dialog box (see page 459).

You can return to other Vector NTI Advance programs or send ContigExpress data to AlignX by selecting Align > <AlignX options> and to BioAnnotator by selecting Analyses > BioAnnotator > Analyze Selected Molecule.

Saving and Closing a Project

To Save a Project to disk, click the **Save** button (\square), select **Project > Save**, or use the keystroke CTRL+S. Enter a file name and destination in the Save As dialog box. After the project is successfully saved, the **Save** toolbar button and menu item are disabled until you make any changes in the project.

To close a Project, select **Project > Close Project**. When you select this action, the Project Explorer first closes the current project, giving you the option of saving any changes. To save any changes, click **Yes** in the dialog box that opens. If you select **No**, all changes are lost.

Exit Project Explorer

To exit Project Explorer, click on the Explorer close box, select **Project > Exit**, or use the keyboard shortcut, Alt-F4. This operation closes the ContigExpress application.

C H A P T E R

CONTIGEXPRESS: FRAGMENT AND CONTIG VIEWERS

Introduction

ContigExpress offers two workspaces where you can work with fragments or contigs. Fragment Viewer allows you to work with individual fragments. Contig Viewer allows you to work with contigs or the fragments comprising them. To open fragments or contigs in their respective viewers, select the item in Project Explorer and double-click on it or select **Open** from the shortcut menu. Depending upon the item from which it was launched, a Fragment Viewer or a Contig Viewer opens. When projects are assembled in Full Contig mode, Fragment Viewers and Contig Viewers may be opened together in the same workspace; the Fragment Viewer, however, is in Read-Only mode. This section reviews elements common to both types of viewers.

Features of the ContigExpress Workspace

These workspace windows have many of the same features as the other applications of Vector NTI Advance: a menu bar, toolbars, and three panes and a status bar.

As you are introduced to various operations in this chapter, the toolbar buttons are displayed as needed. Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function. Hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button. Many toolbar commands can also be launched from the menu bar or from a shortcut menu.

The windows are organized and managed like any Windows application. Several windows can be opened in one workspace (Figure 31.1).



Figure 31.1 Several Fragment Viewer windows or Contig Viewer windows can be opened in one workspace

Fragment and Contig Viewers are divided into three panes. Split bars allow re-sizing the three panes. Scroll bars appear when the contents of a pane exceed the viewing area, facilitating easier viewing of pane contents.

If you prefer, you may view contigs or fragments in a different layout. From the **View** menu, go to **Edit Pane Layout** and toggle between the standard, tabbed or custom layout options. To design a custom layout, right click on entries in the Pane Manager, design a layout, then drag and drop the desired pane(s) to the chosen layout. The layout you select will be the default one until a new layout is chosen.

Switching Between Panes

As in the other Vector NTI Advance applications, to apply a command from the Main Menu in a given pane that pane must be active. The active pane can be toggled with the Panes buttons on the Pane Selection Toolbar or by clicking anywhere in the pane you wish to activate. The keyboard strokes are F6 (cycling clockwise through the panes) and SHIFT + F6 (cycling counter clockwise).

Status Bar

The Status bar shows menu item help and information about the cursor and selection positions in the active window (Figure 31.2).





The menu item help on the Status Bar is a short description of a selected menu or toolbar item.

The Position Box shows the current cursor position if relevant. You can position the cursor by clicking on this box. In the Fragment Viewer, the display is in the form original position/position post-trimming. In the Contig Viewer, the Position Box can apply to fragments or the consensus. On fragments, the display indicates position in the Contig (gaps included)/original position in the fragment. On the consensus, the display indicates position in the Contig (gaps included).

The Selection Box displays the start and end coordinates of selections in the active window. In the Fragment Viewer, each coordinate is in the form original START position – START position post-trimming : original END position - END position post-trimming. You can also position a selection by clicking on this box and checking Do Not Count Gaps on/off as desired. In the Contig Viewer, the Selection Box can refer to fragments or the consensus, with the guidelines described above. Click this box to set a selection on a fragment (using fragment or contig coordinates) or on a consensus (using Contig coordinates).

General User Actions

Finding a Feature in Other Panes

A feature selected in a Feature Table folder in the Text Pane can be concurrently selected in

both other panes. Select the feature, then click the **Find** button (^M) on the Pane Toolbar or select Find on the shortcut menu opened from a folder.

Note: Because some features are circular, they bypass the endpoints of the fragment. Since ContigExpress does not support circular selections, such a feature will not be correctly located. The program warns you in such cases.

Editing Fragment or Contig Properties

To edit some of a selected contig or fragment's properties from the Text Pane, double-click on the first line with the fragment or contig name or select **Edit** from the associated shortcut menu.

In the Edit dialog box (Figure 31.3), change the name, description or comments:

Edit Contig 1		×
Name:		
Contig 1		
Description:		
Add descriptive items here		
Comment:		
Multi-line commen:s can be added here.		<u></u>
J		× }
	ОК	Cancel

Figure 31.3 Edit Properties dialog

Click **OK** to confirm the changes or **Cancel** to abort the action.

After selecting **OK**, every instance of the fragment throughout ContigExpress is updated to reflect the changes.

Saving a Current Window

To save a changed item/apply changes made in a Fragment or Contig Viewer to the project, select **Apply** from the Fragment or Contig Menu, use keystroke CTRL-S, or click the **Apply** but-

ton (🕮).

If a change affects other project items, Project Explorer makes the necessary changes, and updates its display and the currently opened windows, if needed.

Closing a Current Window

To close the current window, select **Close** from the Fragment or Contig menu, click on the respective Close Box, or use keystroke **CTRL + F4**. If the item in the window you are closing has not been saved since its last change, you can confirm saving the changes in the dialog box that opens.

If the item in the window you are closing has not been saved since its last change, you can confirm saving the changes in the dialog box that opens.

Closing All Windows

To close all open windows (thus closing the Workspace), select **Close All** from the Fragment or Contig menu, click on the workspace Close Box, or use keystroke **ALT + F4**.

Selecting All Data

To select all data in the current pane, select **Edit > Select All** or choose **Select All** on the shortcut menu.

Deleting Data

To delete a data selection from an item in the active pane, select **Edit > Delete Sequence From <selected bp range>** or press the DELETE key on the keyboard. If no selection is currently defined, one nucleotide is deleted at the cursor position with this action. (If you delete in error,

click on the **Undo** button ().

The following additional actions can be performed in ContigExpress windows. Details are given in Chapter 3.

- Resizing the panes with the split bars.
- Scrolling data inside the panes using scroll bars and arrow keys
- Opening and closing Text Pane folders
- Opening shortcut menus
- Copying selected molecule and fragments
- Copying screen and pane contents
- Pasting files and text
- Exporting data to other Vector NTI applications or external programs
- Printing from ContigExpress windows

External Tools Usage

ContigExpress is integrated with the other components of Vector NTI Advance, making it easy to launch Vector NTI, AlignX and BioAnnotator from ContigExpress and to easily exchange data with them. It can also easily export data to third-party tools available on the Internet.

To invoke the tools, select **Analyses > Web Analyses > <tool category> > <tool>, Align > Web Alignment Tools > <tool category> > <tool>, or Tools > Online Resources > <tool>. The tools listed in these menus will work with the currently selected items.**

For more information on the External Tools, refer to other chapters in the Vector NTI documentation.

Fragment Viewer

Launching a Fragment Viewer

To open a Fragment Viewer, select a fragment in CE Project Explorer and double-click on it or select **Open** on its context-sensitive shortcut menu. Alternatively, Fragment Viewers may be launched from the respective mini-windows in the Fragment Trimming dialogs (Chapter 32). Finally, when a contig is assembled in Full Contig mode, one or more instances of the Fragment Viewer may be opened in Read-Only mode by double-clicking on the respective fragments in any pane of the Contig Viewer. Note that if an assembly was performed in Lite Contig mode, it will not be possible to open Fragment Viewers from the Project Explorer or the Contig Viewer.

Features of a Fragment Viewer

As in the other applications of Vector NTI Advance, the ContigExpress Fragment Viewer (Figure 31.4) consists of a menu bar, two toolbars and is divided into three panes: Text Pane, Sequence Pane and Chromatogram Pane. As described above (**Features of the ContigExpress Work-space**), the panes can be organized in different layouts. A shortcut menu associated with specific folders or objects can be opened with a right click while the cursor is on the object. Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function. Hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button.

Note: Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function. Hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button.



Figure 31.4 Fragment Viewer - standard layout

As in the other Vector NTI Advance applications, to apply a command from the Main Menu in a given pane, that pane must be active. The active pane can be toggled with the **Switch Pane**

buttons (IIII, IIII) in the Pane Selection Toolbar or by clicking in the pane you want to activate. You can also activate the panes with the F6 and SHIFT-F6 keyboard buttons.

Text Pane

The Fragment Viewer Text Pane contains a thorough description of the fragment, including length, date of creation, and chromatogram data.

Text Pane manipulations are outlined in the previous section and are also summarized in Chapter 3.

The Text Pane data is divided into a hierarchy of folders and subfolders. A Text Pane can contain the following folders:

Folder	Contents
General descrip- tion	Molecule type, form (for DNA only), length, etc.
Proprietary fields	User defined fields (for molecules which came from Vector NTI)
Standard fields	GenBank/SWISS-PROT-like fields: keywords, division, origi- nal accession numbers, etc
Comment	Arbitrary text of any length associated with the molecule
References	Bibliographic references (in GenBank/SWISS-PROT format)
Feature Map	List of molecule features
Chromatogram data (if available)	Data imported from fragment file processed by sequencing machine (ABI files, for example)

Table 31.1 Fragment Viewer Text Pane folders

Sequence Pane

The Sequence Pane shows the nucleotide sequence of the fragment with feature signals. In this pane, the nucleotide sequence can be viewed, edited and manipulated and the sequence display can be formatted. Any sequence changes are immediately reflected in the Chromatogram Pane. Regions of the sequence can be copied and pasted to/from the Clipboard. For more details, refer to Chapter 3.

In addition to the sequence, the Sequence Pane displays a molecule's nucleotide sequence features. Features are shown with a horizontal wavy line above the sequence (direct strand features) or below the sequence (complementary strand features) together with the feature label.

Navigating the Sequence Pane Using the Keyboard

Pause the text cursor over a position in the sequence for a few seconds to display a tooltip defining the exact position of the cursor. The cursor position or selection position is always indicated on the status bar following a left mouse-button click or selection.

Standard keyboard keys may be used to navigate the sequence and position the cursor:

Key	Description
Left	Move cursor to previous position
RIGHT	Move cursor to next position
Up	Move cursor position one line up
Down	Move cursor position one line down

Table 31.2 Navigating the Sequence Pane using the keyboard
Номе	Move cursor position to the beginning of the current line
End	Move cursor position to the end of the current line
Ctrl- PgUp	Move cursor position to the beginning of sequence
Ctrl- PgDn	Move cursor position to the end of sequence

Table 31.2 Navigating the Sequence Pane using the keyboard

Another way to define an exact cursor position is to click the Set cursor Position box on the status bar. In the Set cursor Position dialog box that opens, enter the cursor position and click **OK**.

Finding Sequence Fragments

To search for a specific sequence in the Sequence Pane, activate the pane, then click the **Find**

Find		? ×
Find what:		Eind Next
Complementary Search	Direction	Cancel
C Ambiguous	C Up 🖲 Down	

button (\mathbf{B}) on the toolbar, or select **Edit > Find**.

In the Find dialog box (Figure 31.5), enter the sequence in the text box, with criteria for the search, such as the strand to search, (direct or complementary), allow ambiguous symbols, and the search direction from the current cursor position. If the matching sequence is found, Con-tigExpress selects it and positions both the Sequence Pane and Chromatogram Pane to make it visible. If the sequence is not found, you are informed and the cursor remains in its current position.

Open Reading Frames

To display ORFs in the sequence, activate the Sequence Pane and choose View > Show ORFs

from the menu or press the **Show ORFs** button () on the toolbar. If the sequence display is double-stranded, ORFs for both strands display; if the sequence is single-stranded, ORFs for the direct strand only display. ORF definition can be adjusted on the **View Options** > **ORF tab**,

accessed from the **View** menu or Toolbar button (**I**). For details on displaying ORFs in the Sequence Pane, see page 213.

Searching for Ambiguous Symbols

To search for ambiguous symbols quickly, click the Find Previous Ambiguous () or Find Next

Ambiguous (A) buttons from the View menu or the respective buttons on the Toolbar.

Ultimate ORF Blast

Invitrogen has generated a database of proprietary ORFs, the Invitrogen Ultimate[™] ORF collection. With the Ultimate ORF BLAST web tool in Vector NTI Advance, you can BLAST your frag-

Figure 31.5 Find Sequence dialog

ments against the Ultimate[™] ORF collection. Using this tool, you may determine that your sequence has been previously characterized and the clone containing it is commercially available from Invitrogen.

To launch Ultimate ORF Blast, select the all or part of a fragment, and select **Tools > Ultimate ORF Blast**. The Sequence Data dialog box opens, allowing you to set the search parameters:

- **Range** selects the range of the target sequence: the entire sequence, a selected sequence or a selected CDS.
- Strand selects either the direct or complementary strand. Click **OK** to begin the search or **Cancel** to abort the search process.

The Ultimate ORF Blast tool copies your target sequence and pastes it into the Ultimate ORF Browser Sequence Text entry box located on the Invitrogen webpage (Figure 31.6), which opens automatically when you launch this tool.

🗿 Search By Sequence - Microsoft Internet Explorer		_ <i>8</i> ×
Elle Edit View Favorites Iools Help		.
🔾 Back + 🕤 - 💌 😰 🏠 🔎 Search 🤺 Favorites 🜒 Media 🤣 🌫 🦣 🖬 + 🛄 🖓		
Address 🗃 http://orf.invitragen.com/cgi-bin/ORF_Browser	💌 🄁 Go	Links »
none product a construction of the constructio		-
Online Catalog - Molecular Biology Products		
Ultimate™ ORF Browser Advanced Search for Ultimate™ ORF Clones		
Search By ID or Keyword Search By Sequence Browse By Gene Ontology ORF FAQs		
Search By Sequence Instructions		
Select Species: 17 Human 17 Mouse		
Enter sequence below		
GGCAAANCCCTGGGNAGCCCTGGTAGACAGCTGTGCTCCAGGTCTGTG CCCAGACTGGGAATCCTGGGACCCGCAGAAGCCTGTGGATAATGCACG		
AGAAGCCATGCAGCAGGCAGATGACTGGCTGGGTGTCCCACAGGTCAT		
CACTCCTGAAGAAATCATTCACCCGGATGTGGACGAGCACTCAGTTAT GACTTACCTGTCCCCAGTCCCCAAAGCCAAGCC		
TCTCAAACCCAAACTCAACCCGAAGAAAGCCAAGGGCCTATGGCAGAGG		
AATCGAGCCCACTGGAAACATGGTGAAGCAGCCAGCCAAGTTCACTGT		
Reset		
		-
Downloading from site: file://C:\Documents and Settings\sam.zaremba\Local Settings\Temp\urlCF.tmp.html	🔏 👩 Internet	

Figure 31.6 Ultimate ORF Browser

Select the species to search the sequence query against from the checkbox located above the Sequence Text entry box. To proceed with your search, click the **BLAST** button. The Blast dialog box appears, informing you that it is blasting your sequence.

Once your search is completed, the UltimateTM ORF Browser displays your search results. If your search identifies similar ORFs, the target sequence, or UltimateTM ORF clone, is commercially available through the Invitrogen website, http://www.invitrogen.com.

Miscellaneous Operations in the Sequence Pane

For additional operations in the Sequence Pane, refer to Chapter 3:

- Changing Sequence Pane Properties By default, the Sequence Pane displays the direct strand only. Show two strands display option is available from the View menu or the Toolbar button (HIC).
- Translating sequences Any selection of more than 3 base may be translated in the reading frame defined by the selection, using the commands from the View menu or the Toolbar buttons (ATG). Translation may appear in 3- or 1-letter code, and may be

from the direct or complementary strand. **Clear All Translations** is also available from the menu or Toolbar (

 Changing text display attributes The Grouping command from the View menu allows you to display bases in groups of 1, 3, 5, 10 and 20. You can also Set Number of Blocks per line. These options are duplicated on the View Options > General tab.

Chromatogram Pane

The Chromatogram Pane displays (Figure 31.7) displays the chromatogram of the fragment if it was initially provided in the original imported file used to create the fragment. A chromatogram track shows:

- a non-editable, color-coded sequence track, with coordinates
- a duplicate sequence at the top of the pane where that can be edited
- a vertical slide control for adjusting the dynamic range of the peak heights



Figure 31.7 Details of fragment Chromatogram Pane

Any editing changes in the Chromatogram Pane are immediately reflected in the Sequence Pane and vice versa. Regions of the sequence may be copied and pasted to/from the Clipboard.

Showing/Hiding Traces

By default, all traces are shown in the Chromatogram Pane of the Fragment Viewer. Traces for each base can be toggled off and on independently in the Chromatogram Pane. Choose **View > Show Traces > <base> Trace** from the menu or click the **Show Trace** button for the particular base on the toolbar to hide (or show) the trace for that base.

Navigating the Chromatogram Pane Using the Keyboard

Standard keyboard arrow keys can be used to navigate the chromatogram.

A way to define an exact cursor position is to pause the cursor over a residue for a moment allowing a popup label to identify its position. The tooltip displays the peak height for all 4 traces. In addition, if the fragment has associated quality values, they will also be displayed.

To position the cursor specifically, press the Set cursor Position box on the status bar. In the Set cursor Position dialog box that opens, enter the cursor position and click **OK**.

Resizing the Chromatogram

Chromatograms may be resized to facilitate examination of peak shoulders To re-size the chromatogram, use the **Zoom In** (\bigcirc) or **Zoom Out** (\bigcirc) buttons or select **View > Zoom In** or **Zoom Out** or the corresponding commands on the shortcut menu. Chromatogram peak height can be adjusted with the vertical slid control on the left side of the Chromatogram Pane.

Fragment Viewer Operations

Editing a Sequence

If the fragment you are editing in the Fragment Viewer is not included in any assembly, then you can edit that fragment freely. When you save your changes using the **Fragment > Save As** command or by pressing CTRL-S, the fragment is not saved on a disk. Instead, the fragment in the main fragments list in the current project is updated. To save your changes on disk, apply your changes first in the Fragment Viewer, and then either save the current project or export the fragment to disk. You can perform these operations in Project Explorer Window. See page 460 for more information on how to save projects and export fragments.

If the fragment you are viewing is included in a contig in this or another assembly, editing is disabled. If the fragment is in an assembly, but not part of any contig, editing is enabled.

You can edit the sequence in the Sequence or Chromatogram Panes in the same way you would edit text in a word processor with the following exceptions:

- In the Sequence Pane, only the direct strand can be edited. *The complementary strand is automatically updated.*
- In the Chromatogram Pane, only the top sequence can be edited. The original fragment sequence at the bottom is included for reference only.
- In both Chromatogram Pane and Sequence Pane, you can only replace one nucleotide at a time.

The valid symbols you can enter are A, T, G, C, N and other acceptable ambiguous nucleotide designations specified by IUB codes (see Appendix C). Editing changes in either pane are reflected in the other pane immediately.

Editing Operation	Action
Delete a nucleotide	Position the cursor to the left of the symbol to be deleted and press DELETE . (If you are editing in the chromatogram, you may also place the cursor to the right and press BACKSPACE .) In the Sequence Pane, the base drops a row and an arrow appears in its position. In the Chomatogram Pane, the position in the top sequence of the chromatogram becomes a gap.
Insert a sym- bol	Select the sequence region to be cut. Press CTRL-X or choose Edit > Cut . The selected symbols are deleted from the sequence (as above) and copied to the clipboard.
Replace a symbol	Position the cursor where the new symbol is to be inserted in either Pane. Type a valid symbol. The new symbol is inserted and a gap appears in the chromatogram (if present).
Paste a sequence from the clip- board	Position the cursor where the symbols are to be inserted, or select the part of the sequence you want to be replaced. Press CTRL-V or Edit > Paste

Sequence editing techniques are detailed in the following table:

Table 31.3 Sequence editing techniques

Editing Operation	Action
Cut a selec- tion	Select the symbol (or gap) in either Pane and type a valid new symbol. It replaces the previous one (in the Sequence Pane, the previous symbol drops a row). Several symbols can be replaced at one time: select them and enter the new symbols.

Table 31.3 Sequence editing techniques (continued)

Cut, **Copy** and **Paste** options are also available on the shortcut menu opened from the Sequence Pane.

Calling Secondary Peaks

It is desirable at times to review secondary peaks in a chromatogram and change base calls. The **Edit** menu command **Call Secondary Peaks** opens a dialog box to search for secondary peaks that are at least some percentage of the highest peak at a base call position. Setting a value and clicking OK replaces symbols in the fragment (Figure 31.8) as described above and reports the number that were replaced. For further details on calling secondary peaks, refer to Chapter 32.



Figure 31.8 Secondary peaks called at 80% level

Showing Deleted Peaks

By default, peaks for deleted bases are visible in the Chromatogram Pane. Peaks for deleted bases can be removed by toggling **View > Show Deleted Peaks** from the menu or by clicking off the **Show Deleted Peaks** toggle button on the toolbar. This action informs the user that the fragment is entering Read-Only mode; viewing the fragment without deleted peaks does not alter the sequence.

When deleted bases are showing, translations proceed through the deletions without considering them. With the deleted peaks removed, the fragment can be translated across a deletion in a new reading frame and the validity of the deletion assessed. For more information regarding Showing Deleted Peaks, see Chapter 17.

Revert to Experimental

The original sequence of a fragment may be restored after cumulative edits resulting from multiple operations, including edits performed in the Viewer, and Ends or Vector Contamination Trimming performed in the Explorer. In the Fragment menu, choose **Revert to Experimental**. This option is disabled for fragments already in a contig.

Window Viewing Options

The following section summarizes display options available for the Fragment Viewer. Many of the default options have been described already in context. Others have been alluded to briefly or not at all.

To modify viewing options for the Fragment Viewer, click on the **Viewing Options** button ()) on the Toolbar or select **View > View Options**. This opens the Fragment Viewing Options dialog box (Figure 31.9):

Fragment view options	×
General ORF	
Nucleotide Sequence	Search
Length of Blocks:	Complementary
Blocks per Line: 10	T Ambigous
Show 2 Strands	
Translation	Gaps
C 1-letter AA Code	Do not count gaps in "Set Caret/Selection" dialogs
 3-letter AA Code 	Gap Chromatogram on Base Insertion
	OK Cancel Load Save

Figure 31.9 View Options dialog – General tab

On the **General** tab, you can do the following:

- **Nucleotide Sequence:** change the length of a single line of a sequence, the number of blocks per line, single/double strand display in the Sequence Pane
- Search: amend the default settings for the Find dialog box
- **Translation:** select the use of three- or one-letter protein codes displayed in the sequence translation.
- **Gaps:** settings for the Do Not Count Gaps checkbox in the Set Cursor Position and Set Selection dialog boxes. The second checkbox, Gap Chromatogram on Base Insertion(default on) controls how the chromatogram responds when new bases are inserted into an editable sequence. You may either choose to gap a chromatogram upon base insertion or insert a new base without a gap appearing in the chromatogram (deselect).

On the **ORF** tab, you can set the parameters for ORFs display in the Fragment Viewer (Figure 31.10):

Fragment view o	options				×
General ORF]				
🗖 Nested OR	Fs				
🔽 Include sto	p codon in ORF				
Minimum size	50 codons				
Start codons:	ATG				
Stop codons:	TAA TGA TAG				
Defaults]				
		ОК	Cancel	Load	Save

Figure 31.10 View Options dialog-- ORF tab

- Nested ORFs: Check the box to display ORFs that occur within the main ORF.
- Minimum Size: Specify the minimum ORF size in codons that you want to display.
- Start Codons: Define acceptable start codons.
- Stop Codons: Define acceptable stop codons.
- Defaults: Restores ORF dialog box default values.

Contig Viewer

Launching a Contig Viewer

To open a Contig Viewer, double-click on a contig in CE Project Explorer, or select **Open** on a shortcut menu opened from a contig in Project Explorer.

Features of a Contig Viewer

The ContigExpress Contig Viewer (Figure 31.11) consists of a menu bar, two toolbars and is divided into three panes: a Text Pane, a Graphics Pane and a Contig Alignment Pane. As described above (**Features of the ContigExpress Workspace**), the panes can be organized in different layouts.

A shortcut menu associated with specific folders or objects can be opened with a right click while the cursor is on the object.

Note: Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function. Hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button.



Figure 31.11 Contig Viewer - Standard Layout

As in the other Vector NTI Advance applications, to apply a command from the Main Menu in a given pane, that pane must be active. The active pane can be toggled with the **Switch Pane**

buttons (,) in the Pane SelectionToolbar or by clicking in the pane you want to activate. You can also activate the panes with the F6 and SHIFT-F6 keyboard buttons.

Find a Fragment

To rapidly locate a fragment in a Contig, the **Find Fragment** search dialog can be activated from the Edit menu on all three panes. Enter a fragment name in the text window and click the Find

button (¹/₁) as shown in Figure 31.12. Asterisks (*) may be used as wild cards in the search in accord with the specific syntax of the file names (e.g. *_*_1124*). Double-clicking on a Search Result will highlight the fragment in all 3 panes.



Figure 31.12 Find Fragment dialog Wildcards (*) are used in accord with syntax of project file names

Text Pane

The Contig Viewer Text Pane contains a thorough description of the contig displayed in the window.

Text Pane manipulations are outlined in the previous chapter and are also summarized in Chapter 3.

The Text Pane data is divided into a hierarchy of folders and subfolders. A Contig Text Pane can contain the following folders:

Folder	Contents
General description	Name, creation date, length, etc.
Comment	Arbitrary text of any length associated with the contig
Fragments	List of fragments contained in the contig

Table 31.4 Contig Text Pane folders

Graphics Pane

The Contig Viewer Graphics Pane (Figure 31.13) contains horizontal arrows representing the relative positions of the fragments forming the contig. The arrowheads indicate whether the respective fragment is in the direct or complementary strand, with the names of the fragments displayed above the fragment lines. When either of the Graphics or Alignment Panes is active, one of the fragments is always highlighted with another color (usually dark blue). This highlight is coordinated with highlights in the Sequence Pane to allow you to locate the same fragment in all panes.

When the Contig Viewer first opens, all data in the Graph pane is in the Fit to screen mode. In this mode all the graphical data for the complete contig is always shown in the pane no matter how you resize the pane.

If you want to examine a part of the graph pane, you can resize the pane using the **Zoom** and **Fit to Screen** buttons. Resizing of the pane does not affect the current scale of the graph. For more information on using the Zoom buttons, refer to Chapter 3.

By default, zooming is done horizontally. If you want to zoom vertically, press CTRL + Zoom In





Figure 31.13 Details of contig Graphics Pane

Contig Coverage in the Graphics Pane

You can view a graphical representation of contig coverage in the Graphics Pane. Display of the contig coverage graphic in the Graphics Pane view (Figure 31.14), can be turned off/on by



Show Contig Coverage in the View menu or the toolbar button (

Figure 31.14 Contig coverage bar- coverage category summarized in tooltip

The Contig Coverage graphic appears as a bar, which spans the length of the contig and contains segments of varying pattern/color that represent the amount and type of fragment coverage in that segment. If you hover the cursor over a segment, a tooltip appears describing the coverage type/amount and segment coordinates. Types of coverage include the following:

- Single Fragment area is covered by one fragment only.
- **Multiple Fragments Same Direction** area is covered by two or more fragments that run in the same direction.
- Both Directions area is covered by at least two fragments that run in opposite directions.
- Multiple Fragments Both Directions area is covered by more than two pairs of fragments that run in both directions.

Weight Graph

Below the Contig Coverage bar is a scale or Weight Graph, for this contig. The Weight Graph gives an overview of assembly quality. You may note small green vertical lines dropping below the horizontal . If you position your cursor at one of those sites and click the **Zoom In** button repeatedly, you can see the exact nucleotide placement of each line in the graph. You will also note the negative peak in the Weight graph line, indicating a position where the assembly is

poor (Figure 31.15). Refer to the same position(s) in the chromatogram (if available) and you will see poorly resolved peaks.



Figure 31.15 A Negative peak in the Weight graph line indicates poorly resolved nucleotides. This is indicated both in the alignment and on the chromatogram

In the Weight Graph, each combination of two possible sequence symbols is assigned a certain weight. By default, the highest weights are given to combinations of equal symbols, for example, "AA" or "CC". The weights can be changed in the Viewing Options dialog of the Contig Viewer. At each position in the contig, the weight is calculated from all symbols in the fragments available for this position and from the consensus symbol. The resulting weight is plotted as a point in the Weight Graph. Dips in the line isolate places where the assembly is poor or nucleotides are mismatched.

Showing ORFs in the Graphics Pane

ORFs can be shown for the fragments in the Graphics Pane. Choose **Show ORFs** from the View menu or click the **Show ORFs** button on the Toolbar to add an ORFs display to the Graph-

ics Pane. Parameters defining an ORF may be altered on the ORF tab on the **Viewing Options** dialog (accessed from the View menu or the **Viewing Options** toolbar button).



Figure 31.16 ORF analysis of contig generated from fragments of HS3454_C02

In Figure 31.16, the three bars between the Contig Coverage and Weight Graphs represent the 3 forward reading frames of the contig, and the green segments indicate the location of their respective ORFs. Hovering the cursor on a green segment displays a tooltip with the ORF coordinates. Clicking on it highlights that ORF in both the Graphics and Alignment Panes.

Open a Fragment In Another Window

Open fragment(s) in a Fragment Viewer by double-clicking on the fragment line in the Graphics Pane, or the fragment name in the Alignment Pane.

Camera Specifics

While you can use the Camera feature to copy pane contents, only the currently visible portion is copied to the clipboard or file. In this pane, the Camera cannot copy entire selections.

The data is copied to the clipboard or file in the Windows metafile format (WMF).

For more information on the Camera copy feature, refer to Chapter 3.

Alignment Pane

The Contig Alignment Pane (Figure 31.17) displays the nucleotide sequences of the fragments that form the contig with overlapping regions aligned appropriately and displayed relative to their positions in the contig. ORFs and translations can be identified and displayed. You can edit the sequences here and see how your actions are reflected in the contig alignment and consensus. The respective chromatograms for the sequences, also aligned appropriately, can also be dis-

played on command. Also, a Comparison Report can be generated between any 2 fragments, or a fragment and the consensus.



Consensus sequence

Consensus sequence

Figure 31.17 Details of Contig Alignment Pane

The Contig Alignment Pane has the following main elements:

- The fragments names list (at the left) contains all fragments that are used in this contig.
- The **fragment current position** is the relative position of the left end of the fragment (counted from the fragment start) that is currently shown.
- The **scale** (above the chromatogram alignments) gives a reference nucleotide position for all fragments and the consensus shown in the alignment.
- The consensus sequence (nucleotide format) shows the nucleotide consensus for the assembly.
- The consensus sequence (symbol format) shows the symbol consensus for the assembly. In the symbol consensus, blank spaces indicate identical residues, dots (•) indicate positions containing Ns and plus symbols (+) indicate ambiguity and/or gaps.
- When expanded (select fragment > Show Chromatogram), the fragment track (Figure 31.18) shows from top to bottom, an *editable* sequence, the non-editable sequence in dye-associated colors, and a chromatogram (if available and switched on). By hovering the cursor over a position in a fragment, a tooltip displays the original position of the base in the fragment. If the fragment has associated quality values, they are also displayed in the tooltip. This is useful in resolving an ambiguous position, if the outlier base has a low QV.

When either the Graphics or Alignment Panes is active, one of the fragments is always highlighted (by name in the fragment names list at the far left) and selected concurrently in other pane. To highlight another fragment, simply click on it with the left mouse button.



Figure 31.18 Details of a fragment track in the Chromatogram Pane

Finding a Sequence

A specific fragment sequence can be found in the Alignment Pane using the Find feature. Click on a fragment name in the Alignment pane list to select it. Launch the Find sequence dialog box

either by choosing **Edit > Find** from the menu or by clicking the **Find** button ($\frac{14}{100}$) on the toolbar. When the Find dialog box (Figure 31.19) appears, type in the sequence you want to find.

Find		? X
Find what:		Eind Next
Complementary Search	Direction	Cancel
🥅 Ambiguous	C Up 🖲 Down	

Figure 31.19 Find a Sequence dialog

Click the **Find Next** button. If the sequence is found, the Alignment Pane displays the region where the sequence has been found and highlights the area. If gaps were introduced into the fragment being searched, they are ignored.

Identifying Ambiguous Positions in the Contig

The Alignment Pane can be configured for various text and background displays. Options are accessed on the **Fragments Highlight** tab from the View menu > **View Options**, or the respec-

tive Toolbar button (1177). The default settings (Highlight Subject = Ambiguity) and colors use a

yellow background to highlight ambiguous positions, and red characters to identify the base calls in a fragment that differ from the contig consensus sequence at that position.

Find Next/Previous Ambiguous Symbol

To search a fragment or a contig consensus sequence for ambiguous positions or symbols ("N"

or "R"), click on the Find Previous () or Next Ambiguous () buttons or select View > Find Previous or Next Ambiguous.

If you start this search with a sequence selected, the search proceeds from the selection in the specified direction. If there is no selection, the search starts from the start (Find Next) or the end (Find Previous) of the contig.

If an ambiguous position or symbol is found, its position is selected and displayed. If there are no more ambiguous symbols in the specified direction, you are informed as such.

Generating a Difference Report

You can generate a Difference Report between any 2 selected fragments, or a fragment and the consensus. Select on the fragment name in the fragment names list and use the **Compare To...** command in the View menu or shortcut menu. In the Difference Report dialog, select a target for comparison from the combo box menu and click **Compare**. The resulting Report (Figure 31.19) may be saved to a folder and opened in a text editing program.

ifferen	ce Repor	t					×
Consei	nsus			•	Compare	Save As	Cancel
Found HS354 Pos Seq1 Seq2 Action	7 difference _C02_357 ID: - Origin - Base - Base - Chang to mal	e(s) betwee 2_R_0.g a al position in HS354 in Consen ge needed tch corresp	en ind Consensus. in HS354_C02_3572 C02_3572_R_0.g. sus. in HS354_C02_357; ionding position in Co	2_R_0.g. 2_R_0.g onsensus.			×
Pos 849 851 883 901 910 934 949	Seq1 N N N N N N N	Seq2 C G C C C C C C	Action Change base Change base Change base Change base Change base Change base Change base				
4							Þ

Figure 31.20 Difference Report between a fragment and the contig consensus

Switch the Fragment's Chromatogram On/Off

To alternate the display of the chromatogram of the highlighted fragment, click on the Show/

Hide Chromatogram button(¹) on the Pane Toolbar or select **Show/Hide All Chromatogram** on the shortcut menu. You can also select **View > Show/Hide All Chromatograms** from the menu bar. *If the fragment does not have a chromatogram, these actions are disabled.*

Repositioning a Fragment

Any fragment in the Alignment Pane can be moved vertically to bring it alongside any other fragment (or the consensus). Simply select the fragment name in the fragment names list, and drag it to the new position. (In contigs generated in Lite Contig mode, use the shortcut commands **Move Fragment Up/Down**.

Customizing Fragment Color in the Sequence Pane

You can customize the color of the text and its background in the Sequence Pane. For more information on customizing Sequence Pane text color, see *Window Viewing Options*, page 472.

Consensus Calculation and Display

The CAP3 algorithm calculates a consensus by weighted averages. The default display of the consensus sequence is according to the most probable base at a position, using QV scores when available. Alternative displays (i.e. using IUPAC ambiguity symbols) are available through

the Viewing Options dialog > Consensus tab, from the View menu or Toolbar button



Positioning the Consensus

When the Contig Viewer is first opened, the consensus sequence (nucleotide and symbol formats) are displayed at the bottom of the alignment. This can be changed by clicking on the shortcut menu anywhere in the Alignment Pane to display both formats at the top of the pane, thus juxtaposing the consensus and the scale. Wherever the consensus is placed, any fragment can be positioned alongside it for comparison by dragging or by using the vertical scroll bars on

the right side of the pane. Extended vertical scrolling from the Toolbar (Ago) is available for

contigs that contain a large number of fragments which cannot easily be viewed simultaneously on screen.

Translating the Consensus Sequence

The Alignment pane can display amino acid translations using standard translation, below (or above) the consensus sequence, in any or all forward reading frames, by toggling the respective buttons on the View menu > **Consensus Translation** the shortcut menu, or the Toolbar. Ambiguous positions in the consensus are translated as a single, defined amino acid if codon degeneracy permits (i.e. GGN = Gly). Gaps in the consensus are ignored in the translations, as they

are in ORF calculation. The Toolbar button (1997) allows display in single-letter or three letter

codes. To search the consensus for a reading frame that supports a specific conceptual translation, select the consensus, activate **Set Translation Frame(s)** from the View or shortcut menu, and type or paste in an amino acid string in single-letter code (Figure 31.21). You can also check/uncheck translation frames.

Set Translation Frame(s)		? ×
Amino Acid string:		
vyafey		
Translation Frames		
✓ +1 ✓ +2 ✓ +3	Find Frame(s)	Cancel

Figure 31.21 Enter an amino acid string and search for a supporting reading frame

Additional operations can be performed when the Contig Viewer is placed in Edit Mode. These are described in the next section.

Editing Contig Fragments or Consensus

Placing the Contig Viewer in Edit Mode from the Toolbar button (E) allows you to edit the

fragments that comprise the contig, change their positions or orientation or edit the consensus itself. In general, operations that alter the consensus sequence must be done in Edit mode. Obvious examples are insertions, deletion or replacements to a fragment or consensus, and shifting fragments or blocks. Some non-obvious operations are reverse complementing fragments or contigs, and declaring a reference sequence (the reference sequence is dropped from consensus calculation).

All editing changes in the fragments cause an immediate recalculation and redisplay of the contig's consensus sequence. If necessary, editing changes in the contig consensus are reflected immediately in the fragment sequences that comprise the contig. Although the basic sequence editing techniques are the same as in the Sequence Pane of the Fragment Viewer, there are some editing limitations and specifics because the fragments are incorporated in a contig. Since fragments in a contig can also be present in contigs from other assemblies in the project, such edits are allowed only after you confirm that you are aware that any other assemblies containing the fragment may be dismissed.

Warning		×
⚠	After you save your changes in a contig, all assemblies containing this fragment, except this one, will be dismissed. Do you want to edit this fragment anyway?	
	Make contig read-only	
	<u>Yes</u> <u>N</u> o	

Figure 31.22 Warning message regarding editing the contig

Note: This warning only appears the first time you attempt editing changes (Figure 31.22). If you select **Yes**, you will be allowed to continue making more changes without warning. Click **Yes** to accept the changes. If you check the **Make contig read-only** box, the Yes option is disabled. If you select **No**, you are returned to the Contig Viewer.

If your changes are base deletions, the nucleotides are deleted from the chromatogram and the gap is closed. Bases to the right of the deleted region now move to the left and a vertical marker appears in the sequence at the position of the deletion. (If the base being deleted is at the left end of a fragment as positioned in the contig, there is an option of **not** moving the remaining bases to the left: **Viewing Options** > **General** tab > **Keep position**). The consensus is updated.

If the fragment track is displayed (with or without chromatogram), you can compare the edited sequence with the original sequence (dye-associated) below it. Also, if you open the edited fragment in the Fragment Viewer, the editing changes are reflected in the sequence.

To help you track edits in the contig, new symbols arising from insertions and replacements in the fragments are displayed in a teal color. Positions where a deletion occurred are indicted by a vertical red bar. These indicators are preserved for later reference when the edited contig is saved and closed.

Note on Editing Lite Contigs

When a lite contig is generated, the "fragments" seen in the contig are no longer distinct entities. Edits performed on sequences in the Contig Viewer are not transferred to the original fragments, but to local sequence copies that are part of the contig. Since the edited sequences are not distinct entities, they cannot be reassembled.

If you nonetheless want to reassemble the *edited* sequences, in the List Pane select all the fragments comprising the contig (not the contig itself). From the shortcut menu, choose **Export Fragment** > **to GenBank or FASTA** format. This will save the edited sequences in a multiple sequence file which can then be reloaded into Contig Express for further processing

Editing Commands

The following operations require the Contig Viewer to be in Edit mode (E). Once this is done,

several Toolbar buttons become active. Many, though not all operations can be performed similarly in the Graphics Pane or the Contig Alignment Pane, with the results synchronized to the other pane. Note that positioning the cursor and making a selection are not identical actions and the following operations may require one but not the other.

Insert Bases or Gaps

In the Alignment Pane, **position the cursor** immediately ahead of the desired position in a fragment or the consensus and type one or more bases. IUPAC symbols are accepted. All symbols are case-insensitive and always displayed in upper case. To insert a gap, use the keyboard space bar. A gap position is represented by a dash (-). Insertions in a fragment will update the consensus. Insertions made in the consensus will be updated to all fragments that map to that position in the consensus.

Delete Bases or Gaps

In the Alignment Pane, **position the cursor** immediately ahead of the desired position in a fragment or the consensus and press the Delete button on the keyboard one or more times. You can also select a continuous stretch of bases and use the keyboard Delete button to remove them. Bases and gaps are deleted in the same way. Deletions in a fragment will update the consensus. Deletions made in the consensus will be updated to all fragments that map to that position in the consensus.

Replace Bases or Gaps

In the Alignment Pane, **select** a single position in a fragment or the consensus and type the replacement from the keyboard. Replacement is disabled if more than one position is selected. Only IUPAC accepted symbols are accepted. Bases and gaps are replaced in the same way. However, replacing a base with a gap requires that the base first be deleted, and then a gap inserted in its place. A replacement in a fragment will update the consensus. A replacement in the consensus will be updated to all fragments that map to that position in the consensus. Note that at an ambiguous position in the contig, overtyping the consensus with the current symbol is *not* a replacement and does *not* update disagreeing fragments.

Translating the Consensus

The consensus sequence translation can be displayed in the Alignment Pane in any one or all of the three direct frames. Display (or hide) the consensus translation in a particular frame by choosing the corresponding **View > Consensus Translation > Frame <#>** command from the Main Menu or by clicking its **Consensus Translation - <#>** Frame button counterpart.

Common Operations in the Graphics and Contig Alignment Panes

The following operations can be performed similarly in the the Graphics Pane and the Contig Alignment Pane.

Highlighting a Fragment

The following commands require that a fragment or block be highlighted. To highlight a fragment, click on a fragment "arrow" of a Contig in the Graphic Pane or on a fragment name in the Alignment Pane fragments name list. The same fragment is concurrently selected in other panes of the window.

Moving a Fragment

This action changes the position of a fragment in the contig. It is possible only when there are adjacent gaps in the direction of its movement or if the fragment relocation does not create any gaps in the contig.

There are multiple methods for moving a highlighted fragment in the contig

Press the keyboard CTRL button and continuously select a fragment. You will see a drag icon (
 and you can drag the fragment to the new location. The new position of the fragment is shown in both a pop-up label and the workspace Status Bar. Release the mouse to drop the fragment into its new location. *Fragment moving is cancelled if you switch to another window before dropping the fragment.* Since moving a fragment is not allowed to introduce gaps into the contig, your ability to drag will be appropriately limited.

- Select View > Move Fragment ... or the corresponding command on the shortcut menu. In the dialog box that opens, enter the number of bases and direction (right or left). A text message calculates the permitted range of the move, given the rules described above. Click OK to move the fragment to the new position. The contig consensus is recalculated.
- 3. Click one of the **Move Fragment** buttons on the Toolbar. On two buttons ($\begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \end{array}{} \end{array}{} \end{array}{} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \end{array}{} \end{array}{} \end{array}{}) one click moves the highlighted fragment one position in the respective direction. when movement in any direction is no longer possible, the respective button becomes disabled. The third button opens the dialog described above, to enter a range and direction.$

For each of these actions, the consensus is recalculated and all panes of the Contig Viewer are updated. Use the **Undo/Redo** buttons to reverse or repeat each movement.

Move a Highlighted Sequence Block in the Alignment Pane

Blocks of sequence within a fragment may be moved left or right to close a gap. This is often done on blocks that are short enough to be viewed on-screen in their entirety. Highlight such a block in a fragment by double-clicking anywhere within it in the Alignment Pane. Click on the

Move block to the left/right buttons (🔚 🔛) to shift the block one position at a time. You

can click repeatedly to move the block over several gapped positions. Once there is no longer a gap in that direction, the button is disabled. Moving blocks in the consensus sequence is not permitted.

Reverse Complement a Fragment or Contig

To reverse a fragment, highlight the fragment, click the Reverse Complement Fragment button

(100) frrom the Toolbar, or select **Reverse Complement Fragment** from the **View** or shortcut

menu. The fragment will be reverse complemented, the contig consensus is recalculated and all panes of the Contig Viewer are updated.

To reverse complement the entire contig, use the command **Reverse Complement Contig** from the **View** or shortcut menu.

Declare a Reference Sequence

For use in specific situations, you can declare a fragment a reference sequence. The use of a reference sequence in a contig will be described more fully below. For now, it is sufficient to know that declaring a fragment a reference sequence is a form of editing, since the effect is to remove it from consensus calculation. The consensus is therefore recalculated for the remaining fragments in the contig. To make a reference sequence declaration, select the intended fragment and choose **Reference Sequence** from the context-sensitive shortcut menu.

Use of a Reference Sequence

For workflows in applications such as comparative genomics or forensics, it is useful to include a reference sequence in the assembly. Such a sequence may be introduced into ContigExpress in any supported file format and may or may not include a chromatogram. Add the reference sequence to the project in the Explorer List Pane and include it in the assembly. In the Contig Viewer, select the reference sequence in the Alignment Pane fragment names list, and click **Reference Sequence** from the shortcut menu. (This action is not permitted unless the Viewer is in Edit mode.) Only one sequence may be designated as reference at any one time in a contig.

The selected sequence reappears in lower case letters and pink highlight (Figure 31.23). Generally, it no longer contributes to the consensus calculation or any analysis derived from it (ambiguity, protein translation, etc.). However if the reference constitutes single coverage anywhere in the contig, it will define the consensus for that domain. The reference sequence can be moved vertically in the names list to facilitate comparison with any other sequence, and in Difference Reports (page 482) it can be compared to any fragment or the recalculated consensus.

📋 ContigExpress - [Contig	1*]										- 🗆 ×
🚘 Contig Edit View	v Aligr	n Analyses A	ssemble Too	ls Window H	Help						5	- 8 ×
	× 3	, • •	tt (ð, 🎒 🕅	?							
	ATC 189	271		≜ <u>≜a</u> a∄g <mark>V</mark>	\overrightarrow{v} \overrightarrow{z} \overrightarrow{z}	$\overrightarrow{}_{2} \xrightarrow{}_{3} \overrightarrow{}_{3}$	L →N På					
		2430		440	2450	2460	2470	2480	2490	2500	2510	
« AF043045	2424	gaaggete	ataaca <mark>g</mark> t	<mark>g</mark> aggegge	gggcgt	cgtcggaggg	tgcgatgaco	cggcaccaggt:	aggggctttcc	gggatgtgct	catcattgaa	actt
« HS354_C02_58	1	GAAGGNTC.	ATAACA <mark>A</mark> 1	AGGCGGC	GGGCNT	NGTCGNAGGG	TNCGATGAC	CGGCACCAGGT.	AGGGGCTTTCC	GGGATGTGCT	CATCATTGAL	ACTT
» HS354_C02_70	91	GAAGGCTC.	ATAACA <mark>G</mark> I	GAGGCGGC	GGGCGT	CGTCGGAGGG	TGCGATGAC	CGGCACCAGGT.	AGGGGCTTTCC	GGGATGTGCT	CATCATTGAL	ACTT
« HS354_C02_63	479	GAAGGCTC.	ATAACA <mark>G</mark> I	GAGGCGGC	GGGCGT	CGTCGGAGGG	TGCGATGAC	CGGCACCAGGT.	AGGGGCTTTCC	GGGATGTGCT	CATCATTGA	ACTT
» HS354_C02_75	576	GAAGGCTC.	ATAACA <mark>G</mark> I	GAGGCGGC	GGGCGT	CGTCGGAGGG	TGCGATGAC	CGGCACCAGGT.	AGGGGCTTTCC	GGGATGTGCT	CATCATTGA	ACTT
« HS354_C02_68	• 955	i l										-
Contig 1	2424	GAAGGCTC	ATAACAGI	GAGGCGGC	GGGCGT	CGTCGGAGGG	TGCGATGAC	CGGCACCAGGT.	AGGGGCTTTCC	GGGATGTGCT	CATCATTGAI	ACTT
		•	+	+	•	• •	•					
		•										Þ
Info pane Graph pan	e Alig	nment pane										
Ready								Pos: 2425/975				

Figure 31.23 Reference Sequence AF043045 supports calling G at positions 2440 and 2442 of contig generated from fragments of HS3454_C02

Note: If any fragment in an assembly lacks QV scores (e.g. a .gb file intended as a reference sequence), QVs associated with all other fragments will be ignored during assembly. To avoid such omissions first exclude the reference from assembly, then re-assemble the resulting contig with the reference sequence.

Window Viewing Options

The following section summarizes various review and display options available for the Alignment Pane. Many of the default options have been described already in context. Other alternatives have been alluded to briefly or not at all.

The Contig View Options dialog box (Figure 31.24) for may be opened from the View menu >

View Options, or by clicking on the **Viewing Options** button ()) on the Toolbar. The Contig Viewing Options dialog box has five tabs for setting various Contig Viewer viewing parameters. You can save configured settings to a file using the **Save** button and load previously saved settings in using the **Load** button.

General Tab

By default, the Contig Viewing Options dialog box opens to the General tab (Figure 31.24):

ncig vie	ew options					
ieneral	Fragments Highligh	ht Weight Table	ORF Ca	onsensus		
Gaps	-					
Г	Do not count gaps					
	in Set Caret and					
	dialogs					
100000						
- Un L	Delete 5" end					
ΘK	leep position					
C M	love to the left					
					17. X	

Figure 31.24 Contig Viewing Options dialog – General tab

 Gaps – Check the Do Not Count Gaps.... check box if you want to ignore gaps in the assembled sequence when setting a selection or position via the Set Selection or Set Cursor methods. This option is useful when you want to navigate the Viewer following the original numbering scheme of a fragment.

• On Delete 5' End – Select the option to keep a fragment in its current aligned position or move it to the left when you delete bases from its left end as it appears in the contig.

Fragment Highlights Tab

The Fragment Highlights tab (Figure 31.25) controls custom highlighting and coloring options for the text and background in the Alignment Pane of the Contig Viewer.

Contig view options	
General Fragments Highlight Weight Table	ORF Consensus
Highlight Subject Bases: C Iext C Background Columns: C Brobability C Mone Min probability Mag probability	ht nd golor: Probability (%): ility marks with: arightness rightness rightness Default
	OK Cancel Load Save

Figure 31.25 Contig Viewing Options dialog – Fragment Highlights tab

- **Highlight Subject** Determines the subject of highlighting/coloring that appears in the Alignment Pane.
 - Bases Choose to color/highlight the text or background of individual bases in the Alignment Pane using chromatogram default colors (T – red, A – green, G – black, C – blue). Note that you cannot change the color schemes for the Text selection.
 - Columns This provides a color scheme to columns in the alignment, based on several criteria:

Ambiguity is the default option. This provides a color background to any column with any base disagreements, and a counter color to the specific bases in that column that disagree with the consensus. A palette of colors is provided for the user to choose from, from the Basic Background Color and Text Color drop down menus.

Probability – Allows you to highlight the background based on the quality of the assembly at each position.

None -No coloring/highlighting of the sequence in the Alignment Pane.

- **Probability Highlight** Controls color choice and dynamic range for the **column** highlight subject. The ATG graphic on the right provides a preview of how the current highlight configuration will appear in the Alignment Pane.
- **Brightness** Controls the color brightness for minimum and maximum probability shading (i.e. choose to indicate higher probability with a higher or lower degree of shading).
- Min/Max Probability (%) Designates the percent range that the ATG probability shading example pertains to. Narrowing the range displayed, allows for finer color gradation within the entire range.

Weight Table Tab

The Weight Table tab (Figure 31.26) allows you change the nucleotide symbol weight coefficients used in calculating the Weight Graph data in the Graphics Pane.

	A	С	T	G	В	D	н	Κ	М	N	R	S	U	V
4	10	-9	-9	-9	-9	10	10	-9	10	10	10	-9	-9	10
0	-9	10	-9	-9	10	-9	10	-9	10	10	-9	10	-9	10
T	.9	-9	10	-9	10	10	10	10	-9	10	-9	-9	10	-9
G	-9	-9	-9	10	10	10	-9	10	-9	10	10	10	-9	10
B	-9	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10
D	10	-9	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10
H	10	10	10	-9	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10
K	-9	-9	10	10	10	10	10	10	-9	10	10	10	10	10
V	10	10	-9	-9	10	10	10	-9	10	10	10	10	-9	10
N	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10
F	10	-9	-9	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	-9	10
S	-9	10	-9	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	-9	10
U	-9	-9	10	-9	10	10	10	10	-9	10	-9	-9	10	-9
V	10	10	-9	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	-9	10
14	/ 10	-9	10	-9	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	-9	10	10
×	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10
Y	-9	10	10	-9	10	10	10	10	10	10	-9	10	10	10 -
d i	-									T				

Figure 31.26 Contig Viewing Options dialog – Weight Table tab

To change a coefficient for any nucleotide symbol pair, click in the table cell that is formed by the intersection of the nucleotide pair and enter a new value. The table has diagonal symmetry because the order of the symbols in the pair is irrelevant; the changes in one half of the table are instantly mirrored in the other half.

ORF Tab

In the ORF tab (Figure 31.27), you can define parameters for ORFs displayed in the Contig Viewer Graphics and Alignment Panes.

Contig view options	
General Fragments Highlight Weight Table ORF Consensus	
Image: Nested ORFs Image: I	
Stop codons: TAA TGA TAG	
OK Cancel Load Save.	

Figure 31.27 Contig Viewing Options dialog – ORF tab

Start and stop codons can be defined here, as well as the minimum codon size for the search, whether or not to include the stop codon in the ORF, and whether or not nested ORFs will be displayed. Clicking the **Defaults** button restores ORF parameters to their default values.

Consensus Tab

The Consensus tab (Figure 31.28) controls parameters affecting calculation of the contig consensus sequence displayed in the Alignment Pane.

Stringencu		
Determine probability by Trequency of occurrence Phred quality values		
Set probability threshold 50% 100%		

Figure 31.28 Contig Viewing Options dialog – Consensus tab

- Consensus Calling Algorithm Determines how ambiguous positions are displayed in the consensus.
 - Most Probable Base The base call will be the most probable base at the position, determined by base frequency alone, or base frequency and quality values.
 - IUPAC Nomenclature The base call will use the respective IUPAC codes designated for ambiguous positions (see Appendix C for a list of IUPAC conventions).
 - ^o Stringency The base call will be N if the Set Probability Threshold (see below) is un-checked. If checked, it will call the most probable base when the probability is above the set threshold, but call N if it is below.
- Determine Probability By Sets the method used for determining probability. Probability can be based on frequency of occurrence or on base frequency and Phred quality values (see Importing Phred Quality Values, page 416). If the latter is checked but there are no such values in the fragments, determination will be by most frequent occurrence.
- #Set Probability Threshold For Stringency and IUPAC Nomenclature calling algorithms, allows you to set a threshold, above which the most probable base is called, but below which N is used.

Copy and Camera Features

The Copy feature is the same as in other panes except that only the selected part of a highlighted fragment is copied. The Camera feature for this pane works in a slightly different manner than it does in other windows. When you select this action, you will see the Camera dialog box (Figure 31.29):

Format	OK
Metafile	Cancel
C Te⊀t	
ange	
All	
C Selection	
Wiap sequences	th acid

Figure 31.29 Camera dialog

In the Metafile format, only the currently visible part of the Alignment Pane can be copied to the clipboard. The data is copied in the Windows metafile format (WMF).

In the Text format, you can select whether you want to copy a current selection or all data available in the contig (it is not limited to the visible part). You can also set wrapping of the copied sequences at every nth position. The data is copied in the plain text and Rich Text (RTF) formats.

Check the **Exclude Consensus** text box to exclude the contig sequence from the copied text in the Sequence Pane (this feature does not exist in the Graphics Pane Camera dialog box).

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

С нарте **32**

CONTIGEXPRESS: GROUP OPERATIONS ON FRAGMENTS

Introduction

This chapter consists of operations performed on fragments to optimize contig assembly. Operations covered are fragment and vector contamination trimming and calling secondary peaks.

Fragment Trimming

Fragment trimming is an operation performed on chromatogram fragments to optimize sequencing results and contig assembly. Trimming is performed on fragment ends to remove unresolved or poor quality nucleotides based on chromatogram results. It is also used to remove bases identical to restriction sites or other sequences from a vector. An entire chapter is devoted to this operation because of its complexity.

- 1. All fragment trimming is a multi-step process in Vector NTI Advance. Steps in the process are summarized as follows:
- 2. Highlight the fragment(s) you want to trim.
- 3. Open the Fragment Ends, Vector Contamination or Phred Quality Values Trimmer dialog box where trimming parameters are specified.
- 4. Define the trimmer settings.
- Calculate the trimming using the parameters you defined. For Fragment Ends and Vector Contamination trimming, a preview is provided so you can see where the fragments will be trimmed.
- 6. Select or unselect all of the ends to be trimmed.
- 7. Complete the trimming process by closing the dialog box with the **OK** button.

Fragment Ends and Vector Contamination Trimmer Dialog Boxes

In the ContigExpress Project Explorer, select the fragments to be examined and prepared for trimming. To trim selected fragment ends, choose **Edit > Trim Selected Fragment Ends** from

the Main Menu, opening the Fragment Ends Trimmer dialog box (Figure 32.1). To trim selected fragments ends for vector contamination, choose **Edit > Trim Selected Fragments For Vector Contamination** from the Main Menu (**Note:** the Vector Contamination dialog box is identical to the Ends Trimmer dialog box except for the title).

When first opened, the dialog box displays the default settings for the type of trim used. While the dialog box is open, you can change the trimming settings and recalculate the trims as many times as you wish.

The dialog box contains a scrollable list of Fragment mini-windows for all the fragments you selected for trimming in Project Explorer. To facilitate viewing the trim locations, this dialog can be resized like any other window using the keyboard or mouse.



Figure 32.1 Fragment Ends Trimmer dialog box

The Fragment Trimmer dialog box buttons are described in the steps below. It is suggested that you follow them as numbered.

The fragments you selected in the Project Explorer are listed in "mini-windows" in this dialog box. Each mini-window shows one fragment with information on how the current trim will affect it. In this window, you can select those trim locations to be used in the final trim for the fragment in the project.

When the fragments are displayed as sequences (the Display Sequence box is checked), the Fragment mini-window (Figure 32.2) has the following elements. (Some of the elements do not appear until after the calculation step):



Figure 32.2 Fragment Mini-window when fragments are displayed as sequences

- Fragment name is the name of the fragment in the ContigExpress Project;
- **Fragment statistics** show the number of good (non-ambiguous) bases and the number of ambiguous bases in the fragment;
- Fragment sequence is the nucleotide sequence of the fragment; the ends that will be trimmed are in lowercase and selected in the red color, all the rest will remain intact after trimming;
- **Trim statistics** shows the amount of bases that will be trimmed off the fragment from each end and the amount of ambiguous bases among them;
- Select trimming location boxes allow you to select the ends that will be trimmed.

Due to window size constraints, usually only the most important parts of the sequence, the places around the trim locations, are displayed. Omitted parts of the sequence are replaced with ellipses (...). To view the entire fragment in a Fragment Display Window (in Read-Only mode), double click anywhere in a mini-Window

To display fragments in a graphical form, with a bar differentiating (in different colors) the parts for trimming from the remaining sequence part as seen below, uncheck the Display Sequence box. The result is shown below (Figure 32.3):

To remain after trimming To be	e trimmed
🐰 Fragment Ends Trimmer	
□ [biplay Sequence] Select ≙ll Ends □	
HS354_C02_M13R_0.g 994 good bases, (332 ambigs)	
☑ 3' Trim 451 bases, (323 ambigs)	
Selected Ends will be trimmed as shown	OK Cancel

Figure 32.3 Fragment Mini-window when fragments are displayed in graphical form

Follow the trimming steps in the numbered order:

1. Set fragment display options

To establish the fragment display format, check or uncheck the Display Sequence box or press alt-D.

2. Define trimmer settings

Click on the **Settings** button or press alt-S, opening the Trimming Settings dialog box. The contents of this dialog box may vary according to the type of the Fragment Trimmer dialog box. See the section on Vector Contamination Trimming for more details.

Fragment Ends Trimming Settings dialog box

The settings defined in this Trimmer Settings dialog box (Figure 32.4) determine how contig fragments' ends are trimmed. When the dialog box is opened, its fields are filled with the current settings. To load previously saved parameters, click the **Load from File** button.

Fragment Ends Trimming Settings
<u>5</u> ' end
Remove blocks of off-scale peaks >= than 3 consecutive bases
Scanning entire fragment, trim until 5' end (30 bases) contains < 3 ambiguities
Scanning entire fragment, trim until 5' end (25 bases) contains < 3 bases with QV < 10
Trim at least 50 5' bases
<u>3'</u> end
From max peak, trim from first block of 20 consecutive bases < 25 % of the max value, to the end
Scanning entire fragment, trim until remaining 3' end (30 bases) contains < 3 ambiguities
Scanning entire frag., trim until remaining 3' end (25 bases) contains < 3 bases with QV < 10
Trim at least 50 3' bases
- Post trimming
Maximum remaining length 50 bases
Remove leading and trailing ambiguities
Remove poly A/T (more than 10 consecutive)
Load Save DK Cancel

Figure 32.4 Fragment Ends Trimming Settings dialog box

5' end:

- Trim __ consecutive off-scale bases removes the defined # of consecutive bases that are below acceptable criteria
- Trimming until __ 5' bases ... can be based upon chromatogram quality
- Trim at least ____ 5' bases is an arbitrary setting that may be based upon the fact that your primers have "tails"

3' end:

- Trim until ____ 3' bases ... % of maximum value removes bases whose peaks do not meet the % value you define
- From position ... trim first... removes these bases if you can see that quality well into the sequence is not good
- Trim until ___ 3' bases ... ambiguities trims poorly resolved bases
- Trim at least... removes bases that begin to be poorly resolved at the 3' end

Post trimming

- Define maximum ... set the length of the fragment that must be left after trimming
- Leading and trailing ... removes poorly resolves nucleotides that may be left after trimming
- Remove poly A/T... removes these nucleotides that may be present if the sequence was flipped, producing a poly-T 5' end.

Click **Save to File** to save these settings as a file to be used in the future. Click **OK** to apply the new settings in the current trimming exercise and return you to the Fragment Ends Trimmer dialog box. This also saves these settings as default settings for all future trim calculations. To cancel changes, click the **Cancel** button.

If you calculated the trims before redefining these settings, you must recalculate after closing the Settings dialog box to view trimmings according to the new settings.

3. Calculate the trim

Calculate! shows the potential trimming under the parameters you set in the Trimmings Settings dialog box. To calculate the trim for all fragments using the current settings, click the **Calculate!** button or press alt-C. Since trim calculation can be a lengthy process, a progress dialog box appears with a progress bar (Figure 32.5). *Click the Cancel button or the ESC key to stop the process.*

Fragment Trin	nming Progress
-1 1 2-	
10 N	
	Cancel

Figure 32.5 Progress dialog box with progress bar

If the trim calculation process is allowed to complete, all fragments are updated with newly calculated trim locations, displayed in red, lower-case nucleotides in the mini-windows (Figure 32.6).

🐰 Fragment Ends Trimmer		'
I▼ Display Sequence	Select All Ends	
Calculate! Settings	Unselect All Ends	
Soft By Name % of trimmed bases N	lumber of trimmed bases	
HS354_C02_M13R_0.g		-
	994 good bases, (332 ambigs)	
	$\texttt{TACATACTATAGGGAATNGCTGGAGGCAA}\dots\texttt{CCCATTGAACTTGACATCNATGGNGTGGAnaccattntnatgagggatnaancnaacn}.$	
	☑ 3' Trim 451 bases, (323 ambigs)	
HS354_C02_M13F_0.b		
	616 good bases, (694 ambigs)	
	$\tt CTAATGGCCCAANATGATTTTATTTTGAC\ldots GCANAGGCTGCTGGGGTGGATTCANAACAnnatcenntacttgccnatcannnnnttt.$	• •
	☑ 3' Trim 747 bases, (687 ambigs)	
HS354_C02_975_F_0.b		
	970 good bases, (13 ambigs)	
	nnn AN A AT A C AGT CT CT TT G C G G A C A G C A C A T T G A T C T G G T T T C G A G C A T A C N G G C C A G N T	
	Trim 3 bases, (3 ambigs) 🗹 5'	
HS354 CO2 7510 R O.a		-
Selected Ends will be trimmed as shown	OK Cancel	

Figure 32.6 Calculated trims to remove ambiguous regions from fragment ends

4. Select trimming locations

Click **Select All Ends** or press Alt-A to select all of the trim locations displayed in the mini-windows for the final fragment trimming. Click the **Select All Ends** or **Unselect All Ends** buttons or use keystrokes Alt-A or Alt-U respectively. Note that all of the checkboxes for the ends are

checked as in this example: 🗹 5

For manually selecting trim locations on individual molecules for final fragment trimming, press the **Unselect All Ends** button in the Fragment Ends Trimmer dialog box. This unchecks the 5' and 3' boxes for each fragment in the mini-windows. In the mini-window(s) in which you wish to select the trim locations, click on the appropriate fragment check boxes, **5 5 3**

When a location is selected, the respective part of the fragment will be trimmed off when the trimming is completed.

5. Confirm the proposed trimming operation

To open a Fragment Window for any fragment in a mini-window so that you can review and compare prospective fragment trimming with the corresponding chromatogram, double-click anywhere in the mini-window. *The Fragment Window that opens is in read-only mode.*

As this window is created, the fragment that will remain after trimming is selected in the fragment sequence, both in the Sequence Pane and in the top sequence of the Chromatogram Pane. *The fragment opened this way is always opened in read-only mode.*

If the Fragment Window for the fragment already exists, the selection is made inside it and it is brought to the foreground.

6. Complete the trimming operation

Once parameters and trimming conditions are established, click **OK** to close the dialog box and proceed with the fragment trimming. To close the dialog box without changing the fragments in the project, select the **Cancel** button or press the **ESC** key.

Vector Contamination Trimming Settings Dialog Box

The purpose of the Vector Contamination Trimming feature is to trim from sequenced fragments any residues from your frequently used cloning vectors that may have been amplified in the sequencing process.

In the Vector NTI Database Explorer, highlight the cloning vector in the List Pane, or open a vector in a Molecule Display window and select a sequence such as a frequently-used polylinker site. Select **Tools > Send to > Polylinker to ContigExpress**.

In the Choose Polylinker file name dialog box, name the sequence, making sure you retain the .seq extension because this is the only way ContigExpress recognizes this sequence for the trimming operation. Click **Save** to save the sequence in the VecContData folder.

Notes about sending sequences for vector trimming:

- From Database Explorer, you can send only one vector at a time.
- If you have been sequencing off of the complementary strand, be sure and indicate this, as only one strand is forwarded to ContigExpress.
- In naming the sequence, make sure you retain the seq extension because this is the only way ContigExpress recognizes the sequence for the trimming operation.

Now in the Project Explorer in ContigExpress, select the sequenced fragments to be trimmed and choose **Edit > Trim Selected Fragments for Vector Contamination**. This opens the Fragment Vector Contamination Trimmer dialog box, (not shown but similar to the Ends Trimmer dialog box).

Vector Trimmings Settings

In this dialog box, click the **Settings** button to open the Fragment Vector Contamination Trimmer Settings dialog box (Figure 32.7). The vectors or polylinker sites you selected in the Database Explorer should be listed in the List Pane at the left. The Edit Pane where you can edit the vector sequence is on the right.

- **Tip:** If when you open this dialog box, the Polylinker List Pane is empty, there can be two reasons/ solutions:
 - 1. You may have defined it incorrectly. Return to the Project Explorer, and select your vector(s) or polylinker(s) as described above.

2. You may have selected the vector/polylinker correctly, but you lost the .seq extension in naming them when they were saved in the VecContData folder.

Remove additional 0 bases from a contaminated 5' end ites: 30 Remove additional 0 bases from a contaminated 3' end								
Add Insertion Point Remove Insertion Point Select All Remove Selected Add BEN sites								
1 CARATAATGATTTTATTTTGACTGATAGTGACCTGTTCGTTGCAACAAAT								
51 TGATGAGCAATGCTTTTTTATAATGCCAACTTTGTACAAAAAAGCAGGCA								
101 CCACCCAGCTTTCTTGTACAAAGTTGGCATTATAAGAAAGCATTGCTTAT								
151 CAATTTGTTGCAACGAACAGGTCACTATCAGTCAAAATAAAATCATTATT								
201 TG								

Figure 32.7 Fragment Vector Contamination Trimmer Settings dialog box

The Common Settings in this dialog box are described as follows:

- **Minimum vector overlap** is the minimum number of bases in the fragment that overlap with those on the clone. *This setting must be 5 or greater.*
- Minimum vector overlap with ambiguities includes poorly resolved residues
- Vector match threshold is the % required to match
- Remove additional ... from 5'/3' end... refers to the additional bases to be removed

The polylinker list in the Polylinker List Pane on the left is updated every time you open this dialog box. Check the Auto-refresh box to refresh the list every time you switch to ContigExpress from another application where the Vector Contamination Settings dialog box is open.

By default, a new polylinker is not selected for trimming and has no insertion points.

Editing a Polylinker

To select a polylinker for the trimming process, check the check box to the left of its name and highlight it by clicking on it. To Remove a Polylinker from the list, click the Remove Polylinker(s) button. The Polylinker Edit Pane to the right of the list shows the contents of the selected polylinker. You can use this window for simple editing of the polylinker sequence and for managing the insertion points of the polylinker. Editing commands appear on the buttons; some are also available on a shortcut menu opened from the Edit Pane.

Insertion points can be added to the polylinker using two methods:

 Manual adding: position the caret where you want to add the insertion point; press the INSERT key or click the Add Insertion Point button. Import a group of insertion points using a file with an enzyme database (in Rebase format). Click the Add REN sites button or select Add REN Sites... from the shortcut menu. In the standard Open dialog box, you can select a Rebase file to be applied to the polylinker or simply the Enzlist.dat in the VecContData folder. Select Open, and the enzyme file is imported. The insertion points with the enzyme names are imported to the polylinker. Click on the enzyme name to select it as an insertion point.

Selecting on an enzyme label executes a trim up until (or from) the enzyme cut site. If you wish to trim the site altogether, use the site display as a guide and manually place the insertion point after (for 5' contamination) or before (for 3' contamination) the recognition string.

Vector NTI Advance 10 comes with several .dat files: a preselected set of common enzymes for restriction cloning, a set for TOPO cloning, and for Gateway cloning. In addition, a blank file (MySites.dat) is provided for you to introduce your own cloning sites. To use, open this file (C:\VNTI Database\ VecContData folder) in NotePad, follow the comments and Save.

The following options control the points:

- Remove Insertion Point deletes a selected point. You can also press the DELETE key.
- Remove All Points (on the shortcut menu) remove all insertion points from a polylinker
- Select All selects all insertion points. You can also just click on it. (Selected points are blue; an unselected point is gray.) *A corresponding option is also on the shortcut menu.* To be included in the trimming process, a point must be selected.
- **Remove Selected** deletes selected points. A corresponding option is also on the shortcut menu.

To toggle the selection status of an insertion point, click it with the mouse.

Click on the **OK** button to return to the Trimmings dialog box.

Executing the Vector Contamination Trim Changes

To complete the trimming process, click Calculate. When the trim is calculated, the polylinker sequence and Insertion Points *and their reverse complements* are automatically used, so that forward and reverse sequencing reads can be trimmed using one setup.

After all fragments are processed, they are available in the Fragment Trimmer dialog for review (Figure 32.8). When satisfied with the results, dialog can be closed by clicking **OK** and the Project Explorer contents are updated to reflect the changes.

🔀 Fragment Vector Contamination Trimmer			
IV Display Sequence Select ∆ll Contaminations			
Calculate! Settings			
Soft By Name % of trimmed bases Number of trimmed bases			
HS354_C02_M13R_0.g	^		
866 good bases, (9 ambigs)			
tgccaactttgtacaagaaagctgggttcTAAGGCACTGTGACATGAAAAGGGCTGCCCCCATTGAACTTGACATCNATGGNGTGGA			
Trim 128 bases, (1 ambigs) ☑ 5'			
HS354_C02_M13F_0.b			
556 good bases, (7 ambigs)			
tgccaactttgtacaaaaaagcaggcaccATGCCGGTAACCGAGAAGGATCTAGCTGAGCANAGGCTGCTGGGGTGGATTCANAACA			
Trim 109 bases, (1 ambigs) 🗹 5'			
HS354_C02_975_F_0.b			
970 good bases, (10 ambigs)			
ANAATACAGTCTCTTTGCGGACAGCACATTGATCTGGTTTCGAGCATACNGGCCAGNT			
HS354 CO2 7510 R 0.a	•		
Selected Contaminations will be DK	Cancel		

Figure 32.8 Trim of vector contamination from reads of HS354_CO2. Fragments were cloned in Gateway vector pENTR221

Additional notes on vector trimming:

1. Trimming contamination from TOPO cloning projects.

- a. TOPO vectors are represented in the Vector database as they are supplied and used, i.e., as linear molecules. In this form, it is impossible to define a polylinker crossing both cloning termini. We recommend *temporarily* converting the vector to circular (DNA/RNA menu > Edit > DNA/RNA Molecule tab) in order to definine a suitable polylinker.
- b. Many TOPO vectors are highly symmetric about the 2 cloning termini. Use of the default trimming parameters may trim the entire read. We recommend values of >= 15 for the overlap size and >= 85 for the match threshold.
- 2. Trimming intronic sequence from sequencing reads of amplified exons.

You can use vector trimming operations to remove intronic sequence from amplified exons. In these workflows, the sequencing reads are often primed from sites in the intron regions. To do this, it is necessary is to create a polylinker that joins together direct strand sequence from before and after the exon under investigation.

- a. Using VNTI, open a file containing the annotated exon bounded by intron sequence.
- b. Make a continuous selection from 50 bases before to 50 bases after the exon, i.e. the exon as well as 5' and 3' intron sequence.
- c. Use the selection to create a new linear molecule from the Goal List (Add Fragment to Goal List > Construction fragment > Finish > Run > Construct). Name it exon polylinker.
- d. Open the exon polylinker file, select the exon and delete it; the exon polylinker is now 2 concatenated intron sequences. Save.
- e. Send the edited exon polylinker file to Contig Express as a polylinker (Tools menu > Send To > Polylinker to Contig Express).
- f. In the Vector Trimming dialogs, edit the polylinker by manually placing an Insertion Point exactly where the 2 intron sequences are joined. If the polylinker file was initially defined from -50 to +50 (step 2 above), you can simply place the Insertion Point at the very end of the first sequence row.

Calling Secondary Peaks

ContigExpress can search for secondary peaks in a chromatogram by looking for lower peaks that are as tall as a percentage you define of the highest peak at a base call position (current threshold for secondary base calling). For example, a threshold of 70% would display secondary bases with heights 70% of the taller peak as the appropriate IUPAC ambiguity symbol. This is specifically used for resolving the occurrence of double peaks in a chromatogram.

To initiate this process, in the ContigExpress Project Explorer window select fragments, then select **Edit > Call Secondary Peaks for Selected Fragments**. This opens the Call Secondary Peaks dialog box (Figure 32.9) where you can review potential replacement bases determined by the search for secondary peaks for the group of fragments you selected.

To facilitate viewing the fragment sequences, this dialog can be resized like any other window by using the keyboard or mouse. The panes inside the dialog may be resized by moving the split bars.

The dialog box opens with the default settings for this operation which you can change as you wish. The dialog box has two panes: List Pane on the left with the fragments you selected in the Project Explorer and the Sequence Pane on the right displaying the sequence of the currently selected fragment in that list.

List Pane

The List Pane shows the list of fragments you selected in Project Explorer for sequence editing. Select any fragment in the list to see a preview of the changes in the Sequence Pane. If you are

satisfied with the results, check the box next to the fragment name to allow the displayed changes for this fragment to be saved in the project.

Sequence Pane

This pane displays the preview of changes that will be applied to the sequence using the current call peaks settings. The peaks that will be changed are shown in blue color. The original peaks are shown right under the changed peaks so you can easily track changes (Figure 32.9).

🐰 Call secondary peaks		
Replacement options (all fragments): ✓ Allow Ns to be replaced ✓ ▲llow edited bases to be replaced	Select All Fragments	
✓ … HS354_C02_1124_R_0.g □ … HS354 C02 1480 F 0.b	1 CMCTMNCCYG GMNTTTGCAG TGACTTTACT A A T A	GGCATCTCCC TGGGCCCTTG
□ HS354_C02_1630_R_0.g	51 TCAACACTCA CTTCAAATGG GCTCTTGGAG	ATGTGCTGTC CTGCAAAGAG
HS354_C02_1958_F_0.b	101 GACTGTGACT TTGTGTAGCC CGGTGACCT	GGGCAGATAC TCCACAGAGT
□	151 ATGTCTTGTT CTTGTCACTG TCAGGGGTC	CTTGTGCCTC CTCTTTGTTC
HS354_C02_2600_R_0.g	201 CCTTCTGGGT CCTCAACAAA CACCATCACC	F TCTCCTTGCC CGGCGCTGAT
HS354_C02_2947_F_0.b	251 GGTGTCCACA GTGAACTTGG CTGGCTGCT	CACCATGTTT CCAGTGGGCT
□	301 CGATTCCTCT GCCATAGGCC CTGGCTTTCT	T TCGGGTTGAG TTTGGGTTTG
🔲 🛥 HS354_C02_3572_R_0.g	351 AGAGGAGCCC CCGGCTTGAG CTTGGCTTTC	GGGAACTGGG ACAGGTAAGT
□	401 CATAACTGAG TGCTCGTCCA CATCCGGGTC	3 AATGATTTCT TCAGGAGTGA
HS354_C02_4064_R_0.g	451 TGACCTGTGG GACACCCAGC CAGTCATCTC	G CCTGCTGCAT GGCTTCTCGT
□ HS354_C02_4566_R_0.g	501 GCATTATCCA CAGGCTTCTG CGGGTCCCAG	GATTCCCAGT CTGGGCACAG
□	551 ACCTGGAGCA CAGCTGTCTA CCAGGGCTCC	CAGGGCTTTG CCGTCTTGCC \checkmark
□ ш HS354_CU2_4907_F_0.b □ ш HS354_C02_5061_R_0.g □ щ HS354_C02_5378_F_0.b	▼ Fragment H5354_C02_1124_R_0.g: 6 peak(s) changed Post	s: 1/1
Selected fragments will be updated as shown		OK Cancel

Figure 32.9 Call Secondary Peaks dialog box

The Call Secondary Peaks dialog box buttons are summarized as follows:

- Allow Ns to be replaced allows replacing the Ns with less ambiguous IUPAC symbols, if possible.
- Allow edited bases to be replaced allows replacing of previously edited bases.

If either of the above settings is checked, the selected sequence is immediately regenerated to display a preview of the base that would be changed in the sequence.

- Threshold for secondary base calling defines the percentage of the height of the secondary peak in relation to the first for calling the secondary base
- Select all fragments all fragments with secondary base replacements will be saved into project after clicking OK.
- **Unselect all fragments** reject changes to all listed fragments resulting from recommended secondary calls.

Status Bar

The status bar of the Call Secondary Peaks dialog box (Figure 32.10) shows the name of currently selected fragment in List Pane, and the number of peaks that have changed in its sequence.

Fragment HS354_C02_1124_R_0.g: 11 peak(s) changed	Pos: 767/767	Sel: 108 - 108 : 766 - 766
Status line	Set caret position	Set selection range

Figure 32.10 Call Secondary Peaks status bar
The Set Caret Position and the Set Selection Range boxes show the caret position and a currently selected range of residues in the Sequence Pane. Pressing either of these buttons opens a dialog box where you can set the caret position or range directly.

After you have previewed the changes, check the check box to maintain the changes while you review other fragments. To select other fragments to be changed, click on their fragment IDs in the List Pane.

Executing Calling Peaks Changes

The changes are applied for those fragments checked in List Pane only. To save your changes in the project, click the **OK** button. If any of the affected fragments are included in assemblies, you will be given the option of dismissing the respective assemblies or canceling the changes for that particular fragment.

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

C H A P T E R 33 GENOMBENCH

Introduction

GenomBench, Vector NTI Advance's genome project application, can be used for downloading, viewing, analyzing, annotating and saving local copies of reference genomic DNA sequences served by several principal Distributed Annotation System (DAS) servers as well as private DAS servers. Like Vector NTI, GenomBench has a local database for storing your sequence and analysis results.

GenomBench was designed to support the following workflows:

- Retrieval of genomic data from public DAS servers.
- Graphical and workflow support for editing transcripts under genomic context to obtain full-length cDNAs.
- Positioning or mapping custom transcript sequences onto a genomic backbone.
- Annotating and creating a local copy of a genomic region.

In support of these workflows, it accepts megabase-sized genomic sequences, and all attendant track annotations, and displays the information in an integrated, graphically rich window that provides meaningful access to user-selected regions of human and other genomes. All annotated features are linked to their corresponding region of the genomic sequence backbone; additional information for any sequence-based annotation (for example, mRNAs, ESTs, and STSs), including other defined features from the GenBank record, is easily downloadable. Annotated sequences can be aligned with the genomic backbone simply by dragging-and-dropping into an alignment window.

Proprietary DNA sequences, stored in the Vector NTI local database, can also be positioned along genomic backbones using Spidey or Sim4 alignment algorithms to determine the intronexon structure of genes of interest. Moreover, genomic sequences obtained, analyzed and annotated in GenomBench can be exported to Vector NTI for further sequence analysis, such as PCR primer design or the creation of spliced transcripts.

GenomBench also provides the capability to query public databases, perform sequence and feature searches, translations and alignments, and copy and paste sequence and graphics.

Launching GenomBench

To launch GenomBench, select **Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > GenomBench**, assuming a default Vector NTI Advance installation has been performed. You can also double-click its icon, **NauViewer.exe**, in the program group or folder in which you installed Vector NTI Advance. When GenomBench is first opened, the GenomBench window is empty. GenomBench can also be launched from the Analysis Monitor workspace for completed Analysis Results. See *Viewing Analysis Results in GenomBench* on page 572.

GenomBench provides local storage capability in the form of a database file or .mdb file. If you did not previously have GenomBench installed, continue to the next section to configure database paths. If you had the previous version of GenomBench (version 1) installed on your system with Vector NTI Advance (version 8), the first time you open GenomBench (version 2) with Vector NTI Advance (version 9) the message in Figure 33.1 displays asking you to migrate your current database so that it is compatible with the new version of GenomBench.

Local Sto	rage X
⚠	Your local database is based on an older version of GenomBench and must be migrated to work with this version. This can be done automatically.
	Once migrated, it will not be compatible with older versions of GenomBench. RECOMENDATION: Make a backup copy of the current local database if you plan to use an older version of GenomBench in the future.
	Begin migration?
	OK Cancel

Figure 33.1 Message that displays to migrate the database if a previous version of GenomBench was installed

If you plan to use an existing version of a GenomBench database with the previous version of GenomBench and also want to use that database with the newer version of GenomBench, click **Cancel** in the message, and make a backup copy of the database(s). To locate all copies of existing databases, select **Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > Genom-Bench Utilities > LS Configuration**. Paths to all configured databases are listed in the drop-down menu in the Database Name field. To backup the database, simply copy the .mdb file to a new location.

To continue with the migration, click **OK** in the message. The migration proceeds and opens the GenomBench window when finished. Any existing data remains in the database and you can now save new data as well.

Configuring Database Paths

GenomBench can connect to its own local database and to DAS 1.0/1.5 compliant servers. Your Vector NTI Advance (version 9) installation includes two utilities, LS Configuration and DAS Configuration, for configuring paths and connecting to local GenomBench databases and to public DAS compliant servers, respectively. Although Vector NTI and GenomBench can exchange data, the databases are independent for each.

Configuring the Local Database

The first time you open GenomBench, if there are no previously created local GenomBench databases, you must launch the LS Configuration utility to create a local database. To launch this utility, select Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > GenomBench Utilities > LS Configuration. The Local Storage Configuration dialog box (Figure 33.2) opens

where you can create local GenomBench databases or browse to connect to previously created local databases.

Local Storage Conf	iguration	
Database name:		
C:\VNTI Database\g	b.mdb	Browse
Database type:	MS JET	
User Name:		
Password:		
Host:		Create DB
Port:		Connect

Figure 33.2 Local Storage Configuration dialog box

- Database Name Enter the name of the new local GenomBench database you want to create or click the Browse button to locate an existing local GenomBench database you want to connect to. A suggested name for the default database is provided called gb.mdb located in C:\VNTI Database.
- Database Type Currently only the Microsoft JET database type is supported.
- **User** User name for the database (not required for JET).
- Host Host name for the database (not required for JET).
- **Port** Port designation for the database (not required for JET).
- Password Password for the existing database (not required for JET).
- Reset Resets the configuration dialog box to the default folder, C:\VNTI Database\gb.mdb.
- Create DB Creates the newly configured database.
- Connect Connects to the specified, existing database.

For new GenomBench installations, the Local Storage Configuration dialog box shows a suggested path/name in the **Database Name** field the first time it is launched. Clicking the **OK** button creates this default local database.

The **Connect** button is generally only used when you are connecting to a newly created database or when you are changing the configuration to view a different local GenomBench database that you have previously created.

- You can create multiple local databases and use the LS Configuration utility to connect to them/direct GenomBench to view them.
- Once you have connected to a local database with the LS Configuration utility, Genom-Bench is directed to that database.
- GenomBench can view only one local database at a time.

Configuring DAS Servers

Five public database DAS servers are already configured for you in GenomBench. These are UCSC, Ensembl, euGene, WormBase, and TIGR Arabidopsis. You can view the list of configured DAS servers and their configuration parameters or configure the parameters for a new DAS server in the DAS Configuration dialog box (Figure 33.3). To open the DAS Configuration

DAS Configuration	5		
File View Help			
Server name		UBL] Server properties —
UCSC DAS Server	I	http://genome.cse.ucsc.edu:80/cgi-bin/das/dsn I	Fragment size limit
Ensembl DAS Server	I	http://servlet.sanger.ac.uk:8080/das/dsn/ I	
WormBase	I	http://www.wormbase.org/db/das/dsn/	
TIGR	I	http://www.tigr.org/docs/tigr-scripts/nhgi_scripts/da ፲	Tune Name for
euGene	I	http://eugenes.org:7180/cgi-bin/srsdas/dsn/	cytoBand features:
			cytoBand
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1		
New server Delete se	erver	L	Save Close

dialog box, select Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > GenomBench Utilities > DAS Configuration.

Figure 33.3 DAS Configuration dialog box

Highlight a server name to view or edit its configuration parameters.

To configure a new server, click the **New server** button. An entry is added for the new server. Configure the parameters for the new server as follows:

- Server Name Click the Server Name field for the new entry and enter a server name.
- URL Click the URL field for the new entry and enter the URL.
- Fragment Size Limit Identifies the maximum size fragment this sever allows for download at one time; larger fragments are downloaded in appropriately sized chunks. For example, the UCSC server has a fragment size limit of 200K. To set a fragment size limit, select the Fragment Size Limit box and enter the limit size in the textbox.
- Type Name for CytoBand Features Identifies the feature type name for this server for cytoband features. Of the pre-configured public DAS servers, UCSC, EuGene, Wormbase, and TIGR have cytoband features; Ensembl does not.

To delete a server, highlight its name and click the **Delete server** button.

Click the **Save** button to save any changes.

Opening a Sequence from a DAS Server or a Local Database

Genomic sequences can be opened either from the configured DAS server databases or from a local GenomBench database.

To open a genomic sequence in GenomBench, select **File > Open** or click the **Open** button

() on the toolbar. In the Open Molecule dialog box (Figure 33.4), select the DAS or Local Storage tab to open a genomic sequence or saved fragment, respectively.

Subset	Name	Length	id 🔺
luly 2002 at UCSC	1	245203898	
Apr. 2003 at UCSC	2	243315028	
May 2003 at UCSC	3	199411731	
April 2003 at UCSC	4	191610523	
Feb. 2002 at UCSC	5	180967295	
April 2002 at UCSC	6	170740541	
lune 2002 at UCSC	7	158431299	
lan. 2003 at UCSC	8	145908738	
Nov 2002 at UCSC	9	134505819	
Feb. 2003 at UCSC	M	16571	
Nov. 2002 at UCSC	×	152634166	
lun 2003 at UCSC	Y	50961097	
	1_random	12562665	
	2_random	1464032	
	3_random	423185	
	4_random	1219494	
	6_random	12061844	
	7 random	1057565	-

Figure 33.4 Opening a genomic sequence from a DAS server

In the DAS tab (Figure 33.4), select the server from the drop-down menu and highlight the appropriate source in the Subset column. Select the molecule from the Name column and click **OK**.

In the Local Storage tab (Figure 33.5), highlight the appropriate subset in the Subset column and select the fragment from the Name column. Click **OK**.

Subset	Name	Length	id
iuman Default GB subset	crh7	1972424 200000	3 4

Figure 33.5 Opening a saved fragment from the Local database

Note: The local GenomBench database is empty until you save sequences to it. For more information, see Saving Sequences on page 552.

Once a genomic sequence is opened in GenomBench, information related to the sequence displays in the Overview Pane and the Text tab of the Information Pane (Figure 33.6), but the Feature Map Pane and Sequence, Alignment and Features tabs of the Information Pane remain empty until a fragment is loaded. If the DAS server supports cytoband features, these display in the Overview Pane. The title bar shows information about the downloaded sequence.

Title bar	Thautilus://genome.cse.ucsc.edu:80/cgi-bin/das/hg15/7:no fragment] - Geno 💶 🗖 🗙
Menu bar	File Edit View Feature Tools Help
Toolbar	
Overview Pane	× 100 ' 1200 ' 1400 ' 1600 ' 1800 ' 1000 ' 1200 ' 1400 '1580
Feature Map Pan e	No features loaded. Use "Load Fragment" from File menu
Information Pane with Tabs	 Sequence Alignment Features Text Name : 7 Length : 158,431,299 Image: Text
Status bar ———	Ready No selection

Figure 33.6 Genomic Sequence opened in GenomBench; no features added

Loading Features into the Feature Map Pane

To load features from a DAS server for a fragment into the Feature Map Pane, highlight the fragment area in the Overview Pane and do one of the following:

- Select Load Highlighted Range from the shortcut menu.
- Click the Load Fragment button ().
- Select File > Load Fragment from the drop-down menu.

The features of the highlighted fragment are loaded. If you select **Load Fragment** from the File menu or toolbar button, the Load Fragment dialog box displays, allowing you to define the fragment by start position and length. Click **OK** to load the features.

Note: You can set a maximum size of fragment to download. If your selection exceeds the maximum size, a warning message displays asking if you want to continue and load the first part of the fragment up to the maximum size set of if you want to load in Sequence on Demand mode, which downloads sequence as needed. For more information, see Editing Fragment Loading Configurations on page 534.

If features for the designated fragment exist on the server, the feature information loads into the Feature Map Pane and the Sequence, Text and Features tabs of the Overview Pane in the GenomBench window (Figure 33.9). Features load from the bottom to the top of the Feature Map Pane, progressively, and are categorized by type. Feature type names display on the left side of the Feature Map Pane.

While features are loading, the left <u>is icon</u> in the lower right corner of the status bar flashes to show the progress of loading. Clicking on the icon opens the Data Loading Monitor (Figure 33.7).

Data Loading Monitor								
Main Sequence Supporting Inform	ation		,					
Request	Status	Time	Request 🔺					
⇒ "mouseChain" features	in queue	16:59:36						
⇒ "mouseChainLink" features	in queue	16:59:36						
⇒ "mouseNet" features	in queue	16:59:36						
📫 "blastzBestMm3" features	loading	17:00:16						
⇒ "blastzTightMm3" features	in queue	16:59:36						
⇒ "blastzTightRn2" features	in queue	16:59:36						
⇒ "blatFugu" features	in queue	16:59:36						
⇒ "est" features	in queue	16:59:36						
⇒ "gl" features	in queue	16:59:36						
⇒ "hg15Mm3L" features	in queue	16:59:36						
⇒ "intronEst" features	in queue	16:59:36						
👄 ''mrna'' features	in queue	16:59:36	-					
•								
Details Abort								
			Close					

Figure 33.7 Data Loading Monitor shows the loading status of features

The **Main Sequence** tab in the Data Loading Monitor shows the loading status of features in the fragment. If the Status column contains 'in queue', the feature in the Request column has been downloaded from the server and is waiting to be loaded. The Time column displays the time the features were downloaded from the server. As features are successfully loaded, they are removed from the list. If you do not want to load a particular feature, select it and click the **Abort** button. Features that cannot be loaded remain in the Main Sequence tab and display a status of failed. If there are features that failed to load, the icon in the lower right corner of the status bar changes from to be to indicate that one or more features could not be loaded. For information on why the feature failed to load, select the feature in the Data Loading Monitor and click the **Details** button.

The **Supporting Information** tab in the Data Loading Monitor shows the loading status of target sequences when features are added to the Alignment Tab (Figure 33.8). If a feature has alignment information, then GenomBench can download the feature's associated sequence (usually) from NCBI so you can use it for alignments. For more information, see *Alignment Tab* on page 523. As target sequences for selected features are loaded into the Alignment Tab, the status of the loading is shown. The right icon in the lower right corner of the status bar also shows the progress of target sequence loading. Loading status also displays when features are transferred and when a target sequence is opened. For more information, see Target Sequences on

page 521. Similar to the Main Sequence tab, the Supporting Information tab has Request, Status, and Time columns and Abort and Details buttons.

B Data Loading Monitor		×
Main Sequence Supporting Information	on	
Request ➡ target sequence for "BF211738" ➡ target sequence for "BU941537" ➡ target sequence for "CB149113" ➡ target sequence for "BU532435" ➡ target sequence for "BU532435" ➡ target sequence for "BU533492"	Status loading in queue in queue in queue in queue	Time 17:19:23 17:19:10 17:19:10 17:19:10 17:19:10
		Þ
		Close

Figure 33.8 Supporting Information tab of the Data Loading Monitor

You can designate the types of feature to load by Setting Feature Type Filters, described on page 530, and Editing Fragment Loading Configurations, described on page 534. It can take some time for all the features to load, but you can start working on features that have loaded before the remaining features are loaded. When the feature loading icon stops flashing (), feature loading is complete.

🎕 [nautilus://genome.cse.u	csc.edu:80/cgi-bi	in/das/hg15/17:2005	2975,20957002] - GenomBench			_ 8 ×
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew Featu <u>r</u> e	<u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp					
🛃 🚽 🔚 👙	<u>d</u> 🍋 100	M 🖪 🔂 🗃	00 00 00 tool - 🗮	• 📰 • 🍢 🔽 🗟	ର୍ ର୍ ଭ୍ 😽	
× 000 1000 1000	15M	2014 25M	30M 35M 40M	45M 50M 55M	60M 65M 70M	75M 81M
(p13.3 p13.2 p13.1 p	12 p11.2	M	q12 q21.31	q2 q2 q22 q23.2	q2 q24.3 q25.1	. q25.3)
- O						
[20,	052K 20,100K	20,200K	20,300K 20,400K	20,500	20,700K	20,9576
					81 20000 Mi 100000	BI:
22					25 127272 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 1	BAI
	2222222222 AL 1	5333 2 1 2 333				50 D14
	22222 X 22					BIT
⊟est -						
	BG762537	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
		I MANIN MAN				(Å) (FE
						A .
1		I IIIII				A
1		1 1111				A 💌 🚽
					II 🗰 🍓	P 4
1				1 I.	II K ieki	₽ ₽
14		1			II 🗰 🕪	P 7
I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I		1	4		🕪 🖬 🕪	▶ (
₽		1) Kalendari	νV
ling 🕅		l l				P e -
<u>2</u>						₽ ₽
× Sequence Alignment Feat	ures Text					
Name: 17					,	
Length : 81,691,216 Fragment : 20,052,975 -	20.957.002. Lengt	5 · 904 028				
110gillonic 1 20,002,070	20,507,002, 201iga	11. 50 1,020				
Infe						
Loading Features				No selection	AC	🗉 📥 📥 🖬

Figure 33.9 Genomic sequence opened in GenomBench with features loaded for selected fragment

A mark displays in the Overview Pane ($\mathbf{\mu}$), indicating the position on the genomic sequence of the fragment currently shown in the Feature Map Pane. The Sequence, Features and Text Tabs

in the Information Pane display data for the selected fragment. In addition to genomic sequence information, the GenomBench title bar now shows fragment information.

Features Downloaded from Ensembl

Because of the way the DAS protocol is implemented at the Ensembl site, when fragment features are loaded from Ensembl they come in as one condensed feature called a *component*. To extract features from *components*, perform the following steps.

- Click the + symbol on the left side of *components* in the Feature Map Pane or Name column in the Features tab of the Information Pane to expand the subfeatures. Likewise, if + symbols exist to the left of any of the extracted features, clicking this symbol further extracts these features.
- In the Feature Map Pane, highlight the features you want to extract. You can highlight multiple features by pressing the CTRL key on the keyboard while clicking and dragging a box around the features.

In the Feature Map Pane, drag and drop the selected features above the main *components* feature. Subfeatures can now be grouped according to type (see *Feature Grouping/Ungrouping Operations* on page 520).

Features of the GenomBench Window

General Pane Operations

A number of basic operations can be performed in the different GenomBench panes, including activating panes, removing/restoring panes from view, setting selections and fragments, mark-ing/unmarking selections, and various zooming operations.

Activating Panes

Panes are activated in GenomBench by clicking on them, as they are in other Vector NTI Advance applications. You can also activate a pane (or tab in the case of the Information Pane) by selecting the appropriate command from the View menu: **View > <pane or tab name>**.

Panes in GenomBench are labeled with the Pane name on a vertical bar on the left border of the pane. The active pane label is blue/highlighted; pane labels for the inactive panes are grey. Only one pane can be active at a time.

Removing/Restoring Panes

The Overview and Information Panes can be removed from the GenomBench window. The Feature Map Pane cannot be removed from view.

To remove a pane from view, close it by clicking the X at the top of the pane's title bar.

To restore a removed pane to the GenomBench window, select **View > <pane name>** from the drop-down menu.

The Overview and Information Panes can also be removed from the GenomBench window by dragging them by their title bars and dropping them outside the GenomBench window or by double-clicking their pane's title bars. In this case the pane becomes "undocked" from the main GenomBench window and can be moved independently as a separate window. You can re-dock the pane to the GenomBench window by dragging the pane back into the GenomBench window, above or below the Feature Map Pane, or by double-clicking the pane's title bar again.

Zooming Panes

Zoom the Overview and Feature Map Panes by activating the pane and choosing one of the zoom options from the View menu or by pressing the corresponding zoom button on the toolbar. Panes are zoomed independently. Zoom functions are described in detail in Chapter 3.

Highlighting Sequence Regions

Regions can be highlighted in the Overview and Feature Map Panes and in the Information tab of the Sequence Pane by clicking and dragging with the mouse, similar to other Vector NTI Advance applications.

In the Overview Pane, a whole sequence, a range of the sequence, or the current fragment can be highlighted by selecting the corresponding commands from the Overview Pane shortcut menu.

Setting Selections and Fragments

GenomBench also provides a Set Fragment feature for defining a selection according to fragment coordinates in the Overview Pane and a Set Selection feature for defining a selection based on coordinates in the Feature Map Pane and Sequence tab of the Information Pane.

To set a fragment or selection, select **Edit > Set Fragment** or **Set Selection**, respectively. In the Set Fragment or Set Selection dialog box, enter the Start position and Length for the selection and click **OK**. The corresponding selection appears in the Overview or Feature Map Pane and Sequence Tab.

You can also set a selection by double-clicking a feature. The region spanning the feature is selected.

Marking and Unmarking Selections

Regions of interest and features can be marked and unmarked in the Feature Map Pane and in the Sequence tab of the Information Pane. Marking places a vertical, shaded area along the genomic backbone and helps to delineate all the features in the region (Figure 33.10). Marking a feature can be a powerful method for distinguishing portions of interest in the feature. For example, marking a selected gene prediction feature marks all the exons of the feature but not the introns.

	41,105K 41,110K	41,120K	41,130K	41,140K	41,150K	41,160K	41,170K	41,186K
⊟acembly	BRCALC							N_
	BRCA1.b							W
	BRCAL							W
	BRCAL						\sim	W
	BRCA1.k							
	BRCA1					M////M/		W
α Σ	BRCAL					M////M/		W
E	BRCA1.h			$ \longrightarrow $		M////M		
0 0	BRCA1.g							

Figure 33.10 Selected acembly feature showing marked exons and unmarked introns

To mark a region, select it in either the Feature Map Pane or Sequence tab of the Information Pane using one of the selection techniques described above and click the **Mark Selected Segment** button (III) or select **Marks > Mark Segment** from the Edit or shortcut menus.

To unmark a region, select it and click the **Unmark Selected Segment** button (**III**) or select **Marks > Unmark Segment** from the Edit or shortcut menus.

To remove all marks, and click the **Remove All Marks** button (**III**) or select **Marks > Remove All Marks** from the Edit or shortcut menus.

To mark a feature, click on it in either the Feature Map Pane or Sequence tab of the Information Pane to select it and select **Marks > Mark Selected Feature** from the Edit or shortcut menus. To unmark a marked feature, select **Marks > Unmark Selected Feature** from the Edit or shortcut menus. cut menus.

When features or regions are marked, you can jump from one marked region or feature to the next by selecting **Edit > Select Marked Segments > Next** or **Previous** or use the shortcut keys > and < to move to the next or previous mark respectively. The current marked region is highlighted in the Feature Map Pane as well as in the Sequence Tab of the Information Pane.

Overview Pane

The Overview Pane presents a graphical depiction of the genomic sequence (Figure 33.11) and has the following features:

- A rod-shaped band depicts the sequence/chromosome.
- Narrowed areas on the rod indicate centromeric regions.
- Cytoband patterns are indicated by the vertical dark lines that run the length of the rod. Pause the cursor over a particular cytoband to display a tool tip with information about the cytoband.
- Centromeric regions and cytoband patterns are shown only for those DAS servers that provide the information in the correct format.

×F	lom '	5M	10M	15M	20M	25M	30M	35M	40M	45M	50M	55M	60M	65M	701	1 75M	ŝiM]
Overview	(p1	p1 p13.1	p12	p11.2		q11.2 Pos	ition: 2'	q12 7,484,007 q11.2": 25	q21.3:	100,000	q22	q23.2			q24.3	q25.1 q25.3	

Figure 33.11 Overview Pane

Note: Cytoband data is downloaded from the DAS server. Currently (at the time of this publication), UCSC provides cytoband data for human chromosomes only.

A ruler, visible at the top of the Overview Pane, marks the length of the genomic sequence in 5

Mbp increments. The **u** symbol indicates the fragment area currently shown in the Feature Map and Information Panes.

Feature Map Pane

The Feature Map Pane shows a graphical depiction of the features for the currently loaded fragment (Figure 33.12). You can filter the types of features you want to download for loaded fragments. See Setting Feature Type Filters on page 530.

⊡all_bacends	35,950.0K 36,000.0K 36,050.0K 36,100.0K 36,1 ■ B83611	0.0K
	• AQ108790	
	• AQ109165	
affyRatio		
⊟acembly	_ chr>	
	chr9.93 🚛 🎶 🕴 🛷 chr9.93 16.	D>
	chr9 93 1605	\triangleright
	chr9 93 16054 // >>	\triangleright
	chr9 93 1605.4 > 4 chr9 93 1652.	\triangleright
α Β	chr9 93 1605.4 > 4/chr9 93 1652.4	\triangleright
ture	chr9 93 1605.4 />> 4/ chr9 93 1652.6	₩> 🚽
Бе Ч	chr9	

Figure 33.12 Feature Map Pane showing features for the loaded fragment

Like the Overview Pane, the Feature Map Pane has a ruler at the top to help you visualize the orientation of features along the length of the fragment.

Feature types or tracks display along the left side of the Feature Map Pane. Different features are depicted with various graphical representations and are labeled with the feature name. Shown features are listed along with relevant feature information in the Features tab of the Information Pane. See *Features Tab* on page 532.

Features marked with an orange square (Figure 33.13) have sequences associated with them.



Figure 33.13 Features with associated sequence

The associated GenBank accession number is derived from the Target Accession number of the feature. If this number is a valid GenBank accession number, GenomBench can download the feature's associated sequence (usually from NCBI) so the sequence can be used for alignments in the Alignment tab of the Information Pane. For more information, see *Alignment Tab* on page 523. You can download the features of such sequences, as well. URLs other than NCBI can be associated with any feature to download sequence from sources other than NCBI. For more information, see Specifying Data Source URLs for Feature Types with Alignment Information on page 537.

Note: Many of the operations discussed below for the Feature Map Pane are also available in the Features tab of the Information Pane.

Feature Map Pane Viewing Options

The Feature Map Pane view can be changed in terms of feature layout, feature style, and/or ruler coordinate scale.

Feature Layout Options

In the Feature Map Pane, you can choose between two different feature layout types: Divided by Feature Types and Solid Layout.

• **Divided by Feature Types** – In this layout type, features are shown along the length of the fragment in groups according to type with the feature type indicated on the left side of the pane (Figure 33.10).

In Divided by Feature Types layout, you can change the way in which features are ordered, displayed, and selected in the following ways.

- ^o Change the feature listing order by dragging and dropping the feature type names on the left side of the Feature Map Pane. The pane autoscrolls if there are many feature tracks displayed in the pane. If the Remember Tracks Order option is checked in the Graphic Style Editor Layout tab (see page 534), GenomBench remembers the new order and lists features in this order the next time a fragment is opened.
- ^o Expand or collapse Feature types either individually or globally by selecting Expand Type/Expand All Types or Collapse Type/Collapse All Types from the shortcut menu. To expand or collapse an individual type, the cursor must be in the feature type on the left side of the Feature Map Pane.
- ^o **Sort feature tracks alphabetically** by label by selecting **Sort by Label** from the shortcut menu.

- Highlight all features in a type by selecting Select All Features in Track from the shortcut menu.
- ^o Edit the graphic style of features in a type by selecting **Edit Graphic Style** from the shortcut menu. This opens the Graphic Style Editor, which is described in Editing Graphic Styles on page 531, with the graphical properties of the selected feature type displayed.
- **Solid Layout** In this layout type, features are shown along the length of the fragment where they occur and are not grouped according to feature type. There are no feature category labels at the left of the Feature Map Pane, but the feature type is shown in a tool tip when you pause the cursor over a feature.

To change the Feature Map Pane layout setting, select **Layout Type > <layout type>** from the shortcut menu or **View > Layout Type > <layout type>**. You can also click the **Switch Layout** button (,) on the toolbar.

Feature Style Options

Two different feature style viewing options are available in the Feature Map Pane:

- Full Feature Height Features are shown at full size (Figure 33.10).
- Low Feature Height Features are condensed vertically to save space on the screen.

To change the feature style, select View > Feature Height > Full Feature Height or Low Feature Height. You can also click the Feature Height button (\equiv -) on the toolbar.

Coordinate Scale Options

The Feature Map Pane ruler has two different coordinate scales:

- Global Coordinates Ruler shows coordinates of the genomic sequence.
- Fragment Coordinates Ruler shows coordinates of the current fragment sequence.

The coordinate scale is also reflected in the sequence numbering in the Sequence tab of the Information Pane.

To change the ruler scale, select **View > Coordinates > Global Coordinates** or **Fragment Coordinates** or right-click on the ruler and choose the corresponding commands from the ruler's shortcut menu. You can also click the **Switch Coordinates** button (,) on the toolbar.

Creating, Editing, and Deleting Features

In the Feature Map Pane, features can be created, edited, or deleted from commands available on the Feature menu and/or the Feature Map Pane shortcut menu.

- Create New Feature Opens the Create New feature dialog box so you can create a new feature on the sequence fragment. The Create New Feature dialog box is almost identical to the Edit feature dialog box (see Figure 33.12 and Figure 33.13), except that the feature attribute values are unpopulated. The Reset to Selection and Reset to Mark(s) buttons set the feature position coordinates to the current selection or mark(s), respectively, in the Feature Map Pane/Sequence tab of the Information Pane.
- Delete Selected Features Deletes the feature(s) currently selected in the Feature Map Pane/Features tab of the Information Pane.
- Edit Feature Opens the Edit Feature dialog box where you can edit the current attributes for a feature.

Select a feature in the Feature Map Pane and select **Edit Selected Feature** from the shortcut or Edit menu to open the Edit Feature dialog box for that feature. The Edit Feature dialog box has three tabs: the Basic Attributes tab (Figure 33.14), the Additional Attributes tab (Figure 33.15) and the Links tab (Figure 33.16) in which you can edit the feature attributes. For features of

sequences that are opened from or have been saved to the Local database, a fourth tab displays, the Qualifiers tab (Figure 33.17).

In the Basic Attributes tab (Figure 33.14), you can view and edit basic parameters for the feature, such as feature name, type, orientation and component type and position on the fragment. Click the **Create New Type** button to define a new feature type. Click the **Reset Segments** button to reset the component section to the original values.

Edit Feature BE545490
Basic attributes Additional attributes Qualifiers Links
Name: BE545490
Type: est Create new type
Orientation: C Direct C Complementary C Not oriented
C Single segment
Start 20068021 Length 54142
Multiple segments
Reset segments
OK Cancel

Figure 33.14 Basic Attributes tab of the Edit Feature dialog box

In the Additional Attributes tab (Figure 33.15), you can edit the listed attributes by highlighting the attribute, clicking the icon to the right of its value and typing in or selecting the new value from a list.

Attribute	Value	
Category	transcription	I
References	No	~
Subparts		~
Score		993 🔳
Phase		I
Method ID	id	I
Method	BLAT	I
Group ID	BE545490.chr17.20068020	I
Target name	BE545490	I

Figure 33.15 Additional Attributes tab of the Edit Feature dialog box

The Links tab is for associating a URL or a file directly to a feature (left side of Figure 33.16). Links are added by clicking the **Add** button in the Links tab. In the **Add Feature Link** dialog box that opens (right side of Figure 33.16), either enter or paste a URL or the location of a file in the **Link URL** field. You can also click the **Browse** button to locate a file. Enter a descriptive label in the **Link Label** field; this label is displayed in the shortcut menu of the Feature Map Pane when the feature is selected. Edit a link by selecting the row and either entering new information directly into each field or clicking the **Edit** button, which opens the Edit Feature Link dialog box. Remove a link by selecting the link and clicking the **Remove** button.

To open a link, click the Link value to open the file in the appropriate program or the URL to the appropriate web page. Links can also be added by dragging and dropping files or URLs directly onto a feature in the Feature Map Pane. For more information, see Adding Links to Features on

page 521. Links are only saved with a feature when the fragment is saved to the local database. For more information, see Saving Sequences on page 552.

Edit Feature BE545490	X Add Fe	eature Link	×
Basic attributes Additional attributes Qualifiers Links	Link L	abel : Link to UCSC Browser	
Link Label Link Value	Link	JRL: http://genome.ucsc.edu/cgi-bin/hgTracks?p	Browse
Link to UCSC Browser	u/cqi-bin/hq I	OK	Cancel
Add Edit Remove			
	Cancel		

Figure 33.16 Links tab of the Edit Feature dialog box

For features of sequences that have been saved to the local GenomBench database, a fourth tab, the Qualifiers tab (Figure 33.17), is present. For sequences with associated GenBank entries (features marked with an orange square; see Figure 33.13 and related text), the Qualifiers tab can list any qualifiers that are present in the GenBank entry. To populate the Qualifiers tab with information from an associated GenBank entry, you must transfer the qualifier information from the GenBank entry of the target sequence using the **Transfer Features of Target Sequence** command in the Advanced shortcut menu to create a component feature containing the information. See *Target Sequences* on page 521.

Note: As described above (see Figure 33.13 and related text), the associated GenBank accession number must be valid before GenomBench can download the feature's associated qualifiers from NCBI.

Opening the Edit Feature Source dialog box for the newly created component, shows the qualifier information from the GenBank entry for that feature (Figure 33.17):

Edit Feature source							
Basic attributes Additional attr	ibutes Qualifiers Links						
Qualifier	Value						
clone_lib	BN0167 I						
db_xref	taxon:9606						
dev_stage	Adult II						
mol_type	mRNA II						
note	Organ: breast_normal; Vector: puc18; Site_1: Smal 🔲						
organism	Homo sapiens						
Add Remove	÷						
	OK Cancel						

Figure 33.17 Qualifiers tab of the Edit feature dialog box

You can edit the values for listed qualifiers by highlighting the qualifier, clicking the icon to the right of its value and entering or selecting the new value from a list. To add new qualifiers, click the **Add** button and configure the new qualifier in the same way that you edit existing qualifiers.

Note: You can view a feature's qualifiers in the Qualifiers column of the Features tab. If the Qualifiers field is not displayed, add it to the Features tab display using the instructions in *Customizing the Columns View* on page 527.

When you have finished editing the feature properties, click OK to submit your changes.

Editing Multiple Features Simultaneously

Multiple features can be added or edited simultaneously by first selecting a feature, selecting one or more additional features by pressing the CTRL key, and then opening the Edit Features dialog box. For example, you may want to add the same URL or change the type on multiple features. Fields that have more than one value (for example, the Name field) display '<multiple values/no change>'. Changing the value of these fields will reset the value in all selected features.

Feature Grouping/Ungrouping Operations

Feature grouping operations allow you to create composite features and move features in and out of them. Several feature grouping operations are available on the Feature Map Pane short-cut menu.

Creating composite features provides a convenient method for grouping related features, such as the promoter, UTRs, CDSs, exons, etc. for a gene. In this way, you can keep all related features together, so you can view and work with them in close proximity in the Feature Map Pane and Features tab. Composite features can also be used to contain the features of a larger feature.

Grouping operations are described as follows:

- Group Selected Features Allows you to group the selected features into one composite feature. To group features, select Advanced > Group Selected Features from the shortcut menu. This launches a dialog box similar to the Edit Feature dialog box (see Feature Properties Dialog Box on page 520) where you can define attributes for the new composite feature. Click the +/- symbol at the left of the composite feature to expand it and show the features that compose it or contract it to show only the composite feature.
- Move Selected Features Into Moves the selected feature(s) into a group. This is accomplished by dragging and dropping the feature(s) onto the group or feature.
- Move Selected Features Out Moves the selected feature(s) out of their group. This is accomplished by dragging and dropping the feature(s) out of their composite group.

Feature Properties Dialog Box

The Feature Properties dialog box allows you to view the attributes of the selected feature. The feature properties dialog box is identical to the Edit Properties dialog box (see Creating, Editing, and Deleting Features on page 517), except that it is designed for viewing properties, not editing them.

To open the Feature Properties dialog box for a feature, highlight the feature in the Feature Map Pane or Features tab of the Information Pane and select **Feature > Properties** or **Properties** from the shortcut menu.

Adding Features to an Alignment

Features with associated sequence (see Figure 33.13) can be downloaded from NCBI or other sites and aligned against the genomic sequence in the Alignment tab of the Information Pane. Features that have associated sequence are indicated by an orange box in the Feature Map Pane. To add feature(s) to the Alignment tab, select one or more features in the Feature Map Pane or Features tab of the Information Pane by pressing the CTRL key and clicking on each feature or pressing the CTRL key and dragging a rectangle around the features to be down-

loaded. Select **Feature > Add Features to Alignment** or click and drag them from the Feature Map Pane onto the Alignment Tab.

While the features are downloading, the right is icon in the lower right of the status bar becomes active. If the process appears to be time-consuming, you can abort the download by clicking on the icon. The Data Loading Monitor opens. Click on the Supporting Information tab, select one or more sequences, and click the **Abort** button to cancel the process.

Target Sequences

You can perform the following operations on features that have target sequences associated with them (for example, GenBank entries that are downloadable):

- Open Target Sequence Opens the target sequence for the selected feature in the current GenomBench window, replacing the current sequence. Select Advanced > Open Target Sequence from the shortcut menu.
- Open Target Sequence in New Window Opens the target sequence for the selected feature in a new GenomBench window. Select Advanced > Open Target Sequence in

New Window from the shortcut menu or click the 💿 button on the toolbar.

 Transfer Features of Target Sequence – Transfers the features of the target sequence for the selected feature into the current GenomBench window. Select Advanced >

Transfer Features of Target Sequence from the shortcut menu or click the **v** button on the toolbar.

- **Important:** You must save the fragment you are viewing to the local database before the Target Sequence commands become enabled.
 - **Note:** The States column in the Features tab of the Information Pane contains symbols that indicate whether or not a particular feature has an associated target sequence. For more information on the States column, see *Symbols in Features Tab Fields* on page 526.

Adding Links to Features

Files and URLs can be linked directly to features in the Feature Map Pane by dragging and dropping. Links can also be added in the Link Tab of the Edit Feature dialog box, described in Creating, Editing, and Deleting Features on page 517. To link a file or URL to a feature, drag and drop the file on the local file system or the browser symbol (for example,) for Internet Explorer) from the title bar or the address bar of the browser onto the feature in the Feature Map

Pane. The cursor changes from a \bigcirc symbol to an arrow indicating that you can drop the file or URL onto the feature. Click **OK** to confirm that you want to add the link to the feature.

Each link added to a feature displays when **Links** is selected from the shortcut menu. Selecting a link from the shortcut menu opens the file in the appropriate program or the URL to the appropriate web page. Added links also display in the Links tab of the Properties and Edit Feature dialog boxes. Links are only saved with a feature when the fragment is saved to the local database. For more information, see Saving Sequences on page 552.

Information Pane

The Information Pane has four tabs, Sequence, Alignment, Features and Text, which display different types of information about the genomic sequence or current fragment sequence displayed in the Feature Map Pane.

Note: An additional tab, the Search Results tab, is added to the Information Pane when a Feature Search is performed. See Feature Search Tool on page 539.

Sequence Tab

The Sequence tab of the Information Pane displays the sequence of the current fragment shown in the Feature Map Pane (Figure 33.19). In the Sequence tab, you can perform basic operations such as copying and marking/unmarking selected parts of the sequence. You can also show/hide features selected in the Feature Map Pane, edit the sequence, and perform translations.

×	Sequence Alignment	Features Text								
	20,050,278	CATCACCTGC	TGTGTGTGAC	ACAGCATCAG	GCGGTCTGGC	CTGCAACTGT	TGTTCTCTAG	TATCTGGCCT	GCAACTGTTG	TTCTCT
		GTAGTGGACG	ACACACACTG	TGTCGTAGTC	CGCCAGACCG	GACGTTGACA	ACAAGAGATC	ATAGACCGGA	CGTTGACAAC	AAGAGA
	20,050,378	CCTTTTAAGA	GCAGATTATT	GTATAAAGAT	AGGAACACTG	AAATAACTTG	GTAGTATTTT	TTAAATGTAC	TTAAAATTTA	GGAAGA
		GGAAAATTCT	CGTCTAATAA	CATATTTCTA	TCCTTGTGAC	TTTATTGAAC	CATCATAAAA	AATTTACATG	AATTTTAAAT	CCTTCI
	20,050,478	TATTTCTAGA	ACCTTGTATA	TCTCTCACAG	AACATTTATG	CATTATAGAA	AATTTGAGAA	ATGCGTGGCC	AGAGCTGGAT	TTGCAC
		ATAAAGATCT	TGGAACATAT	AGAGAGTGTC	TTGTAAATAC	GTAATATCTT	TTAAACTCTT	TACGCACCGG	TCTCGACCTA	AACGTG

Figure 33.18 Sequence Tab of the Information Pane

Note: The coordinate scale at the left of the sequence can be set to show global (genomic sequence) or fragment coordinates. See Coordinate Scale Options on page 517.

Copying Sequences

Sequences can be copied directly from the Sequence tab to the clipboard and pasted into word processing programs. To copy a sequence, select the sequence and select **Copy** from the shortcut menu or click the **Copy** () button on the toolbar. This copies the direct strand. To copy the complementary strand, select **Copy Complementary** from the shortcut menu.

Showing/Hiding Features in the Sequence Tab

To show a graphic representation of a feature(s) in the Sequence tab, select the feature(s) in the Feature Map Pane or the Features tab, right-click on the Sequence tab, and select **Show Selected Features** from the shortcut menu. The feature is marked with a red line and the feature name in the Sequence tab above the area of the sequence where the feature(s) occurs (Figure 33.19). More than one feature can be shown in the Sequence tab at a time.

1	[nai	itilus:/	/genom	e.cse.	ucsc.ed	lu:80/c	gi-bin/	/das/hg	j15/17	:19971	1078,2	10171	81]* -	Jenon	nBench									_ [
Eil	e į	Edit <u>V</u>	iew Fe	ature	Tools	Help																			
	3	J	-		3	S	න (72 E	ì	1					= -	** **	• 🏠		*	Ð	Q	2	0	} ?	
			1- 4-	Tr	9,971K 2	о,ооо́к '	20,	,050K	20,1	.00K''	20,1	50K '	20,200k		20,250K		20,300k	20),35ÒK		20,400	· ·	20,45	óк' '	
	⊡mr	na		-	AK094	274	b -			1					þ			11							
				-	AB041	533	b -						1					1							
					BC021	123	W			10															
Map							140		• • •																
ture																									-1
Fea				4																				D	
×	Sea	uence	Alianmer	t Eez	atures	Text																			
			ringrinnor		100.00	TOXC										AK09	4274								
		19,9	71,078	3 0	FTTGT	GGATA	ATA	ممممم	GT AG	CTCT	TGAA	ATT	TCAAGT	TCA	ACGTO	TT	GTTAT	TCCAT	ATG	TTCI	TATT	TAC	AAAT	GCA	
				0	CAACA	CCTAT	TAT:	TTTTT	CA TO	GAGA	ACTT	TAAA	AGTTCA	AGI	TGCAG	5AA	CAATA	AGGTA	TAC	AAG <i>I</i>	ATAA	ATG:	TTTA	CGT	
				_												AK09	4274								
		19,9	71,178	3 :	FTTAA	GAGCA	TCT	GGTTA.	AA TI	GAGT?	TCTG	TTT	CAAACI	TTG	CTAAT	CAA	AATTA	ACATT	TTA	ATTI	FGTG	TTT	ATTA	ATT	
				i	AAATT	CTCGT	AGA	CCAAT	TT AA	ICTCA.	AGAC	AAA?	GTTTG	AAC	GATTA	1TT	TTAAT	TGTAA	AAT	TAA	ACAC	AAA'	TAAT	TAA	:
				-												AK09	4274								.
		19,9	71,278	3 1	FAAAG	TCTGA	CAAJ	AAAAA	TC CA	GTTT	TTAA	AGTO	TTATA	AT1	TAATA	LAT	TATTO	TAATA	AAC	TTAG	FTGA	TTC:	TTAA	GTC	
.2				j	ATTTC	AGACT	GTT:	FTTTT.	AG GI	ICAAAJ	AATT	TCAC	AATATI	TAA	ATTAI	TA	ATAAG	ATTAT	TTG	AATO	CACT	AAG	AATT	CAG] الح
Ē.	<u> </u>																								
Rea	ady													20,05	50,280-2	0,050),326 (le	ngth 47)			ACTO			⇒ 🖸	1 //.

Figure 33.19 Displaying a highlighted feature in the Feature Map Pane on the Sequence tab

To hide features in the Sequence tab, select **Hide All Features** from the Sequence tab shortcut menu.

Translating Sequence Selections

Selected sequence in the Sequence tab can be translated directly. To translate a portion of the sequence, highlight it in the Sequence tab and select **Translate** from the shortcut menu. The translation appears above the selected sequence in the Sequence tab (Figure 33.20):

+1	Met Phe Tyr Leu Gin Met Gin *** Asn
19,971,078	GTTGTGGATA ATAAAAAAGT AGCTCTTGAA ATTTTCAAGT TCAACGTCTT GTTATTCCAT ATGTTCTATT TACAAATGCA GTAAAAT
	CAACACCTAT TATTTTTTCA TCGAGAACTT TAAAAGTTCA AGTTGCAGAA CAATAAGGTA TACAAGATAA ATGTTTACGT CATTTTA.
+1	-Leu 🚥 Gilu His Leu Val Lys Leu Ser Ser Val Tyr Lys Leu Cys 🊥 🥶 Asn 🏧 His Phe Asn Leu Cys Leu Leu Ile 🊥 Tyr I
19,971,178	TTTAAGAGCA TCTGGTTAAA TTGAGTTCTG TTTACAAACT TTGCTAATAA AATTAACATT TTAATTTGTG TTTATTAATT TAGTATA
	AAATTCTCGT AGACCAATTT AACTCAAGAC AAATGTTTGA AACGATTATT TTAATTGTAA AATTAAACAC AAATAATTAA ATCATAT
+1	-Val Lys Val 🚥 Gin Lys Asn Pro Val Phe Lys Val Leu 🚥 Ile 🚥 🚥 Leu Phe 🚥 🚥 Thr 🚥 🏧 Phe Leu Ser Pro Leu Ile
19,971,278	TAAAGTOTGA CAAAAAAATC CAGTTTTTAA AGTOTTATAA ATTTAATAAT TATTOTAATA AACTTAGTGA TTOTTAAGTC CTOTTAT.
	ATTTCAGACT GTTTTTTTAG GTCAAAAATT TCAGAATATT TAAATTATTA ATAAGATTAT TTGAATCACT AAGAATTCAG GAGAATA
+1	Phe lle Phe Ser Leu Ser Leu Phe Phe Phe Phe Giu Thr Val Ser Val Ser Val Thr Gin Ala Gily Val Gin Trp Gin Gily Gin Ser
19,971,378	TTTATATTCT CTCTCTCTCT TTTTTTTTTT TTTGAGACAG TTTCTGTCTC TGTCACACAG GCTGGAGTGC AGTGGCAGGG TCAGAGC
	AAATATAAGA GAGAGAGAGA AAAAAAAAA AAACTCTGTC AAAGACAGAG ACAGTGTGTC CGACCTCACG TCACCGTCCC AGTCTCG.

Figure 33.20 Selection translated in Sequence tab

You can select two or more non-contiguous regions, marking each one after its selection with

the **Mark Selected Segments** button (**III**). Then right click in the Sequence tab and select **Translate Mark > Direct** or **Complementary**. This translation feature enables you to translate non-contiguous DNA blocks (such as exons) in the correct frame.

To translate a different region or the same region in a different frame, make the new selection and repeat the process.

To remove all translations in the Sequence tab, select **Clear All Translations** from the shortcut menu.

Alignment Tab

Features marked with an orange square in the Feature Map Pane (Figure 33.12) have genomic sequence alignment data, also called target sequence, associated with them. The sequences from such features can be aligned against the genomic sequence in the Alignment tab.

To add feature sequences to the Alignment tab of the Information Pane, highlight the feature(s) in the Feature Map Pane or Features tab of the Information Pane and select **Feature > Add Features to Alignment**. Features can also be added to the Alignment tab by dragging them from the Feature Map Pane onto the Alignment tab.

Feature sequences appear in the Alignment tab aligned against the genomic sequence (Figure 33.21). Placing the cursor over any base in the alignment displays a tooltip with information about the position on the genomic sequence, the position in the alignment, and the cumulative number of each type of base at that position.

×	Sequence	Alignment Features T	ext K	> >I 🛃 ,	# X 41				6 m X		
		20,240,405	20,240,405	20,240,420	20,240,430	20,24	10,440	20,240,450	20,240,460	20,240,470	20,240,48
		Genomic Sequence	AATTATCTAAT	GTAATAAAG	TCAGACAAA.	ATGCAT.	ACTTT	ATAGTTTCA.	AGATTTTCAG	TATATAAAAT	CTGTCCTTI
	AW002810	424 (AAAAT	CTGTCCTTT
	AI017517	474 (AGTTTCA	AGATTTTCAG	TATATAAAAT	CTGTCCTT
	AI017609	476 (ATAGTTTCA.	AGATTTTCAG	TATATAAAAT	CTGTCCTT
	AI358328	428 (TTT.	ATAGTTTCA.	AGATTTTCAG	TATATAAAAT	CTGTCCTT
	AW168958	501	AATTATCTAAT	GTAATAAAG	FCAGACAAA.	ATGCAT.	ACTTT.	ATAGTTTCA.	AGATTTTCAG	TATATAAAAT	CTGTCCTT
						Position In Alignn On AW1 Column -	: On Geno ient - 31 68958 - 4 (Total 1 :	omic Sequence - 71 symbols):"T" - 1	20,240,435		

Figure 33.21 Feature sequences aligned with genomic sequence in Alignment tab

A number of operations are available from the buttons at the top of the Alignment tab and from the Alignment tab and ruler shortcut menus. These options are discussed in the following sections.

Alignment Color Scheme

Residues in the alignment are colored according to the following scheme:

- Black on window default color Non-similar to other residues at that position.
- Blue on Cyan Residue is similar to other residues at that position.
- Black on Green Residue occurs greater than 50% of the time at that position.
- Red on Yellow Residue is completely conserved at that position.
- Green on window default color Residue is weakly similar to the consensus residue at that position.

Alignment Tab Viewing Options

In the Alignment tab, a coordinate scale ruler appears above the alignment. The scale numbering can be based on the genomic sequence (global) or on the fragment coordinates, depending on the viewing mode you have selected. See *Coordinate Scale Options* on page 517.

You can also set the scale numbering to reflect the alignment coordinates. To do this, right-click on the ruler in the Alignment tab and select **Show Alignment Coordinates** from the ruler short-cut menu. The coordinates now begin with position 1 at the beginning of the alignment.

Alignment Tab Navigation Operations

The following navigation commands are available from the Alignment tab tool buttons and by choosing **Navigation > Go To < command>** from the shortcut menu:

- Go To Left Edge (<) Moves to left edge of the current sequence.
- **Go To Right Edge** (>) Moves to right edge of the current sequence.
- Go To Alignment Start (K) Moves to the beginning of the alignment.
- Go To Alignment End (>) Moves to the end of the alignment.
- **Note:** An "edge" can be the end of the sequence or the transition point from gap to no gap (and vice versa) in the sequence.

Other keyboard shortcuts include:

- ARROWS Move the cursor one position in the direction of the arrow.
- PAGE UP, PAGE DOWN Move the cursor to first or last sequence, respectively.
- CTRL+OPERATION Applies focus rather than selection.
- SPACE Applies the selection to the area in focus.
- CTRL+A Selects all sequences.
- SHIFT+ARROW Selects a range or extends a selection, one position at a time.
- BACKSPACE Deselects a selection.
- CTRL+SHIFT+ARROW Extends current selection to the end of the sequence indicated by the arrow.

In addition, double-clicking with the mouse selects the segment (exon) or gap (intron) and shifts the selection to that sequence. Selections can also be made by clicking and dragging with the mouse.

Alignment Tab Editing Operations

The following general editing operations are available from the Alignment tab tool buttons and shortcut menu:

- Edit Alignment () Switches Alignment tab to Edit Mode, activating all other editing operations.
- Important: You must switch to Edit Mode to enable all edit commands except the **Remove Features from** Alignment command.
 - Submit Changes (🔄) Registers the editing changes you have made.
 - Cancel Changes (×) Cancels the editing changes you have made.

The following commands for moving selections are available from the Alignment tab tool buttons and by selecting **Edit Selection > Move <command>** from the Alignment tab shortcut menu:

- Move 1 Left (<) For a selected portion of a sequence with a gap to its left, moves the selected sequence to the left one residue.
- Move 10 Left (<) For a selected portion of a sequence with a gap of at least ten residues to its left, moves the selected sequence to the left ten residues.
- Move Far Left (
 For a selected portion of a sequence with a gap to its left, moves the selected sequence to the left, closing the gap.
- Move 1 Right (>) For a selected portion of a sequence with a gap to its right, moves the selected sequence to the right one residue.
- Move 10 Right (>) For a selected portion of a sequence with a gap of at least ten
 residues to its right, moves the selected sequence to the right ten residues.
- Move Far Right (>>) For a selected portion of a sequence with a gap to its right, moves the selected sequence to the right, closing the gap.

You can also drag and drop a block of text to an adjacent gap by selecting the block and pressing the CTRL-key while dragging.

The following commands for inserting and deleting gaps are available from the Alignment tab shortcut menu by selecting **Edit Gaps > <insert/delete gap command>** or by clicking the corresponding button on the Alignment tab toolbar:

- Insert Gap () Inserts a gap in the selected feature the size of the highlighted sequence, moving the sequence to the right, beginning at the first highlighted residue. When you select all the molecules in an alignment including the genomic sequence, you can introduce gaps in the whole alignment that are represented as dashes.
- **Delete Gap** (🚣) Deletes the highlighted gap in the selected feature.
- Remove Gap-only Columns (X) Deletes gaps in entire alignment that are introduced when all molecules including genomic sequence are selected and a gap is inserted.

You can also resize a gap by selecting the boundaries of the gap and then, with the cursor over one of the boundaries, press the CTRL-key and drag the boundary to the new position.

When you introduce gaps in an alignment, the genomic sequence is extended on the far right of the alignment view. However, if you delete the gaps, GenomBench does not automatically remove the added sequence at the far right. If you want to see only the range that is actually used by the aligned molecules, select **Truncate Alignment** from the shortcut menu or click the



button on the Alignment tab toolbar.

To remove a feature from the alignment, select the feature name in the Alignment tab and select **Remove Features from Alignment** from the shortcut menu.

Features Tab

The Features tab of the Information Pane lists the features shown for the current fragment and information related to those features in a table (Figure 33.22). Feature information is organized into various fields in the Features tab.

×	Sequence	Alignment Features T	ext				
	States	🗆 Name	🗆 Туре	Start	🗆 Length	Orientation	🗆 References 🔺
	😟 atg 🗛 💳	🔺 🕨 AW002810	est	269,392	398	Complementary	No
	🔹 👬 🗛 💳	AW664770	est	269,464	324	Complementary	No
	🔶 atg 🗛 💳	AW469725	est	270,790	252	Complementary	No
	🔹 👬 🗛 📼	BI826099	est	273,580	587	Direct	No
	🛛 🗑 🗛 📼	AI808354	est	277,446	397	Direct	No
	🛛 🗿 👬 🖉	AI699463	est	277,446	430	Direct	No
	🐵 atg 🗛 📼	AI025104	est	277,446	397	Direct	No
	🐵 👬 🗛 💳	AA393074	est	279,551	4,169	Direct	No
	🐵 atg 🗛 💳	AA431389	est	279,586	4,210	Direct	No
	🛛 🕯 🕅 🖉	AA432369	est	283,484	516	Complementary	No
Rea	ady			2	:69,800-269,809 (length	10)	

Figure 33.22 Features tab of the Information Pane

Symbols in Features Tab Fields

Two of the fields in the Features tab, *States* and the field just to the right of the States field, usually the *Name* field, contain symbols with the following significance:

- There are four symbols in the *States* field, which indicate the following conditions about the sequence:
 - • Indicates whether the feature has sequence data, also known as target sequence, associated with it (for example, a GenBank entry), available from a server.
 - Indicates whether the feature is currently displayed in the Sequence tab.
 - A Indicates whether or not the feature has genomic alignment data associated with it, available from the server.
 - Indicates whether the feature is shown in the current alignment in the Alignment tab.

An available symbol indicates that the condition is true; a greyed-out symbol indicates that the condition is false.

• When the field just to the right of the States field has a triangle next to the data in the field, this indicates that the data is in hierarchical order, as it was received by the server (that is, it has not been sorted by column).

Sorting Features in the Features Tab

Initially, features come into GenomBench in the order in which they are received by the server or hierarchical order. You can sort features according to any of the displayed fields by clicking the column header. Clicking a column header sorts the features in ascending order according to that field. Clicking the same column header a second time sorts the features again, this time in descending order according to that field. Clicking a column header a column header a third time returns the results to hierarchical order. The symbol next to the column header name indicates the sorting status:

- Features sorted in original or hierarchical order.
- 🔼 Features sorted in ascending order according to this column.
- \overline{T} Features sorted in descending order according to this column.

Customizing the Columns View

You can customize the columns shown in the Features tab in the Customize List Columns dialog box. To launch this dialog box (Figure 33.23), select **Customize** from the Features tab shortcut menu. By default, the columns Name, Type, Start, Length, Orientation, and Category display in the Shown Columns list on the right side of the dialog box and subsequently display in the Features tab. All other columns that can be displayed in the Features tab are in the Available Columns list on the left side.

Customize Columns			×
Available Columns:	S	Shown Columns:	
Target accession End DAS ID Type Label References Subpats Score Phase Method ID Method Group ID Links Target name	Show >> << Hide Move up Move down	Name Type Start Length Orientation Category	_
		OK Cancel	_

Figure 33.23 Customize List Columns dialog box

To remove a column from view, highlight it in the Shown Columns list on the right and click the **Hide** button to move it to the Available Columns list. To add a column back to the view, highlight it in the Available Columns list and click the **Show** button to move it into the Shown Columns list.

Change the column order in the Shown Columns list by selecting a column name and clicking the **Move up** or **Move down** buttons. Restore the defaults by clicking the **Restore Default** button.

You can also show columns and hide columns directly from the Features tab. To hide a column, put the cursor on the column header and select **Hide column** from the shortcut menu. To show a column, put the cursor on any column header, select **Show column**, and select the column from the submenu.

Features Tab Operations

A number of other operations are available on the Features tab shortcut menu, including general feature operations, feature grouping and displaying feature properties. These operations are discussed in the *Feature Map Pane* section on page 515.

Highlighting a feature in the Features tab also highlights the feature in the Feature Map Pane. Double-clicking a feature in the Features tab opens the Properties dialog box for the feature (see page 515).

Double-clicking in a cell in the Feature tab allows you to perform in-cell editing where available or opens the Edit Features dialog box. When in-cell editing is available, you can directly change the value. To change a value in the Edit Features dialog box, see Creating, Editing, and Deleting Features on page 517.

Text Tab

The Text tab of the Information Pane (Figure 33.24) shows the attributes for the sequence shown in the Overview Pane. Basic data about the sequence, such as ID, name, length, download path and current fragment coordinates can be viewed here. In addition, when alignment analyses are performed with Spidey or Sim4, their results appear in the Text tab. See *Sim4 and Spidey Alignment Tools* on page 542.

×	Sequence	gnment Features Text		
	ID:	3		
	Name :	chr17	L	
	Length :	1,972,424	L	
	Description :	Fragment from 20052975 to 22025398 of 17	L	
	Original URL	nautilus://genome.cse.ucsc.edu:80/cgi-bin/das/hg15/17:20052975,22025398	L	
	Version :	1	L	
	Fragment : 20,052,975 - 22,025,398; Length : 1,972,424			
			I	
Rea	ady	21,881,985-21,882,554 (length 570)	//	

Figure 33.24 Text tab of the Information Pane

- Notes:
- If you have not saved the fragment to your local database, some of the above information does not appear in the Text tab.
 - Clicking on the Original URL hyperlink in the Text tab opens the original sequence from the server in a new GenomBench window with the current fragment information displayed.

Editing Sequence Attributes

To edit sequence data in the Text tab, select **Edit > Edit Sequence Attributes** from the Genom-Bench menu or select **Edit Sequence Attributes** from the shortcut menu. The Edit Sequence Attributes dialog box displays and has two tabs: Basic Attributes (Figure 33.25) and Additional Attributes (Figure 33.26). In the Basic Attributes tab, you can edit the name and description of the sequence.

Ec	lit Sequence At	tributes
	Basic attributes	Additional attributes
	Name:	chr17
	Description:	Fragment from 20052975 to 22025398 of 17
		OK Cancel

Figure 33.25 Basic Attributes tab of the Edit Sequence Attributes dialog box

In the Additional Attributes tab, you can edit the version number, accession number, URL to the original sequence, etc. When you have completed your edits in the Edit Sequence Attributes dialog box, click **OK** to accept the changes. The Text tab is updated with the new information.

Attribute	Value
Accession	
original source description	I
keyword	
latin name	I
Chromosome	
Original URL	nautilus://genome.cse.ucsc.edu:80/cgi-bin/das/h
original Genbank date	I
taxonomic classification	I
Version	1 🔟

Figure 33.26 Additional Attributes of the Edit Sequence dialog box

Undo and Redo Operations

A number of the operations that you can do in the Feature Map Pane, the Feature tab, and the Alignment tab can be undone or redone. A history is also kept of each undone or redone operation so you can easily make changes even after you have made several subsequent changes.

Undo and redo can be used on the following operations as they are performed in the Feature Map Pane and the Feature and Alignment tabs of the Information Pane:

- Adding, editing and deleting features
- Converting temporary features (analyses) into permanent features
- Showing and hiding feature types
- Adding and removing features in alignments
- Alignment editing including:
 - o moving blocks
 - o resizing gaps
 - moving residues to the left or right
 - o inserting and deleting gaps
- Submitting and cancelling changes

The undo and redo commands are initially unavailable until one of the above operations is per-

formed. Once an operation is performed, the **Edit > Undo** command and the **Undo** button on the toolbar are available. The undo command reverts the previous change and places it in the redo list. Once an undo operation is performed, the **Edit > Redo** command and the **Redo**

button 😰 on the toolbar are available. The redo command redoes the last undone change and places it back in the undo list.

When a change is made, a record of the change is added to a Undo/Redo History log. To open the History log, select **Edit > View History**. The current state of the GenomBench window is designated by a green arrow in the History log. Any changes are listed above the current state and can be selected and undone as in the left side of Figure 33.27 by clicking the **Undo** button.

When a change is undone, it is moved below the current state as in the right side of Figure 33.27 and can be redone by clicking the **Redo** button.

listory X	History
Add Feature Add Feature Delete Feature Current state	 Add Feature Add Feature Current state Delete Feature
Pressing "Undo" button will reverse 1 selected operations.	Pressing "Redo" button will perform 1 operations.
Undo Redo Close	Undo Redo Close

Figure 33.27 History log displaying changes that can be undone and redone above and below Current state

Groups of operations can also be undone or redone simultaneously. Selecting an operation that is listed more than one away from the current state selects all operations in between. Clicking the Undo or Redo button either undoes or redoes the selected operations as a group and moves them into the redo or undo list respectively.

Configuring GenomBench Parameters

Many of the parameters relating to fragment loading and display in GenomBench can be customized. A number of customization commands are accessible individually under the **View** menu and on the Feature Map Pane shortcut menu. These commands are described in *Feature Map Pane Viewing Options* on page 516.

GenomBench also offers several convenient dialog boxes where the complete list of customization options for feature downloading and graphic styles display are consolidated for easy editing.

Setting Feature Type Filters

Feature types that you want to download from the current server for the current sequence are specified in the Display Feature Types dialog box (Figure 33.28).

Note: The Display Feature Types dialog box shows only those features that can be downloaded from the current server; it does not show global feature types (that is, features available from all DAS servers). For information about setting global feature types options, see Editing Fragment Load-ing Configurations on page 534.

To launch the Display Feature Types dialog box, select **View > Display Filters** or click the Feature Type Filter button () on the toolbar.



Figure 33.28 Display Feature Types dialog box

In the Display Feature Types dialog box, uncheck the feature types that you do not want to download (by default, all feature types are selected for download). The **Select All** and **Clear All** buttons allow you to check or uncheck, respectively, all the feature types in the list at once. Click **OK** to apply the changes. Now, when you download a fragment, only the checked feature types are downloaded.

Important: Once a fragment is saved to Local storage, only those features that are downloaded are saved with the fragment. You cannot then reopen the fragment from Local storage and see more features types by removing feature type filter constraints. In this case, if you are not sure what types of features you may be interested in for this fragment, it is recommended that you download all feature types so you can save the fragment to local storage and open it later displaying all feature types.

Editing Graphic Styles

GenomBench's Graphic Style Editor allows you to specify display parameters for the Feature Map Pane, including Feature Map Pane layout characteristics, fragment line, pattern and color characteristics, and feature line, pattern, color and shape characteristics.

To launch the Graphic Style Editor, select **View > Edit Graphic Styles**. The Graphic Style Editor has three tabs: Features, Fragment and Layout. It also has **Save As** and **Load** buttons for saving your custom graphics configurations to files and loading graphics configurations from previously saved files, respectively.

Features Tab

The Features tab (Figure 33.29) contains parameters that allow you to determine the way different features appear in the Feature Map Pane.

eatures Fragment Layout		Preview
Feature Types: Name Default _CDS _Promoter _UTRs 0 transcription factor recognition site 3~UTR 5~UTR acembly aflyRatio all_bacends all_sts_primer all_sts_seq annot attificial joints bastZ rightMm3 blastZ rightMm2 blastFightMm2 blastFightMm2 blastFightMm2 blastFightMm2 blastFightMm3 blastZ rightMm3 blastZ rightMm4 blastFightMm4 blastFightMm4 blastFightMm4 blastFightMm4 blastZ rightMm4 blastZ rightMm	Line Thickness: 1 Style: Color: Pattern Pattern Pattern Shape: Predefined Settings	est Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature

Figure 33.29 Features tab of the Graphics Style Editor dialog box

To view or change the current style for a feature, highlight the feature name in the Feature Types list. Set the line thickness/style/color, pattern style/color, and/or shape. A preview of the new configuration displays in the Preview panel on the right.

Click the Predefined Settings button to return all feature styles to their default settings.

Click **OK** to apply your changes.

Fragment Tab

The Fragment tab (Figure 33.30) contains parameters that allow you to determine the way the graphical depiction of the fragment appears in the Feature Map Pane.

Graphical Style Editor	X
Features Fragment Layout Line 1 Pattern (Unloaded Sequence) Style: Image: Style: Image: Style: Color: Image: Pattern (Unloaded Sequence) Style: Image: Pattern (Unloaded Sequence) Style: Image: Pattern (Unloaded Sequence) Style: Image: Pattern (Loaded Sequence) Style: None Color: Image: Pattern (Unloaded Sequence) Style: None Vertern (Unloaded Sequence) Image: Pattern (Unloaded Sequence) Style: Image: Pattern (Unloaded Sequence) Image: Pattern (Unloaded Sequence) Style: Image: Pattern (Unloaded Sequence) Image: Pattern (Unloaded Sequence) <td< th=""><th>Preview est Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature</th></td<>	Preview est Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature Feature
Save As Load	OK Cancel

Figure 33.30 Fragment tab of the Graphics Style Editor dialog box

To change the display style for the fragment, select the line thickness/style/color and/or pattern style/color. A preview of the new configuration displays in the Preview panel on the right.

Click the **Predefined Settings** button to return the fragment display to default settings.

Click **OK** to apply your changes.

Layout Tab

The Layout tab (Figure 33.31) contains parameters that allow you to determine styles and colors relating to Feature Map Pane layout and marking. Multi-segmented feature style is also set here.

Figure 33.31 Layout tab of the Graphics Style Editor dialog box

In the **Feature** section, set the values in pixels for Low and Full Feature Height layouts, select the font typeface and color for feature labels in the Feature Map Pane and choose the style for Multi-segmented Features.

In the **Marks** section, set the color and pattern for marks in the Feature Map Pane and Sequence tab of the Information Pane.

In the **Types** section, set the background color and font typeface and color for labeling in the feature category section of the Feature Map Pane.

You can also set the pane divider, connector and segment selection color in the Layout tab.

In the **Feature Map Margins** field, set the value in pixels between 0 and 20 to change the size of the margin on the right and left sides of the area where feature tracks display in the Feature Map Pane.

Check the **Remember Tracks Order** if you want GenomBench to remember the feature tracks order (feature type order when in Divided by Feature Types layout mode). When you open GenomBench again, it will list feature types in this order. Otherwise, feature tracks are listed in alphabetical order according to feature name.

Click the **Predefined Settings** button if you want to return the layout display to default settings.

Click **OK** to register your changes.

Editing Fragment Loading Configurations

In the Configurations dialog box, you can set parameters for fragment/sequence downloading size warnings, select the feature types you want to globally download, and associate a URL with sequence that has alignment information. If a fragment exceeds the set download size, you have the option to download sequence on demand. For more information, see Downloading Sequence on Demand on page 535.

To launch the Configurations dialog box, select **View > Configuration**. The Configurations dialog box has three tabs: Warning Triggers (Figure 33.32), Cumulative List of Feature Types (Figure 33.34), and Warning Messages (Figure 33.38).

Warning Triggers Tab

The Warning Triggers Tab allows you to set parameters to trigger warning messages if downloaded fragments and sequences fall outside of set ranges.

Configuration	×Ц
Warning Triggers Cumulative List of Feature Types Warning M	ļ
Limits for fragment size to be downloaded	
Don't download more than Costoco bp	
Warning limits for sequence size to be sent to Vector	
Vector NTI Viewer 1000000 bp	
Analysis Monitor 1000000 bp	
Size of flanking regions to be added to the fragment by Query Application 5000 bp	
OK Cancel	

Figure 33.32 Warning Triggers tab of the Configuration dialog box

- Limits for fragment size to be downloaded Sets the maximum size fragment to download. If you try to download fragments larger than the warning size, a warning message displays. You can either truncate the fragment or download in Sequence on Demand mode.
- Warning limits for sequence size to be sent to Vector Sets the maximum size for sending a sequence to Vector NTI and the maximum size for sending a sequence to Analysis Monitor for Sim4 and Spidey alignment analysis. For more information on sending sequences to Vector NTI and Analysis Monitor, see GenomBench Tools on page 539.
- Size of flanking region to be added to the fragment by Query Application When GenomBench opens a region of a chromosome found by the Query Application, this parameter determines how many flanking base pairs GenomBench should download as specified in the textbox.

Downloading Sequence on Demand

If you try to download a fragment larger than the **Limits for fragment size to be downloaded** field in the Warning Triggers tab, you will be given the options to either truncate the fragment to the beginning segment of the pre-defined size or download it in a mode called 'Sequence on Demand'. In Sequence on Demand mode, GenomBench initially downloads only the features of the selected fragment but not the sequence. Sequence is then retrieved as needed based on operations performed in the GenomBench window. For example, when a particular feature such as an EST is selected, the sequence is downloaded and shown in the Sequence tab.

As an example of how Sequence on Demand mode works, consider the case where the maximum fragment size to download is 2Mbp. If you were to select a fragment of 3Mbp, the dialog box in Figure 33.33 displays. Select the top radio button to load the features and sequence for the first 2 Mbp of the fragment. Select the lower radio button to load in Sequence on Demand mode and load the features that span all 3Mbp without sequence.

Load large Fragment
You are attempting to download a large fragment. This may take a long time.
 First 2,000,000 bp. Both features and sequence. Sequence on Demand. Features for fragment first, sequence as requested.
Always use choice that I have made and don't show this message again.
OK Cancel

Figure 33.33 Load large fragment dialog box

As the features load in the Feature Map Pane, question marks initially display in the Sequence tab and as you scroll through it, they are replaced by the sequence in that region of the fragment. Likewise, as you select features in the Feature Map Pane and show them in the Sequence tab or drop them into the Alignment tab, sequence is loaded as it is requested.

Partially loaded fragments cannot be saved to the local GenomBench database. When saving a fragment that is loaded in Sequence on Demand mode, you will be prompted whether you want to load the whole sequence before saving. Click Yes in the dialog box that displays to save the sequence to the local database. It may take some time for the entire sequence to load. For more information, see Saving Sequences on page 552.

Cumulative List of Feature Types Tab

The Cumulative List of Feature Types tab allows you to globally set the types of features you want to download when loading a fragment (Figure 33.34). The feature list on this tab shows feature types from all DAS servers you use and is automatically updated when you access a DAS server.

nfiguration		
Warning Triggers	Cumulative List of Feature T	ypes Warning M 💶
✓acembly (acemt	oly) atio)	Select All
✓ affyTranscriptor	ne booondo)	Clear All
✓ all_bacenus (all_	fosends)	
✓all_sts_primer (a	II_sts_primer)	
✓all_sts_seq (all_	sts_seq)	
✓ annot (annot) ✓ bacEndPairs (b- ✓ BACs (BACs)	acEndPairs)	
✓ bactigPos (bact	igPos)	
✓ blastzBestHuma □ blastzBestMm3	in (blastzBestHuman) (blastzBestMm3)	
✓ blastzBestRat (t	plastzBestRat)	•
Reference URL :		
		Edit URL
This list is automa servers being	tically updated with the new f j used. Check/uncheck the f downloaded.	feature types from DAS feature types to be
	0)K Cancel

Figure 33.34 Cumulative List of Feature Types tab of the Configuration dialog box

In the Cumulative List of Feature Types dialog box, uncheck the feature types that you do not want to download (by default, all feature types are selected for download). The **Select All** and **Clear All** buttons allow you to check or uncheck, respectively, all the feature types in the list at once. Click **OK** to register your changes. For any subsequent sequence opened from a DAS server, only the checked feature types are downloaded for a fragment.

Note: If you have downloaded a fragment with some features unchecked in the Cumulative List of Feature Types tab (or in the Display Feature Types dialog box – Figure 33.28) and if you are still connected to the DAS server, you can then check the unchecked features in the dialog box and they will then download from the server. However, since these features are downloaded as a secondary step, they are listed in the Feature Map Pane as the last entry at the top of the list; they do not appear in alphabetical order within the first set of downloaded features.

Specifying Data Source URLs for Feature Types with Alignment Information

When a DAS server provides alignment information, you can specify a data source URL for the feature type. The specified URL directs GenomBench to a location to download the target sequence. Once a valid URL has been associated with a feature, features can be analyzed in the Alignment tab, the target sequence can be opened, and the features can be transferred from the target sequence. For more information, see Target Sequences on page 521.

URLs are associated with features from the Cumulative List of Feature Types tab. Select a feature type from the list in the tab and click the **Edit URL** button. In the **Edit Feature Type Loading URL** dialog box, enter the URL to be associated with that feature type in the URL field and click OK (Figure 33.35).

Edit Feature Type Loding	JRL 🔀	
URL http://genome.cse.u	csc.edu:80/cgi-bin/das/	
Remove chr	prefix from Accesstion	
Remove	suffix from Accesstion	
	OK Cancel	

Figure 33.35 Edit Feature Type Loading URL dialog box

The URL for that feature type now displays in the Reference URL field in the tab (Figure 33.36). Click **OK**.

onfiguration		×
Warning Triggers	Cumulative List of Feature Types	Warning M 💶 🕨
✓ acembly (acem) ✓ afryRatio (afryR ✓ afryRatio (afryR ✓ afryTranscriptor ✓ al_bacends (all ✓ al_sts_primer (a ✓ al_sts_primer (all ✓ all_sts_seq (all ✓ bacEndPairs (b ✓ bacEndPairs (b ✓ bast2PestMm3 ✓ blast2Cb1 (blast ✓ blast2TightMm3 Beference LIBL	bly) ▲ atio) ne _bacends) fosends) all_sts_primer) sts_seq) acEndPairs) igPos) (blastzBestMm3) zCb1) zSelf) (blastzTightMm3) ▼	Select All
http://genome.cs This list is automa servers being	e.ucsc.edu:80/cgi-bin/das/mm3 tically updated with the new feature g used. Check/uncheck the feature downloaded.	Edit URL types from DAS types to be
	ОК	Cancel

Figure 33.36 Associated URL to feature type

In the Feature Map Pane, the feature now contains an orange rectangle indicating it has target sequence associated with it. The circled feature (blastzBestMm3) in the following figure con-

tains mouse alignment against human sequence using BLAST. When dragged into the Alignment tab, the mouse sequence is shown aligned to the human sequence.

🏹 [nautilus://genome.cse.ucsc.edu:80/cgi-bin/das/hg15/7:20000001,20010000] - GenomBench
🔁 🚽 🗐 🕹 🚨 📲 🗠 🗠 🖻 🖀 🚳 ए ए ए 🛒 - 🚍 - 🦉 - 🍹 🗔 🖉 🔍 🔍 🔍
Image: constraint of the second sec
ob2,101 20,002,151 20,002,201 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301 20,002,301
all_fosends
× Sequence Alignment Features Text K < > >
20,002,253 20,002,253 20,002,270 20,002,280 20,002,290 20,002,300 20,002,310 20,002,320
Genomic Sequence ACCATCACATAAAGTTGACTTTTTTAAATCAAAGGAAACTAATGAGATTGACCACCATGTCCTCTATCTA
Ready No selection ACTG Rev C

Figure 33.37 Feature associated with target sequence URL displayed in Alignment tab

Warning Messages Tab

The Warning Messages tab (Figure 33.38) allows you to control the display warning dialogs that remind you what to do in specific situations. For example, if you are in Sequence on Demand mode and you want to save the sequence, you will be warned with a message that you can only do so if you download the entire sequence. Unchecking the **Saving partially loaded sequence** message, in this case, causes the message to not display. Check the messages you want to see; uncheck the messages you do not. Click the **Clear All** button to uncheck all messages; click the **Select All** button to select all messages.

Configuration 🛛 🔀
Cumulative List of Feature Types Warning Messages
Show a dialog on the following events:
Sending a large sequence to Spidey/Sim4 Make hidden Feature Type visible to show modified Feature(s Make Feature Type visible to show Feature(s) dissociated fror Saving while download is in progress Change Feature Type Filter to match saved settings Sending a large sequence to Vector NTI Saving Sequence with unsubmitted Alignment changes Make hidden Feature Type visible to show new Features Load large Fragment Saving partially loaded sequence Entering Edit Alignment Mode
If checked program shows a dialog with the following message:
You are attempting to send a large sequence to Spidey/Sim4.This may take a long time. Do you wish to continue with this operation? Clear All Select All
OK. Cancel

Figure 33.38 Warning Messages tab of the Configuration dialog box
GenomBench Tools

GenomBench includes Feature Search and Pattern Search tools for searching for features and sequences among those downloaded that meet criteria that you set. It also provides tools for aligning sequences to a genomic backbone using Sim4 or Spidey analyses and sending a fragment to Vector NTI. In addition, GenomBench provides a convenient interface for querying public databases.

Feature Search Tool

The Feature Search tool in GenomBench allows you to search for features from among the features downloaded for a fragment according to criteria that you define.

To launch a feature search, select **Tools > Feature Search**. The Feature Search Parameters dialog box displays (Figure 33.39):

Fea	E Feature Search Parameters X								
Sear	ch region: 19724238 to: 21203555	Operator: 💿 AN	D C OR Add Remove						
#	Field Name	Condition	Value						
1	Туре	Equal 📼	acembly 🔻						
2	Name 🗾	Equal 🚽	АКАР10.Б						
Quer	Query string: #1 AND #2								
	Reset Start Cancel								

Figure 33.39 Feature Search Parameters dialog box

In the Feature Search Parameters dialog box, define the **Search region** in base pair coordinates. If you make a selection in the Feature Map Pane before you launch this dialog box, the coordinates of the selection are pre-entered into the Search region fields.

Define your first search criterion according to **Field Name**, which corresponds to the columns in the Features tab of the Information Pane, and Condition using the drop-down lists for each field. Highlight the Value field and enter the text or value for that search criterion. An example of a search criterion is 'Type Equals acembly'.

If you have another search criterion, select the **AND** or **OR** radio button, depending on whether you want to search for both criteria or either criteria, respectively, and click the **Add** button. A new entry appears in the search condition definition list. Define the new criterion as described above. If you want to remove a search condition, highlight it and click the **Remove** button.

Notice that the Query String at the bottom of the dialog box is automatically entered as you define your search criteria in the search condition definition list.

When you have finished defining your search criteria, click the **Start** button to initiate the feature search. When the search completes, the results display in a new tab, the Search Results tab, which is added to the Information Pane (Figure 33.40):

💐 [nautilus://genome.cse.ucsc.e	:du:80/cgi-bin/das/hg	15/17:19724238,212035	55] - GenomBench		
] 😼 🚽 🔚 🛃 🎒 ൮		A (72 🟹 IQ IQ		•••	z 🔍 Q, Q,
x 1000 1500 1000 1500 1500 1500 1500 150	26M 25M 3č [.2] q11.2	imi'' sismi'' 40mi'' 4 q12 q21	iśm ' sóm ' sśm ' q22 q23.2	' İsôM ' İsôM ' İ q2	òM ' 75M ' 81M q2 q25.3
Піў.7: Пакаріс Пакаріс	4K [19,750K 19,8 [0]aW WW [a]aW WW [a]aW WW [b]aW WW	00K 19,850K HCMOGT-1.h HCMOGT-1.d HCMOGT-1.f		э́зок 20,000К	
× Sequence Alignment Features States □ Name	Tex Search Results Type acembly	1	Length 73,494	Complementary	References
ह । Ready		No sele	ction	ACTG	

Figure 33.40 Search Results tab added to Information Pane

If additional feature searches are performed, new Search Results tabs are added to the Information Pane and are numbered consecutively in the order in which the searches are performed.

The same operations that are available for features on the Features tab are also available for features on the Search Results tab(s). See *Features Tab Operations* on page 527.

Pattern Search Tool

The Pattern Search tool in GenomBench allows you to search for stretches of sequence that match a defined entry. You can either enter a sequence or a regular expression as a search query. A regular expression describes a pattern or sequence of adjacent characters using a specific syntax. The equivalent of a wildcard in regular expression syntax is described here. Additional regular expression syntax is described in Appendix F.

Pattern searches are performed from the Pattern Search dialog box, which is opened by selecting **Tools > Pattern Search** (Figure 33.41).

Pattern Search	×
Enter regular expression specifying the pattern :	
TTTTAAAACA	
Search Region	Strand(s) to Search Direct C Complementary Both
Results Set marks Create Features Maximal number of hits	Start Stop
	Ok. Cancel

Figure 33.41 Pattern Search dialog box

In the field at the top of the dialog box, enter the pattern to search for. You can paste in a pattern from the clipboard or enter one. To enter a wildcard, use the character '.'. For example, the pattern '.TT' searches for any three-base pattern ending in TT.

Note: In a regular expression pattern, spaces are treated as characters.

When searching for a pattern, you can search the whole molecule, a selected region, a specified region where you enter start and end coordinates, or marked regions. In the **Search Region** box, select the radio button that corresponds to the region you want to search. To search a selected region, highlight a region in the Sequence Pane or in the Feature Map Pane.

In the **Strands to Search** box, select the radio button corresponding to Direct, Complementary or Both.

Results are displayed either in the form of marks or temporary features. In the **Results** box, select the way you want the results to be displayed. You can create up to 1000 features from a single search. Temporary features must be converted to permanent features in order to be saved with a fragment. For more information, see Converting Temporary Features to Permanent Features on page 543. Marks are described in Marking and Unmarking Selections on page 514.

Click **Start**. When the search is complete, the progress bar is filled in. If features were selected as the results display type, the number of hits displays also. Click **OK** to show the results (Figure 33.42). Marked patterns display as blocks in the Sequence Tab. To move from one mark to the next, select **Edit > Select Marked Segment > Next/Previous** or press SHIFT+> or SHIFT+<. Temporary features display in a newly added feature track called Pattern Search Result as a continuous block. To view the individual features, click the **+** sign next to the block. Temporary features must be converted to permanent features in order to be saved with a fragment. For more information, see Converting Temporary Features to Permanent Features on page 543.

an	⊡Pattern Se	arch		🗆 Resul	ts for pat	em "TTTTA	AAACA	4 "				i	I		
eat	Result														
					_	•	_	-			I				
×	Sequence	Alignment	Features	Text											
	20,1	42,175	TATC	AGAAA'	F GAAG	AAAGCA	ATT.	AATTACC	CTTA	ATAACT	ATATGGTGGA	CACAGTCTTT	TAAAACATTG	ATTCTGAAAC	TTT
			ATAG	TCTTT	A CTTC	TTTCGT	TAA	TTAATGG	GAAT	TATTGA	TATACCACCT	GTGTCAGAAA	ATTTTGTAAC	TAAGACTTTG	AAA
	20,1	42,275	TTAT	ATGAT'	г ааат	TTATTA	GCC	TAGAGGT	AACC	AACACC	CTGAATTAAG	AATTTATTAT	GTCCATTCCC	TTTTAAAACA	TTT
			AATA	TACTA	A TTTZ	TAATAA	CGG,	ATCTCCA	TTGG	TTGTGG	GACTTAATTC	TTAAATAATA	CAGGTAAGGG	AAAATTTTGT	ААА

Figure 33.42 Pattern search results showing both marked sequences and temporary features

Sim4 and Spidey Alignment Tools

GenomBench provides the ability to analyze a fragment using the algorithms Sim4 and Spidey. Sim4 is a similarity-based tool for aligning an expressed DNA sequence (EST, cDNA, mRNA) with a genomic sequence. For more information about Sim4, see <u>http://www.hgmp.mrc.ac.uk/</u>. Spidey performs a similar function aligning an mRNA to a genomic sequence. For more information about Spidey, see <u>http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/IEB/Research/Ostell/Spidey/index.html</u>.

Before you attempt to perform a Sim4 or Spidey analysis, the following conditions must be met:

- The fragment to be analyzed must be saved to the local GenomBench database before a Sim4 or Spidey analysis can be performed on it.
- The cDNAs, ESTs, and mRNAs to be used for the analysis must be stored in their own unique subbase in the Vector NTI local database before they can be used in the analysis.

Performing a Sim4 or Spidey Alignment

To launch a Sim4 or Spidey analysis, first save the fragment to the local GenomBench database (if not already saved) and select **Tools > Align cDNA with Genomic DNA using Sim4** or **Align cDNA with Genomic DNA using Spidey**, respectively.

GenomBench's Sim4 and Spidey analyses are performed in the Analysis Monitor. When you execute a Sim4 or Spidey analysis, the Analysis Monitor opens with the appropriate interface and information for the fragment you are analyzing. For more information about using Analysis Monitor for Sim4 and Spidey analyses, see page 562 and page 564, respectively of Chapter 34, Analysis Monitor - Advanced Analysis Tools.

Viewing Sim4 and Spidey Results

Once a Sim4 or Spidey analysis has been performed in Analysis Monitor, you can send it back to GenomBench to review the results of the analysis. See *Sending Analyses to GenomBench* on page 571. The alignment analysis information displays in the Text tab of the Information Pane and the hits display in the Feature Map Pane and Features tab of the Information Pane (Figure 33.43 and Figure 33.44).

You can also send the analysis results to Vector NTI (see *Sending Analyses to Vector NTI* on page 571, page 571), but often this may not be practical due to the large size of most genomic fragments.

V)	[naut	ilus.ls:1	/1:1,65	7474]* -	Genom	Bench								_ 🗆 🗙
F	ile Edit	: View	Featur	e Tools H	lelp									
1	2 5	\$ 	∷	چ 🍓		b	n 🖻 f	1 🗿		1,001	= -			0
				20,	180,001		20,182,00	l '	20,184,001		20,186,00	1 '	20,188,001	
				chr 17										_
ahire Man	⊟Hit													Ţ
				•										•
×	Seque	ence A	lignment	Features	Text									
	ID : Name Lengt Origin Versic Fragn Analy	: h : al URL : on : nent : sis Data	1 chi 65 <u>na</u> 1 19 : chi Da 8 : C: CD	r 17 7,474 utilus://qenc ,970,791 - 2 r 1_3b70 te : 2003-08 1 : 12 :5_from : 0	o <u>me.cse.</u> 20,628,2 3-14 (Thu	ucsc.ed 64; Len 1 Aug 1:	lu:80/cqi-bin/d gth : 657,474 4 14:20:51 200	as/hq15/ 13)	17:19970791,20628	<u>8264</u>				
Infr			CD	S_to:0										•
Re	eady								No selection					

Figure 33.43 Sim4 hits displayed in Feature Map Pane and Text tab

When a Sim4 or Spidey analysis is opened in GenomBench, alignment hits come in as temporary features and are placed in the Hit feature category in the Feature Map Pane and Features tab of the Information Pane (Figure 33.43 and Figure 33.44).

Important:

- Temporary features cannot be saved. They must be converted to permanent features if you want to save them with the sequence to the local database. If hits are not converted to permanent features, they are lost without warning upon saving.
- Analysis information shown in the Text tab cannot be saved with the sequence. However, the original analysis is stored in the Analysis Monitor window (it can also be saved to a file from Analysis Monitor), so you can re-launch the analysis in GenomBench from the Analysis Monitor window if you want to review this information. For more information, see *Saving* on page 571 and *Sending Analyses to GenomBench* on page 571.

Converting Temporary Features to Permanent Features

In GenomBench, you can convert hits or temporary features, such as those displayed as a result of a Spidey or Sim4 alignment search, to permanent features.

Hits are converted to permanent features by selecting the feature(s) and then selecting **Advanced > Transform Selected Features to Permanent** from the shortcut menu in the Feature Map Pane (Figure 33.44).

File Edit View Feature Tools Help	
🛃 🖶 🚍 📲 🎒 🐼 🌆 🐼 🗠 🖶 🖫 🤡 😳 🖳 🦉 🧮 📲 • 🗮 • 🎦 🖻 🕱 🍕 🍕 🤇) 🔍
20,165k 20,175k 20,175k 20,185k 20,195k 12	
chr 17	
i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	
	_
	<u> </u>
Sequence Alignment Features Text	
States 🗆 Name 🗖 Type 🗖 Start 🗖 Length 🗖 Orientation 🗸 Category	
👁 👬 🔩 😋 chr Hit 20,184,178 490 Not oriented	
© aro A ⊂ chr 1_474c_Exon exon 20,184,178 490 Direct	
● mo A ← chr 1_0a3a similarity 20,184,233 435 Complementary	
Desity No selection	

Figure 33.44 Sim4 hits shown in Feature Map Pane and Features tab

The feature is converted from temporary to permanent and is moved from the Hits category into the appropriate feature category. The feature can now be saved to the local GenomBench database as part of the fragment file.

Showing Sim4 and Spidey Results in the Alignment Tab

Sim4 and Spidey alignments can be viewed in the Alignment tab of the Information Pane. You can show such alignments by dragging the analysis hits into the Alignment tab, in the same way other alignments are performed. For more information on performing alignments in the Alignment tab, see page 523.

Querying Public Databases

Vector NTI's Query Application can perform a number of query searches on different public servers directly from GenomBench, including:

- UCSC (Genome Browser)
- UCSC (BLAT Search)
- Ensembl (Genome Browser)
- Ensembl (SSAHA Search)
- PubMed Entrez Search

The Query Application provides a convenient user interface where you can enter your search criteria. It sends your search criteria to the selected public web site where the search is performed. Once the search is completed at the web site, the Query Application returns the results and displays them in the lower portion of the window.

Launching the Query Application

To launch the Query Application, select **Tools > Launch Query App** from the GenomBench menu (Figure 33.45). You can also launch the Query Application directly from the start menu (**Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > Query Application**).

Note: If you open the Query Application from GenomBench, it closes when you close GenomBench. If you open the Query Application from the Start menu, it remains open when you close Genom-Bench.

The Query Application is divided into three main parts: the Navigation Pane, the Query Form, and the Result Pane. A History Pane can also be displayed.



Figure 33.45 Main parts of the Query Application

The list of public servers that you can search displays in the Servers List in the Navigation Pane. The Query Form initially displays the list of public servers as well. Expanding one of the folders and selecting a server from the list in the Navigation Pane switches the Query Form to the parameters that are applicable to that server (Figure 33.46). Certain fields in the Query Form are pre-configured and others can be changed to select a condition or value. The Query Form for each server is unique and each is described in Configuring Query Application Parameters on the next page.

🔎 Ensembl Genome Browser - Query Application								
<u>Eile Edit Vi</u> ew <u>H</u> elp								
🕞 🕒 🛇 - 🔿 - 🏠 🗶 🔎 🗤 - 斗 - 🥅 📰 🔛 Query Form Advanced Query 💌								
Servers List — ×	▶ Search Servers ▶	Ensembl Genome B	rowser					
🖃 💑 Search Servers	-Query							
🖕 📂 NCBI Search Servers	Operator	Field Name	Condition	Yalue				
Pubmed Entrez Search		Organism 🗾	Equal 💽	Homo sapiens	•			
- Public Genome Browsers		Search Field	Equal					
Ensembl Genome Browser				[MII				
Ensembl SSAHA Search	AND	Keyword 📃	Equals 💽					
UCSC BLAT Search								
UCSC Genome Browser								
	Add Condition	Remove Cond	ition Help	Reset Submit Qu	Jery 🤤			

Figure 33.46 Query Form showing parameters for searching the Ensembl Genome Browser

The Results, Navigation, and History Panes can be hidden from view by selecting **View > Panes** or by clicking the **x** in the upper right-hand corner of each. To redisplay, select **View > Panes** again. The Query Form cannot be hidden.

Configuring Query Application Parameters

Each of the available searches has a set of pre-configured parameters that display in the Query Form when you select a search server.

The Query Form can display parameters in a Simple or Advanced form by selecting from the Query Form drop-down menu. The Simple Query Form displays a description of the search and a list of the parameters and values. The Advanced Query Form displays a tabular view of the parameters. The Advanced form also allows you to add and remove additional conditions if permitted by the search parameters. For example, you can add keywords to PubMed and Ensembl Genome Browser searches but you cannot add conditions to Ensembl SSAHA or UCSC searches. The Advance Query Form is shown in the following examples.

UCSC Genome Browser Parameters

The UCSC Genome Browser query interface allows you to query by UCSC freeze dates for different genomes and by keyword. The query interface for the UCSC Genome Browser is shown in Figure 33.47.

Search Servers	UCSC Genome Brow	iser	
-Query Operator	Field Name	Condition	Value
AND	Keyword 💽	Equals 💽	BRCA1
Add Condition	Remove Cond	ition Hel	Reset Submit Query

Figure 33.47 UCSC Genome Browser query interface

Select an organism and freeze data from the Value field in the first row and enter a keyword value in the Value field in the second row. Click the Submit Query button in the Query Form or

the *b* button on the toolbar to start the search. Click the *b* button on the toolbar to stop the search. Results are displayed in the Results Pane.

For more information about the UCSC Genome Browser, see the UCSC Genome Bioinformatics web site at <u>http://genome.cse.ucsc.edu/cgi-bin/hgGateway</u> or click the **UCSC Genome Browser** hyperlink on the top of the Query Form.

UCSC BLAT Search Parameters

BLAT on DNA is designed to quickly find 40+ base pair sequences of 95% and greater similarity. It may miss more divergent or shorter sequence alignments. It typically finds perfect sequence matches of 33 bases, and can sometimes find matches as low as 22 bases. DNA BLAT works well on primates.

The UCSC BLAT query interface allows you to query by UCSC freeze dates for different genomes, by query type, and by sequence. The query interface for UCSC BLAT is shown in Figure 33.48.

Search Server Ouerv	ers ▶ UCSC BLAT Sea	arch		
Operator	Field Name	Condition	Value	
	Freeze	Equal	Human (April 2003)	-
AND	Query Type	Equal	BLATs guess	•
AND	Sort Output	Equal	 query,score 	•
AND	Sequence	Equals		*
Add Conditi	ion Remove	Condition	Help Reset Submit Qu	ery

Figure 33.48 UCSC BLAT query interface

Select the organism and freeze date from the drop-down list in the first row. Select the query type from the drop-down list in the second row. Select how you would like the output sorted from the drop-down list in the third row. Enter the query sequence by either entering it or pasting it into the textbox in the fourth row in FASTA format. Click the Submit Query button in the Query

Form or the *button* on the toolbar to start the search. Click the **button** on the toolbar to stop the search. Results are displayed in the Results Pane.

For more information on the UCSC BLAT search, see the UCSC Genome Bioinformatics web site at: <u>http://genome.cse.ucsc.edu/cgi-bin/hgBlat?com-mand=start&org=Human&db=hg15&hgsid=23397897</u> or click the **UCSC BLAT Search** hyper-link on the top of the Query Form.

Ensembl Genome Browser Parameters

The Ensembl genome browser interface allows you to search the Ensembl databases by organism, search field, and keyword. The query interface for the Ensembl Genome Browser is shown in Figure 33.49.

Search Servers Ensembl Genome Browser							
-Query Operator	Field Name	Condition	Value Homo sapiens				
AND 🔽	Search Field	Equal 🔹	All				
Add Condition	Remove Condi	tion Help	Reset Submit Query				

Figure 33.49 Ensembl Genome Browser query interface

Select the organism database you want to search from the Value field drop-down list in the first row. Select the field you want to search from the Value field drop-down list in the second row. Enter the keyword you want to search in the Value field in the third row. You can also add one or more additional keywords by clicking the **Add Condition** button. Click the **Remove Condition**

button to remove the bottom row. Click the Submit Query button in the Query Form or the 🔎

button on the toolbar to start the search. Click the *k* button on the toolbar to stop the search. Results are displayed in the Results Pane.

For more information on the Ensembl Genome Browser, see the Ensembl Genome Browser web site at: <u>http://www.ensembl.org/</u> or click the **Ensembl Genome Browser** hyperlink on the top of the Query Form.

Ensembl SSAHA Search Parameters

SSAHA (Sequence Search and Alignment by Hashing Algorithm) is a software tool for fast matching and alignment of DNA sequences. It achieves its fast search speed by converting sequence information into a hash table data structure, which can then be searched rapidly for matches.

The Ensembl SSAHA query interface allows you to search the Ensembl databases by a number of fields. The query interface for Ensembl SSAHA is shown in Figure 33.50.

-Query Operator		Field Name	Condition		Value
		Organism 🗾	Equal	-	Homo sapiens
AND	Y	Sequence	Equal	•	×
AND	Ψ.	Context	Equal	•	50Kbp
AND	+	Datasource	Equal	-	genomic sequence 💽
AND	-	Matching bases 💌	Equal	-	26bp 💌
AND	-	Max Matches 🗾 💌	Equal	-	top 50 💽
AND	-	Max Gaps 🗾 💌	Equal	•	13bp 💌
AND	Ψ.	Max Insertions 💌	Equal	•	1
AND	Ψ.	Num Repeats 💌	Equal	•	1 base 💌
AND	Ψ.	Clip Threshold 💌	Equal	•	10000 🔹
Add Con	dition	Remove Conditi	on	Н	elp Reset Submit Query

Figure 33.50 Ensembl SSAHA query interface

For each field, except the Sequence field, select a value from the drop-down list in the Value field. For the Sequence field, either enter or paste the query sequence into the textbox in FASTA

or plain text format. Click the Submit Query button in the Query Form or the 🗾 button on the

toolbar to start the search. Click the X button on the toolbar to stop the search. Results are displayed in the Results Pane.

For more information on SSAHA, see <u>http://www.sanger.ac.uk/Software/analysis/SSAHA/</u>. For more information on the Ensemble SSAHA search, see <u>http://www.ensembl.org/Homo_sapiens/</u><u>ssahaview</u> or click the **Ensembl SSAHA Search** hyperlink on the top of the Query Form.

PubMed Entrez Search Parameters

The PubMed Entrez query interface allows you to search for citations by database and by keyword. The query interface is shown in Figure 33.51.

Search Servers Pubmed Entrez Search								
Operator	Field Name Database	Condition Equals	Value PubMed					
Add Condition	Remove Conditio	on F	lelp Reset Submit Query					

Figure 33.51 PubMed Entrez query interface

Select the database to search from the drop-down list in the Value field in the first row. Enter a keyword to search for in the Value field in the second row. You can also add one or more additional key words by clicking the **Add Condition** button. Click the **Remove Condition** button to

remove the bottom row. Click the Submit Query button in the Query Form or the 🗾 button on

the toolbar to start the search. Click the \times button on the toolbar to stop the search. Results are displayed in the Results Pane.

For more information on PubMed Entrez, see <u>http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/entrez/query.fcgi</u> or click the **PubMed Entrez Search** hyperlink on the top of the Query Form.

Query Application Properties

Several properties can be customized in the Query Application including URLs to search servers. Selecting **Edit > Properties** opens the Query Application Properties dialog box, which has two tabs: General and Advanced.

In the General tab:

- In the Common box, enter the number of search results per page in the field. If you
 change this number after a query is already run, the number of search results per page
 does not update until the next query is run.
- In the User Interface box, check the boxes to Enable dockable windows, Remember last used server, and Remember window/position sizes.

In the Advanced tab:

- In the Servers Configuration box, check the box to use a custom configuration file. This
 allows you to configure URLs to servers other than the public servers listed. For more
 information, contact Invitrogen Customer Support.
- In the Warnings box, check the box to turn off the warning that tells you if you start a new request before an existing query is finished running, the existing query will be stopped.

Query Application Results

When a search completes, the Results Pane of the Query Application displays the query results (Figure 33.52):

۶	UCSC Genome	Browser - Query Appl	ication			<u>- 0 -</u>	<
	<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> ie	w <u>H</u> elp					
	a 🗅 🚱 -	• 🕗 - 🏠 🗙 🖻	01 - 01 - 🔲 📰 [Query 🔻		
50	ervers List ====	×	Search Servers > U(SC Genome Browser			
E	🗐 💑 Search Ser	vers	-Query				
	E-10 NCBI S	earch Servers	Operator Field Name		Condition	Value	_
		omed Entrez Search		Organism 💌	Equal 🗾	Human (April 2003)	
	Public C	enome browsers	AND	Keyword 🗾	Equals 🔹	BRCA1	
	- 🕼 Ens	embl SSAHA Search					
		SC BLAT Search	Add Condition	Remove Condition		Help Reset Submit Query	
		SC Genome Browser				······••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	-1
×	Name	Chromosome	Start	End	Description	-	ī
	BRCA1	17	41105082	41186173	- (NM_007305) breast	cancer 1, early onset isoform	1
	BRCA1	17	41105082	41186173	· (NM_007304) breast	cancer 1, early onset isoform	1
	BRCA1	17	41105082	41186173	- (NM_007303) breast	cancer 1, early onset isoform	
	BRCA1	17	41105082	41186173	- (NM_007302) breast	cancer 1, early onset isoform	
	BRCA1	17	41105082	41186173	- (NM_007301) breast	cancer 1, early onset isoform	
	BRCA1	17	41105082	41186173	- (NM_007300) breast	cancer 1, early onset isoform	
	BRCA1	17	41105082	41186173	- (NM_007299) breast	cancer 1, early onset isoform	
ults	BRCA1	17	41105082	41186173	· (NM_007298) breast	cancer 1, early onset isoform	
Res	BRCA1	17	41105082	41186173	- (NM_007297) breast	cancer 1, early onset isoform	
rch	BRCA1	17	41105082	41186173	- (NM_007296) breast	cancer 1, early onset	-1
Sea	•		T.	1		•	1
Do	ne			Displaying	results: 33	NUM	-
							100

Figure 33.52 Query Application results display in the Results Pane

Query result information is organized into columns in the Results Pane. The types of information/columns in the display depend on the query performed. Hyperlinks to hits appear in the Name column. Click on a link to open the hit in the corresponding Vector NTI Advance application (for example, genomic sequence hits open in GenomBench, PubMed Entrez hits open in Citation Viewer, etc.).

All queries performed in a single session of the Query Application are recorded in the History Pane and are organized under the search that was used to perform them (Figure 33.53). To show the History Pane, select **View > Pane > History**. Results in the Results Pane are replaced by the results from a subsequent search. To rerun a query, click on the hyperlink in the History Pane to redisplay the results in the Results Pane.

UCSC Genome Browser						
	└─ 🧭 <u>{ha15, BRCA1 }</u>					
Ensembl Genome Browser						
L	Homo sapiens, All & BRCA1 }					

Figure 33.53 Two queries displayed in the History Pane

Once you have results for at least one query, the following buttons on the toolbar and commands on the Results Pane shortcut menu are available:

- **Open Link/Save to DB** Opens the selected hit in the corresponding Vector NTI Advance application.
- Create Shortcut on Desktop Creates a link to the selected hit as a shortcut on your desktop.
- Select All Selects all the hits in the Results Pane.
- Save Selected Results Saves the selected hits to a tab-delimited text file.
- Save All Results (📄) Saves all hits to a tab-delimited text file.
- Copy/Copy Link (
) Copies the information in each cell for the selected hits including the underlying hyperlink. You can then paste the information into any word processing program.
- O, O Lists the searches performed in the current session of the Query Application. Click the drop-down list next to either button to advance or go back to results from a different query.
- Displays the previous or next page of results if there are more results than will fit on one page.
- Displays the Query Form Pane.

Sending Fragments to Vector NTI

You can send a displayed fragment, current selection, marked region(s) or selected feature from GenomBench to Vector NTI. To send an item to Vector NTI, make the appropriate mark(s) or selection(s) and select **Tools > Send Sequence to VNTI**. The Launch VNTI Options dialog box displays (Figure 33.54):

Uptions		
Range © Fragment © Selection © Modes	Features C None C All C Selected	Partially overlapped features will be truncated
C Selected feature		
Description: Fragment from 411050	182 to 41186173 of 17	
Description: Fragment from 411050	182 to 41186173 of 17	

Figure 33.54 Launch VNTI Options dialog box

In the Launch VNTI Options dialog box, configure the parameters for exporting the item to Vector NTI:

- Range Select the region you want to export to Vector NTI.
 - ^o Current fragment Entire fragment currently open in GenomBench
 - ^o Selection Selected area of the current fragment.
 - ^o Mark(s) Marked area(s) of the current fragment
 - Selected Feature Selected feature on the current fragment. Feature is spliced according to its sub-regions.
- Features Choose which features you would like to import (no features, all features or selected features only). Partially overlapped features are truncated upon transfer.
- **Description** Add or modify the description for the exported item.
- Translate to Protein Check the Translate to Protein box if you want to translate the DNA sequence to protein upon export.

Click **OK** to send to Vector NTI. The sent item opens in a Molecule Display window in Vector NTI (Figure 33.55).



Figure 33.55 Selection sent to Vector NTI from GenomBench

Features display for the new molecule according to the configuration you set in the Launch VNTI Options dialog box. From the VNTI Molecule Viewing window, you can save the new molecule to the Vector NTI Database and work with it in Vector NTI as you would any other molecule.

Note: Many of the genomic feature type names do not coincide with conventional GenBank feature type names. In this case, the genomic features come into Vector NTI as Miscellaneous features. However, the original feature type is captured in the feature description.

Saving Sequences

Current fragments or portions of the current fragment can be saved to the local GenomBench database. Saving via the **Save/Save As** command saves the current fragment, whereas saving via the **Create New Sequence** command allows you to save the current fragment or a portion of it.

Saving Fragments

To save the entire current fragment, select **File > Save** or **Save As** from the menu. The singletabbed Save to Local Storage dialog box displays. Initially, when you open the Save to Local Storage dialog box, the window is empty. Before you can save to the Local database, you must first create at least one subset in which to store your sequences.

To create a new subset, click the Create New Subset button (2). A new entry appears in the Subset Pane where you can enter the name of the new subset.

To save the fragment, select a subset and enter the name for the fragment in the Molecule Name box. Click **OK** to save the fragment.

Creating New Sequences

To create a new sequence from the current fragment and save it to the local GenomBench database, select **File > Create New Sequence** or click the **Create New Sequence** button () on the toolbar. The Create New Sequence dialog box displays with save options at the bottom (Fig-

Ere	ate New Sequence				×
ſ	.ocal Storage				
	ĭ× ĺ	Sequence name:			
	Subset	Name		Length id	
	Human Default GB subset				
	Idle				
	Range		- Features		
	 Fragment 		C None		
	C Selection		 All 	Partially overlapped features will be	
	C Marks		C Selected	truncated	
	C Selected feature				
					1
	Description: Fragment from 15	1970791 to 20381711	l of 17		J
					Incol
					ancer

ure 33.56). In the Local Storage tab, create a subset, if necessary (see Saving Fragments above), select the subset and define the sequence name.

Figure 33.56 Save Options tab of the Save to Local Storage dialog box

In the **Range** and **Features** boxes at the bottom of the dialog box, define the portion and features of the fragment you want to save.

- Range Select the region you want to save (current fragment, selection, mark(s), or selected feature).
- Features Select which features you want to save (no features, all features or selected features only). Partially overlapped features are truncated upon saving.
- **Description** Enter a description for the saved item.

Click **OK** to save the sequence.

Note: When you save a sequence using the Create New Sequence option, the sequence is given a start position. If you create the new sequence using the **Selection** or **Selected Feature** option, the start position is based on the position coordinate on the genomic sequence backbone. If you create the new sequence using the **Marks** option, the start position is set to 1. If the sequence is opened from the Local database, the backbone coordinate is preserved only when saving the whole fragment; in all other cases the start position is set to 1.

Importing and Exporting Sequences

GenomBench provides importing and exporting capability for sequences. Importing is performed using the GenomBench import utility; exporting is done via a menu command in the GenomBench window.

Importing Files into GenomBench

Sequences are imported into the local GenomBench database from either GenBank (.gb) or Sequence (.seq) files using the GenomBench import utility. To launch the GenomBench import utility, select **Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > GenomBench Utilities > GenomBench Import**. The WinImport dialog box opens (Figure 33.57):

Se WinImport				_ 🗆 ×
Import GenBank file to	GenomBench			
File name		E	Browse	Start
Subset		▼ Update n	node 🗖 🗌	Stop
				Close

Figure 33.57 GenomBench import utility

If you had the previous version of GenomBench (version 1) installed on your system with Vector NTI Advance (version 8) and you have not already migrated the database, the message in Figure 33.58 displays asking you to migrate your current database so that it is compatible with the new version of GenomBench (version 2). If you plan to use the existing version(s) of a GenomBench database, click **Cancel** in the message, and make a backup copy of the database. To locate all copies of existing databases, select **Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > GenomBench Utilities > LS Configuration**. Paths to any configured databases are listed in the drop-down menu in the Database Name field. To backup the database, simply copy the .mdb file to a new location.

Local Sto	irage 🔀				
	Your local database is based on an older version of GenomBench and must be migrated to work with this version. This can be done automatically.				
	Once migrated, it will not be compatible with older versions of GenomBench. RECOMENDATION: Make a backup copy of the current local database if you plan to use an older version of GenomBench in the future.				
	Begin migration?				
	OK Cancel				

Figure 33.58 Message that displays to migrate the database if a previous version of GenomBench was installed

To continue with the migration, click **OK** in the message. The migration proceeds and opens the GenomBench window when finished. Any existing data remains in the database and you can now import sequences to local storage.

In the WinImport dialog box, select the file to import by clicking the **Browse** button. Clicking the **Open** button enters the import file name and path into the File to Import box in the WinImport dialog box. Select the subset you want to import the file into from the Subset drop-down list and

click the **Start** button to begin the import process. The import status is reported in the textbox in the lower half of the WinImport dialog box (Figure 33.59).

😑 WinImpor	t		_ 🗆 ×
Import Gen	Bank file to GenomBench		
File name	"D:\chr17_p11.2.gb"	Browse	Start
Subset	Human	Update mode 🔲	Stop
Import GB	file D:\chr17_p11.2.gb to GenomBench		
ID 1×42 IMPORT	ACCESSION 17_5586 DONE	LOCUS S 17_5586 Ado	TATUS ded
			Close

Figure 33.59 Importing a sequence into GenomBench

The **Update Mode** option updates existing entries in the local GenomBench database with information from imported entries, when an existing entry and imported entry match. GenomBench searches for a match as follows:

- The accession number of the sequence that is being imported is compared to the entry in the local database.
- If the accession numbers match, the sequences are compared.
- If the sequences match, GenomBench updates information, such as description, name, qualifiers, etc., for the existing sequence.
- If the sequences do not match, GenomBench adds the imported sequence as a new sequence in the local database.
- Imported sequences that do not have accession numbers are not compared; they are always added to the local database as new sequences.

To invoke Update Mode, check the **Update Mode** checkbox.

Exporting Sequences to GenBank Files

A current fragment or a portion of the current fragment can be exported from GenomBench to a GenBank (.gb) file. To export the current fragment (portion), select **File > Export to GenBank File**. The Export Options dialog opens (Figure 33.60).

Range	Features	
Fragment	C None	Partially overlapped
C Selection	All	features will be
C Marks	C Selected	truncated
C Selected feature		
escription: Fragment from 20052975 t	to 20710449 of 17	
escription: Fragment from 20052975 t	to 20710449 of 17	
escription: Fragment from 20052975 t Translate to protein	to 20710449 of 17	

Figure 33.60 Export Options dialog box

Similar to the Save Options dialog box, in the Export Options dialog box you can define the portion and features of the fragment you want to export:

- Range Select the region you want to export (current fragment, selection, mark(s) or selected feature).
- Features Choose which features you would like to export (no features, all features or selected features only). Partially overlapped features are truncated upon exporting.
- **Description** Enter a description for the exported item.
- **Translate to Protein** Check the Translate to Protein option if you want GenomBench to export the translation of the sequence.

When you have set the export options appropriately, click **OK**. The Export to GenBank File dialog box opens. Navigate to the location where you want to store the exported file, enter a name for the file, and click the **Save** button to complete the export process.

Printing in GenomBench

Graphics and text can be printed in GenomBench by pane. In the Overview and Feature Panes, the graphics are printed. In the tabs of the Information Pane, the text-based information is printed. To print a pane, select a pane or tab to make it active and then select **File > Print** or

click the **Print** button () on the toolbar. In the Print dialog box that opens, you can also select which pane you want to print in the **Select Pane** box (Figure 33.61).

Print	×
Printer Name: Acrobat Distiller	Properties
Status: Ready Type: AdobePS Acrobat Distiller Where: LPT1: Comment: LPT1:	Print to file
Select Pane © Overview © Feature Map © Sequence © Alignment © Feature List © Text © V	Number of copies: 1 Print Range All Visible Area Selected Area Specified Range Start: 1
<< Hide Layout Options Layout Options Horizontal scale (stretch molecule): Vertical scale (image zoom):	Preview Send to Printer Cancel 100 % 100 %

Figure 33.61 GenomBench print dialog box

Depending on which option is selected in the Select Pane box, different options display in the Print Range and Layout Options boxes. For the Overview and Feature Map panes, you can print all of the graphics or just the visible area. For the Sequence tab, you can print all of the sequence or a specified range only. For the Feature List and Text tabs, the only option is to print all of the information in them.

To preview before printing, click the **Preview** button in the Print dialog box or the **Print Preview** button ($\boxed{1}$) on the toolbar.

To print the pane or tab, click Send to Printer in the Print dialog box.

Copying in GenomBench

Copying in GenomBench can be done via two different methods, Camera and Copy. Both features place data on the clipboard in similar formats. In addition, the Camera feature allows you to place a copied selection in a file.

Copying by Camera

The Camera tool copies the selected pane as it is represented, However, you can select options in the Camera dialog box that modify how the copied material is represented.

To copy data, select the pane or tab you want to copy to make it active and select **Edit > Camera** or click the **Camera** button () on the toolbar. In the Camera dialog box (Figure 33.62), you can also select any of the panes or tabs from the **Select Pane** drop-down list.

Camera	×
The 'Camera' function copies d selected pane, with user-specifi 'Range' settings, and puts the d Clipboard or in a File.	ata from the ed 'Format' and lata on the
Select Pane Overview	•
Format	
Graphics	
C Text	
Range	
 All 	
C Selected Area	Сору
O Visible Area	Cours to File
	Save to File
Show Layout Options >>	Cancel

Figure 33.62 Camera dialog used for copying data

In the Camera dialog box, select from the following parameters:

- Format: Select between the items being copied, either graphics or text format.
- **Range**: Specify the range of data to be copied. The selection option availability is based on the choice you made in the Select Pane drop-down list.
- Copy/Save to File: These options finalize the copy operation.
 - ^o The **Copy** option copies the entire pane contents to the clipboard from which you can paste into any word processing program.
 - ^o The **Save to File** option transfers the camera-copied material to file in the specified format, an .emf or a .jpg file, and representation. In the Save dialog box that opens, specify the destination for the file you are saving.

Copying by the Copy Command

The Copy command, invoked by selecting **Edit > Copy**, does not open a dialog box. It simply copies to the clipboard all or a selected portion (such as a feature or sequence fragment) of an activated pane (indicated by the dark blue title bar to the left of the pane).

Feature Map Pane	Names of selected features copy as tab-delimited text.		
	 Features copy in the internal binary format 		
Alignment Tab	 A selected range of the alignment copied as text 		
	 Features copy in the internal binary format 		
Sequence Tab	 Selected range copies from the direct strand in plain text for- mat 		
Feature List Tab/	Table content copies as tab-delimited text		
Feature Search Results Tab	 Features copy in the internal binary format 		

The following can be copied from the panes listed:

C H A P T E R

ANALYSIS MONITOR - ADVANCED ANALYSIS TOOLS

Introduction

The Vector NTI Analysis Monitor provides a convenient interface for performing the advanced DNA/RNA and Protein molecule analyses included in BioAnnotator and GenomBench, as well as an alternative interface for performing BLAST searches from Vector NTI.

BioAnnotator includes the following advanced analyses:

- PFAM
- ProSite
- BLOCKS
- Proteolytic Cleavage.

GenomBench includes the following advanced analyses:

- Spidey
- Sim4
- **Note:** Analyses that are included with GenomBench or BioAnnotator licenses also become available from the Vector NTI window when these products are licensed. Analyses that are included with GenomBench become available from BioAnnotator when both products are licensed.

Once an analysis is submitted in the Analysis Monitor, it continues to run unless it is aborted, even if the Analysis Monitor application is closed. If Analysis Monitor is closed while an analysis is running, it can be reopened at any time to check the status of the analysis.

Vector NTI functions as a viewer for analysis results retrieved by the Analysis Monitor. The Analysis Results data type enables you to store results from the Analysis Monitor application.

PFAM, ProSite and BLOCKS Databases

PFAM, ProSite and BLOCKS databases used for the above analyses are provided in the Vector NTI Advance 10 installation. They are located in the *AM* subdirectory of the *VNTI Database* directory. For example, if you perform a default Vector NTI Advance 10 installation, these data-

base files are located in at C:\vnti database\am\. The PFAM, ProSite and BLOCKS database files are named *pfam*, *prosite.dat* and *blockz.ddb*, respectively.

The PFAM database file is from the PFAM HMM library (Pfam_ls or Pfam_fs) available at http://pfam.wustl.edu/.

The prosite.dat file is from http://us.expasy.org/databases/prosite/release/.

In the case of the BLOCKS database, the blocks.dat file from <u>ftp://ftp.ncbi.nih.gov/repository/</u><u>blocks/unix/</u> is converted to binary code to create the blockz.ddb database file that is used for the BLOCKS analysis feature. Your Vector NTI Advance 10 installation includes a conversion program called *blockZ.exe* that reads in a blocks.dat text file and outputs a blockz.ddb binary file that can be used for the BLOCKS analysis.

You can update your PFAM, ProSite or BLOCKS database file by downloading the appropriate file from the corresponding above-mentioned location, converting the file (in the case of blocks.dat) and replacing the existing database file in the VNTI Database AM subdirectory with the downloaded/converted file.

Launching Advanced Analyses

You can launch an advanced analysis for the active molecule in the BioAnnotator or Vector NTI window (see above note) by choosing **Analyses** > **BioAnnotator** or **GenomBench Tools** > **advanced analysis tool name**> from the drop-down menu in the application window. In the GenomBench window, choose **Tools** > **Align cDNA with Genomic DNA using <analysis tool**>. When the Analysis Monitor is launched in this way, its interface is specific for the analysis launched.

Choosing **Analyses > Run Analysis Monitor** from the main Vector NTI workspace is a second method for launching Analysis Monitor for the active/selected molecule. In this case, a preliminary dialog box displays showing the active/selected molecule information and the advanced analysis options for that molecule type. Select the analysis type you want to run, specify a name for the analysis and click the **Apply** button to launch Analysis Monitor for the indicated molecule and analysis. The **Run Analysis Monitor** command is available from the Analyses menus in BioAnnotator and in the Vector NTI Molecule Viewing and Local Database windows.

You can also launch the Analysis Monitor from the Start menu by choosing **Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > Analysis Monitor** (assuming a default VNTI installation was performed). In this case, the Analysis Monitor dialog box opens with an empty Parameters Pane. Launching Analysis monitor is this way is useful for performing advanced analyses on molecules saved to an external location in GenBank/GenPept format, for starting previously defined analyses that have not yet been run and for viewing the status of currently running analyses (see the next section).

To load in a molecule file and analysis type, choose **Analysis > <molecule type (DNA/RNA or protein)> <advanced analysis option>** from the Analysis Monitor menu and navigate to the molecule file to be analyzed in the Open dialog box. The appropriate interface opens in the Analysis Monitor for the selected molecule file. To load in a previously saved analysis, choose **Analysis > Load from File** from the menu.

Configuring parameters for the different analyses is discussed in the sections below.

Elements of the Analysis Monitor Workspace

The Analysis Monitor interface consists of Title, Menu and Tool bars, a Parameters Pane for configuring analysis parameters and an Analysis List Pane that lists the analyses performed and their stage of completion (Figure 34.1):

👗 Analysis Monitor - [Sim4Ana	lysis of BP¥1]	and a second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second		_I_ ×	
Analysis Edit Info View H (← ⇒) Submit	elp			<u>_8</u> >	
Sequence to analyze		Against sequence(s) — Look for subbase in loo MAIN	Cal database: Cal database: Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement Complement		
Sim4 parameters: Word si Limit of Scor	ze (115): 12 e Drop-off: 12	HSP score thresho	Id 16		
Search for Small Exons No C Yes	Search for Small Exons		Allow ambiguity characters		
Diagonal	Distance: 10	Weight factor fr	or linking HSPs: 1 Use Defaults		
	[1		
Name 🤝	Analysis Type	Object Name	Status		
SimeAnalysis of pATH1	5im4Analysis	pATH1	New submitted data for analysis		
process of PATH1 Plocks of PATH1	plueyAnalysis	EUTA ULIMAN	New submitted data for analysis		
Siméticalucie of Chr 19, 42, 8M	Siméénalysis	Chr 19, 42 8M	New submitted data for analysis		
Sim44nalysis of Chr 19 42.001 Sim44nalysis		Chr 19 42.0M	New submitted data for analysis		
Similaralysis of Chr 19 42 8M Similaralysis		Chr 19, 42.8M	New submitted data for analysis		
Sim4Analysis of Chr 19 42.8M Sim4Analysis		Chr 19, 42,8M	New submitted data for analysis		
Sim4Analysis of Chr 19 42.8M	Sim4Analysis	Chr 19 42.8M	New submitted data for analysis		
- Readv				Analyses loaded: 6	

Figure 34.1 Analysis Monitor interface

The Analysis Monitor title bar reflects the selected analysis and name of the molecule being analyzed. The menu/toolbar contains commands for loading analyses and molecules from files, saving analyses, basic copying and pasting and for viewing information about the Analysis Monitor program.

In the Parameters Pane of the Analysis Monitor interface, you can configure analysis-specific parameters as described in the next sections. For blue-colored parameter labels, you can hover the cursor over the label and click when the hand icon appears to open a tip dialog box that describes the parameters in that section (Figure 34.2):

The second second second			()	,	1 milest
Analysis Monitor - [Sim4Ana	lysis of BPV1]				
Analysis Edic Inro view H	eip				느๓스
Sequence to analyze		Against sequence(s) Look for subbase in loo	sal database: Strand(s) C Direct C Complement C Both	ary	^
Sim4 parameters: Word si Limit of Scon Search for Small Exons © No © Ye: Diagonal	ze (115) : 12 = Drop-off: 12 s Distance: 10	HSP score threshol	d 16 Second Stage: 12 characters or linking HSPe: 1		
			Use Defaults		_
Name 🗸	Analysis Type	Object Name	Status		_
耳 Sim4Analysis of nATH1	Sim4Analysis	nATH1	New submitted data for analysis		100
A SpideyAnalysis of pATH1	SpideyAnalysis	pATH1	New submitted data for analysis		
A Blocks of 5H1A HUMAN	Blocks	5H1A HUMAN	New submitted data for analysis		
A Sim4Analysis of Chr 19 42.8M	Sim4Analysis	Chr 19 42.8M	New submitted data for analysis		
A Sim4Analysis of Chr 19 42.8M	Sim4Analysis	Chr 19 42.8M	New submitted data for analysis		
A Sim4Analysis of Chr 19 42.8M	Sim4Analysis	Chr 19 42.8M	New submitted data for analysis		
A Sim4Analysis of Chr 19 42.8M	Sim4Analysis	Chr 19 42.8M	New submitted data for analysis		
A Sim4Analysis of Chr 19 42.8M	Sim4Analysis	Chr 19 42.8M	New submitted data for analysis		-1
 Ready			· · ·	Analyses loaded: 6	

Figure 34.2 Tool tip for Spidey Parameters section

The Analysis List Pane of the Analysis Monitor shows the list of analyses that have been configured/performed. The icon at the left of each listed analysis indicates the stage of completion of the analysis as follows:

lcon	Significance
	Analysis added, but not yet initiated
H	Analysis in the process of loading
Ā	Analysis running
2	Analysis completed successfully
X	Analysis aborted

Table 34.1 Analysis stage of completion icons

For analyses that have been added, but not yet initiated, double-clicking on the analysis name in the list loads the analysis into the upper portion of the dialog box, so that you can configure and run the analysis.

To initiate the analysis currently displayed in the Parameters Pane, click the Submit button.

Configuring Advanced Analysis Parameters

In the Analysis Monitor interface, you can configure parameters to customize the advanced analysis option you have selected. The different types of searches/analyses and their parameters are discussed in this section.

Sim4

Sim4 is a similarity search tool for aligning an expressed DNA transcript (i.e. an EST, cDNA or mRNA) with a template (genomic sequence). Sim4 employs the following multi-stage BLAST-based technique:

- 1. Sim4 detects all possible exact matches of W-mers between the two sequences and extends them to maximal scoring gap-free segments (exon-cores).
- Exon-cores are extended into the adjacent, as-yet-unmatched fragments using greedy alignment algorithms. Heuristics are used to favor configurations that conform to the splicesite recognition signals. If necessary, the process is repeated with less stringent parameters on the unmatched fragments.

Sim4 functions similarly to BLAST, but performs a more thorough mRNA alignment search.

The Analysis Monitor Parameters Pane for the Sim4 analysis tool appears as follows (Figure 34.3):

⇒ <u>S</u> ubmit		
Sequence to analyze Name: BFV1	Against sequence(s) Look for subset in local database: BMAIN C Direct C Complementary C Both	
Sim4 parameters: Word size (115) : 12 Limit of Score Drop-off: 12	First Stage: 16 Second Stage: 12	
Search for Small Exons	Allow ambiguity characters	
Diagonal Distance: 10	Weight factor for linking HSPs:	

Figure 34.3 Sim4 parameters

Sequence to Analyze

• Name – Specifies the name of the molecule sequence you want to analyze.

Sim4 Parameters

- Word Size The number of DNA bases in a size unit. The larger the word size, the faster and less sensitive Sim4 becomes.
- Limit of Score Drop-off The trigger for stopping ungapped extension.
- Search for Small Exons If Yes is selected, an additional search for small exons is performed.
- **Diagonal Distance** The upper boundary of diagonal distance within consecutive HSPs in an exon.
- Allow Ambiguity Characters If checked, allows the following ambiguity characters: ABCDGHKMNRSTVWXY. If unchecked, only the following characters are allowed: ACGTNX.
- Weight Factor for Linking HSPs The multiplication factor used when calculating the score of a chain of HSPs.
- Use Defaults Resets Sim4 parameters to the original default values.

HSP Score Threshold

- First Stage The threshold for HSPs for the first stage of comparison. If no value is specified, the default value is used.
- **Second Stage** The threshold for HSPs when aligning the extended-and-unmatched portions. If no value is specified, the default value is used.

Against Sequences

Select the subset of genomic sequences, mRNAs or ESTs to search against.

Strands

Select the strand(s) to search. The **Both** option searches both strands and reports the best result.

Spidey

Spidey is an mRNA-to-genomic alignment program. It takes as input a single genomic sequence and a set of mRNA accessions or FASTA sequences. All processing is done one mRNA sequence at a time. The first step for each mRNA sequence is a high-stringency BLAST against the genomic sequence. The BLAST alignments are sorted by score and then assigned into windows by a recursive function.

After the genomic windows are constructed, the initial BLAST alignments are freed and another BLAST search is performed, this time with the entire mRNA against the genomic region defined by the window, and at a lower stringency than the initial search. Spidey then uses a greedy algorithm to generate a high-scoring, non-overlapping subset of the alignments from the second BLAST search. This consistent set is analyzed carefully to make sure that the entire mRNA sequence is covered by the alignments.

Once the mRNA is completely covered by the set of alignments, the boundaries of the alignments are adjusted so that the alignments abut each other precisely and so that they are adjacent to good splice donor and acceptor sites. To position the exon boundaries, the adjacent exon alignment overlap region plus a few base pairs on each side is examined for splice donor sites, using functions that have different splice matrices depending on the organism chosen. The top few splice donor sites (by score) are then evaluated as to how much they affect the original alignment boundaries. The site that affects the boundaries the least is chosen, and is evaluated as to the presence of an acceptor site. The alignments are truncated or extended as necessary so that they terminate at the splice donor site and so that they do not overlap.

For more information on Spidey analysis, see <u>http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/IEB/Research/Ostell/</u> Spidey/index.html.

The Analysis Monitor Parameters Pane for the Spidey analysis tool appears as follows (Figure 34.4):

🚡 Analysis Monitor - [SpideyAnalysis of ColE1]	
🗖 Analysis Edit Info View Help	_ 8 ×
$\leftarrow \Rightarrow$ Submit	
Genomic sequence to analyze Name: ColE1 Organism: Look for subset in local database: C Drosophila C. clegans MAIN C Plant MAIN	
Spidey parameters:	
Minimum mRNA-genomic identity: 0 % 1-st Pass: 0.1 = 10 ⁻⁶ Divergent sequences	
Minimum length of mRNA covered: 0 % 2-nd Pass: 1 *10 ⁻³ Use large intron sizes	
Limit number of gene models to: 1 3rd Pass: 10 Use Defaults	

Figure 34.4 Spidey parameters

Genomic Sequence to Analyze

- Name Specifies the name of the molecule' genomic sequence you want to analyze.
- Organism Select the organism type for your genomic sequence.

Spidey Parameters

- Minimum mRNA Genomic Identity Percent identity cutoff for gene models.
- Minimum Length of mRNA Covered mRNA length coverage cutoff in percent for gene models.
- Limit Number of Gene Models to Sets the maximum number of gene models Spidey analysis returns.

- E-value
 - 1st Pass The E-value cutoff for the initial high-stringency alignment. The higher the value, the less stringent and faster the run.
 - 2nd Pass The E-value cutoff for the low-stringency BLAST search within a genomic window, based on the high-stringency result.
 - 3rd Pass The E-value cutoff for a very low-stringency BLAST search to find hits for mRNA gaps.
- Divergent Sequences If checked, search parameters are adjusted to tolerate mismatches and gaps for inter-species alignment.
- Use Large Intron Sizes If checked, much larger maximal intron sizes are allowed. Checking this option increases computation time significantly.
- Use Defaults Sets Spidey parameters to original default values.

Analyze Against mRNA Sequences

Select the Vector NTI Database subset of mRNA molecules you want to use for the analysis.

BLOCKS

Blocks are multiply aligned ungapped segments corresponding to the most highly conserved regions of proteins. The BLOCKS database is built by taking lists of functionally related proteins and using automated methods to locate common sequence motifs. It is comprised of blocks in representative protein families.

The Analysis Monitor Parameters Pane for the BLOCKS analysis tool appears as follows (Figure 34.5):

Analysis Monitor - [Blocks of 41_HUMAN]	
🛗 Analysis Edit Info View Help	_ <u>- 17</u> ×
] ⇐ ⇒] <u>S</u> ubmit	
Protein to analyze	
Name: 41_HUMAN	
Bance Only	
1 Hunge only	
From: 1 To: 832	
· · · ·	

Figure 34.5 BLOCKS parameters

Protein to Analyze

 Range Only – Designate the part of the molecule's sequence you want to analyze. If unchecked, the entire sequence is analyzed.

PFAM

PFAM is a database of multiple alignments of protein domains or conserved protein regions. The alignments represent evolutionary conserved structure, which can have implications for a protein's function. Profile hidden Markov models (profile HMMs) built from the PFAM alignments can be very useful for automatically recognizing that a new protein belongs to an existing protein family, even if the homology is weak. Unlike standard pairwise alignment methods (e.g. BLAST, FASTA), PFAM HMMs deal sensibly with multi-domain proteins. The PFAM tool in GenomBench takes a protein sequence as input and compares it against a database of HMMs, producing a set of alignments with the best scoring HMMs.

For more information on PFAM and HMMs, see <u>http://pfam.wustl.edu/help.shtml</u>.

The Analysis Monitor Parameters Pane for the PFAM analysis tool appears as follows (Figure 34.6):

Analysis Edit Info	View Help	_ 5
= ⇒ <mark>Submit</mark>		
PFAM Settings	Links	
Viterbi		
Crowned	E EValue Cutoff	
Forward		

Figure 34.6 PFAM parameters

PFAM Settings

- Algorithm Select the algorithm to use for per-sequence scores.
- Turn Off Postprocessing If checked, post-processing is not performed. This usually
 results in higher sensitivity, but lower specificity.
- Use XNU Filtering If checked, the target protein sequence is checked for tandem repeats.
- Limits
 - Scoring Limit Check this option and specify a value to limit the number of best scoring domains in the alignment output.
 - E-value Cutoff Hits with E-values less than the set threshold are shown. The default value is 10.
 - Bit Score Cutoff Check this option and specify a value to show only those hits with bit scores greater than this threshold. If unchecked, the threshold is controlled by Evalue rather than bit score.

Proteolytic Cleavage

The Proteolytic Cleavage tool reports digestion fragments for a molecule with the designated cleavage reagent. You can use one of the several common preset cleavage reagents or use a reagent that you custom define.

The Analysis Monitor Parameters Pane for the Proteolytic Cleavage analysis tool appears as follows (Figure 34.7):

e Edit Yew F	ashina Toole Halp							
	carale Toos Deb							
🔰 🚽 🔓	יור דור דיר 🔂 🖓	見書業		29				
o to to	b,b6o' [20b,b6o'	300,000	410,000		960, [6	500,000	200,000	1800,000
	\$7,800.0K' \$7,900.0K'	* \$8,000.0K*	\$8,100.0K	200.0K	" \$8,300.0k	58,400.04	158,500.04	158,600.0K
⊟acembly					19	1 4	AND Ch	15 15.
			1.1	Ň	15	i i	4 Wak	15 15.
	chr5 fraq			00000		******	00000000	
Sequence Align	ment Features Text	a <u>196566</u>		ALC: NO.	66914545		16165611	
Name :	chr5 frag							
Length :	917,643							
Original LIPL :	na titus://inenome.co	e.ucsr.edud	80/ori-hin/das/h		57811400.5	58729141		
Fragment :	1 - 917,643; Length	: 917,643						
Analysis Data :	chrS frag							
	Date : 2002-08-26 ()	4on Aug 26 1	7:51:03 2002)					
	EValue19Page : 1ed	10						
	EValue2NdPass : 0.0	01						
	EValue3RdPass : 10							
	LimitNumberOfGene1	todels : 1						
	MinLengthMRnaCove	red:0						
	MinMRnaGenomicIde SectionseTupe : 0	ntity : U						
	SetLimitsOfGeneMod	els : 0						
	Subbase : MAIN							
	Lisel argeIntropSizes	· n						

Figure 34.7 Proteolytic Cleavage parameters

Protein Molecule

• **Range Only** – Designate the part of the molecule's sequence you want to analyze. If unchecked, the entire sequence is analyzed.

Results

- Best <#> Fragments Select this option to display the designated number of most likely fragments
- Only Above This Probability Select this option to display only the most likely fragments above the threshold you designate.

Results Sorted By

- **Probability** Sort fragments by probability in the Text Pane of the Molecule Viewing window.
- Fragment Weight Sort fragments by weight in the Text Pane of the Molecule Viewing window.
- **Position on the Molecule** Order fragments according to their position on the molecule, from the start of the molecule to the end.

Cleavage Reagents

- Select a Cleavage Reagent Highlight the cleavage reagent you want to use for the analysis.
- New Click the New button to launch the Edit Reagent dialog box (Figure 34.8) where you can define a new cleavage reagent. When you open the Edit dialog box via the New button, the dialog box is empty, allowing you to define a new reagent from scratch. If you want to define a new reagent by modifying an existing reagent, highlight the reagent in the list and click the Edit button (see below).
- Edit Highlight the reagent you want to modify and click the Edit button. The Edit Reagent dialog box (Figure 34.8) opens with the highlighted reagent's cleavage pattern parameters, allowing you to edit them.

Edit r	eagent	1										X
			1	Name	Trypsin							
	Reco disallo	gnition pa owed AAs	attern. L	Jse {} fo	rc			Ex dis	ception sallowed	pattern. AAs	Use {} for	
+P		P1			P1'	+P'	+P		P1		P1'	+P'
		Add			Delete				Add		Delete	
	P2	P1	P1'	1		_		P2	P1	P1'		_
	317	[KB]	{P}					[CD]	K	D		
	M	R	P					C	K	[HY]		
	-											
		_								1		
	Efficien	су 100	% (in t	he rang	e from 50 to 1	DO)		Efficien	су 100	%		
					OK			Car	ncel			

Figure 34.8 Edit Reagent dialog box

- Add additional positions (if any) and recognition or exception patterns according to IUPAC convention (see Appendix C) for the appropriate positions in the upper sections of the dialog box.
- ^o Use curly braces {} to group disallowed amino acids and brackets [] to group allowed amino acids for a position.
- ^o Click the **Add** button to add the new recognition or exception pattern to the list in the lower portion of the dialog box.

- ^o To delete a recognition or exception pattern, highlight it in the list and click the **Delete** key in that section.
- Name (in the case of a new reagent) the new configuration and click the OK button to save the new or modified reagent to the reagent list.
- Remove Highlight a reagent on the list and click Remove button to delete it from the list.
- Use Defaults Restores parameter values to Analysis Monitor defaults.

ProSite

ProSite is a database of biologically significant protein patterns and profiles that help to reliably identify the function of uncharacterized proteins. A ProSite search can determine known protein families and domains to which a newly translated polypeptide sequence may belong.

An unknown amino acid sequence may be too distantly related to proteins of known structure to demonstrate any similarity in an overall sequence alignment. A ProSite search, on the other hand, may reveal in the sequence a cluster of similar residues, called a pattern, motif, signature or fingerprint, that suggest a relationship with other known protein families. These specific domain(s), highly conserved in both structure and sequence, can provide important clues to the function of newly discovered proteins.

For more information on ProSite, see http://www.expasy.org/prosite/.

The Analysis Monitor Parameters Pane for the ProSite analysis tool appears as follows (Figure 34.9):

Analysis Monitor - [PROSITEAnalysis of 41_HUMAN(1)]	_ 8 ×
Analysis Edit Info View Help	_ 8 ×
Exclude frequent patterns from search:	
Z N-glycosylation site AC}*V*(4)-{ED} Z	
Glycosaminoglycan attachment ste	
AMP- and cGMP-dependent protein kinase phosphorytetio	
Add Add Add	
Zasen knase i prosprovjalon ste [Arrrrrrqrr] [Arrrrrqr]	
V ryushe kriseg prografiyatur se	
Arrighted size	
Previdence binding ster (CAAX box)	
Endoplasmic reticulum targeting sequence	
Microbodies C-terminal targeting signal	
Cell attachment sequence	
Check Format	
Do not show patterns with more than 0 sites	

Figure 34.9 ProSite parameters

Exclude Frequent Patterns from Search

Check the boxes of the common patterns you would like to exclude from the search.

User's Patterns

• Add – Type the pattern in ProSite format in the drop-down box and click the Add button to add the new pattern to the user-defined pattern list.

Patterns are described using the following ProSite conventions:

- ^o The standard IUPAC one-letter codes for the amino acids are used.
- ^o The symbol x is used for a position where any amino acid is accepted.
- ^o Ambiguities for acceptable amino acids for a given position are listed in square brackets []. For example, [ALT] stands for Ala or Leu or Thr.

- Ambiguities for the amino acids that are NOT accepted at a given position are indicated by listing them in curly braces { }. For example, {AM} indicates any amino acid EXCEPT Ala and Met.
- ^o Each element in a pattern is separated from its neighbor by the dash character -.
- Repetition of an element of the pattern can be indicated by following that element with a numerical value or a numerical range between parenthesis. Examples: x(3) corresponds to x-x-x and x(2,4) corresponds to x-x or x-x-x or x-x-x.
- ^o When a pattern is restricted to the N- or C-terminal of a sequence, the pattern starts with a < symbol or ends with a > symbol, respectively. In some rare cases (e.g. PS00267 or PS00539), > can also occur inside square brackets for the C-terminal element. For example, F-[GSTV]-P-R-L-[G>] means that either F-[GSTV]-P-R-L-G or F-[GSTV]-P-R-L> are considered.

Examples:

- ^o [AC]-x-V-x(4)-{ED}
- This pattern is translated as: [Ala or Cys]-any-Val-any-any-any-any-tany but Glu or Asp}
- ° <A-x-[ST](2)-x(0,1)-V
- ^o This pattern, which must be in the N-terminal of the sequence ('<'), is translated as: Ala-any-[Ser or Thr]-[Ser or Thr]-(any or none)-Val
- Remove Highlight a user-defined pattern in the list and click the Remove button to delete it from the list.
- Remove All Removes all user-defined patterns from the list.
- Check Format Highlight a user-defined pattern in the list and click the Check Format button to verify that it is in proper ProSite format. A message displays indicating whether or not the pattern is in proper format.

Do Not Show Patterns with More Than <#> Sites

Check the box and designate the maximum number of sites for shown patterns.

BLAST Search in Analysis Monitor

BLAST (Basic Local Alignment Search Tool) searches explore, using a DNA or protein query sequence, available sequence databases for sequence similarity. BLAST programs have been designed for speed, with a minimal sacrifice of sensitivity to distant sequence relationships. BLAST scores have a well-defined statistical interpretation, making real matches easy to distinguish from random background hits. BLAST uses a heuristic algorithm that seeks local as opposed to global alignments and is therefore able to detect relationships among sequences that share only isolated regions of similarity. (Altschul, et al. 1990).

When launching BLAST Searches from Analysis Monitor, the BLAST interface reflects the NCBI workspace and uses preset parameters and defaults providing a uniform approach to sequence analysis. For detailed information on BLAST search types, settings, parameters, search databases, etc., see http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/Sitemap/index.html#BLAST2.x

To launch BLAST Searches for the active/selected molecule using Analysis Monitor, choose **Analyses > Run Analysis Monitor** from the main Vector NTI workspace. In this case, a preliminary dialog box displays showing the active/selected molecule information and all of the advanced analysis options for that molecule type. Select the BLAST Search type you want to run, specify a name for the analysis and click the **Apply** button to launch Analysis Monitor for the indicated molecule and analysis. For more information on the different types of BLAST Searches, see Database Selection Parameters, page 576.

Operations on Analyses

There are a number of operations you can perform on the analyses listed in the Analysis List Pane. Most operation commands are available on the Analysis drop-down menu and on the shortcut menu launched by right-clicking on the analysis of interest in the Analysis List Pane.

Starting an Analysis

There are several methods for starting an analysis, depending on the completion stage of the analysis.

Current Analyses

To initiate the analysis currently displayed in the Parameters Pane, click the **Submit** button.

Failed Analyses

For failed analyses, right-click on the analysis in the Analysis List Pane and choose **Start** from the shortcut menu or highlight the failed analysis and choose **Analysis > Start** from the menu to start the analysis.

Newly Submitted Analyses

To start analyses that have been configured, but not yet run (those shown in the Analysis List Pane with the III icon), you must first open the analysis in the Parameters Pane. There are several ways to open such an analysis in the Parameters Pane:

- Double-click on the analysis listing in the Analysis List Pane
- Right-click on the analysis listing and choose Edit or
- Highlight the analysis listing and choose Analysis > Edit from the menu.

Once you have opened the analysis in the Parameters Pane, reconfigure the parameters, if necessary, and click the **Submit** button.

Stopping an Analysis

You can stop an analysis that is running by highlighting the analysis in the Analysis List Pane and choosing **Analysis > Stop** from the menu or by right-clicking on the analysis and choosing **Stop** from the shortcut menu.

Editing, Copying and Deleting

To open a newly submitted analysis for editing, right-click on the analysis in the Analysis List Pane and choose **Edit** from the shortcut menu or highlight the analysis and choose **Analysis > Edit** from the drop-down menu. The analysis is opened in the Parameters Pane so you can edit its parameters and start the analysis.

Note: In the case of completed analyses, you can open an analysis in the Parameters Pane for viewing by highlighting the analysis and choosing **Analysis > Read** from the menu or by choosing the same command from the shortcut menu.

You can make a copy of an analysis by highlighting the analysis and choosing **Make Copy** from the shortcut or Analysis menus. The copy is entered in the Analysis List Pane with the default name of *Copy of <copied analysis name>*. You can perform the same operations on the copy that you can on other analyses.

To delete an analysis highlight it in the Analysis List Pane and choose **Delete** from the shortcut or Analysis menus.

Saving

For completed analyses, you have two saving options, both accessible for the highlighted analysis from either the Analysis drop-down or shortcut menus:

- Save to File Allows you to save the analysis to the hard drive or other location in either an Analysis Archive file or General Format file, both of which can be opened in Vector NTI.
- Save to DB as Analysis Result– Allows you to save the analysis to the Analysis Results section of the Vector NTI Database.

Sending to Other Vector NTI Advance Applications

For completed analyses, you can send Protein or DNA/RNA molecule analyses from Analysis Monitor directly to Vector NTI and DNA/RNA analyses directly to GenomBench. When an analysis is sent to Vector NTI or GenomBench, it opens with the molecule in the viewing window (see the next section).

Sending Analyses to Vector NTI

To send an analysis directly to Vector NTI, highlight the analysis in the Analysis List Pane and choose **Analysis > Send to Vector NTI** or right-click on the analysis and choose **Send to Vector NTI** from the shortcut menu. The analyzed molecule opens with the sent analysis displayed (see *Viewing Analysis Results in Vector NTI*, page 571).

Note: If an analysis was launched from Vector NTI or BioAnnotator, double-clicking the completed analysis in the Analysis Monitor Analysis List Pane sends the analysis to Vector NTI.

Sending Analyses to GenomBench

To send an analysis directly to GenomBench, highlight the analysis in the Analysis List Pane and choose **Analysis > Send to GenomBench** or right-click on the analysis and choose **Send to GenomBench** from the shortcut menu. The analyzed sequence opens in GenomBench. (see *Viewing Analysis Results in GenomBench*, page 572).

Note: If an analysis was launched from GenomBench, double-clicking the completed analysis in the Analysis Monitor Analysis List Pane sends the analysis to GenomBench.

Viewing Analysis Results

DNA/RNA and Protein analyses can be viewed in Vector NTI in a Molecule Viewing window for the analyzed molecule. DNA/RNA analyses can be viewed in GenomBench.

Viewing Analysis Results in Vector NTI

In Vector NTI, completed analysis results are shown in the Molecule Viewing window of the analyzed molecule. Completed analysis results open with their associated molecule in a Molecule Viewing window when you send Analysis Results to Vector NTI (see above), when you open saved Analysis Results from the Vector NTI Database or when you open a molecule from the Database that has associated Analysis Results.

Details of the completed analysis are listed in the External Analyses folder in the Text Pane and graphical representations of the analysis results appear in the Graphics and Sequence Panes (Figure 34.10).

Note: The Analyses section in Display Setup must be turned on and configured appropriately before Analysis Results are shown in the Molecule Viewing window (see page 206).



Figure 34.10 BLOCKS and PFAM Analysis results shown in Molecule Viewing window

Several operations on analyses/features are available from shortcut menus launched by clicking on the folder for the specific analysis or a hit folder within the specific analysis folder:

- **Convert to Feature(s)** (hit shortcut menu) Converts the highlighted hit to a feature on the molecule.
- **Convert to Feature(s)** (analysis shortcut menu) Converts all hits from the analysis to features on the molecule.
- Hide <analysis type> of <molecule name> (analysis shortcut menu) Removes the display for that analysis from the Molecule Viewing window.

Viewing Analysis Results in GenomBench

Completed Analysis Results can be shown in GenomBench. When you send results to Genom-Bench, as described above, they open in the GenomBench workspace with the Sequence tab displayed in the Information Pane (Figure 34.11) and hits displayed in the Feature Map Pane and Features tab of the Information Pane.



Figure 34.11 Spidey Analysis Results displayed in GenomBench

For more information about working with Sim4 and Spidey results in GenomBench, see Chapter 33.

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual
CHAPTER 355

BLAST SEARCH AND BLAST VIEWER

Introduction

BLAST (Basic Local Alignment Search Tool) searches explore, using a DNA or protein query sequence, available sequence databases for sequence similarity. BLAST programs have been designed for speed, with a minimal sacrifice of sensitivity to distant sequence relationships. BLAST scores have a well-defined statistical interpretation, making real matches easy to distinguish from random background hits. BLAST uses a heuristic algorithm that seeks local as opposed to global alignments and is therefore able to detect relationships among sequences that share only isolated regions of similarity. (Altschul, et al. 1990).

For detailed information on BLAST search types, settings, parameters, search databases, etc., see <u>http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/Sitemap/index.html#BLAST2.x</u>

Note: Blast Searches can be also be launched from the main Vector NTI workspace by using the **Analyses** menu option in the Main Menu. For more information regarding Blast Search in Analysis Monitor, see Chapter 34.

BLAST Search Dialog Box

The BLAST search engine in Vector NTI initiates the search through a Vector NTI dialog box, launching the search through the NCBI (National Center for Biotechnology Information) server at the NCBI website (<u>http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/blast/</u>).

To open the BLAST Search window, select **Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > BLAST Search** (assuming a default Vector NTI installation procedure was performed). You will need to choose the server for the search in the small dialog box that opens (Figure 35.1). (If you're not sure, select NCBI BLAST Server).

BLAST Search	×
Choose BLAST server:	
NCBI BLAST Server (Former Q-BLAST and Web-E	LAST)
C Other (specify URL or Datasource)	
	<u></u>
	K Exit

Figure 35.1 BLAST Search dialog box for server selection

Click **OK**, opening the following dialog box:

🔯 Search 1 - BLAST Search (NCBI QBlast server)	
Search View Help	
BLAST 2.0 Program: blastn Database: nr	
Sequence Parameters PSI, PHI MEGABLAST	
Sequence:	
1 GCGGGATCCA TGAACATTTC AAGGAGAAAG CTACTTTTAG GTGTTGGTGC TGCGGGCGTT TTAG	AGGTG
71 GTGCGGCTTT AGTTCCAATG GTTCGCCGTG ACGGCAAATT TGTGGAAGCT AAATCAAGAG CATCA	TTTGT
141 TGAAGGTACG CAAGGGGCTC TTCCTAAAGA AGCAGATGTA GTGATTATTG GTGCCGGTAT TCAAG	GGATC
211 ATGACCGCTA TTAACCTTGC TGAACGTGGT ATGAGTGTCA CTATCTTAGA AAAGGGTCAG ATTGO	CGGTG
281 AGCAATCAGG CCGTGCATAC AGCCAAATTA TTAGTTACCA AACATCGCCA GAAATCTTCC CATTA	CACCA
351 TTATGGGAAA ATATTATGGC GTGGCATGAA TGAGAAAATT GGTGCGGATA CCAGTTATCG TACTO	CAAGGT
421 CGTGTAGAAG CGCTGGCAGA TGAAAAAGCA TTAGATAAAG CTCAAGCGTG GATCAAAACA GCTAA	AGAAG
401 соссасстта театасасса тразатасте севтеаттаа асстеалсае статеалате сетт	CTCCC I
/ Name Status Request TD Hit count Date ⊛ Time	Servet
Finished 1017439156-14522-3082 121 2002/03/29	14:57:58 NCBI (
	Þ
For Help, press F1 1 requests	1.

Figure 35.2 BLAST Search dialog box (Sequence tab)

The BLAST Search dialog box (Figure 35.2) contains a small menu bar and toolbar with options relating to search, viewing and help functions. Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function. Hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button.

This dialog box is divided into three sections: the Database Selection bar, the Sequence and Parameters Pane and the Results Pane.

Database Selection Parameters

BLAST Search Type – In the Vector NTI BLAST Search dialog box, there are three search types from which to choose in the drop-down menu:

- BLAST 2.0 Basic Local Alignment Search Tool. BLAST 2.0 is a version of BLAST that permits gaps in the alignments it produces.
- PSI & PHI BLAST
 - PSI-BLAST Position Specific Iterated BLAST is a program for searching protein databases using protein queries, in order to find other members of the same protein family.
 - ^o PSI-BLAST uses an iterative search in which sequences found in one round of searching are used to build a score matrix for the next round of searching. Highly conserved positions receive high scores and weakly conserved positions receive scores near zero. All statistically significant alignments found by BLAST are combined into a multiple alignment, from which the position-specific score matrix is con-

structed. This matrix is used to perform a second, etc. BLAST search and the results of each "iteration" are used to refine the profile. The process may be iterated until no new alignments are found. This iterative searching strategy results in increased sensitivity.

- PHI-BLAST Pattern Hit Initiated BLAST is a program for searching a protein database using a protein query; it seeks only alignments that preserve a specified pattern contained within the query.
- PHI-BLAST combines matching of regular expression patterns with a Position Specific iterative protein search to locate other protein sequences which both contain the regular expression pattern and are homologous to a query protein sequence.
- MegaBLAST This program uses a "greedy algorithm" (Webb Miller et al., J Comput Biol 2000 Feb-Apr;7(1-2):203-14) for nucleotide sequence alignment searches and concatenates many queries to save time spent scanning the database. It is optimized for aligning sequences that differ slightly and is up to 10 times faster than more common sequence similarity programs. It can be used to swiftly compare two large sets of sequences against each other. MegaBLAST permits searching with batches of ESTs or with large cDNA or genomic sequences.

Program – In the drop-down menu, specify the type of database search to be performed. The search options are summarized as follows:

- blastn compares a nucleotide query sequence against a nucleotide sequence database
- blastp compares an amino acid query sequence against a protein sequence database
- **blastx** compares a nucleotide query sequence translated into all reading frames against a protein sequence database
- **tblastn** compares a protein query sequence against a nucleotide sequence database dynamically translated in all six reading frames (both strands)
- **tblastx** compares the six-frame translations of a nucleotide query sequence against the six-frame translations of a nucleotide sequence database. *This program cannot be used with the nr database.*

Database – In the drop-down menu, select the GenBank database type the query sequence is to be searched against. Many of the potential database type options are described below:

Menu Identifier	Description
nr	Peptide Sequence Database: All non-redundant GenBank sequences and CDS translations. Nucleotide Sequence Database: All GenBank+EMBL+PDB sequences (no EST, STS, GSS or phase 0, 1 or 2 HTGS sequences). No longer non-redundant.
EST (+ human, mouse, others)	Nucleotide Sequence Database: EST (Expressed Sequence Tags). Others includes all organisms except mouse and human
GSS	Nucleotide Sequence Database: Genome Survey Sequence, includes single- pass genomic data, exon-trapped sequences, and Alu PCR sequences.
HTG	Nucleotide Sequence Database: Unfinished High Throughput Genomic Sequences.
Patents	Protein sequences from the Patent division of GenBank.

Table 35.1 GenBank database options

Menu Identifier	Description
Yeast	Peptide Sequence Database: <i>Saccharomyces cerevisiae</i> protein sequences— genomic CDS translations. Nucleotide Sequence Database: <i>Saccharomyces cerevisiae</i> genomic nucle- otide sequences.
Mito	Nucleotide Sequence Database: Mitochondrial DNA sequences.
vector	Nucleotide Sequence Database: Vector subset of GenBank.
E. coli	Peptide Sequence Database: <i>Escherichia coli</i> genomic CDS translations. Nucleotide Sequence Database: <i>Escherichia coli</i> genomic nucleotide sequences.
month	Peptide Sequence Database: All new or revised GenBank CDS translation + PDB + SwissProt + PIR + PRF released in the last 30 days. Nucleotide Sequence Database: All new or revised GenBank+ EMBL+DDBJ+PDB sequences released in the last 30 days.
Drosophila genome	Peptide Sequence Database: Drosophila genome proteins provided by Celera and Berkeley Drosophila Genome Project. Nucleotide Sequence Database: Drosophila genome provided by Celera and Berkeley Drosophila Genome Project.
PDB	Peptide and Nucleotide Sequence Database: Sequences derived from the 3- dimensional structure from Brookhaven Protein Data Bank.
alu	Peptide Sequence Database: Translations of select Alu repeats from REP- BASE. Nucleotide Sequence Database: Select Alu repeats from REPBASE.
dbsts	Nucleotide Sequence Database: Database of GenBank+EMBL+DDBJ sequences from STS Divisions.

Table 35.1 GenBank database options (continued)

Sequence/Parameters Pane Tabs

There are four tabs below the database selection section of the screen in the Sequence/Parameters Pane, the **Sequence Tab**, the **Parameters Tab**, the **PSI-PHI Tab** and the **MegaBLAST Tab**.

Sequence Tab

On this tab you can enter raw sequence (only) pasted from another application or select **Search** > **Open** and locate the file for a sequence you wish to submit. If the sequence is not in raw format, copy it to Notepad, which eliminates all characters except the text itself. Select and copy the sequence from the Notepad and paste it into the text box on the **Sequence** tab. If the BLAST Search module is launched from a Vector NTI Advance application, the active molecule sequence is pasted into the **Sequence** tab.

Parameters Tab

On the Parameters Tab (Figure 35.3), you can define parameters for the BLAST search.

Note: The parameters you can set on this tab are almost identical to parameters for the various BLAST searches at the NCBI website: <u>http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/blast/html/blastcgihelp.html</u>. For more information regarding these parameters than is detailed here, refer to the website.

🙀 Search 1 - BLAST Search (NCBI QBlast server)	
Search View Help	
BLAST 2.0 Program: blastn Database: nr	💌 🤗 Submit
Sequence Parameters PSI, PHI MEGABLAST	
Expect: Expect: Genetic codes: Standard(1) Word Size: 11 Y Other advanced options:	<u>×</u>
Limit by entrez query	Filter
C Limit:	Low complexity Human repeats Mask for lookup table only
Select from: None	Mask lower case
Matrix: BLOSUM62 Sap Costs: Existence: 11 Extension: 1	Composition based statistics

Figure 35.3 Parameters tab of the BLAST Search dialog box

Expect

The statistical significance threshold for reporting matches against database sequences. The default value of 10 means that in a database of the current size, 10 matches would be expected merely by chance (stochastic model of Karlin and Altschul, 1990.) Hits showing a statistical significance greater than the Expect threshold are not reported. Increasing the E value above 10 produces a larger list with more low-scoring hits (chance matches). Lower expectation value thresholds are more stringent, leading to fewer chance matches being reported.

If your query peptide or nucleotide sequence is short, you might want to increase the Expect value. Because a short query is more likely to occur by chance in the database, even a perfect match can have low statistical significance and may not be reported. Increasing the E value lets you look farther down the hit list and see matches that would normally be discarded because of low statistical significance.

Word Size

Word size is roughly the minimal length of an identical match an alignment must contain if it is to be found by the algorithm.

Mega BLAST is most efficient with word sizes 16 and larger, although word size as low as 8 can be used. If the value W of the word size is divisible by 4, it guarantees that all perfect matches of length W + 3 will be found and extended by Mega BLAST search, however perfect matches of length as low as W might also be found, although the latter is not guaranteed. Any value of W not divisible by 4 is equivalent to the nearest value divisible by 4 (with 4i+2 equivalent to 4i).

Filters

- Low-complexity This filter masks off segments of the query sequence that have low compositional complexity (as determined by the SEG program of Wootton & Federhen, Computational Chemistry, 1993). Regions with low-complexity sequence can create problems in sequence similarity searching by producing artificial hits, sequences that are not truly related. Such hits can produce high scores because of the presence of low-complexity regions.
- Human Repeats This option masks Human repeats and is especially useful for human sequences that may contain these repeats. *This option is still experimental and may change in the near future.*
- Mask for Lookup This option masks only for purposes of constructing the lookup table used by BLAST. The BLAST extensions are performed without masking. *This option is still experimental and may change in the near future.*

- Mask Lower Case With this option selected you can cut and paste a FASTA sequence in upper case characters and denote areas you would like filtered with lower case. This allows you to customize what is filtered from the sequence during the comparison to the BLAST databases.
- **Note:** For a filter choice of *none*, leave all filter checkboxes unchecked. Check multiple filter checkboxes to combine filters.

Genetic Codes

Genetic code to be used in blastx and tblastx translation of the query.

Other Advanced Options

Additional options that can be specified for the BLAST search. For more information on Advanced BLAST Options, go to <u>http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/blast/html/blastcgi-help.html#other_advanced</u>.

Limit by Entrez Query

This section lets you set parameters to limit your database search according to organism by selecting from a drop-down list of common organisms in GenBank and/or by entering an organism name (or multiple names in conjunction with the AND or OR operator) in the form, *Genus species*.

Matrix

This field permits you to specify the scoring matrix for blastp, blastx, tblastn and tblastx. The default matrix is BLOSUM 62. The valid alternative choices include PAM 30, 70, and BLOSUM 45 and 80. No alternate scoring matrices are available for blastn.

Composition Based Statistics

BLAST and PSI-BLAST now permit calculated E-values to take into account the amino acid composition of the individual database sequences involved in reported alignments. This improves E-value accuracy, thereby reducing the number of false positive results. For more information on Composition Based Statistics, go to http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/blast/html/blastcgihelp.html#composition_based_statistics.

Gap Costs

Gap Costs are the penalty to open a Gap and penalty to extend a Gap. Increasing the Gap Costs decreases the number of Gaps introduced in the alignment.

PSI-PHI Tab

The PSI-BLAST search algorithm compares a single protein sequence to a protein database using the gapped BLAST algorithm. First, a multiple local alignment is calculated, followed by a profile alignment, with the original query molecule serving as the template. The profile is then compared to the protein database, again seeking local alignments and producing a profile from the alignment. This iteration process can be repeated an arbitrary number of times.

PHI-BLAST allows you to specify a pattern for the search.

The PSI-PHI Tab (Figure 35.4) allows you to specify additional parameters for PSI-BLAST and PHI-BLAST searches.

🔄 Search 1 - BLAST Search (NCBI QBlast serv	er)		_ 🗆 ×
Search View Help			
BLAST 2.0 Program: blastn	Database: nr	💌 🤗 Submit	
Sequence Parameters PSI, PHI MEGABLAST			
PSI Search Position Specific Score Matrix	Inclusion Threshold:	0.005	
PHI Pattern:	View and Check GI List		

Figure 35.4 PSI-PHI tab of the BLAST Search dialog box

Position Specific Score Matrix

The Position Specific Score Matrix to be used for the search. Paste the Position Specific Score Matrix into the Position Specific Score Matrix field. For more information on PSSM matrices, see http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/blast/html/blastcgihelp.html#pssm.

Inclusion Threshold

The statistical significance threshold for including a sequence in the model used by PSI-BLAST to create the Position Specific Score Matrix on the next iteration.

PHI Pattern

The pattern to be used for the search. The syntax for patterns in PHI-BLAST follows the conventions of PROSITE (valid protein characters for PHI-BLAST patterns include ABCDEFGHIKLMN-PQRSTVWXYZU; valid DNA characters for PHI-BLAST patterns include ACGT).

For more information on PHI Patterns, see <u>http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/blast/html/PHIsyn-tax.html</u>.

MegaBLAST Tab

This program is optimized for aligning sequences that differ slightly and is up to 10 times faster than more common sequence similarity programs. It can be used to swiftly compare two large sets of sequences against each other. MegaBLAST permits searching with batches of ESTs or with large cDNA or genomic sequences.

On the MegaBLAST Tab (Figure 35.5), you can set the percent identity used for the Mega-BLAST search.

Search 1 - BLAST Search (NCBI QBlast server)	_ 🗆 🗙
Search View Help	
BLAST 2.0 💌 Program: blastn 💌 Database: 🕅 💌 🖉 Submit	
Sequence Parameters PSI, PHI MEGABLAST	
MEGABLAST Parameters	

Figure 35.5 MegaBLAST tab of the BLAST Search dialog box

BLAST Options

To specify technical settings for the BLAST Search, choose **View > Options**, opening the following dialog box (Figure 35.6):

Options X
✓ Use automatic retrieval of BLAST results
Check Ready status each 2 😁 min 0 🚎 sec
Query options
Limit the number or retrieved BLAST hits to 500
Proxy Configuration
OK Cancel

Figure 35.6 Blast Options dialog box

Complete your selections in the box. Press the **Proxy Configuration** button to set proxy server information (Figure 35.7).

Internet Connection	×
C Use Internet Explorer settings	OK
C Direct connection	Cancel
O Use proxy server	
Proxy server: proxy Port: 80	
Proxy requires authentication	
User:	
Password:	

Figure 35.7 Internet Connection dialog box

Make sure that the proxy settings are filled in correctly; specifying whether or not your connection to the Internet should be performed via a proxy server. Enter the address and port number of that server. If your proxy requires a password, check the Proxy requires authentication box and enter the user name and password information.

Click OK, OK, returning you to the BLAST Search Viewer.

Press the **Submit** button (A Submit) to launch the BLAST search.

BLAST Search Results

As soon as you have submitted your query, the search is numbered and listed in the Status Pane. This pane displays the following data about your search: data and time submitted, the status of the search (submitted, waiting, error, completed, etc.), and the identification number assigned your query. Completed searches are listed also showing the number of identified hits in the response.

Note: Depending on the stability and speed of your network connections, performance during search results downloading can vary. In the case of an unstable and/or slow network connection, large downloads may be aborted before completion. To avoid this problem, if you are downloading multiple molecules it is recommended that you download in several small batches instead of one large batch.

BLAST Viewer

Opening BLAST Viewer

The BLAST Viewer for reviewing BLAST search results can be opened by either of two methods:

- Select Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > BLAST Viewer. If you choose this method, it opens as an empty viewer. You can open previously saved BLAST results by clicking on the Open button (2) or by selecting BLAST Results > Open.
- 2. Double-click on a BLAST Search result entry in the BLAST Search dialog box. See the beginning of this chapter.

Elements of the BLAST Search Results Viewer

Blast Viewer displays the textual, sequence and graphical summary of the Blast search results (Figure 35.8). It consists of a menu bar, and two toolbars and three panes: Text, Analysis (which includes the Sequence Profile/Hit Distribution Pane, the Query-Hit Alignment Map Pane, and the Hit Map Pane) and Alignment Panes.

Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function. Hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button. Many toolbar operations can also be launched from the menu bar or from a shortcut menu.



Figure 35.8 Blast Viewer

The BLAST Viewer is organized and managed like in the other display windows in Vector NTI Advance. Several BLAST Viewers can be opened in one workspace. You can navigate through the open display windows using the **Back** and **Forward** buttons ($\langle - , - \rangle$).

As in the other Vector NTI Advance applications, to apply a command in a given pane that pane must be active. The active pane can be toggled with the different panes buttons on the Pane Selection Toolbar (, , , , , , , , ,) or by clicking anywhere in the pane you wish to activate. The keyboard strokes are F6 (cycling clockwise through the panes) and SHIFT + F6 (cycling counter clockwise). Note that in this BLAST Search Viewer, each of the graphs in the Analysis Pane is assigned a separate Pane button.

Two management features of the display window are designed to maximize viewing flexibility:

- 1. Select **View > Maximize Pane** to expand the size of an activated pane to full screen size. Select **View > Restore Layout** to return to the original pane layout.
- 2. Select **View > Edit Pane Layout** to open the Pane Manager for modifying the arrangement of the panes in the workspace. For more details, refer to Chapter 3.
- 3. The Status bar shows the Hit Element Score from the Text Pane folder for the selected hit element.

In addition, the following pane manipulations are outlined in Chapter 3:

- Re-sizing the Text Pane with the split bars or arrow keys
- Scrolling the Text Pane

BLAST Search Results

Text Pane

The Text Pane of BLAST Viewer contains a description of the query molecule, including common database information, a Feature map and a list of hit molecules. The Text Pane is linked to analyses graphs in the Analysis Pane and the Alignment Pane.

The following Text Pane manipulations are outlined in Chapter 3.

- Opening or closing folders
- Opening the folder shortcut menu

The first line of the Text Pane lists the name of the query molecule. Double-click on the line or click on the at its left to open an Edit <molecule > dialog box. For details on editing the molecule, see Chapter 19.

The second entry in the Text Pane (Query Molecule) contains information about the query sequence such as the molecule length. It also contains the Search Parameters folder, which stores the parameters used in performing the BLAST search with this query molecule.

The Query Molecule section is followed by the Hits folder, which indicates the number of hits and contains the Hit molecules and related information. Click on the + at the left of the Hits folder to open it.

Sorting Hits in the Text Pane

To sort the hits in the Text Pane, right-click on the Hits folder to launch the shortcut menu from which the various sorting commands can be selected (Figure 35.9):



Figure 35.9 Sorting hits in the Text Pane

Deleting Hits from the Hits Folder

To delete an unwanted hit, right-click on the hit name and choose **Delete** from the shortcut menu.

Hit Molecule General Information

Notice that the hit molecules themselves are links. If you click on the link, it prompts the downloading of the molecule from the NCBI website, thus opening it in a Molecule Display window.

For each hit molecule, the following information is provided:

- Its ID code and the number of hit elements (regions of local similarity) in the molecule.
- A brief summary relating to the matching region of the hit molecule to the query sequence and the length of the matching region
- Score Folder(s) corresponding to the number of hit elements

Hit Element Description

Double-Click on a Score Folder for a particular hit element to open it. The folder displays the statistical results for the hit element such as its expectation value, identities, etc.

Selecting a Score Folder for a hit element locates *all* of the hit elements for that hit molecule in the Analysis Pane. However, just the hit element corresponding to the selected folder is displayed in a colored mode. As you click on the other Score Folders in the Text Pane, they are each highlighted in the Analysis Pane, in turn.

The statistical results in the Score Folder are described as follows:

- Score + (Bit Score): These indicate how close the identity of the match is to the query sequence.
- Expectation: This value reflects the likelihood that the similarity between the sequences would occur by chance when searching a database of a particular size. A zero or extremely low number suggests that the match is so perfect that it is extremely unlikely that the similarity would occur randomly. The E value describes random background noise exists for matches between sequences.
- In a BLAST search, an E value of 1 assigned to a hit can be interpreted as meaning that in a database of the current size one might expect to see 1 match with a similar score simply by chance. For more detail about this score, see the BLAST parameters section at the beginning of this chapter.
- Identities: the ratio (and percentage) of matching residues in the hit elements. The numbers n/n refer to the number of identical residues out of the number of matches in the hit element. This is important to consider when determining the significance of this statistic. A high identity percentage may mean nothing if a low number of nucleotides is being compared.
- Positives: the ratio (and percentage) of similar residues in the hit elements
- Query: The position numbers in the query sequence matching that of the hit element are indicated by the start and end positions of the figures, such as 57[bp] – 93[bp]. The strand that corresponds to the hit element is also shown.
- **Hit:** The position numbers in the hit sequence matching the query sequence are indicated by the start and end positions of the figures, such as 42[bp] 88[bp]. The strand that corresponds to the hit element is also shown.

Analysis Pane

The Analysis Pane, displaying the graphical summary of the BLAST Search results, consists of three panels: 1) the upper graph displays the Sequence Profile and the Hit Distribution, 2) the

center graph displays the Query-Hit Alignment, and 3) the lower graph displays the Hit Map graph.

Sequence Profile Graph (upper pane)

The Sequence Profile Graph depicts how well the particular regions of a query molecule are represented in a database it was searched against, allowing "unique" and "shared" regions of a query molecule to be easily identified. Each residue of the query sequence is assigned a value indicating the position-specific representation of this residue in a database.

The profile is calculated as follows: each residue is traced into all hit elements in which it is included. The corresponding residue substitution score from a hit element is multiplied by a logarithm of an expectation value of a particular hit element and the resulting value is summarized over all hit elements. Each step in the resulting graph represents the profile of each sequence residue.

If the database search utilized a translation of the original molecule as an intermediate step (tblastx and blastx), the sequence profile graph is generated for all possible translation frames.

Hit Distribution Graph (upper pane)

Each residue in the query sequence is traced to all hit elements in which it is included, and 100 percent identical. The number of hit elements per residue are tallied (summed up) and plotted across the molecule.

Query-Hit Alignment Graph (center pane)

Each element on the Hit Distribution Graph positions the local similarity regions on the query and hit molecules. The upper scale represents the query sequence while the lower scale represents the currently selected molecule in the hits list. The hit element corresponding to the currently selected Score Folder (Text Pane) is shown in color on the map, while the other hit elements for the molecule are grayed out. To select another element in the graph, you must return to the Text Pane and select a new Score Folder.

Hit Map Graph (lower pane)

The Hit Map graph provides a graphical overview of the hit sequences aligned to the query sequence. The X-axis on this map represents residues along the query molecule. Each bar drawn above the X-axis represents a molecule (or molecule fragment) that matches the query sequence. The position of each bar relative to the linear axis of the query allows users to see instantly the extent of the hits that align with single or multiple regions of the query.

Hit molecules are represented in decreasing order of similarity with the most similar hits shown at the top and the least similar shown at the bottom. If one hit molecule contains multiple hit elements, they are represented along the same Y-axis position, irrespective of similarity scores.

To view the Name, score, bits and E-value of a hit, pause the cursor over the hit element bar on the graph. Clicking on a hit element bar selects the hit element in the Text Pane. This also changes the bar's color to indicate the selected hit and displays the alignment between the query and the hit sequences in the Query-Hit Alignment pane.

Zooming In and Out

Enlarging or reducing regions of the Analysis Pane is possible using the Zoom buttons. Click in the pane for the graph to be resized. If you Zoom In sufficiently, you can see the individual residues on the X axis. For more detailed about using the Zoom buttons, refer to Chapter 3.

To view a specific selected region in one of the graphs, select Zoom to Selection from the short-

cut menu. To return to the normal mode, click on the Fit to Window button (

Note: In the Analysis Pane, only the upper and lower graphs can be resized.

Selecting Regions on the Analysis Pane

Regions of the graphs can be selected in the Analysis Pane by holding down the left mouse button then dragging through the sequence. Selected regions are displayed concurrently on other graphs and the Alignment Pane, (only if the Score Folder for the hit element corresponding to the selected region is selected in the Text Pane.)

Hits listed in the Text Pane that correspond with the selection in the Analysis graphs can be highlighted using the **Select Hits** function. To use the Select Hits function, highlight the area of interest on the Analysis Pane graphs and choose **Edit > Select Hits** from the menu. The Select Hits dialog box appears (Figure 35.10):

Select hits	×
Intersecting with selection	ОК
C Containing entire selection	Cancel
• All	

Figure 35.10 Select Hits dialog box

There are four choices for mapping the selection to the hits in the Text Pane:

- Intersecting with selection hits that contain any part of the selected area.
- Contained within selection the entire length of the hit matches within the selection.
- Containing entire selection hits contain the entire selection and, possibly, more.
- All hits with any of the above matching are found.

Select the radio button for the intersection option of your choice and press the **OK** button. Hits corresponding in the Text Pane corresponding to the selection in the Analysis Pane and the selected intersection option are highlighted.

Viewing/Changing Parameters of the Analysis Graphs

The graphs in the Analysis Pane display the values averaged in a window of a specific length sliding along the x-axis of the graph by a specific step.

To view and modify the parameters of the Sequence Profile or Hit Distribution plots, activate the upper graph pane by clicking on its Pane button, or click in the upper pane. Select **Plot Setup** from its associated shortcut menu, opening the Plot Setup dialog box:

- Analysis tab: Count Window Size is the length of the sliding window; the larger the Count Window Size, the smoother the curve. Step Size is the width of each step on the plot.
- Sequence Profile/Hit Distribution tabs: Modify the plot color and select the graph display mode from Bar, Boolean, Polygon, or Linear.

To view and modify the Hit Map graph properties, activate the Hit Map pane by clicking on it or by pressing its activation button on the toolbar. Right-click on the Hit Map graph pane and choose **Properties** from the shortcut menu or choose **Edit > Properties** from the menu to launch the Hit Map Properties dialog box. In the Hit Map properties dialog box, you can change the display color for hits and the selected hit and adjust the size of the graphic hits display.

Alignment Pane

The Alignment Pane displays the alignment of the hit element selected in the Text Pane and the corresponding region on the query sequence. The query molecule, the currently selected hit element and the resulting consensus sequences are shown.

Moving Around the Alignment

The Alignment Pane has its own horizontal scrollbar, if the sequences are sufficiently long to warrant them. The sequence names remain stationary at the left in the Alignment Pane no matter how the sequences are repositioned horizontally. The position number of the left-most residue visible in each sequence is displayed immediately following each sequence name.

Selection Techniques

Select molecules in the Alignment Pane by clicking on their names.

To select regions of the nucleotide or amino acid sequence alignments, use the click and drag technique with the mouse. *Selection applies only on the sequence of the currently selected molecule.* The selection is also shown on the graphs in the Analysis Pane.

Alignment Properties

To change a default set of alignment display parameters, from the Alignment Pane, select Prop-

erties from the shortcut menu or click on the **Properties** (11) button. The Alignment Display

Setup dialog box opens with three property tabs: Consensus Calculation, Similarity Tables, and Color Setup.

Consensus Calculation

A consensus sequence is a theoretical representative nucleotide sequence in which each nucleotide represents either the residue seen most frequently at that same site in aligned sequences, or is selected by other criteria. The Consensus Calculation tab specifies how the consensus sequence, displayed as the bottom sequence in the Alignment Pane, is calculated in BLAST Viewer.

On the Consensus Calculation Tab, you can select among the following parameters:

- Consider only identical residues
- Ignore gaps in consensus calculation
- Specify a sequence to use as the consensus sequence. In this case, select one of the sequences listed (those used in the alignment).
- Residue fraction

If the **Use sequence as consensus** checkbox is checked, the Consensus will not be calculated but the sequence selected in the listbox below the checkbox will be used as the consensus.

Similarity Tables

The Similarity Table allows you to review or to define residue similarity information and values necessary for calculation of the alignment quality profile. Each residue pair can be defined as being strongly or weakly similar to each other. The table is editable only for amino acid residues.

Color Setup

The Color Setup tab allows you to review or modify the current color setup scheme for the Alignment Pane:

Color Scheme	Interpretation
black on window default color	non-homologous residues (Non-similar)
blue on cyan	consensus residue derived from a block of similar residues at a given position (Conservative)

Table 35.2 Color Setup tab interpretations of color scheme

Color Scheme	Interpretation
black on green	consensus residue derived from a single conservative residue at a given position (Block of Similar)
red on yellow	consensus residue derived from completely conservative residues at a given position (Identical)
green on window default color	residue weakly homologous to consensus residue at given position (Weakly similar)

Table 35.2 Color Setup tab interpretations of color scheme (continued)

Saving BLAST Search Results

To save BLAST search results into the database for future retrieval, select Blast Results >

Save As or click the Save As button (). Select one of the three tabs in the Save As dialog box (Figure 35.11), depending on your preferred destination. The results can be saved in the Vector NTI database or as a BLAST result file.

Sa	ve As			? ×
	BLAST Results Files	Database BLAST Results	Remote Sources	
	Save in: 🔯 BL/	AST Results (MAIN)	•	ď 1-80
	∲ kinase proteins ∳ kinaseDNA ∲ p02			
	 pATH21_01 pATH2_02 pRS316_01 pUC18_01 			
	BLAST Result	kinaseDNA		
)K Cancel

Figure 35.11 Save As dialog box, where results can be saved in the Vector NTI database or as a BLAST result file

Select the subset or folder (and file format for Results File) and enter a name for the results (Figure 35.12).

				?
T Result:	Files Database BLAST Results I	Remote Source	es	
in:	BLAST results	•	<u>.</u>	* .
earch 1	-test.bso			
iame:	kinaseDNA search 040303			
format:	BLAST Search Object (*.bso)			•
			OK	Cancel
	F Results in: i: iearch 1-	Presults Files Database BLAST Results 1 In: BLAST results earch 1-test.bso ame: kinaseDNA search 040303 format BLAST Search Object (*.bso)	FResults Files Database BLAST Results Remote Source in: BLAST results Fresults in: BLAST results in: BLAST Search 040303 format BLAST Search Object (".bso)	

Figure 35.12 Selecting the subset or folder, file format, and name for Results File

Click **OK** to save the BLAST results as a new database object, associated with the query molecule. You can open search results for the query molecule from the Molecule Viewer window.

Saving or Opening Selected Hits

To save individual BLAST hits into the Vector NTI database, select the desired search hits and choose **Save Selected Hits** from the shortcut menu, opened by a right click on the molecule name. Hits will be saved to corresponding molecules and can be viewed later in the Molecule Viewer.

To open individual BLAST hits into Vector NTI, select the desired search hits and choose **Open Selected Hits** from the shortcut menu, opened by a right click on the molecule name. The molecule(s) can then be saved to the VNTI Database or to files on the hard drive.

Exporting or Opening Query Molecule with Hits Displayed as Features

You can open the query molecule that was used for the BLAST search in Vector NTI with the BLAST hits displayed on the molecule as features or export it to a .gff file. In both cases, hits are displayed graphically on the query molecule as the feature type of your choice.

When you execute the **Open Query Molecule with Hits as Features** command (under Edit in the Main Menu), the molecule opens in a Vector NTI Molecule Viewing window. You can then save the annotated query molecule to the VNTI Database.

When you export a query molecule with hits displayed as feature into a .gff file, you use the **Export Query Molecule with Hits as Features into GFF file** command to save the .gff file to an external location (hard drive, network, floppy, etc.). You can open a .gff file in a Vector NTI Molecule Viewing window and save it to the Vector NTI Database, if desired, .gff files provide a method for sharing query-blast hit information in Molecule format with other Vector NTI users.

Opening Query Molecule with Hits as Features

To open the query molecule in VNTI with the hit sequences displayed as features, choose the **Edit > Open Query Molecule with Hits as Features** command from the menu. The Choose Feature dialog box appears allowing you to choose the feature type you want to use. Choose the desired feature type, check the box to save existing query molecule features, if desired, and click the **OK** button. The query molecule opens with the BLAST hits displayed as the chosen feature type.

In the Text Pane of the new molecule, query hits are listed in the chosen feature type folder. Hit feature names follow the convention "Hit Molecule [gi# |gb# |EMBL# |Reference#] Information; Hit #, Element #" where

- Hit Molecule Information lists available reference numbers for the Hit Molecule
- Hit # is the hit molecule number according to its original listing in the BLAST Viewer
- Element # is the hit element number of the hit molecule.

The new molecule can then be saved to the VNTI Database or to a molecule file on the hard drive.

Exporting Query Molecule with Hits as Features

To export the query molecule with the hit sequences displayed as features, choose the **Edit** > **Export Query Molecule with Hits as Features into GFF file** command from the menu. The Save As dialog box appears, allowing you to select the storage location for the file. Next, the Choose Feature dialog box appears allowing you to choose the feature type you want to use. Choose the desired feature type, check the box to save existing query molecule features, if desired, and click the **OK** button. The query molecule with the BLAST hits displayed as the chosen feature type is saved to a .gff file in the designated location.

Creating a New Database Subset for BLAST Search Results

To create a new database subset for storing BLAST search results, in the BLAST Viewer, click the **Database** button (), opening Vector NTI Advance's Database Explorer. The Explorer opens to the BLAST Results table. To create a new subset for storing BLAST Search results, follow the instructions given in Chapter 17.

Other BLAST Viewer Features

The following features can be performed in BLAST Viewer. Details are given in Chapter 3.

- Copying selected molecule IDs to the clipboard
- Exporting data to external programs
- Printing from the BLAST Viewer

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

C H A P T E R **36** ALIGNX BLOCKS

Introduction

AlignX Blocks is a program for locating, analyzing, and editing blocks of localized sequence similarity among multiple *protein* sequences and linking them into a composite multiple alignment.

The following definitions are important in the AlignX Blocks application:

- A *Block* is a set of sequence segments of the same length taken from several protein sequences and aligned without gaps.
- A *Local Alignment* is an alignment that includes only the most similar regions (even fairly small) of the sequences under consideration. Such regions may span several protein sequences.

A Blocks project, including molecules, settings and blocks generated in AlignX Blocks can be saved as a file. This enables you to restore the project later to continue working with it.

Opening AlignX Blocks:

To open AlignX Blocks, select Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > AlignX Blocks. You can also open AlignX Blocks from the Vector NTI workspace, Database Explorer or other Vector NTI applications (such as AlignX or BioAnnotator) under the Align menu option.

Features of the AlignX Blocks Workspace

When AlignX Blocks is first opened, the display window is empty. As molecules are added to an AlignX Blocks project, they are listed in the Text Pane. After performing a Block Search on a group of molecules selected in the Text Pane, blocks results appear in the other panes.

You may want to open a demo project into the workspace before you review its features. Select

Project > Open or click the **Open Project** button (). Find the Vector NTI Suite folder, probably located in Program Files\Vector NTI\Demo Project, and open the Protein.bpr file.

The AlignX Blocks interface (Figure 36.1) consists of a menu bar, three toolbars, an AlignX Blocks display window, with shortcut menus specific for each pane. The AlignX Display window includes four panes.



Figure 36.1 AlignX Blocks interface

AlignX Blocks has three toolbars: a Main Toolbar, the Pane Selection Toolbar and a Pane Toolbar. Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function; hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button. Many toolbar commands can also be launched from the menu bar or from a shortcut menu.

The AlignX Display window is divided into four panes: a Text Pane, the Block List Pane, an Alignment Pane and a Schematic Pane. All panes are separated by split bars that allow re-sizing of the panes. Scroll bars appear when the contents of a pane exceed the viewing area, facilitating easier viewing of pane contents.

As in the other Vector NTI Advance applications, to apply a command from the main menu in a given pane (Print, Print Preview, Camera), that pane must be active. The active pane can be

You can maximize any active pane to fill the entire display space by selecting **View > Maximize Pane**. Select **View > Restore Layout** to restore the original pane size.

You can modify the pane arrangement in Pane Manager. Select **View > Edit View Layout** to open the Pane Manager. For more details, refer to Chapter 3.

Text Pane

To activate the Text Pane, click on the **Text Pane** button () on the Pane Selection Toolbar.

The Text Pane contains a thorough description of the molecules included in the AlignX Blocks project. The information is organized in folders, named by molecule. Each top level (molecule) folder contains the following subfolders:

Folder	Contents
General description	Molecule type, length, etc.
Comments	Arbitrary text of any length associated with the molecule
Standard fields	GenBank/SWISS-PROT-like fields: keywords, division, original accession num- bers, etc.
References	Bibliographic references (in GenBank/SWISS-PROT format)
Proprietary fields	User defined fields (for molecules which came from Vector NTI)
Analysis	Results of common physiochemical analyses
Feature Map	List of molecule features

Table 36.1 AlignX Display window Text Pane folders

Folders and sub-folders can be opened with a double-click or by clicking on the + to the left of the folder name.

For more information regarding the following Text Pane manipulations, refer to Chapter 3.

- Using the scrolling bars
- Expanding and collapsing folders
- · Copying pane contents to the clipboard

Finding Signals on Schematic and Alignment Panes

Signals or features listed in the Feature Map subfolder in the Text Pane can be found in Schematic and Alignment Panes. This feature is only enabled if the molecules are involved in the blocks located in the Blocks Search, indicated by a blue arrow. To find the positions of the signal

in these panes, select the feature line, indicated by the tag icon (1), and click the **Find** button

(**H**) from the Text Pane toolbar or select **Edit > Find**. The Find command is disabled if the selected line is not a signal with non-zero boundaries.

Block List Pane

All of the Blocks, found in a Block Search or manually defined, are shown in the Block List Pane

	name	m	len	MP-sc	SP-score	Signif.	Offset	
\odot		9	96	220.1	7924	~	28	
\bigcirc		9	68	156.6	5639	~	3	
\bigcirc		8	68	150.4	4212	×	3	
$ \bigcirc$		- 7	61	105.0	2205	×	28	
${\circ}$		7	57	88.5	1858	×	14	
\odot		7	25	58.2	1222	~	3	
$ \bigcirc$		7	7	13.2	277	-	82	
$ \bigcirc$		6	53	208.8	3132	×	71	
\odot		6	35	97.3	1460	×	89	
\cap		6	52	85.0	1275	×	15	

(Figure 36.2). To activate this pane, click within the pane or click on its button (

Figure 36.2 AlignX Display window Block List Pane

Each line in the pane represents one block. The following columns (fields) are defined for the block:

- Color representation: A color is assigned to each block automatically from the list of available colors (defined in Project properties). The first block in the list gets the first color, second block the second color, etc. If there are more blocks than colors the same colors are used again.
- Name: Initially, blocks found in a search have no name. Manually defined blocks are automatically named "ud1", "ud2", etc. You can name or rename a block in the Block Edit dialog.
- m: Number of sequences in a block
- Length: Length of the block, that is, the length of the sequence segments in the block. Like segments for all the sequences in a block have the same length.
- **MP-score**: Mean Pairwise Score, calculated by dividing the SP-score of a block by the number of possible pairwise combinations of component sequence segments.
- **SP-score:** Sum of the Pairs Score, composed of several sequence segments. Scores are calculated for all possible segment pairs. The sum of all of the scores is the SP-score.
- **Significance:** Biological significance (see "Methods for Assessing the Statistical Significance of Molecular Sequence Features by Using General Scoring Schemes" by Samuel Karlin and Stephen F. Altschul. 1990).
- Offset: Minimal offset of the segment in the block.

Block Selection and Highlighting

There are two methods of selection in the *Block List Pane*, each offering different functionality. Both types of selection work independently and do not affect each other.

- 1. **Single selection:** Because this selection enables actions within a block, only one block at a time can be selected with this method. Click on the block line outside of the colored circle area. The highlighted selected block is shown concurrently in the Schematic and Alignment Panes. To deselect the block, click on the Schematic or Alignment Panes
- Multiple selection: This selection method allows no actions within blocks, but is only for viewing them. Select one block by clicking within the colored circle area. Press SHIFT + CLICK within circles to select a range of several blocks. Press CTRL + CLICK within circles to select more than one non-contiguous block. To deselect the blocks, repeat the clicks on the selected circles.

Blocks selected in this way are indicated by the black dot in the center of the colored circle in the Block List Pane. The colored blocks on the Schematic and Alignment Panes correspond to the selected circles, distinguishing one from the other. Mouse clicking within Schematic and Alignment Panes does NOT remove this kind of selection.

Sorting Blocks in the Block List Pane

Initially blocks are sorted by the number of sequences in the block (m-column). The blocks order in the Block List Pane can be changed, however, by sorting. Click on a column header to sort; repeat the click to reverse the sorting order. Sorting is unaffected by selection of one or more blocks.

Removing Blocks

To delete a selected block, choose **View > Delete Block** or the corresponding command from the Shortcut menu. You can confirm or cancel the deletion.

Schematic Pane

This pane is designed for a schematic representation of blocks to facilitate analyses of their

position and relationship. Click in the pane or on the **Schematic Pane** button (E) to activate this pane.

	1	24	48	72	96	120	144	168	192	
CDN2_HUMAN										4
CDN2_MOUSE										
CDN3_HUMAN										
CDN5_HUMAN							-			
CDN5_MOUSE										
CDN5_RAT										
CDN6_HUMAN										
CDN6_MOUSE									_	
CDN7_HUMAN								_		
CDN7_MOUSE								_		
CDNB_CRIGR									— I	•

Figure 36.3 AlignX Display window Schematic Pane

Molecules included in the Block Search operation as well as manually added from the Text Pane are displayed schematically as stretched rectangles (Figure 36.3). A schematic representation of one sequence occupies each row, with the name of its sequence displayed to the left. The upper row of the pane is a ruler. Both molecule name and its sequence can be scrolled in the vertical direction. There is no horizontal scrolling bar for this pane because the display is calculated such that the longest rectangle fits the pane width.

You can change the order of the molecules in the pane by dragging a molecule with the DRAG + DROP technique. The order of the molecules in the Alignment Pane reflects the changes.

To select molecule(s) in the Schematic Pane, click on the name(s). Selections are highlighted concurrently in the Alignment Pane. To select a region in the Schematic Pane, click within the pane and drag a rectangle.

Note: In this pane, you can only select regions; you cannot select blocks.

Alignment Pane

The Alignment Pane (Figure 36.4) is designed for viewing and analyzing sequential information.

To activate it, click within pane or click on the **Alignment Pane** button ()) of the Pane selection toolbar.

		260	270	280	290	
_1	222	gfdye	SILGQCCEMP	VGYIQIPVG	AGPLLLDG	yeysv 🔺
_2	235	gfdys	SILGQCCEMP	VGYVQIPVGI	AGPLLLDG	reysv
_3	240	gfdye	SILGQCCEMP	IGYVQIPVGI	AGPLLLDG	reysv
_4	230	fdyd-	SILGQCCEMP	VGYVQIPVGI	AGPLLLDG	reysv
_5	211	gfdye	SILGQCCEMP	VGYVQIPVG	AGPLLLNG	reysv
6	151		GVNGACKESP	GSYSRLLAT1	VAGSVI.AG	elsim
		4		112220000000000000000000000000000000000		•

Figure 36.4 AlignX Display window Alignment Pane

Molecules included in the Block Search operation as well as those manually added from the Text Pane are displayed as sequences in the Alignment Pane. The name of the molecule and current position within the sequence appears to the left of its sequence. The upper row of the Alignment Pane contains a ruler with a scale of residues.

The Alignment Pane has its own vertical and horizontal scrollbars. Both a molecule name and its sequence can be scrolled in the vertical direction. When scrolled horizontally, the sequence names remain stationary at the left of the Alignment Pane. The number to the left of the sequence shows its current position.

Dragging the molecule (up or down) by the name and dropping it on the desired place can change the order of the molecules in the pane. The order of the molecules in the Schematic Pane is changed to reflect the order in the Alignment Pane.

Selection in the Alignment Pane

To select a molecule(s) in the Alignment Pane, click on its name. This selection is selected concurrently in the Schematic Pane as well.

To select a region in the Alignment Pane, click and drag within the pane. The region inside the tracking dotted rectangle is selected except for the "gapped" (or empty) areas. To combine a new selection with a previous selection, press the CTRL key while starting the new selection. To modify a selection, drag the edge of the selection to the right or left. Selections are displayed concurrently in the Alignment and Schematic Panes.

AlignX Blocks Projects

A set of molecules, options and blocks opened and being worked on is called a AlignX Blocks project. AlignX Blocks accepts following file formats: GenPept, SWISS-PROT, FASTA and Vector NTI archives.

Opening an Existing Project

When AlignX Blocks is launched, a new, empty project is created. To open an existing project,

choose **Project > Open** or click on the **Open Project** button () on the Main toolbar. Select the desired project name in the File Open dialog box. *AlignX Blocks projects have a "*.bpr" file extension by default*. Select the desired file and click **Open**. If the file is a valid AlignX Blocks project, information about molecules, properties and blocks (if any) will appear in appropriate panes. An alternative way to open an existing project is to drag and drop the project file on the AlignX Blocks workspace.

Creating a New Project

To create a new, empty project, select **Project > New**. If appropriate, you will be prompted to save any changes in the currently opened project first. If you select **Cancel**, work may continue on the opened project. If you select **Yes** to save changes or **No** to disregard changes, the current project is closed and the workspace emptied.

Adding Molecules to the Project

To add molecules to a current project, click the **Add Files** button ($\underline{10}$) or select **Project > Add Files**. *Only protein molecules in acceptable format can be added to the project*. Molecule(s) added to the project are listed in the Text Pane.

You can also add molecules to the project using the drag and drop technique if they are of an appropriate file format and molecule type. If the program fails to define a file's format, it will be suggested the file be imported as a raw sequence. Imported sequences appear in the Text Pane with the names: NONAME, NONAME#2, NONAME#3, etc.

Block Search

To search for blocks, select two or more molecules in the Text Pane and click the Search for

Blocks button () or choose **Blocks > Search for Blocks**. The Block Search progress dialog box opens, letting you monitor the search progress. Press the **Cancel** button to interrupt the current search. Blocks located in the search (if any) are shown in the Block List Pane, sequences of the selected molecules are displayed in the Alignment Pane and schematic representations of the sequences in the Schematic Pane.

Adding Sequences to Block Sequence Space.

The term Block Sequence Space (BSS) designates all the sequences that are displayed in the Schematic and Alignment Panes. Usually sequences are added to BSS as a result of a Block Search. Selected sequences appear in both Schematic and Alignment Panes regardless of whether or not any block includes this particular sequence. To add a sequence currently not present in a BSS, select **Add Sequence** from the shortcut menu opened from the Text Pane. *If a sequence already is included in a BSS, this menu item is disabled.* A sequence added using the **Add Sequence** command is also marked with blue arrow in the Text Pane.

Defining a Block

In AlignX Blocks, you can search for blocks automatically or define blocks manually. To define a block, select a region within the Alignment or Schematic Pane and click the **Define Block** button

(2), select **Blocks > Define Block** or the corresponding command from the Shortcut menu. All the segments of the newly defined block will have an offset number defined by the selection, and the length equal to the minimal segment length. All previous selections are overwritten and the new block is selected in all three panes. Manually defined blocks are named automatically as "ud1", "ud2", etc., but they can be renamed later.

Linking and Unlinking

Linking means aligning the currently selected sequence segments and creating "links" between the residues appearing in each effected column. When residues are linked, they remain in the same column despite any shifts that occur elsewhere in the alignment. Linked residues are shown in upper case in the Alignment Pane and as wider rectangles in the Schematic Pane.

To link, first select sequence segments within the Alignment or Schematic Panes, or select a

block in the Block List pane. Click the Link Selected Area button (^{SSD}) or select Blocks > Link or the corresponding option on the shortcut menu.

To unlink selected sequence segment(s), click the **Unlink Selected Area** button ()) or select **Blocks > Unlink** or the corresponding command on the shortcut menu. Unlinking selected segment(s) can cause segments in other sequences to also become unlinked.

To unlink all segments of all sequences, select Blocks > Unlink All.

When you perform Link functions, the previous state is saved in the history list.

The **Undo Link Operation** button () and **Redo Link Operation** button () buttons on the Main toolbar allow navigation through the history list. Information about links is saved in saved in an AlignX Blocks project and applied to Alignment Pane next time you open the project.

Color Setup

Colors for displaying linked and unlinked areas in the Alignment Pane can be changed in the Link Color dialog box (Figure 36.5). To modify the Link Color, select **View > Color Setup** or the corresponding command from the shortcut menu, opening the Link Color dialog box.

Link color		×
Text color:	Linked text color:	automatic 💌
Sample		
aygtqgsSGYSLI cgvpaiqPVLSGI vvggteaqrnswPSQIS vddddkivggytCGANT	RLentGDNSvet LSrivngEEAVPg: lqyrsgsswahte; vpyQVSLNs;	tktstrivg swpwqvslqd ggtlirqnwv gyhfcggsli
Close	Cancel	Apply

Figure 36.5 Link Color dialog box

This dialog box lets you select the background sequence color (Text color) and Linked text color. Select the appropriate color(s) and click **Apply** to preview the selections. Click **Close** to apply the changes and close the menu.

For more information regarding linking and unlinking, see the previous section.

Block Editing

To edit a block, click the **Edit Selected Block(s)** button (), or choose **Blocks > Edit Block** or the corresponding command from the shortcut menu, launched by right clicking on the desired block or double click on the desired block. This opens the Edit Block dialog box (Figure 36.6).

nda plasta							V
Edic Block							스
					_		
CDN2_HUMAN	61 epnca	adpatl	trpvhdaan	egf <mark>ldtl</mark> v	wlhraga	rldvrdawgrlj	pvdlaee
CDN2_MOUSE	60 dsnc	edpttf:	srpvhdaar	egf <mark>ldtl</mark> v	wlhgsga	rldvrdawgrlj	pldlaqe:
CDN5_MOUSE	63 epnca	adpatl	trpvhdaan	egfldtlv	wlhraga	rldvcdawgrlj	pvdlaee
CDN5_RAT	63 epnca	adpatl	trpvhdaan	egfldtlr	wlhkaga	rldvcdawgrl	pvdlaee
CDN6_MOUSE	62 npn11	dgtgf	avihdaara	agf l <mark>dtwq</mark> a	allefqad	vniednegnlp	lhlaake
CDN7_HUMAN	65 aspr	/qdtsg	tspvhdaar	tgf <mark>ldtl</mark>	wlvehga	dvnvpdgtgalj	pihlavq
CDN7_MOUSE	98 advn	aldstg:	slpihlair	egh <mark>sswv</mark> s	flapesd	lhhrdasgltp.	lelarqr
Restorate		m	Length	MP-score	SP-score	Significant?	
original	original:	7	7	13.2	277	no (1.0e+000)	
	current:	7	7	13.2	277	no (1.0e+000)	
				_			
Ł	olock name:						ОК
				1			
	block color:		_				Cancel

Figure 36.6 Edit Block dialog box

In the Block Editor:

- 1. Remove sequences from a block by clicking on their number/name (at the far left).
- Narrow or widen a block by dragging the line separating it from the rest of the sequence. All changes in block statistics are immediately displayed in the current line (in the section below the Alignment Pane).
- 3. Name or rename a block in the block name text box.
- 4. Change a block's color in the block color dropdown menu.
- 5. Press the **Restore to original** button to undo all changes.
- 6. After changes are saved, the Block List, the Schematic and Alignment Panes are updated.
- 7. The block statistics in Block Editor are described as follows:
 - ^o **m:** number of sequences in a block
 - ^o **Length:** Length of the block, that is, the length of the sequence segments in the block. Like segments for all the sequences in a block have the same length.
 - ^o MP-score: Mean Pairwise Score. The MP-score is calculated by dividing the SP-score of a block by the number of possible pairwise combinations of component sequence segments.
 - SP-score: Sum of the Pairs Score, composed of several sequence segments. Scores are calculated for all possible segment pairs. The sum of all of the scores is the SP-score.
 - ^o Significant?: Significance of a block. Standard P-value (Karlin, Altschul, 1990)

Deleting a Molecule

To delete a selected molecule from the project, click the **Delete from Project** button () or choose the **Delete < Molecule> From Project** from the shortcut menu.

If a selected molecule participates in one or more blocks, you will be asked to verify the deletion. *All blocks it participates in will be dismissed.* If you confirm the deletion, the specified molecule and all related blocks are removed from all panes.

AlignX Blocks Parameters

To review or modify AlignX parameters setup, click on the **AlignX Blocks Setup** button () or select **Blocks > AlignX Blocks Setup**. This opens the AlignX Blocks Parameters dialog box (Figure 36.7).

On the three tabs, review or modify the following parameters:

Parameters Tab:

- Pairwise score cutoff: the minimum segment pair score needed to mark a diagonal
- Min. sequences per block: the minimum length of sequence that block must span in order to be reported
- Expectation value limit: the maximum threshold value required to make block significant

AlignX Blocks parameters	×
Parameters Blocks' colors Score matrix	
Pairwise score cutoff: Min. sequences per block: 5 Expectation value limit: 0.0001	
	OK Cancel Help

Figure 36.7 AlignX Blocks Parameters dialog box (Parameters tab)

Blocks' Color Tab:

To change Block color(s), select the appropriate color from the palette then click OK.

There are two color listboxes on this tab: **Block colors** selected for this project and **Available Colors** (Figure 36.8). Double click on any color from the Available Colors list to add it to the

Blocks Colors list. To remove a color from the current block double click on the color in the Block colors list.

AlignX Blocks parameters		×
Parameters Blocks' colors	Score matrix	
Block colors:	Available colors:	
,	,	
	OK Cancel	Help

Figure 36.8 Blocks' Colors tab on the AlignX Blocks Parameters dialog box

Score Matrix Tab

The Score Matrix tab (Figure 36.9) displays the matrix used to generate the current multiple alignment in AlignX Blocks. From this tab, you can also open other matrices for review or for application to the Blocks. Editing a matrix takes place in the Matrix Editor, accessible from AlignX and AlignX Blocks.

When a project is created, a residue substitution matrix from the corresponding protein template is used. If a template file is not found, the default matrix is used (blosum62mt2 for protein) or enter the name of a new score matrix in the Name text box. To review other matrices, click the **Select Matrix** button. From the Matrices file, select any other matrix to be loaded on the Score Matrix tab.

ignX	Blo	ocks	pa	ram	ete	rs																×
Parameters Blocks' colors							Sco	ire m	atrix													
Name: blosum62						0	Order: ARNDCQEGHILKMFPSTWYVBZX*										:					
		А	R	Ν	D	С	Q	Е	G	Н	Т	L	К	М	F	Р	S	Т	W	Y	V 🔺	
•	А	4	-1	-2	-2	0	-1	-1	0	-2	-1	-1	-1	-1	-2	-1	1	0	-3	-2	C	Į.
	R	-1	5	0	-2	-3	1	0	-2	0	-3	-2	2	-1	-3	-2	-1	-1	-3	-2	-2	
	Ζ	-2	0	6	1	-3	0	0	0	1	-3	-3	0	-2	-3	-2	1	0	-4	-2	-3	
	D	-2	-2	1	6	-3	0	2	-1	-1	-3	-4	-1	-3	-3	-1	0	-1	-4	-3	4	
	С	0	-3	-3	-3	9	-3	-4	-3	-3	-1	-1	-3	-1	-2	-3	-1	-1	-2	-2	-1	
	Q	-1	1	0	0	-3	5	2	-2	0	-3	-2	1	0	-3	-1	0	-1	-2	-1	-2	
	Е	-1	0	0	2	-4	2	5	-2	0	-3	-3	1	-2	-3	-1	0	-1	-3	-2	-2 🔻	
M	4	1	/24		F F	٩L.	•														۲.	
																		S	elec	t ma	atrix	
										C)K			Ca	ncel			Н	elp			

Figure 36.9 Score Matrix tab on the AlignX Blocks Parameters dialog box

For further details regarding customizing or editing matrices, refer to Chapter 39.

Templates

Templates are the files that contain all the properties for the AlignX Blocks program. An AlignX Blocks project is created using default template file. You can also save current settings of the AlignX Blocks project in a template file or apply settings from existing template to the open project.

To save settings in a template choose **Edit > Setup > Save to File**. Enter or select the file to which settings will be saved.

To apply settings from existing template to the project that is already open choose **Edit > Setup > Load from File**. All the properties are applied after researching blocks.

Other AlignX Blocks Features

The following features can be performed in AlignX Blocks. Details are given in Chapter 3.

- Copying AlignX Blocks data to the clipboard
- Printing from AlignX Blocks
- Exporting molecules from AlignX Blocks
- Integrating AlignX Blocks with other Vector NTI applications and third-party tools on the Internet.

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

С нартек **377 3D-Mo**L

Introduction

The three-dimensional representation of a protein is directly linked to the linear sequence of the protein. Therefore, the structural information about the protein regions derived from a BLAST search, multiple alignment, mutation analysis, BLOCKS or ProSite database search, etc. can be easily visualized on the protein structure. Similarly, 3D features of proteins, such as protein-protein interaction sites or small molecule binding sites, can be mapped on the linear protein sequence to elucidate functional properties of particular protein regions.

Resolved three-dimensional structures of biological macromolecules are stored as public domain files in the Protein Data Bank (PDB). 3D-Mol is a Vector NTI Advance application used for visualization and analysis of three-dimensional information derived from PDB structures or structures created by the user. The 3D viewer is designed to simplify viewing and analysis of tertiary structures of proteins, nucleic acids and small organic and inorganic molecules.

3D-Mol Supported File Formats

3D-Mol accepts the following file formats:

- 3D Molecule Viewer Project File (.p3d)
- Brookhaven PDB File (.pdb, .ent)
- Version 1.0 M3D File (.m3d)
- Compound File (.m3dc, .m3dz)

The viewer currently allows displayed molecules to be exported in PDB and M3D formats.

Downloading 3D Structure Files

You can search for PDB files in the public database using the Vector NTI Online Resources. In Vector NTI, choose **Tools > Online Resources > Entrez Search System at NCBI** tool or the software application, PubMed/Entrez Search. For the database type, enter "structure." When you receive the result(s), copy the file(s) as a document and save it for opening in 3D-Mol, drag

and drop it into this application, or copy it in PubMed/Entrez Search and paste it into the 3D-Mol workspace.

For more information on the PubMed/Entrez Search, see Chapter 39 of this User's Manual.

Opening 3D-Mol

To open 3D-Mol, choose **Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > 3D Molecule Viewer**. When 3D-Mol is first opened, the display window is empty. As molecules are added to a 3D-Mol project, they are listed in the Project Pane.

To open 3-dimensional structure files in 3D-Mol, press the **Open** button (\searrow) or select **File** > **Open**. In the Open dialog box, navigate to the structure file, highlight it and press the **Open** button.



Figure 37.1 3D-Mol interface

Elements of 3D-Mol

The 3D-Mol interface (Figure 37.1) consists of a menu bar, three toolbars, and a 3-D Mol display window, with shortcut menus specific for each pane. The 3D-Mol Main toolbar contains tools for major program functions, such as opening and saving projects, adding molecules to the project, exporting molecule data in various formats, and optimizing the 3D-Mol window view. The Select and 3D toolbars contain tools for manipulating the graphic representation of the structure. The Pane toolbars and drop-down menus have different modes, depending on the active pane.

Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function. Hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button. Many toolbar commands can also be launched from the menu bar or from a shortcut menu.

The 3D-Mol display window consists of four main panes: the Project Pane that displays information about the project, the Structure Pane that displays information about molecules that are opened in 3D-Mol, the Graphics Pane used for the visual display of 3-D structural data, and the Sequence Pane with separate tabs for viewing each sequence chain in the protein and/or nucleic acid structure being viewed.

As in the other Vector NTI Suite applications, to apply a command from the main menu in a given pane, that pane must be active. A pane can be activated by clicking anywhere in the pane or by choosing **Window > <pane name>** from the menu.

All panes are separated by split bars, which allow re-sizing of the panes. Scroll bars appear when the contents of a pane exceed the viewing area, facilitating easier viewing of pane contents.

You can add or remove a pane from the 3D-Mol window view using the Pane buttons

(💑 , 🛄 , 🛄) in the Pane Selection toolbar. Under the Window menu option, you can also select options that allow you to show or hide the various toolbars or the status bar.

Project Pane

Click on the Project Pane to activate it. The Project Pane contains a list of the structures in the project organized in folders according to structure file type (Figure 37.2).

======================================	×
☐ 16×9/16×9.odb) ✓ ☐ 1FIV (1FIV.pdb)	

Figure 37.2 3D-Mol Project Pane

Double-click on a structure file name in the Project Pane or highlight the structure and choose **View > Activate Molecule** to display the structure in the 3D-Mol workspace. The currently displayed structure shows a check mark by its bolded name in the Project Pane (Figure 37.2).

Viewing Structure File Properties

Highlight a structure in the list and choose **View > Properties** or right-click on the structure and choose **Properties** from the shortcut menu to launch the File Properties dialog box for that structure (Figure 37.3):

File Properties		×
File Header	Remarks	
File name :	E:\Program File:\Vector NTI Suite 8\Demo Projects\\TFIV.pdb	
Last modified:	09:33:46 04/13/02	
Size:	84.1 KB (86 140 bytes)	

Figure 37.3 File Properties dialog box

- File tab Contains physical data about the structure, such as hard drive location, size and modification date.
- Header tab Contains information from the structure file header.
- Remarks Contains remarks from the structure file.

Creating Custom Structures (NewEntries)

You can create user-defined structure files in a 3D-Mol project. This is accomplished using the NewEntry feature of 3D-Mol.

Adding NewEntries to the Project

You can add a user-defined structure by activating the Project Pane and choosing **File > New Editable Entry** from the menu. This command adds a new folder called *Edits* to the Project Pane, if one does not already exist, along with a new structure called *NewEntry<entry* #> (Figure 37.4). Subsequent new entries created are named with the next consecutive entry number (i.e. NewEntry1, NewEntry2, NewEntry3, etc.).

Adding Content to NewEntries

Unlike imported structure files, NewEntries are editable, allowing you to create your own custom structure files. Commands available on the Structure Pane and Graphics Pane shortcut menus provide the means for copying chains from an imported or user-defined (NewEntry) structure file and pasting them into a NewEntry to create a custom structure file. Once you have added content to a NewEntry, an asterisk appears by its name in the Project Pane (Figure 37.4) and in the 3D-Mol title bar when the modified NewEntry is selected for viewing:



Figure 37.4 Project Pane showing NewEntry with unsaved added content

To copy a chain, right-click on the chain in the Structure Pane and choose **Copy Chain** from the shortcut menu. To paste the copied chain into a NewEntry file, double-click on the NewEntry in the Project Pane to activate it, right-click in the Graphics Pane and choose **Paste Chain** from the shortcut menu or activate the Graphics Pane and choose **View > Paste Chain** from the menu. Once the chain is pasted, you can move it in the Graphics Pane using the techniques described in the *Moving Molecules* section below.

Once you have created a custom structure, you can save it to a structure file by choosing **File > Export Entry** from the menu (see also *Exporting Structures to a File*, page 624). Once you have exported the NewEntry to a file, the name appears in the Project Pane with the file type extension (Figure 37.5):



Figure 37.5 Project Pane with two NewEntries that have been save to files

Working with NewEntries

You can manipulate custom structure files in 3D-Mol in the same way you can downloaded structure files.

Removing a Structure from the Project

To remove a structure, highlight the structure in the Project Pane and choose **View > Remove Molecule** from the menu or right-click on the structure and choose **Remove Molecule** from the shortcut menu.

Structure Pane

Click on the Structure Pane to activate it. The Structure Pane contains a description of the structure opened in 3D-Mol (Figure 37.6).

🖃 🔂 Molecules (2 chains)	
🖽 🛅 Protein Chain A	
🗉 🧰 Protein Chain B	
1 🔁 🔁 ACE	
⊞ □ NPY 1	
1 🔁 🔛 NPY 2	
1 🔁 🔁 🖽 🗉	
🗉 🧰 NH2 1	
🗉 🧰 94 H2O	
🖃 😋 Atoms (1055)	
🗉 🧰 By Element	
🕀 🦲 By ID	
🗉 🧰 By Amino Acid	
🗄 🧰 Secondary Structure	

Figure 37.6 3D-Mol Structure Pane

Structure information is organized in folders, based on molecule and atom data. Each top level (molecule) folder contains the following subfolders:

Folder	Contents
Molecules	Contains data about the structure such as number of chains, chain types and names, functional groups, etc.
Atoms	Characterizes atoms in the structure according to Element, ID, Amino Acid and Second- ary Structure.

Table 37.1 The 3D-Mol display window Structure Pane folders

Folders and sub-folders can be opened with a double-click or by clicking on the + to the left of the folder name.

For more information regarding the following Text Pane manipulations, refer to Chapter 3.

- Expanding and collapsing folders
- Copying pane contents to the clipboard

Finding and Marking Signals on Graphics and Sequence Panes

Signals or features listed in molecule subfolders in the Structure Pane can be marked and displayed in the Graphics and Sequence Panes. Select the feature line in a Structure Pane folder,

and click the **Mark Selection** button ()) or select **Mark Selection** from the feature's shortcut menu. For the feature(s) to be shown in the 3-D structure, click the **Show Selection** button

(3). To leave the item(s) selected, but hidden, click the Hide Selection button (3). To dese-

lect the item, click the **Unmark Selection** button () or select **View > Unmark Selection**. You can mark multiple features, residues or atoms if you wish. To clear all marked regions, click the

Unmark All button (3).

By default, marked signals are painted in the Graphics Pane in the color designated in the 3D Options dialog box (see *Sequence Pane Viewing Options*, page 620). However, marked atoms can be left marked, but unpainted if you want to temporarily remove their marks from view. To

paint/unpaint marked atoms, click the **Paint Marked Atoms** button (******) on the 3D-Mol toolbar.

Mark in Radius

When atoms, rotamers and monomers are marked from the Structure Pane, all like species within the set mark radius are also marked. The **Mark in Radius** command allows you to change the marking radius.

To change the marking radius, right-click in the Structure Pane and select **Mark in Radius > Set Radius (current set radius)** from the shortcut menu. In the Set Selection Radius dialog box that opens, enter a radius between 1 and 20 angstroms and click the **OK** button. Subsequent atoms, rotamers and monomers marked from the Structure Pane will mark all like species within the new designated mark radius.

Graphics Pane

Click on the Graphics Pane to activate it. The Graphics Pane shows a visual display of the three-dimensional molecule structural information. Graphics Pane tools enable rotation of the molecule(s) displayed there.

To select features of a molecule, mark the part of the molecule using the selection tools. All selections except the selection of individual atoms are displayed concurrently on the Sequence and Alignment Panes.

Point to any atom in the Graphics Pane to view a tool tip with information about the atom, such as chain and structure it belongs to.

Moving Molecules

The graphic representation of molecule(s) in the Graphics Pane can be moved, rotated and zoomed in and out. There are several methods for moving molecule graphics:

- Press and hold left mouse button or activate the Graphics Pane and use the keyboard arrow keys to rotate molecule(s) around vertical and horizontal axes lying in the plane of the screen.
- Hold SHIFT + drag the left mouse button or use the arrow keys to rotate molecule(s) around the axis perpendicular (normal) to the plane of the screen.
- Hold CTRL + drag the left mouse button or use the arrow keys to move molecule(s) sideways without rotation.

Resizing Molecule Graphics

In an active Graphics Pane, you can resize regions or the entire molecule in several ways:

- Hold CTRL+ SHIFT + drag the left mouse button or use arrow keys to zoom in or zoom out.
- To enlarge a selected region or feature of the molecule, click the Fit Marked Atoms to Window button ((). To return to the normal view, click the Fit to Window button ().
- Expand the Graphics Pane to fill your entire monitor screen by clicking on the **Switch Screen Mode** button (). To return to normal view, open the shortcut menu by right clicking on the graphics screen and choose **Full Screen Mode**, returning you to normal view or click the ESC key.
- Right-click on the Graphics Pane and choose **Stereo Mode** from the shortcut menu to view the graphic in stereo.

For more details about viewing graphics, see the sections below.
Sequence Pane

To activate the Sequence Pane, click on the pane or choose **Window > Sequence** Pane from the menu.

From this pane you can mark and broadcast into the Graphics Pane single or multiple selections of a protein, DNA or RNA sequence. Menu options and active toolbars in this pane are similar to those described for the other panes.

Viewing/Manipulating 3D Graphics

The obvious value of 3D-Mol lies in viewing and manipulating the graphics of 3-dimensional structures. Click on the **View** menu with the Graphics Pane activated to select among the viewing options described below.

Manipulating Graphics Using Menu Commands

Note: Many of the following commands are also available from toolbar buttons and the shortcut menu, launched by right clicking on the Graphics Pane.

For optimizing viewing, several options for the representation of atoms, backbone, coloring scheme, and mark types can be selected. The selections made in Atom, Backbone and Colors menus are applied to all parts of molecule, whether visible or hidden.

View > Atoms

These options govern the display of atoms in the molecule:

Command	Action
Line	Represent atoms as lines
Stick	Represent atoms as sticks
Ball and Stick	Represent atoms as balls on sticks
Space Fill	Space-filling representation
Polyhedron	Represent atoms as balls without bonds

Table 37.2 Molecule atom display options

View > Backbone

These options control the display of the molecule backbone.

Command	Action
Off	Switch backbone display off
CaWire	Represent backbone as a wire connecting Ca atoms
CaStick	Represent backbone as sticks connecting Ca atoms
Line Ribbon	Represent backbone as three-line ribbon
Flat Ribbon	Represent backbone as flat (thin) ribbon
Solid Ribbon	Represent backbone as solid (thick) ribbon
Tube	Represent backbone as a tube

Table 37.3 Molecule backbone display options

Command	Action
Schematic	Schematic representation (α -helices as cylinders, β -strands as arrows)

Table 37.3 Molecule backbone display options (continued)

View > Surface

You can define the surface appearance for the structure graphics with the following options:

Command	Action
Off	Switch surface display off.
Points	Represents molecule surface as points.
Lines	Represents molecule surface as connected lines.
Solid	Represents molecule surface as a solid shape

Table 37.4 Molecule surface display options

Note: View > Surface commands are enabled only if a surface dimension calculation has been performed (see *Calculating Protein Surfaces*, page 622).

View > Color Scheme

You can define the color scheme for the structure graphics by selecting one of the following options:

Command	Action
Element	Color by chemical element
Amino	Color by amino acid type
Amino Charge	Color by amino acid charge
Amino Hydrophobicity	Color by amino acid hydrophobicity
Amino Flexibility	Color by amino acid flexibility
Structure	Color by secondary structure
Temperature	Color by temperature
Chain	Color by chain (different molecules colored differently)
Clash	Color by clashing
Valent Angles	Color by valent angle
Color Schemes	Create your own custom color scheme (see below).

Table 37.5 Graphics color scheme options

Creating Custom Color Schemes

The **View > Color Scheme > Color Schemes...** command allows you to created custom schemes. Once you create a custom color scheme, it appears on the **View > Color Scheme** menu below the stock color scheme choices.

To create a custom color scheme, launch the Color Schemes dialog box (Figure 37.7) using the above command or choose its counterpart from the Graphics Pane shortcut menu.

Color Scheme‡			×
Schemes :		Colors :	Change
	Create New Defete Delete All		
	Load		
	OK	Cancel	

Figure 37.7 Color Schemes dialog box

Previously created color schemes appear in the Schemes list on the left. Click the **Create New** button to begin creating a custom color scheme. The New Color Scheme dialog box displays (Figure 37.8):

New Color Scheme	×
Scheme name :	DK
My New Color Scheme	Cancel
Scheme type :	
By Element	

Figure 37.8 Defining a new color scheme

You can choose one of three scheme types for your new color scheme, By Element, By Amino Acid or By ID. Name the color scheme, choose a scheme type and press the **OK** button. The new scheme name appears in the Color Schemes dialog box and when it is highlighted the colors for the scheme appear on the left in the Colors list (Figure 37.9):

	Colors :	Change
Create New	Hydrogen Heium H	(H)
Delete	Lithium (L	I) BEI
Delete All	Boron (B) Carbon (C]
Load	Nitrogen (Oxygen (C	N]]]
Save	Fluorine (F	5)]
	Create New Delete Delete All Load Save	Colors : Create New Delete Delete All Load Save Colors : Hydrogen Hydrogen Boron (B) Carbon (C) Nitrogen Dogen (C) National Neon (NE)

Figure 37.9 New color scheme added to Color Schemes dialog box

To delete a user-defined color scheme, highlight it in the Schemes list and press the **Delete** button. To delete all user-defined color schemes, press the **Delete All** button. To save the current user-defined color scheme setup to a file, press the **Save** button. To load a previously saved Color Scheme Setup file, press the **Load** button.

Initially, default colors are assigned to the elements, amino acids or IDs in a custom color scheme. To customize the color of an element, amino acid or ID color in a custom color scheme, highlight the color scheme name in the Schemes list, select the element, amino acid or ID in the

Colors list and press the **Change** button. The Color dialog box displays. Click the **Define Custom Colors...** button to fully extend the Color dialog box (Figure 37.10):

Color	? ×
0.1	
	Hug: 233 Red 255
Land Land Land Land Land Land Land Land	Sat 240 Green 192
Qetine Custom Colors >>	Color/Sglid Lum; 210 Blue: 203
OK Cancel	Add to Custom Colors

Figure 37.10 Color dialog box

Select a basic or custom color by clicking on its square in the Basic Colors or Custom Colors section, respectively.

Note: Initially, the Custom Colors palette contains only white color samples.

Define a custom color by clicking or clicking and dragging anywhere in the custom colors rainbow panel on the right. Refine the hue by dragging the slide arrow on the very right up or down. You can also define a custom color by typing the HSL or RGB values in the appropriate boxes in the custom colors section. A sample of the current custom color appears in the Color/Solid box. Press the **Add to Custom Colors** button to add the new color to the Custom Color palette on the left.

Once you have defined/selected the color, click the **OK** button to accept the color for the highlighted element/amino acid/ID in the Color Schemes dialog box. The new color appears by the name of the selected element/amino acid/ID in the Colors section of the Color Schemes dialog box.

View > Molecules

This option allows you to select the molecule (box checked) or hide it (box unchecked). The molecule(s) listed are those included in the displayed structure.

View > Measure Mode

Three measuring tools can be used in 3D-Mol to measure distances and angles in the molecule(s). These tools are accessed from either toolbar buttons or the **View > Measure Mode** menu, converting 3D-Mol to Measure Mode.

Note: To return to Select Mode, click the **Select Mode** button (\bigcirc) or select the option from the **View > Measure Mode** menu.

Measure Mode	lcon	Function
Off	\square	Indicates Measure Mode is Off
Distance	III.	Measure the distance between two atoms in Ångstroms. To measure the distance, click on the button, then click on successive atoms on the structure. The Ångstrom units appear on the screen.

Table 37.6 Measuring tool options

Measure Mode	lcon	Function
Angle		Measure the valent angle between three atoms in degrees (not necessar- ily connected). Range –180: +180
Torsion Angle	₩	Measure the torsion angle between four atoms (not necessarily con- nected) Range –180: +180. If torsion angle has known designation in proteins this designation is displayed.
Remove/Clear Measures		Removes the measuring marks

Table 37.6 Measuring tool options (continued)

Note: You may find clicking on atoms easier if your image is in the ball and stick mode, rather than the wire-frame mode (select Atoms > Ball and Stick from the shortcut menu launched by right clicking on the Graphics Pane). Also, it is often helpful to mark the region to be measured, then zoom to that region before proceeding with your measurements.

View > Mark Type

View > Mark Type selects an appropriate mark tool. Click on Set Radius to define the radius within which all atoms, rotamers or monomers are to be displayed (if those options are selected) in the Graphics Pane. Structures with at least one atom within chosen radius are selected. Select each of the following options as desired:

Command	Action
Atom	Mark individual atom by clicking on it
Atoms in radius	Mark all atoms in radius
Monomers	Mark monomer (amino acid or nucleotide) by clicking on one of its atoms
Monomers in radius	Mark monomers in radius
Side Chain	Mark side chain by clicking on one of its atoms
Side Chain in radius	Mark side chains in radius
Molecules	Mark whole molecule by clicking on one of its atoms
Secondary Struc- ture	Mark secondary structure by clicking on one of its atoms
Set radius	Define the mark radius in Å, then click OK

Table 37.7 Mark tool options

View > Mark

These options control the display of marks.

Command	lcon	Action
Clear/Unmark	**	Clear all marks

Table 37.8 Mark display options

Command	lcon	Action
Invert	*	Reverse the marks, meaning it unmarks current markings and marks those currently unmarked

Table 37.8 Mark display options (continued)

View > Show

These options control atom display.

Command	lcon	Action
All Atoms	()	All atoms are shown
Marked Atoms		All marked atoms are shown
Unmarked Atoms		All unmarked atoms are shown

Table 37.9 Graphics Pane atom show options

View > Hide

These options control atom display.

Command	lcon	Action
All Atoms	ţ,	All atoms are hidden, leaving the back bone displayed
Marked Atoms	, B	All marked atoms are hidden
Unmarked Atoms		All unmarked atoms are hidden

Table 37.10 Graphics Pane atom hide options

Graphics Pane 3D Options Dialog Box

The 3D Options dialog box allows you to set various parameters and preferences that govern the appearance of molecules displayed in the Graphics Pane. To launch the 3D Options dialog

box, choose **Tools > 3D Options** from the menu, click the **3D Options** button (\checkmark) or choose the **3D Options** command from the Graphics Pane shortcut menu. The 3D Options dialog box has five tabs that control parameters/preferences for various categories of Graphics Pane display. The **Set Default** button on each tab restores default parameter values for that tab. The five tabs are described below.

Visuals Tab

The **Visuals** tab (Figure 37.11) allows you to define parameters for graphics color/color density and font style/size.

3D Options	×
Visuals Draw Mark Conflicts Actions	
Effects Surface transparency Atoms DPK transparency Fade 0.4	Colors Background Mark Neighbour measure Other measure Chorge
Fonts Measure Arial, 10	Set Default
OK Cancel	Apply Help

Figure 37.11 Visuals tab of the 3D Options dialog box

Parameter	Function
Surface Transpar- ency	Determines the transparency of surface calculation solid visual representation. The higher the number, the greater the transparency.
Atoms CPK Transparency	Determines the transparency for atom space fill mode. The higher the number, the greater the transparency.
Fade	Determines color fading from foreground to background. The higher the number, the greater the fading.
Colors	Determines the colors for background, marks and measures. Double-click on the listing or highlight it and press the Change button to change its color.
Fonts	Controls the font size and type face for measure text in the Graphics Pane. Press the Measure button to change the current font style.

Table 37.11 Visuals tab parameters

Draw Tab

The **Draw** tab (Figure 37.12) controls atom and backbone size and width parameters.

D Options				×
Visuals Draw	Mark Con	flicts Actions	1	
Atoms Ball size : Stick size : CPK scale : Line width :	0.2 1.5		Backbone Stick size : Line width :	0.5
	OK	Cancel	Δρρίγ	Set Default Help

Figure 37.12 Draw tab of the 3D Options dialog box

Parameter	Function
Ball size	Ball size for ball on stick representation.
Stick size	Stick size for stick and ball on stick representation.
CPK scale	Scale of space fill representation in relation to element's atomic radius.
Line width	Line width. Choose a number between 1 and 5.

Table 37.12 Draw tab parameters

Mark Tab

The Mark tab (Figure 37.13) determines how atoms and other features are selected.

3D Options		×
Visuals Draw Mark Conflicts Actions	1	
Click marks C Alom		
C Aloms in radius C Molecule		
Monomers Monomers in radius Side Dhain		
C Side Chains in radius		
Mark radius : 10	I	Set Default
OK Cancel	Apply	Help

Figure 37.13 Mark tab of the 3D Options dialog box

Parameter	Function
Atom	Mark individual atom by clicking on it.
Atoms in radius	Mark all atoms in radius.
Molecule	Mark whole molecule by clicking on one of its atoms.
Monomer	Mark monomer (amino acid or nucleotide) by clicking on one of its atoms.
Monomer in radius	Mark monomers in radius.
Side chain	Mark sidechain by clicking on one of its atoms.
Side chain in radius	Mark sidechains in radius.
Secondary	Mark secondary structure by clicking on one of its atoms.
Mark radius	Set selection radius in Ångstroms.

Table 37.13 Mark tab parameters

Note: The options on the Selection Tab duplicate options available as submenu items under View.

Conflicts Tab

The **Conflicts** tab (Figure 37.14) parameters define clash and valent angle interference display in the Graphics Pane.

3D Options 🛛 🗙
Visuals Draw Mark Conflicts Actions
Distance
Clash 0.62
No clash 0.77
Hydrogen atoms can clash
Valent angle
Non valid 80
Valid 90
·
Set Default
OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 37.14 Conflicts tab of the 3D Options dialog box

Parameter	Function
Clash distance	Sets minimum distance for clashing.
No clash distance	Sets maximum distance for clashing.
Hydrogen atoms can clash	Check to allow hydrogen atom clashing.
Non valid valent angle	Sets minimum for an angle to be considered a valent angle.
Valid valent angle	Sets maximum for an angle to be considered a valent angle.

Table 37.14 Conflicts tab parameters

Actions Tab

The Actions tab (Figure 37.15) controls general interface behavior in the Graphics Pane.

D Options	I
Visuals Draw Mark Conflicts Action	ns
Show tooltip on graphic pane Measurement mode auto stop Apply atom style to marked atoms o	nly
Fast rendering on move	
	Set Default
OK Cancel	Apply Help

Figure 37.15 Actions tab of the 3D Options dialog box

Parameter	Function
Show tooltip on graph- ics pane	Shows atoms information in tooltips (when pointed to by mouse).
Measurement mode auto stop	Remains in measuring mode. Does not switch to rotation mode after each measurement then checked.
Apply atom style to marked atoms only	If checked, selected styles are applied to marked atoms only.
Fast rendering on move	If checked, shows atoms as wire while the molecule is rotated; this setting increases the speed of rotations.

Table 37.15 Action tab parameters

Stereo Viewing Option

3D-Mol provides a stereo viewing option in the Graphics Pane. Right-click in the Graphics Pane and choose **Stereo Mode** from the shortcut menu to toggle in and out of Stereo Mode.

Sequence Pane Viewing Options

The Sequence Pane Viewing Options dialog box (Figure 37.16) allows you to define the appearance of the sequence in the Sequence Pane. To launch the Sequence Pane Viewing Options dialog box, right-click on the Sequence Pane and choose **Options** from the Sequence Pane shortcut menu.

Sequence View Op	otions	×
Length of Block :	T	
Blocks per Line :	10	Set Default
ОК	Cancel	Apply

Figure 37.16 Sequence View Options dialog box

Parameter	Function
Length of Block	Number of residues that are grouped together.
Blocks per Line	Number of blocks that appear on one line in the Sequence Pane.
Set Default	Resets sequence view options to 3D-Mol default values.

Table 37.16 Sequence View Options parameters

3D-Mol Tools

3D-Mol includes two tools, one for aligning molecules and one for calculating the surface dimensions of a molecule. Using the alignment tool, you can align any two chains of ten monomers or greater in the current 3D-Mol project. You can calculate and display surface dimensions of a molecule via two different methods, the Connolly or Varshney methods.

Aligning Chains

3D-Mol includes an alignment tool for aligning any two protein chains of greater than ten monomers in the project.

Performing an Alignment

To align two chains, select one chain (that is greater than ten monomers) in the Structure Pane and choose **Tools > Align Chain** from the menu.

Note: If you select a chain that is ten monomers or shorter for alignment, an error message is generated.

The Select Chain to Align dialog box (Figure 37.17) displays allowing you to choose a second chain from the list of chains currently in the project.

Select Chain to Alig	IU	×
Algn : 1FIV (1FIV.pdb) Chain A Monomers (1 - 113)	With : Dran A (122) Dran A (122) Dran A (122) Dran A (113) Dran A (113) Dran A (113) Dran A (113) Dran B (122) Dran B (122) Dran B (122)	Cancel

Figure 37.17 Select Chain to Align dialog box

The Select Chain to Align dialog box lists all the structures in the project and their respective chains that are longer than ten monomers. Choose a second chain from the list by highlighting its name. Click the **OK** button to initiate the alignment process.

Viewing Alignment Results

When the alignment process is finished, the results appear in the 3D-Mol window (Figure 37.18):



Figure 37.18 3D-Mol Alignment results in Align Atoms viewing mode

The aligned molecules are shown side-by-side in the graphics pane with their names above. Notice that an Alignments folder has been added to the Project Pane and the new alignment, *NewAlign<#>*, is listed within. The sequence for each of the aligned chains is listed on its own tab in the Sequence Pane.

There are two modes in which you can view alignments, Align Backbone and Align Atoms modes. By default the alignment initially appears in Align Atoms mode, which shows the backbones and associated atoms for the two aligned molecules side-by-side (Figure 37.18). You can

choosing **Align Backbone Mode** from the Graphics Pane shortcut menu. Align Backbone mode shows only the backbones of the aligned molecules superimposed on each other (Figure 37.19).



Figure 37.19 Align Backbone mode

Working with Alignments

Alignments are considered a type of structure in 3D-Mol and can be manipulated, exported and saved to files and to the project in the same way as imported structures and NewEntries (see the appropriate sections in this chapter).

Calculating Protein Surfaces

Protein surface topography analysis is an important part of structure-based drug design, because drugs tend to bind in crevices on protein surfaces. An important first step in analyzing protein topography is defining the surface for a protein molecule. 3D-Mol includes a tool for calculating and displaying a graphical depiction of the surface of a molecule. 3D-Mol provides two different methods of surface calculation.

To calculate the surface for the chain(s) in a structure, display the structure in the 3D-Mol workspace and choose **Tools > Calculate Surface** from the menu. The Surface Calculation dialog box displays (Figure 37.20):

Surface calculation	×
Method C Conolly	Probe radius : 1.5
 Varshneyi 	
Surface calculation may take up depending on atoms number in a To cancel calculation chose the	to 10 minutes and more, molecule. a same menu item.
OK	Cancel

Figure 37.20 Surface Calculation dialog box

Select the surface calculation method, Connolly or Varshney (for references, see Appendix B), and designate a probe radius between 1 and 10 angstroms (probe radius determines the dis-

tance from the backbone at which the surface is calculated). Click the **OK** button to initiate the surface calculation.

Notes:

- Generally, the larger the molecule, the longer the surface calculation time. Large molecules may require several minutes for the calculation to complete.
- If you want to cancel the surface calculation once it has been initiated, choose Tools > Cancel Surface Calculation from the menu.

When the calculation is finished, the calculated surface displays on the molecule in the Graphics Pane in Line view mode (Figure 37.21).



Figure 37.21 Varshney surface in Line view mode

Choose View > Surface > <surface view command> from the menu to change or remove the surface view (see *View* > *Surface*, page 612). You can modify surface viewing characteristics on the Visuals tab of the 3D Options dialog box (see *Graphics Pane 3D Options Dialog Box*, page 616).

To recalculate a surface, choose **Tools > Recalculate Surface** from the menu.

Note: As indicated above, the surface calculation menu item adopts one of three forms, depending on the stage of surface calculation. Before a surface has been calculated, the Tools menu command appears as **Calculate Surface**. During surface calculation, the menu command appears as **Cancel Surface Calculation**. After a surface has been calculated, the menu command appears as **Recalculate Surface**.

Exporting and Saving 3D-Mol Data

3D-Mol structures can be exported to files or opened in Vector NTI and saved to the Vector NTI Database. 3D-Mol projects can be saved as 3D-Mol project files (.p3d).

Opening/Importing Structures from 3D-Mol in Vector NTI

To open or import a structure into Vector NTI, highlight the structure in the Project Pane and choose **File > Send to Vector NTI** from the menu. This launches Vector NTI and displays an Open/Import dialog box showing a list of the chains in the selected structure. From the Open/Import dialog box, you can choose which chain(s) from the structure you want and whether you want to open in Vector NTI or import directly into the Vector NTI Database. Highlight the desired chain(s) in the Open/Import dialog box and press the appropriate button, **Open** or **Import** to complete the action. Vector NTI opens or imports each selected chain as a separate molecule. If you choose to open the chain(s) in Vector NTI, you can subsequently save the chain(s) to the Vector NTI Database from their Molecule Viewing windows.

Exporting Structures to a File

To save a 3-D Structure to an independent file, highlight the structure in the Project Pane and press the **Save** button or select **File > Export Entry** from the menu. You can save the structure as a PDB or M3D file.

Saving 3D-Mol Sessions

To save a 3D-Mol session, press the **Save** button or select **File > Save Project** or **Save Project** As. The session is saved as a .p3d file.

Note: Upon saving the project, if you have modified NewEntries and have not yet saved them, 3D-Mol asks you to save them first before it saves the project.

C H A P T E R **38 Tools Manager**

Introduction

This chapter describes Vector NTI's Tools, powerful vehicles for extending Vector NTI's functionality and providing connections to external programs and Internet services. The chapter covers only general configuration topics. Each particular tool has its own description in other chapters in this user's manual.

Vector NTI Advance is shipped with more than 20 tools providing connection to various Internet servers. You can add your own tools connecting Vector NTI to local or remote programs using the configuration mechanism described in this chapter.

Configuring Vector NTI Tools

All registered tools can be accessed in the main menu options appropriate to the tools such as Analyses, Align and Tools. In addition, Vector NTI stores the information describing currently registered tools in the Tools Manager, where you can also create new tools or links to tools and perform operations on existing tools. To open Tools Manager, select **Tools > Tools Manager** in any Vector NTI Advance application, including Database Explorer.

🖙 Vector NTI Tools Manager		×
Vector NTI Tools Manager Align Analyze Assemble ContigExpress - Assemble Selected Molecu ContigExpress - Open New Assembly Proje Tools	<u>Create Tool</u> <u>Bename</u> Info ContigExpress - A Selected Molecu Quen CarritgExpres selected molecules selected molecules Type: One or more DNA/F	OK Create Eolder Delete Assemble les s mindow for INA Molecules in
<	GenBank format	

Figure 38.1 Tools Manager

The Tools Manager (Figure 38.1) displays folders containing all Vector NTI tools. Click on a folder to open it, where its respective tools are displayed. Each folder and its tool contents correlate with corresponding menu options on the Vector NTI Advance toolbars. The Info pane in this dialog box displays, for a selected tool, its name, function, and input type.

Buttons in the dialog box perform the following operations:

- Create Tool opens the Tools Parameters dialog box with two modes:
- To create a new tool from scratch, press the **Create Tool** button with a folder selected. The dialog box is empty except for the folder name from which it was launched.
- To create a new tool based on an existing tool, select the tool in the left pane and press the **Create Tool** button. In this instance, the dialog box opens loaded with data for that tool. All fields can be edited.
- Rename enables the text box of a selected tool where you can rename it
- Create Folder creates a new folder in the list pane with an enabled text box for name entry
- Delete deletes a selected folder or tool

In addition, tools with a .tq extension can be edited. To modify a tool or its description, doubleclick on a selected tool. This, too, opens the Tools Parameters dialog box (Figure 38.2). *The name text box is disabled if opened in this manner.*

Tool Paramete	ers	×
Name:	Assemble ContigExpress - Assemble Selected Molecules	OK
Description:	Open ContigExpress window for selected molecules	Cancel
Input Type:	One or more DNA/RNA Molecules in GenBank format	
<u>S</u> cript:	~\CExpress.exe Browse	
<u>C</u> ommand:	81	

Figure 38.2 Tools Parameters dialog box

Vector NTI displays the Tools dialog box with the following sections:

The Tool Parameters dialog box consists of five fields:

- Name Use the vertical bar character | to give your command a "segmented" name to arrange a nested menu structure. The first part of the name (from the first character to the first vertical bar) becomes the name of the menu item in the Tools menu, the second part, from the first to the second vertical bar, becomes the name of the submenu item in the first submenu, etc. The last segment of the name (from the last vertical bar to the last character of the name) becomes the actual name of the command item, associated with the tool description.
- For logical access to analysis tools, Vector NTI Advance places all tools with names starting with "Align | " at the end of the Align menu, etc.
- **Description** Contains a one-line description you can edit. This line is displayed on the status bar when you browse through the tools menus. You can save the edited description under a new or existing name. If saved under an existing name, the tool description is replaced by the new description.
- Input Type: Lets you select the type and contents of the input information file Vector NTI prepares for the tool before running it. The most frequently used Input Type options are described below:

Input Type	Input information
(none)	The tool requires no input
<n> <type> Molecule(s) in <format> format <n> is "Active", "Two", "One or more", or "Two or more" <type> is "DNA/RNA" or "Pro- tein" <format> is "GenBank/Gen- Pept" or "EMBL/SWISS-PROT"</format></type></n></format></type></n>	Molecules are saved into the _molembl file (EMBL/SWISS-PROT formats) or _molgbk file (GenBank/GenPept formats). If more than one molecule is selected, the file would contain multiple records. Vector NTI can prepare input from selection in the Database Explorer or from the active Display window (if just one molecule is required)
<n> <type> Sequence(s) in FASTA format <n> is "Active", "Two", "One or more", or "Two or more" <type> is "DNA/RNA" or "Pro- tein"</type></n></type></n>	Sequences are saved in the _fasta file. If more than one molecule is selected, the file would contain multiple sequences. Vector NTI can prepare input from selection in the Database Explorer or from the active Display window (if just one sequence is required)
Active Document	Active document is saved in _doc file
Active Molecule in Extended GenBank Format	Active molecule is saved in _molgbk file (GenBank with Vector NTI extensions)
Link Data	Command string is taken from the corresponding User Field

Table 38.1 Input Type options

- **Note:** On Windows platform, _seq, _fasta, _molembl, and _molgbk files have .txt extension. Files are created in the Tools directory/folder.
 - Script Allows you to select a Vector NTI script or executable program to be opened after Vector NTI finishes preparing input information according to the Input Type specification. Press the Browse button to select a script or program to be opened.
 - Command: Contains an extra parameter string given to and interpreted by the script or program you selected.

- **Note:** Before sending a command string to a program or script, Vector NTI scans it for symbols %1...%6 and performs the following substitutions:
 - %1: full path to the data file (see the table above)
 - %2: name of the molecule
 - %3: selection start (if selection in the Display window was used)
 - %4: selection end (if selection in the Display window was used)
 - %5: current author's e-mail address from the Author Info dialog
 - %6: "aa" for protein data, "na" for DNA/RNA data
 - When you finish entering or editing the tool fields, click OK.

Sorting Tools in Tools Manager

Items in the Tools Manager and all of its submenus are listed alphabetically, but you can sort items by clicking tools and dragging them into new positions on the list. You can even move tools to new folders. After you have made sorting changes, the corresponding menus in Vector NTI applications will reflect the changes.

Adding a Web Link to the Tools List

To add Web links to your list of tools, in the Tools Manager select the folder where the new item is to be stored. Select **Open** from its corresponding shortcut menu. This opens a Windows Explorer window displaying large icons for all of the tools in that folder. Open your Web browser to the page you would like the link to open. On the web browser screen, click and drag from a

"Create a Web Link" icon (In Netscape 4.7, the symbol (

or in Internet Explorer, the symbol () to the left of the URL in the location text box.) into the <Folder name > Explorer window.

Note: Adding or deleting command descriptions does not affect script or program files on disk, only the description of the way Vector NTI opens the script or program is affected.

Program- and Script-based Tools

Each Vector NTI Tool can be configured either to invoke a certain program or execute a script. *Program-based tools* are useful to open another molecular biology program to perform an extra analysis of your sequence, alignment of several sequences or some other operation, not supported by Vector NTI. These tools are platform- and environment-dependant and cannot be easily moved from one Vector NTI installation to another. Vector NTI *script-based tools*, on the other hand, are designed to allow the creation of portable tools easily transferable from one installation and platform to another.

Script-based tools are executed by a separate script execution module (SXM) that hides the platform-specific details from the script-writer. In addition, script execution modules serve as intermediate communication and data exchange layers between Vector NTI and such services as electronic mail or Internet servers. The basic set of high-level primitives covering data exchange between scripts and Vector NTI, electronic mail and Internet browsers is supplied together with SXM as a SXM *runtime* file (SXMRUN). The runtime layer allows the configuration of some functions like access to the Web browser by supporting the configuration function available as RECONFIG script and the corresponding Configure Scripts tool. This tool displays a dialog box allowing you to choose a service you want to configure and to select one of the available platform-specific Service Support Modules. For example, you can choose one of several Web Browser Interface modules matching the Web browser software installed on your computer.

Invitrogen supplies a basic set of tools/scripts with the standard distribution of Vector NTI and provides on-line access to extra tools and scripts via the Invitrogen web site (<u>www.invitro-</u>

gen.com/bioinformatics). The Tools page contains the latest versions and extensions of platform-dependent part of Tools support like SXM runtime files for Windows and Macintosh platforms, platform-specific service support modules etc. The Scripts page contains platformindependent scripts in a form of self-installing packages as well as technical information concerning the scripts. Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

CHAPTER **39**

MISCELLANEOUS VECTOR NTI TOOLS

Introduction

This chapter contains several of Vector NTI's miscellaneous features.

The first three described features work well in tandem and provide a practical and efficient way to search public databases for molecules or citations, retrieve them, complete with molecule files or abstracts that can be viewed and stored. Some citations are included with Vector NTI Advance, but you can expand and store and share references and abstracts as you would any other database object.

PubMed/Entrez Search

This feature of Vector NTI Advance is a client program for the NCBI Entrez/PubMed search engines. Database searches are performed in much the same way they are in the NCBI website: through the PubMed/Entrez Search Tool, you send a user query to Entrez/PubMed. The convenience of this Vector NTI Advance tool lies in its connectivity to the Internet and its ability to retrieve and list the results. From this list, you can easily view the results in either a Molecule Display window or the Citation Viewer and store them in the Vector NTI Suite database.

Results of the query, however, are only molecule or citation summaries, not the documents themselves. Any operation that requires the entire document such as Export, Copy, Drag and Drop, or Open will require that the selected documents be downloaded first.

Note: For this feature to work in your computer, an internet connection must be available and properly configured and open. This especially applies to corporate networks where the local networks have access to the Internet only via a corporate proxy server. Although the program tries to determine whether or not to use a proxy, and the name of the proxy, the Edit > Setting > Internet Settings should be the first place to look if the program is unable to connect to the NCBI server or to download anything.

To initiate a search, choose Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > PubMed/

Entrez Search (). The PubMed/Entrez Search dialog box that opens is untitled and remains so until you save the results under a name (Figure 39.1).

🖳 Untitled - Pubmed/Entrez Search						
Search Edit	View Align Analyze Assemi	ble Tools Help				
↓ → ⊗ ≥ □ □ ≥ □ □ ≥ Back Forward Stop New Open Save Copy Undo Help						
Database Pu	ubmed 🗾 🤗 Se	earch				
Operation T	erm					A
· · · · · · · ·	felix catus'' [All Fields]					
DB c	at [All Fields]					
	ar p m r ionaol					~
Id	Author	Title	Source	Language	Imprint	Date 🔺
12669287	Meadows RL PS G J RL, M	Chylothorax associate	Vet Clin Pathol	English	1993;22(4):109-116	1993
12669286	Walker DB, Cowell RL, Cli	Carcinoma in the urinar	Vet Clin Pathol	English	1993;22(4):103-108	1993
12669118	Trumbo TA, Maurer MC	V34I and V34A substitu	Thromb Haemost	English	2003 Apr;89(4):64	2003 Apr
12669087	Kishimoto H, Tani T, Ueta	Paradoxical enhancem	Spinal Cord	English	2003 Apr;41(4):23	2003 Apr
12668312	Topakas E, Stamatis H, Bi	Purification and charac	J Biotechnol	English	2003 Apr 10;102(1	2003 Apr
12667844	Thickbroom GW, Byrnes M	Dual representation of	Neuroimage	English	2003 Mar;18(3):67	2003 Mar
12667838	Sornborger A, Sailstad C,	Spatiotemporal analysi	Neuroimage	English	2003 Mar;18(3):61	2003 Mar
12667181	Hunter RP, Koch DE, Cok	Azithromycin metabolit	J Vet Pharmacol Ther	English	2003 Apr;26(2):11	2003 Apr
12666831	Yildirim O, Buyukbingol Z	Effects of supplementa	Biol Trace Elem Res	English	2002 Winter;90(1	2002 Win
12666034	Bounous DI, Latimer KS,	Acute myeloid leukemia	Vet Clin Pathol	English	1994;24(1):15-18	1994
12666029	Kiehl AR, Schiller CA	A study of manatee leu	Vet Clin Pathol	English	1994;23(2):50-53	1994
12665465	Liu JQ, Sham JS, Shimoda	Hypoxic Constriction a	Am J Physiol Lung Cell	English	2003 Mar 28	2003 Mar.
12665427	Kovarik Z, Radic Z, Berma	Acetylcholinesterase a	Biochem J	English	2003 Mar 31;Pt	2003 Mar.
12665138	Schwan EV, de Scally MP,	Cerebral cysticercosis i	J S Afr Vet Assoc	English	2002 Dec;73(4):21	2002 Dec 📃
12665128	12665128 Jacobson L5 Diagnosis and medical t J 5 Afr Vet Assoc English 2002 Dec;73(4):16 2002 Dec					2002 Dec
12665121	Otto-Knapp R, Jurgovsky	Antioxidative enzymes	Inflamm Res	English	2003 Feb;52(2):51-5	2003 Feb
12664605	Burk RM, Woodward DF,	Ocular hypotensive act	Adv Exp Med Biol	English	2002;507:327-30	2002
1		•				▶₹

Figure 39.1 PubMed/Entrez Search dialog box

Select the database to be searched in the Database drop-down menu.

The section below the drop-down menu is the Query Pane where you enter your query. The pane is organized as a set of nested tables corresponding to nested brackets. It is possible to assign each search term to a database field, such as article title, authors, MeSH terms.

Click the cursor in the blank row of the term text field, enabling the search fields drop-down list at the right end of the row. Select a field to be searched. Click in the blank portion of the row and enter the search keywords, name(s), or topics.

Notes:

- When submitting a query like "cat"[All fields], the NCBI server translates it as "tomography, x-ray computed"[MeSH Terms] OR "cats"[MeSH Terms] OR cat[Text Word] and searches for documents matching this translated query. If a space is to be entered in your text string, be sure and enclose the entire string in quotation marks.
 - If, when you are entering or editing text, you press ENTER by mistake, the query will be submitted. CTRL + ENTER also causes the query to be submitted.

To add a row to enter a new search condition, select **Insert Row** from the shortcut menu, select **Edit > Insert Row**, or press the space bar, and enter new text. In the drop-down menu to the left of the row, select **Or**, **And** or **Not** to qualify the search conditions.

Defining Search Conditions

Before initiating the search, select Edit > Settings, opening the Settings dialog (Figure 39.2).

Settings	<u>×</u>
Common Documents per page 20 = History buffer contains 20 = Save results along with document	Publication date C From Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to C Relative 30 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2003 V to Aug/13/2000 V to Aug/13/2000 V to Aug/13/2000 V to Aug/
	Entrez date From Aug/13/2003 Aug/12/2003 Aug/12/2003 Aug/12/2003 Aug/12/2003 Aug/12/2003
OK	Cancel

Figure 39.2 Settings dialog box

- In the Common section, specify the number of document summaries acceptable per results page and define the History buffer. Check the Save Results... box to save downloaded summaries when you save a query.
- The History buffer contains the last queries and query results. You can move through the history by using Back and Forward buttons on the PubMed/Entrez Search dialog box.
- In the **Publication Date** section, enter publication dates to narrow the search to a certain date range. In the **Entrez date** section, enter acceptable molecule submission dates.

Click **OK** to return to the PubMed/Entrez Search dialog box.

Select Edit > Internet Settings to open the Internet Connection dialog box (Figure 39.3).

Internet Connection	×
C Use Internet Explorer settings	ØK
C Direct connection	Cancel
 Use proxy server 	
Proxy server: Port 80	
Proxy requires authentication	
User:	
Password:	

Figure 39.3 Internet Connection dialog box

Internet Connection options allow you to specify whether or not connection to the Internet should be performed via a proxy server. If you select the Use Internet Explorer settings radio button, Vector NTI will attempt to detect and use your default settings to connect to the Internet. If the default settings detection is not successful, select either Direct connection if you do not use a proxy server or Use proxy server if you use a proxy server. In the case of a proxy server, enter the proxy name or address and port number. If the proxy requires a password, check the Proxy requires authentication box and enter the user name and password. *This facilitates access for the search through a proxy server*.

Click **OK** to return to the PubMed/Entrez Search dialog box.

When you have entered all search conditions, click the **Search** button (*Search*). The search results are displayed in the list pane in the bottom half of the dialog box.

Reviewing Search Results

Article or molecule summaries are listed in the Results Pane. There are several techniques to download the citation or molecule results:

- Double-click on its identification code for the selected object or select multiple objects
- Select Open <Article/Molecule> ID <#> from the shortcut menu associated with the object. DNA and protein database search results open in a Vector NTI Display window. A citation abstract opens in the Citation Viewer.
- Choose Copy from the shortcut menu. The item is downloaded and placed on the Clipboard for pasting into Vector NTI Database Explorer. The object is downloaded.
- Select Export to File from the shortcut menu to download the selected item and places it in a file you specify.
- Drag and drop selected object(s) from the Results Pane into Database Explorer or Windows Explorer folders.

To open multiple search objects, select them from the search results list, and, depending on the object type, drag and drop them into the Database Explorer, or the Citation Viewer windows. Multiple objects open in cascaded multiple instances of the display windows.

If the search was performed against the PubMed database, the shortcut menu associated with a selected search result lists a **Related Articles** option. Select this command to download abstracts related to the selected article. The Query Pane changes to read **Related Articles for Article ID** <#>. In this case, you cannot modify the Query Pane. Actions in the Results Pane are not affected.

Saving Search Results

If you select the **Save** option from the Search dialog box, the only thing that is saved is the set of search parameters for launching future searches, with a .ps6 extension.

Select the object(s), choose **Save Parameters As** and in the dialog box that opens, name the file and its destination. You may want to save results in the Citation folder under Vector NTI program files. To save the molecule or document abstract, open it first in the Molecule Display window or in Citation Viewer and save your object from that location. To open the citation in Citation Viewer, refer to details in the Citation Viewer section, page 634.

Modifying the PubMed/Entrez Display Window

To modify the column display in the results list in this window, open the shortcut menu with the cursor on the column headings and select **Columns**. In the Columns dialog box that opens,

using the forward (\rightarrow) and reverse (\leq) arrows, move column topics to the Selected Columns list for display, or move them back to the Available columns list to remove them from display. The descending order in the **Selected Columns** list corresponds to left to right display in the results pane of the dialog box.

Items listed in the Results Pane columns can be sorted by clicking on a column heading. Click again for reversing the list.

Right-click to the right of all of the buttons on the Rebar (toolbar) to open a popup menu where you can turn on/off text labels and the toolbar itself.

Citation Viewer

This feature of Vector NTI Advance provides a vehicle for displaying and reviewing citation abstracts downloaded by PubMed Search or created manually and stored in the Vector NTI database or local file. Citations can be printed, edited and saved from Citation Viewer.

To open Citation Viewer, select Citation Viewer in the program group or folder where you installed Vector NTI. If opened from Database Explorer, Citation Viewer is empty and must be loaded from other sources, listed below:

From the PubMed/Entrez Search results, or from the Citations Table in Database Explorer, drag and drop citations into Citation Viewer. *It helps if all of your screens are in "Partial Screen Size" to do this.* If you transfer multiple files, all of the abstracts will open in Citation Viewer. You can alternate between references by clicking the **Back** and **Forward** buttons on the toolbar (they resemble the Back and Forward buttons on your Web browser) or you can select from the list of open citations under the Windows menu option.

Opening Citation Viewer

From the Start menu, choose **Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > Citation Viewer**. Alternatively, you can open an individual citation into the Citation Viewer window (Figure 39.4) from the PubMed/Entrez Search display window or from the Citations Table in Database Explorer. Simply double-click the entry in either location to load Citation Viewer. Citation viewer registers its file types, so double-clicking on a .ca6, .cq or .ct file in Windows Explorer will cause Citation Viewer to open displaying that file.

Citation Viewer - [1049541	19: Risk factors for meningioma in adults: a case-control]
Citation Edit View Align	Analyses Assemble Tools Window Help
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	3) 🕼 🔍 🕼 💱 Active pane: 🛜 🗉
C 10192413 C 10192413 C 10192413 Mediae Linkomston Mediae Linkowski Llo Ski2687 Mediae Llo Ski2687 Mediae Llo Ski2687 Mediae Llo Ski2687 Mediae Llo Ski2687 Mediae Llos to reneropose Ski26 Mediae Llos Llos Llos Llos Llos Llos Llos Llos	Image: Service product 29,83(3):299-304 Risk factors for meningioma in adults: a case-control study in northeast China. Hu J, Linte J, Xu T, Zhao X, Guo L, Jia X, Huang G, Bi D, Liu R Department of Epidemiology, Harbin Medical University, Harbin, China. [Mediate] A horpital case-control study of meningioma was conducted in Helongjiang Province in northeast China between September 1989 and December 1996. In included 183 cases of newly diagnosed primary meningioma and 366 individually matched horpital cours of with non-molpials: Case of newly diagnosed primary meningiona and 366 individually matched horpital cours of newly diagnosed primary meningiona and 366 individually matched borgital cours with non-molpials: Case of newly diagnosed primary meningiona and 366 individually matched borgital cours of newly diagnosed primary meningiona and 366 individually matched borgital cours of newly diagnosed primary meningiona and 366 individually matched borgital cours of newly diagnosed primary meningiona and 366 individually matched borgital cours of newly diagnosed primary meningiona and 366 individually matched borgital cours of newly diagnosed primary meningiona and 366 individually matched borgital cours of newly diagnosed primary meningiona and 366 individually matched borgital cours of newly diagnosed primary meningiona and 366 individually matched borgital cours of the constrained in the results of a study of globian in the same population, using immlar methods. The risk of meningiona was positively associated with reported occupational emporter to lead, th, cadman and ioning radiation in both genders. Copyright 1999 Weby-Lisr, Inc. PMD: 0010405419; UI: 99426867 Publication type: JOURNIAL ARTICLE
	1
650Y	

Figure 39.4 Citation Viewer

Elements of Citation Viewer

The Citation Viewer display window shares many of the same features found in other Vector NTI Advance applications:

- The window title bar displays the name of the open object.
- Click the maximize box ()) in the upper right corner on the title bar to maximize the window, filling the entire Vector NTI workspace.
- A display window is divided into two panes: a Text Pane containing folders with descriptions of the citation such as author, source, and public database identification data. The Abstract Pane displays the abstract for the citation.
- A vertical, movable split bar divides the two panes.
- All Vector NTI Advance windows have a Main Menu and toolbars where many different options and operations can be initiated. Most of the toolbar buttons in Citation Viewer are similar to those you have seen in other display windows. Most toolbar buttons have associated tool tips that explain the button function. Hover the cursor over the button to display the tool tip for that button.

Back and forward buttons will bring up the previous or next viewed document if it is still open.

Note: If the citation contains an URL to its full text or abstract in the Internet, a link to that URL will be displayed in Text Pane. Clicking on it causes the default Internet browser to open to the appointed location.

The following feature can be performed in Citation Viewer. Refer to Chapter 3 for details:

- Copying selected data to the clipboard
- Exporting data to external programs
- Printing data
- Modifying the Citation Viewer layout
- Saving data

Remote Database Sources Wizard

The Remote Database Sources Wizard steps you through the process of creating links to remote servers, which enable Vector NTI remote services tools to connect to external databases, such as Entrez and LabShare. Basic links for BLAST and PubMed/Entrez Searches are already created; you do not have to create them. You must create the link to your LabShare Database, however. The Remote Database Sources Wizard assists you in doing so.

Configuring the Internet Connection

Before you can create a link to your LabShare Database, you must configure your Internet connection appropriately so that a proper connection can be made between Vector NTI and your LabShare Database.

To set your Internet connection parameters and configure a path to your LabShare Database, first choose Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > Remote Database Sources Wizard to open the Data Sources (Vector NTI) folder (Figure 39.5).

📵 Data Source	s (Vector NTI)	N	- D ×
File Edit View	Tools Help	43	
] 🗋 🗙 aj	e 🖆 🔳 🔹		
Add Remote Data Source	DCBI		
Ready			

Figure 39.5 Data Sources (Vector NTI) folder

To launch the Internet Connection dialog box, choose **Tools > Internet Settings...** from the menu in the Data Sources (Vector NTI) window (Figure 39.6):

Internet Connection	×
 Use Internet Explorer settings 	OK
C Direct connection	Cancel
C Use proxy server	
Proxy server: Port: 80	
Proxy requires authentication	
User:	
Password:	

Figure 39.6 Internet Connection dialog box

- Use Internet Explorer Settings If a proxy server is not used for accessing your Lab-Share Database server, use this setting.
- Direct Connection If a proxy server is not used for accessing your LabShare Database server and the Use Internet Explorer Settings selection does not configure a connection to your LabShare Database server, use this setting.
- Use Proxy Server If a proxy server is used to access your LabShare Database server, select Use Proxy Server and enter the appropriate information.

After configuring your Internet Connections appropriately, close the Internet Connection dialog box to return to the Data Sources (Vector NTI) folder.

Note: You need only configure your Internet Connection settings once, as long as your Internet connection configuration does not change.

Creating Remote Database Links

Note: Before you create a remote link to your LabShare Database, you must configure your Internet connection, if you have not already done so (see above).

To configure a path to your LabShare Database, in the Data Sources (Vector NTI) folder window, double-click the **Add Remote Data Source** icon to launch the Remote Data Sources Wizard (Figure 39.7):

📴 NewDataSource0 - Remote Data Source Wiza	ırd	×
Select the location of the data server:		
O NCBI Entrez Server	r	
LabShare Server at URL:	Version of server:	2 🗾
http://myserver.com/path/		
Note: LabShare Server URL should include file name. (Example: http://myserver.myd	the directory path and omain.com/path/veryov	the cgi wn.cgi/)
LabShare Server requires authenticat	tion:	
Login:		
Password:		
< Back Next >	Cancel	Help

Figure 39.7 Remote Database Sources Wizard, screen 1 This

Select LabShare Server at URL and type in the path to that server.

Important: The path should EXCLUDE the name of the LabShare cgi script. For example, <u>http://mySer-ver.myDomain/cgi-bin/ve/</u> is a correct path designation, whereas <u>http://myServer.myDomain/cgi-bin/ve/ve-cgi.cgi</u> is not. If you include the name of the cgi script in the path designation, Vector NTI will not be able to connect to the remote database.

If your LabShare server requires a password, check LabShare Server Requires Authentication: and complete the server authentication section. Click the Next > button to continue.

NewDataSource0 - Remote Data Source Wizard	1
Select supported data type(s):	
🔽 DNA/RNA	
✓ Proteins	
Citations	
BLAST Results	
Analyses Results	
You may test the connection to the server using the Test button:	
< Back Next > Cancel Help	

Select the Data Type(s) for this path configuration (Figure 39.8):

Figure 39.8 Remote Database Sources Wizard, screen 2

Important: For the LabShare remote database, all Data Types (Database Tables) are included in a single link configuration. You DO NOT have to configure a separate link for each Data Type, so the choices are pre-selected.

Click the **Test** button to launch the Test URL dialog box. This tests the connection to the Lab-Share Database and ensures that the path setting has been configured correctly. If the connection is successful, objects are downloaded to the Object List Pane in the Test URL dialog box. If the connection is not successful, an error message, such as the following is generated (Figure 39.9):

VNTI prol	cocol error
8	WinInet: failed to resolve server name
	ОК

Figure 39.9 Internet connection error

If you receive an error message upon testing, try one or both of the following:

- Step back through the Remote Database Source Wizard and reconfigure the path (see Figure 39.7 above).
- Launch the Internet Connection dialog box and reconfigure your Internet connection settings (see *Configuring the Internet Connection* above).

Click the **Next >** button to continue. In the next dialog box (Figure 39.10), choose the protocol options that your server supports.

Note: All protocol options are supported for LabShare servers, so all choices are pre-selected.

NewDataSource0 - Remote Data Source Wizard	×
Based on the information you supplied, the URL of this server is:	
VNTI://myserver.com/path/	
Please select the protocol options supported by this server (Only LabShare Servers support SAVE):	
RETRIEVE Support for batch downloads SAVE Support for VNTI archives DIR	
< Back Next > Cancel He	lp

Figure 39.10 Remote Database Sources Wizard, screen 3

- RETRIEVE Enables the ability to download objects from the LabShare Database to the Mini-Exploring window (see Accessing Remote Databases in Vector NTI).
- **SAVE** Enables the ability to save objects to the LabShare Database via the Mini-Exploring window (see Accessing Remote Databases in Vector NTI below).
- **Support for Batch Downloads** Enables batch-downloading capability from a Lab-Share Database into Vector NTI from the Mini-Exploring window (see Accessing Remote Databases in Vector NTI below).
- Support for VNTI Archives Enables the ability to include links to the parent molecules of constructed/designed molecules when transferring constructed/designed molecules to the LabShare Database.

Note: Links to parent molecules are included, not the actual parent molecules.

Click the **Next** > button. Type in an appropriate name for the Data Source (Figure 39.11) and click the **Finish** button to complete the configuration.

NewDataSource0 - Remote Data Source Wizard	×
Choose a name for the new Data Source:	
NewDataSource()	
< Back Finish Cancel Help	

Figure 39.11 Remote Database Sources Wizard, screen 4

A new icon for the newly configured Data Source is added to the Data Sources (Vector NTI) folder.

Close the Data Sources (Vector NTI) folder.

Accessing LabShare Databases in Vector NTI

LabShare Databases can be accessed directly in Vector NTI using the LabShare Mini-Exploring window. You can launch the LabShare Mini-Exploring window from the Vector NTI workspace window by choosing **File > Open** and selecting the **Remote Sources** tab of the Open dialog box (Figure 39.12).

Note: Mini-Exploring window capability is installed in Vector NTI Advance 10 as part of a **Typical** installation. If you do not have a LabShare Database and, therefore, do not want/need Mini-Exploring window capability, when installing Vector NTI, choose the **Custom** installation option and uncheck the **Remote Access Support** checkbox.

)pen	? ×
Molecule Files Database DNA/RNAs Database Proteins Remote Sources	
Data Source: 👰 NewDataSource0 (DNA/RNA)	
	▼ (PG)
Downloading	
Object name:	
Display setup OK	Cancel

Figure 39.12 LabShare Mini-Exploring window

Navigating the Mini-Exploring Window

Initially, the Data Source box shows the LabShare Database Table you have most recently accessed (if any) and the Filter (Subset) box is blank; objects are not yet downloaded to the Object List Pane in the Open dialog box.

There are three ways to download objects from the LabShare Database into the Object List Pane:

- Click the **Go** button () to download the molecules in the Main base of the Table that is currently shown in the Data Source box.
- Choose the Database Table you wish to view from the Data Source drop-down box list (and click the Go button if objects do not automatically load in).
- To download the objects in a particular subset of the Table currently shown in the Data Source box, select that subset from the Filter drop-down box (see the following details regarding subsets shown in the Filter drop-down list).

When the Open dialog box is first opened (before objects are downloaded into the Object List Pane), the Filter drop-down list initially shows the list of subsets you have most recently viewed

(History List), in the order of most recently viewed beginning at the top of the list. The **J** icon next to each subset indicates that you are viewing the History List and not the actual LabShare subset listing (Figure 39.13):

Open	? ×
Molecule Files Database DNA/RNAs Database Proteins Remote 5	iources
Eiter:	- <u>-</u>
Please e vial please e placerial paterit	
× [<u> </u>
Display setup	K <u>C</u> ancel

Figure 39.13 Viewing the History List in the Mini-Exploring window

Note: Because the History List is merely a record of the subsets that have been viewed, it may list subsets that no longer exist in the LabShare Database (subsets that have been deleted since they were last viewed, for example). If such a subset is selected, a corresponding error message is generated.

Once objects are downloaded to the Object List Pane, the Filter drop-down list shows the actual

list of subsets for the LabShare Database Table you are viewing, indicated by the *icon* next to each subset (Figure 39.14):

	🕎 Enterprise DB	- DNA/RNA	· 🖬 ·
Elter:	DNA/RNA M	olecules(MAIN)	· (* 60
Name AACTFM AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771 AAD771	bacteriophag viral RNA plant plant other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate other vertebrate othe	e ale Di GA	* <u>*</u>
LIVE & A EVIDA	JUL 1006	ULUA	-
AAENDI AAESTR	BCL 1007	OLGA	

Figure 39.14 Viewing a LabShare subset

Formatting the Page Size in the Mini-Exploring Window

Objects are downloaded to the Mini-Exploring window one page at a time; the default page size is 100 objects. You can download the next or previous page of objects by pressing CTRL + PAGE DOWN or CTRL + PAGE UP, respectively, on your keyboard or by clicking the DOWN ARROW on the

right side of the (🛅 🗸) button and choosing the commands from the menu (Figure 39.15).

Go to	Ctrl+G
Previous Page	Ctrl+PgUp
Next Page	Ctrl+PgDn
Reload	F5
Stop	Esc

Figure 39.15 Mini-Exploring window paging menu

Use the Go To dialog box, launched by choosing Go To from the menu or by clicking the Go To

(1) button, to download a specific page of objects or to change the number of objects displayed per page. Enter the specified information and click **OK**.

LabShare Subset and Object Selection Options

After you have downloaded data to the Mini-Exploring window, the paging menu changes to include two more commands (Figure 39.16):



Figure 39.16 Subset and Options commands on paging menu

- Subset Allows creation of new, empty subsets.
- Options Launches the Object Check-out Options dialog box where you can set object check-out/check-in parameters (Figure 39.17):

Object selection def	ault settings		
Check out object	ct automatically when op	ened from the	remote data base
Check in object	automatically when say	ed in the remot	e data base

Figure 39.17 Object Check-out Options dialog box

Important:

- If you do NOT check the Check out object automatically when opened from the remote database option, you will NOT be able to save the object back to the LabShare database.
- If you do NOT check the Check in object automatically when saved in the remote database option, the object will NOT be checked in when you save it back to the Lab-

Share database. In this case you must check the object in manually in the LabShare Database window (see the LabShare User's Manual).

Opening Objects from the LabShare Database in Vector NTI

Once the data downloads to the Mini-Explorer window, highlight the desired object (or objects, if you have configured your LabShare path to support batch downloading) and click the **OK** button to open the object(s) in the corresponding Vector NTI application (i.e. DNA/RNA molecules open in Vector NTI; Citations open in Citation Viewer, etc.).

Important: If you want to manipulate an object (analyze, edit, etc.) that you have opened from the Vector NTI LabShare Database in a Vector NTI Advance application window, you must first save the object to your local Vector NTI Database.

Saving Objects to the LabShare Database from Vector NTI

Objects opened in Vector NTI applications can be saved to the LabShare Database directly in the Mini-Exploring window.

To save an opened object, perform the following steps:

- Choose <data type> > Save As from the drop-down menu in the VNTI application (for example, choose File > Save As when saving a DNA/RNA molecule or Citation > Save As when saving a citation) and select the Remote Sources tab in the Save As dialog box.
- 2. Select the LabShare Database Table (Data Source) and/or the desired subset (Filter), if any, to which you want to save the object.
- **Note:** As with the Open dialog box described above, initially the Filter drop-down list in the Save As dialog box shows a History List of most recently viewed subsets, as evidenced by the subset icons. Once a subset has been downloaded into the object list window, the Filter drop-down list shows the list of subsets in the LabShare Database, indicated by the subset icons.

Once you have selected the appropriate Table (Data Source) and subset (Filter), if any, the objects in that Table/subset display in the Object List Pane (Figure 39.18):

iter 🖂	neepise DB • DN	R/TINA	
Name	Object ID	Submitted Bu	· (* 40
ALESBRNA	1768	ADMIN	
A165TM112	1770	ADMIN	
A16STM146	1772	ADMIN	
A165TM167	1774	ADMIN	
2 A16STM177	1776	ADMIN	
A16STM187	1778	ADMIN	
A16STM208	1780	ADMIN	
1416STM210	1782	ADMIN	×
biect name: MyDN	Amolecule		C occity Lood DB

Figure 39.18 Object List for selected subset

- 1. Designate a name for the object you are saving.
- Check cc to Local DB if you want to save the object to both the LabShare and VNTI Local Databases.

- **Note:** The **cc to Local DB** check box is disabled for molecules opened from the Vector NTI Local Database. However, if you have modified a VNTI Local Database molecule, it is saved to the Local Vector NTI Database automatically when you save to the LabShare Database.
 - 3. Click the **OK** button to complete the operation.

GCG Converter

GCG Converter is a tool in Vector NTI Advance that converts sequences in GCG file formats so that they can be imported into the software.

To open this tool, select Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > Utilities > GCG Converter. This opens the GCG to Vector NTI Converter dialog box (Figure 39.19) for importing and converting the GCG files.

GCG to Vector	NTI conver	ter			Σ
Files to Convert			Add	Remove	Bemove al
File Name			F	ile length	Туре
Info	E	dt	Convert selec	ted	Gonvert
Results:					
	0	Current:			
DNA/RNA	Proteins	Total:			
-		1			
					<u>C</u> lose

Figure 39.19 GCG to Vector NTI Converter dialog box

Click the **Add** button, opening a standard Open dialog box where you can browse for your GCG files (Figure 39.20). Select those you want to convert and import into Vector NTI; click **Open**.

Open					? ×
Look jn:	😋 GCGConv	ert Test Files	•	<u>e</u> (<u>s</u>
1_old1.cm	4	🛋 809n830j.unq		🖻 gog	_multipl_rich.gcg
🛛 🔊 1_old11.cr	m4	🔊 dna_multipl.rsf		🖻 gag	_ex_fasta.gcg
🖌 4g6x7b4x.	ung	🛋 Enx2xxvo.ung		🖻 gag	_ex_fasta_p.gcg
🛛 🔊 73vkxez2.	ung	💌 Exfrija0.ung		🖻 gsg	_ex_fasta_p1.gcg
7rpnws6a.	unq	🔊 from_dna.gen		🔊 gsg	_from_pir.gcg
🛛 🛋 Axlg03m3.	ung	🛋 from_dna1.gen		🗟 Khł	nhj3el.ung
•					F
File <u>n</u> ame:					<u>O</u> pen
Files of type:	All Files (*.*)			•	Cancel

Figure 39.20 Open dialog box where you can browse for your GCG files

The files are listed in the GCG Converter list box (Figure 39.21). To convert all of the files to VNTI format, click **Convert All** or select those you wish to convert and click the **Convert Selected** button.

🖁 GCG to Vector NTI co	nverter		_ 🗆 X
Files to Convert:	Add	Remove Selected	Remove All
File Name		File lengt	th Type
451upgsc.gen		1829	9
451updsc.gen		8700	10
451 mirsc.gen		1241	1
Info	Edit	Convert Selected	Convert All
Results:			
	Double-click Exp	: on the result files or olorer window or any	drag & drop them to application Close

Figure 39.21 GCG Converter list box

After the conversion process concludes, symbols appear to the left of each file name indicating the resolution of the conversion process. Molecule types or Errors are also listed in the Type column.

Shortcut menu options for each file listed are dependent upon the file symbol. For instance, you can select **Get Error Information** from the shortcut menu from each of the files showing an error message. You can also choose to remove the file from the list.

Symbol	Interpretation	User Solution
1	Conversion was suc- cessful	N/A
°a ₽	Sequence type could not be discerned	In sc menu, select Set Type . In the dialog box, in drop-down menu select DNA or Protein and click OK .
လ္ခ္မ	Source file indicates one sequence type, but a wrong symbol is found in the sequence; posi- tion is specified	Select Open in Text Editor (Notepad or other you have specified. See Figure 39.22.). Verify and edit the error. Re-convert.
0 ***	Source file is empty or an error was detected in reading the first line in the file	Select Open in Text Editor (Notepad or other you have specified). Correct source file problem.
<u> </u>	Sequence cannot be detected in the source file	Select Open in Text Editor (Notepad or other you have specified) to verify. Enter sequence or copy and paste from another file.

Table 39.1 Symbols indicating the resolution of the conversion process

🛙 056w958q.ung - Notepad
File Edit Search Help
g2622777WKEYU0RDS .ESOURCE Nethanobacterium thermoautotrophicum. ORGANI: 751mBRFFREMCE 751mBRFFREMCE 2 (bases 1 to 10723) AUTHONS Snith, P.R. TITLE Direct Submissi /translation="WEIAPAQIIEDSEDMAINTOFECHARM" 10527572, p()=0.00016, pid=14%" /codon_start=10 part of HTM16510 (conserved protein - paralog.fam. 6); 86% ID to inter gene complement(20823047)0 /note=""312 bp inverted repeat includes part of HTM16530" (cr /note=""312 bp inverted repeat includes part of HTM16530" (cr
t="anthranilate synthase component I" /db_xref="PID:g2622783"
copnan Diosynthesis ;=
/product="5'-phosphoribosyl anthramilate isomerase" /dw_xref="PID:g262787" /translation="HIHDGKFGKYGGIF /codon_start=10 /product="anthramilate phosphoribosyltransfer; Type: N Check: 593
x x

Figure 39.22 Opening the source file in a Text Editor (such as Notepad)

Other GCG Converter Operations

- Sort the columns by File Name, File Length or Type. Click on the column heading; repeat the click to reverse the sort.
- Click the Remove Selected or Remove All to remove all files from the list.
- Click the **Info** button, opening an Information box displaying the nucleotide content of the DNA molecule.
- Click the Edit button to open the text editor, where you can review or edit the file.

Importing into Vector NTI Database Explorer

In the Results section of the dialog box, the number of each type of molecule is displayed beneath the type symbols, DNA and Protein (Figure 39.23). To import converted molecules into Vector NTI, select the molecule file(s) in the Files to Convert section and double-click on the corresponding file type button in the Results section.

		Fi	le length	Туре	
			620	Errorll	
			184	DNA/RNA	
			1022	Error!!	
			176	Error!!	
			51991	DNA/RNA	- 8
					١Ì
	<u>D</u> orrve	n selecti		Convert	
Current:					
Totat					
ag & drop th	em to B	Explorer v	window or	any applicat	ion
	Current: Totat	Current: Total: ag & drop them to 1	Current: Totat ag & drop them to Explorer v	Current: Total:	Current: Totat

Figure 39.23 Importing into Vector NTI Database Explorer

If you have selected more than one molecule to be imported, a Multiple Entry dialog box opens listed the molecules (Figure 39.24).

М	ultiple Entry File	;	? ×
	Name	Description	Size 🔺
	🖾 LAMBDA		4850
	区 100636	Genome of the bacteriophage lambda (Stylovi	4850
	፼ A2K2_SEQ		42
	🖾 GILL48_SEQ		48
	🛤 gsg_ex_fas		6647
	🔛 gsg_ex_fas		6647
	🔛 gsg_ex_fas		6647
	🔛 Khhhj3el_u		950 -1
	•		` •
		Import Open C	ancel

Figure 39.24 Multiple Entry dialog box

Click **Import** to import them into the Vector NTI database. In the dialog box that opens, specify the subset where they will be placed. You might want to create a new subset labeled **Converted** *from GCG*.

If you click the **Open** button, molecule display windows will be opened and tiled for each of the molecules on the list. You may see a message saying that not all of the restriction sites, and motifs can be opened for some of them due to space limitations.

Matrix Editor

All algorithms designed to evaluate pairwise sequence alignment are based on systems which rank aligned residues. Amino acids that are identical or similar in alignment score higher than those less similar. Matrices generated with these assigned scores are used to detect similarities between differing sequences. The most common of many different scoring systems are based on substitutions of amino acids in related proteins.

PAM and BLOSUM substitution matrices are objects stored in the Vector NTI Matrices folder. Customized matrices may also be devised and stored in Vector NTI for shared or private use. Global alignments of closely related sequences are used to derive the PAM matrices. Scores are based on extrapolated evolutionary differences between amino acids. The greater the numbers, the greater the evolutionary divergence. (Dayhoff et al. 1978) BLOSUM matrices are calculated from local, ungapped alignments of distantly related sequences. The matrix scores represent the minimum percent identity of the blocks used to construct the matrix; greater numbers represent lesser distances.(Henikoff and Henikoff 1993).

Matrix Editor allows inspection of and editing of matrices.

Matrices are used in two Vector NTI Advance applications, AlignX and AlignX Blocks. Matrices can be viewed in either program in the Alignment Setup dialog box, but editing can only take place in Matrix Editor.
To open the Matrix Editor, select **Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > Utilities > Matrix Editor**. The Matrix Editor that opens is initially empty (Figure 39.25).

Matrix Editor		
Score Matrix Stats-T	able	
Name:	Order:	
Load matrix Save	e matrix Clear matrix	Close

Figure 39.25 Matrix Editor (initially empty)

Click the **Load Matrix** button to open the Matrices folder (Figure 39.26). Select the matrix you wish to edit/review and click **Open**.

Load Matrix				? ×
Look in:	Matrices	•	+ 🗈 💣 🎟	•
History Desktop My Documents My Computer	BLOSUM100.txt IP PAM10.txt BLOSUM45.txt IP PAM20.txt BLOSUM45.txt IP PAM40.txt ID ENTITY.txt IP PAM50.txt ID ENTITY.txt IP PAM50.txt IMATCH.txt IP sequedment.txt			
	File name:		•	Open
My Network P	Files of type: Text files(*.txt)		•	Cancel

Figure 39.26 Matrices folder

💣 M	Matrix Editor																							
Sc	ore N	d atri	x 9	Stats	-Tab	ole																		
Nan	Name: BLOSUM62 Order: ARNDCQEGHILKMFPSTWYVBZX*																							
	$[0]_{i,j}$	Α	R	N	D	С	Q	Е	G	Н	1	L	K	М	F	Ρ	S	Т	W	Y	V	В	Z	•
	A	4	-1	-2	-2	0	-1	-1	0	-2	-1	-1	-1	-1	-2	-1	1	0	-3	-2	0	-2	-1	
	R	-1	5	0	-2	-3	1	0	-2	0	-3	-2	2	-1	-3	-2	-1	-1	-3	-2	-3	-1	0	
	N	-2	0	6	1	-3	0	0	0	1	-3	-3	0	-2	-3	-2	1	0	-4	-2	-3	3	0	
	D	-2	-2	1	6	-3	0	2	-1	-1	-3	-4	-1	-3	-3	-1	0	-1	-4	-3	-3	4	1	
	С	0	-3	-3	-3	9	-3	-4	-3	-3	-1	-1	-3	-1	-2	-3	-1	-1	-2	-2	-1	-3	-3	
	Q	-1	1	0	0	-3	5	2	-2	0	-3	-2	1	0	-3	-1	0	-1	-2	-1	-2	0	3	
	E	-1	0	0	2	-4	2	5	-2	0	-3	-3	1	-2	-3	-1	0	-1	-3	-2	-2	1	4	
	G	0	-2	0	-1	-3	-2	-2	6	-2	-4	-4	-2	-3	-3	-2	0	-2	-2	-3	-3	-1	-2	
	Н	-2	0	1	-1	-3	0	0	-2	8	-3	-3	-1	-2	-1	-2	-1	-2	-2	2	-3	0	0	
	сĿ,	-1	-3	-3	-3	-1	-3	-3	-4	-3	4	2	-3	1	0	-3	-2	-1	-3	-1	3	-3	-3	
	L	-1	-2	-3	-4	-1	-2	-3	-4	-3	2	4	-2	2	0	-3	-2	-1	-2	-1	1	-4	-3	
	K	-1	2	0	-1	-3	1	1	-2	-1	-3	-2	5	-1	-3	-1	0	-1	-3	-2	-2	0	1	-
H	1	664	/24		• •	I	•													19.19.19.9 			F	
Loa	ad m	atrix.		Sa	ven	natrix	·	C	lear	mat	rix											Clo	ise	

Figure 39.27 Matrix Editor (loaded)

The Matrix Editor (Figure 39.27) consists of two tabs: Score Matrix and Stats-Table.

The **Score Matrix** tab displays the name and order of the matrix residues. Use the scroll bars to view the entire matrix. The arrow buttons in the lower left of the Editor can be used to move the cursor vertically through the left-most column. To edit a cell, highlight a value and enter the new value (Figure 39.28).

0	0	1	-3
2	-1	-1	-3
-4	-2	-3	-1
2	-2	0	-3
5	-2	0	-3

Figure 39.28 Editing a matrix cell

The **Save Matrix** button is enabled only after you modify the name in the Name text box. This is to prevent any of the default matrices in Vector NTI from being altered.

Click the Clear Matrix button to remove the currently displayed matrix from the Editor.

The **Stats-Table** tab displays the Lambda and Kappa parameters used to calculate the statistical significance of high scoring segments or subalignments. On this tab, you can edit values in the same way you do on the Score Matrix tab. To save the edited matrix, you must return to the Score Matrix tab and modify the name, thus enabling the **Save Matrix** button. In the dialog box that opens, specify the file for storing the matrix and click the **Save** button.

Oligo Importer

You can import oligo lists into the Vector NTI database using the Oligo Importer utility. The oligo list to be imported must be in one of three file formats for use with the Oligo Importer utility:

- Comma delimited format (.csv format)
- Tab delimited format
- Semicolon delimited format

The Oligo Importer utility will recognize three fields from the oligo list file:

- Oligo Name
- Oligo Sequence
- Oligo Description

The following is an example of an oligo list saved in .csv format from MS Excel and opened in Notepad for viewing (Figure 39.29):

🛃 oligosCommaDelimitedFile.cs 💶 🗖 🗙
File Edit Format Help
Oligo Name,Sequence
Oligo 2.tatcacgagtat
Oligo 3,ggccggttaagg
-
I F

Figure 39.29 Oligo list saved in .csv format from MS Excel and opened in Notepad

There are two steps in the oligo list import process:

• Step 1: Open the file in the Oligo Import (.scv file) utility and convert it to a VNTI oligo archive file.

• Step 2: Import the oligo archive file into the VNTI Database.

To import an oligo list file in comma, tab or semicolon delimited format, launch the Oligo Import utility by choosing **Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Suite 10 > Utilities > Oligo Import**.

The Oligo Import dialog box opens. Click the **Open** button in the upper right corner of the Oligo Import dialog box. In the Open File dialog box, locate the file you want to import, select it and click the **Open** button. The file, if in one of the accepted formats, opens in the Oligo Import dialog box (Figure 39.30):

t 2. 9	source file and click "O he source file Select Delimiter	, ciick the open button selec K'' button. You can also Drag i	and Drop Open
o	Semicolon	 Comma 	© Tab
3. C	Define fields for the des	cription, name and sequence of	of oligos and strings for imp
1	Undefined	Undefined	Undefined
_	Oligo Name	Sequence	
	Oligo 1	ttaaccggtt	
	Oligo 2	tatcacgagtat	
	Oligo 3	ggccggttaagg	
	Import		Select All
_	I		
au	19		
Re	sults		
	4. To open th	ne archive double click. You ca	an also

Figure 39.30 Oligo Import dialog box

Select the delimiter type, if not already pre-selected. Press the column-heading bar over each data column and define the Name, Sequence and Description columns by choosing from the drop down list. All three columns MUST be defined even if they contain no data. For example, in the sample oligo file above, no description data exists, so the description column in the Oligo Importer contains no data, yet its column heading still must be defined or the file conversion cannot proceed.

Highlight the oligo rows for those oligos you wish to import (do not select rows that contain heading labels, if any). Click the **Import** button.

•	•
Import	Select All
Ready	
4. To open the archive double click. You can also drag and drop to save archive in the desktop windo	w
or Vector NTI DB Explorer.	Close

Figure 39.31 The archive icon indicates successful file conversion

If successful, the file is converted to a VNTI oligo archive file type and an icon for the archive file is displayed on the lower portion of the Oligo Import dialog box (Figure 39.31).

Double clicking on the archive icon opens the VNTI Database Explorer window. You can import the oligo archive into VNTI by dragging and dropping the icon from the Oligo Import dialog box onto the desired oligo subset in the Exploring Local VNTI Database window.

You can save the oligo archive file to your hard drive by dragging and dropping to the Desktop or to another location in Windows Explorer.

License Manager

Once you have installed Vector NTI Advance 10, you will need to license the application to be able to use it.

To satisfy the needs of users in different industrial, scientific or educational environments, Invitrogen has designed three types of Vector NTI licenses, as well as a Demo Mode option. These are all administered through the License Manager.

- Static License: Purchased by one user for installation on one computer
- Dynamic License (DLS): A license that is installed on a server and issued by that server to client Vector Advance computers. DLS licenses are shared by a specified number of users or "seats," with the number of users at any one time being limited to the number of "licenses" specified in the contract.
- Trial License: Allotted to a potential purchaser of Vector NTI software for a specified number of days, during which the user can review and use the software within certain limits.
- **Demo Mode**: When unlicensed, Vector applications operate in Demo Mode for the purpose of demonstrating the basic features of the software. Some functionality is disabled in Demo Mode.

When you open the Vector NTI Advance software, a checkmark icon, such as this ([]]), at the bottom right corner on the Status Bar shows the current license status. Pause the cursor arrow over the button, and a pop-up label displays the license status.

- Green checkmark = active Static License
- Green, *blinking* checkmark = active Trial or Dynamic License
- Red, *blinking* X = the application is not licensed; running in Demo mode.

License Manager does not open automatically when you install Vector Advance on your computer. You must open License Manager manually. To open License Manager, select it from the **Start** menu: **Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Advance > License Manager** or click **Help > License** in the Database Explorer or a Vector NTI viewer window once you have opened it.

Launching License Manager

License Manager does not open automatically when you install Vector Advance on your computer. You must open License Manager manually. To open License Manager, select it from the Start menu: Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI 9 > License Manager or click Help > License or License Manager in any Vector NTI Advance viewer once you have opened it.

License Manager Dialog Box

The License Manager consists of three tabs, the **Contact Us** tab, the **Personal** tab, and the **Applications** tab.

Contact Us Tab

The License Manager opens by default to the Contact Us tab (Figure 39.32). This tab summarizes your Vector software licensing agreement. Additionally, it provides information for upgrading your Vector application license and contacting Invitrogen.

📴 License Manage	er	×
Contact Us Pers	onal Applications	
Use of this softw InforMax End Us found by selectin	are is subject to the terms and conditions of the er License Agreement. A copy of the agreement can be ig Start > Programs > Informax > License Agreement.	
You may order a programs via fax, number, shipping	license upgrade for one or all of the component , email or phone. Simply send us your P.O. or credit card , and billing addresses, fax and phone numbers to:	
Phone: In the U.S. International:	800-357-3114 240-379-4000	
Fax:	240-379-4098	
Email:	sales@informaxinc.com	-
	Print	
	Close	

Figure 39.32 License Manager (Contact Us tab)

Personal Tab

The Personal tab (Figure 39.33) provides text boxes for entering personal information. Once entered on this tab, when you click your license choice on the Applications tab, your entries are automatically entered on the license application.

5	License Manager		×
	Contact Us Person	al Applications	
	Name:	Josh Brown	
	Organization:	DotCom	
	Phone number:	240-846-3398	
	E-mail address:	Lbrown@dotcom.com	
			Close

Figure 39.33 License Manager (Personal tab)

Applications Tab

The **Applications** tab (Figure 39.34) indicates the type of License currently in effect for each Vector NTI Advance application, as well as for Vector Xpression and PathBlazer. If you have Vector software with a current license, the contract number displays in a cell to the right of the

corresponding application. For applications for which there is no current license, a drop-down menu displays in the cell to the right of the corresponding application.

🤄 License Manager		×
Contact Us Personal A	pplications	
Applications		
Vector NTI	Demo mode 💌 💌	
AlignX	Corporate Static License v.9	14
BioAnnotator	Demo mode	
ContigExpress	Demo mode	
GenomBench	Corporate Static License v.9	14
Vector Xpression	Personal Static License v.3	98777
Vector PathBlazer	Personal Static License v.2	98777
	Static Dynamic	Trial
		Close

Figure 39.34 License Manager (Applications tab)

- For a new installation or update of a previously unlicensed installation, License Manager opens in Demo mode for all applications.
- For Static, Dynamic and Trial licenses, if you are not licensing the entire software package using the same type of license, click in the license-type text box of the application for which you wish to specify a license. Click the down-arrow to extend the drop-down menu and select the appropriate license type. (Demo mode is the default selection.)
- **Note:** If your active license type varies for different applications, this dialog box may have a combination of rows with drop-down menus and rows displaying contract numbers.

Click the button appropriate for the license type you want to register. Each option is described in the following sections.

Static License Dialog Box

Static licenses can be obtained in either a personal or a corporate mode. To configure a static license, click the **Static** button at the bottom of the **Applications** tab (Figure 39.34). This opens the Static License dialog box (Figure 39.35).

Static License	×
Name:	Josh Brown
Organization:	DotCom
Phone number:	240-846-3398
E-mail address:	i_brown@dotcom.com
License #:	
Hardware ID:	2-2610-17C4F
Key:	
Key To g	is needed only if you do not have Internet connectivity. get key, contact Tech Support with License # and Hardware ID.
	Apply

Figure 39.35 Static License dialog box

For either type of static license, enter your name, organization, phone number and email address in the appropriate fields. This sets the user information in Vector NTI Advance.

Note: If you already entered your personal information on the **Personal** tab, it should appear here when you open this dialog box.

In the **License #** field, enter your Vector NTI Advance 10 static license number provided in the e-mail you received if you downloaded the software from the Invitrogen website, or in the letter that accompanied your CD ROM and/or manual.

• **Personal Static License:** You must have an internet connection for this step. Click the **Apply** button. The registration Key is returned by the TCP/IP protocol right after you press the **Apply** button, and it will be applied automatically.

If the registration fails because of a missing connection to the Invitrogen licensing server, an appropriate message immediately displays. In such a case, you can contact Invitrogen Customer Support or Sales, providing them your computer's hardware ID and your license number.

Once you receive the registration key, enter the key in the **Key** text box of the Static License dialog box. Make sure the License Number is entered appropriately, and click **Apply**. If the Key matches your license number and computer hardware ID, the license is registered.

• **Corporate Static License:** No internet connection is needed nor is a Registration Key required. The License Manager on your client computer validates the Corporate License number; if it is valid, then your software is registered.

Once you receive the registration key, enter the key in the **Key** text box of the Static License dialog box. Make sure the License Number is entered appropriately, and click **Apply**. If the Key matches your license number and computer hardware ID, the license is registered. No connection to the Internet is required in this case.

- Notes:
- Once you have applied your static license, notice that the **Applications** tab reflects your static license status.
 - If you want to reset your personal static license, (you cannot re-set a corporate static license) type Unregister in the License Number field and click Apply. You will be warned that you are trying to reset your static license and asked if you want to continue. If you answer Yes, the application will reset your license and will send proof of this operation to the Invitrogen server. If the connection to the server fails, you will receive notice of this.

Dynamic License Dialog Box

Technically, a Dynamic License is not a "license" mode, but registers permission to work in a shared DLS environment in license mode. To configure your Dynamic license, click the

Dynamic button at the bottom of the **Applications** tab (Figure 39.34). This opens the Dynamic License dialog box (Figure 39.36):

T	ial License		x
	Name:	Josh Brown	
	Organization:	DotCom	
	Phone number:	240-846-3398	
	E-mail address:	Lbrown@dotcom.com For a free trial of applications, please e-mail your Hardware ID#, Company Name, and Address to trial@informaxinc.com	
		http://trial.informaxinc.com/vntitrial/vntitrial.cgi Default URL	
	Internet Connect	tion Settings Set for all applications Test Connection	
		Apply Cancel	

Figure 39.36 Dynamic License dialog box

- 1. Enter your name, organization, phone number and email address in the appropriate fields. This sets the user information in Vector NTI Advance 10.
- **Note:** If you already entered your personal information on the **Personal** tab, it should appear here when you open this dialog box.
 - In the URL of DLS text box, enter the DLS server URL supplied by the DLS administrator at your site. If your DLS server requires a password, make sure the authentication settings are filled in appropriately.
 - Press the Internet Connection Settings button to configure your connection settings and to enter server proxy information, if a firewall is used at your site. Refer to the following section, Internet Connection Settings.
 - 4. Press the **Test Connection** button to review the status of your connection. Refer to *Testing the License Server Connection* on this page.
 - 5. Once you have configured the **Dynamic License** dialog box parameters, to set all Vector applications to Dynamic License, press the **Set For All Applications** button. Once you do this, when you close this dialog box, the Applications tab now shows Dynamic License for all applications.
- **Note:** When you set Dynamic licenses for all applications, this operation only applies for those applications for which you do not have a Static License.

Press the **Apply** button to execute the dynamic license configuration.

Internet Connection Settings

For a Dynamic License, press the **Internet Connection Settings** button in the Dynamic License Server Connection dialog box. This opens the Internet Settings dialog box where you can alter your proxy settings (Figure 39.37):

Internet settings for trial license	×
G Use Internet Explorer settings	OK
C Direct connection	Cancel
C Use proxy server	
Proxy server: Port: 80]
Proxy requires authentication	
User:	
Password:	

Figure 39.37 Internet Settings dialog box

The Internet Settings dialog box allows you to set your connection parameters. If the **Use Internet Explorer settings** button is selected, License Manager will attempt to make the connection using your default settings. If default detection is not successful, you can either choose the **Direct connection** button if you do not have a proxy or choose the **Use proxy server** button and specify the proxy name, port and password information.

Press the **OK** button to return to the Dynamic License Server Connection Tester dialog box.See the Internet Connection Settings section on page 655 for more information.

Testing the License Server Connection

In the Dynamic License dialog box, press the **Test Connection** button to review the status of your connection. This opens the Server Connection Tester dialog box (Figure 39.38).

🛱 Dynamic Licenses server connection tester		×
License Server URL (Ask your administrator for details) http://trial.informaxinc.com/vntitrial/vntitrial.cgi Use DLS authorization (if applicable) User name: Josh Brown Password: second	Connection diagnostics Connection OK VectorNTI Trial License Server version 1.2 (Apr. 7 2003) No licenses available Connection OK	A
Internet Connection Settings		
	Connect Clear Close	;

Figure 39.38 Dynamic License Server Connection Tester dialog box

The status of the connection displays in the right-hand panel.

- If the server requires a password, it must be entered into the corresponding text box in this dialog box.
- If you want to alter your proxy settings, press the Internet Connection Settings button (see next section).
- Once the settings are reconfigured, press the Connect button to test the connection using the new settings.

Once you have configured the **Dynamic License** dialog box parameters, to set all Vector applications to Dynamic License, press the **Set For All Applications** button. Once you do this, when you close this dialog box, the Applications tab now shows Dynamic License for all applications. **Note:** When you set Dynamic licenses for all applications, this operation only applies for those applications for which you do not have a Static License.

Press the **Apply** button to execute the dynamic license configuration.

Trial License Dialog Box

To configure a trial license, click the **Trial** button at the bottom of the **Applications** tab of License Manager (Figure 39.34). This opens the Trial License dialog box (Figure 39.39):

Trial license		X
	To obtain a free Trial License, please email your contact information to bioinfotrial@invitrogen.com.	
Trial license		
	Apply Cancel	

Figure 39.39 Trial License dialog box in License Manager

As described in the Trial License dialog box, you must generate an e-mail addressed to <u>bioinfo-trial@invitrogen.com</u> and include your name, the name of your organization, phone number, and email address.

Notes:

- The e-mail will not be generated automatically from this dialog box.
 - You will receive a trial license number in response from an Invitrogen contact person. Return to this dialog box and enter the trial license number in the text box. Click the **Apply** button to complete the trial license registration.

When you set Trial Licenses for all applications, this operation only applies for those applications for which you do not have a Static License.

Vector NTI System Information

The Vector NTI System Information application collects data about Vector NTI and the system on which Vector NTI is installed and consolidates this information into one file. The System Information file is helpful in the diagnosis and resolution of system-related Vector NTI problems. In such cases, the Invitrogen Customer Support team may request that you run the Vector NTI System Information utility and e-mail them the resulting file.

The Vector NTI System Information utility program's file name is *vntisysinfo.exe* and it is located in the Vector NTI Suite 10 folder on your hard drive. To run the utility, navigate to the Vector NTI Suite 10 folder and double-click the *vntisysinfo.exe* application in the Vector NTI program files on your hard drive. The Vector NTI System Information window displays (Figure 39.40):



Figure 39.40 Vector NTI System Information window

Click the **Collect Info** button to initiate the system information gathering process. The Settings dialog box displays (Figure 39.41), allowing you to select the categories of information the Vector NTI System Information utility gathers:

Settings 🛛 🔀
Always include this information
S and Computer
Bunning Applications
Vector NTI Boot Directories
Sustem DLL Versions
Test For DNA/RNA Database Table
Test For Protein Database Table
Vector NTI EXE and DLL Versions
Vector NTI Directory Structure and Files
MAPI32.DLL Version
Software Registry Information
Shell Registry Information
Internet Options
Checking Connection
Printer
Video Mode
🗖 OpenGL
O Required O Recommended O All
Proceed Cancel

Figure 39.41 Vector NTI System Information Settings dialog box

You can choose from three preset data gathering selection options:

- **Required** the minimum required system information is gathered.
- Recommended the minimum required information is gathered along with additional system information that is often useful.
- All gathers system information in all listed categories.

You can also select or deselect individual categories manually by clicking the checkbox next to the category.

Once you have configured the Settings appropriately, click the **Proceed** button to begin system data collection. When the utility has completed collecting the system data, a data report appears in the Vector NTI System Information dialog box (Figure 39.42):



Figure 39.42 Vector NTI System Information showing collected system data report

Expand the folders to show all the collected data and click the **Copy All** button to copy the report to the clipboard for pasting into another document or press the **Send** button to open your

e-mail program so you can send the Vector NTI System Information report to Invitrogen Customer Support (<u>bioinfotrial@invitrogen.com</u>).

A P P E N D I X



INVITROGEN CUSTOMER SUPPORT AND WEB SITE

Information

As you use Vector NTI Advance 10, if your questions are not answered in the *Vector NTI* Advance 10 User's Manual, you may find it helpful to contact Invitrogen Customer Support. You can also refer to the Invitrogen Web site for frequently updated information regarding your Vector NTI Advance 10.

Invitrogen Technical Support

Invitrogen's free technical support for Vector NTI software is available exclusively through the web. For more information, check out the eSupport section of the Vector NTI user community at http://www.invitrogen.com/vectorNTIcommunity.

To obtain personalized technical support by telephone or email, you must have an annual support contract. Academic and government users may purchase an Academic Vector NTI Support Contract through the User Community. Commercial users may purchase an Advanced Support Contract by contacting Invitrogen at <u>bioinfosales@invitrogen.com</u> (for the Americas) or <u>eurobioinfoorders@invitrogen.com</u> (for European/Middle Eastern/African/Asian Pacific customers).

For paid support, use the following contacts:

United States

Phone: 240-379-4240 or 877-357-3114 (Toll-free, U.S.) E-mail: <u>bioinfosupport@invitrogen.com</u>

Europe, Middle East, Africa, Asian Pacific

Phone: +44 (0) 141 814 6350 Email: <u>eurobioinfosupport@invitrogen.com</u>

The Invitrogen Technical Support team may request that you run the Vector NTI System Information utility and email them the resulting file. Vector NTI System Information is a utility application, which gathers data about the system on which Vector NTI is installed and consolidates that information into one file. The system information file is helpful in the diagnosis and resolution of system-related Vector NTI problems.

Invitrogen Web Site

Click the Invitrogen toolbar button (

site, <u>www.invitrogen.com</u>.

A P P E N D I X B REFERENCES

3D-Mol

Connolly Surface Calculation

- M.L. Connolly. Solvent-accessible surfaces of proteins and nucleic acids. Science, 221(4612):709-713, 1983.
- M.L. Connolly. Analytical molecular surface calculation. Journal of Applied Crystallography,16:548-558, 1983.
- M.L. Connolly. Molecular surface triangulation. Journal of Applied Crystallography, 18:499-505, 1985.
- M.L. Connolly. Master's thesis. University of California at Berkeley, Berkeley, USA, 1981.

Varshney Surface Calculation

- Varshney, A., F. P. Brooks and W. V. Wright (1994). Computing smooth molecular surfaces. IEEE Comp. Graph. Appl. 14: 19-25.
- Amitabh Varshney, Frederick P. Brooks, Jr, William V. Wright. Interactive Visualization of Weighted Three-dimensional Alpha Hulls. Department of Computer Science, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill, Chapel Hill, NC 27599-3175.
- Dissertation of Amitabh Varshney. Hierarchical Geometric Approximations. (Under the direction of Professor Frederick P. Brooks, Jr.)

AlignX

Basic Alignment Algorithms

Multiple Alignment

The alignment is created using the Clustal W algorithm (Nucleic Acid Research, 22 (22): 4673-4680, 1994). Briefly, a crude similarity between all pairs of sequences is calculated, called a "Parities alignment". These scores are then used to calculate a "guide tree" or dendrogram,

which tells the multiple alignment stage the order in which to align the sequences for the final multiple alignment. Having calculated the dendrogram, the sequences are aligned in larger and larger groups until the entire sequences are incorporated in the final alignment.

In the AlignX modified Clustal W algorithm, the user designates the scoring matrix used by the algorithm rather than the algorithm making the choice as is done in a traditional Clustal W alignment. (Saul B. Needleman and Christian D. Wunsch. A General Method Applicable to the Search for Similarities in the Amino Acid Sequence of two proteins. Mol. Biol. (1970) 48, 443-453.)

Profile Alignment

The term "profile alignment" describes the alignment of 2 alignments. The method is a simple extension of the profile method of Gribskov, et. al. (Gribskov, M.; McLachlan, A.D. and Eisenberg, D. (1987) Profile analysis: detection of distantly related proteins. PNAS USA 84, 4355-4358) for aligning a sequence with an alignment.

Substitution Matrices

PAM

Dayhoff, M.O., Schwartz, R.M., and Orcutt, B.C. (1978). A model of evolutionary change in proteins. In Atlas of Protein Sequence and Structure, M.O. Dayhoff, ed. (Washington, DC:National Biomedical Research Foundation), 345-352.

BLOSUM

Henikoff, S., and Henikoff, J.G. (1993). Performance evaluation of amino acid substitution matrices. Proteins 17, 49-61.

Phylogenetic Tree

Phylogenetic tree calculation is based on a sequence distance method and utilizes the Neighbor Joining (NJ) algorithm of Saitou and Nei (Saitou, N.; and Nei, M. (1987). The neighbor-joining method: a new method for reconstructing phylogenetic trees. MolBiol.Evol. 4, 406-425).

Alignments and Similarity

- Waterman M.S. Computer analysis of nucleic acid sequences. Methods Enzmol. 1988; 164: 765-93.
- Altschul S.F. Amino acid substitution matrices from an information theoretic perspective. J Mol Biol. 1991 Jun 5; 219(3): 555-65. PMID: 2051488.

BioAnnotator

DNA/RNA Analyses Citations

- Susan M. Freier et al. PNAS 83, 9373-9377 Improved free-energy parameters for predictions of RNA duplex stability.
- Kenneth J. Breslauer et al. PNAS 83, 3746-3750 Predicting DNA duplex stability from the base sequence.
- Francis H. Martin and Miguel M. Castro. Nuc. Acids. Res. 13, 8927-8938 Base pairing involving deoxyinosine: implications for probe design.
- Duncan R. Groebe and Olke C. Uhlenbeck. Nuc. Acids Res. 16, 11725-11735 Characterization of RNA hairpin loop stability.

Protein Analyses (ProtScale Analyses)

- Bairoch A. Amino acid composition (%) in the SWISS-PROT Protein Sequence data bank. Release notes for SWISS-PROT release 35 - September 1997.
- Zimmerman J.M., Eliezer N., Simha R. Bulkiness. J. Theor. Biol. 21:170-201(1968).
- Fauchere J.-L., Pliska V.E. Eur. J. Hydrophobicity scale (pi-r). Med. Chem. 18:369-375(1983).

Properties Plots

- Aboderin A.A. (1971). Mobilities of amino acids on chromatography paper (RF). Int. J. Biochem. 2, 537-544.
- Abraham, D.J., and Leo, A.J. (1987). Hydrophobicity (delta G1/2 cal). Proteins: Structure, Function and Genetics 2,130-152.
- Altschul, S. F., Boguski, M.S., Gish, W. and Wootton, J. C. (1994). Sequence Complexity. Native Genetics. Vol. 6.
- Bhaskaran R., and Ponnuswamy, P.K. (1988). Average flexibility index. Int. J. Pept. Protein. Res. 32, 242-255.
- Browne, C.A., Bennett, H.P.J., and Solomon, S. (1982). Retention coefficient in HFBA. Anal. Biochem. 124, 201-208.
- Browne, C.A., Bennett, H.P.J., and Solomon, S. (1982). Retention coefficient in TFA. Anal. Biochem. 124, 201-208.
- Bull, H.B., and Breese, K., (1974). Hydrophobicity (free energy of transfer to surface in kcal/mole). Arch. Biochem. Biophys 161, 665-670.
- Chothia, C. (1976). Proportion of residues 95% buried (in 12 proteins). J. Mol. Biol. 105, 1-14.
- Chou, P.Y., and Fasman, G.D. (1978). Conformational parameter for alpha helix (computed from 29 proteins). Adv. Enzym. 47, 45-148.
- Chou, P.Y., and Fasman G.D. (1978). Conformational parameter for beta-sheet (computed from 29 proteins). Adv. Enzym. 47, 45-148.
- Chou, P.Y., and Fasman, G.D. (1978). Conformational parameter for beta-turn (computed from 29 proteins). Adv. Enzym. 47, 45-148.
- Cowan, R., and Whittaker R.G. (1990). Hydrophobicity indices at ph 3.4 determined by HPLC. Peptide Research 3, 75-80.
- Cowan, R., and Whittaker, R.G. (1990). Hydrophobicity indices @ pH 7.5 determined by HPLC. Peptide Res. 3, 75-80.
- Cowan, R., and Whittaker, R.G. Hydrophilicity indices @ pH 3.4 determined by HPLC. Peptide Research 3, 75-80.
- Dayhoff, M.O., Schwartz R.M., and Orcutt B.C. (1978). Relative mutability of amino acids (Ala=100). In "Atlas of Protein Sequence and Structure", Vol. 5, Suppl. 3.
- Deleage, G., and Roux, B. (1987). Conformational parameter for alpha helix. Protein Engineering 1, 289-294.
- Deleage, G., and Roux, B. (1987). Conformational parameter for beta-sheet. Protein Engineering 1, 289-294.
- Deleage, G., and Roux, B. (1987). Conformational parameter for beta-turn. Protein Engineering 1, 289-294.
- Deleage, G., and Roux, B. (1987). Conformational parameter for coil. Protein Engineering 1, 289-294.

- Deleage, G., and Roux, B. (1987). Normalized frequency for alpha helix. Protein Engineering 1, 289-294.
- Eisenberg, D., Schwarz, E., and Komarony, M., Wall R. (1984). Normalized consensus hydrophobicity scale. J. Mol. Biol. 179, 125-142.
- Fraga, S. (1982). Recognition factors. Can. J. Chem. 60, 2606-2610
- Grantham, R. (1974). Atomic weight ratio of hetero elements in end group to C in side chain. Science 185, 862-864.
- Grantham, R. (1974). Polarity (p). Science 185, 862-864.
- Guy, H.R. (1985). Hydrophobicity scale based on free energy of transfer (kcal/mole). Biophys J. 47, 61-70.
- Hopp, T.P., and Woods, K.R. (1981). Hydrophilicity. Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. 78, 3824-3828.
- Janin, J. (1979). Free energy of transfer from inside to outside of a globular protein. Nature 277, 491-492.
- Janin, J. (1979). Molar fraction (%) of 2001 buried residues. Nature 277, 491-492.
- Janin, J. (1979). Molar fraction (%) of 3220 accessible residues. Nature 277, 491-492.
- Jones, D.D. (1975). Refractivity. J. Theor. Biol. 50, 167-184.
- Kyte, J., and Doolittle R.F. (1982). Hydropathicity. J. Mol. Biol. 157, 105-132.
- Levitt, M. (1978). Normalized frequency for alpha helix. Biochemistry 17, 4277-4285.
- Levitt, M. (1978). Normalized frequency for beta-sheet. Biochemistry 17, 4277-4285.
- Levitt, M. (1998). Normalized frequency for beta turn. Biochemistry 17, 4277-4285.
- Lifson, S., and Sander, C. (1979). Conformational preference for antiparallel beta strand. Nature 282, 109-111.
- Lifson, S., and Sander, C. (1979). Conformational preference for parallel beta strand. Nature 282, 109-111.
- Lifson, S., and Sander, C. (1979). Conformational preference for total beta strand (antiparallel + parallel). Nature 282, 109-111.
- Manavalan, P., and Ponnuswamy, P.K. (1978). Average surrounding hydrophobicity. Nature 275, 673-674.
- McCaldon, P., and Argos, P. (1988). Overall amino acid composition (%). Proteins: Structure, Function and Genetics 4, 99-122.
- Meek, J.L. (1980). Retention coefficient in HPLC, pH 7.4. Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. USA. 77, 1632-1636.
- Meek, J.L. (1980). Retention coefficient in HPLC, pH 2.1. Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. USA 77, 1632-1636.
- Miyazawa, S., and Jernigen R.L. (1985). Hydrophobicity scale (contact energy derived from 3D data). Macromolecules 18, 534-552.
- Parker, J.M.R., Guo, D., and Hodges, R.S. (1986). Hydrophilicity scale derived from HPLC peptide retention times. Biochemistry 25, 5425-5431.
- Rose, G.D., Geselowitz, A.R., Lesser, G.J., Lee, R.H., and Zehfus, M.H. (1985). Average area buried on transfer from standard state to folded protein. Science 229, 834-838.
- Rose, G.D., Geselowitz, A.R., Lesser, G.J., Lee, R.H., and Zehfus, M.H. (1985). Mean fractional area loss (f) (average area buried/standard state area). Science 229, 834-838.
- Roseman, M.A. (1988). Hydrophobicity scale (pi-r). J. Mol. Biol. 200, 513-522.
- Sweet, R.M., and Eisenberg, D. (1983). Optimized matching hydrophobicity (OMH). J. Mol. Biol. 171, 479-488.

- Welling, G.W., Weijer, W.J., Van der Zee, R., and Welling-Wester, S. (1985). Antigenicity value X 10. FEBS Lett. 188, 215-218
- Wilson, K.J., Honegger, A., Stotzel, R.P., and Hughes, G.J. (1981). Hydrophobic constants derived from HPLC peptide retention times. Biochem. J. 199, 31-41
- Wolfenden, R.V., Andersson, L., Cullis, P.M., and Southgate, C.C.F. (1981). Hydration potential (kcal/mole) at 25øC. Biochemistry 20, 849-855.
- Zimmerman, J.M., Eliezer, N., and Simha, R. (1968). Polarity. J. Theor. Biol. 21, 170-201.

ContigExpress

Contig Assembly

- Huang X. A contig assembly program based on sensitive detection of fragment overlaps. Genomics. 1992 Sep; 14(1): 18-25.
- Huang, Xiaoqiu and Madan, Anup. (1999). CAP3: A DNA Sequence Assembly Program. Genome Res. 9:868-877.
- Huang, Xiaoqiu. (1996). An Improved Sequence Assembly Program. Genomics 33:21-31.

BLAST

- Altschul, S.F., Gish, W., Miller, W., Myers, E.W., and Lipman, D.J. (1990). Basic local alignment search tool. J. Mol. Biol. 215, 403-410.
- Masking Low Complexity Segments: Wootton, J.C. and Federhen, S. (1993). Statistics of local complexity in amino acid sequences and sequence databases. Comput. Chem. 17, 149-163.
- Claverie, J.-M. & States, D.J. (1993). Information enhancement methods for large scale sequence analysis. Comput. Chem. 17, 191-201.
- Tatusov and Lipman, in preparation.

Miscellaneous

Molar Extinction Coefficient

The molar extinction coefficient for a Protein Molecule reported in the Analysis folder in the Protein Molecule display window is calculated according to the following reference: Gill and von Hipple, Anal. Biochem. 182, 319-326 (1989). The calculation assumes the protein is denatured under the following conditions: 6.0 M guanidium hydrochloride, 0.02 M phosphate buffer, pH 6.5.

Oligo Analysis

Nearest Neighbors method for oligo Tm determination: Rychlik, Spencer, Roads, Nucleic Acids Research, vol 18, no 21, page 6410.

Tables of Nearest-Neighbor thermodynamics for DNA bases: Breslauer, Frank, Bloecker, and Markey, Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. USA, vol 83, page 3748.

Nearest Neighbors, general interest: Breslauer KJ, Frank R, Blocker H, Marky LA. Predicting DNA duplex stability from the base sequence. Proc Natl Acad Sci, 1986 Jun; 83(11): 3746-50.

%GC method for oligo Tm determination: Baldino, Jr, M.F. Chesselet, and M.E. Lewis, Methods in Enzymology 168:766 (1989).

Sugimoto, N., Nakano, S., Katoh, M., Matsumura, A., Nakamuta, H., Obmichi, M., Yoneyama, M., and Sasaki, M. Thermodynamic parameters to predict stability of RNA/DNA hybrid duplexes. Biochemistry 34:11211-11216 (1995).

PCR Analysis

General interest: Rychlik, W. (B.A. White, Ed.), Selection of Primers for Polymerase Chain Reaction, Methods in Molecular Biology, Vol. 15: PCR Protocols: Current Methods and Applications, 1993, pp. 31-40. Humana Press, Totowa NJ.

V. Gorelenkov, A. Antipov, S. Lejnine, N. Daraselia, and A. Yuryev, Set of Novel Tools for PCR Primer Design, BioTechniques, Vol. 31, No. 6 (2001).

General Bioinformatics

Baxevanis, A.D. and Oulette, B.F.F., Bioinformatics A Practical Guide to the Analysis of Genes and Proteins. John Wiley and Sons, Inc., 1998.

Biostatistics

- Information Theory and Molecular Biology. Hubert P. Yockey. Cambridge University Press, 1992.
- Intuitive Biostatistics. Harvey Motulsky. Oxford University Press, Inc., 1995.

REBASE

• http://rebase.neb.com/rebase/rebase.html. Nucleic Acids Research 22: 3628-3639, 1994.

A P P E N D I X

ASCII FORMAT; IUB CODES (IUPAC CODES)

Format for ASCII Sequence Files

An ASCII sequence file must obey the following rules:

- It must be a plain (ASCII) text file (not a file in WordPerfect, or MS Word formats).
- The file must contain the nucleotide (amino acid) sequence arranged in lines. Each line may contain the following:
- Nucleotide (amino acid) symbols and white space, or
- A number followed by white space and nucleotide (amino acid) symbols (therefore, similar to GenBank format), in which case the number will be ignored, or
- A number only, in which case the number will be interpreted as a block of unknown nucleotides (amino acids) of the corresponding length.

IUB Formats recognized by Vector NTI

The following characters, defined by the International Union of Biochemistry (IUB), are used to represent nucleotides throughout Vector NTI:

Symbol	Meaning
А	adenine
Т	thymine
С	cytosine
G	guanine
R	purine(A or G)
Y	pyrimidine(C or T)
W	A or T

Table C. 1 IUB Formats for nucleotides

Symbol	Meaning
S	C or G
М	A or C
К	T or G
В	C, G, or T
D	T, G, or A
Н	C, A, or T
V	C, G, or A
Ν	unknown nucleotide

Table C. 1 IUB Formats for nucleotides

Amino acids are represented by standard 1- (or 3-) letter codes:

1-Letter Symbol	3-Letter Symbol	Meaning
E	Glu	Glutamic acid
G	Gly	Glycine
Н	His	Histidine
I	lle	Isoleucine
L	Leu	Leucine
K	Lys	Lysine
М	Met	Methionine
F	Phe	Phenylalanine
Р	Pro	Proline
S	Ser	Serine
Т	Thr	Threonine
W	Trp	Tryptophan
Y	Tyr	Tyrosine
V	Val	Valine
В	Asx	Asparagine or Aspartic acid
Z	Glx	Glutamine or Glutamic acid
Х	???	Unknown

Table C. 2 IUB Formats for amino acids

A P P E N D I X

PARENT-DESCENDANT RELATIONSHIPS IN VECTOR NTI

Overview of Parent-Descendant Relationships

Vector NTI tracks and manages parent-descendant connections between constructed molecules.

Consider the case of the two constructed DNA molecules, NEWMOL1 and NEWMOL2:

- NEWMOL1 is constructed from two fragments, a fragment of molecule A and a fragment of molecule B.
- NEWMOL2 is constructed from two fragments, a fragment of NEWMOL1 and a fragment of molecule C.

In this case, we have the following parent-descendant connections between A, B, C, NEWMOL1 and NEWMOL2:



Figure D.1 Parent-descendant relationships

- A and B are direct ancestors or parents of NEWMOL1
- NEWMOL1 and C are direct ancestors or parents of NEWMOL2
- A, B, NEWMOL1, and C are ancestors of NEWMOL2
- NEWMOL1 is the direct descendant of A and B
- NEWMOL2 is the direct descendant of NEWMOL1 and C
- NEWMOL2 is the descendant of A and B

Vector NTI also manages the following molecule relationships:

Protein molecules constructed by translating a coding region of a DNA molecule are "direct descendants" of the DNA molecule from which they are translated.

Molecules constructed from PCR analysis of a region of a DNA molecule are direct descendants of that DNA molecule.

Parent-descendant connection data is useful in tracking constructs in your database and for automatically passing changes in parent molecules to descendant molecules.

Viewing Parent-Descendant Relationships

Parent-descendant relationships for a molecule can be viewed in tree form in the molecule Properties dialog box. You can launch the Properties dialog box for a molecule from the Exploring Vector NTI Database window by highlighting the molecule listing of interest in the List Pane of the database window and either choosing <molecule type> > Properties from the menu or by right clicking on the molecule and choosing Properties from the shortcut menu.

Choose the Parents tab to view the molecule's parents (Figure D.2):

NEWMOL1 Properties
General Comments Parents Descendants
Parents of NEW/MOL1:
B
OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure D.2 Parents tab on Molecule Properties dialog box

Choose the Descendants tab to view the molecule's descendants (Figure D.3):

NEWMOL1 Properties
General Comments Parents Descendants
Descendants of NEWMOL1:
OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure D.3 Descendants tab on Molecule Properties dialog box

Managing Parent-Descendant Relationships

Vector NTI tracks and maintains the integrity of parent-descendant molecule relationships. This has obvious implications in the following situations:

- If you change the sequence of a descendant molecule
- If you change the sequence of a parent molecule
- If you delete a parent molecule from the database

To ensure the integrity of parent-descendant relationships, Vector NTI does not allow modification or deletion of such molecules without your approval and it makes the appropriate adjustments to the affected parent-descendant connections when any of the above actions are performed.

Modifying a Descendant

If you attempt to modify a child molecule, the following warning message is issued (Figure D.4):



Figure D.4 Descendant molecule modification warning

If you approve the edits, the descendant molecule is disconnected from its parents, becoming a Basic molecule in the database (Basic molecules have no parent relationships).

Important: Once parent-descendant relationships have been disconnected, they CANNOT be reconnected.

Modifying a Parent

If you attempt to modify a parent molecule, when you try to save the altered molecule to the database under the original name, the following warning appears (Figure D.5):



Figure D.5 Parent molecule modification warning

Basic options:

- Recalculate Descendants: Changes the parent and all its descendants to incorporate the edit.
- Disconnect Descendants: Changes the parent only. Descendants remain unchanged, but are disconnected from their parents and become Basic molecules in the database.

If a Descendant Cannot be Recalculated:

There may be instances where it is impossible for VNTI to recalculate a descendant molecule when you change one of its parents. This typically happens when one of the parent molecules is absent from the database.

For example, descendant molecules can be imported into the local VNTI database from a shared database or VNTI molecule archive with the links to their ancestor molecules preserved, but without the ancestor molecules being present. In the case of a descendant molecule that is imported along with the first parent, but with only a link to the second parent, if you modify the first parent, VNTI is unable to recalculate the descendant to include the edits, because the second parent is not present in the database.

In such cases, you have the following choices:

- Leave Unprocessed: Descendant becomes an "unprocessed" molecule in the database; unprocessed molecules cannot be opened in a Molecule Viewing window, but they can be reconstructed (once all missing parent molecules have been imported into the database).
- Disconnect: Descendants remain unchanged, but are disconnected from their parents and become Basic molecules in the database.

Important: Once parent-descendant relationships have been disconnected, they CANNOT be reconnected.

Deleting a Parent from the Database

When deleting a parent molecule from the database, you have two choices:

• **Delete from Database**: Deletes only the parent molecule. All descendant molecules become Basic molecules in the database. The following warning is issued when the Delete from Database command is executed (Figure D.6):

Vector NTI X
NEWMOL1 will be permanently deleted from database. All its direct descendants will be disconnected from their parents.
Cancel

Figure D.6 Warning issued when deleting a parent from the database

 Delete with Descendants from DB: Deletes the parent molecule and all its descendants from the database. When this command is executed, the following warning is issued (Figure D.7):

Vector NTI 🛛 🗙
NEWMOL1 and all its descendants will be permanently deleted from database
Cancel

Figure D.7 Warning issued when deleting with descendants

Important: Once the OK button on the warning dialog box is pressed, depending on the delete command chosen, the parent molecule or the parent and all its descendants will be immediately deleted from the Database and all subsets. Deleted molecules CANNOT be "undeleted".

Deleting a Descendant from the Database

When a descendant that is not a parent to any other molecule (for example, NEWMOL2 in the example above, see Figure D.1) is deleted, the only connection broken is the connection between the deleted molecule and its parent. No other connections are affected. Therefore, the standard molecule deletion warning is issued (Figure D.8):

Vector NTI
NEWMOL2 will be permanently deleted from database
Cancel

Figure D.8 Standard molecule deletion warning

The warning gives no indication that parent-descendant connections will be affected, because the only connection that is broken is that between the deleted molecule and its parent.

Important: Once the OK button is pressed, the molecule is deleted from the database and all subsets. Deleted molecules CANNOT be "undeleted".

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

A P P E N D I X

TM CALCULATIONS IN VECTOR NTI

General Information

Vector NTI calculates and reports two different melting temperatures for DNA/RNA oligonucleotides, Thermodynamic Tm (Therm. Tm) and %GC Tm (Figure E.1):

Oligo Analysis		? ×
Oligonucleotide: From Co	blE1: Start: 1641 Length: 20	
GTGCGAGGCAGCTGCGG1	'AA	
	mplementary <u>A</u> nalyze	Save Results Close
Parameters	Results	Palindromes: 2 total
dG Temperature (C) 25.0	Mol. Wt 6285.1	GCAGCTGC at 8
Probe Conc.(pMol) 250.0) %GC 65.0	CAGCTG at 9
Salt Conc.(mMol) 50.0	Therm. Tm 60.8	
% Formamide 0.0	%GC Tm 52.8	
3' End Length (bp) 7	dG -38.7	Repeats: 0 total
Palindromes (bp) 6	3' End dG -16.0	
Nucl. Repeats (bp)	dH -164.7	
Stem Length (bp) 3	dS -416.5	
	Dimers & Hairpin Loops]

Figure E.1 Oligo Analysis dialog box with calculated Tm values

Usefulness of Thermodynamic Tm Versus %GC Tm

Vector NTI reports both the Thermodynamic and %GC Tm values, regardless of the length of the oligo (oligos are limited to 1000 characters maximum length in Vector NTI 9). However, generally only one of the reported TM values should be considered useful, depending on the length of the oligo as follows:

- Therm. Tm useful for oligos that are greater than about 7-10 residues and less than about 35 residues long
- %GC Tm useful for oligos greater than about 35 residues long
- **Note:** For oligos that are 7-10 residues or shorter (cutoff length depends on the base content of the particular oligo being analyzed), Vector NTI reports a Therm. Tm value of zero.

Effects of Primer (Probe) and Salt Concentration on Tm Calculations

Tm calculations are highly dependent on primer and salt concentrations; varying these concentrations can greatly affect the Tm for any given primer. Therefore, it is important that you adjust the primer and salt concentrations appropriately so that accurate Tm values are generated.

Note: In Vector NTI, the default parameters for primer and salt concentration are 250 pM and 50 mM, respectively, for calculating Tm values. Other Tm calculators commonly use a default probe concentration of 50 nM. Because of this, Vector NTI default parameter Tm values may not correspond to the default Tm values calculated using other programs. Before comparing Vector NTI Tm values with those generated by other Tm calculators, make sure that the parameters are adjusted appropriately.

%GC Tm Calculation

The %GC Tm calculation1 does not rely on the thermodynamic properties of the oligo (i.e. dHo, dSo and dG° values). The formula for %GC Tm is as follows:

Tm = 81.5 + 16.6(log[Na+]) + 0.41(%GC) - 675/probe length

Note: [Na+] is in molar units.

Example: For oligo GTGCGAGGCAGCTGCGGTAA at 50mM salt:

Tm = 81.5 + 16.6(log(0.05)) + 0.41(65) - 675/20

= 81.5 + 16.6(-1.30) + 26.65 - 33.75

= 81.5 - 21.58 + 26.65 - 33.75

= 52.82 °C

Thermodynamic Tm Calculation

The Thermodynamic Tm calculation is based on the Nearest Neighbor theory of DNA/RNA duplex stability. Briefly, this theory states that the overall duplex stability (and, hence, the melting temperature) of an oligonucleotide can be predicted from the primary sequence based on the relative stability and temperature-dependent behavior of every dinucleotide pair in the oligo2. In practice, enthalpy (dH°) and free energy (dG°) values for each of the 10 possible Watson-Crick DNA pairwise interactions are used to calculate pairwise entropy (dS°) values via the following standard equation:

 $dG^\circ = dH^\circ - TdS^\circ$

Note: T is temperature in °K.

The pairwise dH° and dS° values are then summed to calculate overall values for the oligo under consideration. The overall values are used in the following formula3 to calculate the Thermodynamic Tm:

Therm. $Tm = dH^{\circ} - 273.15 + 16.6(log[Na+]) dS^{\circ} + dS_{0}^{\circ} + R(ln(c/4))$

Notes:

- dSo° is the entropy associated with helix initiation (-10.8 cal/mol per °K).
 - R is the Universal Gas Constant (1.987 cal/mol per °K).
 - c is the concentration of the probe, in molar units.
 - The factor –273.15 corrects for absolute temperature so that the final Tm is in °C.

The pairwise dH° and dS° values for DNA used in VNTI are taken from reference 2. Those values, along with the corresponding dG° values at 25° C, appear in the following table (Table E.1):

Interaction	dH° kcal/mol	dS° cal/mol per °K	dG° kcal/mol
AA/TT	-9.1	-24.0	-1.9
AT/TA	-8.6	-23.9	-1.5
TA/AT	-6.0	-16.9	-1.0
CA/GT	-5.8	-12.9	-2.0
GT/CA	-6.5	-17.3	-1.3
CT/GA	-7.8	-20.8	-1.6
GA/CT	-5.6	-13.5	-1.6
CG/GC	-11.9	-27.8	-3.6
GC/CG	-11.1	-26.7	-3.1
GG/CC	-11.0	-26.6	-3.1
XX/XX	-6.0	-16.9	-1.0

Table E.1 DNA Nearest Neighbor thermodynamics

Notes:

- All values refer to the disruption of a duplex at 1 M NaCl, 25°C and pH 7.
- The units for dH° and dG° are kcal/mol of interaction, whereas those for dS° are cal/°K per mol of interaction.

Example: The oligo 5'-GTGCGAGGCAGCTGCGGTAA-3' is parsed as follows (Figure E.2):

Figure E.2 Parsed Oligo

Total dH° = -164.7 kcal/mol (Figure E.2)

The total dS° reported by VNTI (Figure E.2) is the sum of the pairwise values above and the entropy associated with helix initiation (dSo°). Thus, for the example oligo above:

Total dS° = -405.7 + (-10.8) = -416.5 cal/mol per °K

The total dG° (Figure E.2) is the sum of the pairwise dG° values for the oligo plus a helix initiation free energy term (dGo°) that is added to better reflect experimentally determined free energy values for tested oligos. The value of the helix initiation free energy term (dGo°) depends on the base composition of the oligo2 as follows:

- +5.0 kcal/mol for oligos containing any G-C base pairs
- +6.0 kcal/mol for oligos composed exclusively of A-T base pairs

Therefore, for the example oligo:

Total dGo = -43.7 kcal/mol (sum of the pairwise dGo values) + 5 kcal/mol (free energy term)

= -38.7 kcal/mol

The 3' End dG° is calculated using the number of 3' pairwise dG° values specified in the 3' End Length (bp) box, and is not further adjusted (Figure E.3).

Oligo Analysis		? ×	
Oligonucleotide: From C	olE1: Start: 1641 Length: 20		
GTGCGAGGCAGCTGCGG	ΤΑΑ		
DNA C <u>R</u> NA Complementary <u>Analyze</u> <u>Save Results</u> Close			
Parameters	-Results	Palindromes: 2 total	
dG Temperature (C) 25.0	Mol. Wt 6285.1	GCAGCTGC at 8	
Probe Conc.(pMol) 250.	0 %GC 65.0	CAGCTG at 9	
Salt Conc.(mMol) 50.0	Therm. Tm 60.8		
% Formamide 0.0	%GC Tm 52.8		
3' End Length (bp) 7	dG -38.7	Repeats: 0 total	
Palindromes (bp) 6	3' End dG -16.0		
Nucl. Repeats (bp)	dH -164.7		
Stem Length (bp) 3	dS -416.5		
	Dimers & Hairpin Loops]	

Figure E.3 Oligo Analysis dialog box showing 3' End length and calculated dG value

Using Vector NTI's default probe and salt concentrations (250 pM and 50 mM, respectively) and the values for dH $^{\circ}$ and dS $^{\circ}$ calculated above, Therm. Tm can be calculated as follows:

Therm Tm =
$$\frac{dH^{\circ}}{dS^{\circ} + dS_{0}^{\circ} + R\left(\ln\left(\frac{c}{4}\right)\right)} - 273.15 + 16.6(Log(Na))$$

$$\dots = \frac{-164.7}{-0.4165 + (0.001987) \left(\ln\left(\left(\frac{250 \times 10^{-12}}{4}\right)\right) \right)} - 273.15 + 16.6(\text{Log}(0.05))$$

$$\dots = \frac{-164.7}{-0.4165 + (0.001987)(-23.49)} - 273.15 + 16.6(-1.301)$$

$$\dots = \frac{-164.7}{(-0.4165) - 0.04667} + (-273.15) - 21.60$$

$$\dots = \frac{-164.7}{-4632} - 294.75$$

$$\dots = 355.57 - 294.75$$

$$\dots = 60.82^{\circ}\text{C}$$

Vector NTI adjusts the %GC and Therm. Tm values accordingly, based on the input formamide concentration (Figure E.4):

Oligo Analysis			? ×
Oligonucleotide: From	ColE1: Start: 1641 Le	ngth: 20	
GTGCGAGGCAGCTGCG	GTAA		
O <u>B</u> NA □ <u>Complementary</u> <u>Analyze</u> <u>Save Results</u> Close			
Parameters	Results		Palindromes: 2 total
dG Temperature (C) 25.	0 Mol. Wt	6285.1	GCAGCIGC at 8
Probe Conc.(pMol) 250).0 %GC	65.0	CAGCTG at 9
Salt Conc.(mMol) 50.	0 Therm. Tm	54.3	
% Formamide 10.	0 %GC Tm	46.3	
3' End Length (bp) 7	dG	-38.7 F	Repeats: O total
Palindromes (bp) 6	3' End dG	-16.0	
Nucl. Repeats (bp)	дн	-164.7	
Stem Length (bp) 3	dS	-416.5	
Dimers & Hairpin Loops			

Figure E.4 Oligo Analysis dialog box showing effects of formamide on Tm

Oligos Containing IUB Ambiguity Characters

Vector NTI can analyze oligos that contain IUB nucleotide ambiguity characters (i.e. R, Y, W, S, M, K, B, D, H, V and N – See Appendix C). In the case of ambiguity characters, Vector NTI uses average pairwise dH° and dS° values for calculating the Tm.

For example, for the dinucleotide pair CB, Vector NTI averages the CC, CG and CT thermodynamic parameters (Table E.1) to obtain average pairwise dH° and dS° values for CB. It then sums the average pairwise thermodynamic parameters and calculates the Therm. Tm values according to the equation described above (see *Thermodynamic Tm Calculation*, page 676).

In the case of %GC Tm, Vector NTI applies the appropriate %GC contribution represented by each ambiguity symbol to the standard %GC Tm formula (see %GC Tm Calculation, page 676). For example, a B ambiguity symbol contributes only two-thirds the amount of a G or C residue to overall GC content.

RNA Oligos

RNA oligos use a different set of pairwise thermodynamic values than DNA oligos5. Pairwise thermodynamic values for RNA are summarized in the following table (Table E.2):

Interaction	dH° kcal/mol	dS° cal/mol/K	dG° kcal/mol
AA/UU	-6.6	-18.4	-1.1
AU/UA	-5.7	-15.5	-1.1
UA/AU	-8.1	-22.6	-1.4
CA/GU	-10.5	-27.8	-2.2
GU/CA	-10.2	-26.2	-2.4
CU/GA	-7.6	-19.2	-1.9

Table E.2 RNA Nearest Neighbor thermodynamics

GA/CU	-13.3	-35.5	-2.7
CG/GC	-8.0	-19.4	-2.2
GC/CG	-14.2	-34.9	-3.8
GG/CC	-12.2	-29.7	-3.3
XX/XX	-6.0	-16.9	-1.0

Table E.2 RNA Nearest Neighbor thermodynamics (continued)

Notes:

- All values refer to the disruption of a duplex at 1 M NaCl, 25°C, and pH 7.
 - The units for dH° and dG° are kcal/mol of interaction, whereas those for dS° are cal/°K per mol of interaction.
 - The dS° value for RNA oligos is adjusted by –10.8 cal/°K per mol to reflect the entropy associated with helix initiation, as it is for DNA oligos.
 - The dG° value is adjusted by +3.4 kcal/mol to account for helix initiation. Note that this
 adjustment is NOT dependent on the base composition of the RNA oligo as it is for DNA
 oligos (see see *Thermodynamic Tm Calculation*, page 676).

Primer/Probe Tm, TaOpt and Similarity Calculations

For oligos designed using Vector NTI's PCR Primers, Sequencing Primers and Hybridization Probes features, the oligo Tm, product TaOpt and oligo percent binding similarity are reported in the Text Pane of the Molecule Viewing window.

Primer/Probe Tm Values

Tms for designed primers/probes are reported is as follows in Vector NTI:

- Therm. Tm is reported if the oligo is less than or equal to 35 residues
- %GC Tm is reported if the oligo is 36 residues or greater

For PCR products, Vector NTI reports the %GC; the assumption being that the majority of PCR products are larger than 35 residues.

TaOpt Values

The PCR product TaOpt (optimal annealing temperature for amplification of the fragment) in °C is calculated using the following formula3:

TaOPT = ((0.3)Tmprimer + (0.7)Tmproduct - 14.9) °C

Notes: • Tmprimer is the Tm of the less stable primer of the pair

• Tmproduct is the Tm of the PCR product

Primer/Probe Similarity Values

When designing PCR, sequencing or hybridization primers, VNTI reports the overall similarity in percent of an oligo to its binding site based on the oligo's nucleotide composition. For oligos containing IUB ambiguity symbols, three similarity values are reported:

- Minimum Similarity
- Maximum Similarity
- Average Similarity

For Minimum Similarity, all ambiguities are classed as complete mismatches (i.e., they are assigned values of 0 at each position). For example, a 20mer containing 2 Rs and 2 Ns has a Minimum Similarity of 80%.

For Maximum similarity, all ambiguities are considered identical to their cognate nucleotides (i.e. they are assigned values of 1 at each position), so the Maximum Similarity is always 100%.

For Average similarity, Vector NTI weights each ambiguous nucleotide depending on whether it represents 2, 3, or 4 possible nucleotides. For example, Ns have a score of 0.25, Rs of 0.5, Bs of 0.33, etc. Therefore, for the 20mer described above, the Average Similarity is 85%.

References

- 1 Baldino Jr., F., Chesselet, M.F., and Lewis M.E. (1989) High-resolution in situ hybridization histochemistry, Methods Enzymol. 168:761-777.
- 2 Breslauer, K., J., Frank, R., Blocker, H., and Marky, L.A. (1986) Predicting DNA duplex stability from the base sequence, Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. USA 83:3746-3750.
- 3 Rychlik, W., Spencer, W.J., and Rhoads, R.E. (1990) Optimization of the annealing temperature for DNA amplification in vitro, Nucleic Acids Res. 18:6409-6412.
- 4 Sugimoto, N., Nakano, S., Yoneyama, M., and Honda, K. (1996) Improved thermodynamic parameters and helix initiation factor to predict stability of DNA duplexes, Nucleic Acids Res. 24:4501-4505.
- 5 Freier, S.M., Kierzek, R., Jaeger, J.A., Sugimoto, N., Caruthers, M.H., Nielson, T., and Turner, D.H. (1986) Improved free-energy parameters for predictions of RNA duplex stability, Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. USA 83:9373-9377.

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual
A P P E N D I X

H

REGULAR EXPRESSION SYNTAX

Introduction

This appendix describes regular expression syntax, which can be used to perform sequence searches with the GenomBench Pattern Search Tool. A regular expression describes a pattern or sequence of adjacent characters and is written in a specific syntax. A brief description of regular expressions is given here based on the discussion in the book *Unix Power Tools*¹. There are also many other printed and online sources where you can obtain a more in depth discussion about regular expressions.

There are two main types of regular expressions: simple and extended. Extended regular expressions provide some extra functionality over simple regular expressions by adding the ability to group search patterns, use the OR operator, and use several extra modifying characters. Most utilities such as *grep* understand simple regular expressions. The GenomBench Pattern Search Tool understands extended regular expressions. Other utilities that understand extended regular expressions are *egrep* and *awk*.

Parts of a Regular Expression

There are several main parts to a regular expression:

- Anchors: specify the position of a pattern relative to a line of text
- Character sets: match one or more characters in a single position
- Modifiers: specify the number of times the previous character set is repeated
- Grouping and pattern memory: groups and stores patterns in memory for later use

A regular expression can also contain special characters or 'metacharacters' that change the meaning of characters before or after the metacharacter. Metacharacters also allow for expanding and limiting possible matches. An example of a metacharacter is the dot '.', which matches any character. It is similar to a wildcard. For example, the simple expression . A matches any single character that is followed by the letter A.

^{1.} Jerry Peek, Tim O'Reilly, and Mike Loukides. UNIX Power Tools ch 26 (O'Reilly & Associates, 2nd ed) 1997)

Anchors

Anchors search for a pattern that is at one end of a line or the other. The caret 'A' is the starting anchor and the dollar sign '\$' is the ending anchor. When a ^ is placed at the beginning of a regular expression, the beginning of a line is searched for the pattern. For example, the expression ^AATT matches all lines that start with the string AATT. When a \$ is placed at the end of a regular expression, the end of the line is searched for the pattern. For example, the expression AATT\$ matches all lines that end in the string AATT.

Character Sets

Characters are matched as character sets where the simplest character set is a single character. For example, the regular expression CG consists of two character sets: C and G. Any line that contains the string CG is matched.

Square brackets [] are metacharacters that are used with character sets and allow a search for specific characters inside the brackets. Arbitrary characters are specified by using the syntax [0-9] to indicate any digit, [a-z] to indicate any lower case letter, and [A-Z] to indicate any upper case letter. A hyphen between characters in an ascending range specifies a range of characters. Character sets can also be concatenated. For example, [0-9] [a-zA-Z] matches any digit and then any letter.

Modifiers

Modifiers are used to specify the number of times a character set in a pattern should be searched. The asterisk '*' is a metacharacter that matches zero or more occurrences of a character set. For example, [A] * matches zero or more occurrences of the character A and [A] [A] * matches two or more occurrences of the character A. Two other modifiers are added by extended regular expression syntax. A question mark '?' matches zero or one occurrences and a plus sign '+' matches one or more.

Grouping and Pattern Memory

Extended regular expression syntax also includes several additional characters that provide the ability to match a choice of patterns and then "remember" it. The important characters for grouping and pattern memory are parentheses '(' and ')' and the backslash '\' followed by a digit.

Parentheses group expressions and are used to mark part of a pattern. The pipe symbol '|' acts as an OR operator within a grouping. For example, the expression (AAAA | TTTT) TACG ([CCCC|GGGG) matches the string TACG either preceded by the string

AAAA or TTTT and followed by the string CCCC or GGGG. With extended regular expressions you can also use the modifiers '*', '?', and '+' within parentheses.

A backslash followed by a digit (for example, \1) is used to indicate that the value of an expression stored in pattern memory (that is, an expression in parentheses) should be substituted. In a replacement string, '\0' is replaced by the entire matched string and '\1' through '\9' is replaced by the corresponding regular subexpression in a sequence of subexpressions. A backslash followed by a digit can also be used to repeat a pattern. For example, to search for two of the same characters, use ([A-Z]) \1.

Subexpressions or nested expressions are also defined by parentheses. When there are nested parentheses, the order of subexpressions is defined by the order of open parentheses. If a subexpression matches several times, its value is defined by the last match. If a subexpression does not match, its value is an empty string. The following rules cause a subexpression to not match:

- It is suffixed by '*', '?' or '{0,m}' and the match count is zero.
- It is one of a choice of subexpressions separated by '|' and other subexpression variant matches.

• It is contained in another subexpression and the containing subexpression does not match.

An example of a nested expression is:

((one | many +([0-9]*)) *; *)*

The following table shows what the actual match is when different digits are used with the backslash and the expression is applied to the value:

many 20; one;

When this digit is used	This subexpression matches	Actual match value is
\0	whole expression	many 20; one;
\1	(one many +([0-9]*)) *; *	one;
\2	one many +([0-9]*)	one
\3	[0-9]*	20

Table F.1 Example of subexpression matches when different digits are used with '\'

Metacharacter Reference

The following table lists valid metacharacters that can be used to form extended regular expressions with the GenomBench Pattern Search Tool.

Metacharacter	Function	Examples
^	Matches the following regular expres- sion at the beginning of a line.	^AATT: The string AATT at the start of a line
	To match a literal ^ at the start of a line, use the \ character.	AATT^: The string AATT^ anywhere on the line
		$^{\ }$ A ^ at the start of a line
\$	Matches the preceding regular expression at the end of a line.	A\$: An A at the end of a line
		\$A: A \$A anywhere on the line
	To match a literal \$ at the end of a line, use the \ character.	\$\\$: A \$ at the end of a line
	Matches any single character except the new line character	A.Z: Any character following A such as ACT, AGA, AAACCC
/	Escapes the character following When parentheses are used to group	\.: A literal dot
	a pattern, recalls items stored in pat- tern memory	\\: A literal backslash
		\1: Recalls 1st pattern stored in parenthe- ses

Table F.2 Metacharacters that can be used with the GenomBench Pattern Search Tool

Metacharacter	Function	Examples
[]	Matches any one of the enclosed characters	[0-9]: Any digit
	 A hyphen (-) indicates a range of consecutive characters A caret (^) as the 1st character in brackets matches any one character not in the list A hyphen (-) or right bracket (]) as the 1st character is treated as a member of the list All other metacharacters are treated as members of the list 	[^a-z]: Any character except a lower case letter [^0-9-]]: Any character EXCEPT a digit, hyphen, or bracket
*	Matches zero or more of the single characters immediately preceding it. Can also match a regular expression preceding it.	A*: Zero or more upper case As. [AAA] *: Zero or more strings of AAA
+	Matches one or more instances of the previous regular expression	A+: One or more upper case As. [A]+: One or more occurrences of A
?	Matches zero or one instances of the preceding regular expression	A?: Zero or one upper case As. [A] +: Zero or one occurrences of A
	Matches the regular expression before or after	CAGT ACGT: The string CAGT or the string ACGT
()	Applies a match to the enclosed group of regular expressions	([a-z]+): One or more instances of any lower case character
	Stores an expression into pattern memory for later retrieval	

Table F.2 Metacharacters that can be used with the GenomBench Pattern Search Tool (continued)

A P P E N D I X

Once you have installed Vector NTI Advance 10, you will need to license the application to be able to use it.

To satisfy the needs of users in different industrial, scientific or educational environments, Invitrogen has designed three types of Vector NTI licenses, as well as a Demo Mode option. These are all administered through the License Manager.

- Static License: Purchased by one user for installation on one computer
- Dynamic License (DLS): A license that is installed on a server and issued by that server to client Vector Advance computers. DLS licenses are shared by a specified number of users or "seats," with the number of users at any one time being limited to the number of "licenses" specified in the contract.
- Trial License: Allotted to a potential purchaser of Vector NTI software for a specified number of days, during which the user can review and use the software within certain limits.
- Demo Mode: When unlicensed, Vector applications operate in Demo Mode for the purpose of demonstrating the basic features of the software. Some functionality is disabled in Demo Mode.

When you open the Vector NTI Advance software, a checkmark icon, such as this ([]]), at the bottom right corner on the Status Bar shows the current license status. Pause the cursor arrow over the button, and a pop-up label displays the license status.

- Green checkmark = active Static License
- Green, *blinking* checkmark = active Trial or Dynamic License
- Red, *blinking* X = the application is not licensed; running in Demo mode.

License Manager does not open automatically when you install Vector Advance on your computer. You must open License Manager manually. To open License Manager, select it from the Start menu: Start > Programs > Invitrogen > Vector NTI Advance 10> License Manager or click Help > License in the Database Explorer or a Vector NTI viewer window once you have opened it.

License Manager Dialog Box

The License Manager has three tabs, the **Contact Us** tab, the **Personal** tab, and the **Applications** tab.

Contact Us Tab

The License Manager opens by default to the **Contact Us** tab (Figure G.1). This tab summarizes your Vector software licensing agreement. Additionally, it provides information for upgrading your Vector application license and contacting Invitrogen.

🔄 License Manager	×
Contact Us Personal Applications	
When first installed, this application will be running in Demo Mode, as indicated by a boxed "X" in the lower right corner of your computer screen. In this mode, you can investigate software functionality using the demo datasets that are already present in the application. Invitrogen offers FREE, fully functional Trial Licenses so that you can test this application with user own data. To obtain a free Trial Licenses	
please email your contact information to bioinfotrial@invitrogen.com.	
For your convenience, there are several ways to purchase an End User License:	
Buy online: www.invitrogen.com/bioinformatics	
Email:	
Print	
Close	_

Figure G.1 License Manager (Contact Us tab)

Personal Tab

The **Personal** tab (Figure G.2) provides text boxes for entering personal information. Once entered on this tab, when you click your license choice on the **Applications** tab, your entries are automatically entered on the license application.

Į.	License Manager	Design of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second	×
	Contact Us Person	al Applications	1
	Name:	Josh Brown	
	Organization:	DotCom	
	Phone number:	240-846-3398	
	E-mail address:	Lbrown@dotcom.com	
		Close	

Figure G.2 License Manager (Personal tab)

Applications Tab

The **Applications** tab (Figure G.3) indicates the type of License currently in effect for each Vector NTI Advance application, as well as for Vector Xpression and PathBlazer. If you have Vector

software with a current license, the contract number displays in a cell to the right of the corresponding application. For applications for which there is no current license, a drop-down menu displays in the cell to the right of the corresponding application.

🤄 License Manager		×
Contact Us Personal	pplications	
Applications		
Vector NTI	Demo mode 📃 💌	
AlignX	Corporate Static License v.9	14
BioAnnotator	Demo mode 💌	
ContigExpress	Demo mode 💌	
GenomBench	Corporate Static License v.9	14
Vector Xpression	Personal Static License v.3	98777
Vector PathBlazer	Personal Static License v.2	98777
	Static Dynamic	
		i
		Close

Figure G.3 License Manager (Applications tab)

- For a new installation or update of a previously unlicensed installation, License Manager opens in Demo mode for all applications.
- For Static, Dynamic and Trial licenses, if you are not licensing the entire software package using the same type of license, click in the license-type text box of the application for which you wish to specify a license. Click the down-arrow to extend the drop-down menu and select the appropriate license type. (Demo mode is the default selection.)
- **Note:** If your active license type varies for different applications, this dialog box may have a combination of rows with drop-down menus and rows displaying contract numbers.

Click the button appropriate for the license type you want to register. Each option is described in the following sections.

Static License Dialog Box

Static licenses can be obtained in either a personal or a corporate mode. To configure a static license, click the **Static** button at the bottom of the **Applications** tab (Figure G.3). This opens the Static License dialog box (Figure G.4).

St	atic License	×
	Name:	Josh Brown
	Organization:	DotCom
	Phone number:	240-846-3398
	E-mail address:	i_brown@dotcom.com
	License #:	
	Hardware ID:	2-2610-17C4F
	Key:	
	Key To g	is needed only if you do not have Internet connectivity. get key, contact Tech Support with License # and Hardware ID.
		Apply

Figure G.4 Static License dialog box

For either type of static license, enter your name, organization, phone number and email address in the appropriate fields. This sets the user information in Vector NTI Advance.

Note: If you already entered your personal information on the **Personal** tab, it should appear here when you open this dialog box.

In the **License #** field, enter your Vector NTI Advance 10 static license number provided in the e-mail you received if you downloaded the software from the Invitrogen website, or in the letter that accompanied your CD ROM and/or manual.

 Personal Static License: You must have an internet connection for this step. Click the Apply button. The registration Key is returned by the TCP/IP protocol right after you press the Apply button, and it will be applied automatically.

If the registration fails because of a missing connection to the Invitrogen licensing server, an appropriate message immediately displays. In such a case, you can contact Invitrogen Customer Support or Sales, providing them your computer's hardware ID and your license number.

Once you receive the registration key, enter the key in the **Key** text box of the Static License dialog box. Make sure the License Number is entered appropriately, and click **Apply**. If the Key matches your license number and computer hardware ID, the license is registered.

 Corporate Static License: No internet connection is needed nor is a Registration Key required. The License Manager on your client computer validates the Corporate License number; if it is valid, then your software is registered.

Once you receive the registration key, enter the key in the **Key** text box of the Static License dialog box. Make sure the License Number is entered appropriately, and click **Apply**. If the Key matches your license number and computer hardware ID, the license is registered. No connection to the Internet is required in this case.

Notes: • Once you have applied your static license, notice that the **Applications** tab reflects your static license status.

If you want to reset your personal static license, (you cannot re-set a corporate static license) type Unregister in the License Number field and click Apply. You will be warned that you are trying to reset your static license and asked if you want to continue. If you answer Yes, the application will reset your license and will send proof of this operation to the Invitrogen server. If the connection to the server fails, you will receive notice of this.

Dynamic License Dialog Box

Technically, a Dynamic License is not a "license" mode, but registers permission to work in a shared DLS environment in license mode. To configure your Dynamic license, click the **Dynamic** button at the bottom of the **Applications** tab (Figure G.3). This opens the Dynamic License dialog box (Figure G.5):

Dynamic License		×
Name:	Josh Brown	
Organization:	DotCom	
Phone number:	240-846-3398	
E-mail address:	Lbrown@dotcom.com	
URL of DLS:		
DLS server Name:	requires authentication Password:	
Internet Connec	ction Settings Set for all applications Test Connection	
	Apply Cancel	

Figure G.5 Dynamic License dialog box

- 1. Enter your name, organization, phone number and email address in the appropriate fields. This sets the user information in Vector NTI Advance 10.
- **Note:** If you already entered your personal information on the **Personal** tab, it should appear here when you open this dialog box.
 - In the URL of DLS text box, enter the DLS server URL supplied by the DLS administrator at your site. If your DLS server requires a password, make sure the authentication settings are filled in appropriately.
 - 3. Press the **Internet Connection Settings** button to configure your connection settings and to enter server proxy information, if a firewall is used at your site. Refer to the following section, *Internet Connection Settings*.
 - 4. Press the **Test Connection** button to review the status of your connection. Refer to *Testing the License Server Connection* on this page.
 - Once you have configured the Dynamic License dialog box parameters, to set all Vector applications to Dynamic License, press the Set For All Applications button. Once you do this, when you close this dialog box, the Applications tab now shows Dynamic License for all applications.
- **Note:** When you set Dynamic licenses for all applications, this operation only applies for those applications for which you do not have a Static License.

Press the **Apply** button to execute the dynamic license configuration.

Internet Connection Settings

For a Dynamic License, press the **Internet Connection Settings** button in the Dynamic License Server Connection dialog box. This opens the Internet Settings dialog box where you can alter your proxy settings (Figure G.6):

Internet settings for trial license	×
• Use Internet Explorer settings	ОК
C Direct connection	Cancel
C Use proxy server	
Proxy server: Port: 80	
Proxy requires authentication	
User:	
Password:	

Figure G.6 Internet Settings dialog box

The Internet Settings dialog box allows you to set your connection parameters. If the **Use Internet Explorer settings** button is selected, License Manager will attempt to make the connection using your default settings. If default detection is not successful, you can either choose the **Direct connection** button if you do not have a proxy or choose the **Use proxy server** button and specify the proxy name, port and password information.

Press the **OK** button to return to the Dynamic License Server Connection Tester dialog box.See the Internet Connection Settings section on page 692 for more information.

Testing the License Server Connection

In the Dynamic License dialog box, press the **Test Connection** button to review the status of your connection. This opens the Server Connection Tester dialog box (Figure G.7).

🛱 Dynamic Licenses server connection tester		×
License Server URL (Ask your administrator for details) http://trial.informaxinc.com/vntitrial/vntitrial.cgi Use DLS authorization (if applicable) User name: Josh Brown	Connection diagnostics Connection DK VectorNTI Trial License Server version 1.2 (Apr. 7 2003) No licenses available Connection DK	4
Password: *********	Connect Clear Close	-

Figure G.7 Dynamic License Server Connection Tester dialog box

The status of the connection displays in the right-hand panel.

- If the server requires a password, it must be entered into the corresponding text box in this dialog box.
- If you want to alter your proxy settings, press the Internet Connection Settings button (see next section).
- Once the settings are reconfigured, press the Connect button to test the connection using the new settings.

Once you have configured the **Dynamic License** dialog box parameters, to set all Vector applications to Dynamic License, press the **Set For All Applications** button. Once you do this, when you close this dialog box, the Applications tab now shows Dynamic License for all applications. **Note:** When you set Dynamic licenses for all applications, this operation only applies for those applications for which you do not have a Static License.

Press the **Apply** button to execute the dynamic license configuration.

Trial License Dialog Box

To configure a trial license, click the **Trial** button at the bottom of the **Applications** tab of License Manager (Figure G.3). This opens the Trial License dialog box (Figure G.8):

Trial license		×
	To obtain a free Trial License, please email your contact information to bioinfotrial@invitrogen.com.	
Trial license		
	Apply Cancel	

Figure G.8 Trial License dialog box in License Manager

As described in the Trial License dialog box, you must generate an e-mail addressed to <u>bioinfo-trial@invitrogen.com</u> and include your name, the name of your organization, phone number, and email address.

Notes:

- The e-mail will not be generated automatically from this dialog box.
 - You will receive a trial license number in response from an Invitrogen contact person. Return to this dialog box and enter the trial license number in the text box. Click the **Apply** button to complete the trial license registration.
 - When you set Trial Licenses for all applications, this operation only applies for those applications for which you do not have a Static License.

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

Index

Numerics

3D-Mol

3D Options dialog box 616 accepted file formats 605 Align Atoms mode 621, 622 Align Backbone mode 621 aligning molecules in 620 alignment viewing options 621 alternating between panes 606 atoms display 611 backbone display 611 calculating protein surfaces 622 color scheme display 612 color scheme, creating custom 612 copying chaings 608 creating user-defined structures 607 deleting structures 608 display window 606 Editable Entry 607 elements of 606 exporting structures 624 Graphics Pane 610 hide options 616 manipulating graphics 611 mark types 615 marking signals 609 marks display 615 measuring graphics 614 molecules view 614 moving molecule 610 NewEntries 607 opening structures in 606 painting/unpainting marked signals 609 Project Pane 607 removing panes from view 607 resizing molecules 610 saving results 624 sending molecules to VNTI 623 Sequence Pane 611 setting mark radius 610 show options 616 stereo viewing option 620

Structure Pane 609 surface calculation references 661 surface display 612 tools 620 viewing file properties 607 viewing graphics 611

A

abi files 132 Absolute Complexity graphs in AlignX 393 statistical significance 393 Activating window panes 15 Adaptor fragments 315 Add to Oligo List Order custom primers 72 Adding features to molecule 236 gel marker 369 gel sample 367 molecules to alignment 401 molecules to an alignment 403 molecules to project, AlignX Blocks 598 new oligo 285 restriction site 242 restriction sites to cloning fragments 314 restriction sites to molecule 236 separators, Database Explorer 167 to Oligo List 283 Advanced analyses **BLOCKS 565** copying 570 deleting 570 editing 570 operations 570 Pfam 565 ProSite 568 Proteolytic Cleavage 566 reading 570 saving 571 sending to GenomBench 571

sending to Vector NTI 571 Sim4 562 Spidey 564 starting an analysis 570 stopping an analysis 570 viewing in GenomBench 572 viewing in Vector NTI 571 Algorithms alignment 661 phylogenetic tree 662 protein analyses, BioAnnotator 427 Alignment 3D-Mol 620 adding molecules to 403 alignment PCR 260 basic algorithms 661 changing sequence order 399 color key 400 displaying feature alignments 523 displaying Sim4/Spidey hits in GenomBench 542, 544 editing 408 editing, tutorial 120 finding features in 391 finding sequences in 398 finding signals in 392 graph in AlignX 393 importing, MSF format 402 initiating multiple 402 initiating profile 403 linking panes 396 marking features in 391, 396 matrix, tutorial 118 multiple, parameters 405 pairwise parameters 404 performing on Internet, tutorial 110 protein profile, parameters 406 removing a molecule 403 score 646 score, tutorial 118 setting parameters 403 template files 409 viewing options, 3D-Mol 621 Alignment Display Setup color setup 401 **Identity Tables 400** Alignment Pane AlignX 396 AlignX Blocks 597 AlignX Blocks, selection in 598 CE, description 480 CE, editing fragment or consensus 483 Contig Window 479 copying data 20 linked panes, AlignX 396 Alignment PCR

description 260 launching from AlignX 261 Lists dialog box 261 process 260 report 263 Alignment projects adding molecules to 401 creating new 401 opening 401 AlignX adding graphic analyses 117 adding molecule to alignment 118 algorithms 402, 413 alignment colors 119 Alignment PCR 413 Alignment Setup 118 alternating between panes 390 Analysis Pane 393 changing sequence order in Alignment Pane 399 consensus calculation 399 creating custom analyses 394 designing PCR primers 413 Dot Matrix calculation 410 editing alignment, tutorial 120 editing an alignment 408 elements of display window 390 Feature Type Color Scheme dialog box 397 finding sequences 398 Graphics Pane 393 graphs 393 guide tree 392, 406 managing scales of graphs 395 marking features in 391, 396 opening 389 opening from DB Explorer, tutorial 115 Plot Setup 394 realigning selected area 403 reverse complementing sequences 398 saving projects 122 scoring matrices 407 identity table, pairwise comparison 409 **Identity Tables 400** tutorial 115 AlignX Blocks adding molecules to project 598 Alignment Pane 597 alternating between panes 594 block color setup 601 Block List Pane 595 Block Search 598 **Block Sequence Space 599** color setup for links 599 defining block manually 599 deleting a molecule 601 description 593

elements of display window 593 finding Text Pane features 595 linking/unlinking residues 599 opening a project 598 removing blocks 596 Schematic Pane 597 Score Matrix 602 selection techniques 596 setup parameters 601 sorting blocks 596 templates 602 Text Pane 594 Amino acids See Proteins 8 Analyses creating custom, BioAnnotator 428 description of, BioAnnotator 426 DNA/RNA, BioAnnotator 426 in reports 377 protein, BioAnnotator 426 ProtScale 427 Analyses Setup 221 Analysis adding or removing, BioAnnotator 423 **Back Translation 297** changing properties, BioAnnotator 423 Find Common Non-Cutter REN dialog box 302 Find Common Non-Cutter REN report 304 loading PCR analysis settings 247, 328 Non-Cutter REN dialog box 304 **RFLP 300** saving PCR analysis settings 247 Analysis List setup **BioAnnotator 423** Analysis Monitor Analysis List Pane 562 analysis operations 570 **BLAST Search 569 BLOCKS** parameters 565 configuring parameters 562 copying analyses 570 deleting analyses 570 description 559 editing analyses 570 launching 560 launching from GenomBench 542 Parameters Pane 561 Pfam parameters 565 ProSite parameters 568 Proteolytic Cleavage parameters 566 reading analyses 570 saving analyses 571 sending to GenomBench 571 sending to Vector NTI 571 Sim4 and Spidey alignment analyses, GenomBench 542 Sim4 parameters 562

Spidey parameters 564 starting an analysis 570 stopping an analysis 570 updating search databases 559 viewing in GenomBench 572 viewing in Vector NTI 571 window description 561 Analysis Pane **BLAST Viewer 585** changing parameters, BLAST Viewer 587 selecting regions, BLAST Viewer 587 Analysis Results Database Search 178 Analyzing hybridization probes 280 PCR primers 247 sequencing primers 276 Annotations adding 50, 227 deleting 227 editing 227 Annotations folder 208 API description 5, 11 manual on website 11 AppleTalk shared database 383 Archive data stored in 164 importing enzymes from 183 Arrows meaning of direction/DNA graphics 208 ASCII Format 667 assembly results 134 Assembly Setup ContigExpress 444 Light Settings tab 450 Assembly Setup dialog 134 Assemblying contigs 442 Authors foreign 170 local objects 169 modifying 169, 170, 186 object system field 169 Automation, APIs 5, 11

B

Back Translation changing codon usage tables 299 codon ambiguity 299 codon usage tables 298 copy options 299 creating codon usage tables 298 description 297 dialog box 297

opening files in 297 repairing codon usage tables 299 translation tables 299 tutorial 122 Basic molecules 305 Bibliography Copy Bibliography 166 Copy Tag 166 Bibliography conversion 165 **BioAnnotator** adding analyses, tutorial 129 advanced analyses 559 alternating between panes 416 analyses descriptions 426 analysis list setup 423 Analysis Monitor 559 Analysis Monitor analyses 428 **BLOCKS** parameters 565 **BLOCKS** search 428 changing analysis properties 424 copying sequence to clipboard 422 creating custom analyses 428 creating project 422 data selection 419 description 415 editing properties 419 features of 416 formatting sequence, tutorial 128 launching 415 modes in Plot Pane 417 modifying layout, tutorial 128 modifying properties, tutorial 127 opening a project, tutorial 129 opening existing project 422 opening from VectorNTI 125 overlapping plots 418 overlapping plots, tutorial 128 panes in 416 Pfam parameters 565 Pfam search 428 Plot Pane 417 ProSite parameters 568 ProSite search 428 protein analyses algorithm 427 protein analyses setup 424, 425 proteolytic cleavage analysis 428 Proteolytic Cleavage parameters 566 sequence display setup 421 Sequence Pane 420 tutorial 125 **Biochemical operations** fragment termini 318 BLAST Internet search, tutorial 107 reference 665

search tutorial 108 Ultimate ORF BLAST 290 Viewer 583 Blast Ultimate ORF 290, 467 **BLAST Results** Database Search 178 **BLAST Search** Analysis Monitor 569 Analysis Monitor launch 569 BLAST 2.0 576 description 569, 575 dialog box 576 expectation value 579 filter masks 579 GenBank division identifiers 577 matrices 580 MegaBLAST 577, 581 Parameters tab 578 performance 582 program descriptions 577 PSI-PHI BLAST 576 PSI-PHI tab 581 saving results 589 saving results, tutorial 110 Sequence tab 578 types description 576 viewing options 582 web site reference 569, 575 word size 579 **BLAST** Viewer Alignment Pane 587 Analysis Pane 585 Color Setup 588 concensus calculation 588 copying molecules to the clipboard 591 creating new subset 591 deleting hits 585 displaying hits as features 590 elements of 583 exporting data from 591 exporting hits as features 590 exporting to GFF file 590 graphs 585 Hit Distribution graph 586 hit element description 585 Hit Map graph 586 hit molecule information 585 **Identity Table 588** launching tools from 591 opening selected hits 590 Plot Setup 587 print command 591 Query-Hit Alignment graph 586

saving selected hits 590

Select Hits feature 587 selecting Analysis Pane regions 587 selection techniques 588 Sequence Profile graph 586 sorting hits 584 Text Pane 584 zooming graphics 586 Block defining in AlignX Blocks 599 in AlignX Blocks, description 593 Block Editor AlignX Blocks 600 Block Search AlignX Blocks 598 **Block Sequence Space** in AlignX Blocks 599 BLOCKS parameters 565 updating BLOCKS database 559 **Blocks List Pane** AlignX Blocks 595 description 596 selection techniques 596 BLOSUM 646, 662 **Broadcast Selection** accessing 19 feature 19 for sequence pane selections 19 Buffers Gel Display 366

С

Cache user field 198 Calling Secondary Peaks chromatogram 501 executing changes 503 List Pane 501 Sequence Pane 502 Camera copying with 19 Caption Figure 17.16 Citations Database Search dialog box 178 Figure 17.17 BLAST Database Search dialog box 178 Figure 17.9 Ancestors Setup dialog box 174 Caret in Graphics Pane 235 in Sequence Pane 236 caret position 144, 147 Changing **Display Setup 216** Graphics Pane formatting 226 Graphics Pane settings 211 sequence text 215 starting coordinate 244

starting coordinate, tutorial 42 symbol sizes 228 Chromatogram changing scale of 470 editing a sequence 470 editing summary 470 evaluating quality 478 show/hide 482 chromatogram data 141 Chromatogram Pane 141 Fragment Window 469 navigating 469 chromatogram peak heights 143 chromatogram traces 143 **Circular Display 208** Citation converting journal format 166 creating new 190 Database Search 178 Citation Viewer 634 Clearing subset 181 User Fields 200 Cleavage points, entering 187 Cloning component fragments 313 component fragments in 356 create all possible constructs 318 Dummy fragments 313 General Information 312, 356 linker fragments 314 sequence fragments 314 Cloning See also Construction or Design 349 Closing Text Pane folders 208 Codon ambiguity **Back Translation 299** Codon usage **Back Translation 298** changing codon usage table 299 creating custom table 298 repairing corrupt tables 299 translated molecules 294 Collapsing folders 16 Color key alignment 400 Color setup AlignX Blocks 601 **BLAST Viewer 588** for links in AlignX Blocks 599 Colors creating custom scheme, 3D-Mol 612 defining custom colors, 3D-Mol 614 Columns modifying in CE Project Explorer 457 modifying/Open/Save As dialog boxes 195 Columns, DB Explorer modifying display 192 modifying width 193 sorting 193 Comments database objects 170 editing, database objects 170 Molecule Editor 243 saving 112 Component fragments Construction 313 deleting 313 editing 313, 317 Goal Molecule Definition List 313 in Design 356 repositioning 313 viewing 311 Component Fragments folder 207 Condense Labels button 210 conensus sequences 155 Connection profile saving for shared db 386 **Consensus Calculation** AlignX 399 Construct/Design Molecule dialog box 312 Constructed molecules 305 parent-descendant relationships 669 Construction adaptor fragments 315 adding fragments 316 adding new fragments 313 adding restriction sites/fragments 314 biochemical operations/fragments 318 component fragments 313 Create All Possible Constructs 318 defining fragments 235 defining fragments, tutorial 78 dummy fragments 313 editing fragment termini 317 General Information 312 linker fragments 314 modifying fragment ends, tutorial 83 mol fragments 316 naming of recombinants 318 open display windows for all 318 reconstructing a molecule 319 repositioning fragment 313 sequence fragments 314 steps in 308 terminus types 317 tutorial 77 using Fragment Wizard 309 viewing component fragments 313 Contact Manager 63

Database Explorer 195 editing data 196 Contig assembling full/regular contigs 450 assembling light contigs 450 assembly setup 444 assemblying 442 deleting contigs/fragments from assembly 454 dismissing an assembly 453 dissolving contigs 453 editing project properties 452 editing properties 452, 463 moving a fragment in 485 type assembly options 450 Contig Express Chromatogram Pane 141, 142, 143 Contig Viewer 149, 150 exiting 149, 161 Fragment Viewer 141 Lane Width 142 Sequence Pane 141, 142 sequence selection techniques 142, 143 Text Pane 141 Contig Viewer 149, 150 Alignment Pane 157 Contig Window Alignment Pane 479 Camera feature 479 finding sequence fragments 481 Graphics Pane 474 opening 461, 473 opening fragment from 479 resizing graphics 475 reverse complementing fragments 486 showing ORFs 478 Text Pane 474 translating consensus 485 viewing options 487 viewing options, Fragment Highlights tab 488 viewing options, General tab 487 viewing options, Weight Table tab 489 ContigExpress accepted sequence file formats 439 adding .abi files to, tutorial 132 adding project fragments, tutorial 132 Alignment Pane, contig 480 assembling contigs 442 assembling large projects 451 assembling selected fragments 151 assembling sequences in 134 assembly results 134 changing project item names 139 closing 464 closing a project 140 Content View 139

Contig Graph 151 Coverage Map 151 creating assembly 151 deleting data 464 deleting fragments 140 demo project 132 editing fragment or contig 484 exiting 140 exiting a project 460 exporting contigs/fragments from 460 features of workspace windows 461 finding ambiguous bases 481 finding sequence fragments 467 finding sequence fragments in Alignment Pane 481 finding Text Pane feature in other panes 463 fragment trimming 493 Fragment Viewer 140 Graphics Pane 151 highlighting a fragment 485 History View 139 importing a directory of files 441 importing fragments 132, 133, 438 importing Phrap file 439 importing Phred file 439 launching, tutorial 131 List Pane 133, 137 modifying viewing options 136 opening a project 438 opening fragment and contig windows 461 Options dialog 136 Project Explorer 133, 134 Project Explorer, List Pane 132 Project window options 457 references 665 saving a project 140 saving items in project 464 saving projects in 131 selecting objects in 442 showing ORFs, Contig window 478 showing ORFs, Fragment window 467 showing two strands 142 starting 131 Status Bars 462, 584 translating consensus, Contig window 485 tutorial 131 Ultimate ORF Blast 467 viewing options 136, 153 Weight Graph 151, 152 zooming in 151 ContigExpress projects opening 132 ContigExpress window 131 Converting GCG files to VNTI 643 Copying analyses, Analysis Monitor 570 **Back Translation 299**

bibliography format 166 chains in 3D-Mol 608 Copy To command 20 database data 191 formats for 20 fragment/contig in Tree Pane 459 gel data 373 panes and text from GenomBench 557 raw sequence 20 sequence 215 sequence in GenomBench 522 styles 230 to clipboard 19 using Camera 19 with Copy button 20 Creating composite features, GenomBench 520 Construction fragments 316 custom genetic code 295 features, GenomBench 517 Gel Display window, tutorial 99 gel sample 367 internal start point 212 molecule shortcuts 232 new Citation 190 new DNA/RNA molecule 186 new enzyme 186 new enzyme, methylation 187 new fragment 316 new Gel Marker 190 new molecule from sequence 237 new molecule in Design 349 new molecules 7, 306 new oligo 189 new protein molecule 186 new subset 179 project in AlignX 401 project in AlignX Blocks 598 project, BioAnnotator 422 user-defined structures, 3D-Mol 607 Creating a New Destination Vector 335 Creating Entry Clones 323 CSV Oligo Files Importer 648 **Custom Primers** Invitrogen 65, 72 Customer support, contacting 659 Cut/copy sequence 215

D

DAS Configuration utility 507 DAS servers 507 Data Loading Monitor, GenomBench 511 Database author information 169 backup 179

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

capability 5 changing date/time display 170 cleanup 179 Contact Manager 63 copying data 191 cut, copy 191 description, objects 167 drag and drop feature 191 LabShare, configuring link to VNTI 637 LabShare, viewing in VNTI 639 management operations 178 menu commands for objects 185 missing Gateway Cloning molecules 322 moving objects 191 object comments 170 object keywords 171 object system fields 168 object user-defined fields 170 operations on objects 185 pasting data 191 Proteins 56 restore 179 search 6, 171 search, tutorial 58 Subsets 56, 58 types of molecules 165 User Field Manager 59 Database Explorer 57 Archives tab 193 column display 192 Contact Manager 195 content reports 193 description of 163 elements of 165 exchanging objects from 164 Gateway Cloning launch 186 modifying window display, VNTI 192 molecule export preferences 193 opening molecule from 205 popup tips display 193 searching in 171 separators 167 shortcuts 194 sorting columns 193 Status Bar display 193 subsets 167 tables 165 User Field Manager 197 viewing modes 192 **Database Search** Analysis Results 178 Ancestors Setup, VNTI 174 Attributes Setup, VNTI 173 **BLAST Results 178** citation search 178

defining filters, VNTI 172 DNA/RNA 172 enzymes 176 Features Setup, VNTI 175 Gel Markers 177 Keywords Setup, VNTI 174 name search, VNTI 172 oligos, VNTI 176 protein 172 steps in, VNTI 171 DatabaseSee also Shared database 386 Date/time display editing 170 modifying settings 186 **DB** Explorer opening at startup 13, 26, 56, 164, 204, 234 deleted peaks 147 Deleting analyses, Analysis Monitor 570 custom genetic code 296 data from ContigExpress 464 features, GenomBench 517 gel lane 372 hits, BLAST Viewer 585 molecule in AlignX Blocks 601 molecule with descendants 186 object from database 185 sequence regions 215 subset contents 181 tool 626 Demo Mode 650, 687 demo project 132 Design Advanced Preferences 360, 362 advanced, tutorial 93 biochemical operations 353 complex donor, tutorial 97 complex recipient, tutorial 93 component fragments 356 defining 3' end 352 defining 5' end 351 defining component fragments 356 defining donor fragments 353 defining fragments 235 defining fragments, tutorial 86 defining recipient fragment 350 describing goal molecule 350 description folder, tutorial 90 Design Description folder 362 Donor 309 Flank regions 357 flanking regions 354 fragment descriptors 357 Fragment Editor 353 fragment isolation 359

functional signals in donor fragments 353 General Information 356 intermediate recombinants 362 preferences 359 Recipient 309 recipient fragment 351 recipient's start position 356 recombinant names 361 redesigning a molecule 364 restriction sites in 351, 354 returning to pre-design state 362 setting parameters, tutorial 88 setting preferences, tutorial 89 stages in the process 361 steps in 349 strategy, tutorial 85 tutorial 85 undefined fragment termini 354 using PCR 359 Design Description folder 207 Design Molecule dialog box 355 **Design Parameters** dialog box 358 Dimer description 288 Dimers and Hairpin Loops dialog box 283, 287 Dismissing subset 181 Display switch to Circular 208 switch to Linear 208 Display pane re-sizing 16 **Display Profile 222** applying saved style 231 open molecule using current 204 setting option for opening molecules 204 Display Setup 205, 230 adding RENs to restriction map 219 Analyses 221 applying saved settings 222 changing parameters 215 changing protein parameters 223 dialog box 31 DNA/RNA molecules 216 **DNA/RNA** Sequence 212 Feature map 216 gel 367 graphic properties 227 Graphics 47 graphics, tutorial 46 Motifs, DNA 217 Motifs, protein 223 opening 216

ORFs 220 Protein molecules 223 Restriction Map 90, 96, 219 saving and loading settings from file 222, 225 saving styles 229 saving to a profile 222, 226 sequence 219, 225 tutorial 32 Display window 231 changing settings 215 copying data 19 copying to clipboard 19 gel 8 Graphics pane 208 linking panes 17 Molecule 8 printing 21 Rearrange 27 selection techniques 18 Sequence Pane 211 Text pane 207 tiling, tutorial 86 displaying ORFs 144, 152, 153, 154 DNA/RNA analyses in reports 378 Analyses Setup 221 Characters Used 667 complementary strand 241 create new using splicing 306, 307 creating new 186, 237, 306 Database Search 172 db operations on molecules 185 **Display Setup 215** Feature Map Setup 216 File format for importing 667 making reverse complement 244 Motifs setup 217 **ORFs Setup 220** reverse complementing in AlignX 398 translating 213 Dot Matrix copying to Clipboard 413 description of 410 launching 411 Drag and drop 191 Dummy fragments 313 Dynamic License 650, 687

E

Edit Oligo dialog box 283, 285 Edit Picture mode 226, 233 Editing adding annotations 50 alignment 408

alignments, GenomBench 525 analyses, Analysis Monitor 570 analysis properties, BioAnnotator 419 Analysis Result properties 190 **BLAST Result properties 190** blocks in AlignX Blocks 600 changing Styles 51 chromatogram sequence 470 chromatogram, summary 470 contact information 196 contig project properties 452 contig properties 452 date/time display options 170 display properties, BioAnnotator 419 Feature map 240 Feature map, tutorial 41 feature types 49 features, GenomBench 517 fragment or contig properties 463 fragments or consensus, CE 483 fragments, CE 483 gel properties 371 graphics 48 Graphics Display settings 222 molecule editing vs picture editing 233 molecule feature 236, 240 molecule fields, tutorial 38 molecule in Molecule Editor 233, 237 molecule, effect on parents 238 molecule, tutorial 37 Molecules 7 motifs 217 object comments 170 oligos 189, 217, 285 options, ContigExpress 457 options, Vector NTI 204 options, VNTI DB Explorer 192 pane layout 22 Picture Editing Mode 48 restriction map 242 reversing molecule edits 236 sequence 236, 240 sequence attributes, GenomBench 528 sequence, effect on feature 40 sequence, tutorial 39 shared db properties 386 shared db user accounts 386 styles 230 subset 180 subsets, Resulting Content column 180 subsets, Source Content column 180 subsets, Source Subsets column 180 symbol format 228 User Fields 200 Electrophoresis profile 366

Enlarging graphics selection 18 Ensembl extracting features in GenomBench 513 Entrez/PubMed Search 631 Entry Clones pDONR vectors 323 Enzyme creating new enzymes 186 Database Search 176 DB operations on objects 185 entering cleavage points 187 entering methylation points 187 entering Recognition String 187 methylase 187 Enzyme Editor 186 Exons graphic display 210 splicing into new molecule 307 Expanding folders 16 Expectation value 579 Exporting format 193 fragment/contigs from CE 460 hits as features, BLAST Viewer 590 into text file directory 184 molecule 232 subset 184 subset to VNTI Archives 184 to GFF file, BLAST Viewer 590 User Field Definitions 199 User Fields 60 **Expression Clones** Recombine by BP 323 Extra-Chromosome Replication 313, 356

F

FASTA files 442 Feature map adding new feature, tutorial 42 data in reports 378 editing 240 editing, tutorial 41 folder 207 sequence editing effects 40 Feature Map Setup DNA/RNA 216 proteins 223 Features adding to an alignment, GenomBench 520 assigning Styles 230 downloading from NCBI, GenomBench 520 editing 48, 240 editing graphics 229 extracting component features, GenomBench 513

marking in AlignX Alignment Pane 391, 396 searching by in VNTI Database 175 transforming to permanent, GenomBench 543 translating 293, 294 File formats 204 accepted in ContigExpress 439 Files acceptable formats, AlignX 402 exporting, BioAnnotator 22 importing, AlignX 402 Find Common Non-Cutter REN Analysis 302 Finding ambiguous bases, CE 481 molecule features 208 objects/Find button 17 sequence fragments in Alignment Pane, CE 481 sequence, DNA 214 sequence, protein 214 sequences, AlignX 398 shared database 385 specific sequence, Sequence Pane 467 Text Pane feature in other panes, CE 463 Text Pane features, AlignX Blocks 595 Fit to Window Graphics Pane 18 Folders Hybridization Probes 281 motifs search 291 mutagenesis 292 opening/closing 16 **ORFs** results 290 PCR results 271 restriction fragments 300 Text Pane 207 Text Pane, AlignX 391 Font Editing 47 Footer Codes for 21 Formats ASCII 667 Bairoch (enzymes) 182 Database Explorer reports 194 feature table descriptions 182 files 204 imported text files 182 IUB codes 667 text file directories 182 tools input 627 VNTI Archive 182 Formatting bibliography 166 Feature Types 50 graphical features 226 Graphics Pane text 227

manuscript citations 166 sequence text 18 Formatting Codes Header and Footer 21 Fragment editing properties of, CE 463 importing directory to ContigExpress 441 importing to ContigExpress 438 importing to ContigExpress, accepted formats 439 Fragment Descriptor **Dialog Box 357** Fragment Editor in Design 353 Fragment of Molecule dialog box 316 Fragment trimming adding insertion points 499 calculating preview 497 confirming with chromatogram 498 description 493 editing polylinker bases 499 initiating in Project Explorer 456 settings 495 steps in process 493 vector contamination 498 Fragment Viewer Chromatogram Pane 157, 469 deleted peaks 147 description, CE 465 displaying ORFs 144 editing sequence 147, 149, 159, 160, 161, 470 finding sequence fragments 467 modifying viewing options 472 nucleotide sequences 145 opening 140, 461, 465 Sequence Pane 466 setting caret position 144, 147 showing individual traces 143, 144 showing two strands 144 showing deleted peaks 471 showing ORFs 467 Text Pane 466 Fragment Wizard defining 3' end, Construction 310 defining 5' end, Construction 310 defining fragments 309 in Construction 309 in Design 350 Insert Inverted box 309 New Fragment description 311 selecting restriction site 352 steps in using 309 steps in using, Design 349 Fragments adding new, Construction 313 Call Secondary Peaks 456

Functional features Sequence Pane display 211 Functional Signal Name Dialog Box 241

G

Gap penalties 405 Gateway Cloning creating Expression Clones 323 launching from DB Explorer 186 missing molecules 322 Recombine an Expression Clone by BP 323 Recombine Expression Clones by BP 323 GCG Converter 643 importing converted files 645 Gel changing fragment color, tutorial 102 copying 373 creating marker, tutorial 101 gray zone around fragments 373 partial digestions 368 Text Pane folders, description 102 Gel Display electrophoresis parameters 366 electrophoresis profile 366 electrophoresis type 366 lanes in 372 parameters 366 selecting fragments 372 True Scale 372 Gel Display Setup 366 Gel Display window 8 calculator 373 camera feature 373 copying data 373 creating new 8 elements of 367, 370 Gel Pane 370 opening 365 printing in 374 Text Pane 370 toolbars 367 tutorial 99 Gel document opening 367 Gel electrophoresis adding samples, tutorial 100 animation 371 animation, tutorial 103 calculator, tutorial 105 changing color of fragment, tutorial 102 fragment separation time 372 manipulating lanes 372 markers 8, 367 modifying fragment properties 371 opening a new gel 366

running 9, 371 running, tutorial 103 samples 8 separation distance 373 separation distance, tutorial 104 separation time 373 separation time, tutorial 104 setup, tutorial 99 time 371 Zoom in/out 372 Gel marker adding 369 creating 368 creating new 190 Database Search 177 description 367 editing 190, 369 New Gel Marker dialog box 368 saving 368 Gel Marker Editor 370 Gel Pane Gel Display window 370 Gel sample adding 367 description 367 list 369 performing partial digestions 368 Gel Sample List adding fragments to 370, 372 adding fragments to gel 370 viewing 369 GenBank division identifiers 577 Generate a Clone by PCR Amplification and TOPO Cloning 339 Generate a Clone by TOPO cloning 337 Generate an Entry Clone by PCR Amplification and BP **Recombination 324** Generate an Entry Clone by PCR Amplification and Ligation into a pENTR Vector 329 Generate an Entry Clone in a BP reaction by Recombining an Expression Clone 323 Genetic Code alternate code list 295 changing 295 creating custom 295 deleting custom 296 dialog box 295 naming custom 295 selecting 175 setting for translations 214, 294 GenomBench activating panes 513 advanced analyses 559 Analysis Monitor 559

configuring DAS server paths 508 copying from 557 creating local databases 506 creating new sequences 552 DAS Configuration utility 507 Data Loading Monitor 511 database file 506 database migration 506, 554 editing fragment loading parameters 534 editing sequence attributes 528 exporting fragments 556 extracting Ensembl features 513 feature type filters 530 highlighting sequence regions 514 importing files to local database 554 launching 506 launching Analysis Monitor 542 launching Query Application 545 loading features from Ensembl 513 loading fragments and features 510 LS Configuration utility 506 printing from 556 redo operations 529 removing and restoring panes 513 saving fragments to local database 552 selecting global features for download 536 sequence on demand mode 535 setting selections and fragments 514 Sim4 parameters 562 Spidey parameters 564 Spiedy parameters 564 target sequences 521 undo operations 529 zooming panes 514 GenomBench Alignment tab 523 adding features to alignments 520 alignment color scheme 524 description 523 editing alignments 525 GenomBench Feature Map Pane adding features to Alignment tab 523 adding files and URLs to features 518, 521 adding qualifiers to features 519 composite features 520 coordinate scale options 517 creating features 517 deleting features 517 description 515 editing features 517 editing graphic styles 531 editing multiple feature simultaneously 520 feature layout options 516 feature style options 517 grouping features 520 marking selections 514

specifying URLs for features with alignment information 537 unmarking selections 514 viewing feature properties 520 GenomBench Features tab customizing columns 527 description 526 editing features 527 sorting 526 symbols 526 GenomBench Information Pane Alignment tab 523 description 521 Features tab 526 Search Results tab 540 Sequence tab 522 Text tab 528 GenomBench Overview Pane description 515 GenomBench Search Results tab description 540 GenomBench Sequence tab copying sequence 522 description 522 translating sequence 523 GenomBench Text tab description 528 GenomBench tools Feature Search 539 Pattern Search 540 regular expression syntax, Pattern Search tool 683 retrieving Sim44/Spidey alignment analysis results 542 sending fragments to Vector NTI 551 showing Sim4/Spidey hits in Alignment tab 544 transforming features to permanent 543 Global alignments 646 Goal Molecule Definition List 355 opening 311 Graphical map fit to window 18 Graphics assigning styles 230 formatting 226 manipulating in 3D-Mol 611 modifying properties, BLAST Viewer 587 modifying styles 230 Graphics display editing 222 settings 222 Graphics objects formatting 48 **Graphics** Pane 3D Options dialog box, 3D-Mol 616 3D-Mol 610 AlignX 393 CE, resizing graphics 476

changing settings 211 Contig Window 474 editing modes 226, 233 finding objects 17 formatting features 226 hiding features 229 Molecule Display window 208 moving objects 228 re-sizing 17 restoring features 229 selection techniques 234 styles 229 Graphs AlignX 393 **BLAST Viewer 586** descriptions 393 Hit Distribution 586 Hit Map 586 managing scales of, AlignX 395 Query-Hit Alignment 586 Sequence Profile 586 Guide tree algorithm 662 AlignX 392 construction options 406 exporting 392 reason for empty pane 392 Guide Tree Pane tutorial 118

H

Hairpin loops description 288 Header Codes for 21 Header and footer codes page setup 21 High throughput cloning 347 High Throughput Operations 344 High Throughput PCR 344 Hit Distribution Graph 586 Hit elements BLAST 585 Hit Map Graph 586 HTML publishing 232 Hybridization probe user-defined 280 Hybridization probes analysis 279 dialog box 246, 279 folder 281 parameters 280 Hybridization probes folder 207

Ι

Identity Table AlignX 400, 409 Importing ASCII 667 directory of fragments into ContigExpress 441 enzymes from REBASE 182 enzymes from VNTI Archive 183 features 182 file formats 182 fragments into ContigExpress 438 molecule files 181 Molecules 7 molecules to subset 182 objects from text file directories 182 objects from VNTI Archives 182 oligo files, CSV Importer 648 Phrap file into ContigExpress 439 Phred file into ContigExpress 439 Phred quality values into ContigExpress 441 **REBASE** commercial source data 183 **User Field Definitions 199** User Fields 60 Inserting sequence 215, 236 Internal Design Parameters, Design 360 Internal start point creating in DNA/RNA Sequence 212 Internet 52 saving results in database, tutorial 112 Internet Tools 10 Introduction to Gateway Cloning 321, 322 Introduction to TOPO Cloning 337 Introns graphic display 211 Invitrogen **Custom Primers 72** custom primers 65 Customer support contact information 659 Gateway Cloning 321 Gateway Cloning from DB Explorer 186 ordering custom primers 72, 273, 284 proprietary molecules 165, 208 Ultimate ORF BLAST 290 Ultimate ORF Blast 290, 467 Website 660 Invitrogen proprietary 208 IUB Codes 667

J

Journal format 166

K

Keyboard shortcuts

Database Explorer 194 Keywords entering 171, 313, 356 Molecule Editor 244 object 171 removing 171 searching by in VNTI Database 174

L

Labels formatting 50 LabShare Database accessing in Vector NTI 639 mini-exploring window in Vector NTI 639 opening objects in VNTI 642 Remote Database Sources Wizard 637 saving objects from VNTI 642 Launching Analysis Monitor 560 Analysis Monitor from GenomBench 542 **BLAST Search 575** BLAST Search, Analysis Monitor 569 GenomBench 506 Query Application from GenomBench 545 License Manager 650, 687 configuring dynamic license 654, 691 configuring trial license 656, 693 opening 650 License status 650, 687 License, static resetting 653, 691 Licenses, Vector Xpression 650, 687 Linear Display 209 Link Color in AlignX Blocks 599 Linker fragments 314 Linking panes 17 tutorial 32 Linking/unlinking residues in AlignX Blocks 599 List Pane 132 meaning of icons in 435 Project Explorer 435 Loading Display Setup from a file 222, 225 PCR analysis settings 247 PCR settings 328 Local alignment in AlignX Blocks 593 Local Author 170 Low-complexity segments 579 LS Configuration utility 506

Μ

Managing shared database 386 Matrix **BLOSUM 646** PAM 646 score 407 Zoom in 412 Matrix Editor 646 Maximizing panes 16, 594 Memory cache 198 Methylation designating for RENs 187 designating type for RENs 188 showing in REN Database 187 Text Pane Restriction/Methylation Map folder 188 Mini-Exploring window formatting page size 641 navigating in 639 opening LabShare objects 642 saving objects to LabShare DB 642 Modifying Plot Setup 394 VNTI DB Explorer window display 192 VNTI window display options 204 Mol Fragments 316 Molar extinction coefficient calculation 665 Molecule adding features 236 adding restriction sites to 236 advanced Design, tutorial 93 basic 305, 306 changing starting coordinate 244 changing starting coordinate, tutorial 42 constructed 305, 306 Construction 306 Construction, tutorial 77 create new using splicing 306, 307 creating new 7, 306 creating new from raw sequence 237 defining complex Design fragments, tutorial 94 defining construction fragments, tutorial 78 defining Design fragments, tutorial 86 Design 306 Design, tutorial 85 **Display Setup 215** documents 52 editing a feature 240 editing a sequence 240 editing format 241 editing graphics, tutorial 45 Editing mode 48 editing, Molecule Display window 233 editing, tutorial 37 effect of editing on parents 238 exporting 232 external files 206 finding features in all panes 208

Formatting 52 Goal List 81 importing sequence text files 182 importing text file 182 making reverse complement 244 Molecule Editing mode 233 opening Molecule Shortcut file 206 parent-descendant relationships 669 Picture Editing mode 233 reconstruction 319 redesign 364 Revert To Saved command 40 saving 231 shortcuts 232 viewing properties 195 Molecule Display window 8 description, tutorial 27 **Display Setup 215** elements of 206 Graphics Pane 208 opening molecules 204 opening User Fields page 201 panes 206 resizing, tutorial 27 Sequence Pane 211 Text Pane 207 Text Pane, tutorial 31 viewing a highlighted region 210 working with sequence, tutorial 29 Molecule Document 232 description 205, 231 formats 8, 205 opening 206 Save As 52 saving 231 Molecule Editing mode 203, 233 for Construction/Design 308 Molecule Editor 305 Comments tab 243 description of 233, 237 editing a feature 240 for new molecule 238 General Information tab 238 imported text files in 182 Keywords tab 244 opening 237 Sequence and Maps tab 239, 242 User Fields tab 243 Molecule Feature dialog box 240 Molecule Shortcut file creating 232 opening molecule from 206 Molecules 208 Invitrogen, proprietary 165 missing in database 322

Motifs analyzing 217 editing 217 finding 217 in reports 377 removing 217, 224 saving 217 Sequence Pane display 211 setup for DNA/RNA 217 setup for protein 223 similarity 217, 218, 224 sorting 218, 225 Motifs search launching 290 results 291 Motifs Setup 217, 223 Moving fragment in a contig 485 object, Graphics Pane 228 Multiple alignmentSee Alignment, initiating multiple 402 Multiplex PCR adding features 265 description 263 dialog box 266 initialting the analysis 266 Lists dialog box 264 process 264 report 270 Mutagenesis launching search 291 restriction sites in 291 results 292

N

Name searching by in VNTI Database 172 Naming Design recombinants 361 of construction recombinants 318 NetWare shared database 383 New Fragment dialog box 352 New Oligo dialog box 285 non-ambiguous bases 137 Non-Cutter REN Analysis dialog box 304 finding common non-cutters 302 finding common non-cutters, report 304 nucleotide sequences 154, 155 editing 146 nucleotide sequences, translating 144, 145

0

Object applying new user fields 199 clearing user fields from 200 database, description 167 importing comments 170 viewing properties 195 Obtaining a Functional Entry Clone from Invitrogen 331 Oligo Database Search 176 db operations on objects 185 searching by in VNTI Database 175 Oligo analysis %GC method 665 dialog box 286 dimers 288 duplexes 289 hairpin loops 288 melting temperature 72 Nearest Neighbors method 287, 665 results 287 Tm 287 tutorial 71 Oligo Analysis dialog box 283 Oligo Database searching for motifs 217 **Oligo Duplexes** dialog box 283, 289 graphical depiction 288, 289 Oligo Editor 217, 284, 285 Oligo List adding primer to 273 description 283 dialog box 283 loading oligos 217 opening 283 ordering custom primers 284 Online Help description 13 **Online Resources** Entrez Search System at NCBI 605 Open DB Explorer 13 dialog box, modifying 195 Opening 3D-Mol 606 3D-Mol structures 606 AlignX 389 Analysis Monitor 560 **BioAnnotator from VectorNTI 125** Construct dialog box 312 **Display Setup 216** Dot Matrix 411 Fragment Window 465 Fragment Wizard 350

Gel Display window 365 GFF files 590 Goal Molecule Definition List 311, 355 hits as features, BLAST Viewer 590 Molecule Display window, tutorial 26 Molecule Document file 206 Molecule Editor 237 molecule from DB Explorer 205 molecule from shortcut file 206 molecule in display window 204 molecule with current profile 204 project in AlignX Blocks 598 project, BioAnnotator 422 Report Generation Wizard 376 Text Pane folders 208 Tools Manager 626 Vector NTI, tutorial 25 Opening at startup DB Explorer 56, 164, 234 opening ContigExpress projects 132 **Opening DB Explorer** startup 26 Options dialog box 3D-Mol, Graphics Pane 616 3D-Mol, Sequence Pane 620 ContigExpress 457 Vector NTI 204 VNTI Database Explorer 192 Order ustom primers Add to Oligo List 72 Ordering custom primers 72, 273, 284 ORFs 8 displaying in ContigExpress 144, 152, 153, 154 in reports 377 incomplete 221 nested 221 phase indicators 214 Sequence Pane display 212 showing in Contig window 478 translating 213, 293 translating, BioAnnotator tutorial 126 Ultimate ORF BLAST 290 undefined start/stop 221 ORFs folder 207 ORFs search hiding results 290 launching 290 results 290 **ORFs Setup 220 Overlapping 418**

Р

Page setup header and footer codes 21 Pairwise alignmentSee Alignment-Pairwise 404

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

PAM 646, 662 Pane layout modifying 22 Pane Manager 22 Panes activating 15 linking 17 maximizing 16 re-sizing 16 switching between 15 Panes, maximizing 594 Parameters **Display Setup 215** multiple alignment 405 pairwise alignment 404 Parent/Descendant Relationships 7, 669 Trees 185, 670 Parents molecule, effect of editing on 238 status with copy feature 193 Password shared database 385 Pasting sequence 215 styles 230 PCR analysis results 271 cloning sites box 272 create display window for product 272 finding product in Graphics Pane 272 product, creating display window 75 saving product in database 272 PCR Analysis 3' end tab 252 Alignment PCR 246, 260, 413 amplicon tab 249 Amplify Features dialog box 245, 247, 255 Amplify Selection dialog box 245, 247, 255 cluster tab, Multiplex PCR 269 dialog box, load/save buttons 247, 328 dialog boxes 245 displaying profile 274 features tab 257 filter tab 257 filters tab 254 Find PCR Primers dialog box 245, 247 Find Primers dialog box 66 Long PCR dialog box 245, 258 Multiplex PCR 246, 263 pairs tab 250 parameters 248, 255, 256, 259, 260 parameters, Alignment PCR 262 parameters, Multiplex PCR 267 primer melting temperature 67

primer tab 248, 255, 256, 259, 260 primer tab, Alignment PCR 262 primer tab, Gateway Cloning 325 primer tab, Multiplex PCR 267 printing PCR settings 274 printing results 274 qualities tab 253 report, Alignment PCR 263 report, Multiplex PCR 270 results tab, Alignment PCR 263 results tab, Multiplex PCR 268 results, tutorial 71 saving results to DB 273 similarity tab 251 structure tab 249 uniqueness tab 252 uniqueness tab, Multiplex PCR 269 Using Existing Oligos dialog box 245, 259 viewing saved results 274 PCR Analysis folder 207 PCR primers 246 adding restriction sites, tutorial 73 saving to database, tutorial 73 user defined 248 pDONR vectors Entry Clones 323 Performing an LR Recombination 331 Pfam parameters 565 updating Pfam database 559 Phase indicators **ORFs 214** translations 214 Phrap importing Phrap file into ContigExpress 439 Phred adding fragments to ContigExpress 439 loading quality values into ContigExpress 441 Picture Editing Mode 48, 203 activating 226 description 226 styles 229 Plot Pane **BioAnnotator 417** layout mode 418 modes in, BioAnnotator 417 overlapping plots 418 repositioning plots 418 resizing plots 418 resizing plots, BioAnnotator 419 Plot Setup AlignX 394 Polylinker editing for fragment trimming 499 poor consensus 151

Primer Similarity dialog box 276 Primer/Oligo Parameters dialog box 246, 277 Primer/Oligo Quality Specifics dialog box 246 Primers designing, reference 666 Order 273, 284 ordering custom 72, 273, 284 PCR, sense/antisense 272 similarity values 680 TaOpt 680 Tm values 680 Primers hybridization probes 279 Primers sequencing 275 Primers/probes db operations on objects 185 Print 8 Print Preview Dot Matrix 412 Printing Display windows 21 from display windows, tutorial 33 from Gel Display window 374 from Project Explorer 459 PCR Analysis settings 274 reports 379 subset object list 184 Profile open molecule using current 204 saving Display Setup 222 Profile alignmentSee Alignment, initiating profile 403 Project Explorer 432 Assembly Setup dialog 134 exiting 460 icons in lists 435 List Pane 132 List PaneSee List Pane 435 making reverse complement, CE 454 modifying viewing options, CE 457 opening a project 438 opening contigs/fragments 453 printing panes 459 saving a project 460 Status Bar settings 458 Status Bars 433 Tree PaneSee Tree Pane 433 tutorial 131 viewing formats 436 window 131 Project Explorer status 133 Project Explorer window 132, 133 Projects Creating new 422 opening, BioAnnotator 422

Properties opening 195 subset 181 Properties plots 662 **Proprietary Molecules** Invitrogen 208 PROSITE search and results, tutorial 111 ProSite parameters 568 updating Prosite database 559 Protein Analysis folder 208 analysis, tutorial 34 create display window, tutorial 35 create new by translation 306 create new using splicing 306, 307 creating new 186, 237, 306 Database Search 172 db operations on molecules 185 **Display Setup 223** Feature Map Setup 223 horizontal resolution 225 molar extinction coefficient calculation 665 Motifs setup 223 Opening 34 parents 193 Sequence Setup 225 Protein analyses 662 Protein profile alignmentSee Alignment-Protein profile 406 Proteolytic Cleavage parameters 566 PubMed/Entrez Internet connection settings 633 search settings 632 PubMed/Entrez Search 631

Q

Quality specifics primer/oligo 278 Query Application configuring parameters 546 description 544 elements 545 Ensembl Genome Browser parameters 547 Ensembl SSAHA Search parameters 548 launching 545 PubMed Entrez Search parameters 548 UCSC BLAT Search parameters 546 UCSC Genome Browser parameters 546 viewing results 549 Query-Hit Alignment Graph 586

R

REBASE importing commercial source data 183 importing enzymes from 182 **REBASE** Enzymes dialog box 184 web site 182 Recipient's start position 313 Recombine an Expression Clone by BP Gateway Cloning 323 Redefine Style by Example 51 Redefining Styles 230 Redo 228 References in reports 377 properties plots 663 Regular expression syntax anchors 684 character sets 684 description 683 grouping 684 metacharacter reference 685 modifiers 684 parts 683 pattern memory 684 Remote Database Sources Wizard 636 configuring Internet connection 636 creating links to LabShare Database 637 protocol options 638 Removing blocks in AlignX Blocks 596 molecule from AlignX project 403 motifs, all 217, 224 motifs, selected 217, 224 Renaming database object 185 subsets 181 tool 626 **RENs** display settings 90, 96, 219 Find Common Non-Cutting REN Analysis 302 Non-Cutting REN Analysis 304 Sequence Pane display 211 Replicon Type 313, 356 Report analyses 377 authors 377 comments 377 description, General 375 description, Relation 375 Feature map 377 formats 194 general description 377 generating 375 Generation Wizard 375 motifs 377

options, selecting 376 **ORFs 377** parent/descendant trees 380 preparing, DB Explorer 193 preview 379 print preview 379 printing 379 references 377 relation 380 removing templates 381 renaming templates 381 restriction map 377 saving as template 380 selecting relationship information 381 user fields in 377 Residue substitution matrix BLAST 580 Resizing display pane 16 Molecule Display window 27 plots in BioAnnotator 419 Resolution Prefer Constant Horizontal 225 Restriction enzyme cleavage points 187 Database Search 176 Find Common Non-Cutting REN Analysis 302 methylase 187 methylation points 187 Non-Cutting REN Analysis 304 **Restriction fragments** calculating 300 calculating, tutorial 105 results 300 selecting enzymes for 300 Restriction Map Rearrange Site Labels 33 Restriction map 7 adding enzymes to 219 editing 242 in reports 377 Restriction Map Setup 90, 96, 219 Restriction Map/Methylation Map folder 207 **Restriction sites** adding to cloning fragments 314 for Construction fragments, tutorial 81 Reverse complement making in AlignX 398 making in ContigExpress 454 making in VNTI 244 Revert to saved. 236 **RFLP Analysis 300** description 300 dialog box 301 results 301

results, filtering 302 results, performing gel analysis 302 showing fragment details 302 Run GW 264

S

Sample Fragment Properties 371 Save Current Display Settings As 52 Molecule Documents 8 Save As dialog box, modifying 195 Saving 3D-Mol results 624 3D-Mol, results 624 analyses, Analysis Monitor 571 **BLAST Search results 589** Display Setup to a file 222, 225 items in project, CE 464 Molecule Document 232 molecule shortcuts 232 molecule to the database 232 PCR analysis settings 247 PCR primers, tutorial 73 PCR product, tutorial 75 project in ContigExpress 460 report templates 380 shared database connection 386 styles 230 subset object list 184 Schematic Pane AlignX Blocks 597 Score Matrix AlignX Blocks 602 Score matrixSee Matrix-Score 407 Scripts, configure 628 Scroll bars, using 16 Searching find sequence, DNA 214 find sequence, protein 214 VNTI Database 58, 171 Secondary peaks calling, chromatogram 501 iniating calling in Project Explorer 456 Selecting data in BioAnnotator 419 fragments in gel lane 372 Genetic Code 175 plots in BioAnnotator 418 sequence regions 213 sites and symbols 210 Selection Techniques Broadcast Selection feature 19 Selection techniques 18 AlignX Blocks, alignment 598

CE Project Explorer 442 fragments for construction 235 Graphics Pane 234 modifying selection 235 modifying selection, tutorial 28 Molecule Display window, tutorial 28 tutorial 28 Separation time Gel electrophoresis 373 Separator description, Database Explorer 167 Sequence changing text attributes 18 creating new molecule from 237 cut, copy, paste 215 display setup, BioAnnotator 421 Edit dialog box 240 editing 236 editing, tutorial 39 finding DNA 214 finding specific, CE 467 finding, protein 214 formatting text 18 insert new, tutorial 40 inserting 215, 236 selecting regions 213 viewing options, 3D-Mol 620 Sequence Pane 3D-Mol 611 **BioAnnotator 420** copying data 20 custom numbering 212 feature display 211 Feature Map Setup, BioAnnotator 421 finding objects 17 Fragment Window 466 Molecule Display window 211 navigating 212 navigating, BioAnnotator 420 setting internal start point 212 translating in 293 viewing options, 3D-Mol 620 working in, tutorial 29 Sequence Profile graph 586 Sequence profile value 586 Sequence Setup proteins 225 Sequencing Primers 275 dialog box 246, 275 folder 207 parameters 275 results 279 Similarity parameters 276 user defined 276 Sequencing primers adding to oligo list 279

Set Caret Position dialog box 235 Set Selection dialog box 234 Setting genetic code 214, 294 internal start point 212 system attributes 186 Setup Dot Matrix 412 Plot 394 Setup parameters AlignX Blocks 601 contig assembly 444 Setup Profile saving 222 Shared database 383 compatible file servers 383 connecting to 384, 386 creating new 383 Database Explorer 386 disconnecting from 387 editing properties 386 editing user accounts 386 exchanging data with 387 finding 385 managing 386 modifying objects 387 networks 383 passwords 385 saving connection 386 Shortcut menus 14 Shortcuts in Database Explorer 194 showing traces 469 Shrink Labels button 210 Shrink Symbols button 210 Silent mutations description 291 Sim4 parameters 562 Similarity between ambiguous nucleotides 218, 680 dialog box 246, 276 primer parameters 276 Similarity Table **BLAST Viewer 588** Sorting hits, BLAST Viewer 584 Source Content column 180 Source Subsets column 180 Spidey parameters 564 Spread Labels button 210 Standard Arrangement 33, 209, 231 modifying 210 Starting

Vector NTI, tutorial 25 Starting coordinate changing 244 changing, tutorial 42 Startup DB Explorer 26 Opening DB Explorer 13, 204 opening DB Explorer 56, 164, 234 Status Bar ContigExpress 462, 584 display in DB Explorer 193 settings in Project Explorer 458 Status bar Set Caret box 235 Set Selection box 234 Storing graphics 20 Stretch Labels button 210 Stretch Symbols button 210 Structure Pane 3D-Mol 609 Alignments folder 621 Edits folder 607 information, 3D-Mol 609 Styles 52 copy and paste 230 defining 51 loading 231 modifying 230 redefining 230 saving 230 Subset adding objects to 179, 180 clearing 181 Create New 57 creating new 179 deleting contents 181 description 167 dismissing 181 displaying properties 181 editing 180 exporting to text file directory 184 importing molecules to 182 printing object list 184 removing molecules from 180 renaming 181 saving object list 184 summary 181 Summary subset 181 Switch panes tutorial 65 Switching panes 15 System attributes, setting 186 System Information utility 656

Т

Tables Citation 166 Database Explorer, VNTI 166 TaOpt 680 Target sequences in GenomBench 521 Technical Support, contacting 659 Template AlignX Blocks 602 saving report 380, 381 Template files in AlignX 409 Terminus Editor 317, 318 Text editing styles 227 formatting sequence 18 Text file directories importing from 182 Text files importable formats 182 Text Pane AlignX Blocks 594 Contig Window 474 Design Description folder 362 expanding/collapsing folders 16 finding objects in other panes 17 folders in 207 folders, opening/closing 16, 208 Fragment Window 466 Gel Display window 370 linking with other panes 17 Molecule Display window 207 Thermodynamic Properties dialog box 283, 286 Tm %GC 287, 665 %GC calculation 676 ambiguous oligos 679 general information 675 Nearest Neighbors method 287, 665 oligo analysis 287 PCR primers 248 primers/probes 680 references 665, 681 RNA oligos 679 TaOpt 680 Therm. Tm calculation 676 thermodynamic 287 Toolbars 56 switching panes, tutorial 65 Tools 3D-Mol 620 aligning chains, 3D-Mol 620 calculating protein surfaces, 3D-Mol 622 command field 627 configuring 625

creating new 626 deleting 626 description 627 external, AlignX 413 input formats 627 name format 627 **Online Resources 605** program-based vs script-based 628 renaming 626 script configure 628 script field 627 script-based 628 with .tq extension 626 **Tools Manager** adding Web links 628 opening 626 sorting tools 628 TOPO cloning 321 generating a clone 337 high throughput cloning 347 high throughput operations 344 introduction 337 PCR amplification 339 traces, peak height 469 Translating CDS with splicing 294 clearing Sequence Pane translations 213, 293 codon usage table 294 **Complementary Strand 213** Direct Strand 213 DNA/RNA 213, 293, 306 features 293, 294 in six frames 293, 294 in the Sequence Pane 213, 293 into new protein molecule 213, 293, 306 ORFs 213, 293 Translation Clear Translations 213, 293 creating custom genetic code 295 genetic code dialog box 295 options 211, 213 phase indicators 214 setting genetic code 214, 294 six frame 293, 294 translate feature in Sequence Pane 211 translate feature into new protein 211 tutorial 30 Tree Pane Copy fragment/contig option 459 History View mode 433 Trial License 650, 687 **Trimming Fragments** dialog box 494 Ends Trimming dialog box 496 vector contamination trimming 498 TrimmingSee Fragment trimming 498

Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

True-Scale View Gel Display window 18 Tutorial adding fragments to CE project 132 adding new molecule feature 42 adding restriction sites to primers 73 **Back Translation 122 BioAnnotator 125** BLAST search 107 **BLOSUM** matrix 119 calculating restriction fragments 105 changing gel fragment color 102 ContigExpress 131 ContigExpress, Project Explorer 131 creating gel marker 101 defining complex Design fragments 93 defining construction fragments 78 defining Design fragments 86 Design folder description 90, 96 Design, tiling windows in 86 **Display Setup 32** editing an alignment 120 editing Feature map 41 editing molecule graphics 45 graphics Display Setup 46 importing abi files to CE 132 importing from GenBank 109 launching ContigExpress 131 linking panes 32 modifying BioAnnotator layout 128 modifying BioAnnotator properties 127 Molecule Construction 77 opening PCR product 75 PCR analysis results 71 performing alignment, Internet 110 PROSITE search 111 saving internet results 112 saving PCR primers 73 selection techniques 28 setting Design parameters 88 setting Design preferences 89

U

Ultimate ORF Blast 290, 467 Undo 228 Unix shared database 383 User Field adding definition 197 applying values to objects 200 caching 198 changing default values 198 clearing values from objects 200 editing definition 197 editing/individual object 200

field data types 198 importing/exporting 199 List of Predefined Strings data type 198 List of Strings data type 198 List of URLs data type 198 modifying definition 197 One of Predefined Strings data type 198 set/clear values 199 string data type 198 values format 199 Yes/No data type 198 User Field Manager 59, 63 Create New Fields 60 deleting definitions 199 description of 197 dialog box 197 field definitions 197 opening 197 renaming definitions 199 user field import/export 199 user fields display 199 User Field page editing 200 User fields editing 243 User's Manual Conventions 2 Utility Vector NTI System Information 656

V

Vector Contamination trimming, see Fragment trimming 498 Vector NTI customer support 659 import/export formats 6 modifying options 204 overview 5 satellite applications 9 System Information utility 656 user interface 13 Vector NTI Archive exporting into 184 Vector NTI Archive See also Archive 164 Vector NTI Archive See Formats 182 Vector NTI System Information utility 656 Vector Xpression licenses 650, 687 Verifying Expression Product 334 Viewer panes general description 15 Viewer window description 14 Viewing analyses, Analysis Monitor 571 entire molecule 210
internal start point 212 selected region 35, 210 Viewing options CE Project Explorer, modifying 457 Contig Window 487 Contig Window, Fragment Highlights tab 488 Contig Window, General tab 487 Contig Window, Weight Table tab 489

W

Weight Graph CE, calculation of 478 CE, interpreting 477

Z

Zoom in matrix 411 Zoom to Selection 18 Zooming graphics BLAST Viewer 586 Zooming In/Out 17 Vector NTI Advance 10 User's Manual

How to Upgrade to Vector NTI Advance 10.1.1.

Note: You need administrator privileges to your computer in order to install Vector NTI software. If you have any questions, please check our FAQs Database.

From Version 10:

- 1. Download and install Vector NTI Advance 10.1.1 by double-clicking on the installer file and following the instructions.
- 2. The Vector NTI Advance 10.1.1 installation wizard will automatically detect the version 10.0 Vector NTI Local Database. Accept this database option. Upgrade will not affect the existing Local Database.
- 3. Once installation is complete, your existing version 10.0 License Number and Registration Key will work. They are automatically recognized and applied during installation.
- 4. Launch Vector NTI and accept the instructions for initializing the Database.

From Version 9 or 9.1:

- 1. Check the compatibility matrix on the "Downloads" page to make sure you have the appropriate operating system and version combination.
- 2. Download and install Vector NTI Advance 10.1.1 by double-clicking on the file and following the instructions. Accept this database option. Upgrade will not affect the existing Local Database.
- 3. The Vector NTI Advance 10.1.1 installation wizard will automatically detect the version 10.0 Vector NTI Local Database. Accept this database option.
- 4. Once installation is complete, you will need a new License Number and Registration Key. Commercial users please contact <u>bioinfosales@invitrogen.com</u>, academic users can request a License Number and generate a Registration Key in the User Community.
- 5. Launch Vector NTI and accept the instructions for initializing the Database.

From Version 8 or earlier:

Option 1

- 1. Check the compatibility matrix on the "Downloads" page to make sure you have the appropriate operating system and version combination.
- 2. Open the VNTI Local Database.



3. From the Database menu option select Database Backup. This will copy all your Database files to a new folder.



- 4. Please download Vector NTI Advance 10.1.1. Install the application by double-clicking on the file and following the instructions.
- 5. Once installation is complete, you will need a new License Number and Registration Key. Commercial users please contact <u>bioinfosales@invitrogen.com</u>, academic users can request a License Number and generate a Registration Key in the User Community.
- 6. Go to the Local Database and select Database Restore from the Database menu. This will restore your original Database and overwrite the Vector 10.1.1 database.
- You will need to import any updated Invitrogen Vectors manually. These are found on your C drive> Program files> Invitrogen>Invitrogen_Vectors_10_1.ma4
- 8. To add these Vectors to the Local Database, open the Local Database



then drag the Vector file (Invitrogen_Vectors_10_1.ma4) into the Database window.

- 9. Remove the older version of Vector NTI by going to your "Control Panel" and using the "Add/Remove Programs" option.
- 10. Launch Vector NTI and accept the instructions for initializing the Database.

From Version 8 or earlier: Option 2

- 1. Check the compatibility matrix on the "Downloads" page to make sure you have the appropriate operating system and version combination.
- 2. Please create an archive file for each of the object types (DNA/RNA molecules, Protein molecules, Enzymes, Oligos, etc) of the Vector NTI Local Database.

🔯 Exploring - Local Vector NTI Database Oligo Edit View Analyses Align Database Assemble Tools Help **ان ک** 📄 🗟 Oligos 4 \mathbf{T} 南印 All Subsets All database Oligos 🗟 Oligos (MAIN) Name Length Author Deg 🗊 Invitrogen Primers 📄 3' Max Primer... 29 Demo User No Reprint PCR analysis of Mus CAP1 NM 📑 3' RACE Adap... 37 Demo User No 📄 5' Max I 🔊 Test No Align. 🗊 Diomedes 📄 Abridge No Analyses 📄 ASP for No Assemble 🖹 ASP for No Tools E ASP for No Gatewa 📩 Edit.. Yes Gatewa Yes Analyze... M13 Fo No E Analyze Duplexes... 📄 M13 Re No 🖹 Сору 📄 Max 3' No 🔳 Max 5' Export into Archive. No PRM1 No PRM2 No X Delete from Database RSA000 No RSA000 Duplicate No RSA00 ale Rename No RSA00 No Set System Attributes... RSA00 No RSA001 Properties... No

Highlight all the molecules in the object type, right-click, select export into Archive.

- 3. Save the archive file to a network drive or removable medium. Note: the archive file extensions are as follows: **.ma4** for nucleic acids, **.pa4** for proteins, **.oa4** for oligonucleotides, **.ea4** for restriction enzymes.
- 4. Please download Vector NTI Advance 10.1.1. Install the application by doubleclicking on the file and following the instructions.
- 6. Once installation is complete, you will need a new License Number and Registration Key. Commercial users please contact <u>bioinfosales@invitrogen.com</u>, academic users can request a License Number and generate a Registration Key in the User Community.
- 7. Go to your network drive or removable medium and drag & drop each of the object types into the Vector NTU Database Explorer. The Vector NTI Database will detect the archive format and ask you to verify the contents.
- You will need to import any updated Invitrogen Vectors manually. These Vector are in a .ma4 file found on your C drive> Program files> Invitrogen> Invitrogen_Vectors_10_1.ma4

9. To add these Vectors to the Local Database, open the Local Database



then drag the Vector file (Invitrogen_Vectors_10_1.ma4) into the Database window.

- 10. Remove the older version of Vector NTI by going to your "Control Panel" and using the "Add/Remove Programs" option.
- 11. Launch Vector NTI and accept the instructions for initializing the Database.
- 12. Remove the older version of Vector NTI by going to your "Control Panel" and using the "Add/Remove Programs" option.
- 13. Launch Vector NTI and accept the instructions for initializing the Database.